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PREFACE.

The Author of the following work being now about three score and

ten years old, and nearly done with the affairs of this world, having

some knowledge of the first settlement of Colchester, the names of the

first settlers and their descendants, especially of the Townships of Truro

and Onslow, as well as with many circumstances connected with the

early settlement of the County, obtained by tradition and otherwise,

was induced to note down, from time to time, some of them, in order

that his children, and others who may come after, might know some-

thing about their forefathers, and the hardships they underwent in

settling a new country.

It was his intention at first to write only about his own kindred;

but, having begun, he was led on to mention nearly all the Grantees of

the Townships of Truro, and some of Onslow and Londonderry, with

their descendants, as far as he could gather information. By the per-

suasion of a number of his friends, he has been induced to place it

before the public. In doing so, it is with a great amount of diffidence,

knowing his want of fitness for the work—being illiterate and ill-quali-

fied for the task.

If the dates in this work are not correct, the author here claims the

forbearance of those interested, as he has expended a large amount of

time and labour to get them as nearly correct as possible.

To all those who have given me information by letter or otherwise,

I lj(.i-cby tender my 'vaxm and hearty thanks for these favours.

THOMAS MIILAIU
Tkuko, April, 1873.





HISTORICAL AND GENEALOGICAL RECORD
OF THE

FIRST SETTLERS OF COLCHESTER COUNTY.

CHAPTEE I,

On the second day of September, 1775, the French inhabitants of

Cobequid Village (now Masstown) lying on the north side of the

bay, and upper part of the Township of Londonderry, were engaged

in their fields at their work, it being harvest time. With the after-

noon tide thi'ee vessels were seen coming up the Bay. Two of them

prepared to anchor, one opposite the Village, and the other at Lower

Cobequid ; whilst the third ran further up the shore. Curiosity was

rife. Who were they, and whither were they going 1 Their curiosity

was still heightened by the appearance of a person in the garb of a

curate, who informed them that the following notice was posted on

the door of the Church :
" To the inhabitants of the ViUage of

Cobeqiiid, and the surrounding shores, as well ancient as young men

and lads ordering them all to repair to the Church the next day at

three P. M., and hear what he had to say to them." Signed by John

Winslow.

Meanwhile the Sailors landed, "and were fireely supplied with milk,

eggs, and anything they wanted, by the farmers. Small parties of

Soldiers landed, chatted with the people, examined their farms, or

strolled to the uplands in search of partridges, and in the afternoon of

the third day of September they joined the people as they repaired to

the Church. The women had milked the cows, and prepared supper,

but no one came from the Church. The moon rose, and the sisters

strolled out and ran to the Church to ascertain the cause of their

delay. When they arrived at the Church, to their great astonish-

ment, they found it surrounded by armed Soldiers, who answered

their inquiries by pointing their bayonets, and ordering them to go

home. They met many of the women from the houses nearest the

Church, all anxious and sad at the detention of their Mends. At
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daybreak the following notice* was read, whicli was stuck on the fence

opposite the Church: " Cobequid, September 4th, 1775. All Officers^

Soldiers and Seamen employed in His Majesty's Service, as well as all

His subjects, of what denomination soever, are hereby notified that all

cattle, viz., horses, horned cattle, sheep, goats, hogs, and poultry of

every kind, that was supposed to be vested in the French inhabitants

of this Province, have become forfeited to His Majesty, whose property

they now are ; and every person of what denomination soever, is to

take care not to hiui., destroy, or kill any of the above named animals,

nor to rob orchards, or gardens, or to make waste of anything in these

districts, without special order given at my Camp, the day and place

to be published throughout the Camp, and at the Village where the

vessels lie. Signed by John Winslow, .Lieut. Colonel Commanding."

AVhen the people read this notice they were speechless with terror ;

death stared them in the face. In the meantime three hundred men
and boys found themselves close prisoners in their own Church.

Some of the boys screamed aloud, some attempted to force the door,

but they were overawed by the muskets of their guards. Day dawned

at length over the wretched prisoners ; they "wished to be allowed to

return to their families for food ; this Avas refused, but their families were

ordered to supply food to them. A few of these prisoners were sent

out during the day to inform those that dwelt at a distance from the

Church if they did not immediately surrender, their houses would be

burnt and their nearest friends shot. One of these messengers

attempted to escape ; he was shot, and his house and barn set on

fire. Thus tjie work of destruction was commenced. About 200

married women, and upwards of 100 young women, besides children,

were ordered to collect what they could of their apparel, and prepare

to embark. In vain the men entreated to know whither they were

going, but no answer was given. By noon, the 5th of September, the

beach was piled with boxes, baskets and bundles ; behind them were

crowds of weeping women and children ; children crying for their

mothers, and mothers looking for their children ; sick men and bed-

ridden women were carried by strong maidens, or tipped out of the carts

which bore them to the spot. A little before high water the prisoners

in the Church were ordered to form six deep and march to the place

of embarkation ; they refused to obey this command. The troops were

ordered to fix bayonets and advance on the prisoners. This act pro-

duced obedience, and they commenced their march. When they came

to the beach and saw their property, their mothers, wives, children and
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sisters kneeling at each side of the road, one long, loud wail of anguish

went up from them on account of being so 'suddenly torn away from

their houses and homes, the place of their nativity, their flocks and

fields, which were then covered with the crops of the season, with

some of their wheat cut, and the remainder ready for cutting, and

separated from their wives and families, leaving behind them their

Church and the graves of their kindred, to be dispersed among

strangers in a strange land,—among a people whose customs, laws,

language and religion were strongly opposed to their own. The women
were ordered the same afternoon to embark in another ship. About

midnight all were on board, except one or two women who had

escaped to visit their forsaken houses the next morning, and witness

the sad havoc that had been made the night before by some of the

British soldiers who remained, by setting fire to a number of the

houses of the Village. Among these was their Chapel, of 100 feet in

length and 40 feet in breadth, which contained a large heavy bell.

This Chapel stood in a field which is now owned by Alexander Vance,

near the house of Mr. Lightbody of Massto\vn. This place took its

name from the fact that the French had their place of worship or

Masshouse there. Mr. Vance informed the writer, that he had recently

ploughed up some of the melted metal of the bell, and the spot upon

which it stood was pointed out by Mr. Thomas Fletcher, son of the

late Thomas Fletcher, who was one of the first settlers in this place

after the French were driven out.

The transport ship, with the men on board drifted down to the

mouth of the Avon River, and there awaited the other vessel that had

the women and children on board. At daybreak she was in sight, and

they drifted down the Bay with the saddest freight on board that ever

sailed out of the Cobequid Bay ; and as the vessels stood out to pass

Blomedon, the third vessel that had run further up the Bay joined

them, freighted with the French inhabitants who were gathered from

the places now called Onslow, Truro, Clifton and Selma. With a

favorable wind these miserable, houseless, homeless wanderers were

soon borne out of sight of the place of their nativity ; night hid from

their view forever the blue mountains of Cobequid.

It may here be mentioned that while the French inhabitants of

Truro were hunted by the British soldiers as the partridge on the mount,

some of them fled for a hiding place, and encamped in the woods up

the Salmon River, in a deep vaUey of the brook that Mr. William

Murray had his Mills on recently, and from this the brook took its
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name as French Village Brook. One of the females who had escaped, or'

had been left behind on account of a boat being overloaded, returned

that night to her former place of abode, and there remained during the

night altogether unconscious. In the morning, when she returned to

consciousness, she was too weak to stand ; it was some hours before

she realized the fuU horrors of her situation. After a time she Avas

able to crawl to the door, and there the scene which surrounded her was

fearful. The first object she beheld was the Church, the beautiful

Mass House, a blackened heap of ruins. She was recalled to a sense

of her forlorn situation by her cow which came to her, asking by her

lowing to be mUked. She milked her cow and partook of some of the

milk with a crust of bread, which revived her so much that she set

out to see if she could find any one remaining in the Village ; but

there was no one to be found. Cattle had broken into the fields and

were eating the wheat ; horses Avere running in droves through the

fields. On the evening of that day, cows and goats came up to their

accustomed milking place, and lowed around the deserted dwellings
;

pigs yet fastened in the pens, squealed with hunger ; and the oxen,

waiting in vain for their master's hand to free them from the yoke,

(for they were used in moving the goods to the vessels) were bellowing

in the agony of hunger ; they hooked and fought with each other,

running through the marsh, upsetting the carts or tumbling into the

ditches, until death put an end to their sufferings. The joigs were

rooting up the gardens. She sat down on the doorstep beholding the .

desolation of the Village, when an Indian approached her and told her

to come with him. She enquired the fate of her people. " Gone,"

said he, " all gone," pointing down the Bay, "the people everywhere

are prisoners ; see the smoke rise, they will burn all here to-night."

He pointed up the Bay ; two or three blazing fires attested the Indian's

story as too true. He assisted- her in gathering some of the most

valuable things that were left. The Indian then piloted her to his

wigwam, near the edge of the forest ; here she found about a dozen of

her people, the renmant left of what was once the happy settlement of

the Village of Cobequid (now Masstown). They Avaitcd about the

woods on the nprth side of the Bay, for more than a month to- see if

any more stragglers coidd be found before they would start to go to

Miramichi. At length they were joined by about twenly of the French

inhabitants who had escaped from Annapolis. These persons informed

them that the houses and crops in Annapolis were burnt by the soldiers

Tv^ho were sent up the Eiver to bring them to the ships. Some fled to
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the woods ; some, besides this party, crossed the Bay intending to go

to Miramichi through the woods. After another week's travel th^
met with a party that had escaped from Shepoudie (now called

Shnhenacadie). From these persons they learned that about two

hundred and fifty buildings were burned along the sides of this River,

and that while they were firing the Mass House there, the Indians and

French ralli'^d and attacked the British Soldiers and killed and

wounded about thirty of them, and drove the remainder back to their

ships.

O^^^^

CHAPTER II.

As the most of our readers are already aware. Governor Cornwallis

arrived in Halifax in the month of June, 1749, with a fleet of ships

loaded with passengers, and other things which were necessary for

the settlement of a new country. These ships were bearers of nearly

3000 souls. These persons set to work with ^'igour to clear off the

bushes and erect houses for themselves and families to live in, and

put themselves in a way to defend themselves from the attacks of the

Indians and a few French settlers who were still remaining in the

place. Mr. Anthony EUiott was in this company. He was in His

Majesty's service as a Soldier. It is said Mrs. Elliott was the first

WOMAN that sat foot on the shore on their arrival in Halifax. After

Louisbourg and Quebec were taken by the British, Mr. Elliott and a

number of others were discharged from His Majesty's service. In the

spring of the year 1762 he removed, Avith his family and a number of

others, from Halifax to Onslow. He settled on the farm on which

James Crow, Esq., now resides, at the lower end of Onslow, where he

spent the remainder of his days. He died there. His wife died

there in 1813. He was a grantee of the Township of Onslow. This

grant is dated February 21st, 1769.

Nancy, their eldest daughter, was married to Thomas Stevens.

They had four sons and one daughter. She was married again to

John Read, in 1815. Mr. Read died in 1818, and she was married

again to Thomas Hunt in 1822. Elizabeth, the second daughter of

Mr. and ;t[rs. EUiott, was married to John Carr.

William Elliott, their only son, was born in Onslow, February

7th, 1763. His wife. Patience Miller, was born May 15th, 1770.
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They were married April 8th, 1791. He inherited his father's farm,

where he spent the whole of his life. He died May 14th, 1842, aged

7*9 years. His wife died in July, 1846, aged 76 years. Sarah, the

eldest daughter of William and Patience Elliott, was born December

28th, 1791. She was married to Enoch Stevens. They had five

sons and one daughter. Mary, their second daughter, was bom
May 19th, 1793. She was married to John Copeland. They

removed to Canada. She died there April, 1866, aged 43 years.

Isaac EUiott, their eldest son, was born February 18th, 1795. He
was married to Mary Erralds, of Falmouih. They had two sons and

four daughters. Phoebe, their third daughter, was born March

18th, 1798. She was married to Samuel Crowel. They had two

sons. She was married again to William Rude. She removed to

Boston, U. S., and was married there to Henry BreAvel. Elizabeth

Elliott, their fourth daughter, was born July 25th, 1800. She was

married to John Erralds. They had three sons and four daughters.

Jemima Elliott, their fifth daughter, was born September 26th, 1804.

She was married to Robert McLeod. They had five sons and two

daughters. They removed to Pictou. William, the second son of

William and Patience Elliott, was born June 28th, 1807. He was

married to Jane, daughter of James and Sarah Blair, in 1835. They

had five sons and two daughters. Mrs. Elliott died in 1848. He
was married again to Eleanor, daughter of Samuel and Margaret

Yuill, of Clifton, July 25th, 1848, Thev had three sons and three

daughters. He inherited the farm that was owned by his father and

his grandfather. He then exchanged his farm for another further up

the Chiganois River, where he now resides. Hannah Elliott, their sixth

daughter, was born December 23rd, 1809. She is living unmarried.

Anthony Elliott, third and youngest son, was born July 13th, 1811.

He married Isabella McKinley. They had five sons and five

daughters, who now reside in New Annan.

Margaret, the fourth daughter of Anthony EUiott, Sem\, and

Jemima, was born Nov. 3rd, 1773. She was married to James Good,

of Shubenacadie, They had six sons and four daughters. She died

January 24th, 1848, aged 83 years. Mr. Good died October 12th,

1852, aged 91 years. Mary Elliott, their third daughter, was born

April 6th, 1769. She was married to William Joyce, December 1792.

They had three sons and four daughters. Mr. Joyce was a Cooper by

trade. He was Jail keeper in Truro for a considerable length of

time. After this he built a house on the same place that Mr. Stephen
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Archibald now resides, near the Court House, where he spent the

remainder of his da^s. On May 8th, 1833, he was riding on an ox

cart loaded with hoop poles, and as he was coming down the hill,

passing the house in which Mr. Robert H. Cummings now resides,

the oxen turned suddenly off the road and upset the cart. It fell

upon him and fractured his skull. He was taken up dead. He was

64 years old at the time. His wife died July 24th, 1834, aged 66

years.

Eachel Elliott, their fifth daughter, was born September 22nd, 1771.

She was married to John Herron. They had three sons.

Eleanor, the sixth daughter of Anthony Elliott, Senr., and Jemima,

was married to Richard Perry about 1798. They had three sons and

four daughters. She died about 1827. .Mr. Perry died in 1855,

aged 86 years.

CHAPTER III.

Matthew Staples was another who came with Governor Corn-

wallis to Halifax in the year 1749. He remained in Halifax about

13 years, working at the trade of Blacksmith. He obtained a grant

of 1000 acres of land, before the Township of Onslow was granted.

His land was laid out adjoining the Chiganois River on the east side,

north of Mr. Anthony Elliott's farm, which is now included in the

Township of Onslow. He removed to this farm in 1762 (being the

same spring that a number of others settled in the same neighborhood).

He had his house and shop on the west side of the road, near the Chig-

anois River, southwest of Mr. Timothy Barnhill's house. At this place

he spent the remainder of his days. He died there about the year

1771. He was married shortly after he removed to Onslow to a lady

who had been married twice before. Her maiden name was Sidney

Homes. She was married first to David Marshall. Elizabeth

Marshall, their eldest daughter, was born in 1752. She was married

to John Crowe, of Onslow, in 1776. They had five sons and two

daughters. She died at Onslow May 11th, 1838, aged 86 years.

Her husband died October 6th, 1825, aged 77 years. Rachel

Marshall, their second daughter, was born in England in 1754. She

was married to a Mr. Green. They removed to England, where they

both died some time ago. Mr. Marshall died. She was married
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again to William Cook. Eebecca Cook, their only daughter, was

married to David, the second son of the Eev. David Smith, of

Londonderry. They had four sons. James Cook, their only son,

died a bachelor. WilKam Cook was drowned at Port an Pique. His

-tvidow was married to Matthew Staples about the year 1766.

John Staples, their eldest son, was born in 1767. He was mar-

ried to Jane, daughter of John and Joanna Cutten, of Onslow, Oct.

7th, 1791. He inherited that part of his father's farm which is now
owned by Messrs. Barnhills. He sold this farm about the year 1820,

and removed further up the Chiganois Eiver, and settled on the farm

that his son Ephraim now resides upon, where he spent the remainder

of his daj's. He died July 25th, 18-55, aged 87 years. His first wife

died April 3rd, 1802. He was married again to Catherine, daughter

of WilHam and Mary Blair, of North Eiver, May 30th, 1803. His

second wife died January, 1830, aged 48 years.

Sarah, the eldest daughter of John and Jane Staples, was born

August 4th, 1792. She was married to George, son of Aaron Crow,

of Onslow, January 16th 1816. They had four sons and four daugh-

ters. Mrs. Crow died January 15th, 1857.

Esther Staples, their second daughter, was born Dec. 3rd, 1793.

She was married to Henry Wilson, April, 1814. They had three sons

and two daught(5rs. She died April 9th, 1824.

Hannah Staples, their third daughter, was born Dec. 15th, 1795.

She was married to Jabish Eude, I^Tov. 24th, 1814. They had nine

sons and four daughters. Mr. Eude died Dec. 23rd, 1869, aged 76

years.

Eliz;abeth Staples, their fourth daughter, was born May 7th, 1 798.

She was married to James Wilson, JSTov. 22nd, 1815. They had eight

sons and five daughters. She died April 19th 1872, aged 74 years.

Eachel Staples, their fifth daughter, was bom January 4th, 1800.

She was married to Aaron Crow, of Onslow, February 3rd, 1819.

They had eight sons and four daughters. She died April 2nd, 1872,

Aged 72 years. Mr. Crow died Dec. 23rd, 1852.

Jane, the eldest daughter of John and Catherine Staples, -was born

June 8th, 1804. She was married to Joseph Crow, Dec. 28th, 1828.

They had six sons and six daughters. She died April 29th, 1853,

aged 49 years. Mr. Crow died January 3rd, 1868, aged 76 years.

Matthew, the eldest son of John and Catherine Staples, was born

August 15th, 1805. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter of Saml.

and Letitia Eude, IsTov. 14th, 1828. They had three sons and five
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daughters. He reclaimed his farm from the* forest, lying on the cross

road between Debert and Chiganois Eivers, upon which he now
i-esides.

Wmiam, the second son of Samuel and Catherine Staples, was

born January 17th, 1807. He was married to Sarah, daughter of

Samuel and Letitia Eude, Dec. 14th, 1828. They had four sons and

five daughters.

John Staples, their third son, was bom April 21st, 1808. He was

married to Eachel, daughter of Samuel and Letitia Eude, January,

1830. They had one son and five daughters.

Alex. Staples, their fourth son, was born April 21st, 1813. He
was married to Mary Ann, daughter of Samuel and Letitia Eude, May
12th, 1842. They had three sons and eight daughters. IVIrs. Eude
died April 7th, 1870. .

Ephraim Staples, their fifth son, was bom August 1st, 1815. He
was married to Eachel, second daughter of ]Matthew J. and Eebecca

Archibald, of Truro, July 4th, 1839. They had three sons and four

daughters.

Mary Staples, their second daughter, was bom June 27th, 1811.

She died 1861, aged 50 years.

Catherine Staples, their third daughter, was bom January 20th,

1820. She was married to Joseph Henderson JSTov., 1867.

James Staples, their sixth son, was born March, 1824. He was

married to MatQda, daughter of William and Sarah Blair, of Onslow,

, 1853. They had oije son and five daughters.

Wniiam, the second son of Matthew Staples, Senr., was born in

1769. He was married to Susan Wilson of Masstown, Dec. 20th,

1807. He inherited half of his father's farm, where he continued to

reside until his death, Dec. 8th, 1854, aged 84 years. His wife died

August 17th, 1862, aged 82 years.

Mary Staples, their eldest daughter, was bom Dec, 1808. She

died when young.

James C, the eldest son of William and Susan Staples, Svas born

Sept. 25th, 1810. He was married to Sarah, daughter of John and

IsabeU Baird, of Onslow Mountain, Dec, 28th, 1841. They had four

sons and three daughters.

Eliza Staples, their second daughter, was bom I^ov. 9th, 1812,

She was married to John Morrison, of Debert, July, 1835. They

removed to the United States.

Mary Staples, their third daughter, was born January 4th, 1815,
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Slie was married to Samuel A. Fulton, of Economy, February, 1839.

They had one son.

William, the second son of William and Susan Staples, was born

February 18th, 1819. He was mirried to Mary McCabe of Green-

field, March 23rd, 1848. They had one daughter. He inherits a

part of what was his father's farm.

Jane Staples, their fourth daughter, was born January 4th, 1817.

She was married to George Davis Sept. 12th, 1863. They removed

to the United States.

Wilson Staples, their third son, was born April 19th, 1821. He
was married to Margaret Ann, daughter of John and Elizabeth Deyar-

mond, January 7th, 1864. He inherits the homestead.

John H. Staples, their fourth son, was born August 30th, 1824.

He was married to Elizabeth Rodenberry, of Boston, Mass., where

they now reside.

Q^^^^

CHAPTER IV,

In the fall of the year 1759, about 20 men came up the Bay of

Fundy from New England, to Truro and Onslow, to make prepara-

tions for a settlement. The most of these men had been in iS'ova

Scotia a few years before, assisting in subduing and driving out the

old French settlers, and the taking of Louisbourg. These men erected

small houses on the same place that Truro Village now stands, and

other parts of the neighbourhood. They returned to New England to

spend the winter; and in the spring of the year 1760, they returned

again to Nova Scotia with their families, and commenced the settle-

ment of the country with that vigour and perseverance that but few

of the present day possess. There was a large quantity of manure

lying at the place where an old French barn had stood, on the south

side of the Salmon River, at the head of the tide. This enabled them

to raise potatoes the first year. In July of this year, they applied to

the Governor and Council for aid to cut out a road between the seve-

ral lakes lying between Fort Sackville (now Bedford) and the Shube-

nacadie River. The Council replied that provisions would be

furnished to the men wliile employed, at the work, and that was all

they could do.
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On July 12th, 1761, it was enacted, that-Cobeqiiicl be included in

the County of Halifax. On August 7th, 1761, the Council directed

writs to be issued for the election of members to represent the

Townships of Onslow and Truro in the General Assembly of the

Province, but we cannot ascertain that any election took place until

the year 1765, when James Brenton, Esq., was returned to represent

Onslow, and Charles Morris, Jr., to represent Truro. Mr. Morris,

being returned for Kings County at the same time, accepted the latter,

and Truro was unrepresented until 1766. On June 5th, 1766, David

Archibald, Esq., took his seat in the Assembly to represent Truro.

These first settlers endured a considerable amount of hardship for

the first few years. In the fall of the year 1760 all the women

excepting one returned to New England to spend the winter. In the

Spring of the year 1761 they returned to Truro and Onslow with

a considerable number of other settlers. On October 9th, 1761,

Colonel Alexander Mc]N"utt, Agent of the British Government,

arrived in Halifax with upwards of three hundred settlers from the

North of Ireland ; they were landed on the 15th of October, on what

is now called McNab's Island ; they remained about Halifax during

the following winter, and endured a considerable amount of hardship.

They were sent out by the British Government, and scantUy supplied

with provisions. In the Spring of the year, 1762 some of them went

to Horton, some to Windsor, some to Londonderry, some to Onslow,

and others to Truro. On April 17th, 1762, Governor Belcher recom-

mended to the House of Assembly to aid the inhabitants of Truro and

Onslow, with provisions and seed grain, as they were very much in

need of both. The house declared it impossible on account of the

heavy debt that was on the Province. More settlers continued to

arrive in Nova Scotia, and the fertile intervals of Truro and Onslow

attracted their attention ; also the valuable marsh and upland lying on

the two sides of Cobequid Bay.

In the year 1763 there were sixty families in Truro, and in 1765

there were about seventy. This year they obtained a grant from

Government of the whole of the Township of Truro in one grant.

It contains about eighty thousand acres of land. There is no reserve in

this grant of mines or minerals. It is granted to about seventy persons,

in " Eights." Some having but half a Eight, some one Eight, some a

Eight and a half, and others two Eights. This Grant is signed by

Governor Wilmot, dated October 31st, 1765.

Alexander Miller (grandfather of the writer) was one of these



1

6

Historical and

grantees. He Wcos the youngest son of Alexander MiEer who emigrated

from Belfast, Ireland, with his wife and several children, ahout the

year 1718. He settled first in Saco, Maine. A few years after he

purchased a large tract of land near what is now Portland, Maine,

where he settled and continued the remainder of his life. About the

year 1740 he loaded a vessel with hoards and sailed in her for Boston to

dispose of the cargo. The vessel was last seen near Wood Island ; it

was supposed that all on hoard were lost. After this the family

removed to Londonderry, New Hampshire. Alexander Miller, Senior,

had four sons and one daughter. About, this daughter we have not

been able to ascertain anything.

James, the eldest son of Alexander Miller, Senior, was born

in Belfast, Ireland, in the year 1712. He was brought by his

parents to JSTcAv England, when he was six years old. He married

Mary Alexander, for a second wife. They removed to Belfast, Maine5

and arrived there May 20tli, 1770. He was the first settler in that

•City. One of the principal streets is called Miller Street. He died

there in the year 1794, aged 82 years.

James, the eldest son of James Miller and Mary Alexander, was

married to Betsey Nismoth, of Belfast, Me. They had five sons and

two daughters. He occupied lot No. 38 (now known as the Froth-

ingham Place) for a term of years. He then removed with his family

to the Western Country, where a number of his descendants still

reside. He died there in the year 1840. His wife died about the

year 1849.

Robert, another son of James Miller, Senr., occupied lot No. 37.

He resided on High Street in the City of Belfast, U. S. He was one

of the most respected in that city. He died a bachelor, in the year

1827.

Alexander, the third and youngest son of Jariies MiUer, died

when he was young.

David, another son of James Miller, Senior, was married to Mary

Boyes, of Londonderry, N. H. They had two sons and five daughters.

They resided in the house that stands on the farm now known as the

Griffin Farm in Northport, Maine. Samuel B., son of David Miller,

lived a bachelor, and died May, 1842. Captain James Miller, the

other son of David, was born at Northport, Maine, December 16th,

1787. Early in life he chose the occupation of a sailor. His sound

liealth and strong body admirably fitted him for his calling. Many an

incident in his history from boyhood to old age, very definitely indicate
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the man, as he was Avell known to be, most active and robust. One

day, when he was quite a boy, he was returning home from Belfast,

he cut a limb of a wiUow tree for a walking stick, at the J^ismith

place, now the Eeed Farm ; when he arrived home, he stuck do^vn his

walking staff into the soft ground ; it took root, and grew to be a large

tree, under the shade of which many weary travellers between Belfast

and Camden have rested. During the years that he followed the sea,

he sailed with many of the residents of Northport and Belfast, Maine.

Gradually he advanced from the boy before the mast to the master

mariner, coasting along our shores to the Provinces, West Indies and

Europe. As an instance of his presence of mind and courage, the

like of which very few men excel, may be known by what he did

when about 22 years of age. He was on a voyage to England, and

they had rough weather. In the English Channel a man fell over-

board, February 21st, 1809
;
quick as thought James Miller passed a

loose end of a rope around his body, and jumped over the railing of

the ship after the man ; he grasped him and both were dragged by the

rope on board the ship again. He might have been identified by the

mark of that rope for some time after. He was married February

23rd, 1830, and occupied the Robert MiUer house on High Street,

corner of Miller Street, being a joint owner with his brother, of that

and other property. Having left the sea his attention was directed to

the cultivation, improvement, and sale of land and other property in

the city. Several of the streets were projected by him. He and his

brother erected a store on the site of the present Post Office. He
always felt an interest in all the maritime affairs of the day, and he

was owner of several vessels. He built Commercial Street Wharf,

which he disposed of to Sanford, of the Independent Line of Steamers.

He lost his wife, May 1st, 1861 (a Christian woman). After that

time he appeared greatly saddened and seemed to grow old much
faster than in former year. As he had no children of his own, he has

been very kind to the children of others—a father to the fatherless

—

giving good advice to all, which he was able to do from his long

experience with his fellow men He was charitable to the poor, no

one ever left his house hungry or in distress if it was in his power to

relieve them. Although he was strong and vigorous, yet the strong

man was brought do^vn. In January, 1871, he took a bad cold, and

from that time he gradually failed in health. On July 6th, 1872, the

once strong man was worn down, and quietly passed to rest on the.

morning of that day, being eighty-four years and six months old. The

2
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name of Captain James Miller wOl ever be remembered by those who

knew him, for his kindness, patience, and charitable labours.

The foregoing are extracts from the obituary notice in the

Progressive Age, paper, of Belfast, Me., July 26th, 1872.

Samuel, the second son of Alexander Miller, Senior, was married

to Margaret Turner of Londonderry, N. H. They had two sons, and

ten daughters. They settled in Petersborough, N. H., where they

spent the remainder of their lives.

Joseph, another son of Alexander Miller, Senior, settled in

SulUvan, Maine, where he left a numerous posterity.

Alexander, the fourth and youngest son of Alexander MiUer, Senr.,

was born in New England in the year 1725. He was mamed to

Nancy Anderson, of New England, about the year 1749. He was one

of the first company that came to Truro in the fall of the year 1759,

and came again with their families in the Spring of the year 1760.

It may here be observed that his aged mother, who had been long a

widow, and in a poor state of health, would not consent to stay in

New England with any of her sons, but came to Nova Scotia with

her youngest son, Alexander, as her attachment was strong towards

him. She died about eight or ten days after they arrived in Truro,

and was the first person who was interred in the Truro Cemetery, the

exact spot being now unknown. It is said that when they erected the

Church, eight years after, it was found necessary to place it over the

grave. Alexander Miller's house lot was on the west side of the

Parade. He built his first house on the same place where the Court

House now stands, and lived in it fifteen years. He buUt his next

house on his front wood lot, near the place that Mr. John L. Doggett

now resides. At this time it was considered quite a distance in the

woods. At this place he spent the remainder of his days, and died

April 9th, 1791, aged 66 years. His widow died March 28th 1807.

It was he and his brother-in-law, Captain John Morrison, (grandfather

of Thomas F. Morrison, M.P.P.) who built the first mill which was

started in Truro after it was settled by the British. This Mill was

buUt at the same place the MiUs now stand near the house of Mr.

John McClure. The French had some kind of a Mill at the same

place ; there was a miUstone found in the bottom of the brook. The

writer has now in his possession a copy of an interesting letter written

by Alexander Miller to his brother James, who resided then in Belfast,

Province of Maine, ated at Truro, June 24th, 1786. He states in

this letter how well he had prospered in worldly things since he settled
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in Truto. That lie was now owner of 1650 acres of good land, 31

head of cattle, 3 horses, and 14 sheep ; and that his son Isaac had 500

acres of land, and Samuel had 250 acres ; and that his son Samuel had

helped to kill eleven moose the winter before. His son James had

not returned home having been absent more than eight years. He
had a letter from him, dated at Cork, Ireland, May 9th, 1785. He
informed him by this letter that he was married to a woman in Cork,

and that he was bound for Holland as first mate of a brig. Alexander

MiUer sympathized with his brother James on account of the suffermgs

of him and family during the time of the American Revolution. He
states to him the critical situation that he was placed in at one time in

Truro between the two parties. For entertaining some of his American

friends, he and his two sons had to take to the woods and remain

there until the soldiers went off. He also states that the winter before

the snow was three feet deep along the side of the Bay, and back

about ten miles it was five feet deep, and that it went off that Spring

•with the heat of the sun. The grain that had been sowed about six

"weeks before the date of the letter was but then coming through the

ground. He and his wife join in thanking God for His many mercies.

This letter contains a great deal more about family affairs that might

t)e interesting to connections, but which we do not copy.

Isaac, the eldest son of Alexander and Nancy Miller, was born in

New England in the year 1750, and was brought by his parents to

Nova Scotia when he was ten years old. He was married to Elizabeth,

'daughter of Adam and Janet Dickey, Dec. 12th 1781. He settled on

what was his father's land, and built his house on the east side of the

Mdl Brook, in the field that is now owned by Mr. William Suther-

land. He owned all the interval and meadow Ij'ing on both sides of

this brook, with a considerable upland. In the fall of the year 1809,

^here were quite a number of Indians encamped on his farm, on the

\ipland, west of the interval, now called the Indian Hill. Some of

the Indians had borrowed an axe from him. One evening, a little

hefore sunset, he unyoked his team from the plough in his interval,

and walked up the hill to the Indian's camp to see about his axe, as

he had not heard any noise of the Indians during the day. When he

approached the camps, all was stillness. Almost the first thing he

saw was his axe, lying outside the door covered with blood. He went

into the camp, and there he found an Indian lying with a cloth spread

•over him. When he removed the cloth, he was very much astonished

at seeing the head nearly severed from the body, which had evidently
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been done with Ixis axe. He was so struck witk awe, that he left the

place in haste to give notice to the neighbours. It appeared that all

the Indians, except this one and his squaw, had left the day before.

His squaw was suspected for committing the fatal deed. It was said

that her attachment was stronger to another Indian than it was to-

wards her husbandr She was pursued by a constable and a number

of others, and taken prisoner at Stewiacke, brought back to jail, and

was tried in the court at Truro. The verdict of the jury was, not

guilty, as there was no positive proof of her guilt. The late George

S, Dickey waS' one of the men who went after her. She was taken

from among a large number of Indians ; but there was no resistance

offered by them towards the company that took her. Mr. Miller sold

out his farm in Truro in the spring of the year 1816. He removed

with his family to Lower Stewiacke, and purchased a farm from

WiUiam Pollock, Senr., and his son Samuel, being the same farm that

Mr. John Teas and son now reside upon, north of the raiboad station,

and on the north side of the Elver, He died there Jfov. 4th, 1825,

aged 75 years. His wife died in Truro December 20th 1803, aged

40 yeara

Mary Miller, tlieir eldest daughter, was born Nov. 7th 1 782. She

was married to Samuel, the youngest son of James and Mary Dunlap,

February 11th, 1813. They had three sons and four daughters. She

died January 12th, 1861, aged 78 years. Mr, Dunlap died March

2nd, 1850, aged 68 years,

James Miller, their eldest son, was born , 1784. He died

when young.

Janet Dickey Miller, their second daughter, was born August 8th,

1785. She was married to WiUiam Frieze, of Maitland, Jan'y 14th,

1809. They had five sons and four daiighters. She died Dec. 25th,

1844, aged 59 years. Mr. Frieze died January 14th, 1843, aged 68

years.

Nancy Anderson Miller, their third daughter, was born March

30th, 1787, She was married to Andrew Yuill, of Clifton, Dec. 1st,

1814. They had three daughters. She died April 15th, 1822, aged

35 years.

James, the second son of Isaac and Elizabeth Miller, was born

January 17th, 1790. He followed land surveying. "When he was a

young man, he was engaged surveying in the County of Pictou, and

there became acquainted with Miss Jane McGill, of the West Eiver.

They were married February 14th, 1816. He settled at Lower
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Stewiacke, and remained there for about ten or twelve years. He

then sold out and removed to Halifax, and remained there until the

fall of the year 1834, when he removed to l^Tew Glasgow, and shortly

after lost his health. He died there Dec. 5th, 1836, in the 47th year

of his age. His widow died there June 3rd 1872, aged 75 years.

Elizabeth, the eldest daughter of James and Jane Miller, was born

May 2nd, 1817. She was married to John Eay in Halifax. They

removed to the United States. They had two sons and two daughters.

]VIr. Ray died there. She was married again.

Ann Miller, their second daughter, was born March 18th, 1819.

She now resides in N"ew Glasgow, Pictou.

John Miller, their eldest son, was bom January 21st, 1821. He

was married to Hannah, daughter of Robert McConneU and Marian

Smith, his wife, Dec. 25th, 1848. He settled at ISTew Glasgow, where

he carries on business as a flour and bread merchant. His first wife

died March 18th, 1869. He was married again to Elizabeth, the third

daughter of Andrew and Nancy Yuill, of CHfton, June 27th, 1871.

Frederick, the eldest son of John and Hannah MiEer, was born

March 17th, 1850. James Miller, their second son, was born June

29th, 1851. William Miller, their third son, was born May 28th,

1857. Christiana Miller, their eldest daughter, was bom May 10th,

1860. Jane Miller, their second daughter, was bom June 12th, 1862.

Hannah Miller, their third daughter, was bom March 5th, 1869.

David, the second son of James and Jane Miller, was bom March

10th, 1823. He went to reside with has uncle, William McGill, in

1834, and continued with him w^hile he lived. He now inherits what

was his uncle's farm. He was married to Sarah, daughter of Robert

McConneU and Marian Smith, his wife, June 2nd, 1848. Isaac

Miller, their eldest son, was bom March 13th, 1849. Jane Miller,

their eldest daughter, was bom February 28th, 1851. Caroline MiUer

was born May 12th, 1853. Amelia Miller, born Sept. 28th, 1857.

William MeGiU MiUer was born February 12th, 1859.
,.
Anne MiUer

was born March 19th 1862. Frank Miller was born May 12th, 1869.

Nancy, the third daughter of James and Jane MiUer, was bom
March 4th, 1825.

Rebecca, the fourth daughter of James and Jane Miller, was born

April 18th, 1827. She was married to James Stewart on March 18th,

1847. They had four sons and four daughters. They are settled at

Brookfield.

Alexander, the third son of Isaac and Elizabeth MiUer, was born
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in Tniro, February loth, 1792. He removed to Lower Stewiacke

with his father and family in 1816. He removed again to the State

of Maine in the spring of the year 1824. He died there a bachelor,.

January 20th, 1861, aged 69 years.

Rebecca Crowe Miller, their fourth darrghter, was bom in Truro^

January 8th, 1794. She removed to the State of Maine, and resided

with her brother Alexander during the remainder of his life. Shortly

after his death, she returned to Truro. She died at Clifton unmarried,,

October 12th, 1866, aged 72 years.

Eleanor Miller, 'their fifth daughter, was bom Nov. 6th, 1797.

She had poor health, and was subject to fits. She died at Stewiacke'

February, 1822, aged 24 years.

Adam MiUer, their fourth son, was bom May 21st, 1799. He
was married to Sarah, the eldest daughter of "William and Louisa

Hamdton, of Brookfield, March 12th, 1829. They have resided in

Upper Stewiacke since about the year 1840.

J^ancy, the eldest daughter of Adam and Sarah MiUer, was born

February 28th, 1830. She was married to Thomas Eobison, Halifax,

January 4th, 1868.

Sarah Ann, their second daughter, was born October 18th, 183L
She was married to John Henderson Archibald April 5th, 1853.

They inherit her father's farm at Upper Ste'wiacke.

Louisa Miller,, their youngest daughter, was bom September 14th,

1837. She was married to Henry Brown, of Halifax, October 17th,

1865. They had two daughter's.

Elizabeth, the youngest daughter of Isaac and Elizabeth Miller,

was bom in Truro, July 13th, 1801.

James, the second son of Alexander and Nancy Miller, was born

in New England in 1753, and was brought by his parents to Truro in

1760. He left home when young, to foUow the sea, and was pressed

to serve on board of a ship of war for some time ; and, after being

released, he returned home. In April 1778, he left home again to

foUow his calling as a mariner. Some time after this, he was in

charge of a brig, which laid in the Port of Cork, Ireland, during the

winter ; and he there made the acquaintance of Miss Eleanor Mahon,

and they were married in the year 1783.

Nancy, their eldest daughter, was born in Cork December 16th,

1784. She was married to Stephen, son of Robert and Susan John-

ston, of the Lower Village of Truro, July 27th, 1811. They had
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three sons and three daughters. She died in Upper Stewiacke, Kov.

25th, 1870 ; and her husband died Dec. 26th, 1856, aged 69 years.

James and Eleanor Milfer had two sons, who died young, in

Ireland. He continued to follow the sea as captain. Upon one occa-

sion he met with Captaia Wm. Cock on the street in the city of

London ; and, as Capt. Cock said himself, " He never was gladder in

his life to see any person than he was when he met Captain James

Mnier." In the year 1792, he returned home with his wife and

daughter, then eight years old, and settled for a while on the farm on

which John Barber now resides, near the mouth of the Shubenacadie

River, where their two sons, Alexander and James, were born. He
had John Nelson hired to work his farm ; and he continued to go to

sea untd his wife died in the year 1796. He was married again to

Elizabeth, daughter of William and Dolly Putnam, widow of James

Smith of Upper Stewiacke in 1797, and had three sons and one

daughter.

Alexander, the eldest son of Captain James and Eleanor Miller,

was married to Margaret McLeod, of Cape Breton, October 15th,

1836. They had four sons and two daughters, whose names are John,

Alexander, James, Charles, Eleanor, and ]!SI'ancy. James, their third

son is married to Miss Agnes Eeynolds and has removed to the United

States. They have one son and two daughters. Alexander married

Melvina Cummings. Alexander Mdler fourth died in Cape Breton,

June 10th, 1844. His widow is married to Abraham Newcomb of

Musquodoboit. James the second son of Captain James Miller, was

married to Margaret McDonald. They had three sons and one

daughter. James the eldest of these tlxree was lost at sea. The

names of the other two are John and Alexander. The daughter's

name is Eleanor. Mrs. Miller died, and he married again to Jane

Maples. They removed to Margaree, Cape Breton, and had three sons

and three daughters.

Joseph, the eldest son of Capt. James and Elizabeth Miller, was

born 1798. He was married to Ann Shipley, of Cumberland County,

in 1830, and had two sons and two daughters. Their names are

James, Prescott Isaac, Elizabeth, and Ann. Elizabeth is married to

Joseph Atkinson, and has a family of children in Boston, Mass. Ann,

the second daughter of Joseph and Ann Miller, is married to Henry

Lyford, and has a family of children in Boston, Mass. Joseph

Miller removed from Antigonish, where he was bom and brought up,

to the United States in the year 1836, and about three years after, as
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he "was driving along the road in a stage waggon, with a number of

others, in the State of Florida, he was shot by the Indians, who were

concealed in ambush. He left a widow and four young children.

Elizabeth, the only daiighter of Capt. James and Elizabeth MiUer,

was born in Antigonish in 1800. She removed to Boston, Mass.',

some time ago, and was married to Mr. Sheffield. She

died Jidy 4th, 1859.

David, the second son of Capt. James and Elizabeth Miller, was

horn in Antigonish in 1802, he removed to the United States, and

was married there to Martha Floid, of Boston. They have three sons

and two daughters.

Charles, the youngest son of Capt. James and Elizabeth Miller,

was born at Antigonish in 1804. He was married to Elizabeth

Smith, and had five sons and four daughters. He died suddenly

some time ago, and left a widow with nine young children. His

second son, William, is now a member of the Senate of the Dominion

of Canada. His eldest son, James, died in the United States. His

third son, Daniel, died a bachelor. Capt. James Miller, after he was

married to his second wife, removed to Antigonish, where he reared

his family and spent the remainder of his days. He carried on

farming, mUling and land surveying. He died November 10th, 1825,

and his wife died a few years after him.

Jane, the eldest daughter of Alexander and Xancy Miller, was born

about two years before they came to JS^ova Scotia. She was married

to David Archibald, second son of Samuel Archibald and Eleanor

Taylor, December 1st, 1778, and had seven sons and two daughters.

Samuel, the third son of Alexander and J^ancy Miller, was born in

Truro in the year 1761. He was married to Elizabeth Davidson,

February 3rd, 1791. (Her father, James Davidson, lived in a house

that stood on the same spot that William Nelson's house now stands,

on the east of the Truro Cemetery.) Margaret Thomson Miller, their

eldest daughter, was born December 2nd, 1791. She was married to

Alexander, son of Alexander and Margaret Nelson, of Clifton,

Decembar 23rd, 1812, and had three sons and two daughters. She

• died October 1st, 1865. Mr. Nelson died about ten years before

her. James Davidson Miller, their eldest son, was born ]\Iarch

2nd, 1795. He died a bachelor March 17th, 1858, aged sixty-three

years. Sarah, the second daughter of Samuel and Elizabeth Miller,

was born March 2nd, 1797. She died unmarried October 22nd, 1871,

aged seventy-four years. Alexander, their second son, was born
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August 25th, 1799. He died in IVTarch, 1800. Nancy, their third

daughter, was horn March 18th, 1801, and died January 18th, 1803.

Wilham, their third son, was horn May 12th, 1804. He is living a

hachelor. Eleanor T., their fowth daughter, was horn July 22nd,

1806. She was married to Hugh Eoss, and has two sons. She is

now a widow, living near Elmsdale. Samuel, fourth son of Samuel

and Elizabeth Miller, was horn April 1st, 1808, and died Decemher,

1830. Elizabeth, their fifth daughter, was horn December 25th, 1811.

She was married to John Erane December 18th, 1852, and has one

son. Mary, their youngest daughter, was born June 5th, 1814. She

is married to Eobert Hall, and has three sons and three daughters.

Samuel Miller lived and reared his fcimily on the same farm on which

the three sons of the late Samuel Forbes now reside, lying on the shore

at Clifton. He died April 11th, 1837, aged seventy-six years, and

his wife died October 18th, 1855, aged eighty-five years.

Sarah, the youngest daughter of Alexander and Nancy Miller, was

born in Truro February 22nd, 1767. She was manied to Wdliam,

son of James and Elizabeth Johnson, of the Lower Village of Truro,

November 15th, 1787. They removed to Upper Stewiacke, where

they settled and reared their family. They had two sons and four

daughters. Mrs. Johnson being in a bad state of health in the fall of

the year 1820, was carried on her bed from Stewiacke to Truro, by two

horses in a carriage, which was made for the purpose, and had a pair of

shafts made long enough for one horse to walk after the other, and a

place housed in for the bed between the horses, for the purpose- of

being attended by Dr. Suther, as there was no doctor at the time in

Stewiacke. She died at the house of her brother, Alexander MiUer,

in Truro March 3rd, 1821. Her remains were taken to Stewiacke for

interment. Mr. Johnson died at Stewiacke December 16th, 1830.

Alexander, the youngest son of Alexander and Nancy Miller, was

born where the Court House now stands in Truro, April 22nd, 1769.

He was married to Rebecca, daughter of Joseph Crowe, Senr., and

Esther Barnhill, of Chiganoise, December 6th, 1792. Mrs. Miller

died October 19th, 1793. He was married again to Rebecca, daughter

of Thomas Baird and Margaret Barnhill, of Chiganoise (by the Rev.

Duncan Ross, when he came first to this country), June 29th, 1795.

He inherited his father's farm, and, having purchased the adjoining lot

on the west from David Whidden, he removed his house across the

road to the place on which David B. Fletcher's house now stands, in

the year 1799, where he spent the remainder of his days. At the
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moving of his house Alexander Barnhill (father of John Barnhill) got

his leg broken. lie followed farming and land surveying. From the

year 1820 to 1826 he owned a schooner and was engaged in trade,

which proved to he very unprofitaWe to his worldly circumstances.

He was an elder in the Presbyterian Church for thirty-one years, and

most of this time he was clerk and treasurer of the Session. He was

one of the first advocates of the Temperance cause in Truro, which

commenced about the year 1828. And it may here be observed that

the first funeral that was held in Truro (except it might have been at

the very early settlement of the place) without the use of spirituous

liquor, was the funeral of the late Ebenezer Archibald, which took

place August 10th, 1829. The writer has in his possession the rules

of the first Temperance Society which was formed in Truro, in the

handwriting of John McCurdy, who was then teaching school in the

school house which stood near Mr. Thomas Taylor's house. Mr.

McCurdy was Secretary of the Society, Rev. John Waddell, President,

Alexander Miller Vice-President, Alexander Kent, David Page, Senr.,

Charles Tucker, John J. Archibald and David Page, Junr., were the

committee of management. These rules are dated January 10th, 1831.

One of the rules of this Society was that it should meet quarterly, and

at every meeting there should be an address given by some

person to be appointed by the committee.

The following is the address given by the said Alexander Miller at

one of the quarterly meetings held in the old Com't House in the fall

of 1832 :—
" I have been young and now am old, and have seen public

opinion often changed in Truro. I am now standing near the spot

where I first existed, as this house nearly touches the ground on

which the house stood where I was born ; and on this green around

here is where my feet trod in my early days. Nearly all my former

acquaintances have left me, and I am becoming a stranger on the spot

where I was born. And knowing that I must soon go the way that

nearly all of my acquaintances have gone a little before me, I think it

my duty to take notice of some of the changes that I have witnessed

regarding the tri^ffic in, and use of, ardent spirits, and the different

changes in public opinion with regard to the same, together with the

change that has taken place in my own opinion.

"In the first of my recollection, perhaps about the year 1773,

there was one barrel of rum sold in the Upper Village of Truro ; and

the next year one puncheon ; and the next two, and I believe the next
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year there were tliree puncheons sold, and so on it kept increasing

until, in the year 1831, there were sixty puncheons sold in Truro. In

these early days the people of Truro were famed for a soher, orderly,

and hospitahle people, but pretty much as trade increased and the use

of ardent spirits increased, the people sank in reputation, and many of

our old respectable people feU before the destroyer. The public

opinion was then that ardent spirits was one of the good creatures of

God, to be used, but not abused, and according as they believed they

practised, and they went on in this way until the use of it became

common, and was thought respectable. A person was not thought

sociable or generous if he did not keep it to treat his friends, till

alas, the many instances of the evils which have passed before us are

enough to make us shudder. It is not worth while to mention them

here, for they are too weU known to us all. But we have reason to

be thankful that a change of public opinion has, in some measure*

taken place, and is still on the move ; and many who formerly

considered it one of God's good creatures, to be used in moderation,

consider it now the creature perverted from its original use to the

service of the devil, and that it is a sin to tamper with it at any rate.

Total abstinence is the only way of defeating the adversary, and from

principles of Christianity, philanthrophy, and true patriotism, a number

have come forward and pledged themselves to total abstinence from

the use of ardent spirits, and the immoderate use of all intoxicating

liquors, under the name of the " Truro Temperance Society." About

two years ago there were only eighteen persons found to embrace these

principles. At the end of the first year the number stood 133, and at

the end of the second year 175, belonging to what is called the " Old

Society." Besides these, about 60 young men have espoused the

cause and formed themselves into a society on the same principles, and

are doing much good by co-operating with us. The young people

taking the cause in hand, bids fair for the work being completed by

the next generation.

"There is much against the work being accomplished by this

generation, who have been brought up in what I caU the old school,

where moderate drinking was taught, believed in, and practised, until

the appetite became so strong for the poison by habit, the under-

standing impaired, and the conscience lulled to sleep ; and persons

saying it is good for the body in a great many circumstances, and it

would be wrong for us to deprive ourselves of this good, and so they

drink on ; still they grow more attached to it, until final ruin ensues.
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Xow, the world is divided on these two great questions, whether

ardent spirits is the good creature of God or not % These two great

questions are to be determined by the Court of public opinion, and

every person has a part to act in the decision. Therefore each

one should endeavor to qualify himself as a Judge, to give an

impartial opinion on this great and important subject. We must see

that we are not prejudiced in the cause, and that we give due attention

to have ourselves properly informed in the matter, and have none of

the si^iritous liquor mixed \\T.th our blood, nor so strongly wedded to

its use that nothing but death can separate. When all are thus

properly qualified to vote in this matter by having the understanding

informed, the conscience enlightened and in lively exercise, then I have

no doubt but the decision will be in favor of total abstinence principles.

And if this was acted upon, the monster would soon be driven from

this world, and man delivered from one of his greatest enemies. But

should the Court of public opinion not take due pains to qualify itself

on this question, and give but a partial decision, then the monster

would still be perinitted to den in our land, and go through it

destroying its inhabitants. Then where will the responsibility lie ]

Will it not be upon those who have not done their duty in

discouraging the use of it in every way that lay in their power % If

all would come forward, the work would be done at once. Those

who have come forward and done their duty have acquitted them-

selves. But a-wful must be the responsibility on those where it rests,

not only to society in this world, but the responsibility that they are

under to the great Judge at the last day.

" The cause of temperance admits of no doubt of its originating in

Divine love, and it will progress, although there is so much opposition

to the good cause, under so many false opinions that are abroad in the

world. Of some of these false pretences I shall here take notice, such

as the following :
' Some say that they would join the society only

the members are a set of hypocrites. They pretend to abstain for a

while and then drink worse than ever.' * Others say that they like

temperance very well, but they carry things too far, and those who

are its most zealous friends say things that are so disgusting ; such as

that ardent spirits are not the good creatures of God, but the perversion

of them through the invention of men, under the instigation of the

devil, and we cannot put up with such doctrine as to abstain

altogether. But grant us the moderate iise, and not the abuse, and

we Avill join you.' ' Others say that they see no use in these societies

;
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if a man has not religious principle enough to bind him, it will not be

the signing of the pledge that will do any good to make him refrain.'

Xow, to these last we say that the religion of Jesus binds every one

of his followers, and especially those who have been themselves guilty

in countenancing any sin, and have been brought to an evangelical

repentance of the same, and are sensible of the dishonor done to Christ

and his cause. They that love him cannot stand by and see the spear

thrust into his side without regret, and, out of love to him, make use

of all rational means in their power to stem vice, especially this one of

intemperance, which has done so much evil to the human race ; and

what means would be so effectual as if aU would come forward and

assist in removing the temptation out of the way, by not countenancing

the traffic or use'of it. ]S"ow, I say from Christian principle that it is

the duty of every one to come forward and make use of every means

in his power to put a stop to the use of an article which has been

proved to be of no use, but hurtfid to the human constitution, from

the testimony of hundreds of respectable physicians who have given

their names to the world. Also, the evidence of thousands who have

made the experiment ought to be conclusive evidence to those who

have not as yet made the experiment ; and the responsibility rests on

those who stand aloof from this great work. To those who plead for

the moderate use, and not the abuse, I would say, look at the danger

you are in and let conscience speak, and scq if it will not tell you that

it is presumption for you to follow a path which has conducted so

many to ruin, for no man ever became a drunkard at once, and I

would have you to examine and see if you are not trusting to your

own strength, which it is to be feared will be yom- ruin, as it has been

to many before you. I would ask those who are still wavering in

opinion whether ardent spirits is one of the good creatures of God, or

whether they have been preverted from their original use by the art

of man, tlirough the instigation or suggestion of Satan % The tree is

known by its fruit, and when we come to look and see the amount of

evil and mischief the use of it produces, we must come to the

.

conclusion at once that it is the work of the bad and not of the good

spirit. N^ext, to those who say that the temperance people are all a

set of hypocrites who only pretend that they abstain, but will drink

as fast as those who make no pretensions—-to these I would say not

to be too hasty in judging the heart, which belongs only to God, who

weU knows the intentions of the heart. But it is to be regretted that

there is so much truth in this remark—that so many have put their
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hand to the plough and have looked back, or, from want of resolution,

have gone in the way of temptation, and have fallen before it. To

such as have been sensible of their fall, and express a desire to

continue in the good cause, looking for Divine assistance (being now

by their fall made sensible of their own weakness), I would say bear

with theai, and admonish them in the spirit of meekness, and drop a

tear of pi y over those who are so far gone as to allow themselves to

indulge in moderate or immoderate drinking, which is the road to

misery. To those who have been enabled to sustain their pledge I

would s ly endeavor to be firm and stand fast, taking good heed lest

you fcill ; and go on steadily, depending on Him who can give strength

to brin;.; us all honorably through this Avorld, It is much to be

regretted that so many of those who were expected to come forward

are still standing aloof and taking no part in this great work. It is

recommended by your committee not to deal in stores where this

traffic is carried on. Also, to petition the Legislature and the Court

of Sessions to prohibit the use of strong drink in houses of enter-

tainment."

Upon the foregoing recommendation, petitions were prepared, and

signed by a large number of persons from the different parts of the

County, to the Court of Sessions for the County of Colchester, January

term 1833, asking the Court not to grant license to any person to sell

spirituous liquors. Mr. William Creelman (father of the Hon Samuel

Creelman) was the delegate and bearer of petitions from Upper

Stewiacke. And when it was proposed to grant license, the foregoing

named Alexander Miller rose in the court, and stated that he held in his

hand petitions, signed by hundreds of respectable persons, asking the

worshipful Court not to grant license for the sale of liquors, when the

Judge, in a very peremptory manner, stopped him from saying any-

thing in support of the prayer of the petition. And when the peti-

tions toere read and the vote taken, there was a majority of the Justices

in favour of not granting licenses. With this decision the Judge

appeared quite dissatisfied, and said to the Justices, " that he did not

know what they meant by violating the laws of the Province in such

a manner." Alexander Miller, 3rd, eldest son of the foregoing Alex.

Miller H.vl Rebecca Baird, his wife, was born in Truro, May 8th, 1796

(being t'lu same day that Truro Village was burnt). He was married

to Sar.ih, daughter of John Faulkner and Janet Moor, his wife.

(Sarah being the widow of the late Jamas Perkins who was drowned

from a fishing boat at Five Islands, and left a young widow and one
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daughter. This daughter is now the wife of Eobert Cummings, and

has two sons and one daughter). Alexander Miller and Sarah

Perkins were married Dec. 19th, 1822. They had three sons and

two daughters.

James, the eldest son of Alexander and Sarah Miller, was born in

Truro, March 4th, 1824. He was married to Margaret, daughter of

Samuel and Margaret Forbes, of Clifton, May 24th, 1851, and had

two daughters. Sarah, their eldest daughter, was bom Feb. 11th,

1853. Ermina, their other daughter, was born. August 12th, '1855.

James Miller was a Colporteur and School teacher. He died suddenly

at the Folley, Londonderry, Feb. 10th, 1858, in the 34th year of his

age. JSTancy, the eldest daughter ef Alexander and Sarah Miller, was

born December 5th, 1824. She died unmarried Dec. 29th, 1862.

Robert, the second son of Alexander and Sarah Miller, was born

January 4th, 1828. He was a house-joiner, and removed to New
Hampshire, U. S. ; and was married there to Sarah Blanchard, of

Watertown, Mass., U. S., Feb. 29th 1851, and died March 7th, 1852,

aged 23 years. Elizabath, the second daughter of Alexander and

Sarah Miller, was born June 10th, 1830. She was married to Isaac

Miller October 24th, 1859, and removed to California, where he had

his arm broken, and some time after, the arm was taken off ; and he

returned to Truro in a bad state of health, and died on Ifov. 1 3th,

1864, in the 40th year of his age. Elizabeth was married again to

WiUiam Dickson, of Onslow, June 20th, 1865, and had one son and

one daughter.

Alexander, the youngest son of Alexander and Sarah Miller, was

born October 15th, 1832. He works at cutting and engraving monu-

ments. He was married to Sarah Ann, daughter of John J. and

Mary Archibald, Nov. 25th, 1856. Agnes, their eldest daughter, was

born April 11th, 1859, Mary Jane, their second daughter, was born

August 7th, 1861, and died August 30th, 1863. Andrew, their son,

was born February 16th, 1863, and died Dec. 18th, 1865. Jannie

Blanchard, their third daughter, was born December 31st, 1867. The

above named Alexander Miller, 3rd, died May 31st, 1855, aged 59

years.

Margaret, the eldest daughter of Alexander and Rebecca Miller,

was born May 24th, 1797. She was married to James M. McCurdy,

of Onslow, October 25th, 1814. They removed to Musquodoboit

in March, 1816, where they took their farm from the forest, erected

comfortable buildings, and raised their numerous family. They had
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eight sons and five daughters. All their daughters and four of their

sons are dead. Their son, George, and daughter, Elizabeth, died near

one time, and were both laid in one grave, George was 20 years old

and Elizabeth 18. Mrs. McCurdy died Oct, 11th, 1845. Mr. Mc-

Curdy died March 30th, 1871.

Kebccca, the second daughter of Alexander and Eebecca Miller,

was born August 10th, 1798. She was married to Joseph, eldest son

of John and Sarah BarnhiU, of Chiganoise, Feb. 29th, 1816. They

had five sons and two daughters. She died June 1st, 1843, aged 45

years, and her husband died March 15th, 1869, aged 77 years.

]*^ancy, the third daughter of Alexander and Rebecca Miller, was born

May 21st, 1800. She was married to James D. Baird, of Onslow,

July 13th, 1820. They had six sons and two daughters. Two sons

and one daughter died some time ago. They removed to Pembroke,

Upper Stewiacke, in the spring of the year 1861, where she is still

living, but has been blind during the past ten or twelve years. Mr.

Baird died June 2nd, 1871, aged 74 years.

Jane, the fourth daughter of Alexander and Eebecca MiUer, was

born December 26th, 1801. She was married to Alexander Nelson,

April 8th, 1823. They had six sons and four daughters. They

removed from Middle Stewiacke to Boston, Mass., in the year 1853.

Their son, William, was drowned in Stewiacke River July 20th, 1845,

when he was 1 2 years old. Their sons Alex., Thomas and George,

aU died near one time, in the year 1863, in the United States. Their

daughter, Elizabeth, was married to Thomas West. Mr. West died

December 12th, 1861, aged 29 years, and his wife, Elizabeth Nelson,

died March 27th, 1859, aged 22 years,

Thomas, the second son of Alexender and Rebecca Miller, was

born December 25th, 1803. He was married in 1823, to Janet

Colvan, daughter of John and Jane Smith. Rebecca, their eldest

daughter, was born March 1st, 1824, and was married to John H.

Archibald, of Harmony, January 29th, 1844. They have one

daughter.

Jane, the second daughter of Thomas and Janet C. IMiller, was

born March 26th, 1826. She is married to John L. Archibald, of

Harmony, Nov. 17th, 1846. They have six sojis and one daughter.

Their names are among tlie Archibalds.

Daniel Cock, the eldest son of Thomas and Janet C. Miiler, was

lx)rn March 4th, 1829. He was married to Olive Crowell March 4th,
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1853. Colvan their eldest daughter, was born December 25th, 1853.

Charles B., their eldest son, was born Oct. 25th, 1855.

Elizabeth Jane, their eldest daughter, was born Feb. 13th, 1857.

.Sarah was born Sept. 15th, 1858, and died Nov. 11th, 1859. Sarah

Rebecca was born May 27th, 1860. Robert wasiborn Sept. 22nd,

1861. Albert Edward was born August 18th, 1863. Clara Agnes,

was born August 13th, 1865, and died May 5th, 1866. Mary Etta

was born March 12th, 1867. William was born June 11th, 1868.

Thomas was born March 6th, 1871.

Alison, the third daughter of Thomas and Janet C. Miller, was

born April 5th, 1832. She was married to Edward Johnson, of

Upper Stewiacke, Dec, 4th, 1855. They had four sons. Mr. John-

son died in Halifax, March 20th, 1864.

Christie, the fourth daughter of Thomas and Janet C. Miller, was

born Feb. 5th, 1837. She was married to Robert Dinsmore October

13th, 1859. They have two sons and three daughters.

Mary, the fifth daughter of Thomas and Janet C. Miller, was boru

May 26th, 1840. She died unmarried August 22nd, 1859, in the

20th year of her age. WiUiam, their second son, was born January 8th,

1843, and died June 10th, 1843. William Alexander, their third

son, was born June 21st, 1844. He left home April 2nd, 1867, and

went to California. He was absent more than four years, and return-

ed home May 9th, 1871. He was married to Olive, the youngest

daughter of David T. and Eleanor Archibald, Dec. 18th, 1872.

Isaac Geddie, the fourth son of Thomas and Janet C. Miller, was

born May 4th, 1,847. He removed to the United States May 31st,

1870. He returned home January, 1872. John Smith, their fifth

son, was born Dec. 6th, 1849.

Robert Smith, their youngest son, was born March 25th, 1853,

and died July 24th, 1858. Mrs. Miller died January 23rd, 1873, in

the 68th year of her age. Mary, the fifth daughter of Alexander and

Rebecca Miller, was born Sept. 22nd, 1805. She was married to

Robert Archibald. They had two sons ; both died young. She died

Feb. 8th, 1855. Elizabeth, the sixth daughter of Alex, and Rebecca

Miller, was born Jan. 23rd, 1807. She was married to Robert, son of

Edward and Hannah Logan, January 22nd, 1828. Their family and

deaths appear in the Logan family. Sarah, the seventh daughter of

Alex, and Rebecca Mdler, was born April 17th, 1809. She was

married to William Logan January 8th, 1829, and had five sons and

two daughters, who appear in the Logan family. Eleanor, the young-

3
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est daughter of Alexander and Eebecca Miller, was born July 1 3th,

• 1812. She was married to Daniel Hamilton, of Onslow, Feb. lith,

1835. They had five sons and four daughters. On i!^ov. 5th, 1844,

Mr. Hamilton was caught by his coat with the cogs of a wheel of a

grist miU, and wa^drawn through between the cogs of the two wheelg

where there was a space of but two and a half inches. He was very

much injured ; and had it not been that one cog came on each side of

his back-bone, he would have been nearly cut in two.

Q^^Jl.^

CHAPTER V,

David Archibald, Esq., was the eldest of four brothers who settled

in Truro. They arrived in Nova Scotia with a number of others on

the 13th day of December, 1762. He was a leading man in society;

was the first Jiistice of the Peace who was settled in Truro ; was the

first who represented Truro Township in Parliament. He first took

his seat June 5th, 1766. His name stands first in the Grant of said

Township, also to the caU given the Eev. Daniel Cock, which was

dated September, 13th, 1770. His name is also at the head of the

list of elders of the Presbyterian Congregation. These were chosen

in the summer of 1770. He had his front lands on the north side of
'

Salmon River. His house stood near George McLeod's, on what is

called Bible Hill. At one time a thief was brought before him for

trial, and the sentence was, " That the thief should be tied to a cart and

driven from the Hill across the River, down round the Parade, and

back to the HiU again ; and that the driver should use the whip

more freely on the thief than on the horse. Mr. Archibald was born

in Londonderry, Ireland, September 20th, 1717. Elizabeth Elliott,

his wife, was born June 10th, 1720. They were married May 19th,

1741. He died about 1795. His wife died October 19th, 1791, aged

seventy-one years.

Samuel, the eldest son of David Archibald, Esq., and Elizabeth

Elliott, his wife, was born in Londonderry, Ireland, November 11th,

1742. He was married to Rachel, second daughter of John Duncan

and Rachel Todd, his wife, of Londonderry ; he settled at Little Dyke,

and remained there until 1769, His eldest child was bom there in

1767, and died young. It was buried on a small island near the
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siiore. He exchanged farms witli William Corbett, removed to Truro,

and settled upon the Townsend Farm, so called, being the same upon

which William C. Eaton, Esq., now resides. He was an active man
in business and a good writer. He was Town Clerk of Truro from the

year 1771, until the time of his death. He took his seat in the House

of Assembly as representative of the Township of Truro on June 12th,

1775. He was again returned to represent Truro in 1777. He was

very full of sport. On one occasion when a number of men were

engaged dyking in the marsh, as it was the custom in those days, the

men took their dram in the middle of the afternoon, and laid down to

have a little rest. This time they all fell asleep ; he then took every

man's spade and fastened each one erf them down to the marsh by the

cue of his hair pressed with their spades into the marsh.

In 1779 he started to go to the West Indies in a vessel with a

cargo of boards and horses. When he was on his way down to the

Bay, to go on board of the vessel, he rode up to John Smith's shop

door, and said to him, " Come, Smith, let us have a parting drop,"

When Smith was about taking the parting drop with him, he snatched

the bottle from him, and rode off, laughing, at the sport of playing a

good trick on him. The bottle was filled with fish oil "WTiile he

was in the West Indies he received foul treatment from a British

officer, and died there suddenly, leaving a widow and six young

children to bemoan their sad bereavement. His widow was married*

again to Captain John McKeen, February 12th, 1783. They had one

son. She died January 20th, 1814, aged 71 years. Mr. McKeen
died in St. Mary's, J.28iu6i

John Duncan, the eldest son of Samuel and Rachel Archibald, was

bom February 5th, 1769. He removed to Upper Stewiacke and

commenced work on the farm on which the late George Hamilton

afterwards lived and died. He died there a bachelor, May, 1792, aged

23 years. Elizabeth Elliott Archibald, their eldest daughter, was

bom in Truro, November 30th, 1770. She was married to Hugh, the

eldest son of Wiliiam Logan £ind Janet Moore, about the year 1793.

They had three sons aad four daughters. They settled in Upper

Stewiacke. She died there.

David, the second son of Samuel and Rachel Archibald, was bom
in Tniro, I^'ovember 4th 1772. He went by the name of David the

seventh, or Colonel David. He built the house in which Isaac

Bamhill, Esq., now resides, at Onslow parade, in which he lived and

died. He was married to OHvia, one of the twin daughters of Charles
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and Amelia Dickson, of Onslow, Febmary 5tli, 1801. He was an

active man in business. He died I^ovember 23rd, 1814, aged forty-

two years. His widow was married again to John Henderson (who

was Sheriff of the District of Colchester) February 11th, 1819. They

had one son. Mr. Henderson died July 8th, 1832. Mrs. Henderson

died at Tatamagouche, February 7th, 1872, in the 88th year of her

age.

Samuel George William, the eldest son of David and Olivia

Archibald, was born in Onslow, May 31st, 1804. He was married to

Maria Henderson, January, 183'9. He died October? 10th, 1871.

George, their eldest son was born in 1840. Charles Archibald, the-

second son was bom in 1842. He removed to Trinidad, where he

was married had some famdy and died. Margaret Archibald, their'

eldest daughter, was born in 1844. Edward Archibald their third son

was born in 1846. He removed to ISTewfoundland and died there.

Rose Olivia Archibald, their second daughter, was born in 1848.

David Archibald, their fourth son, was born in 1850. He died

in Scotland in 1871. . Maria Archibald, their third daughter,

was born in 1852. Susan Amelia Archibald, their fourth daughter,,

was bom in 1854. E,upert Archibald, their fifth son, was born in

1856.

Elizabeth, the eldest daughter of David and Olivia Archibald, was

born in Onslow January 27th, 1706. She was married to Alexander

McKenzie in 1827. They had fi:ve sons and tliree daughters. They

settled at River John. She died there January 27th, 1870. Mr.

McKenzie died March, 1868. Mary, the second daughter of David

and Olivia Archibald, was born in Onslow January 27th, 1808. She

was married to Hon. Alexander Campbell March 10th, 1825. They

had four sons and four daughters. He settled in Tatamagouche,

where he carried on a large business at shipbuilding and merchandise.

He died suddenly Ajiril 13th, 1854, aged 59 years.

Charles Dickson Archibald, their second son, was born December

16th, 1809. He was lost at sea when he was a young man. William

Henty Archibald, their third son, was born December 10th, 1811.

He died April 10th, 1812. Tliomas Dickson Archibald, their fourth

son, was bom April 8th, 1813. He was married to Susan, daughter

of William Corbett and Isabell Davison. Their sons names are

Edward, Thomas and Blowers. Their daughter's name was Emma.

She died when twenty years old. Mrs. Archibald died and he was

married again to Elizabeth Hughes. He settled in Sydney, C. B.,
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where lie carries on a large business, He was a member of the

Legislative Council of N^ova Scotia for a number of years. He is

now a member of the Senate of Canada.

Eachel Todd, the second daughter of Samuel and Eachel

Archibald, was bom in Truro January 16th, 1775. She was married

to Charles, the second son of Charles and Amelia Dickson, of Onslow,

December 31st, 1799. They had five sons and six daughters. He
was a carpenter by trade. He built the house in Onslow in which

John B, Dickie, Esq , recently resided, and died there March, 1821,

aged 45 years. His wife died in 1819, aged 44 years.

Samuel George William, the third son of Samuel and Rachel

Archibald, was born in Truro, February 5th, 1777. He was left a

poor fatherless boy when about three years old, and was taken by his

grandfather and brought up until he was able to earn his own living.

He went to Stewiacke and commenced improving on the same farm

that his brother had been working on before his death. He continued

at this work but a short time. He soon threw down the handspike

that he was rolling the black logs with, and resolved to try some other

way of obtaining a living. He commenced the study of law, and it

was but a short time until he was admitted to the Bar. . He
•commenced with that vigor which but few persons can bring into

action. He soon became popular. In 1806 he was returned to

represent the County of Hahfax in the House of Assembly, and he

eontinued to hold his seat for thirty years. He represented the

County of Colchester from the year 1836 to 1841. On May
21st, 1817, he was appomted King's Counsel. On February 15th,

1825, he was unanimously chosen Speaker of the House of Assembly.

He filled the office of Clerl: of the Peace for a few years when he was

a young man ; also, of Judge of Probate. He was appointed Solicitor

General on April 11th, 1826. He was Attorney General for a

number of years. In 1841 he was appointed to the office of Master

of the RoUs. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter of Charles and

Amelia Dickson, of Onslow, March 16th, 1802. Mrs. Archibald died

in Halifax May 13th, 1830, aged 43 years. He was married again to

Mrs. Joanna Brodley, August 1832. He died in Halifax January

28th, 1846, aged 69 years. His widow died in England.

Charles Dickson, the eldest son of S. G. W. and Elizabeth

Archibald, was born in Truro October 31st, 1802. He was married

to Bridget "Walker in 1832. She was heiress of a large estate in

Lancashire, England. He died in 1868. Elizabeth Archibald, their
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eldest daughter, was born iu England in 1833. Charles William!

Archibald, their eldest son, was born in Truro, N. S., in 1838. They

had three other daughters ; their names are Juliel, Claria and
Clarence.

John Duncan, second son of S. G-. W. and Elizabeth Archibald

was bom March 27th, 1804. He was married to Annie Mitchell,

of Halifax, January, 1830. He died iu Truro July 27th, 1830.

Foster Hutchison Archibald, their third son, was born December

24th, 1806. He died in 1817.

George William, their fourth son, was born October 9th, 1808..

He died April, 1822.

Edward Mortimer Archibald, their fifth son, was born May 10th,

1810. He was married to Catherine, daughter of Andrew Eich-

ardson, Esq., of Halifax, September 1834. He has filled the office of

British Consul in N^ew York for a number of years.

Elizabeth Archibald, their eldest daughter, was born January

19tli, 1812. She died October 24th, 1831. Mary Archibald, their

second daughter, was born January 1st, 1814. She was married to

George Hill, of Halifax, August 29th, 1833. She died April 23rd,

1838. Eachel Dickson Archibald, their third daughter, was born

April 22nd, 1815. She died in 1818.

Thomas Dickson Archibald, their sixth son, was born August

23rd, 1817. He was married to Sarah Smith, of England. They

have three sons ; their names are George, Douglas, and William.

Ellen, their daughter, is married to Caj^t. McNeill, of England. He
is settled in London and practices at the Bar. In 1872 he was

appointed as Baron of the Exchequer.

Samson Salter Blowers Archibald, their seventh son, was born in

Halifax April 1st, 1819. He was married to Anovie, daughter of

William and Isabell Corbett. They had two daughters. Mrs.

Archibald died. He was married again to Margaret, daughter of

Hon. Alexander and Mary Campbell, of Tatamagouche, October

10th, 1870. He is settled and carries on business at Sydney, Cape

Breton.

Peter Suther Archibald, their eighth son, was born in Truro

September 9th, 1820. He .is a barrister, and Colonel of the Militia.

He is living on the homestead. William George, their ninth son, was

born in Halifax April 14th, 1822. Eichard Archibald, theu' tenth

son, was born September 9th, 1823. He died June, 1824. Jane

Amelia, their fourth daughter, was born in Truro August 12th, 1826.
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She died October 4th, 1838. Eobert Dickson, their eleventh son,

was born February 17th, 1828. He is dead.

Margaret, the third daughter of Samuel and Eachel Archibald,

was born in Truro January 23rd, 1779. She died unmarried

a^ovember 23rd, 1811, aged 32 years.

Eobert, the second son of David Archibald, Esq., and Elizabeth

Elliott, his wife, was born in Londonderry, Ireland, January 22nd,

1745. He was brought by his parents to New England about the

year 1757. They removed again to ISTova Scotia December 13th,

1769. He and his brother Samuel were grantees of the Township of

Londonderry. They had their front land at Little Dyke. They

resided there for some time, and buried two of their children on a

small Island near the shore. Capt. John Morrison (grandfather of

Thomas F. Morrison, M. P. P.) and William Corbet, were grantees of

the Township of Truro. Morrison and Corbett exchanged farms with

Samuel and Eobert Archibald. Morrison and Corbet removed to

Little Dyke, and the Archibalds removed to Truro. Eobert

Archibald, while in Truro, resided in a house which stood on the hill

near the place that Capt. E. W. Miriam now resides. In his house

the Town meetings were frequently held, as it was the lower house in

the Upper Village. He was Town Clerk for a length of time, and on

September 16th, 1780, he was appointed Justice of the ^Peace for

what is now the whole of the counties of Colchester and Pictou.

Charles Dickson, of Onslow, and Eliakim Tupper, of Truro, were in

the same appointment. Mr. Archibald was Colonel of the Militia and

land surveyor. He surveyed and, divided a large part of Truro

Township, and the whole of the Township of Onslow. He was

Judge of the Court of Common Pleas. He removed to Musquodoboit

in 1787j and settled on the farm on which his grandson, David

Archibald, now resides. He travelled to Onslow to attend Court-

(The Court was then held in the house of old Mr. Nichols, which

then stood about forty rods below the Onslow Meeting House.)

After he removed to Musquodoboit, he travelled to Halifax with his

butter-tubs in a bag on the horse's back, and one article that he

purchased in Halifax was a large Family Bible, and he carried it

home in one of his butter-tubs in the end of the bag. The writer had

the satisfaction of examining this bible on July 10th, 1871, and found

it in good condition. It contained the record of his fam^iy ; also the

record of his daughter Hannah's family, and was in the possession of

his great-grandson, George McLeod, Esq., of Musquodoboit. He was
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married to Hannah, the third daughter of "William Blair and Jane

Barnes, of Onslow, April 2nd, 1767. Elizabeth, the eldest daughter

of Eobert and Hannah Archibald, was born in Truro IS'ovember 2nd

1768. She was married to Samuel Tupper, Esq., of Upper Stewiacke.

They had two daughters. Mrs. Tupper died in January, 1789.

Janet, the second daughter of Eobert and Hannah Archibald, was

born in Truro October 29th, 1770. She was married to William, son

of John and Mary Logan. They had one son and one daughter.

Mr. Logan died, and his widow was married again to Alexander

McNutt Fisher, and had two sons and one daughter.

"William Archibald, their eldest son, was born in Truro October

18th, 1772. He was drowned in Salmon Eiver, near the head of the

tide, while engaged fishing salmon. He was about sixteen j^ears old

at the time.

Capt. David, or David- Archibald eighth, second son of Eobert

and Hannah Archibald, was born in Truro April 2nd, 1775. He
removed, with his parents, to Musquodoboit, where he spent the

remainder of his days, upon the same farm on which his son David

now resides. He was married to Elizabeth Kent, of Musquodoboit,

February 25th, 1801. Alexander Kent Archibald, their eldest son,

was born in Musquodoboit, January 1st, 1802. He was married to

Janet Harvey, of Newport. They had four sons and three daughters
;

their names are David, James, Charles, Alice, Margaret, Alexander,

and Hannah. This family has removed from , Musquodoboit.

Hannah, the eldest daughter of David Archibald and Elizabeth Kent,

his wife, was born May 9th, 1805. She was married to "William J.

Lydiard. They have three sons and four daughters. They have all

removed to the United States. She died at Minnesota February

11th, 1873. Mary, the second daughter of David and Elizabeth

Archibald, was born January 6th, 1807. She was married to Dr.

George Harvey. They have four sons and four daiighters. They

removed to Ohio, United States. Susan, their thml daughter, was

born September 6th, 1809. She was married to Angiis Mclnnis.

She died and left no family.

"William, the second son of David and and Elizabeth Archibald,

was born August 26th, 1811. lie was married to Diana Hutchison.

They had three sons and five daughters. They removed to Minnesota,

United Sta^s. Eobert, their third son, was born June 6th, 1815.

He died a bachelor.

David, their fourth son, was born May 27th, 1818. He iidierited
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the farm wliich was owned by his father and his grandfather. He

was married to Margaret, daughter of Jonathan Archibald and

Margaret Talbot October 31st, 1844. Frederick, their eldest son,

was born September 6th, 1846. William, their second son, was

born June 2nd, 1850. Samuel, their third son, was born January

23rd, 1853. David, their fourth son, was born December 14th, 1854.

Margaret E., their eldest daughter, was born July 15th, 1858.

Charles, their youngest son, was born Xovember 11th, 1863. David

Archibald, Esq. , and his wife are both living.

Ehza M., the youngest daughter of David Archibald, eighth, and

Elizabeth, his wife, was born July 1st, 1821. She was married to

Hugh Dunlap, Esq., of Stewiacke, November 10th, 1847. They had one

son and two daughters. Mrs. Dunlap died April 26th, 1854, aged 32

years.

Margaret Price, the third daughter of Eobert and Hannah

Archibald, was born in Truro September 18th, 1777. She was

married to Hugh, son of John Archibald, of Musquodoboit. Their

family appears among the descendants of John Archibald. Hannah,

the fourth daughter of Eobert and Hannah Archibald, was born in

Truro February 2nd, 1780. She was married to Adams Archi-

bald, Esq., of Musquodoboit January 22nd, 1802. Their family

appears among the descendants of Matthew Archibald.

Sarah, the fifth daughter of Eobert and Hannah Archibald, was

born February 22nd, 1785. She was married to William, youngest

son of William Logan and Janet Moor. They had three sons and six

daughters, which appear among the Logans. Susan, the you.ngest

daughter of Eobert and Hannah Archibald, was born February 7th,

1787. She was married to William Guild, of Musquodoboit.

Eobert Archibald died in Musquodoboit October, 1812, aged 67 years.

His son David died ]S"ov. 1843, and his widow, Elizabeth, died

December, 1841. Hannah Blair, the wife of Eobert Archibald, died

:N"ovember 4th, 1834. William Guild, died January 25th, 1862,

aged 77 years ; and Susan, his wife, died July 12th, 1854, aged 68.

John, the third son of David Archibald, Esq., and Ehzabeth

Elliott, his wife, was born in Londonderry, Ireland, August 18th,

] 747.' He came, with the rest of the family, to New England about

the year 1757, and to Truro December 13th, 1762. He was one of

the grantees of Truro Township. He lived, wbUe in Truro, on his

house lot in the Village, it being the same place on which Mr.

Hiram Hyde now resides. He removed to Musquodoboit, and settled
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on tlie farm that Mr. John Tupper now resides upon, where he spent

the remainder of his days. He was married to Alice Moor, sister of

the late Hugh Moor, Snr., of Truro, June 2nd, 1768. David, their

eldest son, was born in Truro March 19th, 1769. He was married to

Letitia, daughter of John Barnhill and Letitia Deyarmond, of

Chiganoise, August 9th, 1792. This David Archibald was David the

fifth, or otherwise known by the name of David Barnhill. Letitia,

'

the eldest daughter of David Archibald fifth, and Letitia Barnhill,

his wife, was born June 9th, 1793. She was married to John

HoUandsworth, and had two sons and six daughters. She died July

11th, 1863, aged 70 years. Alice, the second daughter of David and

Letitia Archibald, was married to James Murphy in 1815. They had

three sons and two daughters. She died August 9th, 1848, aged 54

years. Mr. Murphy died April 21st, 1868, aged 76 years.

John Barnhill Archibald, the eldest son of David and Letitia

Archibald, was born in Musquodoboit October 1802. He was married

to Mary, daughter of Thomas McCallum and Janet Logan March?

1824. Janet, the eldest daughter of John B. and Mary Archibald'

was born May 18th, 1830. She was man'ied to David Pearson

October 30th, 1856, They have three sons and one daughter.

David, the eldest son of John B. and Mary Archibald, was born

November 24th, 1831. He removed to the United States, was married

there, and has a family of children.

John BarnhiU, the second son of John B. and Mary Archibald,

was born June 24th, 1833. He was married to Margaret, daughter

of William Irwin, of the Lower Village of Truro, October 28th, 1862.

Franklin, the eldest son of John B. and Margaret Archibald, was born

in Musquodoboit September 8th, 1863. Mary Eliza, their eldest

daughter, was born April 24th, 1865. Henry Irwin and John, their

twin sons, were born April 23rd, 1867. Sarah Irwin, their second

daughter, was born April 27th, 1869. Margaret Ann, their daughter,

was born April 14th, 1871.

Thomas, the third son of John B. and Mary Archibald, was born

in the year 1835. He was lost at sea in the year 1856, when he was

about 21 years old.

Phoebe Ann, the second daughter of John B. and Mary Archibakb

was born January, 1837. She removed to the United States.
,

William, their fourth son, was born November 9th, 1838. He

was married to Maiy McFatridge February 8th, 1862. They have
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one son. Jolin B. Archibald, Senr., died March 17th, 1844, aged 42

years, and his wife, Mary, died March 1st, 1841.

Margaret, the third daughter of David and Letitia Archibald, was

bom September 1800. She was married to David Holandsworth. in

1825. She died April 22nd, 1869, ant left no famOy.

David, the second son of David and Letitia Archibald, was born

September 12th, 1804. This David Archibald is known by the name

of David the sixteenth. He was married to Christy Ann, daughter of

James Guild and Elizabeth Jolinson November 1st, 1832. Elizabeth,

their eldest daughter, was born March 24th, 1834. She died October

6th, 1837. Anne, their second daughter, was born December 4th,

1835" She was married to William Kaulback December 24th,

1865, and has one son and two daughters. Letitia, their third

daughter, was born May 10th, 1838. She died December

6th, 1861. Amelia J., their fourth daughter, was born September

10th, 1840. She was married to James McCurdy, of Clifton,

November 29th, 1858. They have five sons and one daughter,

Mary Alice, their fifth daughter, was born April 24th, 1843.

William J., their only son, was born April 29th, 1847. Jessie S.,

their youngest daughter, was born November 26th, 1852, .and died

April 15th, 1853.

Ann, the fourth daughter of David and Letitia Archibald, was

born March 14th, 1808. She was married to Eobert Kaulback,

Postmaster of Middle Musquodoboit, November 13, 1834, and has

three sons and three daughters. Eebecca, the fifth daughter of

David and Letitia Archibald, was born in 1810. She was married to

Thomas Lord, of Lawrencetown. They had one son and two

daughters.

Eichard, the third son of David and Letitia Archibald, was born

"in Musquodoboit June 15th, 1812. He "was married to Mary White

December 31st, 1835. Susannah, their eldest daughter was born

October 25th, 1836. She was married to Johnson Kaulback, March

15th, 1856, and had one daughter. Mr. Kaulback died, and

she was married again to Whidden Pyke, September, 1865. They

have two sons and two daughters, and have removed to the United

States. Letitia, their second daughter, was born March 25th, 1839.

She died unmarried. Alice, the third daughter of Eichard and Mary

Archibald, was born March 11th, 1842. She was married to

Benjamin O'Connell, May 1865. They have tliree children. David,

their only son, was born April 5th, 1846.
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Hugh, the second son of John Archibald, and Alice Moor, was

born October 24th, 1770. He died January 7th, 1771.

Ann, the eldest daughter of John and Alice Archibald, was born

in Truro March 28th, 1772. She was married to John Kennedy, of

Middle Stewiacke, in the year 1795. They had five sons and two

daughters. Mr. Kennedy died May 5th, 1817, and she was married

again to David Dickey, of Musquodoboit (known by the name of

Yankee David). She died October, 1858, aged 86 years.

Hugh, the third son of John and Alice Archibald, was born in

Truro December 1st, 1773. He removed, with the rest of his father's

famUy, to Musquodoboit, about the year 1790, and spent the

remainder of his days there. He was married to Margaret Price,

daughter of Robert Archibald and Hannah Blair, his wife, in the year

1797.

David the eldest son of Hugh and Margaret Price Archibald, was

born March 17th, 1798. He was married to Mary Belyea, of New
Brunswick. John, their eldest son, is married and has three children,

William, the second son of David and Mary Archibald, was born

May 3rd, 1836. He removed to the United States, and is married

there and has one daughter. Margaret, the eldest daughter of David

and Mary Archibald, was born in 1830. She is married to James

Glencross, and has one son and three daughters. Martha Ann, their

second daughter, was born in 1832. She was married to Eobert

Flake in 1852, and has two sons and five daughters. Hannah, their

third daughter was born in 1834, was married to Thomas Cole in

1854, and has four sons and two daughters. Eliza, their fourth

daughter, was born in the year 1838. Jane, their fifth daughter, was

born in 1840. She was married to William Dickey in 1866, and has

one son.

Janet, the eldest daughter of Hugh and Margaret Price Archibald,

was born February 4th, 1800. She was married to Frederick Hurley

in April 1830. They have four daughters. She is living with one

of her daughters on the same farm on which her father and mother

lived and died. Mr. Hurley died May 21st, 1849, aged 47 years. Alice,

the second daughter of Hugh and Margaret Price Archibald, was born

February 1802. She was married to John Hurley in 1822, and had

four sons and one daughter. She died July 14th, 1855, aged 53

years. Hannah, their third daughter, was born in Musquodoboit in

the year 1804. Adams, the second son of Hugh and Margaret Price
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Archibald, was born in the year 1806. He died when about 25 years-

old.

WUliam, their third son, was born in the year 1808. He was

married to Christy McDougal in 1831. Miles, their eldest son was

born in 1832. He removed to the United States. Catherine, the

eldest daughter of William and Christy Archibald, was born in 1836.

She was married to Mr. —— Woodworth, and has three sons and

one daughter. Ann, the second daughter of WiUiam and Christy

Archibald, was bom in 1838. She was married to Benjamin Green

in the year 1865, and has three sons. George, the second son of

William and Christy Archibald, was born in 1840. He removed to

New Brunswick, and married there in 1869, and has one son. Eliza,

the third daughter of WiUiam and Christy Archibald, was bom in

1843. She was recently married to Mr. Wetherby.

Eliza, the fourth daughter of Hugh and Margaret Price Archibald,

was born in 1811. She was married to Samuel Taylor in 1838, and

has four sons and one daughter. Margaret, the fifth daughter of Hugh
and Margaret Price Archibald, was born in 1813. She was married

to Michael Maher, and has four sons and two daughters.

James Archibald 4th, the youngest son of John Archibald, Senr.,

and Alice Moor, Avas born in Trujo, Kov. 20th, 1775. He was

married to Mary, daughter of David Fisher and Martha Dickey of

Middle Stewiacke, January 7th, 1802.

David, their eldest son, was born June 17th, 1803. He was

married to Sarah Brinton of Middle Stewiacke, June, 1823. Mary,

the eldest daughter of David and Susan Archibald, was born October,

1824. She was married to Matthew Burris in 1858. Mr. Burris

died, and she was married again to WiUiam Moor.

Alice, the second daughter of David and Susan Archibald, was

born in 1826. She was married to James Smith in 1852, and they

removed to the United States. Ann, their third daughter, was born

in 1827. She was married to James Wisenor in 1850. They had six

sons and seven daughters. Eliza, their fourth daughter was bom in

1828. She removed to the United States, and is married there.

Robert Dickey, the eldest son of David and Susan Archibald, was

born in 1829. He removed to the United States, and is married

there. Rebecca, their fifth daughter, was born in 1831. She removed

to the United States, and is married there. Sarah, their sixth daughter,

was bom in 1833. She removed to the United States, and is married
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there. Hannah, their seventh daughter, -was born in 1835. She

removed to the United States, and is married there.

James William, the second son of David and Susan Archibald, was

born in 1839. He was married to Margaret Eyan in June, 1869, and

has removed to the United States. Esther, their eighth daughter, was

born in 1837. She is deaf and dumb. Jane, their ninth daughter,

was born in 1845. She removed to the United States, and was

married there. Margaret, their tenth daughter, was born in 1850.

She was married to Samuel Burris in February, 1866. David

Archibald died at Shubenacadie.

John, the second son of . James Archibald, 4th, and Mar}"-, was

born September 14th, 1806. He was married to Amelia, daughter of

WiUiam Conley, June 8th, 1830. "William Oonley, their eldest son,

was born March 10th, 1831. He was married to Jane Williamson of

I^ew Brunswick, September 21st, 1856. Curlenda, their eldest

daughter, was born September 21st, 1857. Clara, their second

daughter, was born March 27th, 1859. Alexander, the eldest son of

William C. and Jane Archibald, was bom February 21st, 1861. Ida,

their third daughter, was born December 4th, 1862. Isaiah, their

second son, was born October 2nd, 1864. Matilda, their fourth

daughter, was born September 11th, 1866. Lymon, their third son,

was bom July 3rd, 1868. Agnes, their fifth daughter, was born March

16th, 1870.

Hugh, the second son of John and Amelia Archibald, was born at

Pleasant Valley, February 3rd, 1833. He was married to Margaret,

daughter of Eobert Fisher, of Shubenacadie, July, 1855. Alexander,

their eldest son, was born August 14th, 1857. Susan Amelia, their

eldest daughter, was born April 13th, 1859. Leander, their second

son, was born April 14th, 1861. William, their third son, was born

February 27th, 1864. Matthew, their fourth son, was born May
24th, 1867.

Susan, the eldest daughter of John and Amelia Archibald, was born

at Pleasant Valley, December 20th, 1836. She was married to

William, son of John Green of Shubenacadie, Sept. 15th, 1859.

They have three sons and two daughters.

Mary, the second daughter ofJohn and Amelia Archibald, was bom
April 13th, 1839. She was married to Isaac Brinton, December, —

,

1866.

Alice, their third daughter was born October 14th, 1844. She was

married to WiUiam Wright, June 15th, 1869. They have one son.
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John, their third son, was born January 3rd, 1846. He died

September 23rd, 1870. Lucy, their fourth daughter, was born

January 2nd, 1849. Daniel, their fourth son, was born January llth>

1854.

Alice, the eldest daughter of James Archibald, 4th, and Mary, was

bom June 15th, 1808. She was married to David Green of

Shubenacadie, February 7th, 1828. They had four sons and five

daughters. She died September 17th, 1868, and Mr. Green was

drowned in the Shubenacadie Eiver, I^ov. 25th, 1847.

Eobert Dickey, the third son of James and Mary Archibald, was

born December 2nd, 1809. He was married to Ann Neal in 1836.

He died in 1838.

James, the fourth son of James and Mary Archibald, was bom
July 14th, 1814. He was married to Sarah Maynord, Jiily, 1838.

Daniel, the eldest son of James and Sarah Archibald, was bom
January 15th, 1841. He was marrried to Margaret McCoUam,
February 4th, 1870. Euth, the eldest daughter of James and Sarah

Archibald, was bom June, 1842. She removed to the United States,

and is married there. Amos, their second son, was- born ISI'ovember,

1843. James, their third son, was bom September 15th, 1845. The

above named James, son of James Archibald, 4th, died October 6th,

1845.

Daniel, the fifth son of James and Mary Archibald, was born Jidy

20th, 1816. He was married to Jane Tatten of ITew Brunswick,

.January, 1840. Mary, their eldest daughter, was bom in 1842.

She was married to Eobert Guthrie of Il^ew Brunswick, in 1859.

They have one son and four daughters. Alice, the second daughter of

Daniel and Jane Archibald, was bom in 1844. She was married to

John Brown of Pleasant VaUey, December 22nd, 1866, and has one

son. Amelia, their third daughter, was born in 1846. She was

married to Samuel Kennedy in ISTovember, 1863. They have two

sons and one daughter. William James, the eldest son of Daniel and

Jane Archibald, was born August 17th, 1849. George, their second

son, was bom in 1851. John, their third son, was bom in June,

1853. Edward, their fourth son, was bom in February, 1856. Clara,

their youngest daughter, was bom June 1 7th, 1 859. Daniel Archibald,

when he was a young man, removed to i!^ew Brunswick, where he was

married, and all his children were born. He removed again, with his

family, to jS'ova Scotia, and settled in Pleasant Valley in the year 1860.

He died June 26th, 1868. His wife died October 15th, 1867.
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Kennedy, a twin son of James and Mary Archibald, was born

.September 3rd, 1818. He was married to Mary, daughter of Simeon

Whidden and Susannah Harris, December 22nd, 1840. Johnson,

their eldest son, was born May 15th, 1841. He was married to

Matilda Williamson of New Brunswick, ISTovember 17th, 1863.

George, their eldest son, was born February 19th, 1866. Jessie, their

eldest daughter, was born May 10th, 1868. George, the second son

of Kennedy and Mary Archibald, was born July 20th, 1846. Pavid^

the third son of Kennedy and Mary Archibald, was born May 2nd,

1848. He was married to Mary Williamson of ISTew Brunswick,

August 1st, 1868. Lesley, their daughter, was born April 25th, 1869.

Adams G., the fourth son of Kennedy and Mary Archibald, was born

January 3rd, 1851. Janet, their eldest daughter, was born ]M"ovember

22nd, 1852. Ermina and Elmira, their twin daughters, were born

E"ovember 1st, 1854. Eleazer, their fifth son, was born September

20th, 1856. John, their sixth son, was born October 28th, 1858.

Peter Suther, their seventh son, was born Is'ovember 1st, 1860.

Johnson, the other twin son of James and Mary Archibald, 4th,

was born September 3rd, 1818. He was married to Abigail, daughter

of the late Simeon "WHiidden, junr., and Susannah Harris, October 9th,

1845. Kennedy, the eldest son of Johnson and Abigail Archibald

was born October 30th, 1846. Mary Susan, their eldest daughter^

was born August 17th, 1848. She was married to Daniel Millon,

February 8th, 1870. Eleanor, their second daughter, was born

October 27th, 1854. Sarah, their third daughter, Avas born September

17th, 1850. Jane, their fourth daughter was born June 28th, 1858.

Edmon, their second son, was born June 17th, 1861. Alonzo, their

third son, was born July 7th, 1864. James Archibald, 4th, after he

was married, settled in Middle Stewiacke, and had a Grist Mill on the

same brook on which the Mills now stand, and remained there until

the year 1823, when he removed into the woods in Pleasant Valley,

and commenced clearing a farm.; being the same on which his two

sons Kennedy and Johnson now reside. He spent the remainder of

his days there, and died July 4th, 1834, aged 59 years. His wife

died March 12th, 1854, aged 75 years.

Elizabeth, the second daughter of John and Alice Archibald, was

born in Truro, November 24th, 1777. She was married to Johnson

Kaulback of Musquodoboit. They had six sons and one daughter.

Mary, the third daughter of John and Alice Archibald, was born

in Truro, December 1 0th, 1781. She was married to David McCollum,
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jiinr. , of I^orth River, Onslow, in 1 803. They had six sons and six

daughters. She died March, 1866. Mr. McCollum died January,

1858.

Alice, the fourth daughter of John and Alice Archibald, was bom
in Musquodoboit. She was married to Thomas Burgess. They had.

one daughter.

Margaret, the fifth daughter of John and Alice Archibald, was

born in Musquodoboit. She was mamed to John Ifelson. They had

five sons and three daughters.

John and Alice Archibald had another daughter ; her name cannot

now be ascertained. The father, mother, and child were crossing the

Musquodoboit river on horseback when an ice cake floating down the

river struck the horse's hind legs and nearly threw him down. The

mother, in the struggle, let the chUd fall and it was drowned.

Margaret, the eldest daughter of David Archibald, Esq., and

Elizabeith Elliot his wife, was bom in Londonderry, Ireland, December

15th, 1749. She came with the rest of the family when she was 8

years old to New England, and from thence to Nova Scotia, when she

was aTaout 1 3 years old. She was married to John Savage. She was

his second wife ; his first wife, Jane, died April 3rd, 1767, aged 24

years. To her memory a stone is standing in the Truro Cemetery,

with the oldest date on it of all the stones now standing there. John

Savage was one of the grantees of Truro Township, and was an active

member of society. He was a land surveyer, and at one time he

•agreed with the proprietors of the Township to subdivide their back

lands into one hundred acre lots ; for this work he was to have twelve

thousand acres off the south-west corner of the Township, extending

down the Shubenacadie River four miles, and as far east as it would

require to make up the complement. This work was never done by

him, as he died shortly after. He was one of the seven elders of the

Presbyterian Church who were chosen in the summer of the year 1770.

He had one son by his second wife, Margaret Archibald, they called

him David. Mr. and Mrs. Savage both died when their son David

was quite young, and he was taken by his grandfather, David

Archibald, Esq., and brought up with his other grandson, S. G. W.
Archibald. This David Savage was married to EHzabeth Brydon, and

they kept aa Inn near the place where Mr. Tremain now resides. In

the year 1800 they removed to the United States.

Ann, the second daughter of David and Elizabeth Archibald, was

born in Londonderry, Ireland, March 12th, 1752. She came to Nova

4
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Scotia wlien^ about 10 years old. She was married to William, tite

eldest son of John McKeen, Esq. , and Martha his wife, October 3rd,

1771. They had five sons and foiir daughters. They appear among

the McKeen's.

James, the fourth son of David Archibald, Esq,, and Elizabetli

Elliott his wife, was born in Londonderry, Ireland, April 19th, 1754.

He was brought by his parents to K'ew England, and thence to N'ova

Scotia. In the year 1780, after the sud<ien death of his brother

Samuel, which took place on one of the West India Islands, he left

home to go there to look after the vessel and cargo, which belonged to

his late brother. He never returned. A few years ago there was a

sea Captain by the name of Archibald, sailed into a port at one of the

West India Islands. He found that the Custom House ofificer's name

was Archibald also. This led to a conversation ; he stated to the

Captain that his grandfather was a white man from Britain, and that

he settled aad married on the Island,, a long, time ago. As was stated

by the Captain to the writer, he was a portly good looking man,

resembling some of the Archibalds in Kova Scotia. His complexion

was a little dark, but he was a smart man for business.

Thomas, the fifth son of David and Elizabeth Archibald, was born

in Ireland, May 17th, 175&. He was brought by his parents to i!^ew

England when about one year old, and to Nova Scotia when he was

about 6 years old. His name is among the grantees of the Township

of Truro, although he was not quite ten years old at the date of the

grant. He remained in Truro until he was about 21 years old. He
then returned to ISTew Hampshire. In 1783 he was among the

graduates at Dartmouth College, being then 27 years old. On
November 11th, 1789, he was ordained over a Church of Con-

gregationalists in Acworth ; this church "contained but fifty-eight

members at the time. He was dismissed from this congregation June

14th, 1794.

David, the sixth and youngest son of David and Elizabeth

Archibald, was born in Londonderry, New Hampshire, September

27th, 1758. He was known by the name of clerk David, or David

the 3rd. He inherited a large part of his father's farm on Bible Hill.

He built the house in vhich Mr. George W. Hamlon now resides,

south of the bridge. He built another house near the place that Mr,

John Davison now resides. He sold this house, with a large part of

his farm, to Mr. Eobert Barry, about the year 1812. He built another

house on the top of the hill, on the place that the Court House stood
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a few years ; north of the Metzler house. He carried on a considerable

business at shipbuilding, which was not very profitable. He was

married to Sarah, the eldest daughter of Matthew and Janet Archibald,

January 29th, 1788. They had one son and three daughters. Mrs.

Archibald died in the year 1797. He was married again to Hannah,

the fourth daughter of Colonel Jonathan and Elizabeth Blanchard in

the year 1799. He obtained a large tract of land on the St. Mary's

River, on which now stands a large part of the Village of Sherbrooke.

He removed to this place in July, 1815. He carried on there a

considerable business at milling, lumbering and farming. He died

there in the year 1823, aged 65 years. His "widow died there about

the year 1830, aged 56 years.

"William Thomson Archibald, their only son, was born in Truro,

Dec. 12th, 1788. He built a house near the place that Mr. William

McLeod now resides, on the north side of Salmon river. On the

night of November 12th, 1813, there was a great hurricane, which

bleAv down this house, and a great many others about Truro and else-

where. Shortly after this, he removed to St. Mary's, and was married

there to Janet McDonald, Dec. 20th, 1814. Sarah, the eldest daugh-

t^3r of Wm. T. and Janet Archibald, was born Nov. 23rd, 1815. She

was married to David, the eldest son of Isaac and Janet Archibald, of

the Middle Hiver of Pictou, Sept. 16th, 1840. They had four sons.

She died May 3rd, 1847, aged 32 years. Martha, the second daugh-

ter of Wm. T. and Janet Archibald, was born June 22nd, 1817. She

was married to Wm. McKeen Dec. 2nd, 1840. They had three sons

and four daughters. She died July 19 th, 1861, aged 44 years.

Nancy, the third daughter of Wm. T. and Janet Archibald, was born

May 26th, 1819. She was married to Thomas McKeen, of Cape

Breton, in October, 1858. They had one son and one daughter. Mr.

McKeen died March 9th, 1867. Margaret, the fourth daughter of

Wm. T. and Janet Archibald, was born June 10th, 1821. She was

married to William Crocket, of Middle Eiver Pictou. They have one

son and three dai\ghter.s. Elizabeth, the fifth daughter of AVm. T.

and Janet Archibald, was born May 20th 1823. She was married to

Alex., the second son of Isaac and Janet Archibald, Sept. 19th, 1843.

They had five sons and three daughters. Mrs. Archibald died May
21st, 1868. Mary, the sixth daughter of W. T. and Janet Archibald,

was born July 14th, 1827. She was married to Donald Kennedy, of

Sherbrooke, Dec. 27th, 1846. They have four sons and four daugh-

ters. Eleanor, their seventh daughter, was born March 14th, 1829.
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She was married to Peter Crookslianks, in l^ov., 1851. They had

four sons and one daughter. Rebecca, their eighth daughter, was horn

Feb. 10th, 1831. She was married to Hugh Chishohn Dec. 20th,

1854. They had one son and one daughter. Janet, the ninth daugh-

ter of Wm. T. and Janet Archibald, was born Sept. 11th, 1833. She

was marrid to Adam Dickman in Sept., 1854. They had three sons

and three daughters. Hannah, their tenth daughter, was born Dec.

18th, 1834. David, the eldest son of Wm. T. and Janet Archibald,

was bom March 1st, 1836. He was married to Anne Coaley in Sept.,

1^64. Sarah Elizabeth, their eldest daughter, was born Oct. 9th,

1868. Margaret, their daughter, was born July 9th, 1871. James,

the youngest son of Wm. T. and Janet Archibald, was born April

26th, 1839. He was married to Sarah Tate December 20th, 1863,

Herbert, their eldest son, was bom March 30th, 1865. Ada was born

Nov. 2nd, 1866. William Thomson Archibald died January 9th,

1841, aged 52 years.

Elizabeth Elliot, eldest daughter of Da-vad and Sarah Archibald,

was bom in Truro, Nov. 8th, 1790. She was married to Hugh Mc-

Donald, Esq., of St, Mary's, February 29th, 1816. They had four

sons and three daughters. She died Nov. 20th, 1835. Janet, the

second daughter of David and Sarah Archibald, was bom in Truro

August 21st, 1792. She was married to Isaac Archibald Dec. 1st,

1808. Nancy, the third daughter of David and Sarah Archibald, was

born in Truro, in the year 1794. She was married to David A.

Archibald, Oct. 31st, 1811. Sarah, the wife of David Archibald, 3rd,

died in year 1797. He was married again to Hannah, daughter of

Colonel Jotham and Elizabeth Blanchard, in the year 1799.

Sarah, the eldest daughter of David Archibald, 3rd, and Hannah

Blanchard, was born in Truro, August, 1800. She was married to

the Rev. Daniel McCurdy, Jiine 3rd, 1832. They had two sons and

two daughters. She died March 19th, 1870. Their sons and one

daughter died some time ago. Mr. McCurdy died at Halifax, Jan'y,

1873. They are all buried at Wallace, Cumberland County.

Rebecca S., the second daughter of David and Hannah Ai-chibald, was

bom in Truro, March 3rd, 1802. She was married to John McDon-

ald, of SteUary's, Dec, 1822. They had two sons and five daughters.

She died Nov., 1840,

Edward, the eldest son of David, 3rd, and Hannah Archibald, was

bom in Truro, in the year 1804. When he was about seven or eight

years old, attending Mrs. Janet Faulkner's school on the south side of
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Salmon Eiver, in returning home, as he was crossing the bridge, he

dropped his book into the river. In his attempt to recover his book,

he was drowned.

John Waddell, the second son of David, 3rd, and Hannah Archi-

bald, was born in Truro, Dec. 20th, 1806. He was married to Anne

Hughes, January 16th, 1841. Annette, their eldest daughter, was

born November 8th, 1841. She died in the year 1842. Edward,

their eldest son, was born May 16th, 1843, He died of croop, Feb'y

25th, 1845. Jane Walker, their second daughter, was born April

30th, 1815. She is married to James Parker Layton, of Wallace

Eiver, and has two daughters. Mr. J. P. Layton died in Sept., 1872.

David William Archibald, their second son, was born August 20th,

1847. Josephine Eebecca, their third daughter, was born April 23rd,

1850. John Standley, their third son, was born Dec. 20th, 1852.

He died May 14th, 1853. Charles Symonds Archibald, their young-

est son, was born Dec. 23rd, 1855. •

Jotham, the third son of David, 3rd, and Hannah Archibald, was

born in Truro, December 28th, 1808. He removed with his parents

to Sherbrooke, in July, 1815, where he now resides. He was married

to Elizabeth McDaniel, Nov. 10th, 1838. Catherine, their eldest

daughter, was born in 1839, and died in 1865. Mary Jane, the

second daughter of Jotham and Elizabeth Archibald, was born July

13th, 1843. Henry McDaniel, their second son, was born September

6th, 1844. He is Married to Miss Elizabeth Bollong. David Camp-

bell, the second son of Jotham and Elizabeth Archibald, was bom
January 1st, 1848. Freeman, their third son, was born July 4th,

1-850. William, their fourth son, was born Nov. 10th, 1855.

Mary, the third daughter of David Archibald, 3rd, and Hannah

Blanchard, was born in Truro, May 28th, 1812. She was married to

David McCurdy, of Onslow, February 20th, 1832. They had four

sons and two daughters.

Jane, the fourth daughter of David and Hannah Archibald, was

born August 31st, 1816. She was married to Edward Patten, of New
Brunswick, in the year 1838. They had one daughter. Mr. Patten

died suddenly in California ; and she returned to Boston, and was

married there to Mr. Foster. Mr. Foster died, and she is living a

widow in Boston. Harriet, the youngest daughter of David and

Hannah Archibald, was born in Sherbrooke, October 10th. 1819.

She is now Matron in the Insane Asylum of Carleton, N. B.

Samuel Archibald, Senr., the second of the four brothers who
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removed from Londonderry, Ireland, to !N'ew England, about the year

1757, and thence to IS'ova Scotia, and arrived in Truro December 13th,

1762. He was born in the year 1719. He was married to Eleanor

Taylor about the year 1743, fourteen years before they left Ireland.

(She was born in the year 1724). They had six sons and four daugh-

ters before they came to Truro, and two daughters born in Truro.

He was one of the grantees of Truro Township. He built his house

on his house lot, being near the same place where his grand-son, David

"W. Archibald, now resides, where he spent the remainder of his days.

He was one of the first elders of the Presbyterian congregation. He

died July 15th, 1774, aged 55 years. This was^the first breach made

by death in the church session. His wife, Eleanor Taylor, died May
1st, 1781, aged 57 years.

Matthew, the eldest son of Samuel and Eleanor Archibald, was

born in Londonderry, Ireland, in the year 1745, and came to I^ova

Scotia in the year 1762. He returned to New England, and was

married there to Janet Fisher, in the year 1767. He returned with

his wife to Truro, and settled and built his house on the north bank

of the Salmon Eiver, where he spent the remainder of his days. This

house is standing yet, and is owned by the Eev. Dr. McCuUoch. He

carried on farming and tanning, at the same place where the tanyard

now stands. He was part-owner of and attended the mills that stood

on the south side of the river and east eild of the village. He was

eminently pious ; and, from his careful use of the Bible, the hill took

its name as " Bible HiU." He represented Truro in Parliament four-

teen years, from the year 1785 to 1799 ; and he held the offices of

Justice of the Peace and Coroner of the District of Colchester for a

number of years before his death. He died January 18th, 1820, aged

75 years, and his wife died March 5th, 1843, aged 93 years.

The following is taken from the Halifax Guardian of March,

1843 :
—"Died at Truro, on Saturday, March 5th, 1843,^Janet, widow

of the late Matthew Archibald, Esq., aged 93 years. She was married

when 1 7 years old ; and,' shortly after, came to this Province, where

she has left a large body of descendants. She had twelve children,

one hundred grand children, two hundred and fifty great grand chil-

dren, and twenty-three great great grand children^in all, three

hundred and eighty-five. Of these, three hundred and twenty-three

s-urvive her. Mrs. Archibald exhibited, in her life and example,

unobtrusive, but consistent piety. Her religion was her delight in

her days of health, and in sorrow and sickness her consolation and
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support." I may here mention that she was one of the females who

assisted raising the Truro meeting house-frame, in the spring of the

year 1768.

Sarah, the eldest daughter of Matthew and Janet Archibald, was

born in Truro, May 3rd, 1769. She was married to David Archibald,

3rd, January .29th, 1788. She had one son and three daughters,

whose names appear in another place. She died in the year 1797,

aged 28 years. Agnes, the second daughter of Matthew and Janet,

Archibald, was born N'ov. 26th, 1770. She was married to James

McCurdy, of Onslow, Dec. 25th, 1788. They had seven sons and

seven daughters. This was a remarkable family, as there was not a

•death in it until all the family were married and had families. Two

of the SOBS were ministers of the Gospel, and the other five were all

elected Elders of the Presbyterian Church. She died May 2nd, 1851,

aged 81 years, and her husband died June 6th, 1854, aged 88 years.

Samuel Fisher, the eldest son of Matthew and Janet Archibald,

was born in Truro October 3rd, 1772. He was married to Olivia

Scott Oetob^, 1797. (She was daughter of Joseph Scott, who was

Sheriff of the District of Coiehester for a considerable length of time.)

Mr. Archibald, shortly after he was married, removed to Musquodo-

boit, where he settled and spent the remainder of his days. He
'died May 14th, i860, aged 87 years. The folloAving is taken from

the Morning Chronicle : " Died at Musquodoboit on the 14th day of

May, 1860, "Samuel Fisher Arcliibald, aged 87 years. Few men have

passed through life more creditably than Mr. Archibald. He was

-distinguished for sound j.udgment and good sense ; he seldom said a

foolish word or did a foolish action. His religion was not confined to

the merit of dealing fairly vrith men, but he walked with God, and

like old Simeon, was just and devout. For integrity and truth, he

stood at the %.ead of his class, and he was ready to engage in every

good work. His house v^as the temple of hospitality. His usefidness

was continued until late in life. His last days were soothed by the

prayers of kind friends, and with the presence of his Maker. We
hope he has joined that great congregation into which all the people

of God will in diae time be gathered." Sarah, the eldest daughter of

Samuel F. and GKvia Archibald, was bom October 24th, 1798. She

died unmarried in October 1,842, aged 44 years.

"William, the eldest son of Samuel F. and Olivia Archibald, was

bom October 31st, 1800. He was married to Mary, daughter of

Thomas Ellis and Elizabeth Deyarmond, his wife, July 25th, .182L



56 Historical and

Samuel, the eldest son of William and Mary Archibald, was horn m
Musquodoboit May 15th, 1822. He was married to Margaret Parker,

March 1843, James, the eldest son of Samuel and Margaret Archi-

bald, was born December, 1844. He died in 1867, aged 23 years.

William, their second son, was born in the year 1846. He died

1852. William, their third son, was born October 5th, 1852.

Joseph, their fourth son, was born December 15th, 1854. Caroline,

their daughter, was born January 1857. Mrs. Archibald died June

24th, 1858. He was married again to Susan Parker in April, 1860,

Margaret, their eldest daughter, was born 1861. Mary, their second

daughter, was bom 1863. Thomas, their son, was born 1865.

Thomas EUis, the second son of WiUiam and Mary Archibald,,

was bom June 22nd, 1824. He was married to Sai-ah, daughter of

George and Eleanor Hamilton, January 18th, 1849. Elizabeth

Archibald, their eldest daughter, was born March 28th, 1850. Wil-

liam Archibald, their eldest son, was born in 1851. Emma, their-

second daughter, was bom in 1853. Mary, their third daughter, was

born in 1 855. She died young. George, their second son, was bom
1857. Edward, their third son, was born in 1861. Minnie, their

fourth daughter, was born 1864. This family removed lately to the

United States.

Olive, the eldest daughter of William and Mary Archibald, was

born October 14th, 1826. Elizabeth, their second daughter, was born

AprH 9th, 1831. She died June 20th, 1851. Matthew, the third

son, was born January 1st, 1829. He was married to Mary Sophia

Bates January 17th, 1851. Sidney S. M. Archibald, their eldest

son, was born July 1st, 1852.- Mary Aubery, their eldest daughter,

was born February 14th, 1854. Elizabeth, their second daughter,

was born July 12th, 1856. Sarah, the third daughter of William

and Mary Archibald, was born October 31st, 1833. She died

December, 1837. George, the fourth son, was born August 16th,

1835. He was married to Lavinia, daughter of Daniel McKeen,

September 8th, 1857. David McKeen, their eldest son, was bom
January 9th, 1858. Hedley Vicars, their second son, was born April

1861. Lambert Lewis, their third son, was born October, 186?.

James Parker, their fourth son, was born September, 1867. Almira

was born June, 1870.

John, the fifth son of WiUiam and Mary Archibald, was bom
September 1st, 1838. He was married to Isabel Moir, May 26th,

1865. Ealph Erskine, their sixth son, was born August 5th, 1840-
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He was married to Elizabeth Hutchinson, August Srd, 1863. Sophia

Bates Archibald, their dauf;hter, was born February, 1867. WUliam

H. Archibald, their eldest son, was born May, 1864. John H, their

second son, was born March, 1869.

laaac K, the seventh son of William and Mary Archibald, was-

born November Srd, 1842. He was married to Anne McAuly,

February 8th, 1868. James Parker, their eldest son, was born May,

1870. He died young. Lambert Edmund, their second son, was

born 1871. Charles Blackie, the eighth son of Willian and Mary

Archibald, was born August 24th, 1844. Mary Gladwin, his wife,

was born January, 1852. They were married August 10th, 1871.

James Bayne, the ninth son of Wniiam and Mary Archibald, was

born July Srd, 1847. He was married to Adela Alma Philips, of

Illinois. Charles, their third son, was born in 1871. He died in

1872.

Matthew, the second son of Samuel F. and Olive Archibald, was

born August 3rd, 1804. He was married to Jane Grant, May Srd,

*1838. Eev. Samuel Archibald, their eldest son, was born in Musquo-

doboit February 23rd, 1839. He was settled in Shelburne as Minister

of the Presbyterian congregation there. Donald, the second son of

Matthew and Jane Archibald, was born August 16th, 1840. He was

married to Grizell McLaughJand, of Middle Stewiacke, February 9th,

1865. He was elected May 16th, 1871, to represent the County of

Halifax in the Local Parliament of Nova Scotia. George Parker,

their son, was born December 8th, 1866. Samuel Melville, was born

July, 1868. Eupert Foster, born January, 1870. Lewis Gordon,

March, 1872. George. Parker, the third son of Matthew and Jane

Archibald, was bom August 7th, 1842. He died January 14th,

1857. William, the fourth son of Matthew and Jane Archibald, was

born in Mnsquodoboit May 9th, 1844. Alexander R, their fifth son,

was born July 27th, 1846. Mary Jane, their daughter, was born

September 20th, 1848. Sarah, their second daughter, was born

March 11th, 1851. Janet, their third daughter, was born May 9th,

1853. Peter McGregor, their sixth son, was born March 12th, 1855.

Janet, the second daughter of Samuel F. and 'OLive Archibald, was

born September 16th, 1802. She was married to George Parker

.
January 18th, 18S1. Mary, the youngest daughter of Samuel and

Olive Archibald, was born in Mnsquodoboit, June 24th, 1815. She

was married to Matthew Burris, Esq., March, 1835. They had four

sons and five daughters.
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Matthew Taylor Archibald, the second son of Matthew and Janet,

was horn in Truro, ISTovember 17th, 1774. He was married to Jane

Ouild, of Musquodohoit, September 15th, 1801. Janet, their eldest

daughter, was born May 21st, 1803. She was married to Alexander

McCurdy ir he year 1819, and had six sons and three daughters.

William Guild Archibald, the eldest son of Matthew T. and Jane

Archibald, was born in Musquodohoit, May 21st, 1805. He was

married to I^ancy, daughter of Ebenezer Archibald and Rebecca

Christie, March r7th, 1830. Mary Ann, the eldest daughter of

William G. and ISTancy Archibald, was born in Musquodoboit

October, 1836. She was married to Eobert Read, October, 1856.

They have three sons and two daughters. Ellen Jane, the

second daughter of William G. and Nancy Archibald, was born

January' 1838. She was married to William H. Ciunminger in the

year 1857. Edward, the eldest son of William G. and Nancy

Archibald, was born October, 1840. He was licensed to preach the

Gospel, but is now teaching in Canada. John, their second son, was

born September 15th, 1843. He is now a barrister in Montreal.'

Isaac, their youngest son, was born June 8th, 1846. He was married

to Mary, only daughter of John McCurdy and Mary A. Tupper, Oct.

12th, 1371. Matthew T. Archibald's wife, Jane, died November 5th,

1808, and he was married again to Margaret Braydon July 6th, 1810.

Their daughter Jane Guild was born June 5th. 1811. She was married

to William Guild, and had five sons and five daughters. JNIargaret,

Matthew T. Archibald's second wife, died in the year 1815. He was

married again to Mary Lord, July 29th, 1816. Matthew James, their

eldest son, was born January 21st, 1819. He was married to Elizabeth

Jane Braydon, December 6th, 1842. Matthew Taylor, the eldest son

of Matthew James and Elizabeth Jane Archibald, was bom in Mus-

quodoboit October 13th, 1843. Emma Jane, their eldest daughter

was born July 4th, 1845. She Avas married to Samuel Irvin, December

10th, 1868. Mary Lord, the second daughter of Matthew James and

Elizabeth Jane Archibald, was born October 8th, 1847. William H.,

their second son, was born Jvdy 6th, 1850. Eliziibeth Jane, their

third daughter, was born May 29th, 1852. Hannah P., their fourth

daughter, was born October 12th, 1854. Isaac Adams, the third son

of Matthew James and Elizabeth Jane Archibald, was born July 6t}i,

1857. Sarah M., the youngest daugliter of Matthew T. and Mary

Archibald, was born January 24th, 1821. She was married to

Wilham Scott Hutchison, in November 1841. They had three sons and
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three d rs. Isaac Adams, the youngest son of Matthew T. and

Mary .' Id, was born April 1st, 1823. He was married to Eliza

McKe; October 1846. They removed shortly after they were

marrit ?. south sea Islands in company with Dr. John Geddie.

They 'en children, and Mrs. Axchiliald died in Australia in

Septei 867. Matthew Taylor Archibald died in Musquodoboit

in ]Sro\ , 1839, aged 65 years, and his third wife died ]\Iay 28th,

1863.

Ad. le third son of Matthew and Janet Archibald, was born

in Trui ;1 18th, 1777. He was married to Hannah, the fourth

daught- iobert Archibald, Esq., and Hannah Blair, January 22nd,

1802. . their eldest daughter, was born May 1st, 1803. She

was mai to Angus McLeod February 14th, 1822. They had two

sons anc; daughters. Mrs. McLeod died July 24th, 1827, aged

23 year Tanet, the second daughter of Adams and Hannah

Archib.:' is born ISTov. 14th, 1804. She was married to John, the

fourth s Samuel Tupper, Esq., and Eachael Dunlap, of Upper

Stewiac irch 2nd, 1830. They had three sons and one daughter.

She die. ruary 8th, 1843, aged 38 years, and her husband died

July 2(i'! 144, aged 40 years. Adams Archibald, Esq., died April

24th, 18 ged 80 years, and his wife Hannah died June 10th,

1854, agi years.

The 1 ihg is taken from the Morning Chronicle of May 9th,

1857 :
— have this day to record the death of Adams Archibald,

Esq., of uodoboit. He was a man who taking him all in aU, we

may not is like again for a long time to come. Eew men were

better kij or more generally respected in this Province, particu-

larly in ti, unties of Halifax and Colchester, and few men leave a

greater bi

.

in their community, than the subject of our notice.

For more t . fifty years Mr. Archibald occupied a prominent place

in society : iring the greater part of this time he was in the com-

mission '
; i Peace, and even as his eldest brother was known by

the name . eacon, so was he universally known as Squire Adams,

and he ^' ,rly as long connected with the Session of the Presby-

terian c. : tion of Musquodoboit. He was a member of the Board

of Com;: ' ers of Schools for the eastern district of Hahfax County

ever sin * -. body was organized. It wiU be generally admitted

that the - of these various and important offices were discharged

with proiii^ Li.ide and effect, which had their origin in the uncommon

force of character for which he was distinguished. In private life,
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and in ordinary business, tlie same peculiarity was manifested. When
alive, he abhorred pretence or vain boas'ing, and it would be unseemly

to insult his memory with any eulogy of his goodness however just.

His brethern and friends know well that he demonstrated his faith by
his works, and that he was behind none of them in those marks and

proofs of genuine religion, which only the grace of God can account

for. He died old and full of days, having entered his 81st year, and

good men carried him to his last resting place,"

Ebenezer, the fourth son of MattheAV and Janet Archibald, was

born in Truro, April 13th, 1779. He was married to Eebecca,

daughter of John Christie and Nancy Denny, his wife, April 1 2th,

1804. IS'ancy, their eldest daughter, whs born in Truro January 20th,

1805. She was married to William Guild Archibald, of Musquo-

doboit, March 17th, 1830, Their fcimilies appear among the de-

scendants of Matthew T. Archibald.

Matthew, the eldest son of Ebenezer and Eebecca Archibald, was

born January 29th, 1807. He was married to Margaret, daughter of

James and Mary Johnson, of Pembroke, Upper Stewiacke, March 2nd,

1841. James William, their eldest son was born 1842. He died

March 10th, 1862. Mary, their only daughter was born October 1st,

1844. Andrew Christie, their youngest son was born 1847. Mrs.

Archibald died at Harmony, May 6th, 1851, aged 33 years. Mr,

Archibald was married again to Nancy McKim, of Londonderry,

May 5th, r853. He died at Harmony October 15th, 1865, in the

59th year of his age.

Anne Waddell, the second daughter of Ebenezer and Eebecca

Archibald, was born in Truro, March 8th, 1809. She was married to

Samuel James, eldest son of John B. and Catherine Archibald,

January 21st, 1836, Their family appears among the family of John

B. Arcliibald.

John Christie, the second son of Ebenezer and Eebecca Archibald,

was born in Truro, January 16th, 1812, He was married to Jane,

daughter of WiUiam O'Brien, Esq., of Noel, October 27th, 1834.

He removed to Kansas, and died there November 5th, 1866. Ebenezer,

their eldest son was born in Truro December 3rd, 1835, He was

married to Annie Wheaton March, 1869". Catherine, their eldest

daughter, was born February 14th, 1870. Jane, the secoad daughter,

was born January 24th, 1872. Julia Annie, the eldest daiighter of

John and Jane Archibald, was born February 15th, 1838. She was

married to James' H. Holmes of New York, October 10th, 1857.
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Allaert William, the second son of John Archibald, was horn January

1st, 1840. Nancy, their second daughter, was born January 6th,

1842. She died January 29th, 1860. Clara Margaret, their third

daughter was born December 31st, 1843. Frederick William, their

eldest son, was born September 8th, 1845. He was married to Sarah

C. Eeid of Ohio, September 17th, 1871. Caleb P., their fourth son,

was born May 18th, 1848. He was married to Kate Lamon of

Virginia, February, 1872. Clarence L., their son, was born November

8th, 1872. Alice Jane, the youngest daughter of John and Jane

Archibald was born October 1st, 1852.

Henry C, the third son of Ebenezer and Eebecca Archibald, was

born May 22nd, 1815. He was married to Eebecca McCurdy, daughter

of James M. McCurdy, January 31st, 1838 They removed to

Grotten, Mass. After Mrs. Archibald's death, June 13th, 1854, he

returned to Musquodoboit, and was married again to Mary Jane,

daughter of Alexander and Janet McCurdy, June 12th, 1856. He
died April 1st, 1859. Ebenezer Charles, his eldest son, was born

March 7th, 1839. He died at Grotten, October 20th, 1861. Melville

McCurdy, their second son, was born December 23rd, 1840. He died

March 2nd, 1849. Margaret Jane was born September 5th, 1842,

and died March 27th, 1846. Eebecca Ann, was born August 30th,

1844, and died July 24th, 1861. Margaret Agnes was born Sept.

14th, 1846; she died August 12th, 1852. Georgia Elizabeth was

born September 25th, 1848, and died March 8th, 1849. Miriam was

born March 20th, 1850, James WiUiam was bom February 24th,

1852, and died January 10th, 1868. Henry Adams was born

December 3rd, 1854, and died March 20th, 1854. Adams Tarbell,

the only son of his second wife, was born July 8th, 1857.

Edward, the fourth son of Ebenezer and Eebecca Archibald, was

born August 8th, 1818. He was married to Isabel, daughter of

Eobert 0. Christie, November 27th, 1844. Edgar, their eldest son,

was born September 1st, 1845. Margaret was born October 9th,

1857. Eebecca was born August 29th, 1860. Sarah, the youngest

daughter was born November 7th, 1863.

Adams, the fifth son of Ebenezer and Eebecca Archibald, was born

in Truro July 26th, 1822, He removed to Massachusetts, and was

married there to Mary Ann Tarbell March 17th, 1853.

Charles, the youngest son of Ebenezer and Eebecca Archibald,

was born September 22nd, 1827, He died when about four years of
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Ebenezer Archibald d > d August 8th, 1829, in the fij

his age, and his widow diul May 25th, 1854, aged 68.

Alexander Lackie, th j iifth son of Matthew and Jan.

was burn in Truro, Mai; h 5th, 1788. He was marri

daughter of William Fult ;n and Sarah Dunlap of Uppt

December 13th, 1810.

Samuel George William Archibald, their eldest son,

Truro February 8th, 1812. He was manied to Susami

of William and Lydia Fulton, of Wallace, February

Alexander Lackie, the eldest son of S. G. W. and Susanna

was born in Truro January 3rd, 1836. Alexander L. A
married to Kancy, the eldest daughter of David T. Ai

Eleanor Taylor his wife, September 27th, 1859. Lilly >.

the eldest daughter of Alexander L. and Nancy Archibal

in Truro April 12th, 1863. Josephine, their second d

born January 12th, 1866. William Fulton, the second ;

W. and Susannah Archibald, was born in Truro Decembei

Rebecca Huestis, their eldest daughter, was born in Tru

22nd, 1840. She was married to the Rev, John Hawar

1865. They have three daughters. Lydia, the second

S. G. W. and Susannah Archibald, was born in Truro

14th, 1841. She was married to James Leman January j

Stephen Fulton, their third son, was born May 3rd, 1843

married to Mary Cowperthwait October 18th, 1870. Jose^

their fourth son, was born December 18th, 1844. He was u;

vear of

libald,

Mary,

/iacke,

orn in

.ughter

1835.

hibald,

dd was

Id and

-iianna,

is born

er was

f S. G.

1,1837.

bruary

y 26th,

liter of

'tember

S 1869.

le was

Howe,

ried to

Emily Dickson N"ovember 1 3th, 1867. Frederick, the eldest son of

Joseph H. and Emily Archibald was born November 1869. Charles,

their fifth son, was born March 4th, 1847. He died November 4th,

1847. Mary Jane, their third daughter, was born in Truro, February

2nd, 1849. Richard, their sixth son, was born in Truro, ,' 'bruary

28th, 1851. Henry, their seventh son, was born August '
i, 1853.

He died August 3rd, 1854. Ella, their fourth daught as born

Februarj'- 14th, 1855. George M., their eighth son was 1 August

18th. 1858.

Sarah, the eldest daughter of Alexander L. and Mary ohibald,

was born January 26th, 1814. She was married to Jam son of

Alexander Kent, Esq., and Jane Cliristie his wife, 'anuary

10th, 1833. They had one son and five daughters. S-e died

January 8th, 1847, aged 33 years.

Charles Frederick Augustus, the second son of Alcxandc; L. and
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Mary Archibald, was "bom in Truro December 22iid, 181 T. He re-

moved to the United States.

Williara, the third son of Alexander L, and Mary Archibald, was

born December 20th, 18'20. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter

of Samuel Blair and Kancy Archibald Ihs wife I^ovember 4th, 1845,

Cecilia, their eldest daughter, was born August 13th, 1846. Peter,

their eldest son was born March 21st, 1848, He is now an engineer

on the Intercolonial Eailroad. Leonard Carey and Bertha, being

twins, were born March 28th, 1850. Leonard was married to Annie

Lindsay January 7th, 1873. He is a merchant in Antigonish. Mary

Agnes, their third daughter, was born March 25th, 1851. Jenny,

their fourth daughter, was bom March 6th, 1854. Clara, their fifth

daughter, was born May 30th, 1860.

Alexander, the fourth son of Alexander L. and Mary Archibald,

was born March 27th, 1825. This Alexander Archibald Atas one of

ths passengers on board the ill-fated vessel Enterprise.

Mary Jane, the second daughter of Alexander L. and Mary

Archibald, was born in Truro January 5th, 1828. She removed to

Boston, United States, and was married there to Charles Gay in the

year 1855, and died in the year 1866, in November. Mary Fulton,

the first wife of Alexander L. Archibald died September 8th, 1828 ;

and he was married again to Christiana F,, daughter of Daniel and

Elizabeth Cock, March 29th, 1831.

Alfred Archibald, their eldest son, was born May 21st, 1833. He
was married to Ifancy McLain in the year 1857. Margaret, their

eldest daughter, was born in September, 1858. Alexander Lackie

Archibald, their eldest son, was born August 2nd, 1860. In August

1869, he was killed while raking hay ; being thrown from the horse,

and drawn by the rake, over the field. The family were living at

Cape John, in the County of Pictou, at the time. Joanna Archibald,

their second daughter, was born in the year 1862. She died young.

Annie, their third daughter, was bom in the year 1864. She died

young. Gordon, their second son, was bom in the year 1866. Walter

Henry, their third son, was born in the year 1868.

Walter, the youngest son of Alexander L. and Christianna N.

Archibald, was bom in .Truro in the month of May, 1835. He was

married to Olivia, daughter of James McCurdy and his wife of Onslow,

in the month of August, 1859. Frank, their eldest son, was born in

Truro March 21st, 1861. Alice, their eldest daughter, was born in

the year 1863. Percy, their second daughter, was born in the year
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1864. Mary, tlieir third daughter, was born January 1st, 1867.

"Walter Archibald and his family removed to the United States.

Alexander Lackie Archibald, whose descendants are the foregoing,

was Major of .the Militia. He represented the township of Truro in

the House of Assembly from the year 1830 to 1842, and from the

year 1847 until 1851. He carried on farming and tanning. He built

the house in which his son WiUiam now resides, where he reared his

family, and died February 12th, 1859, aged 71 years.

John James, the sixth son of Matthew and Janet Archibald, was

born July 22nd, 1790. He was married to Mary, daughter of Isaac

.and Mary O'Brien, of IS'oel, in the County of Hants, October 13th,

1812. Timothy O'Brien Archibald, their eldest son, was born in

Truro August 9th, 1813. He was married to Martha, daughter of

Alexander and Jane Kent, of the Lower Village of Truro, January

1st, 1835.' Isaac, the eldest son of Timothy aud Martha Archibald,

was born in Truro in the month of February, 1838. He started to go

to British Columbia, and died on the voyage in the month of

April, 1861, aged 28 years. Clarissa, the eldest daughter of Timothy

and Martha Archibald, was born December 27th, 1835. She was

married to John Eyan and they have three sons and three daughters.

Barbara, their second daughter was bom in the month of September,

1840. She was married to Arthur Gladwin, of Musquodoboit, and

had two sons. She died in the year 1869. Alexander Kent, the

second son of Timothy and Martha Archibald, was born in the month

of March, 1843. Edward, their third son, was born December 25th,

1845.

Adams, the second son of John James and Mary Archibald, was

born in Truro February 21st, 1815. He was married to Mary Ajin

McConnell, of Tatamagouche, July 2nd, 1840. They now reside at.

River John.

Rachel O'Brien, the eldest daughter of John J. and Mary
Archibald, was born in Truro March 26th, 1817. She was married

to James Johnson, of Salmon River, February 24th, 1845. They

have two sons and four daughters.

Janet, their second daughter, was born May 6th, 1819. She was

married to Daniel McNutt, December 21st, 1841. They have two

sons and five daughters.

Margaret, the third daughter of John J. and Mary Archibald,

was born August 2nd, 1821. She was married to Isaac, the fourth
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son of John B. and Catherine Archibald in the month of ISTovember,

1840. They had four sons and two daughters.

Sarah Ann, their fourth daughter, was born April 9th, 1825. She

was married to Alexander MiUer I^ovembet 25th, 1856. Their

family is among the Millers.

Mary Elizabeth, their fifth daughter, was born December 11th,

1828. She is married to the Eev. Hector B. McKay, of River John,

They had three sons and four daughters.

John McCurdy, the third son of John J. and Mary Archibald, was

born in Truro, January 24th, 1833. He was married to Margaret,

daughter of Isaac Christie and Susan Yuill, his wife, May 10th, 1855.

Clarence, their eldest son, was born April 26th, 1856. He died

April. 28th, 1859. Mary, their second daughter, was born March

29th, 1859. Susan Jane, their third daughter, was born July 9th,

1866. John McCurdy Archibald died N'ovember 27th, 1865, aged

32 years.

John James Archibald died August 6th, 1864, aged 74 years, and

;his wife, Mary O'Brien, died October 30th, 1854. •

Jonathan, the seventh and youngest son of Matthew and Janet

Archibald, was "born in Truro, Jiily 1st, 1793. He was married

to Margaret Talbot, of Truro, November 18th, 1813.

James, the eldest son of Jonathan and Margaret Archibald, was

born in Truro, December 14th, 1815. He was married to Margaret,

the eldest daughter of James Talbot and Mary Urquhart, his wife,

January 14th, 1845. Mary, the eldest daughter of James and

Margaret Archibald, was born in Musquodoboit, August 1st, 1846.

Margaret, their secoad daughter, was "born May 27th, 1848. Adams,

the eldest son of James and Margaret Archibald, was born in Musquo-

doboit, October 17th, 1850. Eleanor, their third daughter, was born

April 27th, 1852. James, their second son, was bom January 1st,

1854. He died January 10th, 186L Jonathan, their third son, was

bom March 25th, 1856. He died May 27th, 1857. Elizabeth,

their fourth daughter, was born March 29th, 1859.

Matthew, the second son of Jonathan and Margaret Archibald,

was born in Truro, January 1st, 1818. He was married to Jane

Hall, of Sheet Harbour, September, 1839. Sarah Jane, the

•eldest daughter of Matthew and Jane Archibald, was bom
March 13th, 1841. She was married to Johrf S. Stewart,

February 24th, 1859. They have three sons and two daughters.

William, the eldest son of Maltthew and Jane Archibald,
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was born January, 1843. He was married to Lydia Eedman, in

July, 1863. Sidney, the son of "VViUiam and Lydia ArcliilDald, was

bom in the year 1865. Margaret, the second daughter of Matthew

and Jane Archibald, ,was born in January, 1844.- Mary, their

daughter, was born October 18th, 1846. Jonathan, their second son,,

was born October 15th, 1848. Susan,- their fourth daughter, was

born July 16th, 1851. She died July 16th, 1867. Catherine, their

fifth daughter, was born May 10th, 1853. Tliomas, their thiwl son,

was born April 22nd, 1856. He died in January, 1857. Emma,

their sixth daughter, was born April 10th, 1859.. Neal,. their fourth

son, Avas born March 22nd, 1862. David H, their fifth son, was

born October 22nd, ,1864.

Jane, the eldest daughter of Jonathan and Maargaret Archibald,

was born in Truxo January 18th, 1820. She Avas married to John-

Curry, of Sheet Harbor, in the year 1842, and had two sons and four

daughters. She died July 25th, 1872, aged 52 years. Margaret, the

youngest daughter of Jonathan and Margaret Archibald, was born in

Musquodoboit, January 5th, 1827. • She was married to David.

Archibald, Esq., October 31st, 1845. They had fiv-e sons and one

daughter. Their names appear among the descendants of Eobert

Archibald, Esq.

Jonathan Archilmld, shortly after he was married, removed to

Pleasant Valley, and had t^te Mills at the foot of the Lake. He
removed from there to Musquodoboit in the year 1824, where he

spent the remainder of his days at farming, and miUing. He died at

Musquodoboit in August, 1861.

Eleanor Wilson, the third daughter of Matthew and Janet

Archibald, was born in Truro April 9th, 1781. She was married to

George, son of Eobert and Nancy Hamilton, November 23rd, 1802.

He died September 13th, 1841, aged 68 years, and his wife died

August 15th, 1857, aged 76 years.

Jean,, the fourth daughter of MattheAV and Janet Ai-chibald, was

born in Truro, March 15th, 1783. She was married to Edward S.,

son of Colonel Jotham and Elizabeth Blanchard, February 18th, 1802.

They had seven sons and four daughters. She died February 9th,

1873, aged 90 years. Mr. Blanchard died December 24th, 1856,

aged 78 years.

Elizabeth, the fifth and youngest daughter of Matthew and Janet

• Archibald, was born in Truro, January 11th, 1786. She Avas married
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to Samuel Archibald, third. Their family appears among the

descendants of James Archibald, Esq.

John Archibald second, the second son of Samuel Archibald, Senr.

,

and Eleanor Taylor, was bol'n in the year 1747. He was fifteen

years old when they came to !N"ova Scotia. He was one of the

grantees of Truro To^v^^ship, although he was but 18 years old at the

date of the grant. His wife, Margaret, daughter of William Eisher

and Eleanor Archibald, Avas born in the year 1747, and they were

married March 4th, 1772. They built their house on their front lot,

being the same on which the Episcopalian Church and several other

houses now stand. The old cellar is to be seen yet in the field of

Mr. Solomon Slack. He owned the front Avood lot on the South side

of the street. He and his brother built the Mills on the bank of the

upland, Southwest of the Eiver Bridge, They dug a race for the

water nearly half a mUe along the West side of their lots. On this

place he reared his numerous family. He died October 15th, 1813,

aged Q>Q years, and his wife, Margaret, died May 12th, 1809, aged 62

years. He was married again to Hannah, daughter of James Archi-

bald, and widow of the late John Cummings.

Eachel, the eldest daughter of Jolin and Margaret Archibald, was

born in Truro, December 29th, 1772. She was married to David

Morrison Archibald, or David Archibald sixth. Their family appears

among the descendants of James Archibald, Senr.

William, the eldest son of John and Margaret Archibald, was born

in Triu-o, September 19th, 1774. He was married to Susan, daughter

of William and Dorothy Putnam, January 1st, 1801. He removed;

and settled at Upper Musquodoboit, on the farm which was afterwards

owned by the Messrs. Annand. He removed from there to the South

Branch of Stewiacke, about the year 1826, and settled on the same

farm on which his eldest son, John, now resides. He died November

10th, 1850, aged 76 years, and his wife died May 23rd, 1871, aged'

89 years.

Sarah, the eldest daughter of William and Susan Archibald, was

born December 25th, 1801. She was married to Josiah Stewart, of

Musquodoboit, in the month of Eebruary, 1823. They had three

sons and three daughters. Mr. Stewart was killed, by falling from

a barn which he was shingling, August, 1839. She was married

again to Samuel Archibald, Esq., of Truro, October, 1847, and died

December 28th, 1869.

Eleanor, the second daughter of William and Susan Archibald,

,
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was born December 28th, 1803. She was married to Alexander

Henry in the year 1827. They Removed to Eiver John and settled

there, and had four sons and one daughter.

Euth, their third daughter, Avas born March 6th, 1806. She was

married to Joseph Thomson. They had five sons and seven daughters.

They removed to Massachusetts, United States.

John, the eldest son of William and Susan Archibald, was bom
July 7th, 1808. He was married to Lydia, daughter of James

Rutherford, Senr., and Letitia Putnam, August 15th, 1837. Timothy

Putnam, the eldest son of John and Lydia Archibald, was born

August 27th, 1838. William James, their second son, was born in

Stewiacke, February 1st, 1841. John P., their third son, was born

March 3rd, 1843. Siisan, their eldest daughter, was born July 15th,

1845. She died January 29th, 1855. Esther, their second daughter,

was born October 10th, 1847. Sarah, their third daughter, was born

November 3rd, 1849. She was married to Harris Holdman,

December 5th, 1867. They have two daughters. Mary Jane, the

fourth daughter, was born February 3rd, 1852. Ebenezer, their

fourth son, was born April 11th, 1854. Susan Eleanor, their fifth

daughter, was born March 25, 1856. Letitia, their sixth daughter,

was born July 26, 1858. Mrs. Archibald died July 5th, 1870, and

he was married again to Elizabeth Hutchinson, of Musquodoboit,

April 27th, 1871.

Wniiam Putnam, the second son of William and Susan Archibald,

was born in Musquodoboit, April 23rd, 1810. He was married to

Mary Jane, daughter of Jesse and Mary Gourley, of the Lower

Village of Truro, January 30th, 1838. Evmice McN"utt, the eldest

daughter of William P. and Mary Jane Archibald, was born December

4th, 1838. Margaret, their second daughter, was born in Truro,

October 20th, 1840. She was married to John Dunlap Johnson,

October 16th, 1860. They liave three sons and one daughter. Jesse

Gourley Archibald, their eldest son, was born March 26th, 1842. He
was married to widow McNeil, daughter of David Pidton and his

wife, of Debert River, October 16th, 1866. They removed to

California. They have one son. His name is Locretia.

Prescott Lewis, their second son, was born March 10th, 1844.

He has gone to California. He was married to Jane Jeffers, of Nova
Scotia, November 5th, 1872, in California. Mary Ellen, their third

daughter, was born December 9th, 1845. She removed to California,

and was married there to Fred Barson. They have two sons and one
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daugliter. Sarah, the fourth daughter of William P. and Mary Jane

Archibald, was born in Truro March 2nd, 1847. She was married to

Thomas McBurney, of Tatamagouche, April 20th, 1866. They have

one son and one daughter. Simon H., their third son, was bom
January 3rd, 1850. William R, their fourth son, was born

December 12th, 1853. Arthur, their fifth son, was born July 9th,

1855. Mrs. Archibald died February 27th, 1857. He was married

again to widow Gourley, the daughter of Joseph and Eleanor Fulton,

of Upper Stewiacke, December 27th, 1860. Elizabeth Gourley, their

eldest daughter, was born December 23rd, 1861. Anne M., their

second daughter, was born in Truro, March 11th, 1863. Harriet R.,

their third daughter, Avas born January 23rd, 1865.'

Alexander, the tliird son of William and Susan Archibald, was

born in Musquodoboit, May 23rd, 1812. He was married to

Catherine, daughter of James and Jean Laughead, of Clifton, January

10th, 1837. Joseph Howe, the eldest son of Alexander and Catherine

Archibald, was born October 20th, 1839. He was married to Maria,

daughter of James and Sarah Yuill, of Clifton, in the month of

March, 1864. Clarence, their eldest son, was born at Clifton,

December 25th, 1865. Sarah Eveline', their daughter, was born

August, 1867. They have removed to California. Susan, the eldest

daughter of Alexander and Catherine Archibald, was born June 27th,

1841. She was married to Robert Logan, of Musquodoboit, June

10th, 1862. They have three sons and two daughters. They ha«^e

removed to Minnesota. James Smith, their second son, was born

July 20th, 1843. Isaac ISToble, their third son, was born March 12th,

1846. Maria, their second daughter, was born AprU 27th, 1848.

She was married to Walter Marshall, of Beaver Brook, January 10th,

1866. They have two sons. Sarah, their third daughter, was born

November 20th, 1850. William Prescott, their third son, was born

December 20th, 1852. Samuel, their fourth son, was born June 8th,

1854. Jessie, their foiu'th daughter, was born IN'ovember 26th, 1857.

Mrs. Archibald died August 26th, 1869. He was married again to

Mary Jane, daughter of Alexander and Janet McCurdy, widow of

the late Henry Archibald, June 23rd, 1870.

George, the fourth son of William and Susan Archibald, was born

in Musquodoboit, May 6th, 1814. He removed to the East River of

Pictou, and settled there. He was married to Margaret Eraser,

January, 1845. Hugh James, their eldest son, was born in January,

1846. He was married to Jessie Thomson in September, 1869-
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William Alexander, tlie fourtli son of George and Margaret Arctiibald,

was torn in Pictou in the year 1 849. John George and Jesse, tlieir

twins, were born in 1852. Prescott, their son, Avas horn in 1854,

Alfred, their son, was born in 1856. Clarence was born in 1867.

Susan, the fourth daughter of William and Susan Archibald, was

born September 11th, 1818. She was married to Eobert, son of

William and Hannah Creelman, of Stewiacke, January 29th, 1841.

They had seven sons and eight daughters ; eight of those are dead.

Prescott Putnam, the fifth son of William and Susan Archibald,

was born March 5th, 1822. He was married to Jane, daughter of

James Ru.therford, Senr., and Letitia Putnam, March 23rd, 1848.

They now reside in Halifax, and keep a Country Market and a Hotel.

Margaret Mary, the fifth daughter of William and Susan Archi-

bald, was born August 4th, 1824. She was married to Colin

McLennon, of Pictou, February 22nd, 1853. They had three sons

and two daughters. They removed to the United States, and Mr.

McLennon died there, January 27th, 1868. She returned to Truro,

and was married to John Smith, August 11th, 1870.

Samuel Burke, the second son of John Archibald, second, and

Margaret Fisher, his wife, was born in Truro, December 12th, 1778.

He was married to Margaret Dickman, November 26th, 1801. He
removed from Truro, and settled in Upper Musquodoboit, on the

farm adjoining his brother William's. On this place he reared his

numerous family, and died there !N"ovember 27th, 1861, aged 83

years. His wife died August 31st, 1861.

Eachel Morrison, the eldest daughter of Samuel B. and Margaret

Archibald, was born March 24th, 1804. She was married to Samuel

Creelman, of Stewiacke, July 20th, 1827. Mr. Creelman died, and

she was married again to George S. Eutherford, March 20th, 1843.

She died January 16th, 1865.

Margaret, their second daughter, was born November 19th, 1806.

She was married to William Green, January 17th, 1825. They had

two sons and three daughters. Mr. Green died, and she was married

again to Daniel Tupper, of Upper Stewiacke. They had one daughter.

Mrs. Tupper died April 14th, 1850, aged 43 years.

GrizeU, their third daughter, was born March 5th, 1812. She

was married to Abraham K"ewcomb, January 15th, 1830. They had

eight sons and five daughters. She died July 3rd, 1857.

Daniel, the eldest son of Samuel B. and Margaret Archibald, was

born November 15th, 1808 He was manied to Eebecca NeAvcomb,
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•January 14th, 1830. Abraham, the eldest son of Daniel and Eeoecca

Archibald, was born ISTovember 29th, 1830. He was killed by falling

from a load of hay, September 19th, 1835, Margaret, the eldest

daughter of Daniel and Eebecca Archibald, was born February 1st,

1832. She was married to James Charles, son of Stephen Johnson

and I^ancy Miller, his wife, July 4th, 1855. They have two sons

and five daughters. Judson, their second son, was born January

27th, 1835. He removed to the United States, and- was married

there to Agustesly Ayer, in the year 1860. Byron, their eldest son,

was bom in the year 1863. Mary, their eldest daughter, was born in

1865. Eliakim, the third son of Daniel and Eebecca Archibald, was

born April 9th, 1836. He was married to Anne Bradshaw. He is

now a Minister of the Gospel in the State of Illinois. Mary Ann,

their second daughter, was born March 30th, 1838. David Dimock,

their fourth son, was born August 4th, 1842. He is married, and

settled in P. E. Island. Charles, their fifth son, was bom May 3rd,

1844. Jacob, their sixth son, was Isom August 4th, 1845. Abraham,

their seventh son, was born June 2nd, 1849. Eosannah, their third

daughter, was born August 23rd, 1850. Isaac Chipman, their

eighth and youngest son, was born January 9th, 1852. Daniel

Archibald settled at the South branch of Stewiacke, where he carries

on farming and tanning.

James D., the second son of Samuel and Margaret Archibald, was

born July 11th, 1811. He was married to Amy Harvey, January,

1832. He settled in Upper Stewiacke. He removed from there to

the County of Yarmouth, in April, 1867. Mrs. Archibald died there

April 26th, 1871, aged 71 years. James Harvey Archibald, their

eldest son; was born January let, 1834. He was married to Jane,

daughter of David Dean and Margaret Archibald, his wife, of

Musquodoboit, December 15th, 1856. David M., their eldest son,

was born in Stewiacke, March 20th, 1859. George Isaac, their second

son, was born May 7th, 1861. James Eupert, their third son, was

born in Halifax February 15th, 1865. Samuel B., their fourth son,

was born in Halifax, May 15th, 1867. Edgar S., their fifth son, was

born in Stewiacke June 5th-, 1869. Margaret, the eldest daughter of

James D. and Amy Archibald, was born in Stewiacke May 6th, 1836.

-She was married to Harv.ey Spinney, of Yarmouth, November, 1860.

They have two sons and two daughters. George, theii^econd son,

was born June, 1838. He died April 16th, 1853, aged 15 years.

fSamuel B. Archibald, their third son, was born April 6th, 1840, He
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died May 17tli, 1861, aged 21 years. Ebenezer Erskine ArcHBald

was born February 16th, 1843. He was married to Mary Spinney,

of Yarmoutli, May 3rd, 1864. Joanna, their eldest daughter, was-

born March 30th, 1865. Amy, their second daughter, was born

March, 1867. Elvira, their third daughter, was born in. Yarmouth,.

1869. James D. Archibald was born- in Yarmouth, September 10th,.

1871.

John Gr. D., the third son of Samuel B. and Margaret Archibald,

was born in Musquodoboit, July 14th, 1814, He was married to

Janet, daughter of George Hamilton and Eleanor Wilson Archibald,

Ms wife, February 8th, 1838. He settled near his brother Daniel, at

the South Branch of Stewiacke, where he and his family are still

cesiding. George, the eldest son of John G. D. and Janet Archibald,,

was born November 18th, 183S. He died May 25th, 1857. Edwin,,

their second son, was born August 16th, 1844. He was married to

Sarah, daughter of Matthew Burris, Esq., and Mary Archibald, of

Musquodoboit, JN'ovember 10th, 1870. Alfred, their third son, was-

bom February 11th, 1847. Julia and Harriet, their twin daughters,,

were born June 5th, 1849. Louisa, their third daughter, was born

October 18th, 1851. Adams J., their fouith and youngest son, was.

born August 28th, 1854

George W., the fourth son of Samuel B: and Margaret Archibald,,

was born May 30th, 1816... He was married to Elizabeth, daughter

of George and E. W. Hamdton, March 30th, 1839. They have

removed to Portland, Me. Margaret, their eldest daughter, was born

in the year 1846. Samuel, their eldest son, was born in the year

1844. Alfred, the second son, was born in the year 1848. Adelaide,

thei» second daughter, was born in the year 1854. Augustus, their-

third son, was born in the year 1857. Frederick, their fourth sou,

was born in the year 1860. Henry, their fifth son, was born in the

year 1863.

Wallace, the fifth, son of Sam=uel R and Margaret Archibald, was

born February 19th, 1818. He was m-arrisd to Amia Eichardson,,

October 27th, 1840. He inherited his father's farm in Musquodoboit,.

where he reared his family. He died December 25th, 1860, and his.

"vvife died October 3rd, 1868. William, their eldest son, was born,

September 19th, 1842. Harriet, their eldest daughter, was 'born Juno-

3rd, 1844. Jemima, their second daughter, was bom June 26th,.

1848. George, their second son, was born January 31st, 1850.

Arthur, their third son. was born December 15th,, 1853.. Sarah,, their
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third daughter, was bom June 2nd, 1856. Anna,, their fourth

daughter, was bom July 5th, 1858.

Burke, the sixth son of Samuel B. and Margaret Archibald, was

bom ApriE 15th, 1820. Jane, their eldest daughter, was born in the

year 1848. Margaret W., their second daughter, was born in the

year 1850. Elizabeth, their third daughter, was bom in the year

1852.' Amy, their fourth daughter, was born in the year 1854.

Grace, their fifth daughter, was bom in 1857. She died when about

nine months old. Alice was bornia 1859. Judson W., was bom in

1861. Clara was bom in 1864. Anna T. was born in 1867.

Samuel, the seventh son of Samuel B. and Margaret Archibald,

was born January 7th, 1822. He was married to AHce, daughter of

Alexander K. and Janet Archibald. Janet, their eldest daughter, was

born January 19th, 1854. Howard, their eldest son, was born

October, 1856. Ernest was born May 7th, 1860. Mary was bom
June 30th, 1862. Bunyan, their third son, was born May 20th,.

1864. Alexander was born March 28th, 1-866. Maud, their third

daughter, was bom April 28th, 1868. Samuel Archibald removed

from Stewiacke and settled in Yarmouth. In 1872 he and his two

eldest sons were crossing to a small Island, where they kept sheep..

The boat filled, and he and his eldest son, Howard, were drowned ;

the other son was rescued. William A., the eighth and youngest son

of Samuel B. and Margaret Archibald, was bom in Musquodoboit

October 9th, 1824. He studied and became a Doctor of Medicine,

and died a bachelor, February 18th, 1857, aged 32 years.

Eleanor, the second daughter of John Archibald, second, and

Margaret Fisher, his wife, was bom in Truro September 24th, 1776.

She Avas married to Adam, son of James Dunlap and Mary Johnson,

his wife. Their names appear among the Dxmlaps. Euth, the tliird

daughter of John and Margaret Archibald, was born Feby. 23rd, 1781.

She died unmarried. Susannah, their fourth daughter, was bom
November 18th, 1783. She was married to Edward Brydon, and had

two daughters. She died of consumption at her father's house in

Truro, while her husband was confined in Jail for debt. Her corpse

was taken into* the Jail, that he might have the last sight of the

remains of his beloved wife, while they were on their way to the

Cemetery for burial Tliis took place about the year 1806 or 1807.

Daniel, the third son of John and Margaret Archibald, was born

in Truro, February 9th, 1786. He died of consumption when a
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young man. George, their fifth son, was bom June 6tli, 1790. He
also died of consummation when he was a young man.

Matthew James, the fourth son of John and Margaret Archibald,

was born in Truro February 9th, 1 788. He was married to Eebecca,

daughter of John Cummings and Hannah Archibald, Jidy 11th, 1811.

He inherited a part of his father's farm, also the mills which had been

erected by his father and uncle Matthew. He lived in the house

which is now occupied by Mr. George W. Hamlon, who has now a

number of houses standing on what was formerly the mill pond. Mr.

Archibald died July 7th, 1855, aged 67 years, and his wife died

March 5th, 1861. Margaret, the eldest daughter of Matthew James

and Eebecca Archibald, was born November 3rd, 1811. She was

married to Edward Lynds, of Onslow Mountain, January 19th, 1830^

They had four sons and eight daughters. She died December 13th,

1855, and Mr. Lynds died December 15th, 1860. Eachel, the second

daughter of M. J. and Eebecca Archibald, was born l^ovember 23rd,

1812. She was married to Ephraim, son of John and Catherine

Staples, of Chiganoise, July 4th, 1839. They had three sons and

four daughters. Their eldest son, Alfred, was married to Susan

McLellan July 26th, 1864. He was working on the top of a steep bank

about sixty or seventy feet high, from which he fell, and lived but

three hours after. Susannah, their- eklest daughter, was born May
11th, 1814. She was married to Jacob Miller, of IN'ewport, October

24th, 1847. They had one son. She died at !N"ewport, December,

1851. Hannah, their fourth daughter, was born November 23rd,

1815. She was married to John MiUer (a brother of the above

named Jacob), February 14th, 1838. They had four sons and one

daughter. Mr. Miller died December 10th, 1854, aged 37 years, and

she is living a widoAV. Sarah, their fifth daughter, Avas born April

22nd, 1817. She was married to WiUiam Lockhart MiUcr (another

brother of the above named Miller's), January 29th, 1850. They had

one son, and he died when about two years old. Eebecca, their

sixth daughter, was born August 10th, 1818. She died November

15th, 1819. Eebecca, their seventh daughter, Avas born February

27th, 1820. She has removed to Noav Zealand. Euth, their eighth

daughter, was born August 10th, 1821. She was married to George

Cole, recently from England, September, 1856. They had one

daughter. Mr. Cole died, and she was married again to John

Dickson, and they had one daughter. She is now in the Lunatic

Asylum. George Washington, the eldest son of M. J. and Eebecca



I

Genealogical Record. 75

Archihald, was born January 2nd 1823; He removed to the United

States in t]ie year 1845, and was married their to Amanda .

He died there October, 1869, aged 47 years. John, their second son,

was born August 10th, 1824, He was married to EKza Chesley, of

Wnmot, June 19th, 1844. Belvidera, their eldest daughter, was born

in Truro in 1846. Eupert was born in 1851. Eynokl Howard was

born in 1 85 3. Eliza was born 1 855. Mr. Archibald died August, 1866.

Eleanor, their ninth daughter, was born March 20th, 1826. She died

August 18th, 1826. Eleanor, their tenth daughter, was born July

3rd, 1827. She was married to George W. Hamlon, in the United

States, November 19th, 1856. She returned to N'ova Scotia, and died

February 10th, 1870, aged 43 years.

William, the third son of Matthew J. and Rebecca Archibald, was

born January 9th, 1829. He was married to Sarah Shand, of

Halifax, April 14th, 1849. Eebecca, the eldest daughter of "William

and Sarah Archibald, was born April 14th, 1853. Joseph AUen,

their third son, was born April 7th, 1855. Minnie and Laura, their

twin daughters, were born January 29th, 1864. Matthew James, the

fourth son of Matthew James and Rebecca Archibald, was born

May 2nd, 1830. He was married to Eleanor McLaughlan, December

1st, 1852. John James, their eldest son, was born May 7th, 1858.

Henry Albert, the second son, was born in Truro, February 11th,

1861. Ella PrisciUa, their eldest daughter, was born December 17th,

1866. Mary Ann, their second daughter, was born December

28th, 1863. Jane, the eleventh daughter of Matthew J. and Rebecca

Archibald, was born in Truro, December 7th, 1*831. She was married

to Almon Barry, of the United States, July 4th, 1853. They have

one son and two daughters. Mary Ann, the twelfth daughter of

Matthew J. and Rebecca Archibald, was born in Truro, July 1st,

1833. She was married to George Mchol. They have two sons and

one daughter. They have removed to I^ew Zealand. Samuel, their

fifth and youngest son, was born in Truro, June 10th, 1835. He
removed to the Southern States, and has not been heard from for a

number of years.

Sarah, the fifth and youngest daughter of John and Margaret

Archibald, was born in Truro November 20th, 1791. She was

married to James YuiU, of Clifton, August 29th, 1809. Their family

appears among the Yuills.

Janet, the eldest daughter of Samuel Archibald, Senr., and Eleanor

Taylor, his wife, was born in the year 1750, being twelve years before
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tliey came to Nova Scotia. She was married to John Hingley and

had seven sons and four daughters. She .died June 10th, 1811, aged

61 years. John Hingley was one of the grantees of Truro Township,

and had his front land on the N'orth side of Salmon River, being

the North part of Messrs. Henderson's farm. He sold his front lands

to John Oughterson, and removed to Salmon River, now Kemptown,

and settled on the farm on which his grandson, Alexander Scott

Hingley, now resides, Avhere he died.

David Archibald, second, the third son of Samuel Archibald, Senr.,

and Eleanor Taylor, was born in the year 1752, ten years before they

came to JSTova Scotia. He was married to Jane, the eldest daughter

of Alexander Miller and Nancy Anderson, his wife, December 1st,

1778. Mr. Archibald's name is among the grantees of Truro Town-

ship, although he was but thirteen years old at the date of the grant.

He settled on the farm which is now occupied by William T. Archi-

bald and John Hattie, on the South side of Salmon River, where he

resided about eleven years after he was married. He then sold his

farm and removed about ten miles further up the River, and settled

on the farm which is still known by the name of the old Archibald

farm, in Kemptown. He erected mills at the same place which Mr.

George Hamilton has his saw-mill now. In the summer of 1790, as

Dr. McGregor was returning from a mission at Amherst, he stopped

at Mr. Archibald's house, and, finding some of his people working at

the mill, he remained the afternoon and night, in order that he might

have their company the next day through the woods. During the

afternoon the doctor took a plan of the mill, so that some of his j)eople

in Pictou, who were engaged in erecting mills, might have the benefit

of this plan. In about three years after this Mr. Archibald removed

to the Middle River of Pictou, and erected a set of mills near the

same place that the mills are now, and in about nine years after this,

in 1802, he returned to Kemptown, where he resided to near the

close of his life. He was afflicted, for a number of years, Avith a sore

leg. In September, 1818, he went to Pictou Town, to be attended

by the doctors. They amputated his leg, and he lived but a few days

after. He died September 19th, 1818, aged 66 years. His body

was taken to Middle River, and interred near the place where he had

built the mills. His wife died at Kemptown, November 28th, 1824,

and her body was interred beside her husband's.

Alexander Miller, their eldest son, was born in Truro, August

14th, 1779. He was married to Janet Clark, of the West River of
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Pictou, September 24:th, 1802. He continued to reside at the mill at

Middle Eiver, until the year 1812, when he removed to St. Mary's,

and settled on an interval farm near the Forks, being the same on

"which three of his sons now reside.

William Clarke, the eldest son of Alexander M. and Janet

Archibald, was born September 2l3t, 1803. He was married to

Sarah Tate, November 9th, 1826. He settled on the farm on which

his son John "William now resides, upon the "West Eiver of St.

Mary's. He left this farm, and purchased a house and small farm from

the Eev. John Campbell, at Glenelg. Agnes, the eldest daughter of

WiUiam C. and Sarah Archibald, was born October 22nd, 1827.

Maria Jane, their second daughter, was bom June 13th, 1829. She

was married to John Crookshank, January 1st, 1855. They have

four sons and three daughters. Sarah Esther Clarke, their third

daughter, was bom April 9th, 1831. She was married to Thomas

Smith, July 15th, 1866. They have one daughter. Mary Lewis,

their fourth daughter, was born May 17th, 1835. John William,

their only son, Avas born April 30th, 1841. He was married to Mary

Ann Whidden, E"ovember 23rd, 1867. Isaac Wilham, the eldest son

of John William and Mary Ann Archibald, was born April 13th,

1869. Sarah Esther, their daughter, was bom August 6th, 1870.

Sarah, the wife of William C. Archibald, died August 20th, 1849.

He was married again to Hannah E. KanodeU, January 17th, 1866.

David, the second son of Alexander M. and Janet Archibald, was

born August 23rd, 1805. He was married to Eliza Mcintosh,

November 23rd, 1837. Elizabeth, their eldest daughter, was bom
December 4th, 1838. She was married to James Dickson, December

20th, 1865. They have one daughter. William A., their eldest

son, was born September 16th, 1840. John C, their second son, was

born January 26th, 1844. He was married to Margaret Mcintosh,

September 27th, 1868. Charles Howard, their son, was born

December 7'th, 1869. Jane the second daughter of David and Eliza

Archibald, was born October 9th, 1845. She was married to John

Chisholm, of Antigonish, July 12th, 1864. She died April 9th,

1873, aged 58 years. Amanda, their third daughter, was born

January 23rd, 1848. David Archibald settled at Stillwater, about

four miles up the Eiver from Sherbrooke, where he and his two sons

still reside. Grizell, the eldest daughter of Alexander M. and Janet

Archibald, was bom August 9th, 1807. She died unmarried

December 2nd, 1867, aged 60 years.
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Samuel, tlieir third son, was born OctolDer 9th, 1809. He was

married to Agnes Tate, July 7th, 1865. He is now residing on the

same farm on . which David McKeen settled, about the year 1802.

John C, their eldest son, was horn February 11th, 1868. Janet

Sarah, their daughter, was born May 25th, 1869.

John, the fourth son of Alexander M. and Janet Archibald, was

born January 4:th, 1812. He was married to Caroline McDaniel,

January 23rd, 1845. Henry Alexander, their eldest son, was born

AjDril 3rd, 1846. He is married to Miss Matheson, in Cape Breton.

Lorenzo, the second son of John and Caroline Archibald, was born

May 16th, 1848. Janet, their eldest daughter, was born December

27th, 1853. Catharine Eliza, their second daughter, was born August

5th, 1855. John, their third son, was born in the year 1862. Clara,

their third daughter, was born in 1866. Margaret M., their fourth

daughter, was born in 1868. This Mr. Archibald having learned the

trade of tanning with his uncle, Matthew Archibald, of Pictou Town,

settled and carried on his trade at Stillwater, near his brother David,

and a few years ago removed to Cape Breton.

Isaac, the fifth son of Alexander M. and Janet Archibald, was

born January 24th, 1815. He inherited a part of his father's farm,

and now lives in the house in which his father lived and died.

Alexander, the sixth son of Alexander M. and Janet Archibald,

was born October 17th, 1817. He was married to Catharine McKay,

of Fishpool, East Eiver, Pictou, January 7th, 1846. Jane Agnes,

their eldest daughter, was born March 28th, 1848. Alexander

William, their eldest son, was born October 24th, 1852. Christiana,

their second daughter, was born January 27th, 1855. John Campbell,

their second son, was born July 13th, 1857. Samuel Johnson, their

third son, was born April 17th, 1861. Mr. Archibald is settled a

short distance up the West Eiver, where he carries on farming and

milling.

Janet, the second daughter of Alexander and Janet Archibald,

was boi;n jSTovember 19th, 1820. She was married to Alexander

Grant, of the East Eiver of Pictou, January 24th, 1845. They have

three daughters.

]\IattheAv, the seventh son of Alexander and Janet Archibald, was

born December 1st, 1822. He was married to Isabel McNab, of

Halifax, December 29th, 1847. Margaret McKenzie, their eldest

daughter, Avas born October 24th, 1848. Alexander David, their

eldest son, was born April 2nd, 1852. Ebenezer McNab, their second
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eon, was Lorn December 19th, 1853. Jane, their second daughter,

was .born November 17th, 1858. Julia Campbell, their third

daughter, was born June 20th, 1865. Mr. Archibald inherits a part

of his father's farm, and keeps the Post Office at Glenelg.

Alexander ISI. Archibald died August 8th, 1857, aged 78 years^

and his wife died May 3rd, IS'SS, aged 78 years.

Eleanor, the eldest daughter of I>avid ,Archibald, second, and

Jane Miller, his wife, was born in Truro June 23rd, 1781. She was-

married" to William Fraser, of the Middle Eiver of Pibtou, January

17th, 1801. They had four sons and ten daughters. Mr.- Eraser was

born April 15th, 1776. David A. Eraser is their second son. He
now resides in Truro. They lived and died on a farm adjoining the

one on which Mr. Archibald built his Mills. Mrs. Eraser died May
11th, 1854, aged 73 years. Mr. Eraser died February 14th, 1848,

aged 73 years.

Samuel, the second son of David and Janet Archibald, was born in

Truro, April 21st, 1783. His mfe, Jane Eraser, was born at ]\Iiddle

Eiver, Pictou, December 22nd, 1 788. They were married October 1 5th,

1805, They settled on a farm at the head of the tide,- on Middle

Eiver. Mrs. Archibald died December 27th, 1842, aged 54 years*

He was married again to Catherine KeeUor, the widow of tlie late

James Haulkens. Mrs. Archibald died September 1st, 1856, aged 73

years.

Janet, the eldest daughter of Samuel and Janet Archibald, was

born July 22nd, 1806. She was married to Andrew Simpson, of

Merigomish, in January, 1825. They had six sons and six daughters.

Simon, the eldest son of Samuel and Janet Archibald, \Yas born

June 31st, 1808. He was married to iSTancy Cameron, of the West
Eiver of Pictou, April 10th, 1832. Samuel, their eldest son, was born

July 3rd, 1839. He was married to Hannah Ann Campbell, January

20th, 1867. Florence Jane, the eldest daughter of Samuel and

Hannah A. Archibald, was born May 1st, 1868. Agnes C. E., their

second daughter, was bom December 29th, 1869. Grizie Jane, the

eldest daughter of Simon and Kancy Archibald, was born July 3rd,

1833. She was married to Alexander Campbell, of Caraboo. They
have three sons and three daughters. Duncan Cameron, their second

son, was born January 12th, 1842. Janet, their second daughter,

was bom May 22nd, 1837. She was married to Daniel Fraser, April

11th, 1867. They have two sons. Alexander WiUiam, their third

son, was born April 30th, 1844. Charles Simon, their fourth son,
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was born February 28th, 1847. David Mattbew, tbeir fifth son, was

born May 20th, 1853. Agnes Watson was born March 10th, 1855,

and died July 11th, 1867. Catherine, the second daughter of Samuel

and Janet Archibald, was born July 2nd, 1810. She was married to

Charles Fraser, January 19th, 1830. They had two sons and six

daughters. Slie died February 9th, 1867.

David, the second son of Samuel and Janet Archibald, was born

July 8th, 1812. He was married to ISTancy Fraser, March 6th, 1835.

Sarah, their eldest daughter, was born June 22nd, 1837. Caroline,

their second daughter, was born August 3rd, 1839. William, their

eldest son, was born in August, 1844. Daniel Fraser, their second

son, was born . Isaac Smith, their third son, was born .

Mr. Archibald died at Middle Eiver, January 30th, 1862. His

widow still lives at the homestead.

Eleanor, the third daughter of Samuel and Janet Archibald, was

born June 16 th, 1814. She was married to Elbridge Kennedy, in

Salem, Mass., U. S., in the year 1851. She died at Watervale,

Pictou, N. S., in the year 1865. Sarah, their fourth daughter, was

born June 12th, 1816. She was married to John Culton, tanner, of

the East Eiver of Pictou, January 25th, 1843. They had three sons

and one daughter. She died September 15th, 1859. Alexander,

their third son, was bom August 17th, 1818. He removed to

Restigouche, N". B., and was married there to Susan Adams, in the

year 1850. He removed again to New London, State of Michigan.

l!^ancy, their fifth daughter, was born April 17th, 1820. She was

married to James McDonald, of the West River of Pictou, January

oth, 1843. They have one son and one daughter.

Robert, the fourth son of Samuel and Janet Archibald, was born

July 23rd, 1822. He was married to Ann Fraser, granddaughter of

the late Dr. James McGregor, the first Presbyterian Minister of

Pictou, October, 1851. Samuel Arcliibald, their eldest son, was born

1852. *Elbridge Archibald, tlieir second son, was born 1856. They

reside on Greenhill, Pictou. He follows farming.

William Samuel, their fifth son, was born October 25th, 1824.

He removed, when young, to Boston, Mass., where he learned painting,

and was married there to Susan Mason. He removed again to

California, and lived there four or five years, and, returning home, he

died suddenly in Albany, July 8th, 1854. He left a widow and one

son. Matthew, their sixth son, was born March 17th, 1828. He
was married to Elizabeth Putnam Monteith, in Salem, Mass., IJ. S.,
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July 20th, 1851, They removed to Truro, ]N", S., and he carries on

manufacturing medicine. John Samuel, their eldest son, was horn

August 31st, 1852. Sarah Ellen, their eldest daughter, was horn and

died when young. George "William, their second son, was horn July

11th, 1861. Esther Janet, their second daughter, was horn April

121st, 1864. Joseph, the third son, was horn Decemher 7th, 1866.

Anne Price, their third daughter, was horn Decemher 27th, 1868.

Martha, the sixth daughter of Samuel and Janet Archihald, was

horn May 6th, 1830. She was married to Alexander Douglas in July,

1856. They had one son. Mrs. Douglas died August 27th, 1862.

Isaac Smith, their youngest son, was horn Decemher 6th, 1834. He
died Eehruary 12th, 1837.

Isaac, the third son of David Archihald 2nd, and Jane Miller, was

horn in Truro, July 13th, 1785. He was married to Janet, the second

daughter of David Archihald 3rd, Decemher 1st, 1808. They settled

at Middle River, Pictou, where they reared their family. Mr.

Archihald died Fehrua»y 8th, 1858, aged 73 years, and his wife died

January 19th, 1859, aged 67 years. Sarah, their eldest daughter,

was horn Octoher 1st, 1809. She was married to William Crocket,

Septemher 17th, 1843. They had one son and three daughters. Mrs.

Crocket died Novemher 3rd, 1849. Jane, the second daughter of

Isaac and Janet Archihald, was horn January 20th, 1812. She was

married to John Eraser November 12th, 1835. They had four sons

and five daughters.

David, the eldest son of Isaac and Janet Archihald, was horn at the

Middle River of Pictou January 8th, 1814. He was married to Sarah,

the eldest daughter of "VViUiam T. and Janet Archihald, of St. Mary's,

Septemher 16th, 1840. Silas Anderson, their eldest son, was bom
August 10th, 1841, he died May 14th, 1866. Melville, their second

son, was horn March 20th, 1843. Lorenzo, their third son, was horn

April 14th, 1845. Edmond, their fourth son, was horn February 6th,

1847. He was married to Adelaide Eraser April 22nd, 1871. Mrs.

Archihald died May 3rd, 1847. He was married again to Lucy Ann
the daughter of Frederick and Abigail Wilher, and widow of the late

James Archibald, March 15th, 1848. Sarah L., their daughter, was

^orn February 28th, 1852. Wilher L., their son was horn June

10th, 1854.

Elizabeth, the third daughter of Isaac and Janet Archibald, was

bom at Middle River, Pictou, November 16th, 1817. She was

6
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married to David Clark of the "West Eiver, Pictou, October 6th, 1S42,

They had five sons and five daughters.

Alexander, the second son of Isaac and Janet ArchiTjald, vyas bom
August 1st, 1819. He was married to Elizabeth, the fifth daughter of

William T. and Janet Archibald, of Sherbrooke, September 19th,

1843. Isaac, their eldest son, was born July 24th, 1844. Jessie,

their eldest daughter, was bom February 8th, 1846. James "WiUiam,

their second son, was bom January 8th, 1848. He died April 19 th,

1871. Eaymond F., the third son of Alexander and Elizabeth

Archibald, was born June 29th, 1854. He died November 28th,

1863. Clarence, their fourth son, was born November 4th, 1856,

Hiram Davis, their fifth son, was bom January 27th, 1858. Sarah

Elizabeth, their second daughter, was bom November 16th, 1860.

She died September 9th, 1861. David Anderson, their sixth son,

was born January 15th, 1864. Mrs. Archibald died May 21st, 1868,

and he was married again to Janet, daughter of James and Eliza

Archibald, of Clifton, in the township of Truro, February 23rd, 1870,

William, the third son of Isaac and Janet Archibald, was bom
April 12th, 1821. He was married to Elizabeth, the eldest daughter

of Alexander and Ann Archibald, of Truro, July 1st, 1844. William

Henry, their eldest son, was born December 15th, 1845. He was

married to Susan, daughter of Duncan Creelman, of Stewiacke,

January 18th, 1869. On June 21st, 1870, Wm. Henry Archibald

went, with his wife to Stewiacke on a visit, and while they were

there, he was kicked by a horse, and lived but an hour and a half.

Ann Louisa, their eldest daughter, was born June 27th, 1848. She

was married to Noble Cleveland, March 1st, 1864, and has three

daughters, Eveline, their second daughter, was bom January 20th,

1851. Chester, their second son, was bom January 30th, 1859.

Edson F., their third son, was bom Jime 18th, 1861.

Nancy, the fourth daughter of Isaac and Janet Archibald, was

born April 9th, 1823. She was married to James McDaniel Sept.

17th, 1841. They removed to the United States. They had two

sons and two daughters. Mrs. McDaniel died November 1st, 1854,

Matthew, the fourth son of Isaac and Janet Archibald, was born

June 19th, 1825. He was married to Sophia Matilda Irish, July

23rd, 1850. Edmond William, their eldest son, was bom June 10th,

1851. He died August 6th, 1870. Levi, their son, was bom January

20th, 1855. Emma, their daughter, was born April 2nd, 1857.

Catherine, their daughter was bom February 22nd, 1860, Matthew
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Archibald inherited part of his father's farm, and died in the same

house in which his father and mother lived and died. He died

August 10th, 1863, and his wife died January 4th, 1870.

Hannah B., the fifth and youngest daughter of Isaac and Janet

Archibald, was born October 16th, 1827. She was married to John

G., son of Samuel McKeen, of Cape Breton, October 16th, 1848.

They have four sons and six daughters.

Isaac WaddeU, the fifth and youngest Son of Isaac and Janet

Archibald, was born February 28th, 1834. He was married to Sophia,

daughter of David W. and Jane Archibald, of Truro, July 15th,

J 857. They had one son and one daughter ; both died when young.

James the fourth son of David and Jane Archibald, was born in

Truro June 7th, 1787. He married Sarah, the second daughter of

James and Agnes McCurdy, of Onslow. James, the eldest son of

JaAes and Sarah Archibald, was bom in the year 1812. He was

married to Lucy Ann, daughter of Frederick Wilber and Abigail

Hoar, of Shepody, June 28th, 1838. He died in September, 1839.

David, their second son, died while a young man.

David Anderson, the fifth son of David and Jane Archibald, was

bom at Truro April 20th, 1789. He was married to Nancy, the

third daughter of David Archibald, October 31st, 1811. They had

one son who died when about two years old. Mr. Archibald settled

at Middle Eiver, Pictou, and owned the Mills with his brother Isaac,

till about the year 1832, when he removed to Truro and purchased a

part of the farm which had been owned by his father, at the time of

his birth. He continued on this farm while he was able to work ; he

then sold it and removed to the village of Truro where he died April

22nd, 1871, aged 82 years, and his wife died May 2nd, 1868, aged

74 years.

Matthew, the sixth son of David and Jane Archibald, was bom
in what is now called Kempton, October 14th, 1791. He was

married to Martha, daughter of Finlay and Jane Murdoch, of HaHfax,

February 1st, 1820. George William, their son, was born in Pictou

toAvn October, 1830. Mrs. Archibald died March 27th, 1861, and he

was married again to Jane Lowden, widow of Mr. Haukins, May 9th,

1862. He carrried on tanning in Pictou town for a considerable time.

He died March 27th, 1863.

John, the seventh and youngest son of David and Jane Archibald,

was born at Middle Eiver of Pictou, February 10th, 1799. He was

married to Catherine Murdoch, sister of his brother Matthew's wife
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April 5tli, 1822. Charles, their eldest son, was born in Kemptown

March, 1824. He removed to the United States, and was married

there to Frances Hurbert May 1848. He died there April 7th, 1859.

Jane, the eldest daughter of John and Catherine Archibald, was born

in Kemptown in the month of September, 1828. She removed to

the United States and was married there to Alfred S. Morgan, and

has two daughters. Lewis, their second son, was born in Kemptown

August 27th, 1834. He left home when a young man and followed

the sea for a number of years, and is now residing in Manitoba.

Maria, their second daughter, was born in Kemptown July 27th,

1836. Martha, their third daughter, was born in Kemptown, May
27th, 1838. She was married to David McDonald, of Sherbrooke,

February 24th, 1859. They have two sons and one daughter. John

Archibald was in his saw mill at Kemptown, repairing some part of

her below, when a man above started the mill. The lower part ofthe

saw-gate struck him on the head and caused his death almost instantly.

This took place June 23rd, 1854. His widow is still living at

Sherbrooke, St. Mary's.
.
Jane, the youngest daughter of David and

Jane Archibald, was bom at Middle River, Pictou, February 8th,

1802, and brought by her parents to Kemptown, before she was one

year old. She was married to David W. Archibald, of Truro, Sept.

25th, 1827. Their family appears among the descendants of James

Archibald, Esq.

James, the fourth son of Samuel Archibald, Senr., and Eleanor

Taylor his wife, was bom in the year 1754, being eight years before

they came to Nova Scotia. He was married to Rebecca, daughter of

John Bamhill and Letitia Deyarmond, of Chiganoise, February 25th,

1779. He inherited a part of his father's property, with his dwelling

house, and had at one time owned part of the MiUs. He was a

Justice of the Peace for a length of time. Also an Elder of the

Presbyterian Church from the year 1799 until- his death June 13th,

1828. His wife died October 8th, 1818, aged 55 years.

John BarnhiU Archibald, their eldest son, was born in Truro,

August 13th, 1780. He was married to Catherine, daughter of

Ebenezer and Catherine Hoar, of Onslow, February 27th, 1806.

Rebecca, the eldest daughter of John B. and Catharine Archibald,

was born in Truro, November 17th, 1806. She was married to the

Rev. James Read, June —, 1840. She died at Portaupique August

1st, 1863, aged 56 years. Her body was buried beside her sister

Mary, in the Baptist Cemetery at North River, Onslow.
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Mary, the second daughter of John B. and Catherine Archibald,

was born October 8th, 1808. She was married to Daniel son of

Robert Blair and Mary Hoar his wife, of North Eiver, Onslow,

October 12th, ISSQ. They had two sons and five daughters. She

died October 12th, 1861, aged 53 years.

Samuel James, the eldest son of John B. and Catherine Archibald,

was born September 17th, 1810. He was married to Anne "WaddeU,

daughter of Ebenezer and Rebecca Archibald, January 21st, 1836.

He settled in Harmony on the farm on which John H. Archibald now

resides, being among the first who settled there. He remained there

nearly 20 years, and then removed to Musquodoboit, where he and

his family are still residing. He was elected an Elder in the Presby-

terian Church of Truro in the year 1845, Amelia, the eldest daughter

of Samael J. and Anne W. Arcliibald, was born in Truro December

3rd, 1836. She has been teaching school in Halifax for a number of

years. Wellington, their only son, was born in Harmony June 8th,

1839. He was married May 6th, 1869, to Esther McKeen, daughter

of David McKeen, of Musquodoboit. Mr. McKeen and three other

men were drowned in a lake where they were out fishing, about 20

years ago. Richmond L., the son of Wellington and Esther Archibald,

was born January 27th, 1870. Agnes, the second daughter of Samuel

J. and Anne W. Archibald, was born in Harmony December 22nd,

1841. She was married to James McDonald of Musquodoboit,

November 21st, 1866. They have two sons. Georgina, their third

daughter was born August 11th, 1846. She is now teaching school

in Hahfax.

Ebenezer M., the second son of John B. and Catherine Archibald,

was born in Truro November 19th, 1812. He was married to Ann,

daughter of Archibald Nelson and Jenny HiU, of Clifton, January

24th, 1837. He is settled at Clifton, and carries the mail and

passengers from Truro to Shubenacadie. Nancy Archibald, their

eldest daughter was born at Clifton, June 26th, 1838. She was

married to Wallace Gray in October 1859. They have two sons.

She died April, 1873. Rebecca, their second daughter, was bom at

Clifton, July 4th, 1840. Nelson, their eldest son, was born September

17th, 1841. He has removed to California. Peter Suther, their

second son, was born December 29th, 1843. He died AprU 7th,

1868. Jane, their third daughter, was born August 19th, 1846.

Minerva, their fourth daughter, was born February 16th,. 1849. Kate,

their fiftlv daughter, was born February 13th, 1854, and died May
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16th, 1858. William W., their third son, was born March 20th,

1856. Adilbert, their sixth and youngest daughter, was born August

6th, 1861.

Eobert, the third son of John B. and Catherine Archibald, was

born in Truro January 21st, 1815. He inherits what was his father's

farm on Prince Street, Truro. He was married to Margery, daughter

of Thomas and Elizabeth Lynds, of Truro, in the year 1840. Melissa,

their eldest daughter, was born in Truro April 12th, 1841. She was

married to Samuel Nelson in April, 1870. They have one son.

Ealph, the eldest son of Eobert and Margery Archibald, was bom
October 14th, 1842. He removed to ISTew Brunswick, and was

married there to Miss Liicilla Eogers, in the year 1861. Their

children's names are George, Oran, Bessie, Longo and James A.

Luther, their second son, Avas born in Truro December 21st, 1844.

He removed to California. James Clark, their third son, was born

March 3rd, 1847. Marshall, the fourth son of Eobert and Margery

Archibald, was born in Truro August 19th, 1849. He was married to

Miss Dorcas Elvincent of ISTew Brunswick, December 16th, 1870.

Peter McGregor, their fifth son, was born October 23rd, 1851. Eoss,

their sixth son, was born . Daniel, their seventh son, was
bom May 23rd, 1856. Elizabeth, their second daughter, was bom
May 30th, 1858. Logan, their eighth son, was born September 24th,

1860. Silas, their ninth son, was born June 15th, 1864.

Isaac Logan, the fourth son of John B. and Catherine Archibald,

was born in Truro May 28th, 1817. He was married to Margaret,

the third daughter of John J. and Mary Archibald, i^ovember 28th,

1840. They removed to N'ew Brunswick shortly after they were

married.
. Joseph Howe, their eldest son, was born in Eichmond, K

B., August 20th, 1845. He died March 21st, 1849. Samuel Porter,

their second son, was born June 12th, 1849. Irvine, their daughter,

was born May 4th, 1851. She died May 23rd, 1866. John James,

their third son, was born in MonticeUo, Me., January 6th, 1856.

Alfred, their fourth son, was born in the same place July 26th, 1858.

He died May 3rd, 1861. Mary O'Brien, their second daughter, was

born in Bloomlield, July 30th, 1862.

Catherine, the third daughter of John»B. and Catherine Archibald,

was born in Truro, September 4th, 1819. She was married to James

A- Logan, of Upper Stewiacke, October 1st, 1844. They had three

sons and three daughters. Mr. Logan died September 9th, 1869, and
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she -was married again to Daniel Blair, of North Eiver, October 24th,

1871.

John L., the fifth son of John B., and Catherine Archibald, "was

born February 1st, 1822. He was married to Jane, second daughter

of Thomas and Janet C. Miller, November 17th, 1846. Arthur AUen,

their eldest son, was born in Harmony, January 8th, 1849. He was '

married to Janet, daughter of James Hall of Onslow Mountain,

November 8th, 1870. Edward Martin, their second son, was born

January 27th, 1851. Isaac, their third son, was born in Harmony

March 13th, 1854. Eldridge, their fourth son, was born January

27th, 1857. Thomas Robert, their fifth son, was born September 6th,

1859. Mary Allison, their daughter, was born July 14th, 1862.

James Gordon, their sixth son was born June 18th, 1870.

Eliza Jane, the fourth and youngest daughter of John B. and

Catherine Archibald, was born in Truro August 30th, 1824, She

was married to Adam Logan of Stewiacke, October 28th, 1847. They

have three sons and three daughters. They removed to Halifax about

the year 1866, where he is now engaged in City Mission work. John

B. Archibald died June 2nd, 1855, aged 75 years, and his wife

Catherine Hoar died June 23rd, 1860.

Nancy, the eldest daughter of James and Rebecca Archibald, was

born in Truro March 15th, 1782. She was married to Samuel, eldest

son of John and Nancy Blair, of Onslow, January 25th, 1805. They

had three sons and six daughters. She died December 29th, 1857,

aged 75 years, and Mr. Blair died October 14th, 1862, aged 80 years.

Samuel Archibald, 3rd, the second son of James and Rebecca,

was bom in Truro October 14th, 1784. He was married to Elizabeth,

the youngest daughter of Matthew and Janet Archibald, February

19th, 1807. He was a very active man and forward in every good

cause. He held a commission of the Peace for more than forty years,

and was an elder in the Presbyterian Church of Truro for about the

same length of time. He purchased the farm on which his two sons

now reside, shortly after he was married, and about the year 1815 he

built a house, being the same in which his son John E. now resides.

Here he spent the remainder of his life. His wife died April 3rd,

1846, aged 60 years. He was married again to Sarah, the eldest

daughter of William and Susan Archibald, of Stewiacke, widow of

the late Josiah Stewart, of Musquodoboit, in the month of October,

1847. He died April 10th, 1864, in the eightieth year of his age,

and his widow died December 28th, 1869, aged 68 years.
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Jean Isabella, the eldest daughter of Samuel and EKzabeth

Archibald, was born in Truro November 17th, 1807. She died

young.

Elizabeth, their second daughter, was born February 3rd, 1810.

She was married to Matthew McCurdy, of OnsloAV, January 1st, 1828-

They had five sons and five daughters. They are living at Clifton,

Truro. Eev. Edward McCurdy, of New Glasgow, Pictou, is their

second son.

James, the eldest soix of Samuel and Elizabeth Archibald, was

born March 7th, 1812. He was married to Eliza, daughter of the

late Eobert Harris and Hannah Hoar his wife, December 31st, 1833,

He resides at Clifton, and carries on farming extensively. Janet, their

daughter, was born February^ 23rd, 1835, She was married ta

Alexander, second son of Isaac and Janet Archibald, February 23rd,

1870. They now reside in Sherbrooke, and he is engaged in milling.

Eobert Harris, the eldest son of James and Eliza Archibald, was born

November 16th, 1836. He was married to Mary Jane, daughter of

David Clark and Elizabeth Archibald his wife, of the West Eiver of

Pictou, January 1st, 1867. Augustus Clark their son, was born at

Clifton October 12th, 1867. Mrs. Archibald died November 20th,

1870. Edmond, the second son of Jane and Eliza Archibald, was

born December 9th, 1844. Samuel, their third and youngest son,

was born January 22nd, 1853. He died October 10th, 1858.

Adams George, the second son of Samuel and Elizabeth

Archibald, was bom in Truro May 3rd, 1814. He was an active and

successful Barrister. He filled the different offices of Eegistrar, Judge

of the Court of Probate, of Solicitor and Attorney General, and was

a member of the Government of Nova Scotia. He represented

Colchester in Parliament from the year 1851 to the year 1865. He*

again represented Colchester in Parliament until September, 1867, and

was a Delegate to the Colonial Office, London, in 1867. The people

of Colchester elected him again to represent them in the House of

Commons of the Dominion of Canada, in the year 1869, which he

did but for one year. In 1870 he was appointed Governor of Mani-

toba, and removed there. He has since returned. He was married

to Elizabeth, the only daughter df the Eev. John Bui"nyett, and

Lavinia Dickson his wife, June 1st, 1843. Joanna, their eldest

daughter, was born May 29th, 1844. George Adams, their only son,

was born in Truro May 29th, 1847. On the 19th day of October,

1861, he was gaming in the woods on the island soutli of the Truro
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Cemetery, in company with two other hoys, when his gun was acci-

dentally discharged and the contents lodged in his hody. In ahout

five hours he died. He was 14 years old. Lilly, the second daughter

of A. G. and Elizabeth Archibald, was horn November 16th, 1851.

Mary Lavinia, their third and youngest daughter, was born September

13th, 1862.

John E., the third son of Samuel and Elizabeth Archibald, was

born in Truro April 12th, 1816. He inherits a part of his father's

farm, and resides in the house that his father built, about the year

1815. He was mamed to Martha Dickey of Cornwallis, September

18th, 1845. Frederick WUliam, their only son, was born in Truro,

August 23rd, 1854. Jane, the third daughter of Samuel and

Elizabeth Archibald, was born in Truro April 7th, 1818. She was

married to the Eev. James Bayne, of Pictou Town October 6th, 1846.

They have four sons and five daughters.

Isaac IST., the fourth son of Samuel and Elizabeth Archibald, was

born in Truro September 16th, 1820. He inherits a part of what

was his father's farm and was surveyor and commissioner of Crown

Lands for the County. He was married to Harriet, the sixth daughter

of James McCurdy, and Agnes Archibald, of Onslow, January 28th,

1845. ' Elizabeth S. their eldest daughter, was born February

21st, 1846. Agnes F., the second daughter of Isaac iN". and Harriet

Archibald, was born in Truro, August 2nd, 1849. James Melville,

their only son, was born AprU 18th, 1851. Mrs. Archibald died

February 4th, 1853. He was married agaia to Sarah Stiles, of

Pictou, June 15th, 1854. Harriet IST., their eldest daughter, was born

in Truro, April 15th, 1855. Emma, their second daughter, was born

January 16th, 1857. Mary Stiles, their third daughter, was born

May 25th, 1859. Charles Adams, their son, was born August 4th,

1862. Mr. Archibald died February 3rd, 1872, aged 51 years.

Rebecca, the fourth daughter of Samuel and Elizabeth Archibald,

was born in Truro, January 9th, 1823. She was married to

Alexander McDonald, of Sherbrook. They had two sons and four

daughters. Mrs. McDonald died September 17th, 1870.

Thomas Logan, the fifth and youngest son of Samuel and Elizabeth

Archibald, was born in Truro, March 15th, 1825. He was married

to Elizabeth, daughter of the late John Blair, of Onslow Mountain,

and Isabella McNutt, his wife, July 25th, 1848. Sarah Ann, "the

fifth and youngest daughter of Samuel and Elizabeth Archibald, was

born December 31st, 1829. She was married to Eupert O'Brien, of
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Xoel, Septem'ber 12tli, 1855. They have six sons and t'wo daughters.

They have removed to Kansas, United States.

James, the third son of James and Eehecca Archibald, was born

May 6th, 1786. He was married to Rosannah, daughter of David

McKeen and Janet Taylor, his wife, of St. Mary's, in the month of

October, 1808. Jane, their eldest daughter, was born in the year

1809. She was married to William Wetherby, and had four sons

and six daughters. Eebecca, the second daughter of James and

Rosannah Archibald, was born in the month of E'ovember, 1810.

She was married to Joseph Laughead, of Clifton, January 10th, 1833.

James, the only son of James and Eosannah Archibald, was born in

the month of ^November, 1812. He was lame, worked at tailoring,

and died a bachelor when about 40 years old. Mrs. Archibald died

October 30th, 1814, and he was married again to Hannah, widow of

the late Eobert Harris, and daughter of Ebenezer and Catherine Hoar,

of Onslow, April 11th, 1816. Eosannah, their eldest daughter, was

born in Truro, February 27th, 1817. She was married to WiUiam
Bradley about the year 1842. They removed to St. John, N. B., and

then to Boston, Mass. William P., the eldest son of James and

Hannah Archibald, was born in Truro, August 6th, 1818. He was

married to Phoebe Ann Heustis, of Prince Edward Island, September

21st, 1847, Martha Elizabeth, their eldest daughter, was born June

17th, 1849. Eosannah Bradley, their second daughter, was born in

P. E. Island, October 1st, 1851. She was married to Wer-\vick

Willis, of Boston, Mass., U. S., April 8th, 1869. Emma, their third

daughter, was born May 21st, 1853. She was married to Daniel

Holmes, moulder at the Iron Foundry, August 24th, 1871. William

Bradley, their eldest son, was born April 12th, 1855. He died

November 26th, 1859. Walter P., their second son, was born

September 21st, 1858. Herbert H., their third son, was born April

27th, 1861. Anna Kate, their fourth daughter, was bom January

21st, 1864. She died February 8th, 1866. Freddy Willis, their

fourth son, was born in Truro, February 21st, 1867.

John Harris, the second son of James and Hannah Archibald,

was born in Truro, August 18th, 1820. He was married to Eebecca,

the eldest daughter of Thomas and Janet C. Miller, January 29th,

1844. Emeliue, their daughter, was born July 9th, 1846. Hannah,

the second daughter of James and Hannah Archibald, was born June

2nd, 1822. Mary, their third daughter, was born October 9th, 1825.

She was married to Eobert Bennett, of Shepody, K B.,November 22nd,
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1848. Th6y have one daughter. Kate, their fourth daughter, was

born in the year 1827. She was married to Robert Stinton, third

son of Thomas and Letitia Crowe, of Clifton, January 27th, 1857.

She died May 20th, 1864, and her husband died May 7th, 1864.

Harriet, the fifth and youngest daughter of James and Hannah
Archibald, was born in Truro, December 25th, 1829. She was

married to James Crowe, Esq., of Clifton, February 12th, 1850.

They have four sons and one daughter,

Asher Black, the third and youngest son of James and Hannah
Archibald, was born February 10th, 1832. He was married to

Harriet McElhenny, of Londonderry, September 1st, 1852. George

Washington, their eldest son, was born July 6th, 1853. Albert E.,

their second son, was born March 30th, 1855. Everett A. was born

August 8th, 1857. Charles E. was born June 13th, 1859. Flor-

ence E. was born July 12th, 1862. Kate Crowe, their daughter, was

bom January 2nd, 1866. "William Bradley, their son, was born

March 11th, 1869.

Matthew, the fourth son of James and Eebecca Archibald, was

bom in Truro, February 1st, 1788. He was married to Susannah,

daughter of John and N'ancy Blair, of Onslow, December 30th, 1813.

Sarah Lynds, their eldest daughter, was born December 7th, 1814.

She was married to John, son of John and Janet Kent, of the Lower

Village of Truro, April 7th, 1835. They had four sons and three

daughters. George Frederick, the eldest son of Matthew and Susannah

Archibald, was born in Truro, May 2nd, 1817. He was married to

, in Boston, U. S. Mrs. Archibald died, and he was married

again to Anne Moses. Olive, the second daughter of Matthew and

Susannah Archibald, was born in Truro, August 2nd, 1820. She

was married to Alexander, son of John and Janet Kent, of the Lower

Village of Truro. They have four sons and two daughters.

Charles B., the second son of Matthew and Susannah Archibald, was

bom in Traro, May 30th, 1823. He was married to Lophema
Kedder, daughter of the late Ezra and Margaret Witter, of Truro,

July 9th, 1848. Luther B., their eldest son, was born in Truro,

April 12th, 1849. Franklin, their second son, was born January

29th, 1854. C>TUS W., their third son, was born April 27th, 1857.

Susan A., their daughter, was born April 5th, 1860. Lophema
Amelia, their second daughter, was born December 21st, 1869.

Charles B. Archibald is the proprietor of the stage coaches which run

daily between Truro and Cumberland. Nancy Blair, the third
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daughter of Matthew and Susannah Archibald, was born in Truro,

September 2nd, 1825. She was married to Eobert Chambers, Esq.

They have four sons. Elizabeth, the fourth and youngest daughter of

Matthew and Susannah Archibald, was born in Truro, July 15th,

1828. She was married to George, son of "William and IS'ancy Hall.

They had one son. Mr. Hall died September 20th, 1861, and she

was married again to James Crosscup. Matthew Archibald died July

24th, 1831, aged 44 years, and his widow died July 29th. 1850.

Letitia, the second daughter of James and Eebecca Archibald, was

born in Truro, Jiily 1st, 1791. She was married to George WUson,

of Chiganoise, in the year 1812. They had two sons and eight

daughters. She died in the year 1839. Mr. Wilson died March,

1844.

Eobert, the fifth son of James and Eebecca Archibald, was born

March 27th, 1793. He was married to Margaret Young, who came

from Scotland shortly before, in the year 1819. Mary Ann, their

eldest daughter, was born in Truro, May 6th, 1820. She was married

to William, son of John Logan and Anne Johnson, of Tipper

Stewiacke, October 11th, 1845. They have seven sons and two

daughters. Margaret, the second daughter of Eobert and Margaret

Archibald, was born in Truro, August 16th, 1822. Hannah, their

third daughter, was born October 15th, 1824. She was married to

Eobert McElhenny, of Londonderry, in the month of September,

1862. They have one son. John Henderson, their eldest son, was

born in Truro, September 6th, 1826. He died August 20th, 1829.

John Henderson, the second son of Eobert and Margaret Archibald,

was born in Truro, February 23rd, 1830. He was married to Sarah

Ann, daughter of Adam and Sarah Miller, of Upper Stewiacke, April

5th, 1853.

James, the third son of Eobert and Margaret Archibald, was born

in Truro in the year 1832. He removed for a time to the United

States, and was married there to Mary Eogers, of Salem, Mass.

October 3rd, 1854. He returned and settled on the Mountain of

Truro, and died there June 20th, 1866, aged 34 years. Zilpha, their

eldest daughter, Avas born in Truro, September 10th, 1857. Frank,

their son, Avas born March 6th, 1862. He died at Stewiacke,

!N'ovember 18th, 1869. Lucenia, their youngest daughter, was born

June 10th, 1864. Elizabeth, the fourth daughter of Eobert and

Margaret Archibald, was born in Truro February 3rd, 1834. She

was married to James, son of Andrew Creelman and Susan Johnson,
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Kovemter 22nd, 1853, They have five sons and three daughters.

David Waddell, their fourth and youngest son, was born February

9th, 1837. He was married to Sarah, daughter of Jamas D, and

I^ancy Baird, of Stewiacke, February 28th, 1865. Teressa, their

eldest daughter, was born January 4th, 1866, Erdilla, their second

daughter, was born April 30th, 1869, Clarissa Jane, the fifth and

youngest daughter of Eobert and Margaret Archibald, was born May
14th, 1840, She was married to David A. Baird, of Stewiacke,

February 4th, 1863, Mrs. Margaret Archibald died November 12th,

1840, aged 42 years. He was married again to Mary Miller, in the

month of November, 1841, They had two sons, but they both died

when young, Eobert Archibald died February, 1857.

Elizabeth, the third daughter of James and Eebecca Archibald,

was born in Truro, March 4th, 1795, She was married to Hugh
Login, of Cumberland County. They had four sons and two

daughters,

Alexander, the sixth son of James and Eebecca Archibald, was

bom October 22nd, 1797. He was married to Ann, the third daughter

of William Field (who came out from England but a short time

before), March 8th, 1821. Elizabeth, their eldest daughter, was bom
in Truro, May 18th, 1823. She was married to William, third son

of Isaac and Janet Archibald, of Pictou, July 1st, 1844. Their

family appears among the descendants of David Archibald, second.

William Field, the eldest son of Alexander and Ann Archibald, Avas

bom December 22nd, 1825. He was married to Amelia, the second

daughter of Thomas and Elizabeth Lynds, of Truro, May 22nd, 1850.

Bessie Ann, "their eldest daughter, was born in Truro, February 22nd,

1851. Olive Blair, their second daughter, was bom December 11th,

1852. Henrietta, the third daughter of William F. and Amelia

Archibald, was born in Truro, January 9th, 1855. Wilbert C, their

son, was bom February 7th, 1859, Addie L., their daughter, was

born in Truro, April 1st, 1864.

Thomas, the second son of Alexander and Ann Archibald, was

born July 23rd, 1829. He removed to the United States, and

died there April 17th, 1854. Henry, their third son, was bom in

Truro, June 1st, 1832, He removed to the United States when

young. He died at Kansas, August 2nd, 1872, aged 40 years.

Louisa, their second daughter, was bom in Truro, December 17th,

1834. She was married to Eev. Stephen F. Heustice in July, 1861.

They have three sons and one daughter.
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Edward, the fourth son of Alexander and Ann Archibald, wag

bom in Truro, February 9th, 1838. He was married to Addie Moore,

of ]S"ew Brunswick, December 25th, 1857. They have two sons and

three daughters. Jessie Ann, the third and youngest daughter of

Alexander and Ann Archibald, was bom in Truro, September 4th, 1840.

Eebecca, the fourth daughter of James and Eebecca Archibald,

was born June 27th, 1799. She died unmarried, December 4th,

1838, aged 39 years.

David "Waddell, the seventh and youngest son of James and

Eebecca Archibald, was born September 5th, 1801. He inherits a

part of his father's farm, and resides near the place on which his

father and grandfather resided. He was married to Jane, the youngest

daughter of David and Jane Archibald, of Kemptown, September

25th, 1827. Martha Jane, their eldest daughter, was born March

13th, 1829. She was married to John McGrath, a school teacher,

July 15th, 1857. She died ^vithout children. Sophia, their second

daughter, was born March 21st, 1833. She was married to Isaac "W.,

son of Isaac and Janet Archibald, of Pictou, July 25th, 1857. They

had one son and one daughter ; both died young. James Anderson,

their eldest son, was born August 15th, 1835. He died when young.

Eev. John Howard, their second son, was born in Truro, January

26th, 1838. He studied for the ministry, and removed to Australia,

and was settled over the congregation at Euroa Duck Pond, Long-

wood, in the year 1870. Isaac Adams, their third son, was born

March 14th, 1843. He was married to Eleanor, widow of the late

James Blair, of North Eiver, and daughter of James Hall and Jane

King, of Onslow Mountain, N"ovember 5th, 1867. LiUy Hall, their

daughter, was born February 26th, 1870.

Anne Maria, the third and youngest daughter of David "W". and

Jane Archibald, was born in Truro, August 23rd, 1845. She was

married to Joseph Chapman, of Upper Miisquodoboit, December 29th,

1863. They have one son and two daughters. Henry Melville, the

fourth and youngest son of D. W. and Jane Archibald, was born

August 3rd, 1851. Eleanor, the fifth and youngest daughter of James

and Eebecca Archibald, was born Jiily 30th, 1803. She was married

to Asher Black, of Cumberland County, They had five sons and

two daughters.

Ifancy, the second daughter of Samuel Archibald, Senr., and

Eleanor Taylor, was born in the year 1-756, being six years before they

came to Nova Scotia. She was married to John, the eldest son of
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Matthew Taylor, Senr. , and Elizabeth Archibald, his wife. They had

four sons and six daughters. They removed to St. Mary's about the

year 1802, and died there.

Eobert, the fifth son of Samuel Archibald, Senr., and Eleanor

Taylor, his wife, was born in New England in the year 1758, four

years before they came to Nova Scotia. He was deaf and dumb. He

lived with his brother David, at the Middle River of Pictou, where

he died a bachelor, June 3rd, 1794, aged 36 years. His body waa

interred at Middle Eiver, and a stone erected to his memory.

Martha, the fourth daughter of Samuel and Eleanor Archibald,

was bom in New England in 1760. She was married to John Pratt.

They removed to Stewiacke, where they settled and died. They had

five sons and three daughters. Margaret, the third daughter of

Samuel and Eleanor Archibald, was bom in New England in the

year 1759. She was married to David Nelson, November 28th,

1775. They lived on the interval of Salmon River, near the place

that Samuel J. Blair now resides. They had four sons and two

daughters. Mr. Nelson died August 28th, 1788, and she was married

again to Jeremiah Murphy in the month of June, 1789. They had

two sons.

Samuel, the sixth and youngest son of Samuel and Eleanor

Archibald, was bom in the year 1762, shortly before they came to

Nova Scotia. He was known by the name of Lame Samuel. He
was married to Margaret, the second daughter of Thomas and

Janet Archibald, January 13th, 1790. They settled on the farm

which John James Archibald afterwards owned, and is now owned by

James Johnson. His house stood on the hill on the east side of the

Salmon River road. Rachel, their eldest daughter, was born in Truro,

September 1st, 1793. She was married to Ephraim Taylor, of St,

Mary's, in the year 1824. They had four sons and one daughter.

She died in the month of October, 1865. Samuel, the eldest son of

Samuel and Margaret Archibald, was bom in the year 1795. He

died a bachelor, June, 1821. Margaret, their second daughter, was

bom June 15th, 1797. She was married to Peter Grant, November

3rd, 1828. They had four sons and one daughter. She died March

15th, 1866. Martha, their third daughter, was bom in the year 1799.

She died unmarried, January 15th, 1868. Thomas, their second son,

was bom May, 1806. He was married to Margaret McKinlay,

January 15th, 1828. They are now residing up the Salmon River,

about a mile above Alexander S. Hingley's, in Kempto^vn. Mary
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Jane, the eldest daughter of Thomas and Margaret Archibald, "was

born March, 1831. She was married to Jacob Fenton, February,

1852. They have four sons and four daughters. Samuel, the eldest

son of Thomas and Margaret Archibald, was born 1834. Isabell,

their second daughter, was born 1836. Charles, their second son, was

bom April, 1840. He was married to Lucy Campbell, of Westchester

Mountain, March, 1870. Eleanor and Margaret, their twin daughters,

were born October, 1842. David, the third and youngest son, was

born October, 1846.

David Archibald, tenth, the second son of Samuel and Margaret

Archibald, was born December 16th, 1808. He was married to Sarah

Hammond, February 6th, 1832. Miriam, their eldest daughter, was

born April 28th, 1835. She removed to the United States. Charles,

the eldest son of David, tenth, and Sarah Archibald, was born

January 12th, 1837. He was married to Margaret, daughter of Asa

and Margaret Hoar, of Onslow Moimtain, January 1st, 1863. Martha,

their eldest daughter, was born December 16th, 1863. Alexander,

their eldest son, was born in the month of March, 1855. Sarah, their

second daughter, was born in the month of October, 1866. Samuel

Matthew, the second son of David, tenth, and Sarah Archibald, was

born January 29th, 1839. He was married to Eebecca Sarah,

daughter of John McDonald and Rebecca Archibald, his wife, April

28th, 1863. John H., their eldest son, was bom in the month of

March, 1864. Sarah, their eldest daughter, was born in the month

of March, 1866. Alexander James, their second son, was bom
October 16th, 1868. Sarah Jane, the second daughter of David,

tenth, and Sarah Archibald, was born June 18th, 1841. She was

married to Hopkin McNutt, of North Eiver. They have one son and

one daughter. John S., the third son of David, tenth, and Sarah

Archibald, was born October 14th, 1843. He was married to Mary
Jane, daughter of David T. and Eleanor Archibald, July 25th, 1865.

Agnes, their eldest daughter, was bom October 28th, 1865. Alex-

ander, their son, was born in the month of May, 1867. Sarah, their

second daughter, was born June 15th, 1870. Esther, the third

daughter of David, tenth, and Sarah Archibald, was bom April 6th,

1846. She was married to Thomas McKenzie, April 24th, 1863.

They have two sons and one daughter. Alexander, their fourth

and youngest son, was bom June 15th, 1848. Margaret, the first

wife of Samuel Archibald, second, died January 15th, 1809, and he
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"was married again to Nancy Clayton, April IS.th, 1810. About this

time he removed to St. Mary's, where he died May 15th, 1833.

Matthew, the eldest son of Samuel and !N"ancy Archibald, was

born March 18th, 1811. He was married to Louisa Miles. They

had a daughter, Isabell, and a son, Henry. They removed to the

United States, and he died there, February 11th, 1871.

Henry C, the second son of Samuel and ITancy Archibald, was

born May 1st, 1813. He was married to Caroline Bradshaw,

January 5th, 1833. Samuel Thomas, their eldest son, was born

January 15th, 1834. He was married to Margery McBain, August

12th, 1855. "William Henry, their eldest son, was born August 3rd,

1857. Alexander Thomas, their second son, was born March 28th,

1859. James George, their third son, was born October 8th, 1862.

John Hugh, their fourth son, was born ^November 2nd, 1864.

Annabel, the eldest daughter of Henry C. and Caroline Archibald,

was born in the y6ar 1836. She was married to Angus McLain, in

the year 1861, and died in the month of August, 1862. EKza, their

second daughter was born 1838. She was married to Alexander

Sutherland 1857. They have three sons and two daughters. Elmira,

their third daughter, was married to Donald Mclnnis. They have

two sons and tliree daughters. Alexander, the second son of Henry C.

and Caroline Archibald, was born March 16th, 1841. He has

removed to the United States. Ephraim Howard, their third son,

was married to Anne Flake, August 1st, 1870. Margaret Jane, their

fourth daughter, was married to Henry Taylor. They have two

daughters. Charlotte, their fifth daughter, was married to Samuel

Flake, August 1st, 1870. Eobert, their fourth son, was born in the

month of Jime, 1851. Caroline, their sixth daughter, was born .

Catherine Eleanor, their seventh daughter, was born -.

Charles, the third son of Samuel, second, and Nancy Archibald

was born June 12th, 1816. He was married to Miriam, daughter of

Asa Daniels and Miriam Hoar, his wife, June 3rd, 1836. Asa, their

eldest son, was born October 8th, 1837. He was married to Lavinia

McLain, of FoUy Eiver, October, 1857. George Eobert, their eldest

son, was born at the FoUy Eiver, September 18th, 1858. Mary
Elizabeth, their eldest daughter, was born August 8th, 1861. Charles

Francis, their second son, was born October, 1863. Samuel McLain,

their third son, was born April 16th, 1867. Susan AmeHa, was

born December 26th, 1869. Eleanor, the eldest daughter of

Charles and Miriam Archibald, was born in Triiro, February 6th,

7
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1840. Miriam, their second daughter, was horn February 20th, 1842,

Margaret, their third daughter, was horn April 25th, 1844. Samuel,

their second son, was horn April 8th, 1846. Mary, their foui-th

daughter, was born April 10th, 1848. David, their third son, was

born March 25th, 1853. Nancy, their fifth daughter, was born

February 3rd, 1855. Julia, their sixth daughter, was bom December

30th, 1855. Charles, their youngest son, was born February 25th,

1858. Eleanor, the only daughter of Samuel and l^ancy Archibald,

was born May 6th, 1819. She was married to Eobert Hingley, of

Kemptown, June 18th, 1841. They have two sons and five daughters,

Ephraim, the fourth son of Samuel and Nancy Archibald, was

born August 14th, 1821. He was married to Margaret McLain,

March 17th, 1841. John Henry, their eldest son, was born in the

year 1842. He removed to the United States. Eleanor, the eldest

daughter of Ephraim and Margaret Archibald, was born in the year

1844. Oscar Wellington, the second son of Ephraim and Margaret

Archibald, was born in 1848. He removed to the United States, and

was married to S. A. Stevens, May 18th, 1871, and he is now

practising as M, D. in Iowa, Mary, their second daughter, was born

in the year 1850. She was married to James Duncan in the year

1867. They have two daughters. Matilda, the third daughter of

Ephraim and Margaret Archibald, was born in the year 1856.

Sabrina, their daughter, was born in the year 1858.

James, a twin son of Samuel, second, and Nancy Archibald, was

born August 24th, 1826. He was married to Abigail, daughter of

James Whidden and Hannah Johnson, his wife, January 8th, 1847.

Henry, their eldest son, was born November 3rd, 1847. He was

married to Joanna M., daughter of Benjamin Lynds, of North Eiver,

December 30th, 1868. Leonard Read, their son, was born October

20th, 1869, Samuel James, the second son of James and Abigail

Archibald, was born September 8th, 1849. He was married to

Minerva, daughter of Samuel McLaugliland, Esq., of Economy, July

10th, 1871. Eliza, the eldest daughter of James and Abigail Archi-

bald, was born February 10th, 1858. Susan Catherine, the second

daughter, was born September 24th, 1862. Hannah, their third

daughter, was born April 13th, 1864. James Arcliibald died at

North River, June 4th, 1871. Alexander, the other twin son of

Samuel and Nancy Archibald, was married to Nancy, daughter of

John McDonald and Rebecca Archibald, his wife, March 3rd, 1852.

John, their eldest son, was born November 14th, 1853, Rebecca^
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their eldest daughter, was born March 7th, 1862. Isabell, theii

second daughter, was bom June 2nd, 1868. Caroline 'Louisa was

born July 30th, 1871.

Samuel PhUip, the seventh and youngest son of Samuel and

l^ancy Archibald, was born August 14th, 1831. He was married to

Frances Sarah, daughter of Charles Wallace and Clara Emeline

Godfrey, his wife, September 19th, 1853. Eiisha Godfrey, their

eldest son, was born March 30th, 1856. Alexander Lewis, their

second son, was born Tebruary 17th, 1858. Samuel Charles, their

third son, was born ISTovember 16th, 1859, Louisa Eleanor, their

daughter, was born March 19th, 1862. Clara Isabell, their second

daughter, was born May 15th, 1864.

Elizabeth, the fifth daughter of Samuel Archibald, Senr., and

Eleanor "Saylor, his wife, was born in Truro, January 14th, 1764.

She died immarried. Eleanor, the youngest daughter of Samuel and

Eleanor Archibald, was born in Truro, January 23rd, 1768. She

was married to Eobert Morrison. They had two sons and three

daughters. They removed to the United States,

James Archibald, the third brother of the four Archibald's who

came to ^N'ova Scotia together in the year 1762, was a Grantee of

Truro Township. His front land was on the E'oith side of Salmon

E,iver. He was among the first settlers of Middle Stewiacke, and

obtained a grant of 500 acres of land lying on the East side of Simeon

Whidden's land. On this land he settled, and lived for a considerable

length of time. He sold out to George Scott, of Truro. Scott gave

the farm to his two grandsons, George Scott Eutherford and "William

Rutherford, Esq., and it is now owned by their sons and grandsons.

James Archibald was married and had some family before they came

to Truro. They had one son and six daughters. Rebecca, their

daughter, was born December 23rd, 1761. She was married to

Matthew, son of Matthew Taylor and Elizabeth Archibald, February

'6th, 1783. They had four sons and one daughter before they left

Truro. They removed to Ohio, United States.

Hannah, another daughter of this James Archibald, was married

to John Cummings. They had six sons and five daughters. John

Gummings, their son, was married to Letitia, the eldest daughter of

Alexander BamhiU and Alice Hunter, his wife. They had eight sons

and two daughters. James Cummings removed to Manchester.

Matthew enlisted and left Truro about the year 1811, and never

returned. David Cummings, their fourth son, learned the mason
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trade with, Mr. James Drysdale, He married and settled in London-

derry, where, he died, September, 1870. Daniel Cummings, their

fifth son, was married to Margaret McDongall, widow of the late

William McElhenney, of Londonderry. They had four sons and one

daughter. They are both living yet in Onslow. William Cummings^

their youngest son, removed to I^ew Brunswick. Joanna Cummings,

their daughter, was married to WiUiam Eude, and had a family of

children. Eleanor Cummings was married to George Goodwin. He
enlisted and left Truro the same time that Matthew Cummings left,

Eehecca Cummings, their third datighter, was married to Matthew

James Archibald, and had a large family. Eachel Cummings was

married to John Kenty, at the Grand Lake, and had a family of

children. Hannah Cummings was married to Mr. Jinkens, of

Shubenacadie Eiver.

Elizabeth, another daughter of this James Archibald, was married

to Mr. ]\IcElhenney. Another daughter was married to William

Long, and removed to Ohio, United States, Another of their

daughters was married to Eichard Sudicks. They removed to Ohio,

United States. Another of their daughters was married to Adam
Boyd. She died May 15th, 1790. Mr. Boyd was married again to

Mary, daughter of James and Elizabeth Johnson.

David Archibald, sixth, or David Morris Archibald, was the only

son of this James Archibald. He was married to Eachel, the eldest

daughter of James Archibald, second, and Margaret Fisher, in the

year 1798. Margaret, the eldest daughter of David M. and Eachel

Archibald, was born early in the year 1799. She was married to

David Dean, of Musquodoboit, April 4th, 1815. They had four sons

and seven daughters. She died March 1851, aged 52 years. Euth,

the second daughter of David M. and Eachel Archibald, was born in

the year 1801. She was married to Barnabas Lynds, of North Eiver,

October, 1818. They had three sons and five daughters. She died

I^ovember 18th, 1853, aged 52 years. Eebecca, their tliird daughter,

was born in the year 1803. She died unmarried. David M.

Archibald and his wife both died while their three daughters were

very young.

Thomas Archibald was the youngest of the four brothers who
emigrated from the North of Ireland to New England, and thence to

Truro, Nova Scotia. He came in company "vvith his brothers and

their wives and families, also with his tliree sisters and their families.

Elizabeth, his sister, was married to Matthew Taylor, Senr. Eleanor
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Archibald was married to William Fisher, and Martha Archibald was

married to Samson Moore. Thomas Archibald was born in Ireland

in the year 1733. He was married to Janet Orr, about the year 1757.

He settled on the interval M'orth of Salmon Eiver, on the same farm

that was owned afterwards by his son, David Archibald, fourth, and

by David's son, John. John's son, Eichard Archibald, now resides

upon the same farm, near the Eiver bridge, by Charles D. TJpham's.

On this farm he reared his family, and spent the remainder of his

life. His first wife, Janet Orr, died March 13th, 1784, aged 51 years.

He was married again to Elizabeth Long, widow of the late James

Faulkener, of the Lower Tillage of Truro, July 15th, 1785. He died

June 27th, 1796, aged 63 years, and his Avidow died about the year

1822. Eleanor, the eldest daughter of Thomas and Janet Archibald,

was born about the year 1760. She was married to David Taylor

about the year 1783. Her family appears among the Taylors.

John, the eldest son of Thomas and Janet Archibald, was born

about the year 1758, four years before they came to ]S^ova Scotia. He
was married to Mary, daughter of Eobert and Agnes Hamilton, about

the year 1784. He was known by the name of Long John. He
made an.attempt to settle at Brookfield, but soon left, and was one of

the first settlers in Upper Stewiacke. He was one of the eight who
went to Stewiacke to settle in the spring of the year 1784, and their

twin sons were the first deaths in Stewiacke. At this early date was

the place fixed upon for a public Cemetery, and these were the first

who were buried in it. The funeral took place on March 8th, 1786-

The farm that Mr. Archibald settled on lies on the South side of the

Eiver, opposite the Presbyterian Church. Here he spent the

remainder of his life, and died September 1st, 1832. His wife died

in Brookfield, August 20th, 1847. They had four sons and four

daughters, who lived to grow up. Their sons Eobert and John both

died bachelors. David, their son, was married to Catherine Munro.

They had four sons and two daughters ; their names are Eobert,

David, Thomas, Hector, Catherine and ISTancy. This family have all

left the country. Mary, the daughter of John and Mary Archibald,

was married to Jolui Boomer, of Brookfield, and had five sons and

four daughters. Ann, the daughter of John and Mary Archibald, was

married to Hantz, son of John and Elizabeth Hamilton, of Brookfield.

They settled at Pembroke, Upper Stewiacke. ISTancy, the daughter

of John and Mary Archibald, died unmarried. Janet, their daughter,

was married to John Power, and had two sons and three daughters
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William Archibald, their son, was married to Nancy McQuinn, and

is settled in IS'ew Annan.

David Archibald fourth, the second son of Thomas and Janet, was

born on board the vessel in which they came from K"ew England,

December 13th, 1762. He was married to Esther, daughter of

Charles and Eleanor Cox, February 14th, 1788. He inherited his

father's farm. Thomas, their eldest son, was born October 7th, 1788.

IsTancy, their eldest daughter, was born in Truro, April 23rd, 1795.

She was married to Henry, son of John Christie and Kancy Denny,

March 12th, 1818. They have two sons and four daughters. Charles,

the second son of David and Esther Archibald, was born in Truro,

October, 1791. He was married to Martha Stewart, of Halifax,

March 12th, 1815, and shortly after this they removed from Truro to

Country Harbor, where he carried on a considerable business, was

Justice of the Peace, and remained there during the remainder of his

life. He died in May, 185^, aged 61 years. They had one son,

whose name is John Steel Archibald. He was born December 25th,

1815. He was married to IsabeU Liswell. He resides in Halifax,

and follows the sfta occasionally. Charles Archibald's wife, Martha,

died shortly after she had her first son, and he was married again to

Margaret Stewart, about the year 1827. David, their eldest son, was

born May 5th, 1830. He was killed in Wisconsin,.April 30th, 1850,

in the twentieth year of his age. The following is from the " Water-

town Chronicle," Jefferson County, Wis. :

—

'^^ Beaver Dam, MarcJi 1, 1850.

"Friend Hadley,—Permit me, through the columns of your

paper, to return the warmest thanks of the mourners of a beloved

brother, to those who kindly attended the funeral of my brother,,

David Archibald, who lately met with a sudden death. Yesterday

morning he was as strong in health and life as he ever was, but about

9 o'clock, a. m., he was taken from life's circle in a moment of time.

They were raising a mill about eight miles from this village, and in

the act of raising one of the bents, they had attached to the end of the

takle a log chain, so that, if needed, a j)air of oxen could be used.

However, they had it nearly secured, when it is supposed the deceased

took hold of the wrong part of 'the rope, and unwound it from the

stump to which it was made fast, and sooner than thought, it went,

carrying him in an instant about five rods—dashing his head and

breast against the lower part of the mill. He xievur moved, but only
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gave a few faint breathings. It is supposed that the hook on the

chain caught his right arm, as it was torn though above the elbow and

broken. The Sons of Temperance turned out in procession, numbering

about 42, some of them coming ten miles at a moment's warning, to

bestow the last kind offices to a young brother of the order. The

whole was conducted by our respected W. P., Henry "W. Finch, in a

solemn and respectable manner. And I can do no other than to say,

in the midst of grief we were surrounded by all kindness and love.

Our meeting house was crowded, and our devoted pastor, Eev. A.

Montgomery, addressed us from xxvii Prov. 1st v. I therefore trust that

the deep interest felt on our part by the truly worthy citizens of

Beaver Dam, may never be erased from our hearts. And it would

have done your heart good to have seen the sons of the division, old

men and sires, wearing the badge of respect for a brother. Oh ! may

they be an ornament to their sex and a beacon to the injured, and so

walk worthy of their order below, that finally we may all meet

together around the throne of our God, through the precious blood of

cnir Lord and Savior Jesus Christ, is the fervent desire of their brother

and ever humble Servant, •M. Sellars."

Isabell, their eldest daughter, was born February, 1828. She was

married to Mr. Sellars. They removed to the United States. Charles,

their second son, was born August 9th, 1836. Henry, their third son,

was born September 12th, 1838. Martha, their youngest daughter,

was born in June, 1840. She was married to Eobert Murray, of

Halifax. Lewis, the youngest son, was born January 30th, 1843.

David Archibald, ninth, the third son of David and Esther

Archibald, was born in Truro, February, 1793. He was married to

Eebecca, daughter of George Spencer and Eebecca Denny, his wife,

November 4th, 1818. Matilda, their eldest daughter, was born in

Truro, December 25th, 1819. She was married to Alexander M.

Baird, of Onslow, February 29th, 1848. They have one son and one

daughter. Jane, the second daughter of David and Eebecca Archibald,

was born March 2nd, 1821. She was married to Peter Cameron, of

Lochbroom, Pictou, October 30th, 1848. They have three sons and

four daughters. Alexander Hanley, the eldest son of David and

Eebecca Archibald, was born October 14th, 1822. He was married

to Esther, daughter of Jacob Lynds and Eleanor Archibald, his wife,.

April 13th, 1853. Blanchard, their eldest son, was born in Truro,

March 29th, 1854. Eebecca, their eldest daughter, was born May
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13th, 1856. Eleanor, their second daughter, was born October 7th,

1857. George, their second son, was born April 9th, 1859. Jacob,

their third son, was born December 14th, 1863. Allen, their fourth

son, was born December 4th, 1865. He died July 23rd, 1867.

Jane, their third daughter, was born August 16th, 1868. Martha,

their fourth daughter, was born August 16th, 1870. George, the

second son of David and Eebecca Archibald, was born in the year

1825. He died a bachelor, April 4th, 1852, aged 27 years. IS'ancy,

the third daughter of David and Rebecca Archibald, was born in the

month of January, 1828. She was married to Alexander Kent, third,

August 10th, 1854. They had two sons and iive daughters. Mrs.

Kent died March 4th, 1866. IMary, the fourth daughter of David

and Rebecca Archibald, was born in Truro, September 13th, 1830.

She was married to Henry, son of the late William Cotton and Nancy

Baird, his wife, October 15th, 1856. They have one son and one

daughter. Catherine, their fifth daughter, was born September 21st,

1832. Esther, thek sixth daughter, was born September 27th, 1837.

She was married to Matthew, son of Matthew and Elizabeth Taylor,

March 24th, 18i8. They have one daughter. Alice, the second

daughter of David and Esther Arcliibald, was born in Truro in the

month of February, 1797. She was married to John Ryan July 2nd,

1820. They had one son and two daughters. John Ryan, their son,

has been a Conductor on the cars smce they first ran to Truro.

Jolin, the fourth and youngest son of David and Esther Archibald,

was born March 8th, 1799. He was married to N"ancy, the youngest

daughter of John Christie and Nancy Denny, April 16th, 1832.

Henry, their eldest son, was born August 19th, 1833. He died

October 5th, 1834. Nancy Christie, their eldest daughter, was bom
November 4th, 1836. She was married to James Pitblado, August

18th, 1863. They have one son and one daughter. Charles Henry,

the second son of John and Nancy Archibald, was born August 8th,

1839. He is in California. Esther, their second daughter, was born

February 15th, 1842. She was married to Hugh McDormond,

November 30th, 1869. Richard the third and youngest son of John

and Nancy Archibald, was born in Truro July 15th, 1844. He was

married to Eleanor, second daughter of Charles and Jane Clmstie,

December 18th, 1872. Sarah, their youngest daughter, was born

September 22nd, 1846. David Archibald, fourth, died July 11th,

1830, aged 68 years, and his wife, Esther Cox, died November 13th,

1837, aged 73 years.
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Eebecca, wife of David Archibald, ninth, died July. 15th, 1870.

John, son of David and Esther Archibald, died August 23rd, 1869,

aged 70 years. Martha, the third daughter of David and Esther

Archibald, was born October 17th, 1801. She was married to

Jonathan Blanchard, November 2nd, 1837. They had one son and

one daughter; they both died young. Mr. Blanchard died ]\Iay 31st,

1843, and his widow was married again to Isaac Logan, December

5th, 1854. Mr. Logan died March 11th, 1872, aged 87 years.

Eleanor, the youngest daughter of David and Esther Archibald, was

born September 15th, 1804. She was married to Jacob Lynds,

March 12th, 1828. They had one son and four daughters.

William, the third son of Thomas and Janet Archibald, was born

in Truro, March 4th, 1765. He was married- to Martha Denny, of

Londonderry, February 17th, 1791. He settled on the farm on which

James Johnson now resides. He then removed to the farm that his

grandson, John C. Archibald, now lives upon, about the year 1812.

Here he spent the remainder of his life, and died in the month of

July, 1836, and his wife died December 11th, 1858. Janet, their

eldest daughter, was born in Truro, July 27th, 1795. She was

married to William McDonald, of Pictou. They had two sons and

two daughters, William, the eldest son of William and Martha

Archibald, was born in Truro, January 22nd, 1798. He died a

bachelor, April 24th, 1859. John D., their second son, was born

December 15th, 1799. He died when he was young. Eebecca, their

second daughter, was born IMarch 15th, 1801. She died when she

was young. David Taylor, the second son of William and Matthew

Archibald, was born in Truro, May 19th, 1802. He was married to

Eleanor, the only daughter of Thomas Taylor and Lucy Hoar, his

wife, August 13th, 1830. They settled on the farm which was owned

by her father, Thomas Taylor, where they reared their family and

spent the remainder of their lives. He died January 12, 1862, aged

59 years, and his wife died April' 1st, 1854, aged 46 years. JSTancy,

their eldest daughter, was born in Truro, November 18th, 1830. She

was married to Alexander L., eldest son of S. G. W. and Susan

Archibald, September 27th, 1859. They have two daughters.

Martha, the second daughter of David T. and Eleanor Archibald,

was born in Truro, February 20th, 1832. Lucy, their third daughter,

was born April 18th, 1834. She was married to David, the only son

of Jacob and Eleanor Lynds, May 6th, 1857. William F., the only

son of David T. and Eleanor Archibald, was born in Truro May 1st,
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1836. He was married to Catherine Carlyle, of Onslow Mountain,

September 21st, 1865. Lucy Eleanor, their eldest daughter, was horn

in Truro, June 28th, 1866. Clara, their second daughter, was born

December 23rd, 1867. Susan Elmira, their third daughter, was born

in Truro, August 2nd, 1870. Susan, the fourth daughter of David T.

and Eleanor Archibald, was born January 29th, 1840. She died

unmarried, JSTovember 17th, 1863, aged 23 years. Mary Jane, their

fifth daughter, was born July 14th, 1844. She was married to John

S., son of David Archibald, tenth, July 25th, 1865. Olivia, their

sixth and youngest daughter, was born in Truro, Il^ovember 22nd,

1849. She was married to William Alexander Miller, December

18th, 1872. Isaac, the youngest son of William and Martha

Archibald, was born April 19th, 1805. He was married to Eebecca,

daughter of John D. and Margaret Christie, ]^ovember 17th, 1836.

John C. their eldest son was born February 25th, 1837. He was

married to Isabell, daughter of John and Susan Creelman, of Stewiacke,

in the month of May, 1867. Martha, eldest daughter of Isaac and

Eebecca Archibald, was born in Truro, August 6th, 1839. She was

married to William Dickson, of Onslow Mountain, December 31st,

1859. They have two daughters and one son. Jessie, the second

daughter of Isaac and Eebecca Archibald, was born April 10th,

1841. She died February 10th, 1864, aged 23 years. Margaret,

their third daughter, was born February 13th, 1844. She was married

to John Yorston, of IS'ew Brunswick, 1866. They have three sons.

WiUiam, the second son of Isaac and Eebecca Archibald, was born

November 11th, 1845. Eleanor, their fourth daughter, was born

October 10th, 1847. _ Janet, their fifth daughter, was born January

24th, 1852. Andrew Christie, their third and youngest son, was bom
July 31st, 1854. ISTancy, the third daughter of William and Martha

Archibald, was born August 27th, 1808. On September 1st, 1871,

she took her dinner in good health, and in about two hours she died.

Mary, their fourth and youngest daughter, was born October 1 2th,

1811.

Margaret, the second daughter of Thomas and Janet Archibald,

was born in Truro, August 13th, 1767. She was married to Samuel,

the youngest son of Samuel Archibald, Senr., and Eleanor Taylor, his

wife, January 13th, 1790. She had three sons and three daughters.

She died January 15th, 1809, aged 42 years. Janet, the third

daughter of Thomas and Janet Archibald, was born in Truro, IMarch

22nd, 1769. She was married to Alexander Cameron, of Pictou.
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They had six sons and one daughter, Elizabeth, their fourth

daughter, was bom April 21st, 1771. She was married to John

Hamilton, October 27th, 1796, They had five sons and three

daughters. They settled in Brookfield, where she died, February 8th,

1831, aged 60 years, and Mr. Hamilton died July 1st, 1835, aged 67

years. Their bodies were interred in the Truro Cemetery.

Martha, the fifth daughter of Thomas and Janet Archibald, was

born May 15th, 1774. She was married to William Blackie, of the

Green Hill of Pictou. She died shortly after they were married.

Eachel, the sixth and youngest daughter of Thomas and Janet

Archibald, was born in Truro, June 10th, 1777. She was married to

George Dill, of Londonderry, May 3rd, 1804. Mr. Dill removed to

Truro, and purchased James Wright's front wood lot, and built his

house on the hill where Mr. Eichard Upham now resides. Here he

spent the remainder of his life. He was the school teacher of the

Village for about twenty-five years. Afterwards he was Registrar of

Deeds and Prothonotary of the Supreme Court. These offices he held

until a short time before his death. Janet, their daughter, was born

in Truro, December 4th, 1806. Rachel, their second daughter, was

born April 17th, 1811. She died in the month of September, 1811.

Mrs. Dill died May 7th, 1811, aged 34 years. He was married again

to Rosannah, the eldest daughter of Michael Tucker and Mary Moore,

his wife, January 31st, 1815. Robert, their eldest son, was born

December 29 th, 1815. He died of consumption, December 25th,

1842, aged 27 years. Rachel, their daughter, was born March 29th,

1817. She died of consumption, November, 1847. William Hill,

their second son, was born February 12 th, 1819. He started to go to

Boston for the benefit of his health, and was lost in the ill-fated

brigantine " Enterprise." Mary, their second daughter, was born in

Truro, July 17th, 1820. She was married to WiUiam, son of Thomas

McCollum and Janet Logan, his wife, of Musquodoboit, I^ovember

22nd, 1838. They had five sons and eight* daughters. Catherine,

the third daughter of George and Rosannah Dill, was born in Truro,

March 14th, 1822, She was married to John Smith, second son of

William C. Eaton and Lucy Smith, his wife, December 17th, 1850,

They had three sons and three daughters. Mr. Eaton died June 5th,

1865, aged 37 years. His widow, died February 22nd, 1872,

Margaret, their fourth daughter, was born December 27th, 1823.

She was married to Samuel J. Fulton, of Bass River, October, 1860.

They have three sons, George DiU, their third son, was born
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February 12th, 1828. He died of consumption, Deceniljer 22nd,

1845. Eosannah, their fifth and youngest daughter, was horn

October 23rd, 1832. She was married to George Gunn, June 15th,

1853. They had two sons and three daughters. Mrs. Gunn died in

March, 1866, aged 34 years, and Mr. Gunn was married again to

Emma Clark, October 24th, 1868. Mr. DiU died January 4th, 1854,

aged 77 years. Mrs. DiU died January, 1853, aged 66 years.

(2>^ig^^

CHAPTEE VI.

Matthew Taylor, Senr., came from Kew England to ^Nova Scotia,

in company with his brothers-in-law, Messrs. ArcMbald, and others,

who arrived at Fort Belcher December 13th, 1762. He was born in.

Londonderry, ]^. H., October 30th, 1727. He was married to

Elizabeth Archibald before they came to ISTova Scotia. He was one

of the Grantees of Truro Townshij), and had his front land lying between

Isaac N. Archibald's and the South line of Onslow. His house stood

on the liiU west of John E. Archibald's house. Here he reared a"

numerous family. He died at the house of Mr. David Dickey, on the

Halifax road, south side of Stewiacke River, when he was on his way
to Halifax. He died January 22nd, 1796, aged 68 years. His widow
was taken by her sons to St. Mary's, and died there about the year

1810. She was buried on a small Island in the Lake, a short distance

up the East Eiver of St. Mary's, above the forks.

. John Taylor, their eldest son, was born in ^N'ew Hampshire, June

2nd, 1752, and was brought by his parents to Truro, when he was ten

years old. His name is among the grantees of the Township, although

he was only in his fourteenth year at the time. His front lot was

adjoining his father's land, and he inherited his father's farm. About
the year 1802 he sold his farm in Truro, and removed to St. ]\Iary's,

and settled on an interval farm at the forks, being the same on which

the Eev. Mr. Pitblado and the Messrs. Archibald now reside. In the

year 1812 he sold his farm there to Alexander M. Archibald, and

removed up the East Eiver, and died there. He was married to

Nancy, the eldest daughter of Samuel Archibald, Senr., and Eleanor

Taylor, his wife. They had three sons and five daughters.

James, the second son of Matthew and Elizabeth Taylor, was born
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in ^""ew HampsBire in the year 1754, and jvas brought by his parents

to Truro when eight years old. He was married to Eebecca Bartlett.

They removed to Majorfield, ITew Brunswick, and carried on farming

there very extensively. He had his barn so constructed that he could

unload a ton of hay from his cart into the mow in a minute and a half.

Matthew, the third son of Matthew and Elizabeth Taylor, was bom
in ]^ew Hampshire June 28th, 1755, seven years before they came to

Truro. He was married to Rebecca, daughter of James Archibald, Senr.

,

February 6th, 1783. John Archibald, their eldest son, was bom in

Truro February 9th, 1784. James, their second son, was born

February 19th, 1786. Matthew, their third son, was born June 16th,

1787. David, their fourth son, was bom October 22nd, 1788.^

Elizabeth, their daughter, was born March 2nd, 1790. Mr. Taylor

settled on the farm on which the late John D. Cliristie lived and

died. He had a Saw Mill about half a mile up the brook. He and

his family removed to Oliio, United States, about the year 1792.

David, the fifth son of Matthew and Elizabeth Taylor, was born

about the year 1760. He was settled on the farm on which William

T. Archibald now resides. On January 15th, 1799, when he was

chopping in the woods, a large limb feU from the tree and struck him

on the head. He was found dead. He was married to Eleanor

Archibald in the year, 1783. Janet, their eldest daughter, was born

in Truro, August 19th, 1784. She was married to Adam McKeen, of

St. Mary's, August 15th, 1805. They had four sons and four

daughters. Thonias, the eldest son of David and Eleanor Taylor, was

born April 26th, 1786. He inherited his father's farm, and was

married to Lucy, daughter of Ebenezer and Catherine Hoar, of

Onslow, October 6th, 1807. Their only daughter, Eleanor, was bora

August 3rd, 1808. She was married to David T. Archibald, and h^
one son and six daughters. On the 3rd of January, 1809, Thomas

Taylor and his brother Matthew were in the woods together. In

chopping down a tree it fell upon Thomas and killed him. Matthew

ran home with the sad tidings to his wife. She ran, with her child,

five months old, in her arms, and was the first on the spot. She

removed the hat, in which was the brains of her husband. The scene

may be more easily imagined than described. His widow was married

again to David, the second son of William and Ann McKeen, and

they had two sons and one daughter. Elizabeth, the second daughter

of David and Eleanor Taylor, was born in Truro, July 31st, 1788.

She was married to William, son of Gavin Johnson. WiUiam
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Joknson "built the hoiise, and lived in it some time, which is now

owned by John Hattie, of Salmon Eiver. He removed to Ohio,

United States, about the year 1815. Matthew, the youngest son of

David and Eleanor Taylor, was born in Truro, May ,29th, 1791. He
was married to Elizabeth, daughter of Ebenezer and Catherine Hoar,

of Onslow, April 1st, 1813. Eleanor, their eldest daughter, was born

in Truro, April 18th, 1814. She was married to "William McLeod, of

Bible Hill, May 21st, 1855. Susan, their second daughtex, was born

October 27th, 1818. She was married to Charles Blackie, of New
Annan, October 22nd, 18-1:4. They had three sons and one daughter.

She died March 27th, 1859. Thomas, the eldest son of Matthew and

Elizabeth Taylor, was born June 16th, 1821. He was married to

Susan, daughter of Benjamin Lynds, of iSTorth River, March 27th,

1863. George L., their eldest son, was born in Truro, December 31st,

1863. Thomas B., their second son, was born March 27th, 1865.

Catherine, the third daughter of Matthew and Elizabeth Tajdor, was

born October 10th, 1824. James, their second son, was born April

2nd, 1829. He Avas married to Elizabeth Watson, ISTovember 16th,

1854. They had one son. Mrs. Taylor died January 19th, 1856, and

he was married again to Margaret Miller, of New Annan, February

23rd, 1864. Matthew, the youngest son of Matthew and Elizabeth

Taylor, was born May 27th, 1831. He was married to Esther, daugh-

ter of David Archibald 9th, and Eebecca Spencer, his wife, March

24th, 1868. Bessie, their daughter, was born January 5th, 1869,

Eleanor, the youngest daughter of David and Eleanor Taylor, was born

in Truro May 2nd, 1796. She was married to Charles Hall of Hali-

fax. They had one son and one daughter. Mr. Hall died some time

ago, and she was married again to Martin Murphy of Maitland. Mar-

garet, daughter of Matthew Taylor, Senr., and Elizabeth Archibald,

was born in Truro July 12th, 1763, being the next summer after they

came to Nova Scotia. She died young.

Samuel, the sixth son of Matthew Taylor, Senr., and Elizabeth

Archibald, was born in Truro February 17th, 1765. He was-married,

and had a family of children. He was one of the eight who settled

first in Upper Stewiacke in the spring of the year 1784. Shortly

after, he removed to Ohio, United States. Eobert, the fourth son of

Matthew and Elizabeth Taylor, was born in New Hampshire about

the year 1757, and was brought by his parents to Nova Scotia in De-

cember, 1762. He was married to Mehetabel Wilson of Chiganoise

December 6th, 1781 ; they had two sons and three daughters. He
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tought the mill whicli stood then between the ISTorth Eiver bridge and
James McxS"utt's shop, from Simeon Howard (who first built it). He
afterwards sold out and removed to Ohio, United States.

Archibald, the seventh son of Matthew and Elizabeth Taylor, was
born in Truro December 28th, 1766. He was married to Jane, the

eldest daughter of William and Mary Blair of JSTorth Eiver. She died

shortly after they were married. He removed to St. Mary's and was
married again to Mary McDonald of Pictou ; they had three sons and
two daughters. He died suddenly, at St. Mary's, about the year 1837,

aged 70 years. Elizabeth, the second daughter of Matthew and
Elizabeth Taylor, was born in Truro February 28th, 1769. She was

married to Gain, son of Eichard Bartlett ; they had one son and one

daughter. Gain Bartlett was born in Truro, June 28th, 1764; he

was married, and had two children. When driving home a load of

wood one day, he fell from the sled in front of the runner. The team

stopped, and when he was found the sled was on his body, and he was

dead.

William, the eighth and youngest son of Matthew and Elizabeth

Taylor, was born in Truro November 7th, 1771, He was married to

Margaret, daughter of Alexander McCurdy of Onslow ; they had one

son and three daughters. Mrs. Taylor died when her children were

all young. Their son's name was Daniel Taylor. He was married to

a daughter of William Lynds of !N"orth Eiver, and had a family of

children. They removed to Illinois, United States, about the year

1835. Elizabeth, the daughter of William and Margaret Taylor, was

married to Eobert Blair of Korth Eiver. Her family appears among

the Blair families. WUliam Taylor removed to St. Mary's, was mai-

ried again, and had a family of children. About the year 1840 ^e

was chopping in the woods at Sherbrooke, and was killed by the fall-

ing of a tree. Matthew Taylor, Senr. , was the second son of Matthew

and Janet Taylor, who came from Londonderry, Ireland, to London-

derry, N. H., in the year 1722.

CHAPTEE VII.

James Dunlap was one of the first settlers, and a Grantee of Truro

Township. His front land was in the Lower Village, his house stood

near the place that his grandson, Isaac Dunlap's house, now stands.
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He was marriecTto Mary, daugliter of Lieut. John Johnson, of the

Lower Village, December 6th, 1763. It is said that this was the first

marriage in Tniro after its settlement by the English. Sarah, their

eldest daughter, was born in Triu'o January 6th, 1765. She was mar-

ried to William, son of James and Ann Fulton of the Lower Village,

in the year 1783. Their family appears among the Fiolton families;

they had seven sons and seven daughters. James, the eldest son of

James and Mary Dunlap, was born in Truro January 26th, 1767. He

was married -to Jane, one of the twin daughters of William and Janet

Kennedy, about the year 1794. He removed and settled on the east

side of the South Branch of Stewiacke. Some of his grandsons now

reside there. They had two sons and one daughter. He died there in

the month of October, 1809, aged 42 years. William, their eldest

son, was married to Eachel, daughter of Hugh and Elizabeth E. Logan,

December 12th, 1816. James, their eldest son, was born July 21st,

1818. John Duncan, the second son, was born August 24, 1820.

He was married to Sarah, daughter of George and Elizabeth Mc-

Naught, in 1847 ; they have two sons and eight daughters. Thomas,

their third son, was born December 7th, 1822. He was married to

Sarah, daiaghter of WiUiam McKutt and Mary Johnson, his wife,

March 31st, 1845; they had five sons and four daughters. Hugh,

their fourth son, was born January 4th, 1825. He was married to

ISTancy, daughter of WiUiam K. Gammel March 2nd, 1856 ; they had

three sons and two daughters. IVIrs. Dunlap died January 3rd, 1866,

and he was married again to Clara, daughter of James Hamilton of

Middle Stewiacke, February 28th, 1867 ; they have one daughter.

Elizabeth, the eldest daughter of WiUiam and Eachel Dunlap, was

born October 16th, 1827. She was married to Hans HamUton, and

has two sons and four daughters. She died June 30th, 1865. WiUiam,

their fifth son, was born May 15th, 1830. Charles, their sixth son,

was born December 7th, 1832. Mary, their daughter, was born in

1835. She was married to Eobert Geddes in 1859. They have

two sons and four daughters. WiUiam Dunlap died August, 1867,

and his wife died N'ovember, 1838.

James, the son of James Dunlaj) and Jane Kennedy, was born in

Stewiacke December 4th, 1797. He inlierited a part of his father's

farm, and resided upon it untU the time of his death, which took place

very suddenly, I^ovember 16th, 1859. He was married to Elizabeth,

daughter of Timothy Putnam and Janet Hunter, his wife, i'ebruary,

1820. James, their son, was born April 14th, 1821, and Mrs. Dunlap
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died tlie same day. James Dunlap, Jun., was married to Mary,

daughter of John Cox and Margaret Creehnan, his wife, February 4th,

1846 ; they have two daughters. James Dunlap, Senr., was married

again to Christiann Aikins, March, 1828. "William, their eldest son,

was born June 1 1th, 1824. He was married to Eleanor Murray Janu-

ary 18th, 1847, and they have two sons and three daughters. Jane

and Elizabeth, twin daughters of James and Christiann Dunlap, were

born March 9th, 1826. Jane was mariied to William Gourley in the

month of November, 1847 ; they had three sons and five daughters.

Elizabeth was married to John, the eldest son of John and Margaret

Cox, and they had one son. Mr. Cox died suddenly, and she was

married again to James, son of Robert and IMary Tupper ; they had

three sons, and Mr. Tupper died a few years ago. Margaret, the third

daughter of James and Christiann Dunlap, was born in the year 1828,

and died unmarried. Mary, their fourth daughter, was born October

11th, 1829. She was married to Charles Cox, and had one son and

one daughter. Mrs. Cox died July 22nd, 1869. Samuel Tupper

Dunlap, their second son, was born November, 19th, 1831. He was

married to Hannah Creelman, in the month of I^ovember, 1854.

They have four daughters. Eobert, their third son, was bom January

9th, 1834. He was married to Margaret Creelman, March 21st, 1861.

They have two sons and four daughters. Eachel, their fifth daughter,

was born February 15th, 1836. She was married to Eobert Jeffers,

and has five sons and two daughters. Susan, their sixth daughter,

was born June 28th, 1838. She was married to Jotham B. Cox,

and has one son and three daughters. Eleanor, their seventh

daughter, was born October 15th, 1841. She was married to George

Eussel Cox, and has two sons and two daughters. Jolxn, their fourth

son, was born June 12th, 1843, He was married to Esther Creelman,

daughter of Samuel Ashmore Creelman and Eleanor Cox, his wife,

February 28th, 1871. She died 1872. Margaret Ann, their eighth

daughter, was born October 12th, 1849. Mrs. Christiann Dunlap died

July, 1872.

Mary, the only daughter of James Dunlap and Jane Kennedy,

was bom March 21st, 1799. She was married to Eobert Tupper in

1820. Their family appears among the Tuppers. Mary, the second

daughter of James and Mary Dunlap, was born in Truro, October

25th, 1768. She was married to Samuel, son of James and Ann
Fulton, of the Lower Village of Truro. They removed to Upper
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Stewiacke. She liad one son. She died December, 1790, aged 22

years.

John, the second son of James and Mary Dunlap, was born in

Truro, April 22nd, 1770. He was married to Martha, daughter of

William and Dorothy Putnam, of Stewiacke, March llth, 1802,

They resided on the farm on which the Messrs. N'otting now reside,

in the Lower Village of Truro, until about the year 1808, when they

removed to the farm on the West side of the South Meadow, in

Stewiacke. He died there, February 15th, 1848, aged 78 years.

The writer saw and conversed with his widow, then in good health,

on July 8th, 1871. Mary, their eldest daughter, was born in Truro,

January 14th, 1803. She was married to Benjamin Tupper, Esq.,

February 19th, 1822, and had three sons. Dorothy, their second

daughter, was born in Truro, November 19th, 1804, She was married

to Daniel Smith YuHl, of Clifton, February llth, 1830. They had

one son and four daughters. She died at Clifton, November 17th,

1857. Sarah, their third daughter, was born January 24th, 1807.

She was married to William, the fifth son of William and Mary Cox,

of Stewiacke, February 15th, 1827. They had four sons and four

daughters. She died May 10th, 1855, in the 49th year of her age.

James, the eldest son of John and Martha Dunlap, was born September

20th, 1809. He was married to Lydia, daughter of John Goui-ley and

Elizabeth Tupper, his wife, January 18, 1832. They had two children,

and they both died when they were young. Susannah, the fourth

daughter of John and Martha Dunlap, was bom June 15th, 1812.

She was married to Wdliam Gammel, Esq., March 30th, 1844. They

had one son and one daughter. Mr. Gammel died August 21st, 1848,

and she was married again to Barry Hamilton, January 15th, 1850.

They had two daughters. She died December 29th, 1860. William,

their second son, was born February 27th, 1815. He was married to

Martha, daughter of Eobert Fisher and Mary Cox, his wife, February

9th, 1841. He inherits a large part of his father's farm, and lives in

the house that his father built about the year 1825. Martha, the

fifth daughter of John and Martha Dunlap, was born May 18th, 1819.

She was married to William McCulloch, and had one son. She died

May 28th, 1847. Lydia, their sixth daughter, was bom August 30th,

1821. She was married to Putnam O'Brien, and had two sons and

four daughters. They removed to the United States. She died

August, 1859, aged 38 years.

Adam Johnson, the third son of James and Mary Dunlap, was
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\)orn June 20th, 1771. He was married to Eleanor, daughter of John

Archibald, second, and Margaret Fisher. He settled first between

Stewiacke and Musquodoboit, the same place on which Alexander

Stewart lived and died. After this he removed to the farm on which

his son James' widow now resides, which is situated West of the

Halifax road, near Johnson's Crossing. He died there May 25th,

1808, aged 37 years. Mary, their eldest daughter, was born about

the year 1796. Her father and mother both died when she was

young, and she was taken by her uncle Archibald to Musquodoboit.

She was married there to WiUiam Dean. They had four sons and

four daughters. She died April, 1667, aged 71 years. Mr. Dean

died about the year 1861. John the eldest sou of Adam J. and

Eleanor Dunlap, was bom March, 1798, and, after the death of his

father and mother, he and his brother James and sister Ruth were

taken to their grandfather Dunlap's, and taken care of. He was

married to Jane, the eldest daughter of Captain William Cock, widow

of the late William Ross, December 1st, 1825, They had two sons

and four daughters. The sons, Thomas and Henry, are now doing

business in Amherst. The daughters' names are Eleanor, Anner,

Elizabeth, and Jane. Anner and Elizabeth are both dead. About the

year 1830, he purchased the house which was built by Eliakim

Tapper, Esq.. and he resided in it the remainder of his life. In the

year 1831 he built a store, which is now occupied as a printing office,

and carried on business as a merchant until th^e time of his death. In

April, 1842, he went to St. John, N". B., on business, and he there

took ill and died. May 1st, 1842, aged 44 years. His body was

brought home and interred in the Truro Cemetery.

James, the second son of Adam and Eleanor Dunlap, was bom
Jfovember 19th-, 1800, He was married to Hannah, daughter of

Thomas and Jane Gourley, March 16th, 1826, He inherited his

father's farm, where he died March 5th, 185€, aged 55 years. Eleanor,

their daughter, was born January 7th, 1827. She was married to

John, son of Benjamin Tupper, Esq., and Mary Dunlap, December

31st, 1850. They have six sons and two daughters. They now
reside on the South side of MHsquodobwt River., on the farm that was

originally John Archibald's, Hugh^ the -only son of James and

Hannah Dunlap, was bom November 8th, 1828. He died a bachelor,

January 27th, 1869, aged 40 years. Ruth, the second and youngest

"daughter of Adam J, and Eleanor Dunlap, was bom in the year 1802,

She was married to Timothy, son of Timothy Putnam and Janet
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Hunter, liis wife, February 14th, 1828. They had six song

and six daughters. She died August 7th, 1851, aged 49 years. Mr.

Dunlap's first wife, Eleanor, died about the year 1803, and he was

married again to Elizabeth, daughter of WiUiam and Janet Kennedy,

widow of the late James Dickey, of Stewiacke, Sept. 28th, 1805.

Hugh, the fourth son of James and Maty Dunlap, was bom in

Truro, April 28th, 177-3. He was married to Susannah, daughter of

Thomas and Jane Gourley, of the Lower Village, Jan'y. 24th, 1805,

They removed to Stewiacke in 1807 and settled at Otter Brook, where

their son Hugh now resides. He died September 6th, 1852, aged 79

years. His wife died I^ovember 22nd, 1857, Aged 74 years,

Catherine, their eldest daughter, was bom May 8th, 1806. She was

married to Eobert H. Smith, March 4th, 1828. They had five sons

and three daughters. Mary, their second daughter, was born Novem-

ber 26th, 1807. She was married to William Chisholm, Esq., of

Wallace Eiver. They had six sons and four daughters. Jane, their

third daughter, was born August 29th, 1809. She was married to

Robert G. Eutherford, Esq., in the month of March, 1838, They

had three sons and four daughters. Sarah, their fourth daughter, was

born April 13th 1813. She was married to Ebenezer Smith, March

12th, 1845. They have one son and four daughters. Margaret, their

fifth daughter, was bom January 24th, 1817. She was married to

Bradford Black of Cumberland, November 9th, 1843. They have

two sons and five daughters. Hugh, their eldest son, was bom
January 14th, 1819. He inherits his flither's farm, holds a commis-

sion of the Peace, and is an elder of the Presbyterian Church. He
was married to Eliza M,, daughter of Captain David Archibald and

Elizabeth Kent his wife, November 7th, 1847. They had one son

and two daughters. She died April 26th, 1854, aged 32 years. He
was married again to Margaret, daughter of John D. Christie and

Margaret Johnson, April 14th 1856. They had four sons and two

daughters. Mrs. Dunlaji died May 11th, 1869. He was married

again to Eliza Baxter, June 27th, 1871. Susannah, their sixth

daughter, was bom May 13th, 1822. She was married to Eddy

Tupper November 9th, 1847. They have two sons and four

daughters. James Thomas, the second and youngest son of Hugh and

Susan Dunlap, was bom April 17th, 1824. He was married to

Agnes, daughter of Andrew Creelman and Susan Johnson, June 20th,

1848. They have five sons and five daughters.

Eachel, the third daughter of James and Mary Dunlap, was born
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January 25th, 1776. She was married to Samuel Tupper, Esq., of

Upper Stewiacke in the year 1793. They had seven sons and five

daughters. Slie diedj June 9th, 1852, aged 67 years. Samuel

Tupper, Esq., died August 29th, 1831, aged 67 years.

Thomas, the fifth son of James and Mary Dunlap, was born

February, 28th, 1778. He resided near the same place that Thomas

Dunlap now resides, in the Lower Village of Truro. He died a

bachelor September 7th, 1862, aged 84 years.

Samuel, the sixth and youngest son of James and Mary Dunlap,

was born in the year 1782. He was married to Mary, daughter of

Isaac Miller and Elizabeth Dickey, February 11th, 1813. He in-

herited a part of his father's farui, and lived in the same house with

his father for some time, and then built the house in which his son

Isaac now lives, where he spent the remainder of his life. He died

March 2nd, 1850, aged 68 years, and his wife died January 12th

1861, aged 77 years. Adam, their eldest son, was born March 24th,

1814. He was married to Eebecca, daughter of Samuel and Ifancy

Blair, March, , 1837. They had two sons and one daughter. Mrs,

Dunlap died December 21st, 1855, aged 39, and he was married

again to Amelia, daughter of James D. and Esther Blair, February,

1857. Elizabeth, the eldest daughter of Samuel and Mary Dunlap,

was born o^ovember 5th, 1815. She was married to Daniel C, fourth

son of William and Esther Smith, December 17th, 1834. They have

seven sons and four daughters. She died December 18th, 187L

James, the second son of Samuel and Mary Dunlap, was born October

30th, 1817. He died September 11th, 1819. Sarah, their second

daughter, was born April 27th, 1819. She was married to Jacob,

son of William Frieze and Janet D. Miller, August, , 1840,

Isaac, their third son, was born in Truro, August 10th, 1820. He
was married to Susannah, eldest daughter of Eobert H and Catherine

Smith, February 10th, 1854. They have two sons and four

daughters. He is one of the elders of the Presbyterian Church,

Nancy, the third daughter of Samuel and Mary Dunlap, was born

June 29th, 1822. She was married to John M., eldest son of David

H. Crowe and IMary Smith, May, , 1851. They had one son and

three daughters. Mary, the fourth daughter of Samuel and Mary

Dunlap, was born in Truro, May 15th, 1824. She was married to

James, the only son of Alexander Kent, Esq., and Jean Christie,

June , 1858. They have one son and two daughters. James

Dunlap, Senr., died December 5th, 1832, aged 92 years, and his wife
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died May 22nd, 1823, aged 85 years. It may here be observed tliat

their fifth son, Thomas Dunlap, went to the United States, and

travelled as far as Ohio. He returned home about the year 1814, and

built a large truck waggon, the first that was buUt in Truro. It was.

first driven to Halifax, with a team of five horses by Barnabas.

McQueen, who lived then in the Lower Village of Truro.

There was a Thomas Dunlap among the first settlers of Truro.

He was a Grantee of the Township, we know nothing of his decend-

ants, it is said that he got discouraged in the settlement of a new

country, and returned to the United States. Sarah, daughter of

Thomas and Elizabeth Dunlap was born in Truro, March 11th,

1763-

Q^^Zj'^

CHAPTEE YIII,

Janet Logan, her two sons, and three daughters, with their

families, came from Londonderry", Ireland, to iN'ova Scotia in the year

1760, and were among the first settlers of Truro. She was one of the

Grantees of the Township. John, her eldest son, was born in 1727.

He was one of the Grantees of Truro, and had his front lands where his

grandsons "William and David now reside. His house stood quite

near the spot on which David Logan's house now stands. He was

married before he came to ]^ova Scotia, or very shortly after. Their

eldest son, Eobert, was born in Truro, May 6th, 1763. He was

married to Eleanor, daughter of William Fisher and Eleanor Archi-

bald, about the year 1788, and removed to Upper Stewiaeke. John,

their eldest son, was born January I'&th, 1789. They had another

son who died when a few months old. Mrs Logan died 1792. He
was married again to Elizabeth, daughter of James and Ann Fidton,

widow of John Johnson, in 1801. Janet, their only daughter, was

bom April , 1802. Edward, their only son, was bom February

13th, 1804. Mrs. Robert Logan died February 20th, 1827, and he

died December 31st, 1833, aged 70 years.

John, the eldest son of Eobert and Eleanor Logan, was married to

Ann, third daughter of James and Ann Johnson, of Middle Stewiaeke,

December 17th, 1813. He inherited one half of his father's farm, on

>vhich he reared the IbUowing family, seven sans and two daughters.
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Robert, the eldest son, was born April 23rd, 1815, He was married

to Nancy E., daughter of William O'Brien and Anna Putnam, of

!N'oel, February 7th, 1841. They have seven sons and two daughters

living, and one son dead. They reside in Halifax. He is an elder in

the Presbyterian Church.

Jane, the eldest daughter of John and Ann Logan, was born June

12th 1817. She was married to George, son of James and Elizabeth

Guild, of Musquodoboit, February 15th, 1841. They had eight sons

and five daughters. They now reside in Pembroke.

James A., the second son, was born July 27th, 1819. He was

married to Catherine, third daughter of John B. and Catherine

Archibald of Truro, October 1st, 1844. They had three sons and

four daughters. He was an elder in the Presbyterian Chvirch. He
died Sept 17th, 1869, aged 50 years.

William, their third son, was born April 20th, 1821. He was

married to Mary Ann, the eldest daughter of Eobert and Margaret

Archibald, of Truro, October 11th, 1845. They have seven sons and

two daughters. He is an elder in the Presbyterian Church.

Adam, the fourth son, was born December 24th, 1822. He was

married to Eliza Jane, youngest daughter of John B. and Catherine

Archibald, of Truro, October 26th, 1847. They have three sons and

three daughters. They reside in Halifax; he is engaged in City

Mission work.

Andrew and Edward, twins, were born June 27th, 1824. Andrew
was married to Martha, daughter of William Cox and Sarah Dunlap,

October 20th, 1853. They have four sons and three daughters.

Edward was married to Mary Fulton, of Bass Eiver, widow of

Jolm Johnson, June , 1861. They have one son. She died

December 14th, 1871. He was married again to Margaret, daughter

of Robert Archibald, Truro, March 20th, 1873.

Samuel Johnson Logan, the youngest son, was born November

24th, 1826. He was married to Ann, davighter of William and

Jerusha Fulton, April 27th, 1858. They have four sons and one

daughter. He inherits his father's farm. He is an elder in the

Presbyterian Church.

Mary, the youngest daughter, was born February 27th, 1829.

Ann, wife of John Logan, died December 18th, 1830, aged 35 years.

He died March 23rd, 1863, aged 74 years.

Janet, the only daughter of Robert Logan and Elizabeth his

second wife, was born in April , 1802. She was married to John,
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son of Matthew Johnson and Euth Fisher, April, 1825. They had

five sons and four daughters. Matthew, their eldest son, was married

to Miss Bryson, of Musquodoboit. He died and left a widow with

six children. Ruth, their eldest daughter, was married to Thomas,

son of David Fulton, Esq., of Bass Eiver. They have a family.

Edward, the second son of John and Janet Johnson, was married to

Alison Miller of Truro. They had four sons. He died in Halifax,

March 20th, 1864. George, the third son, was married to Jane,

daughter of John and Susan Creelman. They lived in Halifax some

time, then removed to Minnesota. John, the fourth son, is married

to Sarah, daughter of George and Mary Ann Fulton, of Bass Eiver,

They now reside at Great Village Londonderry. Alexander, the young-

est son, is married, and lives in Onslow. The other sisters' names

are Elizabeth, Margaret Ann, and Sarah Jane.

Edward, only son of Eobert and Elizabeth Logan, was born

February 13th, 1804. He was married to Janet, eldest daughter of

James and Elizabeth Guild, of Musquodoboit. He removed from

Stewiacke to Musquodoboit. Elizabeth, their eldest daughter, was

married to Eobert Bryden. They had a family, and removed to

Minnesota. Margaret, the second daughter, was married to ISIr.

Tregidgion. They have two daughters. They now reside at

Montague, Gold diggings. Eobert, the only son of Edward and

Janet Logan was married to Susan, the daughter of Alexander and

Catherine Archibald, June, 1842. They have three daughters. They

removed to Minnesota. Mary, their third daughter, Avas killed in

climbing over a log fence. The top log fell across her breast, causing

instant death. Mary, their fourth daughter, died February 7th, 1860,

aged 18 years. Edward Logan died Il^ovember 23rd, 1863, aged 59

years. His widow removed to Minnesota, with her son and daughter.

William, the second son of John and Mary Logan, Avas born in

Truro, November 23rd, 1764. He Avas married to Janet, the second

daughter of Eobert Archibald and Hannah Blair. He settled at

Pembroke, in Upper Stewiacke, for a time, and then remoA'ed to

Middle Musquodoboit. He died in the month of October, 1796, aged

32 years. His body was buried on his own farm. His Avidow was

married again to Alexander McXutt Fisher. They had tAvo sons and

one daughter.

Eobert A., the eldest son of William and Janet Logan, Avas born

December 8th, 1794. He Avas married to Janet Mclnnis, IS^ovember

28th, 1815. Miles Mclnnis, their eldest son, Avas born September
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6tli, 1816. He was married to Agnes Cook, I^ovember, 1841, Tliey

have two sons and one daughter. Mary Mclnnis, the eldest daughter

of Robert A. and Janet Logan, was born January 13th, 1820. She

is married to Eobert A., son of WiUiam Guild and Susan Archibald,

his wife. They have three sons and four daughters. Hannah Ann
Christie, their second daughter, was born May 26th, 1822. She Avas

married to Edward S. Taylor, November 8th, 1842. They have seven

sons and two daughters. "William, their second son, was born May
24th, 1824. He was married to Catherine Danbrack in the year

1850. They have three sons and four daughters. Samuel B. Logan,

their third son, was born March 26th, 1826. He removed to

Boston, U. S., and is married to Jemima Nyman, and has three sons.

Margaret Ann, their third daughter, was born October 28th, 1828.

She was married to John Dickman, May 20th, 1860. They have

four sons and one daughter. Eobert Archibald Logan, their fourth

son, was born July 13th, 1833. He was married to Esther Higgins,

October, 1856. They have two sons. Angus Mclnnis Logan, their

fifth son, was born December 17th, 1830. He was married to Mary

Gladwin, in the month of July, 1852. They have one son and four

daughters. Malcolm Mclnnis Logan, their sixth son, was born July

4th, 1836. He was married to Maria IMcXab, October, 1864. They

have one son and one daughter. Eobert A. Logan's wife, Janet, died

October 17th, 1859, and he was married again to Barbara Shaw, June

14th, 1860. He died August 22nd, 1871, aged 77 years.

Mary, the only daughter of William and Janet Logan, was born

after the death of her father. She was married to Samuel Bryden,

of Musquodoboit, April, 1815. They have seven sons and three

daughters. She died in the year 1857. Esther, the eldest daughter

of John and Mary Logan, was born in Truro, May 26th, 1766. She

was married to "William, fifth son of "William Eisher and Eleanor

Archibald, his wife, February 14th, 1786. Their family appears

among the Fishers.

Janet, the second daughter of John and Mary Logan, was born in

Truro, September 7th, 1770. She was married to "William Murdoch,

They resided for a time in a house which stood near her father's, and

afterwards removed to Pictou Town, where they spent the remainder

of their days. They had four sons ; their names are William, Eev.

John L. Murdoch, of Windsor, James, and Eobert.

Edward, the third son of John and Mary Logan, was born April 28,

1772. He inherited one-half of his father's farm. He -v^-as married to
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Hannah, daughter of John Cutton, of Onslow, January 28th, 1800.

Mary, their eldest daughter, was born in Truro, July 23rd, 1801. She

was married to John Gordon, son of John and Elizabeth ISTelson,

January 12th, 1826. They had one son, whose name was Edward

Logan Nelson. He was bom April 27th, 1827, and was burnt to

death, with four other persons, March 31st, 1841. The house that

was burnt stood on the same corner on which the house now stands

in which Mr. William McCully resides. Mrs. Nelson died of con-

sumption, June 28th, 1829, aged 28 years. Janet Staples, the second

daughter of Edward and Hannah Logan, was born October 13th,

1802. She was married to John Wilson, of Chiganoise. She and

her husband both died of consumption a few years after they were

married, and they left no issue. She died June 24th, 1827. John

and William, twin sons of Edward and Hannah Logan, were born

January 15th, 1804. John removed to Miramichi, and remained

there a few years, until his health failed. His brother William Avent

to assist in getting him home, and he died within a year after of

consumption, July 25th, 1834, aged 30 years. William Logan was

married to Sarah, daughter of Alexander and Eebecca Miller, January

8th, 1829. They had five sons and two daughters. Alexander M.,

their eldest son, was born February 11th, 1830. He died in Cali-

fornia, July 20th, 1852, aged 22 years. John, their second son, was

born May 10th, 1832. He was married to Jane, daughter of James

Kent and Sarah Archibald, his wife, October, 1864. He died

December, 28th, 1865. Edward, their third son, was born April 16th,

1834. He died September 10th, 1836. William E., their son, was

born September 2nd, 1837. He was married to Flora, daughter of

John Dickson and Margaret Kent, his wife, January 1st, 1867, and

had two daughters. Jane, their daughter, was born December 2nd,

1839. She died November 2nd, 1854. Charles, their fifth son, was

born June 1st, 1842. He died August 2nd, 1867. Mary Avas born

December 24th. 1849. She died July 2nd, 1869, in the 20th year of

her age. Eobert, the third son of Edward and Hannah Logan, was

born November 9th, 1805. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter

of Alexander and Eebecca Miller, January 22nd, 1828. Their only

daughter, Hannah, was born November 19th, 1828. She died

October 30th, 1829. Mrs. Elizabeth Logan died February 26th^

1830, aged 23 years, and Eobert Logan died February 3rd, 1831,

aged 25 years. They all died of consumption. Susannah, the third

daughter of Edward and Hannah Logan, was born !^L1rch 8th, 1807.
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She died of consumption, April 7th, 1831, aged 24 years. David,

their fourth son, was horn Apjil 9th, 1809. He was married

to Sarah, daughter of George Conley and Elizaheth Dunn, his

wife, widow of the late Joseph Eussell, March 24th, 1856. They

have six sons. He died December 7th, 1871. Edward, their

fifth son, was born February 13th, 1811. He died March 18th, 1829,

aged 17 years. Hannah, their fourth daughter, was bom October

13th, 1812. She was married to William Conkey. They had one

one son, and she died of consumption shortly after he was born, in

January, 1836 Elisha, their sixth son, was born May 23rd, 1816.

He was married to N'ancy, daughter of Samuel and Sarah Whidden,

May, 1842. They have five sons and two daughters. He died

September 27th, 1870, aged 54 years. His wife died December 27th,

1865, aged 49 years. James Harper Logan, their seventh son, was

bom May 1st, 1820. Esther, their fifth and youngest daughter, was

born July 15th, 1822. She died of consumption, April 19th, 1832,

aged 10 years. Hannah, wife of Edward Logan, died July 1st, 1828,

and he was married' again to Lydia Bishop, widow of the late Samuel

Nichols, of Onslow, October 20th, 1833. He died July 15th, 1859,

aged 87 years.

Mary, the third daughter of John and Mary Logan, was bom in

Truro, April 20th, 1774. She was married to Abner Doggett,

January 30th, 1800. Mr. Doggett built the South part of the house

in which Mr. William Cummings now resides, where he died, January

26th, 1807, aged 32 years. Eebecca, daughter of Abner and Mary

Doggett, was born November 3rd, 1800. She was married to David

Forbes, February 2nd, 1819. They had five sons and five daughters.

She died June 29th, 1848, aged 47 years. John L. Doggett, the only

son of Abner and Mary, was born June 8th, 1805. He was married

to Esther Smith, widow of the late Eobert Pearson, December 4th,

1828. They had five sons and one daughter.

Eleanor, the fourth daughter of John and Mary Logan, was born

November 7th, 1775. She was married to John Smith, of Hants

County, April 25th, 1799. He settled on what was then called the

Townsend farm, the same on which William Eaton, Esq., and others

now reside. He died November 12th, 1810, aged 37 years. His

widoAV died May 26th, 1857, aged 81 years. Lucy, their eldest

daughter, was born March 26th, 1800. She was married to William

C. Eaton, September 27th, 1820. They had seven sons and three

daughters. Isaac Smith, their only son, was born 12th April, 1802*

/
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He was married to Mary "Waddel; Feliruary 23rd, 1823, They had

two sons and four daughters. Mrs. Smith died November, 1838.

Mary Smith was horn July, 1804. She was married to Matthew T.

Smith, 1827. They had four sons and four daughters. They settled

in Pictou. I^ancy Smith was born June 10th, 1808. She was

married to James W. Keeler, April 2nd, 1833. They had one son

and two daughters.

!Nancy the fifth daughter of John and Mary Logan, was born in

Truro, October 31st, 1778. She was married to John McKay, of

Pictou, and had two sons and one daughter. Mary, wife of the said

John Logan, died December, 1778, and he was married again to Ann
FuU, December, 1781. Susannah, the eldest daughter of John and

Ann Logan, was born November 10th, 1783. She was married to

David, son of William and Ann McKeen, in 1811. She died in 1813.

Sarah, the second daughter of John and Ann Logan, was born in

Truro, June 8th, 1785. She was married to Samuel, son of Captain

John McKeen, June 16th, 1803. They had three sons ^and one

daughter. They removed to St Mary's, where they spent the

remainder of their days. She died about the year 18G6. Hannah,

their third daughter, was born April 2nd, 1 788. She was married to

Donald Eraser, of Pictou, and they had six sons and two daughters.

John, the only son ofJohn and Ann Logan, was born April 1 3th, 1790.

He inherited one-half of his father's farm. He sold his farm, and went

to sea a number of years. He sailed from St. John, N. B., in June,

1837. Neither the ship nor any of the crew has since been haard

of John Logan, Senr., died August 15th, 1822, aged 95 years, and

his second wife, Ann, died in the month of April, 1790.

William Logan, brother of John, was another of the first settler

of Truro, and a Grantee of the Township. His front land was the

same that Dr. David B. Lynds recently owned. His house stood on

the same place that the house now stands which belongs to the estate

of the late Dr. Lynds. He was married to Janet Moore (sister of

Hugh Moore, Senr.), before they came to Nova Scotia. Mary, their

eldest daughter, was born January 17th, 1761. She was married to

Daniel McKenzie. Janet, the daughter of Daniel and Mary Mc-

Kenzie, was born in Truro, March 12th, 1785. Mrs. McKenzie died,

and he was married again to Sarah, daughter of Hugh and Janet

Moore. They appear among the family of the Moores.

Hugh, tlie eldest son of WiUiam and Janet Logan, was born in

Truro, March 28th, 1763, He was married to Elizabeth Elliott,
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daliglitet of Samuel Archibald, in 1794, They settled in Upper

Stewiacke, on the farm that Benjamin Davison now resides upon,

where they spent the remainder of their days. William, their eldest

son, was born in 1795, He settled on the Sotith side of Ste'vviacke

River, where Gilbert Eutherford now resides. Here he lived a

considerable number of years, and died a bachelor in the year 1856,

aged 61 years. John, another son of Hugh and Elizabeth Logan, was

born in 1797. He removed to the United States in 1840. He was

married to Margaret McDonald. They had two sons and three

daughters. He died in 1852, aged 55 years. Eachel, their daughter,

was married to William Dunlap, and had six sons and two daughters,

who appear among the Dunlaps.

Samuel, the second son of Hugh and Elizabeth Logan, was born

about the year 1799. He died a bachelor, in the year 1847. Janet,

the second daughter of Hugh and Elizabeth Logan, was born in 1801.

She was married to William Gammell, Esq., December 31st, 1821.

They had four sons and five daughters. She died February 12tli,

1843, aged 42 years. Mary Logan, their fourth daughter, was born

about the year 1806. She was married to John McCulloch, of Soutli

Branch, in 1832. Margaret, their third daughter, was bom in 1804.

She was married to George S. Rutherford. They had two sons and

two daughters. She died September 22nd, 1839, aged 35 years, and

her husband died October 17th, 1871.

Edward, the second son of William and Janet Logan, was bom
December 16th, 1765. He left home when a young man, and

nothing is known about him since. Alice, the second daughter of

William and Janet Logan, was bom January 2nd, 1770. She was

married to Thomas, son of Dr. John Harris, and settled in Pictou.

They had four sons and one daughter.

WiUiam, the third son of William and Janet Logan, was bom
August 15th, 1773. He was married to Sarah, daughter of Robert

Archibald, Esq., and Hannah Blair, his wife. They had three sons

and six daughters. He inherited his father's farm in Truro. He
bunt the house that John Ross now lives in, on the JS'orth side of the

Coihmon, in the same place that Daniel Eaton, Esq., and his sons now

reside. It was removed down to where it now stands by Mr,

Jonathan Blanchard, about the year 1813. Mr. Blanchard lived in

this house until he removed to the West River of Pictou, in the year

1817. William Logan sold his farm in Truro and removed so Middle

Musquodoboit, where he spent the remainder of his life. Robert was
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their eldest son. He died a bachelor, February, 1871. Janet, theil

eldest daughter, was married to Thomas Kaulback. They had two

sons and five daughters. William, the second son of William and

Sarah Logan, was born about the year 1813. He died a bachelor,

about the year 1847. David, their third son, was born in the year

1815. He is still living, a bachelor. Mary Alice, their second

daughter, was born in the year 1817. She was married to Joseph

Bruce. They have two sons and seven daughters. They inherit her

father's farm in Musquodoboit. Margaret, their third daughter, was

born 1819. She removed to Porter's Lake, is married there, and has

a family of children. Elizabeth, their fifth and younge^st daughter,

was born about the year 1823. She was married to Thomas, son of

Frederick Hurley and Janet Archibald, his wife. They had one sonv

Mrs. Hurley died, and he was married again to Susan, the fourth

daughter of William and Sarah Logan. They had a numerous family

of children.

Janet, the youngest daughter of William and Janet Logan, was

born March 19th, 1776. She was married to Thomas McCoUura.

They removed to Musquodoboit, where they spent the remainder of

their lives. They had two sons and five daughters. She died

December, 1864, aged 89 years. Her husband died in the Spring

of 1859, aged 81 years.

— v\ /*V^ 1> /^ -

CHAPTER IX.

Hugh ;Moor, Senr., was another of the first settlers of Truro. He
came with his brothers, sisters and their husbands, in the year 1760*

he Was one of the Grantees of the Township, and had his first house

on the interval of Salmon Eiver. After this he built a house on the

upland, near the Pictou Il;iil Road, on the east end of Mr. Andrew
Moor's orchard. He purchased the house from Mr. Robert Cock,

where he spent the remainder of his life, being the same house in

which his son Hugh lived and died, and his grandson, Andrew Moor,

lived in until October, 1871. Hugh Moor, Senr., died December
10th, 1820, a few days after having his leg amputated. He was 82
years of age. His wife Janet died November 28th, 1818, aged 72

years. He had been married to Janet Logan but a short time before
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tliey camo to Kova Scotia. Mary, their eldest daughter, was horn

ahout the year 1762. She was married to Michael Lovett Tucker,

Octoher 13th, 1785. Eosanna, their eldest daughter, was horn April

22nd, 1786. She was married to George Dill, January 31st, 1815,

and had three sons and four daughters. She died January, 1853,

aged 66 years. Janet, their second daughter, was horn Octoher 11th,

1787. She was married to Rohert MciS[utt. She died January 20th,

1853, aged 66 years. Charles Tucker, their eldest son, was horn

September ith, 1789. He was married to Mercy Parker PoUey,

August 1st, 1811. They had two sons and seven daughters. Mr.

Tucker died at Bermuda, September 18th, 1858, aged 69 years ; his

body was brought home and interred in the Truro. Cemetery. Mary,

the third daughter of Michael L. and Mary Tucker, was married

to Alexander McCabe, of Greenhill, Pictou. They had three sons

and two daughters. Hugh, their second son, was married to Ruth

Lynds, April 6th, 1815. They had six sons and two daughters. He
died in the month of June, 1871. Michael John, their third son,

was born January 12th, 1796. He was married to Charlotte Brown

of Macan, Cumberland, January 7th, 1823. They had two sons and

four daughters. He died at Macan in the year 1871. Michael L.

Tucker died July 7th, 1798, aged 48 years, and she was married

again to Robert McCartney ; they had one son, his name was Robert.

He was married to Jane, eldest daughter of Robert and Margaret

Moor. They had six sons and two daughters. They removed to the

United States. Old Mrs. McCartney died at Truro, May 20th, 1847,

Aged 85 years.

Janet, the second daughter of Hugh and Janet Moor, was born in

Truro, March 28th, 1765. She was married to John Faulkner.

Sarah, their eldest daughter, was married to James Perkins, they had

one daughter whose name was Sarah Ann. James Perkins was

drowned down the bay, when engaged in fishing, about the year 1818.

His widow was married again to Alexander MiUer, December 19th,

1822. They had three sons and two daughters. Alexander MiUer

died May 31st 1855. Elizabeth, the second daughter of John and

Janet Faulkner, was married to John Laughead, September 14th,

1846. She died February 29th, 1860. Robert, the eldest son of

John and Janet Faulkner, was married to Ann Edds of Halifax. He
died suddenly of small pox in Pictou toAvn about the year 1828.

His widow was married again to Mr. Robert Barry, They had five

sons and one daughter. John, the youngest son of John and Janet
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Faulkner, was born in 1800. He was married to Jane McKini, of

Londonderry, April, 1847. He died February 9th, 1863, aged 63

years. He was an elder of the Presbyterian Church 18 years before

his death.

Sarah, the third daughter of Hugh and Janet Moor, was born

March 3rd, 1769. She was married to Daniel McKenzie. They

removed to the West Eiver of Pictou, where they spent the remainder

of their days. They had three sons and four daughters. He died

April 1815 ; his wife died March 10th, 1853.

Robert, the eldest son of Hugh and Janet Moor, was born in

Truro, October 2nd, 1770. He learned the AYheelwright business

with his uncle, AVilliam Moor. He was married to Margaret, daughter

of William O'Brien and Lydia Harris, December 28th, 1797. Janet,

their eldest daughter, was born in Truro, January 2nd, 1799. She

was married to Eobert McCartney, and had six sons and two daughters.

They removed to the United States, Lydia, their second daughter,

was born September 20th, 1800. She was married to James Fisher,

of Stewiacke, February, 1833. They kept an Inn at Brookfield until

Mr. Fisher died March, 1850. They had two sons and two

daughters. Alice, their third daughter, was born August 29th, 1803.

She was married to Alexander McLain, August 15th, 1831. They had

six sons and three daughters. Mr. McLain died April 9th, 1869.

Frances, the fourth daughter of Robert and Margaret Moor, was bom

October 2nd, 1805. She died unmarried, December 26th, 1837, aged

32 years. Eliza, their fifth daughter, was born December 15th, 1807.

She died unmarried, July 2nd, 1830, aged 23. John, their eldest

son, was born in Truro, March 23rd, 1810. He died a bachelor,

September 17th, 1839, aged 29 years. Mary, the fifth daughter of

Robert and Margaret Moor, Avas born October 18th 1812. She was

married to Lemuel Lynds, of N'orth River, January 18th, 1835.

They had seven sons and four daughters. William Isaac, their second

son, was born in Truro, IMarch 14th, 1816. He was married to

Eleanor Shand of Halifax, October, 1848. They had two sons and

four daughters. Sarah Ann, tlieir youngest daughter. Avas born

January 6th, 1819. She Avas married to Charles, son of Elias Nelson

and Elizabeth Forbes his Avife, of Hants County, February 11th,

1845. They have tAVo sons, and noAv reside on a part of Avhat Avas her

father's farm. Robert Moor, died February 27th 1852, aged 82 years,

and his Avife died July 19th, 1862.

John, the second son of Hugh and Janet Moor, Avas born in Truro,
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February 14th, 1772. He was married to Susannah Hunter Harris,

daughter of Dr. John Harris, June 7th 1803. They had three sons

and five daughters. They removed to the West branch of Eiver

John, where they settled, reared their family, and died.

Elizabeth, the fourth daughter of Hugh and Janet Moor, was born

[N'ovember 27th, 1773. She was married to John Dickson of Onslow

Mountain, in ITovember, 1804. They had three sons and three

daughters. She died May 17th, 1842, aged 68 years, and her

husband, John Dickson, died May 25th, 1855, aged 92 years.

Hugh, the third son of Hugh and Janet Moor, was born in Truro,

May 20th, 1776. He was married to Margaret, daughter of Andrew
O'Brien and Margaret Denny his wife, of Noel, October 20th, 1814.

He inherited liis father's farm, where he spent his life. He died

January 1 1th 1864, aged 88 years, and his wife died March 4th,

1857, aged 73 years. Andrew, the eldest son of Hugh and Margaret

Moor, was born in Truro, January 25th, 1816. He inherits a part of

his father's farm, and is still living a bachelor. Janet Logan Moor,

their eldest daughter, was born September 18th, 1817. She died

April 1st, 1819. Margaret O'Brien Moor, their second daughter was

born June 10th, 1819. She was married to William Munro, of

Portuguese Cove, Halifax, January 13th, 1849. They had two sons

and three daughters. Alice Moor, their third daughter, was born

June 3rd, 1821. Eebecca Denny Moor, their youngest daughter, was

born November, 15th 1823. She has been confined to bed about six

years with the acute rheumatism.

Alice, the fifth and youngest daughter of Hugh and Janet Moor,

was born in Truro, August 27th, 1778. She died unmarried,

December 26th, 1860, aged 82 years. William Moor, was brother of

Hugh, and Daniel, and they had four sisters who came to Nova

Scotia. He was but a boy when they came to Truro. He was a

Wheelwright by trade, and was called Clean Billey Moor. He
removed to Shubenacadie, where he spent the remainder of his life,

and died. He was married to Susannah Long, June 30th, 1774.

Elizabeth, their eldest daughter, was born in Truro, December 6th,

1774. Janet, their second daughter, was bom April 6th, 1776.

Robert, their eldest son, was born February 4th, 1778. Sarah, their

third daughter, was born January 18th, 1780. She was married to

William Forbes. They lived, reared their family and died on the

farm that Mr. Elisha James now resides upon, near the mouth of the

Shubenacadie Eiver. Hugh, their second son, was bom April 25th,

9
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1782. He died October 7th, 1783. William, their third son, was

bom January 14^th, 1784. He was married to Eebecca, daughter of

Alexander and Margaret Nelson, of Old Barns. They removed to

the United States. Daniel, their fourth son, was born March 30th,

1787. Charles, their fifth son, was born March 11th 1789. Susan-

nah, their youngest daughter, was born in the month of August, 1791.

Daniel Moor came to Nova Scotia with his brothers and sisters,

when he was a boy 6 years old. He was married to Eleanor,

daughter of Charles Cox and Eleanor Stewart, his wife, in 1780.

They removed and settled in Brookfield about the year 1786.

William Hamilton and they were the first settlers in Brookfield. He
reared his family and died there, February, 1826, aged 72 years ; his

wife died in 1851, aged 91 years. Hugh, their eldest son, was born

about the year 1786. He removed from this Province, and has not

been heard from since. Robert, their second son, was born in 1788.

He followed the sea when young, returned home and died a bachelor

in the year 1854. Charles, their third son, was born February 14th,

1790. He was married to Mary Bonnell, November 3rd, 1814.

They had two sons and seven daughters. He died October 23rd,

1861, aged 71 years. Mary, the eldest daughter of Daniel and

Eleanor Moor, was born 1791. She was married to Eobert Lynton

of North River, they had one son and one daughter. Daniel, their

fourth son, was born in the year 1794. He was married to Sarah

Green, November 17th, 1825. They had three sons and four

daughters. William, their fifth son, was born in the year 1796. He
was married to Alice Kennedy, March 1820. They had one son and

two daughters. He died September 1856, aged 60 years. Margaret,

the second daughter was born in 1798. She died unmarried, August

1825.

Esther Moore, sister of Hugh, William and Daniel Moore, shortly

before they came to Nova Scotia, was married to Robert Hunter.

They had one son and six daughters, who appear among the Hunter

family. Janet Moore, another sister, was married to William Logan

before they came to Truro, Margaret Moore, another sister, was

married to David McCollum, of North River. They had six sons and

three daughters. Alice Moore, their fourth sister, was married to

John, the third son of David Archibald, Esq., June 2nd, 1768. They

had fo\ir sons and four daughters. They removed to Musquodoboit,

where they spent the remainder of their days.
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CHAPTER X.

George Scott was another of the Grantees of Truro Township,

His house stood near the place that Mr. Flemming's old house stood.

He was married before he came to Truro. They had three daughters.

Esther, their eldest daughter, was born before they came to Nova
Scotia. She was married to James Eutherford, November 27th, 1777.

They had three sons, which appear among the Rutherfords. She

died April 5th, 1783.

Ann, the second daughter of George and Elizabeth Scott, was born

in Truro, November 27th, 1762. She was married to William, the

eldest son of old Mr. James Flemming, who settled in the Folly,

Londonderry. The Folly took its name from the old saying that it

was folly for Mr. Flemming to settle on so poor a place. They were

married July 1 7th, 1789. Esther Scott Flemming, their eldest

daughter, was born November 20th, 1790. She was married to John

L. Fisher, August 29th, 1816. They had four sons. Mr. Fisher

died December 28th, 1863. Isabell, the second daughter of "William

and Ann Flemming, was born in Truro, March 22nd, 1793. She was

married to Alexander Knight, a saddler (who had come out from

Scotland), October 22nd, 1818. They had four sons and five daugh-

ters. They removed from Truro to Halifax, in the year 1830. Mrs,

Knight died there, March 5th, 1866, aged 73 years. Mr. Knight

died February 8th, 1873. Elizabeth, the third daughter of William

and Ann Flemming, was born November 29th, 1795. She was

married to Robert Piitnam of Middle Stewiacke, July, 1821. They

had three sons and two daughters. George Scott, the eldest son of

William and Ann Flemming, was born April 13th, 1798. He was

married to Charlotte, daughter of Dr. Upham and Mary Dickson, his

wife, December 26th, 1824. They had four sons and four daughters.

He was drowned at Brookfield, December, 1846. He settled on the

farm that James McGlench now resides upon. His wife died August

1844. James, the second son of William and Ann Flemming, was

bom July 27th, 1800. He was married to Lydia, the third daughter

of Eliakim Tupper and Lydia Putnam, his wife, July Ist, 1826.

They had three sons and five daughters. He settled on the farm that

had been owned by John Kennedy and is now owned by John

Putnam, Junr., of Middle Stewiacke, where he built a house. He
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removed from there to Halifax, and kept a house of entertainment.

He died in Stewiacke, July, 1851, and his wife died April, 1862.

William, the third and youngest son of William and Ann Flemming,

was born in Truro, January 23rd, 1803. He was married to Mary,

daughter of Alexander Kent, Esq., and Jane Christie, his wife, March

11th, 1828. They had five sons and three daughters. He inherited

his father's farm in Truro. He represented Truro in Parliament from

the year 1843 to 1847. He died January 24th, 1873, aged 70 years.

Ann, the youngest daughter of William and Ann Flemming, was born

September 23rd, 1805. She was married to Robert Laughead, of

Old Barns, December 29th, 1825. She died September 25th, 1829,

aged 24 years. William Flemming, Senr., died in Truro, July 31st,

1829, aged 62 years, and his wife, Ann Scott, died March 6th, 1847,

aged 84 years.

Elizabeth, the'third and youngest daughter of George and Elizabeth

Scott, was born in Truro October 23rd, 1766. She was married to

Thomas Dickey, June 22nd, 1788. He built a house, which is owned

by the heirs of the late David C. Wilson. In this house they reared

their family. Mr. Dickey died October 18th, 1798, aged 33 years,

and his widow died March 19 th, 1830, aged 63 years. George Scott

Dickey, their eldest son, was bom January 5th, 1790. He was

married to Esther, daughter of John Wright and Sarah Lynds, his

wife, December 27th. 1833. They had two sons and three daughters.

He inherited his father's farm until about the year 1845, when he

sold it and removed to the Lower Village. He died there May 2nd,

1864, aged 74 years. Elizabeth, the only daughter of Thomas and

Elizabeth Dickey, was born November 15th, 1791. She was married

to Hugh, son of Eobert Johnson and Susannah Gourley, his wife,

JN'ovember 22nd, 1811. They had five sons and five daughters.

They appeat among the Johnsons. Mr. Dickey died November 17th,

1841, aged 55 years. James, the second son of Thomas and Elizabeth

Dickey, was born in Truro, February 8th, 1794. He died a bachelor

December 25th, 1858, aged 64 years. Thomas, the third and youngest

son of Thomas and Elizabeth Dickey, was born June 4th, 1797. He
was married to Mary, daughter of William Joyce and Mary Elliott,

his wife, December, 1828. They settled in Middle Stewiacke, where

they reared their family. Mr. Dickey, died May 12th, 1868, aged 71

years ; and his wife died September 8th, 1859, aged 53 years. George

Scott divided his farm between his two daughters, Ann and EHzabeth,

He died about 1811, aged 94 years, and his wife died about 1815.
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CHAPTER XI.

James Rutherford was among the earlier settlers of Truro, but not

a Grantee. He purchased and settled on the farm which is now

owned by Mr. George Yuill and son, and Mr. Thomas S. Crowe, at

Beaver Brook, He resided on this farm until after his first wife died.

He then sold his farm to Thomas Crowe, Senr., and settled near the

place on which Wellington Blair now resides. He removed again to

Middle Stewiacke about the year 1790, where he spent the remainder

of his life. He was rather a peculiar man ; one of his replies to the

argument that it was the work of necessity to house grain on Sabbath

during the time of brittle weather in harvest, was, " Cannot you trust

Him who sends wet to wet it for wind to dry it again." Mr. Ruther-

ford, was married to Esther, the eldest daughter of George and Eliza-

beth Scott of Truro, Nov. 27th, 1777.

George S. Rutherford, their eldest son, was born in Truro, March

10th, 1779. He was married to Martha Thompson, March 24th,

1801. Esther, their eldest daughter, was born in 1802. She was

married to Charles Corbet. Mr. Corbet died May 25th, 1871.

Archibald Rutherford, their eldest son was married to Nancy Howard.

They are residing in Halifax. They have six sons and four daughters.

George S. Rutherford was married to Margaret, daughter of Hugh

Logan and Elizabeth E. Archibald. She died September 22nd, 1839,

aged 35 years. He was married again to Mary, daughter of Thomas

Corbet and Sarah Smith, in the year 1841. She died May 10th,

1842, aged 31 years. He was married again to Rachel, daughter of

Samuel Burke Archibald, and widow of the late Samuel Creelman.

She died January 16th, 1865, aged 61 years. Mr. Rutherford died

October 17th, 1871, aged 66. James, their third son was married to

Margaret Taylor. He now owns the mill at Middle Stewiacke.

Robertson, their fourth son was born April 1st, 1809, and was mar-

ried to Eleanor, daughter of Robert Putnam and Jane Cox, his wifej

November, 1842.

"William, their fifth son, was married to Susan Fulton. He inherits

a large portion of his father's farm.

Nancy, their youngest daughter, was bom March 10th, 1813. She

was married to Thomas Fulton, December, 1842. They had three

sons and two daughters.
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George S. Eutherford, Senr., died July 27th, 1859, aged 80 years,

and his wife died July 28th, 1854, aged 70 years.

Robert, the second son of James and Esther Rutherford, "was horn

in Truro February 22nd, 1781. He was married to Nancy, eldest

daughter of William Johnson and Sarah Miller, his wife. They had

four sons and four daughters. They settled in Upper Stewiacke on

the same farm that their sons "William and James now reside. He
died July 26th, 1856, aged 75 years, and his wife died June 2nd,

1849, aged 61 years.

William, the third son of James and. Esther Rutherford, was born

in Truro, November 10th, 1782. He was married to Eleanor,

daughter of William Cox and Mary Smith, his wife, February 5th

1807. They had one son and three daughters. One of these

daughters was married to the late Robert King, one to Alexander

Fisher, and the other to Henry Campbell. George S., the son, was

horn December 6th, 1811. He was married to Margaret Howard,

December 31st, 1835. They had five sons and three daughters. He
inherits what was once his father's farm. Mrs. Eleanor Rutherford

died January 15th, 1813. He was married again to Sarah, daughter

of William Fulton and Sarah Dunlap, his wife, November 1813.

His second wife died November, 1814, and he was married to Eleanor

Croker, November, 1814. He was a Justice of the Peace, and went

by the name of Squire Rutherford. He died Oct. 19th, 1856. His

third wife died December 30th, 1854. Esther Scott, the first wife of

James Rutherford, Senr., died at Beaver Brook, April 5th, 1783.

He was married again to Elizabeth, daughter of James and Elizabeth

Johnson, of the Lower Village of Truro, February 15th, 1785.

James, the eldest son of James and Elizabeth Rutherford, was

born February 12th, 1787. He was married to Ruth Lane, Novem-

ber 19th, 1812. They had two sons and seven daughters. He settled

on the farm that his son George Scott Rutherford now resides upon.

He died August 6th, 1869, aged 82 years.

Gilbert, the second son of James and Elizabeth Rutherford, was

born in Truro, October 20th, 1788. He was married to Ruth, the

foiu^h daughter of Archibald Gammel and Sarah Fisher his wife. He
had one of his legs amputated and, afterwards, he was engaged selling

goods throiigh the coimtry. He died in the prime of life. Robert

G. Rutherford, Esq., his only son, was married to Jane, the third

daughter of Hugh Dunlap and Susannah Gourley, March, 1838.

They had three sons and four daughters.
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Esther, the eldest daughter of James and Elizabeth Eutherford,

was born in Stewiacke in the year 1790. She died unmarried,

December, 1811, aged 21 years.

Margaret, the second daughter of James and Elizabeth Eutherford,

was born in the year 1796. She was married to John, third son of

Samuel Creelman and Mary Campbell, his wife, December 8th, 1812.

They had five sons and six daughters. She died June 3rd, 1830,

aged 33 years.

Adam, the third son of James and Elizabeth Eutherford, was bom
January 12th, 1794. He was married to Lucy Lane, in the year

1815. They had two sons. Mrs. Eutherford died, and he was mar-

ried again to Hannah, daughter of John Fletcher and Margaret Gra-

ham, his wife, December 20th, 1825. They had three sons and

three daughters. He died April 1st, 1845, aged 51 years. He settled

first on the farm which is now owned by Henry Campbell, near the

Stewiacke Eiver. He sold out there and built on the hill north of

the road. It is now owned by William Fisher's sons.

John, the fourth son of James and Elizabeth Eutherford, was born

in the year 1798. He was married to Margaret, daughter of James

Fulton, Esq., and Margaret CampbeU, widow of the late Samuel

Creelman. Mrs. Eutherford died February 10th, 1824, aged 31 years,

and he was married again to the widow Pears. He settled at Smith-

field where he died April 22nd, 1843.

Elizabeth Johnson, James Eutherford, Senr.'s second wife died,

and he was married again to Letitia, daughter of Timothy Putnam,

Senr., and Janet Hunter, 1808. They had one son and six daugh-

ters. He died May 28th, 1828, aged 79 years, and his wife died

April 27th, 1824, aged 38 years.

CHAPTEE XII.

Alexander K'elson, was a native of Ireland. He came out to New
England when young, and having formed acquaintance with James

Yuill, Esq., they removed together to ]N'ova Scotia in the year 1761.

He settled on the same place on which his grandson, William ISTelson,

now resides, near what was called " Old Barns." He was one of the

Grantees of Truro Township. He and James Yuill, Esq. , and James
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Yuill, Juur., had the whole of their rights of land laid off together in

one lot. It was about one mile in breadth, and four miles back from

the Bay. The greater part of this land is still owned by their descend-

ants. Alexander Nelson was married to Margaret Eobertson shortly

before they came to Nova Scotia.

Elizabeth, their eldest daughter, was bom in Truro, December

15th, 1763. She was married to Thomas McFadion, and had one son

and five daughters.

WiUiam Montague, the eldest son of Alexander and Margaret

Nelson, was born in Truro, July 15th, 1765. He was married to

Jane Ellis in 1790. He settled on the west side of the Shubenacadie

Eiver near the Eailroad bridge. He died there December 15th, 1842,

aged 77 years. His wife died December 1st, 1827, aged 57 years.

Sarah Nelson, their eldest daughter, was born September 17th,

1791. She died unmarried, August 18th, 1872, aged 81 years,

Alexander Nelson, their eldest son, was born June 7th, 1793. He
died a bachelor September 11th 1824, aged 31 years. James Nelson,

their second son, was born March 21st, 1795. He was married to

Alice, the eighth daughter of James Moore and Susan Teas, his wife,

October, 1828. They had two sons and one daughter. Mrs. Nelson

died March 21st, 1834. He was married again to Isabell Gilrie from

England, July, 1836. They had three sons and one daughter. His

second wife died December 24th, 1843. He inherited a part of

his father's farm. "William, the third son of William M. and Jane

Nelson, was born July 14th, 1797. He was married to Eachel

Wallace, December 16, 1834. They had six sons and four daughters

(The Eev. J. W. Nelson of New Brunswick is their son). He
inherited a part of his father's farm. He died April 4th, 1867,

aged 70 years. Archibald Nelson, their fourth son, was born Septem-

ber 7th, 1799. He died May 17th, 1820, aged 21 years. Margaret

Nelson, their second daughter, was born March 11th, 1802. She

died September 20th 1820, aged 18 years. Jane Nelson, their third

daughter, was born November 16th, 1803. She was married to

Daniel Moor January, 1829. They had three sons and four

daughters. Mr. Moor died April, 1863, aged 73 years. Eobinson

Nelson, their fifth son, was born July 10th, 1806. He was married

to Elizabeth Bradley, widow of the late Alexander Archibald, Novem-

ber 29th, 1838. They had one son and one daughter. Dorothy

Nelson, their fourth daughter, was born May 4th, 1809. IsabeU

Nelson, their fifth daughter, was born April 21st, 1812. She was
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married to Thomas John Andrews, Decemher 1st, 1830. They had

four sons and one daughter. She died January 6th, 1865, aged 53

years. Mr. Andrews died February, 1872, aged 67 years. Thomas

Nelson, their sixth son, was born September 7th 1815. He was

married to Sarah Casey, January, 1840. They had two sons. Mrs.

jS'elson died in 1845. He was married again to Mary Archibald in

1846. They had one son and two daughters. Mr. Nelson died May,

1855. Agnes, their second daughter, was born February 14th, 1767.

She was married to Stephen Jackson, and had one son and two

daughters.

Archibald, the second son of Alexander and Margaret Nelson, was

born September 6th, 1768. He was married to Jane Hill, December

9th, 1812. He inherited the homestead part of his father's farm,

where they reared their family. He died December 5 th, 1861, aged

93 years, and his wife died February 24th, aged 66 years. Margaret

Nelson, their eldest daughter, was born October 30th, 1813. She

was married to John Eose of the county of Digby in August, 1841.

They had two sons and three daughters. Elizabeth, their second

daughter, was born November 10th, 1814. She was married to

Eobert, son of Eobert and Catherine Corbet, May 12th, 1855, and

settled in Hants county. Anne, their daughter, was born May 28th,

1817. She was married to Ebenezer, son of John B. and Catherine

Archibald, January 24th, 1837. They had four sons and five

daughters. These appear among the Archibalds. Alexander HiU,

the eldest son of Archibald and Jane Nelson, was born January 21st,

1819. WiUiam, their youngest son, was born April 17th, 1820. He

is living a bachelor on the homestead.

Charles, the third son of Alexander and Margaret Nelson, was

born April 22nd, 1770. He was married to Eenew Fish, of Newport,

October 24th, 1794. Sarah B., their eldest daughter, was born in

Truro, September 26th, 1795. She was married to Mr. Daniel Camp-

bell, and removed to St. John, N. B. Margaret, the second daughter

of Charles and Eenew Nelson was born March 9th, 1797. She was

married to James Smith, who came from England a short time before,

February 18th, 1821. They had three sons and seven daugh-

ters. Shortly after they were married, they settled in the woods at

Haimony, being the same place on which their sons now reside. Here

they reared their family, and he died there June 22nd, 1865, aged 72

years. His wife died April 29th, 1862, aged 65 years. Alex-

ander, the eldest son of Charles and Eenew Nelson, was born May
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4th, 1799. He was married to Jane, the fourth daughter of Alexander

and Eebecca MiUer, April 8th, 1823. They had six sons and four

daughters. Charles, the second son of Charles and Eenew Nelson

was born in Truro, June 4th, 1801. He removed to Boston, Mass.,

where he married and had a family. Robinson, their third son, was

bom June 15th, 1803. He died a bachelor, March 30th, 1829.

Elias and Nancy, their twin son and daughter, were born March 23rd,

1805. Nancy was married to WilUam HaU, May 4th, 1830. They

had two sons and two daughters. Renew (Mr. Nelson's first wife)

died February 11th, 1807, aged 33 years. He was married again to

Mary, daughter of John and Mary Logan, widow of the late Abner

Doggett, April 13th, 1809. He inherited a part of his father's pro-

perty, at Old Barns, until he was married the second time ; then he

sold his farm to James Laughead, Senr., and removed to the Upper

Village of Truro, and built an end to the house in which Mr.

William Cummings now resides. Here they kept an inn during

the remainder of their lives. He died August 20th, 1847, aged 77

years; and his wife, Mary, died June 23rd, 1850, aged 77 years.

Abner Doggett, died January 26th 1807, aged 32 years. Eenew, the

eldest daughter of Charles and Mary Nelson, was born February 14th,

1810. She was married to William Cutten, eldest son of William

Smith and Esther Hunter, his wife, January 7th, 1831. They had

four sons and six daughters. Mary Ann, their second daughter, was

born July 24tb, 1812. She was married to Daniel, second son of

Captain William Cock and Ann Frost, January 7th 1831. They had

six sons and six daughters. William, the only son of Charles and

Mary Nelson, was born July 22nd 1815. He was married to Mizey

Ann, the eldest daughter of John Yuill and Jane McNutt, his wife,

December 25th, 1836. They had six sons and three daughters.

John, the fourth son of Alexander and Margaret Nelson, was born

February 12th, 1772. He was married to Elizabeth Policy, ^vidow of

the late Ebenezer Cock, March 21st, 1799. He was drowned,

December, 1857, aged 85 years. His wife died at Pitch Brook,

December, 1838. Ebenezer Cock Nelson, their eldest son was born

June 17th, 1800. He was married to Mary Noble in 1839. They

had five sons and three daughters. He died August 1st 1864. His

wife died March, 1859, aged 38 years. Alexander Yoiing Nelson,

their second son, was born November 26th, 1802. He was married

to Alice, the eldest daughter of Robinson and Isabel Nelson, February,

1833. They had four sons and two daughters. Their children are
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all dead. John Gordon Xelson, their third son, was born October

7th, 1804. He was married to Mary Logan, January 12th, 1826.

They had one son. Mrs. Nelson died June 28th, 1829, aged 28 years.

He was married again to Sarah Kent, March 12th, 1831. They had

five sons and two daughters. Mrs. Nelson died in 1845. He was

married again to Eleanor Eraser, January 8th, 1852. They have three

daughters. Nathaniel Nelson, their fourth son, was bom in 1806.

He was married to Jane, third daughter of Eobinson and Isabel Nelson,

December, 1832. They had three sons and three daughters. He
settled in Hants County. Archibald Nelson, their fifth son, was born

in 1808. He was married to Nancy Colter, July, 1832. They had

five sons and two daughters. He died in 1858. Phoeby Nelson, their

eldest daughter, was born December 8th, 1810. She was married to

John Gibbens Eebruary 5th, 1836. They had one daughter. Mr.

Gibbens died away from home in 1837. She was married again to

John Lennerton November, 1841. They had four sons and one

daughter. Mr. Lennerton died October 10th, 1864. Eleanor Nelson

their second daughter, was born August, 1812. She removed to

Prince Edward Island, and was married there to James Conway. They

had sons and daughters. She died there April, 1869, aged 57 years.

Susan Nelson, their third daughter, was born at Stewiacke, in 1814.

She removed to Canada and was married there. Margaret Nelson,

their fourth daughter, was born August, 1816. She removed to New
Hampshire, and was married there.

James, the fifth son of Alexander and Margaret Nelson, Avas born

in Truro, January 21st, 1773. He was married to Abigail, daughter

of Solomon Hoar and Mary Lynds, his wife, Nov. 17th, 1803. He
was a blacksmith by trade. He removed to Stewiacke in 1809, and

settled on the farm, on which his son Robinson now resides, on the

west side of the South Meadow. He died there March, 1858, aged 85

years. His wife died December 28th, 1844, aged 63 years. Solomon

Nelson, their eldest son, was born August 28th, 1804. He was mar-

ried to Sarah, daughter of WiUiam Dickey, and Eleanor Gammell, his

wife, in 1828. He died in 1830. Alexander Nelson, their second

son, was born July 28th, 1806. He was married to Margaret Conley

March 25th, 1825. They had four sons and four daughters. He set-

tled in Upper Brookfield, where he reclaimed his farm from the forest.

Margaret the eldest daughter, of James and Abigail Nelson, was mar-

ried to Asa Hoar, December 25th, 1835. She died July 25th, 1838.

Abigail Nelson, their second daughter, was married to James MuUon.
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Elizabeth J^elson, their third, daughter, was married to Joseph Moxom.

They had six sons and five daughters. She died in 1854. Robinson

i^elson, their third son, was married to Rachel Dean of Musqnodoboit.

They had three sons and two daughters. Mrs. Nelson died, and he

was married again to Eleanor, daughter of Stephen Johnson and

Is'ancy Miller, his wife, in 1862. Ruth ]!^elson, their fourth daughter

was married to James Boomer. They had two sons and three daugh-

ters. James Nelson, their fourth son, was born May 1st, 1818. He
was married to Margaret Archibald of Stewiacke, February, 1841.

They had four sons and four daughters. He settled north of Brook-

field, where he reclaimed his farm from the forest. William Nelson,

their fifth son removed to the United States, was married, and had a

family there. Charles Nelson, their sixth son, was married to Nancy

Dunn. They had three sons and. three daughters. He settled in

Pleasant Valley. Mary Nelson, their fifth daiighter, was married to

John Burris of Pleasant Valley, They had three sons and five

daughters.

Robinson, the sixth son of Alexander and Margaret Nelson, was

born in Truro, August 23rd, 1774. He was married to Isabell,

daughter of William and Alice Philips, Dec. 31st, 1807. He settled

on the Bay Shore, where his son William now resides. He died there

April, 1850, aged 76 years. His widow removed to the United

States to reside with her daughters. She died there June, 1870, aged

81 years. Alice Nelson, their eldest daughter was born December

25th, 1808. She was married to Alexander Y., son of John and

Elizabeth Nelson, February, 1833. They had three sons and two

daughters. Their children are all dead. Margaret Nelson, their

second daughter, was born Oct. 17th, 1810. She was married to

Francis Forbes, Nov. 16th, 1828. They had three sons and three

daughters. She died March 15th, 1849, aged 38 years. Mr. Forbes

died June 28th, 1848, aged 54 years. Jane Nelson, their third

daughter, was born November 17th, 1812. She was married to Na-

thaniel, son of John and Elizabeth Nelson, December, 1832. They

had three sons and three daughters. They settled in the County of

Hants. Rebecca Nelson, their fourth daughter, was born Oct. 15th,

1814. She was married to Thomas Dart, of Pleasant Valley, Decem-

ber, 1835. They had seven sons and one daughter. Mr. Dart died

June 14th, 1864, aged 54 years. William, the only son of Robinson

and Isabell Nelson, was born November 17th, 1816. He was married

to Mary Sibley, June, 1855. He inherited his father's farm. They
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had two sons. Mrs. JS'elson died May 22nd, 1858. He was married

again to Mary Dunbrack of Musquodoboit, March, 1860. Elizabeth

1^'elson, their fifth daughter, was born February 14th, 1820, She

removed to the United States, and was married there to Mr. Danney
in 1867. They had one daughter. Mr. Danney died in 1871.

Nancy l^elson, the sixth daughter, was born November 19th, 1822.

She removed to the United States, and was married there to James

Price. They had one son and one daughter. Mary Susan Nelson,

their seventh daughter, was born October, 1827. She removed to the

United States, and was married there to Henry Allon, Septem-

ber, 1848. Martha Ann, their eighth daughter, was born January,

1831. She removed to the United States, and was married there to

John Stork in 18-54. They had two sons and one daughter. She

died there in 1865. Isabell and Abigail Nelson, their twin daughters,

were born in 1836. Isabell was married to James Price in the United

States, She died there. Abigail was married to John Graham. She

died in 1857.

Jane, the third daughter of Alexander and Margaret Nelson was

born September 12th, 1775. She was married to Daniel, son of

Samson and Martha Moore. They had one son and two daughters.

Mr. Moore was lost at sea, and she was married again to James Gradie,

and removed to Halifax.

Margaret, the fourth daughter of Alexander and Margaret Nelson,

was born July 10th, 1779. She was married to Edward Faulkner of

Economy. They had three sons and four daughters.

Alexander, their seventh son, was born March 1st, 1781, He
was married to Margaret T,, daughter of Samuel MUler, and Elizabeth

Davison, December 23rd, 1812. They settled on the east side of

Shubenacadie River, about 1 2 miles from its mouth, where they reared

their family. He died there July, 1839, aged 58 years, and his wife

died October 1st, 1865, aged 74 years. Robinson, their eldest son,

was born 1814. He removed to Vermont, U. S., and was married

there to Lucy Minerva Fitch in 1857. Samuel, their second son,

was born 1816. He died a bachelor in August, 1868. Nancy, their

eldest daughter, was born in 1818. She was married to "William, son

of Elias Nelson, January, 1840. They had three sons and three

daughters. Archibald, their third son, was born September, 1820.

He was married to Jemima, daughter of John Douglass, of Maitland,

February 2nd, 1843, They have three sons. They are settled at the

Rail Road station at Shubenacadie, where they keep an Inn. Eliza-
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beth, their second daughter, was born 1823. She was married to

Joseph Crosby, from England, January, 1858. They have one son

and three daughters. They settled in New Brunswick.

Elias, the eighth son of Alexander and Margaret Nelson, was born

April 26th, 1783. He was raarried to Elizabeth Forbes, January 7th,

1806. He settled, reared his family, and spent the remainder of his

life at Eockville, in the County of Hants. He died there April 1 4th,

1871, aged 88 years. Eobert, their eldest son, was married to Sarah

Hayes. They had two sons and four daughters. He died April 18th,

1854. Alexander, their second son, was married to Lavinia, daughter

of Robert Smith, of Maitland. They had two sons and four

daughters. Mrs. Nelson died, and he was married again to Laura

Perkins. Samuel, their third son, was born June 21st, 1810. He
was married to Catherine Dart, January 1st, 1834. They had four

sons and one daughter. William, their fourth son, was born 1811.

He was married to Nancy, daughter of Alexander and Margaret

Nelson, January 1840. They had three sons and three daughters.

Charles, their fifth son, was born May 6th, 1812. He was married

to Sarah Ann Moor, February 11th, 1845. They have two sons.

Mary Ann was born 1814. She was married to Charles Wilson,

1842. They have two sons and two daughters. Eenew, their second-

daughter, was born 1816. She died in 1860. John, their sixth son,

was born 1818. He died 1847. Elias, their seventh son, was born

1820. He was married to Mary Ann Lawrence, of Maitland, January,

1848. They had three sons and three daughters. He was drowned

September 4th, 1871. Letitia, their third daughter was born 1822.

She was married to James Lawrence. They had two daughters. Mr.

Lawrence died, and she was married again, to Richard ScaUing in

1869. Archibald, their eighth son, was born 1824. He was married

to Ruby Faulkner. December, 1858. They had one son and four

daughters. He lately removed to the United States.

Alice, the fifth daughter of Alexander and Margaret Nelson, was

bom April 26th, 1785. She died when she was young. Rebecca,

their sixth daughter, was born ^larch 20th, 1 787. She was married

to William Moore, son of William Moore and Susan Long, his wife.

They removed to the United States. Alexander Nelson, Senr., died

about the year 1810, and hia widow died January 24th, 1823.
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CHAPTER XIII.

James Wright -was one of the first settlers of Truro and a Grantee

of the Township. His house lot was at the east end of the Village,

lying between the cross streets east of the old Methodist Chapel and

extending north to the River. His first house stood near the place

that the old Baptist Chapel now stands. He lived in this house for

a lengffi. of time, and then sold the south part of his lot to Daniel

Cock, and the remaining part to Timothy Prout. Mr. Wright built

his next house on his front wood lot, on the hill near the place that

Mr. L. J. Walker now resides. He sold this place to George Dill,

Esq., about the year 1804, and lived with some of his sons the

remainder of his life. He died at the house of his eldest son, John,

who lived then in a house which was built by WiUiam McKeen,

near the place that Mrs. McClure now resides. He died about the

year 1820. He was married to Deborah, daughter of Ephraim

Howard, Sanr., in the year 1765.

John, the eldest son of James and Deborah Wright, was born in

Truro, N'ovember 7th 1766. He was married to Sarah, daughter of

Jacob Lynds, Senr., November 25th, 1788. Deborah, the eldest

daughter of John and Samh Wright, was born in Onslow, October

9th, 1789. She was married to Edward McCollum, October 3rd,

1816. They had five sons and one daughter. Mr. McCoUum died

April 6th, 1855, aged 65 years. Ruth Wright, their second daughter,

was born December 25th, 1790. She was married to Amos Maynord,

January 1st, 1815. They had four sons and five daughters. They

settled in Lower Stewiacke. She died there November, 1870, aged

80 years. Mr. Maynord died December 9th, 1872, aged 82 years.

James Wright, their eldest son, was born July 17th, 1792. He was

married to Abigail Ryan, of Hants County, June 10th, 1817. He
settled on Onslow Mountain. They had four sons and six daughters.

Sarah Wright, their third daughter, was born October 25th, 1793.

She died unmarried, August 28th, 1825, aged 31 years. David

Wright, their second son, was born August 7th 1 796. On August

6th, 1825, he was engaged getting hay at Fort Ellis, on the Marsh.

He went into the river to bathe and was drowned. William Wright

their third son, was born March 1st, 1798. He was married to

Hannah Crowell. He settled at Pleasant Valley. They had five
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sons and five daughters. Mrs. Wright died Septemher 8th, 1846.

He was married again to Mary Fisher, widow of the late Jolin

Conley, June, 1849. They had two daughters. Mrs. Wright died.

Eebecca Wright, their fourth daughter, was born August 22nd, 1799.

She was married to Job Field. They had three sons. Jacob Wright,

their fourth son, was born January 14th, 1801. He was married to

Mary Fulton, of Stewiacke, December 7th, 1825. They had three

sons and three daughters. Mrs. Wright died August 12th, 1854.

He was married again to Elizabeth McMuUon. They had two sons

and five daughters. Lucy Wright, their fifth daughter, was bom
July 17th, 1802. She was married to Ephraim, son of Moses and

Lydia Wright. They had three sons and three daughters. They

reside in the Wright settlement of Stewiacke. Esther Wright, their

sixth daughter, was bom September 1803. She was married to

George S. Dickey, December 27th, 1833. They had two sons and

three daughters. Mr. Dickey died May 2nd, 1864. Miriam Wright,

their seventh daughter, was born in 1805. She was married to

Solomon, son of Moses and Lydia Wright of Stewiacke. They had

five sons and three daughters. Elizabeth Wright, their eighth

daughter, was born in 1806. She was married to William Blair

January 24th, 1827. They had six sons and six daughters. They

removed to Illinois, U. S., in 1842.

James, son of James and Deborah Wright, was born in Truro,

August 9th, 1769. He removed to the United States, and was mar-

ried there to Miss Bartlet.

Jonas, their third son, was born December 3rd, 1770. He removed

to Cape Breton, and died a bachelor.

George, their fourth son, was born October 2nd, 1772. He re-

moved to Cape Breton about the year 1813. He died there a

bachelor.

Sarah, the only daughter of James and Deborah Wright, was bom
in Truro, October 26th, 1773. She was married to Henry Miller,

March 22nd, 1796. They settled first in the woods on the old Hali-

fax road, about four miles from the iron foundry in Truro, southeast

of the place where William Holstead now resides. The first road

from Truro to Halifax passed the place where the iron foundry now
stands, and over the high hill, south of this place, passing through

Brookfield, east of the present road. Mr. Miller and family removed

about the year 1818 to Brandy Brook, being the same place that Peter

Serret now resides. They continued there, and kept an inn, until
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Mr. Miller died. She then removed to the place that her sons had

settled, now called the Miller Settlement, on the Mountain on th^e

south side of Stemacke Eiver, where she died. They had four sons

and seven daughters ; their sons' names were James, Moses, George,

and Henry.

Robert, the jEifth son of James and Deborah Wright, was born in

Truro, November, 1775. He followed the sea when he was a young

man, and was on board a ship of war for some time. He returned

to Truro about the year 1815, and worked for Mr. Charles l!^elson and

others, for a few years, and then removed to Shepody. He married

and died there.

WiUiam Wright, their sixth son, was born in Truro, l^Tovember

18th, 1777, He removed to Shepody, and was married to Miss

Clark. They lived and died there,

Ephraim, their seventh son, was born in Truro, April 8th, 1779.

He was married to Mary Blachford in 1805. They settled at St.

Andrew's, south of Lower Stewiacke, where they reared their family,

and spent the remainder of their days. ^Irs. Wright died in 1835,

and he was married again to N'ancy, widow of the late Samuel Archi-

bald, of St. Mary's, July, 1843.

James, the eldest son of Ephraim and Mary Wright, was born in

1806. He was married in the State of Maine to Miss Stevens.

Sarah, their eldest daughter, was born March 12th, 1808. She

married John Godfry. They had three sons and seven daughters. They

removed to Wisconsin. Elizabeth, the second daughter, was born in

1810, She was married to James Eamsey, They had three sons

and three daughters. She died June 12th, 1853, and he died July

21st, 1862, Robert Wright, their second son, was born May 2nd,

1814, He was married to Elizabeth Sibley in 1836. They had six

sons and five daughters, Mrs, Wright died August, 1857. He was

married again to Phebe Ann Howard, February 1860. Daniel Mc-

Haifey Wright, was born March 17th, 1817. He was married to

Ann Thomas of Kew Brunswick, They had seven sons and three

daughters. Mary Ann, their third daughter, was born August, 1819,

She was married to John Richardson, They had three sons and five

daughters. They removed to Cape Breton. She died there in March,

1863. He died in November 1855, aged 76 years.

Moses, the eighth and youngest son of James and Deborah Wright,

was born in.Truro, December 3rd, 1780. He was married to Lydia,

daughter of Solomon Hoar, of Onslow, about the year 1806. They

10
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settled on the east side of the South Meadow of Stewiacke, on the same

farm on which Hugh Graham Cox now resides. About the year

1826, he sold this farm and removed to Goshen where he spent the

remainder of his life.

Ephraim, their eldest son was born in the year 1807. He was

married to Lucy, the fifth daughter of John and Sarah Wright, They

had three sons and three daughters. Solomon, their second son, was

married to Miriam, the seventh daughter of John and Sarah Wright.

They had five sons and three daughters. Lydia, their eldest daughter,

was married to Moses, second son of Henry Miller and Sarah Wright,

his wife. Mr. and Mrs. Miller both died a considerable time ago.

Mary, their second daughter, removed to the United States, and

died there. James, their third son, was married to Sarah Dickey.

They had eight sons and three daughters. William, their fourth son,

is still living a bachelor. Moses their fifth and youngest son, was

married to Rebecca, daughter of Amos Maynord and Ruth Wright,

his wife. They had five sons and six daughters. Olive, the young-

est daughter of Moses and Lydia Wright, was married to Daniel

Tupper, and had two daughters. Jane, the youngest daughter of

James and Deborah Wright, was bom in Truro in the year 1782. She

lived until old and died unmarried.

John Ryan was another of the early settlers of Truro, and a

Grantee of the Township. He owned lot number six of the front

division of wood lots, being the east lot, owned now by Mr. John L.

Doggett. He had his house on the north east of Mr. Doggett's house.

He sold out to Alexander MiUer and removed to the county of Hants,

where there are some of his decendants now. His house was burnt

ghortly after he left it. He had five sons and three daughters.

CHAPTER XIV.

There was one Right of the Township of Truro granted for the first

Presbyterian Minister who would settle in Truro, one Right for a glebe,

and another Right for the benefit of schools. It may here be observed

that aU the first settlers, and grantees of Truro were Presbyterians

from Scotland, and the north of Ireland. They soon began to feel

the loss to themselves and their children, from the want of a
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Preached Gospel. They soon hegan to exert themselves to obtain a

minister to labour amongst them. In the year 1763, they petitioned

the Presbytery of Glasgow for a minister, but this petition never

reached its destination. May 21st, 1764, they sent their application

to the Synod of Edinburgh, and in July or August of the year 1765

the Rev. Mr. Kenlock arrived in Truro, and continued to labour in

and about Truro for about three years. Then he returned to

Scotland, and did not accept the call from the people of Truro to

be their settled pastor.

At the earnest request of the people of Truro, the Eev. Daniel

Cock came out from Scotland in the fall of the year 1769. He was

sent out as a Missionary for the whole Province, and continued to

labour in Truro and other parts of the Province for a time.

On the 27th day of February, 1770, David Archibald, George

Scott, Robert Hunter, and John Savage (being a committee) directed

the inhabitants of Truro to be warned to meet at the house of Robert

Archibald on March 13th to hear the report of the Clerk of the

Presbytery of Newton Lambavady, in Ireland, read. Also to hear

the report of their commissioner. Colonel Alexander McNutt, concern-

ing the prospect of obtaining a Minister to be settled among them.

At this meeting held on March 13th, 1770 (John Savage in the chair).

It was resolved that David Archibald, John Johnson, William Fisher,

James Johnson, and John Savage, be a committee to renew their

application to the Presbytery of Lambavady in Ireland for a Minister

to labour amongst them. And on July 28th, 1770, David Archibald,

Esq., directs the heads of families of Truro to be warned to meet at

the Meeting-house, onThm-sday next, at 2 o'clock, P. M., to see what

their minds are respecting the making application to the Rev. David

Cock to be their settled Minister, and to agree upon proposals to be

made to him. Also to see if they will desire Mr. Cock to appoint a

fast day for the election of elders in this town, so that there may be

a session constituted in the congregation. And to see about having

the Church put in some kind of order, so that public worship may be

held in it, as it will soon be inconvenient to have public worship in

barns.

It may here be observed that the frame of this Church was raised

in the spring of the year 1768. As it was made of very large and

heavy timber, it took all the men that could be got in Truro and

Onslow to raise it, with the assistance of a number of the women. It

is said that when they came to fix the site for the Church there was a
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difference of oijinion about where it sliould be. Some were for having;

it placed on the site of William !N'elson's house, and others were for

having it where it was erected, in the Truro Cemetery. There was a

majority of the congregation residing, in the Lower Village and Old

Barns, consequently the lower place was chosen as the place for the

Church. It may be easily understood that a house of its si^e could

not be put up and finished as soon as it could be done now-a-days.-

At a meeting held July 6th, 1772, it was resolved that nails, glass,,

&c., for the outsi-de of the Meeting House be got immediately,

A few years after this, Eliakim Tupper, Esq., took a contract to

complete the inside of the Church, and the workmen who finished it-

were John Christie, who came out from Scotland in the same ship

with Mr. Cock and his family in the summer of the year 1772, and

Daniel McKenzie, who was afterwards married to Sarah, daughter of

Hugh Moor, Senr. This was the only Church in Truro until about

the year 1821, when the Episcopalians erected their Church in the

east end of the Village, In the year 1832 the Baptists of Truro atid

Onslow with the assistance of the Presbyterians, built the small

Church at the east end of the Village which is now being made into a

private dwelling by Mr. Samuel ]S"elson. This house, when built,

was for the use of all denominations. In the year 1844 the

Methodists built their small Church in the east end of the VUlage

which they have now abandoned. Their new one was opened for

Divine Service on December 24th, 1871. The established Church of

Scotland erected their Church in Truro in the year 1861. The

Baptists erected their new splendid Church in the year 1869. The

Roman Catholics opened their small brick Chapel for Service in

]!fovember, 1871,

The Presbyterians built their Church in the Village in the year

1853. In the year 1859 it was found to be too small for the accom-

modation of the congregation, and 19 feet were added to its length.

In the month of May, 1855 the old Church which was raised in 1768,

was taken down and removed, some time after all those who had assist-

ed in erecting it had passed away. It was used for a place of worsliip

for 85 years.

September 13th, 1770, is the date of the caU that was made out

and presented to the Eev. Daniel Cock, froni the Truro congregation,

which he accepted. This call was signed by seven elders who had
been chosen but a few weeks before, and 42 adherents. The names
of the elders were, David Archibald, John Johnson, William Pisher,
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James Johnson, Eobert Hunter, John Savage, and Samuel Archibald.

The names of the adherents are, James Yuill, Senr. , Thomas Gourley,

Samuel Archibald, James Archibald, Matthew Taylor, Thomas Archi-

bald, Matthew Archibald, John Archibald, John Archibald, Junr.,

James Faulkner, John Fisher, James Dunlap, Eobert Archibald,

Alexander ISTelson, William McKeen, John McKeen, John Oughter-

son, WiUiam White, Samuel Wetherby, Adam Dickey, James Wright,

John Fulton, George Scott, David ]N"elson, Adam Boyd, Adam John-

son, James Archibald, Junr., James Fisher, David Archibald, Junr.,

James Johnson, Junr., David IVIcKeen, James Yuill, Junr., Alex-

ander Miller, John Gourley, John Logan, William Logan, Thomas

Skeed, John Taylor, Joseph Moore, Henry Gluen, James Whidden,

David Whidden, and Alexander Mclfutt. This eaU was signed in the

presence of Ephraim Howard and William Blair, of Onslow. It was

accompanied by a bond signed by thirty of the foregoing named

persons, binding themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators and

assigns, to pay the full sum of sixty pounds for each year for the first

two years, commencing on April 1st, 1770. Seventy pounds a year

for the next two years, and eighty pounds a year for the time to come,

the one half to be paid in cash, and the other half in neat stock or

produce, at cash price. Also the one Eight of land that was granted

for the first Minister who would settle in Truro, to himself, his heirs,

and assigns forever. Also the use of the glebe Eight. And they

bind themselves to keep both of these Eights of land fenced and

dyked ; and to pay the sum of thirty pounds towards the expense

of removing his family from Scotland.

The subscribers to the foregoing call were all inhabitants of Truro.

The people of Onslow must have come in and joined this congregation

some time after the date of the call. They continued to be one con-

gregation until about the year 1816, when Onslow was set off as a

separate congregation, and the people of Onslow obtained the services

of the Eev. Eobert Douglass as their first Minister.

The 13th day of September, 1870, one hundred years after the

date of the call before mentioned, was observed in Truro as a day of

thankfulness. A large number of people assembled in the Church in

the morning, and engaged in Devotional exercises, and then marched

in orderly procession to the drill shed, where about fifteen hundred

persons sat down to a well prepared dinner, and ofter dinner addresses

were given by a number of the aged Ministers who were listened
^,0

attentively by about two thousand|personsu
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Mr. Cock returned home to Scotland, and bronght out his wife

and family in the summer of the year 1772. Although the grant of

the Township was obtained in the year 1765, it was not sub-divided

until after Mr. Cock was settled, and his Right, as the first Minister^

was set off to him, and his name marked on the general plan of the

Township, on the several lots set off to him. He had his house built

on his front wood lot where the house now stands which was after-

wards owned by the Rev. John Waddell. A part of this lot is now

used as the Railway Station.

On May 8th, 1796, being Sabbath, he was preaching in the old

Church before mentioned. The people being nearly all at Church, his

house took fire on the roof by a spark from the chimney, and before

assistance could be had the house was in flames. George "Wright ran

to the Church for assistance (a distance of about two miles). He
went to the door and cried out fire ! fire ! and returned with haste.

Few persons heard him, and those who did hear began to go out,

which created quite a confusion in the house. It was some time

before the cause of the stir was generally known. At length his

youngest daughter, who had been married to John Smith about two

months before, went up to the Pulpit and told her father that his

house was burning. He closed the Bible and stepped down from the

Pulpit, quite composed, and recommended the people to try and save-

the Village. It being a very dry time, and the wind blowing very

strong from the southeast, the fire soon caught on Major John Archi-

bald's three barns. The burning shingles were flying., and the smoke

so thick it was with difficulty that the people got up through the

Village. John Logan's barns next took fire, and then William

Logan's barns. The fire continued to sweep the buildings of the

Vniage to the lower end of it. The numl>er of buildings destroyed

that day was eighteen. The dwelling houses were saved, with the

exception of Mr. Cock's and William Plemming's. This house stood

near the place that William Flemming's old house stood, which he

recently took down. Thomas Dickey's house, being tlie same one

that is still standing west of Mrs. Wilson's, was in great danger, the

chips catching fire at the door ; and, as there wore neither men nor

water at hand to save the house, Mrs. Dickey took her churn full of

cream and applied it to quench the fire, and by doing so made out to

save her house. There was a valuable horse tied in William Logan's

barn, wliich stood in the flames until the rope burnt oft", and then the

horse bolted into the street and fell dead. Mr. Cock's house, with
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the most of its contents being burnt, is sufficient to sbow the reason

that so few of his writings are now to be had, as he would be nearly

eighty years old at the time of the fire. He had another house

erected for him on the same place. He lived but a few years in it.

About two and a half years after this, an assistant, and a successor,

was obtained in the person of Rev. John Waddell, and Mr. Cock was

soon laid aside from active and public labors, as the infirmities of old

age were fast coming upon him. He made over his property to his

youngest son, Daniel, and about the year 1802, he sold it to Mr.

Waddell. He removed, with his son Daniel, to the place where

George Cock now resides, and continued to reside with his son

Daniel the short remainder of his earthly existence. He died March

17th, 1805, aged 88 years, and his wife died at the house of John

Smith, June 7th, 1814, aged 80 years.

a>^>g^^

CHAPTER XV.

Mr. Cock was born in Clydesdale, Scotland, in the year 1717. He
was married to Alison Jamison about the year 1754. He was settled

in Greenock for a length of time before he came to Nova Scotia.

William, their eldest son, was born in Scotland about the year

1755. He followed the sea when young, and went by the name of

Captain Cock during the remainder of his life. He was married to

Ann Frost, of Boston, U. S., in the year 1792, and shortly after this

he purchased the house that Eliakim Tupper, Esq. , buUt in the Village,

being the same house that Mr. John Dunlap owned and resided in for

a considerable length of time.

Jane, the eldest daughter of William and Ann Cock, was born in

Truro, November 25th, 1793. She was married to William Ross.

December 31st, 1818. They had two sons; their names were John

and William. Mr. Ross died April 28th, 1824, aged 44 years, and

she was married again to John Dunlap, December 1st, 1825. They

had two sons and foi:r daughters which appear among the Dunlap

families. She died March 1st 1867, aged 73 years, and her husband

died May 1st, 1842, aged 44 years.

Mary Ann, the second daughter of Captain William Cock and Ann
Frost, was born May 15th, 1797. She was married to Robert C.
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Blair, March IStli, 1818. They had seven daughters who appear among

the Blair family. Mr. Blair died May 6th, 1869, aged 77 years.

Anna, their third daughter, was born in Truro, October 3rd, 1799.

She was married to Robert, the youngest son of James Kent, Esq.,

and Margaret Williams, December 31st, 1818. They had six sons and

five daughters. Mr. Kent died January 3rd, 1867, aged 76 years.

William Jamison, the eldest son of Captain William and Ann
Cock was born in Truro, April 29th, 1803. He inherited his father's

property ; he died a bachelor, June 17th, 1870, aged 67.

Daniel, their second son, was born Jiine 18th, 1805. He was

married to Mary Ann, the youngest daughter of Charles and Mary

JS'elson, January 6th, 1831. They settled on the interval of Salmon

Eiver where they still reside. Harriet, the eldest daughter of Daniel

and Mary Ann Cock, was born in 1831. She was married to Eobert

Christie, March 7th 1850. They had four sons and three daughters.

William Cock, their eldest son, was born iJ^ovember 28th, 1832. He
was married to Janet Kent, December 27th, 1865, They have one

son and one daughter. Mary Cock, their second daughter was born

February 9th, 1835. She was married to Walter Christie, May 15th,

1862. They had one son and three daughters. Anna Cock, their

third daughter, was born April 3rd, 1837. She was married to

Frederick Freize of Hants county, February, 1864. Charles IS". Cock,

their second son, was born September 3rd, 1839, He was married to

Elizabeth Stearns, October, 1865. They have one son and tAvo

daughters. Henry Cock, their third son, was born January 28th,

1842. He was married to Hannah Margaret McLeod, of the West

River of Pictou, January 11th, 1871. Jane Cock, their fourth

daughter, was born July 18th, 1845. Herbert Cock, their fourth son,

was born October 26th, 1847. He removed to the Southern States.

Emily Cock, their fifth daughter, was born March 11th, 1850.

Daniel Cock, their fifth son, was born November 1852. Agnes Cock,

their sixth daughter, was born June 19th, 1855. Albert Cock, their

sixth son, was born May 15th, 1858.

Alison Jamison, the fourth daughter of Captain William and Ann
Cock, was born September 29th, 1808. She was married to Samuel

James, the eldest son of Samuel and Nancy Blair, December 24th,

1833. They had two sons and five daughters, and a number of grand-

children which appear among the Blairs.

Elizabeth Johnson, the youngest daughter of Captain William

and Ann Cock, was born November 1st, 1815. Captain William
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Cock died, May 1st, 1832, aged 77 years, and his wife died April,

1854.

Patrick, the second son of the Eev. Daniel Cock and Alison Jami-

son, was born in Scotland in the year 1757, and was brought by his

parents to IS^ova Scotia when he was about 15 years old. He reroain-

ed with them while they lived, and after their death he continued to

live with his youngest brother, Daniel Cock. He was deaf and

dumb and died a bachelor, June 7th, 1822, Aged 65 years.

Mary Ann, the eldest daughter of the Eev. Daniel and Alison Cock,

was born in Scotland about the year 1759. She was married to

Eichard Upham. They settled in Stewiackein the year 1785. They

were married in the year 1784. Mrs. Upham died March, 1842, and

Mr. Upham died October, 1825.

Daniel, the eldest son of Eichard and Maiy Ann Upham, was

born in Truro, September 22nd, 1786. He settled at Otter Brook,

Stewiacke. He was very successful in trapping and shooting bears.

He was married to Charlotte, the fourth daughter of Samuel Fisher

and Mary Tupper, his wife, in the month of October, 1826. They

had two sons and three daughters. He died at Middle Stewiacke, May
15th, 1871, aged 85 years, and his wife died June 11th, 1865, aged

65 years. Eichard, the second son of Eichard Upham and Mary Ann
Cock, was born in May 1788. He was married to Elizabeth McCann

of Wallace Eiver, about the year 1838. He inherited a part of his

father's property on the north side of the North Meadow of Stewiacke

for a time, and then sold out and removed to "Wallace, and died there

May 2nd, 1871. Elizabeth, the eldest daughter of Eichard and Mary

Ann Upham, was born in the year 1791. She lived and died un-

married. She died April 29th, 1855. Alison Jamison, their second

daughter, was born in the year 1793. She was married to John

Jeffers. She died. February 26th, 1861. Mary Ann, their third

daughter, was born in the year 1795. She died unmarried, August

1st, 1855, aged 60 years. Ebenezer, their third son, was born in

March 1797. He was married to Sarah, daughter of Eddy Whidden

and Sarah Fisher his wife, about the year 1828. They had two sons

and four daughters. He removed and settled in N'ew Annan, where

his wife died May, 1857. William, their fourth son, was born May

3rd, 1800. He is living a bachelor. Eobert, their fifth son, was

born April 28th, 1803. He married Jane Davison, January 18th>

1843. They had four sons and six daughters. They reside near the

Albion Mines.
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Christiann, the second daughter of the Eev. Daniel and Alison

Cock, was born in Scotland about the year 1762, and was brought

by her parents to Truro when about 10 years old. She was married

to Mayhew, the eldest son of Eliakim Tupper, Esq., and Elizabeth

ISTewcomb his wife, April 22nd, 1784. They had three sons and three

daughters \ they appear among the Tuppers. Mr. Tupper died in

1803. She was married again to John, son of James and Ann
Fulton, of the Lower Village of Truro. John Fulton had been married

before and had two sons and five daughters. They are all dead-

They removed to Ohio, U. S.

Eobert, the third son of Rev. Daniel and Alison Cock, was born

in Scotland about the year 1765. He followed the sea when young.

He quit the sea and was married to Mary, daughter of Dr. John

Harris in the year 1795. They built a part of the house that Andrew

Moore recently sold. He sold this place to Hugh Moore, and remov-

ed to the Parade, and built the house in which "VViUiam Bowden now

resides, and kept an Inn there until about the year 1818, when they

removed to Tatamagouche Mountain, where they spent the

remainder of their lives. He died there about the year 1843, aged 78

years, and his widow died in the month of I^ovember, 1864. Aged

96 years.

William, the eldest son of Eobert and Mary Cock, was born in

Truro, in the year 1796. He was married to Catherine, daughter of

John Hingley of Tatamagouche, in the year 1823. Mary, the eldest

daughter of William and Catherine Cock, was born in the year 1824.

She was married to Eobert Akenhead in the year 1845. They had

six daughters. She died October, 1869, Aged 45 years. Jane, their

eldest daughter, was born at Tatamagouche Mountain in the year

1826. She was married to Samuel Gray of New Annan in the year

1850, and has a family of children. John and Charlotte, twin son and

daughter of William and Catherine Cock, were born in the year 1828.

John was married to Jane, daughter of David Wilson and Mary

Arbuckle his wife, of ISTcav Annan, in the year 1855. She died in

the month of February, 1867, and he was married again to Mary,

daughter of Alexander Conkey and Mary McCurdy his wife, Septem-

ber 1869. They have one child. Charlotte was married to Henry

Porter, of Earltown, in the year 1854, and has sons and daughters.

Elizabeth, the fourth daughter of William and Catherine Cock,

was born in the year 1830. She was married to George, son of Hugh
Tucker and Euth Lynds, his wife, in the year 1859. They have sons
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and daughters. Robert, the second son of William and Catherine

Cock, was born in the year 1832, He has removed to the United

States. William, their third son, was born in the year 1834. He
has removed to the United States. Alison Jamison, the fifth daugh-

ter of William and Catherine Cock, was born in the year 1836. She

was married to John, son of David Wilson of New Annan. Annie

their sixth daughter, was bom in the year 1 838. She has removed to

the United States. William Cock died February, 1862, aged 66

years.

Ebenezer, the second son of Eobert and Mary Cock, was born in

Truro in the year 1799. He went to Tatamagouche Mountain to chop

and clear the farm to which the family afterwards removed. He was

alone in camp one night, when a large bear came and looked in at the

door. He soon left, but Mr. Cock said, " He sat all night \vith his

gun in his hand to give him a * salute ' in case he returned." Probably

Bruin smelt powder. He was married to Christiann, the sixth daugh-

ter of Aaron Crowe and Abigail Murray, his wife, January 25th, 1825.

Shortly after this he obtained the farm that he still lives upon in Ons-

low, from her brother Aaron Crowe, and they removed to it, where

they reared their family. Mrs. Cock died there August 8th, 1858,

aged 56 years. Abigail, the eldest daughter of Ebenezer and Chris-

tiann Cock, was born January, 1826. She was married to Charles,

son of William Soley, and IsabeU Hill, his wife, March 17th, 1855.

She died December 6th, 1856, aged 30 years. John, the only son of

Ebenezer and Christiann Cock, was born 1828. He removed to the

United States, settled there and was married to Phydora Hays, March

8th, 1855. They had four sons and four daughters. Maria, their

second daughter, was born in Onslow, January 4th, 1831. Lucy,

their third daughter was born July 8th, 1844. Charlotte, their fourth

daughter was born June 20th, 1848.

Eliza, the eldest daughter of Robert and Mary Cock, was born

March 18th, 1801. She was married to James Clark Stevens, March

1st, 1827. Mary Ann, the eldest daughter of James C. and Eliza

Stevens, was born June 4th, 1829. She was married to Alexander

Pears of Wallace Bay, Nov. 16th, 1858. They had two sons and

four daughters. Thomas, the eldest son of James C. and Eliza Ste-

vens, was born June 26th, 1831. He removed to the United States,

and was married there to Mary Ellen Wilson, in the year 1863.

They have two daughters. Maria, their second daughter, was born

May 5th, 1833. David Cutton, their second son was born May 25th,



^5^ Historical and

1835. He removed to the United States, lost his health there, and

returned home, and died a few days after, February 12th, 1859, aged

23 years. Charlotte, their third daughter, was born February 5th,

1839. She was married to James Berrell, Esq., February 17th, 1863.

They have two sons and one daughter. Elizabeth, their fourth daugh-

ter, was born May 21st 1841. She died February 20th, 1863. Har-

riet, the fifth and youngest daughter of James C. and Eliza Stevens,

was born June 10th, 1844. Mr. Stevens died November 20th, 1863.

Eobert, the third son of Eobert and Mary Cock, was born 1803.

He was married to Lavinia, the second daughter of James Drysdale

and JS'ancy Bro^vn, his wife, in the year 1836. He inherits his

father's farm on Tatamagouche Mountain. Amelia, their eldest

daughter, was born in the year 1838. She was married to Eobert,

son of David and Mary Wilson, of New Annan, in the month of

July, 1859. They have two sons and four daughters. George, the

eldest son of Eobert and Lavinia Cock, was born in the year 1841.

He was married to Kate, daughter of Alexander Conkey and Mary

McCann, his wife, in the month of December 1867. They have one

son and one daughter. James, their second son, was born in the year

1845. He was married to Janet King, May 8th, 1872. Mary, their

second daughter, was born in the year 1847. Nancy, their third

daughter, was born in the year 1851. Lavinia, their youngest

daughter, was born in the year 1853. The above Mary Cock was

married to William Kennedy, February 20th, 1872, and Nancy was

married to George Nelson, February 20th, 1872.

Charlotte, the second daughter of Eobert and Mary Cock, was

born in Truro, in the year 1809. She was married to Daniel Field

in the year 1848. Luther, their only son, was born in the year 1849.

They reside in New Annan.

Maria, the youngest daughter of Eobert and Mary Cock, was born

in the year 1812. She was married to Eobert, the youngest son of

Eobert and Hannah Harris, of Truro, about the year 1839. They

now reside at New Annan. Walter, their eldest son, was born in the

year 1842. He removed to the United States. George, their second

son, Avas born in the year 1844. He also removed to the United

States. Mary, their only daughter, was born in the year 1847.

Eobert, their third son, was born 1849. Isaac, their third son, was

born 1852. Eobert, their youngest son, was born .

Ebenezer, the fourth son of Eev. Daniel and Alison Cock, was

born in Scotland about the year 1769. He was married to Elizabeth



Genealogical Record. 157

Polley in 1795. Alison Jamison, their only daughter, was born in

Truro, February 16th, 1796. He and Charles Dickson, Esq., of

Onslow, were in Halifax at the same time. Mr. Dickson took the

yellow fever, and died there, September 30th, 1796. Mr, Cock

waited upon him during his iUness, and he also took the fever and

died there, leaving a young widow and her infant child to bemoan

their sad bereavement. His widow was married again to John, the

fourth son of Alexander and Margaret I^elson, of the old Barns,

March 21st, 1799. Their family appears among the JN'elsons. Alison

Jamison Cock, was married to James Eose, of Hants County, and had

six sons and three daughters. Mr. Eose died a number of years ago.

Jane, the third and youngest daughter of Eev. Daniel and Alison

Cock, was born in Truro in the year 1774. She was married to

John, the second son of John and Mary Smith, May 10th, 1796,

Their family appears among the Smiths. She died July 16th, 1845,

aged 71 years, and Mr, Smith died June 2nd, 1848,

Daniel, the fifth and youngest son of Eev. Daniel and Alison

Cock, was born in Truro in the year 1776. He inherited his father's

property for a time, but about the year 1803 he sold his house and lot

to the Eev. John Waddell, and removed to the North side of the

Eiver. He purchased land from John Taylor, and built the house

that his youngest son, George W. Cock, now resides in, where he

spent the remainder of his life. He was married to Elizabeth

daughter of John Carter, Senr., of Onslow, in the year 1802. He
died October 1st, 1849, aged 73 years, and his wife, Elizabeth, died

December 6th, 1824, aged 46 years. Christiann Nicholson Cock, their

eldest daughter, was born in Truro, June 7th, 1803. She was married

to Major Alexander L. Archibald, March 29th, 1831, and had two

sons. They appear among the Archibalds,

Daniel, the eldest son of Daniel and Elizabeth Cock, was born

October 3rd, 1805, He was married to Nancy, the second daughter

of Samuel Blair and Nancy Archibald, his wife, January 2nd, 1837.

He inherited a part of his father's farm. He died May 19th, 1849,

aged 44 years, Henry, their eldest son, was born September 29th,

1837. He was married to Minerva, youngest daughter of Samuel J.

and Alison J. Blair, August 18th, 1868. They have one daughter.

Amelia, the eldest daughter of Daniel and Nancy Cock, was born

March 20th, 1841. Mary Anne, their second daughter, was born

April 14th, 1843. Susan, their third daughter was born March 14th,
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1845. Edmond A., their second son, was born October 25th, 1847.

Norman, their third son, was born January 6th, 1849.

Jane Smith, the second daughter of Daniel and EHzabeth Cock,

was born October 3rd, 1808. She was married to John, the second

son of Samuel Blair and Nancy Archibald, his wife, Dec. 31st, 1832.

They have three sons and three daughters that appear among the

Blairs. Sarah Lawson, the third daughter of Daniel and Elizabeth

Cock, was born May 8th, 1811. She was married to John D. McNutt

and they have one daughter. Alison Jamison, the fourth daughter of

Daniel and Elizabeth Cock, was born in Truro, April 11th, 1814.

She died December, 1838, aged 24 years. Ann Frost, their fifth and

youngest daughter, was born April 8th, 1817. She was married to

James Farnham, and has two daughters. Alexander Dick, the second

son of Daniel and Elizabeth Cock, was born in Truro, September

23rd, 1820. He removed to California, where he has been practising

as Doctor for a number of years. George W., the third son of Daniel

and Elizabeth Cock, was born June 20th, 1824. He inherits what

was his father's house and farm. He was married to Maria, daughter

of John Blair and Elizabeth McNutt, his wife, October 20th, 1846.

Bessie Allison, their eldest daughter, was born February 2nd, 1848.

Georgie, their second daughter, was born April 23rd, 1849. EmUy
Teresa, their third daughter, was born April 2nd, 1851. She was

married to Burpie Skinner, August 22nd, 1871. Maria Louisa, their

fourth daughter, was born February 12th, 1853. Cassie, their fifth

daughter, was born March 31st, 1855. Alice Maud, their sixth

daughter, was born August 11th, 1857. Annie Gordon, their seventh

daughter, was born August 22nd, 1859. Arthur Ellsworth Cock was

born Oct. 31st, 1861. Harry Engine Cock was bom May 13th, 1864.

In the biography of Miss Marion Blough, which was written and

brought to Wallace, Nova Scotia, by Mr. James Henderson, it is

stated that this " Miss Blough told others that the first impression

which was made upon her mind relative to her eternal welfare was

made by the preaching of the Eev. Daniel Cock, in Scotland. She

went to him after hearing him preach, and conversed with him freely,

which seemed to her the means, in the hands of God, of bringing her

to Jesus Christ, to seek the salvation of her soul through His mediation.
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CHAPT^EE XVI.

The first elders who were chosen in Truro, in the year 1770, by

the Presbyterian congregation were David Archibald, Esq., John

Johnson, Williain Fisher, James Johnson, Robert Hunter, John

Savage, and Samuel Archibald, as before named; and before 1790

Alexander McCurdy and Solomon Hoar were chosen. They resided

in Onslow. About the same time Hugh Moore, Senr., Matthew

Archibald, and James Fulton, of the Lower Village, where added to

the Session of the congregation of Truro and Onslow. In the year

1799 (being the next year after Mr. WaddeU was settled over this

congregation) Ebenezer Hoar, James McCurdy, of Onslow, James

Archibald, Esq., of the Upper Village, and Robert Johnson, of the

Lower Village, where chosen elders. In the year 1803, John Christie,

Alexander Miller, and Alexander Kent were chosen elders. In the

year 1818, John D. Christie, Ebenezer Archibald, Edward Logan, and

Stephen Johnson were elected elders ; and, about the year 1828, John

J. Archibald, Hugh Moore, Junr., Samuel Archibald, Esq., William

McCully, John Smith, and James Laughead were elected to the

Session. In the year 1845, John Faulkner, Samuel J. Archibald,

David W. Archibald, Dr. John Waddell, WiUiam C. Smith, and

Robert 0. Christie, were chosen as elders ; and in the year 1863, Isaac

Dunlap, Robert Smith, John F. Crowe, James F. Blanchard, Robert

H. Smith, James K. Blair, Andrew Johnson, Edward Blanchard,

John L. Archibald, and Thomas Miller were elected and added to the

Session of the Presbyterian Congregation of Truro.

At a meeting held in the Meeting House, April 3rd, 1783, it was

agreed that Charles Dickson, Joseph Scott, Ephraira Howard, Samuel

Nichols, and Capt. Blackemore be a committee to set a value on the

pews in the Meeting House, and that the minister's salary be assessed

on the pews according to their value. It was also agreed that David

Archibald, Esq., Matthew Archibald, Rev. Daniel Cock, and Eliakim

Tupper, Esq., be a committee to give instructions to their represen-

tative to have an act passed agreeable to the foregoing resolution.
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CHAPTEE XVII,

Eev. John Waddell was bom in Scotland, April lOtli, 1771, and

obtained his education in Glasgow. He was licensed to preach the

everlasting Gospel in the month of May, 1797, and in June following

he was ordained and set apart for IS'ova Scotia. He left Scotland

never again to see his native land, on August 12th, 1797, and on

November 6th of the same year arrived in Truro, having been a short

time in New York. Shortly after he arrived he accepted a call from

the congregation of Truro, to be an assistant and a successor to Mr.

Cock, and was inducted on November 16th, 1798. Mr. Cock being

then about 82 years of age, of course the ministerial labors would be

mostly performed by Mr. Waddell. He commenced and carried on

his work with vigor and perseverence. He preached the first sermon

that was ever preached in Brookfield, in the year 1800. His congre-

gation extended over the whole of Onslow, Truro, and Brookfield, and

continued so for about 18 years, when Onslow was set off as a separate

congregation. In the year 1832, Brookfield was set ofi" from Truro.

At this time they commenced to erect a Church there. It was raised

July 17th, 1833.

Mr. Waddell boarded with Alexander Bamhill, untU he was

married to Nancy, daughter of Colonel Jotham and Elizabeth Blanchard,

September 2nd, 1802. Soon after this Mr. Waddell purchased Mr,

Cock's house and wood lot, and removed into the house, where he and

his partner spent the remainder of their days.

Mary, their eldest daughter, was born September 17th, 1803. She

was married to Isaac Smith, February 23rd, 1823. They had two

sons and four daughters. She died in the month of November, 1838.

James, the eldest son of Eev. John and Nancy Waddell, Avas born

May 4th, 1805. He was also a minister of the Gospel. He "was

married to Elizabeth, the third daughter of Edward S. Blanchard, Esq.,

and Jane Archibald, September 28th, 1837. William Henry, their

eldest son, was born June 29th, 1838, He was married to Eliza T.,

the third daughter of Hiram Blanchard, November 15th, 1866. They

have one son, Jane Walker, the eldest daughter of James and

Elizabeth Waddell, was born December 19th, 1840. She was married

to the Eev. Edward A. McCurdy, November 6th, 1866. They have

one son. They are settled in New Glasgow, Pictou County, Eliza B.,



Genealogical Record. i6i

the second daughter of Eev. James and Elizabeth Waddell, was born

August 8th, 1844. She was married to John, son of James Tupper

and Isabell Graham, his Avife, February 28th, 1869. They have

two sons. Edward Sherburne, their second son, was bom August

18th, 1847. Mary, their third daughter, was born June 20th, 1849.

Sarah, their fourth daughter, was born March 9th, 1855. John, their

youngest son, was born September 19th, 1858. Rev. James Waddell

died in HaHfai, March 14th, 1870, aged 65 years. His body was

interred in the family lot in Truro Cemetery.

Jotham Blanchard, the second son of the Rev. John and Nancy
Waddell, was born May 1st, 1808. He was married to N'ancy, the

second daughter of Alexander Kent, Esq., and Jane Christie, April

6th, 1830. John, their eldest son, was born AprO. 5th, 1831.

He left home about the year 1847, and was engaged in business

at Piotou, until about the year 1860, when he removed to Hearts

Content, Newfoundland, and is managing the business of the Sub-

marine Telegraph. J. B. Waddell's wife, Nancy, died August 14th,

1852, aged 45 years. Nancy, the eldest daughter of Jotham B, and

Nancy Waddell, was born January 5th, 1833. Richard Christie, the

second son of Jotham B. Waddell and Nancy Kent, his wife, was

born in Truro, May 3rd, 1835. He removed to Upper Stewiacke,

and carried on his business there as blacksmith. He was married

there to Margaret, daughter of William Eulton, Esq., and Isabell

Rutherford, June, 1864. They had two sons and one daughter. On
May 24th, 1871, as he was leading a horse from a neighbor's stable to

his shop, the horse took fright, sprang and kicked him, and injured

him so badly that he lived but about thirty-six hours after. He died

on the 26th day of May, aged 36 years. He left a widow and three

young children to mourn their loss. Alexander Kent, the third son

of Jotham B. and Nancy Waddell, was born December 23rd, 1837.

He removed to the United States about the year 1858. He carries

on the business of carriage building there. He was married there to

Lucinda Woodberry, about the year 1860. They have two daughters.

Jane, the second daughter of Jotham B. and Nancy WaddeU, was

born July 23rd, 1840. Susan Lynds, their third daughter, was born

July 13th, 1842. William McCulley, their fourth son, was born

January 2, 1845. He removed to the United States in the year 1869.

Samuel James, their fifth and youngest son, was born August 8th, 1847.

John, the third son of Rev. John and Nancy Waddell, was born

in Truro March 10 th, 1810. He was engaged in business as a mer-

II



1 62 Historical and

chant when young, and built the house that George Eeading, Esq.^

now resides in, for a store. He was married to Susan, the onlj

daughter of Dr. David B. Lynds and Sarah Blair, Octoher 3rd, 1833.

Shortly after this he commenced to study, and about the year 1837

he went home to Scotland to complete his education. He returned in

about two years, and commenced to practise as a Doctor of Medicine,

and continued to practice in Truro until the Fall of the year 1849.

He then removed to St. John, N. B., took charge of the Lunatic Asy-

lum, and still has charge of it at this date, May, 1873. Susan, his first

wife (and her twin babes), died December 28th, 1834, aged 23 years.

He was married again to Jane, the second daughter of Edward S.

Blanchard, Esq., and Jane Archibald, his wife, June 25th, 1844.

Susan, their eldest daughter, was bom September 8th, 1846. Sarah,

their second daughter, was born March 29th, 1848. Charles Melville

WaddeU, their only son, was bom December 30th, 1849. He died at

St. John, N. B., March 15th, 1859, being in the tenth year of his

age. His body was interred in the Truro Cemetery.

Elizabeth, the second daughter of Rev. John WaddeU and Nancy

Blanchard, was born March 29th, 1812. She died at St. John, N". B.,

where she had been stopping with her brother, November 13th, 1870,

aged 58 years. Her remains were brought to Truro, and interred in

the family lot in Truro Cemetery.

Jane Walker, the third daughter of the Eev. John and Nancy

WaddeU, was born in Truro, April 27th, 1814. She was married to

John Albro, son of Colonel William Dickson and Rebecca Pearson,

August 16th, 1836. Their only son, Robert Douglas Dickson, wa»

born in Truro, June 16th, 1837. Mrs. Dickson died June 1st, 1840.

Her husband, a few years after, perished at sea on board of a wrecked

ship.

Sarah, the fourth and youngest daughter of Rev. John and Nancy

WaddeU, was bom in Truro, January 5th, 1817. She died January

14th, 1824, aged 7 years. Mrs. WaddeU died August 18th, 1818.

By this sad bereavement he was left with seven young chUdren, but

with the assistance of his Master, he was enabled to persevere in his

Master's work. In the month of October, 1828, he went to Upper

Stewiacke to assist the Rev. Hugh Graham at a sacrament. He
preached on Saturday, and on Sabbath morning when the people

assembled Mr. WaddeU Avas absent, having been struck during the

night with paralysis. He was laid aside from active labor for a few

months by this stroke, and after this he was not able to stand to
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preach, "bat had to sit in a chair, which was fixed up in the pupit for

that purpose. "When he was assisted into the pulpit, and took his

Seat in the chair to resume his puhlic lahours, he gave out the 116th

Psalm. The words of the Psalm heing so very appropriate, his

feelings were overcome, so that it was with difficulty he could

proceed. He continued to persevere in his Master's work, until the

summer of the year 1836, when he started to go to Pictou to attend

Synod. The waggon was driven by his niece, Sarah Archibald. At
that time there were very steep hUls to pass over, and while going

down what is called the Halfmoon Hill, about a half mile from Mr-

IDhristie^s, by some means he and his niece, together with the horse

-and waggon, were all thrown over the embankment. By this fall he

was 30 much injured that he was laid aside again from his public

labors, and in November of this year he demitted his charge of the

Truro congregation.

His zeal for doing good may be judged from one fact. In the

summer of 1837, the widow of one of his elders was sinking under

tjonsumption, and he was assisted into his waggon and driven to the

'door of her house. As ha was not able to be got out of the waggon,

she was drawn to the door in her chair, where he conversed and

prayed with her for the last time in this world. About his last public

address was at the funeral of the five persons who were burnt to death

in the house that was burned March 31st, 1841. Mr. WaddeU closed

bis earthly existence ISTov. 13th, 1842, in the 72nd year of his age.

It may here be observed that there was no other denomination of

Christians in Truro, or its neighborhood, but Presbyterians from its

first settlement, in 1760, until the year 1782. This year Mr. Henry

AUine, who belonged to the Congregationalists, was travelling through

^Nova Scotia, exhorting the people to break off from their sins and

^ome to Jesus Christ that their souls might be saved. He started

from Pictou, in company with another man, August 5th, 1782, to

travel through the woods to Truro on foot. The journey being too

^reat for one day, they lodged in the woods aU night, having no other

-shelter than the trees that overhung them. The second day, when

they came to the upper part of Truro, it was with the utmost difficulty

that they obtained food or lodging. The people, having heard of him
Tjefore, gazed on him as he passed their doors, as if he had been one

of the Antediluvians ; and when he came down to the Village of

Truro he went to the only Inn that was kept in the Village. The

Innkeeper refused him lodgings for any amount of money ; and while
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he was strolling about the road he met with Alexander Miller, wha

consented to lodga him, on condition that he Would not speak to any

of the family- He put him and the man who was with him into a

room hy themselves. They soon began to sing, and some of the

family knocked at the door and asked if they might come in and hear'

them singing. He replied that they might, if they were not afraid of

being caught with the spirit that went about with him. More

freedom was then shown between Mr. Miller and him, and he was-

asked to pray in the family. The next day he was allowed to preach

in Mr. Miller's barn. After this he continued to preach in the

Village. He was summoned to appear before the Session of tha

Truro congregation, to give an account of himself for coming into-

another man's congregation and preaching xchat they believed to be

false doctrine ; but they could not stop him. He continued his

preaching in Truro for three or four days, and then crossed over to

Onslow, and labored there for some time, and went to Horton in Sep-

tember of the same year. In the year 1809, Henry Hail and Amos-

Alline visited Truro and commenced to preach, and again there was an

attempt made to stop them. The Justices'of the Peace threatened to

have them arrested if they did not cease from preaching what they

believed to be false doctrine ; but they preached on, and they applied

to the Government for permission to preach, and received a free

license to preach to all who were willing to hear them.

CHAPTEE XYin,

Capt. John Morrison was another of the first settlers of Truro, and

Was a Grantee of the Township. His front land was adjoining the

Parade, on the North side, and extending Korth to the interval.

Also the interval adjoining it, which is owned by Mr. John McClure

and Robert Chambers, Esq. He built on his house lot, and resided

there about seven years. He exchanged farms -syith Robert Archibald,

and removed to Little Dyke, Londonderry, where he spent the

remainder of his life. On June 6th, 1770, he took his seat in the

General Assembly of this Province, and was the representative of

Londonderry until 1778. He having left the Province for a few
yaars to look after hiis business in New Hampshire, James, son of
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the Rev. David Smith, took his seat in the House of Assembly,

December 5th, 1785, as representative of Londonderry. Mr. Morrison

was born in N^ew Hampshire, in the year 1725. He was married to

Martha Anderson, daughter of Mr. Anderson who was shot by the

Indians, while engaged thrashing grain in his barn. Martha, having

gone to the barn with a drink for her father, and seeing the Indians

behind the barn, ran for the house, but before she reached the house

th« Indians fired after her, and when she got into the house she found

that her dress had nine ball holes in it and she was unhurt. They

were married about the year 1757. Eleanor, their eldest daughter,

was born in Xew Hampshire, September 21st, 1758. She was

married to Edward Faulkner. They had nine sons. They settled

in Economy, where they spent their lives, and reared their nine sons,

and died.

Mr. Morrison came with the first company that came to Truro

in the Spring of the year 1760. His wife remained in !N"ew Hampshire

until the Spring of the year 1761, and then came on with a number

more who came that Spring. Daniel, their eldest son, was born in

New Hampshire, I^ovember 24th, 1760. He was married to Rachel

McLellan about the year 1790. He inherited a part of his father's

farm, and was a Justice of the Peace for the District of Colchester for

a number of years before he died. They had five sons and five

daughters. His house stood near the place on which his son,

Alexander D. Morrison, Es(j., lived and his grandson, Joseph Howe
Morrison now resides. Daniel Morrison died ai Little Dyke,

November 26th, 1832, aged 72 years, and his wife died December

2 let, 1843.

Hannah, the second daughter of Capt. John and Martha Morrison,

was born in Truro, December 25th, 1762. She died unmarried, at

Londonderry, December 25th, 1792. John, their second son, was

born in Truro, October 25th, 1764. He perished, in the month of

December, 1799, on board of a vessel that foundered in the Bay, near

Londonderry, He died <a bachelor.

Jonathan, the third son of Capt. John and Martha Morrison, was

born in Truro, October 24th, 1766. He ^as married to Martha

Faulkner in the year 1794. They had six sons and three daughters.

They settled at Five Islands, where they reared their fanuly and spent

the remainder of their lives. He died there in the year 1843.

Joseph A. Morrison, their fourth son, was born in Londonderry,

July 13th, 1769. He was married to Isabella, the third daughter of
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Thomas Fletcher and Jane Vance, his wife, of Masstown, in the year

1802. Tliey have four sons and four daughters. (Their third son,.

Thomas F. Morrison, Esc[., now represents the County of Colchester-

in the Local Parliament of ISTova Scotia.) He inherited a part of his-

father's farm at Little Dyke, and had his house near the place that his

son, Samuel, now resides, where they reared their family, spent the

remainder of their lives, and he died there in the year 1846, aged 7T

years, and his wife died October, 1821, aged 43 years.

Samuel, the fifth son of Capt. Jolin and Martha Morrison, was

born at Londonderry, August 19th, 1771. He was married to

Frances Hays in the year 1801. They had two sons and four-

daughters. He died February 1 2th, 1820, aged 48 years, and his

wife died February 11th, 1828, aged 47 years.

Martha, the third daughter of Capt. Jolui and Martha Morrison,

was born March 13th, 1774. She was married to John Williamson..

They removed, and settled in the County of Pictoii. They had two

sons and six daughters. Margaret, their fourth daughter, was born in

Londonderry, March 3rd, 1776. She was married to Edward

Faulkner, second. They settled in Economy, and had three sons and

five daughters. She died there in the year 1860, aged 84 years.

Ezekiel, the sixth son of Capt. John and Martha Morrison, was born

in l!^ew Hampshire, October 10th, 1780. He was married to Elizabeth

McLellan. They settled in Londonderry for a time. They had five

sons and two daughtera. They removed to the County of Hants, and

he died in St. John, IS". B.

As before mentioned, Capt. John ISIorrison having left proj^erty

unsold in IS^e-w Hampshire, returned there at the time of the rebellion.

He sold his property, but could not get his pay for a length of time.

He worked at his trade as a blacksmith, and had to remain tliere sa

long that his seat in the Assembly was declared vacant, June 25th,

1778, and his family went to him and remained there until peace was-

restored. He obtained payment for his property, and he and his family

returned to Londonderry, where he spent the remainder of his life.

He died there December 27th, 1816, aged 91 years, and his wife died

March 31st, 1811, aged 72 years.
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CHAPTER XIX,

A large, splendid, and expensive monument was erected about the

year 1825 in the city of Londonderry, in the N'orth of Ireland, to the

memory of the brave men and apprentice boys who defended that

city so manfully during the siege, in the years 1688 and 1689. On
this monument is engraved the name of Colonel Eobert Blair, Avith a

large number of others of the most brave. This Eobert Blair

belonged to the family of Blairs of Blairathol, in Scotland. His son,

of the same name, Colonel Robert Blair, came to North America with

his regiment, and brought with him his wife and family, and

afterwards settled in Worcester, Mass., where they spent the remainder

of their lives. Mr. Blair died there in the year 1774, aged 91 years,

and his wife, Isabella, died in the year 1765, aged 82 years. They

had seven sons. Their names were Matthew, James, Joseph, John,

David, "William, and Francis. Joseph remained on the homstead at

Worcester. He had one son, whose name was Charles, and five

daughters. John and David settled at Warren, and had families.

Capt. Alfred Blair, of Warren, is greatgrandson of this Colonel Blair.

Dr. Blair, of Rome, is grandson of Colonel Blair.

Capt. William Blair came first to lN"ova Scotia on military duty in

the year 1758, to assist in subduing the French and taking Louis-

burg. He returned to iS'ew England and was relieved from military

duty, and came again to N'ova Scotia, and brought with him his wife

and family, in company with the other first settlers who came to

Truro in the Spring of the year 1760. They settled on the farm on

the interval of i!^orth River that was afterwards owned by his son,

John, and he had liis house near the place that his greatgrandson,

WiUiam Blair, now resides. A few years after they obtained a grant

of the Township of Onslow.

Francis Blair, brother of William, came with the first settlers of

Onslow, and was a Grantee of the Township, and it is said that he,

being discouraged with the hardships of settling in a new country,

sold out his Right of land in Onslow for th^ small sum of eight

dollars, and returned again to New England.

The grant of the Township of Onslow was made to Richard

Upham and sixteen others for a certain number of shares or rights
;

to Francis Blair and thirty others for certain other rights or shares, in
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all forty-eight persons. This grant was for 50,000 acres, being the

whole of the Township of Onslow. It is dated February 21st, 1769,

and is signed by Lord William Campbell, who was then Governor of

Nova Scotia. In laying off the land of this Township, so much

surplus measurement was given that it now contains about 80,000

acres.

Capt. "William Blah- was born in the year 1716. He was married

to Jane Barns, in New England, about the year 1740. He died

August 4th, 1791. Susan, their eldest daughter, was born in the year

1741. She was married to Mr. Isaac Farrell, June 10th, 1763.

They returned to New England. He was an officer on military duty,

and he fell at the battle of Bunker HiU.

Sarah, the second daughter of Capt. William Blair, was born in

New England in the year 1743. She was married to Ephraim

Howard, December 8th, 1763. Mr. Howard settled near the North

Eiver bridge, and built the first mill that was built in Onslow. This

mill stood near Mr. James McNutt's shop. A miU was kept there

until about the year 1812, when the heavy freshets filled the race and

pond with gravel, and the mill was allowed to go down. Mr. Howard

had sold this mill a considerable time before this date, and removed to

St. Andrew's River, and built some mills, where he carried on milling

during the remainder of his life. They had one son and six

daughters.

William, the eldest son of Capt. William Blair, was born in New

England in the year 1750, and was brought by his parents to Nova

Scotia when he- was ten years old. He was married to Mary,

daughter of James Downing and Janet Montgomery, November 26th,

1772. They settled on the farm that was afterwards owned by his

two sons, Alexander and Oliver, up the North River, where they

reared there numerous family, and spent the remainder of their lives.

He died in March, 1841, aged 91 years, and his wife, Mary Downing,

died in the month of November, 1817, aged 67 years.

Jane, their eldest daughter, was born in Onslow, IMarch 30th,

1773. She was married to Archibald, son of ^latthew Taylor and

Elizabeth Archibald, May 4th, 1797. She had one child, which died

young. She died October 19th, 1799. Mr. Taylor removed to St.

Mary's, and was married again to ^lary McDonald, of Pictou. They

had three sons and two daughters. Robert, the eldest son of William

Blair and Mary Downing, his wife, was born in Onslow, November

1st, 1774. He was married to Mary, daughter of Ebenezer and
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Catherine Hoar, of Onslow, January 20th, 1801. They settled on

the farm on which Turner Blair now resides. In the year 1819 he

exchanged places with his brother William, and removed to the mills

where his son David now resides. About this time the first carding

mill was set agoing in the lower part of the saw mill which stood

where Robert Blair's mill now stands. This was the first carding

machine that was set agoing in the County of Colchester, and I think

in the Province of !N^ova Scotia. It was considered a great curiosity,

and attracted numerous visitors.

"William, the eldest son of Eobert and Mary Blair, was born in

Onslow, !N"ovember 23rd, 1801. He learned the shoemaking business

with his uncle, Ephraim Blair, who then carried on the business where

Mr. William Gregor now resides. He was married to Elizabeth, the

youngest daughter of John Wright and Sarah Lynds, January 24th,

1827. In the Spring of the year 1828 they removed to Eiver John,

and remained there until about the year 1842, when they removed

to Illinois, U. S., where they are still living. They had six sons and

six daughters.

Ebenezer, the second son of Robert Blair and Mary Hoar, his

wife, was born in Onslow, June 6th, 1802. He died in the year 1810,

aged eight years.

Daniel, their third son was born February 2nd, 1806. He was

married to Mary, the second daughter of John B. Archibald and

Catherine Hoar, his wife, October 12th, 1830. He inherited a part

of his father's farm at North River. They had two sons and five

daughters, Mrs. Blair died October, 12th, 1861, and he was married

again to Catherine, widow of the late James Logan of Upper Stewi-

acke, October 24th, 1871. Mary Hoar, first wife of Robert Blair,

died November, 1810. He was married again to Elizabeth, daughter

of William Taylor, and Margaret McCurdy, May 1st, 1814. James,

their eldest son, was born December 1st, 1814. He was married to

Phoebe Ann, daughter of William Lynds and Margaret McCoUum, his

wife, July 7th, 1835. They had five sons and three daughters.

They removed to Tatamagouche about the year 1853. He and

his sons have been engaged ever since running stage coaches from

Truro to Tatamagouche, and from Pictou to River Philip, County of

Cumberland.

David, the second son of Robert Blair and Elizabeth Taylor, was

born in Onslow, June 10th, 1816. He was married to Mary, daugh-

ter of John Miers and Elizabeth Lynds, of Wallace River, June 3rd,
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1857. They liave three sons. He inJierits the homestead part of his

father's farm.

Mary, the eldest daughter of Robert and Elizabeth Blair, was

born January 13th, 1820. She was married to William, son of

"William and Margaret Lynds, November 1st, 1839. They are settled

on the south branch ot Ilorth River, and have four sons and three

daughters.

Margaret, the second daughter of Robert and Elizabeth Blair was

born December 30th, 1821. She removed to the United States, and

was married there to George Glaison in the year 1858.

Robert, the third son of Robert and Elizabeth Blair, was born

March 3rd, 1823. He was married to Jane, daughter of "William and

Margaret Lynds, Jamiary 15th, 1844. They have two sons and four

daughters. He inherited a part of his father's farm and the sawmiU,

and now resides on part of the farm that was owned by Mr. Alexan-

der Blair.

Jolin, the fourth son of Robert and Elizabeth Blair, was born

September 12th, 1825. He was married to Mary Ann Welsh, of the

State of Maine. They had one son who died when seventeen years

old and one daughter.

Charles, their fifth son was born March 4th, 1828. He removed

to the United States and married there and has three sons.

Henry, their sixth son, was born JN'ovember 12th, 1831. He is

now in the Lunatic Asylum.

Elizabeth, their third daughter, was born January 13th, 1835.

She was married to John, son of David Murray and Mary Dickson,

Feby. 8th, 1855. They have two sons and five daughters. Robert

Blair, Scnr., died December 21st, 1843, aged 69 years, and his wife

died I^ovember 4th, 1855, aged 62.

John, the second son of William Blair and Mary Downing, his

wife, was born February 8th, 1778. He was married to Isabella

McNutt, the only daughter of Samuel McXutt, September 22nd,

1807. They settled on Onslow Mountain, on the same ftirm on which

their son Jotham Blair, Esq., now resides, where they reared their

family, and spent the remainder of their days. He died January 31st,

1831. His wife died September 11th, 1846, aged 57 years. On one

occasion Mr. Blair tackled his horse, and Avent to work ])loughing

potatoes Sabbath morning ; one of his neighbours went to him, and
with some difficulty convinced him that it was Sabbath. When he
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was convinced, he soon tintackled his horse, and was very much
grieved at the thought of his sad mistake.

Samuel, the eldest son of John and Isabella Blair, was horn in

Onslow September 20th, 1808. He was married to Elizabeth, daugh-

ter of Samuel MclN'utt and Ann McMullon, his wife, March,. 1852.

They have three sons.

Mary, the eldest daughter, of John and Isabella Blair, was born

April 22nd, 1810. She removed to the United States, and was mar-

ried there to Mr. Brody.

William, their second son was born April 22nd, 1812. He re-

moved to the United States, and was married there, and has not been

heard from for a length of time.

Myzeann, their second daughter, was born January, 31st, 1815.

She was married to David Carlyle, June, 1844. They have one son

and six daughters.

Elizabeth, their third daughter, was born August 4th, 1817.

She was married to Thomas, youngest son of Samuel Archibald, Esq.,

and Elizabeth, his wife, July 25th, 1848.

Jotham M., their third son, was born July 27th, 1819. He in-

herits his father's farm. He is a Justice of the Peace, and is still

living a bachelor.

Margaret Jane, their fourth daughter, was born August 4th, 1821.

She is still living, unmarried, with her brother Jotham M., at the

homestead.

John !N"., their fourth son, was born April 4th, 1824. He re-

moved to ^New Zealand.

James H., their fifth son, was born November 8th, 1826. He
removed to Boston, Mass., and is married there.

Alexander, their sixth and youngest son, was born May 19th,

1828. He removed to the United States, and was married there to

Annie Hughes. They have two sons and one daughter. They now

reside in Halifax.

WiUiam, the third son of William Blair and Mary Downing, his

wife, was born in Onslow, August 1st, 1779. He was married to

Sarah Campbell, of Queen's County, New Brunswick, March 6th,

1815. They settled first where David Blair now resides at North

River; and in the year 1819 removed to the place on which his son,

K. Turner Blair now resides, where he spent the remainder of his life.

He died June 10th, 1852, aged 73 years. Abiathar, their eldest son,

was bom August 3rd, 1817. He was married to Eleanor, the fifth
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daxighter of Samuel Whidden and Sarah Stevens, December 27tli,

1842. Xliey had eight sons and two daughters. Mary Jane, their

eldest daughter, was born i^ovember 16th, 1819. She died August

2nd, 1851, aged 32 years. Eobert Turner Blair, their second son,

was born July 15th, 1824. He was married to Hannah, daughter of

Ealph Johnson and Phoebe Whidden, his wife, October 8th, 1852.

He now inherits his father's house and farm. Rachel H., the second

daughter of William and Sarah Blair, was born January 29th, 1830.

She was married to Isaac Smith, (being his second wife) Ifovember

29th, 1857. They had one son and one daughter. She died March

26th, 1864, aged 34 years. Matilda, their third daughter was born

July 16th, 1833. She was married to James, the youngest son of

John Staples and Catherine Blair, his wife, August, 17th, 1851. They

have one son and five daughters.

Catherine, the second daughter of WiUiam Blair and Mary Down-

ing, was born April 22nd, 1782. She was married to John Staples,

May 30th, 1803, being Mr. Staples' second Avife. Their family ap-

pears among the Staples.

Daniel, the fourth son of William and Mary Blair, was born

October 20th, 1784. He was married to Rebecca Freeman, of Cum-
berland County in the year 1807. (This Mrs. Blair was born Sep-

tember 11th, 1790.) They settled near the Onslow Cemetery, where

he died January 10th, 1862, aged 77 years.

William, the eldest son of Daniel and Rebecca Blair, was born

January 5th, 1808. He removed to Horton, and was married there

to Rebecca Paj'^zant, in the year 1837. They had three sons and two

daughters. He died May 1845.

Hannah, the eldest daughter of Daniel and Rebecca Blair, was

born June 1st, 1812. She was married to Joseph Hamilton, of Lower

Onslow, March 1838, being Mr. Hamilton's second wife. They had

one son and one daughter.

Samuel Freeman, their second son was born May 27th 1814. He
was marrred to Eliza, daughter of James Blair and Mary Breggs, of

New Brunswick, December, 1837. They had three daughters. He
lost his eyesight, and died in the year 1847.

Oliver, their third son, was born September 10th, 1816. He was

married to Ruth Atkinson, of Cumberland County, in the year 1842.

She died, and he was married again to Margery, daughter of James

Hamilton and Jane Carter, his wife, August 10th, 1851. They
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temoved to Wallace Kiver, where they now keep an Inn. They had

three sons and two daughters.

John M., the fourth son of Daniel and Rebecca Blair, was horn

October 3rd, 1827. He Was married to Margaret McNutt, Kovember

28th, 1850. They had one son and two daughters. He was a

blacksmith. He died January 12th, 1869, aged 42 years.

Isaac, the fifth son of Daniel and Rebecca Blair, was born June

1st, 1830. He Was married to Rebecca, daughter of Rufus McNutt

and Margaret Crowe, February 17th, 1852, He inherits a part of his

father's farm.

Almira, their youngest daughter, was bom April 22nd, 1833.

She was married to William, son of Daniel Cummings and Margaret

McDougall. They have three sons and one daughter. They now
teside in Truro Village, and he is carrying on business as a merchant.

Alexander, the fifth son of William and Mary Blair, was bom
March 6th, 1787. He was married to Sarah Bebee, of Wallace River,

in the County of Cumberland, December 28th, 1815. He inherited

the homestead half of his father's farm. He was Captain of a company

of MUitia for a length of time. In the month of September, 1816, he

Was assisting to raise the house in which Mr. Charles H. Blair now
resides, when a joist of the Upper floor gave way, and he fell to the

bottom of the cellar, on a heap of small stones, which injured him so

badly that he could not be taken home for about two weeks. He
stiU shows the effects of this fall by the way that his head stands

forward.

Secor McDonald, the eldest son of Alexander and Sarah Blair, was

born August 3rd, 1818. He removed to California some time ago,

Amelia, their eldest daughter, was born March 13th, 1822. She died

December 24th, 1860, aged 38 years. Susannah, their second

daughter, was born August 3rd, 1824. She was married to Lockhart

Dimock, of Newport. They had two sons and one daughter. Lemuel

S. Blair, their second son, was born December 18th, 1826. He was

married to Jane Irish, of Antigonish, January, 1858. They have one

Bon and three daughters. They have removed to Boston, Mass.

Kancy M., their third daughter, was born June 26th, 1829. She was

married to Rev. George Wethers. They have one son and one

daughter. She died at Newport, 1871. Amanda M., their fourth

daughter, was bom May 2nd, 1831. She was married to the Rev.

George Wethers, October, 1872.

Harriet N. Blair, their fifth daughter, was born December 19th,
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1835. She -vras married to Eev. Hiram "Wallace, in the month of

January, 1S62. They removed to Ohio, TJ. S. Henrietta F. Blair,

the sixth daughter of Alexander and Sarah Blair, was horn April

28th, 1838. She was married to Oliver, son of Mr. David Hurd and

Dehorah Bebee, of Wallace Elver, May 27th, 1868. They have one

daughter. Mrs. Sarah Blair, mother of the foregoijag family, died

December 4th, 1864.

Ephraim, the sixth son of "WiUiarn and Mary Blair, was born

February 17th, 1789. He was married to Abigail Hall, of Onslow

Mountain, January 20th, 1814. He carried on the shoemaking

business at the place where Mr. William Gregor now resides. He sold

this place to Mr. Gregor about the year 1830, and removed up the

North Eiver, and settled on the farm on which his two sons now
reside. Here he spent the remainder of his life, and died January

22nd, 1864, aged 75 years. Jane, the eldest daughter of Ephraim

and Abigail Blair, was born December 28th, 1814. She was married

to Adam McNutt, November 2nd, 1836, and had four sons and two

daughters. WiUiam, their eldest son was born May 3rd, 1817. He
removed to E. E. Island, and was married there to Sarah Baker.

They had four sons and two daughters. They removed to Illinois, IT. S.,

and he died there in August, 1862, aged 45 years. Mary, their

second daughter, was born March 11th, 1820. She was married to

William McCuUey, of Debert Eiver. They have two sons. Mar-

garet, their third daughter, was born November 21st, 1822. She was

married to Charles McCully, 1849. They had four sons and five

daughters. Alexander, their second son, was born August 6th, 1825.

He was married to Isabell Beggs. She died December 22nd, 1868,

and he was married again to Barbary Wilson, of Chiganois, July

11th, 1870. He died March 3rd, 1871. John, the third son of

Ephraim and Abigail Blair, was born May 10th, 1828. He was

married to Eebecca, daughter of Daniel Blair and Mary Archibald,

1853. They have one daughter. George, their fourth son, was born

!May, 1830. He removed to Wisconsin, and was married there and

had one daughter. They removed again to California. Charles, their

fifth son, was born May 31st, 1832. He removed to Wisconsin, and
is married there and has two daughters. Ephraim Howard, their

sixth son, was born August 6th, 1838. He was married to Sarah

Ann, daughter of Robert McCollum and Mary Moore, 1866. They
have one son and one daughter. Eenew, the fourth and youngest

daughter, was born July 6th, 1841. She was married to David, son
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of Thomas McColluni and Jane Irvin, They have one son and three

daughters.

James, the seventh son of William Blair and Mary Downing, was

born May 28th, 1792. He removed to New Brunswick and was

married there, to Mary Breggs, of Queen's County, in the year 1815.

They had three daughters. Their eldest daughter, Eliza, was married

to Samuel, son of Daniel Blair, of Onslow, 1837. They had three

daughters. Mr. Blair died in 1847. James Blair was drowned from

a fishing boat 1830, in the Bay of Fundy, below St. John's. His

body was found and brought to the City of St. John's and buried

there.

Oliver, the eighth and youngest son of WiUiam Blair and Mary

Downing, was born October 7th, 1794. He was married to Mary,

the eldest daughter of John Smith and Jane Cock, December 20th,

1817. He inherited one-half of his father's farm, where they reared

their family. He died there November 23rd, 1871, aged 77 years,

and his wife died July 1869, in the seventieth year of her age.

Ebenezer Smith, their eldest son, was born December 15th, 1820.

He was married to Mary King, January 15th, 1843. Tryphena, their

eldest daughter, was born November 22nd, 1844. She died August

22nd, 1862, aged 18 years. Mary Jane was born October 29th,

1847. Caroline was born December 15th, 1850. Sarah was born

March 22nd, 1853. Jessie Ellen was born May 22nd, 1855. Nancy

was born September 1st, 1857. She died March 18th, 1859. Emma
was born Sept. 4th, 1859. McDonald was born Jany. 29th, 1863.

Mary Ann, the eldest daughter of Oliver and Mary Blair, was

born October 28th, 1823. She was married to John Harris Blacke-

more in the year 1844. They had one son and two daughters. They

removed to the United States, where he, his son, and one daughter

died some time ago, and Mrs. Blackemore is now living, with her

daughter, in Addison, State of Indiana.

John Smith, the second son of Oliver and Mary Blair, was born

February, 1826. He was married to Louisa, daughter of John and

Elizabeth Blair. She died August 21st, 1853, aged 20 years. He
was married to Eliza Ivendrick, of Boston, where they now reside.

They have two sons, named Howard and John Blair, and one

daughter, Carnice Blair.

Jane Smith, the second daughter of Oliver and Mary Blair, was

born September 10th, 1829. She was married to George C. Phillips,

September 12th, 1851. Margaretta, their eldest daughter, was born
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February 5th, 1854. Charles jSToble, their eldest son, was horn

March 31st, 1856. John Amos was born March 20th, 1858.

Caroline S. was born August 12th, 1860. Eva was born March 27th,

1863. Lewis G. was born April 1st, 1865. Emma Louisa was born

July 23rd, 1867. Mary Black was born iSTovember 21st, 1869.

James, the third son of Oliver and Mary Blair, was born May,

1832. He was married to Eleanor, daughter of James Hall, of

Onslow Mountxin. They hid two sons, who both died while young,

James Blair died March 16th, 1861, aged 29 years.

Charles Hill, the fourth son of Oliver and Mary Blair, was bom

January 12th, 1835. He was married to Jane, daughter of David V.

Crowe, Esq., and Esther Barnhill, September 9th, 1862. Lizzie,

their eldest daughter, was born April 9th, 1864. Mary Alice, their

second daughter, was born February 23rd, 1866. Alison, the third

and youngest daughter of Oliver and Mary Blair, was born March

27th, 1839. She was married to Augustus, son of Isaac Mc-

Curdy, Esq., and Nancy Blanchard, October 1st, 1860. Isabell, their

eldest daughter, was born September 9th, 1862. Mary Blanch, their

second daughter, was born September 29th, 1864. LiUy Thomson

was born September 18th, 1837.

Hannah, the third daughter of Capt. William Blair and Jane

Barns, his wife, was born in New England about the year 1747. She

came to Nova Scotia with her parents, in the year 1760. She

was married to Eobert Archibald, Esq., April 2nd, 1767. They had

two sons and six daughters. They appear among the Archibalds.

She died at Musquodoboit, November 4th, 1834, when she was about

87 years old, and her husband died in October, 1812, aged 67 years,

Dorothy, the fourth daughter of Capt. William Blair and Jane

Barns, was born in New England about the year 1753. She was

married to Simeon Whidden, of Truro, about the year 1775, They

had six sons and five daughters.

Rebecca, the fifth daughter of Captain William and Jane Blair,

was born in Now England in the year 1757. She was married to

Thomas Lynds about the year 1774. They had five sons and six

daughters who appear among the Lynds families. She died January

9th, 1838, aged 80. Her husband died January 6th, 1839, aged 92

years.

John, the second son of Captain William Blair and Jane Barns,

was born in New England in the year 1758, and was brought by his

parents to Nova Scotia in the spring of the year 1760, when he was
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about two years old. Agnes Downing, who was afterwards his wife,

was born in Truro, January 23rd, 1762. (She was daughter of James

Downing and Janet Montgomery). They were married September

20th, 1781. He inherited his father's farm in Onslow, where they

reared their family, and spent the remainder of their days. He died

there October 5th, 1847, aged 89 years, and his wife died January

9th, 1829, aged 67 years.

Samuel Barnes, the eldest son of John Blair and Agnes Downing,

was born March 10th, 1782. He was married to Nancy, the eldest

daughter ofJames Archibald, Esq., and Eebecca Barnhill, January 25th,

1805. He inherited a part of his father's form and built his house,

which is still standing, on the hill south-east of his son David's house.

In this house they reared their family, and spent the remainder of

their lives. He died October 14th, 1862, aged 80 years, and his wife

Is^ancy died December 29th, 1857, aged 75 years.

Samuel James, the eldest son of Samuel and Nancy Blair, was

born October 27th, 1805. He was married to Alison Jamison, fourth

daughter of Captain William Cock and Anne Frost, December 24th,

1832. He built his first house, which is still standing, on the west

side of the lane, west of the Episcopalian Church. He sold this plac«

to the late John Bass, Esq., and then built the house in which William

Faulkner, Esq., now resides. About the year 1853 he sold out again,

and built the house in which he now resides, on the interval of

Salmon Eiver.

Thomas, their eldest son, was born January 20th, 1834. H«
removed to Canada, and was married there to Margaret Campbell.

They returned to Truro, and now inherit a part of his father's farm.

They have four sons and two daughters. Joanna, the eldest daughter

of Samuel J. and Alison J. Blair, was born January 2nd, 1836. Sh«

was married to Robert Dickson, September 17th, 1862. They have

four sons and one daughter. Eichard, the second son of Samuel J.

and Alison J. Blair, was born in Truro, June 18th, 1838. H*
removed to Canada in the year 1859, and continued there a few years,

and removed again to the Southern States. He was there engaged in

the war for nearly four years, and endured many hardships, but

escaped with a few slight wounds. He was married to Nancy Lafray,

of Canada. They had two daughters. Mrs. Blair and one of their

daughters are dead. Harriet, their second daughter, was bom
January 25th, 1841. She was married to William Blair, son of

Simeon H. and Janet Blair, January 26th, 1864. They have two

12
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sons and two daughters. Frances, their third daughter, was born

April 26th, 1843. Maria Ai:gusta, their fourth daughter, was born

November 18th, 1846. Minerva, their fifth and youngest daughter,

was born September 26th, 1850. She was married to Henry, son of

Daniel Cock, third, and Xancy Blair, August 18th, 1868. They

have one daughter.

John Blair, fourth, second son of Samuel and Kancy Blair, was

born June 20th, 1807. He was married to Jane S., second daughter

of Daniel Cock and Elizabeth Carter, his wife, December

31st, 1832. Charles, their eldest son, was born June 2nd,

1834. He left home in 1856, and is now settled on the

Island of Tanna, in the South Seas. George, their second son,

was born July 4th, 1836. He removed to New Zealand, and

was married there in the year 1868. He is now settled on the Island

of Tanna, with his brother Charles. Elizabeth, their eldest daughter,

was born September 15th, 1838. She was married to Capt. Henry

B. Park, in the United States, in January, 1862. They have one son

and one daughter, Jessie, their second daughter, was born February

15th, 1841. She was mariied to Thomas, eldest son of William

McKay and Nancy McLeod, his wife, October 28th, 1868. They

have one daughter. He is now carrying on business as merchant in

Truro. Clara, their third daughter, was born November 7th, 1846,

She was married to Edmond 0. Fitch, January 9th, 1868, and on

November 19th, 1869, as she was riding in a waggon with her

husband, and had a horse leading behind the waggon, in passing the

house of Mr. WUliam Nelson, a dog ran out and frightened the horses.

They started suddenly and upset the waggon. When she was taken

up life had departed, Edgar, their third son, was born February 4tli,

1853, He removed to the United States,

Sarah, the eldest daughter of Samuel and Nancy Blair, was born

March 20th, 1809. She was married to John Bishop, of Onslow, July

4th, 1844, They had one son and two daughters. Mr. Bishop died

November 11th, 1865. Nancy, their second daxighter, was born

March 20th, 1812. She was married to Daniel Cock, third, January

2nd, 1837. They had two sons and three daughters, who appear

among the Cock families. Mrs. Cock died May 19th, 1849, aged 44

years,

^David the third son of Samuel and Nancy Blair, was bom May
20th, 1814, He was married to Esther, daughter of William

Fletcher and Margery Wilson, February 15th, 1848. He inherits a
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patt of what was his father's farm, and is an elder of the Baptist

Church. Adelaide, their eldest daughter, was born December

22nd, 1848. Luther, their eldest son, was born February 27th, 1850.

Herbert, their second son, was born May 28th, 1851. He died Maj
May 14th, 1853. Frances Amelia, their second daughter, was born

September 16th, 1858. Elida Anna, their third daughter, was born

March 3rd, 1861.

Eebecca, the third daughter of Samuel and Nancy Blair, was born.

April 17th, 1816. She was married to Adam Dunlap, March, 1837.

They had two sons and one daughter. Mrs> Dunlaf> died December

21st, 1855, aged 39 years.

Esther, the fourth daughter of Samuel and l^ancy Blair, was

born April 21st, 1818. She was married to James Linton, of

Onslow, April 8th, 1834. They had three sons and three daughters.

Elizabeth, the fifth daughter of Samuel and Nancy Blair, was

born May 25th, 1520. She was married to William, son of Major

A. L. Arcliibald and Mary Fulton, November 4th, 1845. They had

two sons and five daughters.

Susan, the sixth and youngest daughter of Samuel and Nancy

Blair, was born June 3rd, 1822. In September, 1827, in her

play, she climbed up a cart body that was leaning against a fence. The

cart body upset and fell upon her, and she was taken from under it a

lifeless corpse.

James Downing, the second son of John Blair and Agnes

Downing, his wife, was born December 28th, 1783. He was married

to Esther, daughter of Joseph McLain and Esther Hamilton, October

26th, 1809. Mr. Blair died November 4th, 1867, aged 84 years.

Nancy, their eldest daughter, was born August 16th, 1810. She was

married to Hugh L. Dickie, Esq., May 24th, 1849. They have two

sons. Mr. Dickie has filled the office of Custodes Rotulorum of

King's County for some time past. Lavinia, their second daughter,

was born November 6th, 1811. She was married to Joseph M.

Dickson, Esq., March 3rd, 1835. They had one son and four

daughters. Mr. Dickson died February 21st, 1865, aged 58 years.

Amelia, their third daughter, was born December 19th, 1813,

She was married to Adam Dunlap, February, 1857. Wellington

Blair, their only son, was born April 13th, 1817. He was married

to Lavinia Roach, of Cumberland, March 3rd, 1848. They have

three sons and six daughters. He inherits a part of his father's farm.

Margaret, the fourth daughter of James D. and Esther Blair, was
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born May 28tli, 1820. She was married to Alexander D. Whidden,

of Maitland, February 24th, 1841. They settled in Portland, Me.

They had two sons and four daughters. Rachel, their fifth daughter,

was born October 29th, 1823. Olivia, their sixth daughter, was born

September 2nd, 1826. She was married to George W. Marsters, of

i^ew Brunswick, June 16th, 1866. Sarah, their seventh daughter,

was born December 13th, 1829. Susan, their eighth daughter,

was bom April 13th, 1834. She was married to Dr. Alexander

Crofford Page, September 20th, 1860,

Susannah, the eldest daughter of John and Kancy Blair, was

born March 8th, 1786. She was married to Matthew, fourth son of

James and Rebecca Archibald, December 30th, 1813. They had two

sons and six daughters, that appear among the Archibalds. She died

July 29th, 1850, aged 63 years, and her husband died July 24th,

1831, aged 44 years.

Sarah, the second daughter of John and Kancy Blair, was bom
jSTovember 1.5th, 1788. She married Dr. David B. Lynds, October,

1811. They had one daughter. Dr. Lynds died June 9th, 1871,

aged 89 years.

John, the third son of John and Nancy Blair, was born February

3rd, 1793. He was married to Elizabeth McNutt, Febmary 3rd,

1814. Margaret, their eldest daughter, was bom November 1st,

1815. She was married to Thomas H. Gibbs, of Shubenacadie, in

the year 1843. They had one son and four daughters. Nancy, their

second daughter, was bom March 11th, 1817. She was married to

Charles Blanchard, Sheriff of the County of Colchester, January 30th,

1845. They had two sons and three daughters. John, their eldest

gon, was born January 5th, 1821. He was married to Olive, eldest

daughter of Thomas Lynds and Elizabeth Clark, his wife. May 1st,

1845. They had one daughter. Mrs. Blair died November 26th,

1848, aged 34 years. He removed to New Brunswick, and wa»

married there to Caroline M. Forsyth, November 5th, 1851. They

had three sons and three daughters. Maria, their third daughter,

was bom September 24th, 1823. She was married to George W.
Cock, October 20th, 1846. They had two sons and seven daughters,

Charles Dickson Blair, their second son, was born May 24th, 1827.

He was married to Elizabeth, daughter of James Blair and Phoebe

Ann Lynds, September, 1852. They had two sons and five daughters.

He has kept an Inn on the Mountain between Onslow and Tatama-

gouche for some time, Henry, their third son, was bom February
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15th, 1829, he was married to Mary Ann, second daughter of John

Dickson^ Esq., and Margaret Kent, December 30th, 1852- They had

three sons and five daughters. Ann, their fourth daughter, was born

August 2nd, 1832. She was married to Albert Lock, in 1860. They

have one daughter. Louisa, their fifth and youngest daughter, was

born February 1st, 1834. She was married to John S., second son

of Oliver Blair and Mary Smith. They had one child. She and her

child died. She died in Boston, August 21st, 1853, in the 20th year

of her age. Her body was removed and interred in Onslow Cemetery.

William, the fourth son of John and iNancy Blair, was born in

Onslow, September 27th, 1795. He was married to Susan, youngest

daughter of James Kent, Esq., November 19th, 1819. He learned

the trade of tanning and shoemaking with Major A. L. Archibald.

He purchased the tannery which Samuel Fulton put up in 1816. His

son Charles now resides on the same place. He died there, August

9th, 1834, aged 39 years, and his widow died February 7th, 1864,

aged 68 years. Charles H Blair, their eldest son, was born November

29th, 1822. He was married to Nancy, daughter of Thomas Smith

and Mary Young of Londonderry, October 28th, 1869. They have

one daughter. James Kent, their second son, was born August

28th, 1826. He was married to Nancy McCuUy, 1850. They had

one son and two daughters. Mrs. Blair died suddenly October 11th,

1854, aged 30 years. He was married again to Caroline, daughter of

Thomas M. and Letitia Crowe, September 11th, 1857. They hav«

three sons and one daughter. He has held the office of Eegistrar of

Deeds for the County of Colchester, since February, 1854. Silas, the

third son, was born March 15th, 1829. He left home in the year

1847 to go to Canada, but changed his mind and went to Michigan.

He remained there a few years, and was married to Sarah Fellows, in

1850. They had one daughter. Shortly after this, he removed to

California, where he engaged in gold digging. On the 16th of May,

1854, while he was down in the pit it caved in, and he was taken out

dead. He was 25 years of age.

Simeon H. , the youngest son of John and Nancy Blair, was bom
in July, 1789. He was married to Janet G., second daughter of

Daniel and Eunice McCurdy, December 14th 1820. He inherited

the homestead part of his father's property. Here he spent his life,

and died October 19th, 1866, aged 68 years. Eunice Wright, their

eldest daughter, was born October 2nd, 1821 ; she died January 25th,

1848. Mary McCurdy, their second daughter, was born February
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8tli, 1824. She was married to A. M. Wells, July Uth, 1847; tliej

had one son and two daughters. Daniel McCurdy Blair, was born

January 9th, 1827 ; he died January 30th, 1827. George Blair, their

second son, was born January 9th, 1828. He was married to Matilda

Harrison, in June, 1856. They had two sons ; one is dead. Bessie,

their third daughter was born March 7th, 1830. She was married to

the Eev. Henry Charlton, in May, 18-55. They had eight children;

five of these are dead. Israel Blair, their third son, was born January

29th, 1834. He was married to Alida DeWolf, in the month of

l^ovember, 1868. They have one daughter. William, the fourth son

of Simeon H. and Janet Blair, was born May 25th, 1836. He was

married to Harriet, daughter of Samuel J. and Alison J. Blair. He
inherits the hometead part of his father's farm. (This property was

owned by his grandfather, John Blair, and his greatgrandfather, Wm.
Blair.) William Blair is now Major of the Militia of Onslow ; he has

taken an active part in the agricultural society and in getting a cheese

factory started ; the first cheese factory that was started in Colchester

was built on his farm in the year 1871. Xancy Harriet, the youngest

daughter of Simeon H. and Janet Blair, was born in Onslow, October

9th, 1838. She was married to Edmond W. Hamilton Sept. 21st,

1858. They have one son and three daughters besides three children

who died when they were young.

Olive, the youngest daughter of John and I^ancy Blair, was born

February 14th, 1805. She was married to Charles, eldest son of

Daniel and Eunice McCurdy, December 14th, 1829. They had on»

son and three daughters. They removed to Pug\vash, wliere she died

September 28th, 1860, aged 55 years.

Elizabeth, the sixth and youngest daughter of Capt. WiUiam
Blair and Jane Barns, his wife, was born in Onslow, July 2nd, 1768.

She was married to Shelomith Woodworth, September 19th, 1793.

Hannah, their eldest daughter, was born November 28th, 1796. She

was married to Elijah Bill. They had one son. Jane, their second

daughter, was born November 4th, 1798. She was married to Joseph

Sibley. They had six sons and four daughters. Mr. Sibley died

February 1st, 1862, aged 71 years. Benjamin, their eldest son, was

born February 9th, 1801. He was married to Fanny Jane O'Brien,

1827. They had three sons and six daughters. He inherits a part of

his father's property at Lower Stewiacke. Lydia Barns, their third

daughter, was born January 11th, 1803. She was married to

Barnabas Knowles, 1833. They had three sons and three daughters.
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Sarah, their fourth daughter, was born November 25th, 1804. She

was married to Absalom Pickings, September 21st, 1845. They had

one son. Ingram William, their second son, was born February 9 th,

1807. He was married to Hannah McDonald, June, 1844. He died

in Halifax, January 16th, 1873, aged 66 years. Asel, their third son,

was born May 22nd, 1809. He was married to Louisa WiUiams,

February 19, 1836. They had six sons and five daughters. He died

May 1st, 1857. His widow died May 31st, 1859. Nancy Bams,

their youngest daughter, was born May 2nd, 1811. She was married

to William Faulkner, Esq., of Truro, June 3rd, 1839. They had two

soas and two daughters. Mr. S. Woodworth died May 19th, 1850,

aged 84 years, and his wife died October 5th, 1848, aged 80 years.

James, the third and youngest son of Capt. William Blair, was

born July 19th, 1766. He was married to Isabella Catherwood, July

20th, 1792. They lived and reared their family where Augustus

McCurdy now resides. Eobert Catherwood Blair, their only son, was

born March 25th, 1793. He was married to Mary Ann SiBcring,

second daughter of Captain William and Anne Cock, March 18th,

1818. He built a part of the house which stands on the corner, on

the Southeast of the Parade, where Mr. Atkins now resides. He

resided in this house until 1834. He then purchased a farm from

Eobert Kent, in the Lower Village of Truro, where he spent the

remainder of his life. He died May 6th, 1869, aged 77 years. Ann
Frost, their eld^t daughter, was born February 14th, 1819. Isabella,

their second daughter, was born September 3rd, 1820. She was

married to William Cutton, December, 1848. They had three song

and two daughters. Jane, their third daughter, was born IS'ovember

2 let, 1822. She was married to Charles McNutt, and has four sons

and one daughter. Sarah Lynds, their fourth daughter, was born

December 6th, 1829. She was married to Alexander U. Cutton,

April 20th, 1857, and has four sons. They now inherit her father's

farm in the Lower Village of Truro. Mary Ann, their fifth daughter,

was born January 10th, 1833. She was married to J. C. Black, 1861.

They have one son. Henrietta Blair, their sixth daughter, was born

June 8th, 1840. She died June 8th, 1866.

Isabell, the only daughter of James and IsabeU Blair, was born in

1795. She was married to John Browning. They had two sons and

six daughters. She died in 1868. Mr. Browning died some time

before. Mr. Blair's first wife died April 16th, 1795. He was married

again to Sarah Cutton, February 4th, 1800. He died November 1st,
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1858, aged 91 yeara. His widow died October 27th, 1872. Eliza

Blair, their eldest daughter, was born February 9th, 1805. She was

married to George Herron, and had a family. Jane, the aecond

daughter, was born February 8th, 1807. She was married to William

Elliott, 1835, They had five sons and two daughters. She died in

1848. Lydia, their third daughter, was born February 3rd, 1810.

She was married to Emmerson Herron, April 2nd, 1828. They had

four sons and five daughters. She died about 1850. Eleanor, their

fourth daughter, was married to Eobert Eedpath, September 19th,

1839. They had one son. Mr. Eedpath was drowned in McCurdy'a

Creek, in Onslow, July 19th, 1841. Mrs. Eedpath was married again

to Thomas Johnson. They removed to the United States. Eebecca,

their fifth daughter, was married to Samuel Perry. They removed to

the United States. They had one son and two daughters. She died

in 1870.

CHAPTEE XX.

Eobert Barnhill emigrated from Donegal, in the north of Ireland,

to Halifax, Nova Scotia, with his wife, one son, and three daughters,

with their husbands and families, with a large number of other

persons, being in all about three hundred. This emigration was under

the direction of Colonel Alexander McNutt, the British Government

agent. They came in the ship called the " Hopewell." She arrived

in Halifax Harbor, October 9th, 1761, and the passengers were landed

on what is now called McNab's Island. They had to remain about

Halifax during the winter, and in the spring of the year 1762 some

of these people weat to Windsor, some to Horton, some to London-

derry, some to Onslow, and some to Truro. They were sent out and

supplied by the British Government. Mr. Barnhill and a number

of his family settled in Chiganois, and were Grantees of the Township

of Londonderry. His wife is said to be the first person that was

buried on tlie Burying Island, in the Chiganois Marsh ; the place is not

now known. Eebecca, their eldest daughter, was married to Joseph

Foster, and remained in Ireland.

John, their only son, was born in Ireland in the year 1730, and

Lotitia Deyarmond, his wife, was born in the year 1734. They were

married before they left Ireland. John tlie eldest son of John and
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Letitia Barnhill, was born in the year 1762. He was married to

Sarah, the eldest daughter of Joseph Crowe, Senr., and Esther Barn-

hill, his wife, about the year 1786. Esther, their eldest daughter, was

born March 19th, 1787. She was married to Isaac Logan, of Cum-
berland County, March 22nd, 1810. They settled in Onslow, where

she spent the remainder of her life. She died February 10th, 1853,

aged 65 years. She left no children. Mr. Logan was married again

to Martha, daughter of David Archibald, fourth, and Esther Cox, his

wife, and widow of the late Jonathan Blanchard, December 5th, 1854.

Mr. Logan died March 11th, 1872, aged 72 years.

Joseph, the eldest son of John and Sarah BarnhiU, was born

January 27th, 1794. He was married to Rebecca, the second

daughter of Alexander and Rebecca MiUer, of Truro, February 29 th,

1816. They had five sons and two daughters. They settled on the

farm on which their three sons, Alexander, Robert, and Charles, now
jeside, on the East side of the Chiganois River, where they reared their

famUy and spent the remainder of their lives. He died March 15th,

1869, aged 75 years, and his wife died June 1st, 1843, aged 44 years.

James, the second son of John and Sarah BarnhiU, was born June

24th, 1796. He was married to Esther, daughter of Timothy Putnam

and Janet Hunter, his wife, March 17th, 1818. They had three sons

and five daughters. Their son John was driving a team of oxen

drawing marsh mud, on the 28th of April, 1848. He was riding in

the cart, returning for a load, and fell, and the wheel ran over his

body. He was taken up dead. He was fourteen years old at the

the time. Mrs. BarnhiU died May 3rd, 1868, aged 73 years, and he

was married again to Jane McKay, widow of the late John Sutherland,

September 7th, 1871.

Alexander, the third son of John and Sarah BarnhiU, was born

February 28th, 1801. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter of

Samuel Davison and Sarah Crowe, his wife, of Portaupique, November

27th, 1823. They had two sons and fire daughters. He inherited a

part of his father's farm. He died December 31st, 1857, aged 56 years.

Rebecca, the second daughter of John and Sarah BarnhiU, was

born August 10th, 1803. She was married to Isaac Dickie, of Corn-

wallis, February 19th, 1826. They had three sons. They resided

for a time in Onslow, where their eldest son, John B. Dickie, Esq.,

now resides. Mrs. Dickie died there suddenly, June 15th, 1847.

Mr. Dickie was married again and removed to CornwaUis, where h«

died February 28th, 1858. John B. Dickie is now Custodes
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Rotulorum for the County of Colcliester. Alexander, the second son

of John Barnhill, Senr., and Letitia Deyarmond, was horn in 1765.

He was married to Alice, fourth daughter of Eobert and Esther

Hunter, in 1787. In 1786, John Barnhill purchased Eohert Archi-

bald's farm in Truro, also a part of David Whidden's farm. Both

Mr. Barnhill and his son settled on these farms and spent their days

there. The father died ISTovember 12th, 1813, aged 83 years. His

wife died July 22nd, 1791, aged 57 years. Their son Alexander died

September 22, 1813, aged 47 years; his widow died December 22nd,

1831, aged 65 years. Letitia, the eldest daughter of Alexander and

Alice Barnhill, was born in 1788. She was married to John

Gumming in 1808. They had eight sons and two daughters. She

died February 17th, 1854. Mr. Cummings died October 30th, 1862,

aged 78 years. Thomas, the fourth son of John and Sarah Barnhill,

was born August 8th, 1808. He was married to Maria Davison,

November 6th, 1832. Thoy had five sons and three daughters. He

died suddenly, April 26th, 1870. John BarnhiU's first wife died Jun«

30th, 1825. He was married again to Letitia Crowe, June 1st, 1832.

Isaac Logan, their son, was born May 23rd, 1836. He was married

to Hannah Lockhart, eldest daughter of Jacob and Eleanor Lynds,

May 5th, 1858. They had two sons and two daughters. John

BarnhUl died Oct. 23rd, 1847. His second wife died Aprd 8th, 1839.

John, the son of Alexander and Alice Barnhill, was born August

5th, 1791. He was married to Nancy, second daughter of William

Joyce and Mary EUiott, his wife, in the year 1817. He inherited his

father's farm, and in the year 1816 he sold his house, and the interval

lying on both sides of the Marsh road, and built his house up the

Halifax road, where they spent the remainder of their days. They had

four sons and three daughters. Mrs. Barnhill died March 11th, 1829,

the same day their son Robert was born. He was married again to

Sophia, the youngest daughter of dumb John Johnson, May 4th,

1835. They had two sons and four daughters. Mr. Barnhill died

May 2nd, 1871, aged 79 years.

Esther, the second daughter of Alexander and Alice Barnhill, was

born in Truro, September 25th, 1798. She was married to David V.,

eldest son of Joseph Crowe and Mary Vance, in the month of January,

1817. They had four sons and three daughters. They settled at

Debert River. He died June 15th, 1868, and his widow died October

22ud, 1872, aged 74 years. Alice, the youngest daughter of Alexander

and Alice Barnhill, was born July 18th, 1801. She was married to
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Joseph Wilson, of Masstown. They had two sons and three daughters.

Mr. Wilson died June 6th, 1866, aged 77 years, and his first wife,

Susannah Fletcher, of Dehert, died July 30th, 1830.

Q>^>g^^

CHAPTER XXI,

Alexander Deyarniond was married to Mary, the third daughter of

the foregoing named Eohert Barnhill. They remained in Ireland for

about six years after the rest of the family removed to Nova Scotia, when
her father wrote for them to come to N'ova Scotia and take his

property in Chiganois, and maintain him the remainder of his life.

They removed to ISTova Sootia, with their family, ahout the year 1767,

and settled on Mr. Barnhill's property, at Chiganois, where they spent

the remainder of their days. They had three sons and three daughters.

Eehecca, the daughter of the above named Alexander and Mary
Deyarmond, was married to John Spencer, of Londonderry. They

had three sons and one daughter. Elizabeth, the second daughter of

Alexander Deyarmond and Mary Barnhill, was married to Thomas

EUis, of Musquodoboit, October, 1795, being the first pair that the

Eev. Mr. Brown married in Londonderry. They had two daughters.

Letitia, their third daughter, was married to Charles Blackie, of

Pictou, in 1804. They settled at Upper Stewiacke. They had five

daughters. She died May 26th, 1835, aged 63 years, and her husband

died October 11th, 1869, aged 86 years.

Eobert, the eldest son of Alexander Deyarmond and Mary

Barnhill, was born in Ireland in 1761. He was married to Nancy,

daughter of the late Thomas Wilson, of Masstown, about the year

1790. They removed and settled at Pembroke, in Upper Stewiacke,

where they reared their numerous family. He died there February

11th, 1814, aged 53 years, and his widow died January 26th, 1860,

aged 89 years. Alexander and Thomas, their twin sons, were born

February 10th, 1792. Alexander was married to Mary Cottom, of

Debert Eiver, March 15th, 1815. They had three sons and three

daughters. They settled on what was a part of his father's farm,

where he carried on the blacksmith work, and reared his family. He
died June 19th, 1846, aged 54 years, and his widow died August

13th, 1857, aged 67 years. Thomas was married to Nancy Cottom,
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January 1st, 1813. They had four sons and three daughters. He

settled on what was a part of his father's farm, being the same on

which the Messrs. Bairds now reside. Some time after he exchanged

farms with James Hamiltom, and removed to what was a part of the

farm of Archibald Gammell, where he spent the remainder of his life.

He died April 1st, 1870, aged 78 years, Robert Deyarmond, their

third son, was born August 1793. He went into the woods and was

lost ; search was made for him, and his body was found dead, March

16th, 1850, aged 56 years. Mary Deyarmond, their eldest daughter,

was born March 18th, 1795. She was married to Edward Hughes,

January, 1816. They removed to Halifax. They had three sons and

four daughters. She died in Hali&x, October, 1860, aged 65 years,

and her husband died about the year 1856, Joseph Deyarmond,

their fourth son, was born March 8th, 1798. He was married to

Jane Stark, February 28th, 1822, They had five sons and three

daughters. He settled on a part of his father's farm. His wife died

September 28th, 1865, aged 68 years. John Deyarmond, their fifth

son, was born January 1st, 1800. He was married to Rebecca,

daughter of John and Elizabeth Deyarmond, February 5th, 1823.

They had five sons and two daughters. He inherited a large part of

his father's farm. He died December 11th, 1861. His widoAV died

April 14th, 1866. Samuel, their sixth son, was born iN'ovember 6th,

1801. He was married to Susan, third daughter of John and Isabell

Baird, February 17th, 1829. They had four sons and three daughters.

He settled on what was a part of his father's farm, in Pembroke.

Sarah, their second daughter, was born March 11th, 1804. She was

nmrried to George Proven, June 12th, 1829. They had four sons and

three daughters, James Deyarmond, their seventh son, was born in

December, 1805, He left home in 1827, and nothing has been heard

from him since, Charles, the eighth son, was born in 1807, He
removed to P, E, Island. He Avas married there to the widow

Simpson, in 1840, They had one daughter. They removed to IS'ew

Brunswick, He died there January, 1870. His wife died January,

1869. Rebecca, their third daughter, was born in 1809. She was

married to John Graham, December, 1831.

John, the second son of Alexander and Mary Deyarmond, was

born in Ireland in 1764, and was brought by his parents to Nova

Scotia when he was about three years old. He was married to

Elizabeth Wilson, of Masstown, about 1793. He inherited his father's

farm in Chiganois, where he reared his three sons and nine daughters.
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He died Kovember 17tli, 1850, aged 86 years. His widow died

August 23rd, 1866, aged 91 years.

Mary, the eldest daiigliter of John and EUzaheth Deyarmond, was

born March 10th, 1794. She was married to WiUiam McDormond,

of Debert Eiver, October 23rd, 1818. They had two sons and two

daughters who are living, besides several that died young. Ho died

April 5th, 1871, aged 78 years.

Alexander, the eldest son of John and Elizabeth Deyarmond, was

born December 18th, 1795. He was married to Isabell, daughter of

John and Mary Dickson, of Onslow Mountain, February 1st, 1825.

They had one son and two daughters. Mrs. Deyarmond died

November 30th, 1843. He was married again to Ruth Morrison, of

Debert, January 30th, 1846. She died :N"ovcmber 1st, 1845. He
was married again to Rachel, daughter of James Cottom, October

14th, 1861.

Rebecca, the second daughter of John and Elizabeth Deyarmond,

was born March 13th, 1798. She was married to John, son of

Robert and Nancy Deyarmond, February 3rd, 1823. They had five

sons and two daughters. She died at Stewiacke, April 14th, 1866,

and her husband died December 11th, 1861. Jane, their third

daughter, was born in ISTovember, 1 800. She was married to Jasper

Crowe, February 15th, 1825. They had two sons and four daughters.

Letitia, their fourth daughter, was born 1802. She was married to

Charles Graham, of Pembroke, N'ovember, 1836. They had three

sons and three daughters. Thomas, the second son of John and

Elizabeth Deyarmond, was born May 13th, 1806. He was married

to Mary Ann, daughter of William H. Wilson and Jane McElhenny,

January 27th, 1835. They had one son and three daughters. Mrs.

Deyarmond died October 15th, 1864.

Elizabeth, the fifth daughter of John and Elizabeth Deyarmond,

was born May 14th, 1809. She was married to Thomas Baird, of

Onslow Mountain, November 12th, 1849. They have two daughters.

Sarah, their sixth daughter was born 1811. She was married to

James Graham of Pictou, October 14th, 1841. They had three sons

^nd three daughters.

John, their third and youngest son, was born September 2nd,

1816. He was married to Isabel Flemming, daughter of Alexander

and Jane Fletcher, of Folly Mountain, November 2nd, 1843. He
inherits the homestead part of his father's farm, being the same that
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was owned by his grandfather Deyarmond, and his great grandfather

Robert Barnhill. They have one son.

Nancy, their seventh daughter, was born October, 1814. She

was married to William Eay, of Pictou, August 2nd, 1847. They

have three daughters. ^Margaret, their eighth daughter, was born

February 28th, 1819. She was married to Wilson Staples, January

7th, 1864.

Susan, their ninth daughter, was born May, 1821. She was

married to Eobert Young, of Pictou, March, 1845. They have one

son and thrse daughters.

Alexander, the third son of Alexander Deyarmond and Mary

Barnhill, was born about the year 1766. He was married to Mary,

daughter of the late Thomas Fletcher, of Masstown. They had four

sons and five daughters. They lived for some time on the farm that

the late Daniel Chisholm recently lived upon at Debert, Londonderry.

They removed to Michigan, United States, about 1820.
^

CHAPTER XXII.

Margaret, the second daughter of Robert Barnhill, was born in

Ireland about the year 1736. She was married to Thomas Baird

about the year 1754. They had four children before they left Ireland*

Three of these died on the passage out. They came out in the ship

" Hopewell," that arrived in Halifax, October, 1761. Dorcas, their

only child that lived to see Nova Scotia, was married to Alexander,

son of John Vance and Mary Kelly his wife, in the year 1777. They

settled on the farm that Vinton Faulkner now resides upon at Red

Head, Londonderry, where they reared their family, and spent nearly

all their lifetime. Mr. Vance died about the year 1828, aged about

74 years, and his wife Dorcas died about the year 1832, aged 75

years. She was four years old when they came to Nova Scotia.

Mary, the eldest daughter of Alexander and Dorcas Vance, was

born in the year 1778. She was married to John Morrison, of Debert

in the year 1797. They had five sons and three daughters. She died

July 14th, 1850, aged 72 years, and her husband died October 11th,

1857, aged 86 years.

John, the eldest son of jMexander and Dorcas Vance, was born in
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the year 1779. He was married to Catherine McGregor in the year

1800. They had four sons and five daughters. Mr. Vance died in

May, 1869, aged 89 years, and his wife died December, 1869.

Thomas, their second son, was born in the year 1783, and was mar-

ried to Rebecca Carr, in the year 1806. They had four children be-

fore they removed to Michigan, U. S., and had a number afterwards.

He died there in the year 1860, aged 77 years.

Jane, their second daughter, was born in the year 1 785. She was

married to Eichard Upham, of I^orth Eiver, December 31st, 1805.

They had three sons and two daughters. Mr. Upham died in the

year 1815, before his son Richard was born. Richard was born

October, 1815, and she was married again to William Miller, 1819.

She died in Truro in the year 1860, aged 75 years. David, their

third son, was born in the year 1786. He left home when about

twenty years old, to follow the sea, and never was heard from.

Margaret, their third daughter was born in the year 1791. She was

married to Andrew Fulmore, of Five Islands, in the year 1810. They

had five sons and four daughters. She died in May, 1836, aged 45

years; her husband was married again. He died May 17th, 1872.

Isabel, their fourth daughter, was born in the year 1793, She was

married to Robert Simpson, of Economy, in the year 1815. They had

five sons and three daughters. They removed to Portland, Me. about

the year 1845, and died there. Alexander, the fourth son of Alexander

and Dorcas Vance, was born February 15th, 1795. He was married

to Elizabeth Miller, of Debert, March 17th, 1820. He settled, and

built the house that Frederick Pearson, Esq. , recently lived in, where

they resided until about the year 1834, when they removed to Canada,

They had four sons and three daughters. Mrs. Vance died there, and

he was married again, and had three sons and four daughters. Mr.

Vance died there in the year 1857, aged &2 years, Rebecca, their

fifth daughter, was bom in the year 1798. She was married to Hugh

Mclnnis in the month of Ifovember, 1818. They had four sons and

four daughters. They settled on the Wallace Road, near the Folly

Lake, and continued there until about 1834, when they removed to

Canada. She died there in the year 1858, aged 60 years, and her

husband died in the year 1869. James, the fifth and youngest son

of Alexander and Dorcas Vance, was born December 1st, 1800. He
was married to Margaret daughter of EdAVard Faulkner and Jane

Savage, of Hants County, August 19th, 1820. They had four sons

and two daughters. Mrs. Vance died June 18th, 1845, aged 45 years,
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and he was married again to Elizabeth, daughter of Henry McLaughlan

of Economy and Jane Wilson, widow of the late James Campbell, of

the Folly. Mrs. Vance died, and he is living with his son at the

Folly.

CHAPTER XXIII,

Thomas, the eldest son of Thomas Baird and Margaret BarnhiU

his wife, was born in Chigonois, April 30th, 1762. As these first

settlers who were sent out by the British Government were supplied

by provision, served out on the first day of May, so much for every

man, woman and child ; Thomas being but one day old, the parents

received as much provision for him as any other of their family.

Thomas Baird, Junr., was married to Magdalen, daughter of John

Dickson of North River, October 9th, 1793. James D., their eldest

son, was born August 6th, 1796. He was married to N'ancy, the

third daughter of Alexander and Rebecca MiUer, of Truro, July

13th, 1820. They had six sons and two daughters. They resided in.

Onslow until the year 1861, when they removed to Pembroke in

Stewiacke, where he spent the remainder of his days. He died there

June 2nd, 1871, aged 75 years. Margaret, the eldest daughter of

Thomas and Magdalen Baird, was born July 16th, 1798, She was

married to James Fulmore, of Five Islands, in January, 1822. They

had three sons and five daughters. Mr. Fulmore died, and she was

married again to George Spencer, and resided at Richibucto untd he

died about the year 1867 ; she is now living a widow. Jane, their

second daughter, was born in Onslow, March 30th, 1800. On
November 25th, 1825, in crossing the Bay returning from a visit to

the Old Barns on horseback, she got into deep water and fell from the

horse. She held by the bridle until she and the horse were both

drowned. Mr. Perry was watching her at the time, but could render

her no assistance. Darkness set in, by the aid of torches her body

was recovered a few hours afterwards, and taken to her father's house.

John, the second son of Thomas and Magdalen Baird, was born

October 11th, 1803. He was married to Sarah, daughter of John
Fulton and Esther Crowe of Bass River, June 28th, 1827. He in-

herited a part of his father's farm at Lower Onslow. Rebecca, their

third daughter, was born January 7th, 1806. She was married to
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Jolin, son of Thomas Crowe and Esther Fulton, of Debert Eiver,

March, 1827. They had one son and two daughters. Mrs. Crowe

died February 16th, 1845. Mr. Crowe was married again to Susan,

daughter of David Blackmore and Janet Hoar, his wife, of !N"orth

River, March 3rd, 1846.

Thomas, the third son of Thomas and Magdalen Baird, was bom
July 11th, 1808. He inherited a part of his father's farm, and was

married to Eliza Jane, daughter of Joseph Hamilton and Eachel

Carter, October, 1842. They had four sons and one daughter. ^Irs.

Baird died December 12th, 1866, aged 50 years, and he died July

12th, 1872, aged 64 years. Nancy, the fourth and youngest daughter

of Thomas and Magdalen Baird, was born November 30th, 1810.

She was married to Thomas McLellan, of Great Village, March 9th,

1839. She had two children, and they both died youjig. She died

January 7th, 1852, aged 41 years, and her husband died December

22nd, 1865, aged 66 years. Thomas Baird inherited his father's farm

in Chiganois. He sold out there and settled at Lower Onslow, where

his two sons, John and Thomas, now reside. He died January 7th,

1837, aged 75 years, and his wife died January 29th, 1849, in the

76th year of her age.

Jane, the daughter of Thomas Baird and Margaret Barnliill, was

born in the year 1764. She was married to Joseph McDormond, of

Masstown, in the year 1785. They remained in Masstown about ten

years, then removed across the Bay, and settled on the farm that John

Barber now resides upon, near the mouth of the Shubenacadie Eiver.

They continued there untd about the year 1830, when they removed

across the Bay again and settled on the West side of the Folly

Eiver, where they spent the remainder of their lives. He died in the

year 1839, and his wife died in the year 1849, aged 83 years. Jane,

the eldest daughter, was born in the year 1787. She was married to

Samuel Henderson, October 22nd, 1817. They had two sons and two

daughters. She died June 22nd, 1817, and her husband died

September, 1867. Eebecca, their second daughter, was born in the

year 1789. She died unmarried in the year, 1839, aged 50 years.

William, the eldest son of Joseph and Jane McDormond, was born

in the year 1793. He was married to Mary, the eldest daughter of

John Deyarmond and Elizabeth Wilson, October 23rd, 1818. They

have two sons and two daughters, besides several children that died

young. They settled at Debert Eiver, where he died, April 5th, 1871,

aged 78 years. ^lary, their third daughter, was born March lat,

13
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1803. She was married to Rotert Burns, November, 1830. They

had three daughters. She died July 23rd, 1841, aged 38 years,

James, their fourth son, was horn March 12th, 1801. He died

December 23rd, 1802. John, their son, died December 24th, 1802.

Thomas, their son, died December 25th, 1802. Joseph, their fifth

son, was born January 3rd, 1805. He was married to Dorcas "West,

July 15th, 1836. They had three sons and one daughter. He died

April 13th, 1866, aged 61 years. Margaret, the fourth and youngest

daughter of Joseph McDormond and Jane Baird, was born in Truro,

January 12th, 1807. She was married to William West, October,

1836. They had three sons and two daughters. They inherited her

father's farm until her death, which took place October 15th, 1849,

aged 42 years.

Mary, the third daughter of Thomas Baird and Margaret Barnhill,

was born in the year 1767. She was married to John Dickson, of

North Eiver, November 4th, 1790. They settled on Onslow

Mountain, where they spent the remainder of their lives. Thomas

Baird, the eldest son of John and Mary Dickson, was born March

16th, 1792. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter of Nathan Upham
and Eleanor Knowlton, his wife, Feby. 25th, 1820. They had one son

and one daughter. Mrs. Dickson died May 2nd, 1862, aged 76 years,

and Mr. Dickson died May 7th, 1872, aged 80 years, William, the

second son of John and Mary Dickson, was born August 2nd, 1793.

On July 5th, 1814, in company with a number of men, he went to

assist William McKeen to frame a saw-mill. After dinner he, Samuel

McKeen, and John Barnhill went out on the pond in a canoe. They

upset the canoe, when Barnhill and McKeen swam for the shore.

Looking back, they saw Dickson in danger. McKeen swam back

and caught him, when Dickson seized him by the shoulder and drew

him under the water, and it was with difficulty that McKeen threw

Dickson off, which he was obliged to do, in order to save his own
life. About three hours after, the body was recovered and taken to

his father's house in Onslow. In one month more he would have

been 21 years of age.

Rebecca, the eldest daughter of John and Mary Dickson, was born

April 9th, 1795. She was married to John, the only son of John

Baird and Jane Dickson, January 24th, 1822. They had two sons

and one daughter. Mrs. Baird died May 1st, 1864, aged 69 years.

John, the third son of John and Mary Dickson, was born July

25th, 1798. Ho was married to Margaret, eldest daughter of
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Alexander Kent, Esq., and Janet Christie, Decem'ber 21st, 1826.

They had two sons and three daughters. He inherits a part of his

father's farm at Onslow Mountain. He is Justice of the Peace, and

an elder in the Preshyterian Church. IsaheU, their second daughter,

was horn July 5th, 1800. She was married to Alexander Deyarmond,

of Debert River, February 1st, 1825. They had one son and two

daughters. She died ]!^ovember 30th, 1843, aged 43 years. James,

their fourth son, was born January 16th, 1802. He died June 3rd,

1821. Mary, John Dickson's first wife, died suddenly, N'ovember

23rd, 1803, and he was married again to Elizabeth, the fourth

daughter of Hugh Moore and Janet Logan, ISTovember 6th, 1804.

They had three sons and three daughters. Mr. Dickson died May
25th, 1855, aged 92 years, and his second wife died May 17th, 1842,

aged 68 years.

John, the second son of Thomas Baird and Margaret Barnhill, was

born in Chiganois, June 2nd, 1769. He was married to Janet,

daughter of John Dickson and Margaret Burns, in the year 1793.

John, their only son, was born ISTovember 25th, 1794. He was

married to Rebecca, the eldest daughter of John Dickson and Mary

Baird, January 24th, 1822. They had two sons and one daughter.

Mrs. Baird died May 1st, 1864, aged 69 years. John Baird, Junr.,

settled first on the farm on which William Little now resides, on

Onslow Mountain, where he continued for about twelve years after

they were married. He then removed to the place where he now
resides, with his son John, about two miles below the Folly. Janet,

the first wife of John Baird, Senr., died December 4th, 1794, aged 26

years, and he was married again to Isabell, daughter of Thomas

Wilson and Mary McDormond, of Masstown, in the year 1796,

(Isabell Wilson, his wife, was born December 18th, 1777.) They

removed from Chiganois and settled in the woods on Onslow

Mountain, where he reclaimed a farm from the forest, reared the

famUy, and spent the remainder of his life. He died January 21st,

1830, aged 61 years, and his wife died July 10th, 1852, aged 75 years.

Rebecca, their eldest daughter, was born January 1st, 1797. She

was married to Thomas Mitchell, of Truro, January 25th, 1821. They

had four sons and three daughters. Mr. Mitchell died January 21 at,

1839, and she was married again to Andrew Thomson, of Folly

Mountain, February 14th, 1845. Mr. Thomson died May, 1853, and

she is living a widow. Jenny, their second daughter, was born May
13th, 1801. She waa married to Thomas Cottom, February 3rd,
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1825. They had three sons and six daughters. She died June,

1869, aged 'o'i years. Thomas, the eldest son of John and Isahell

Baird, was bom February 13th. 1803. He was married to Elizabeth

Deyannond, of Chiganois, November 12th, 1840. They have two-

daughters. They are settled on the Moimtain, near the place which

liis father settled. Susan W., their third daughter, was born

February 8th, 1805. She was married to Samuel Deyannond, of

Stewiacke, February 17th, 1829. They had four sons and two

daughters. l^ancy, their fourth daughter, was bom March 26th,

1807. She was married to "William Cottom, January, 1830. They

had two sons. She died Kovember, 1852, Her husband died

September, 1836. Margaret, their fifth daughter, was bom March

11th, 1809. She was married to Charles Blackie, April 10th, 1842.

They had three sons and three daiighters. She died April, 1859, and

her husband died July 3rd, 1861, Sarah, their sixth daughter, was

born December 4th, 1811, She was married to James Staples, of

Chiganois, December 28th, 1841. They had four sons and three

daughters, James Dickson, their second son, was bom December

28th, 1813, He was married to Sarah, the yoimgest daughter of

James Crowe and Sarah AYilson, N'ovember 18th, 1843, They

inherited his father's farm. They have three sons. Elizabeth, the

seventh daughter of John and IsabeU Baird, was bom August 22nd,.

1817. She died unmarried, July 8th, 1852, ag^ed 35 years. Alex-

ander Miller, their third son, was born November 14th, 1819. He
was married to Matilda Archibald, February 29th, 1848. They have

one son and one daughter. He is settled at Chiganois, working at

tanning and shoemaking. "William, their fourth and youngest son,

was born August 31st, 1822. He died a bachelor, February 22nd,

1845, in the 23rd year of his age.

Rebecca, the youngest daughter of Thomas Baird and Margaret

Barnhill, was bom at Chiganois, March 20th, 177L She was married

to Alexander Miller, of Truro, June 29th, 1795. She had two sons

and eight daughter«, who appear among the Millers. She died

October 15th, 1837, Her husband died November 20th, 1834, aged

65 years. (These are the writer's parents.)

Thomas Baird, Senr., settled at Chiganois, near the place that his

father-in-law, Robert Barnhill, his brother-in-law, Alexander Deyar-

mond, and Joseph Crowe, Senr., also John Barnhill, settled, in what
is now called Chiganois "Village. These were all Grantees of London-
derry Township, and liad their land lying together. Mr, Baird had
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Ms house on what is now Mr. Graham's field, and he had 1000 acres

lying between that and the Debert Eiver. There they reared their

family. Mr, Baird died at the house of Alexander Miller, of Truro,

March 11th, 1809, aged about 78 years. As the snow was very de-ep

at the time, his body was buried in the Truro Cemetery, as it could

not be taken to Chiganois without great inconvenience. His wife,

Margaret, died at her son John's house, on Onslow Mountain, July,

1818, aged about 84 years. She was interred in the family burying

ground, on the Island in Chiganois Marsh.

Eebecca, the eldest daughter of John BarnhiU, Senr., and Letitia

Deyarmond, was born in 1763. She was married to James

Archibald, Esq., February 25th, 1779. Their family appears among

the Archibalds. Elizabeth, daughter of John and Letitia Barnhill,

was born 1770. She was married to Capt. Thomas Fletcher, of

Debert, 1786. They had three sons and two daughters. She died

August, 1821, aged 51 years, and her husband died January 17th,

1844, aged 85 years. Letitia Fletcher, their eldest daughter, was

born September 19th, 1787. She died when young.

Eleanor, the second daughter of Thomas and Elizabeth Fletcher,

was born December 2nd, 1790. She was married to Jacob Lynds, of

Korth River, November 1st, 1810. They had five sons and five

daughters. She died January 17th, 1867, and Mr. Lynds died May
22nd, 1858. Susan Fletcher, their third daughter, was born Sep-

tember, 1792. She was married to Joseph Wilson, of Masstown.

They had four sons and three daughters. She died July 30th, 1830,

and Mr. Wilson died June 6th, 1866, aged 77 years. John Fletcher,

their eldest son, was born October 2nd, 1794. He was married to

Eebecca Crowe, February 27th, 1820. They had three sons and four

daughters. He died January 27th, 1839. William Fletcher, their

second son, was born February 5th, 1797. He was married to

Margery Wilson, January 11th, 1820. They had four sons and two

daughters. Mrs. Fletcher died March 3rd, 1847. He was married

again to Mary Cutton, widow of the late Alexander Wilson, October

26th, 1848. Mrs. Fletcher died May 17th, 1870. David Fletcher,

their third son, was born September, 1800. He Avas married to Jane

Davison. They had four sons and six daughters. On October 23rd,

1852, he was engaged attending a mill, and was caught by a circular

saw, which took both arms off. He lived about two hours after.

Letitia, the third daughter of John Barnhill, Senr., and Letitia

Deyarmond, was born about the year 1771. She was married to



198 Historical and

David Archibald, fifth, of Musquodohoit, August 9th, 179^2. They

had three sons and five daughters. These appear among the Archibalds.

Margaret, the youngest daughter of John and Letitia Barnhill, was.

born in 1773. She was married to Eichard, son of Charles and Janet

Blackie, of Pictou, ]S"ovember 13th, 1800. They settled in Truro, and

he had his blacksmith's shop near the place that Mr. Edmond

Hamilton's house now stands, and Mr. Blackie had his house on the

opposite side of the street. Here they reared their family and spent

the remainder of their days. Mrs. Blackie died April 26th, 1812,

aged 39 years. Mr. Blackie was married again to Martha Eyan, and

she lived but a short time after they were married. Mr. Blackie was

married again to Sarah Wallace, of the old Halifax road. He died

^November 18th, I&IG, aged 40 years. His widow was married to

Peter Blair. They had one son and one daughter ; the son's name

was John. He was drowned attempting to cross the Salmon Eiver,

at the head of the tide, June 8th, 1830, aged seven years, and his

mother, Sarah Blair, died September 13th, 1839, aged 49 years.

Their daughter, Fanny, is now the wife of William Berrell, of Truro

Village.

Letitia, the eldest daughter of Eichard Blackie and Margaret

Barnhill, was born in Truro, September 12th, 1801. She was

married to John Downing, April lOth, 1833. They had one

son and one daughter. She died February, 1844. Janet, the second

daughter of Eichard and Margaret Blackie, was barn February 9th,

1805. She was married to James Wilson, of Chiganois, February

25th, 1823. They had four sons and one daughter. Mr. Wilson

died July 9th, 1867. John Blackie, their eldest son, was born in

Truro, August 25tli, 1806. He served with George Cook, of Truro,

and learned the carpenter trade. He was married to Sarah Ann,

fourth daughter of James and Sarah Yuill, of Clifton, January 14th,

1836. They had four sons and two daughters. Their second son,

James Yuill Blackie, while residing in the City of Cambridge, Mass.,

attending to his business as harness maker, on September 15th, 1869,

was found by the night watch lying on the sidewalk, at about mid-

night, in his night clotlies. Wlien taken up and examined by the-

doctor, it was found that his neck was dislocated, and life departed in

a few minutes. It was supposed that ho rose from his bed while

asleep, as he had done before, and fell from the window of the third

story of the house in which he had been lodging. He was 26 years

old at the time. Charles Harris, the youngest son of Eichard and
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Margaret Blackie, was born August 8th, 1808. He was married to

Margaret, the fifth daughter of John and Isabell Baird, April 10th,

1842. They had three sons and three daughters. He died July 3rd,

1861, aged 53 years, and his wife died April, 1859, aged 50 years.

Esther, the fourth daughter of Eohert BarnhUl and his wife, was

born in Ireland in the year 1740. She- was married to Joseph Crowe,

about the year 1759, about two years before they left Ireland. They

came to Nova Scotia, with her parents, in the ship " Hopewell,"

October 9th, 1761, and settled in Chiganois. They had three sons

and four daughters. These appear among the Crowe family. She

died January 6th, 1818, aged 78 years, and her husband died April

15th, 1810, aged 72 years.

Sarah, the fifth and youngest daughter of Robert Barnhill and his

wife, was born in Ireland about the year 1746, and came with her

parents to i^ova Scotia. She was married to Thomas Crowe, about

the year 1773. They had three sons and five daughters, who appear

among the Crowe families.

CHAPTER XXIV.

James Crow, with his six sons and one daughter, emigrated from

Londonderry, in the JS'orth of Ireland, to IS'ova Scotia in the ship

*' Hopewell." We cannot ascertain whether his wife came to this

country or not. He, with four of his sons and one daughter, settled

first at Windsor. His daughter's name was Margaret. She was

married there to Daniel Frizzell, and had two daughters. One of

these daughters was married to Mr. Snide, who removed and settted

on the West side of Shubenacadie River, nearly opposite Fort EUis,

where they died.

Joseph, the eldest son of this James Crow, was born in Ireland

in the year 1738. He was married to Esther Barnhill, about the year

1759. Margaret, their eldest daughter, was born in Ireland in the

year 1760. She was married to Joseph Mahon, of Londonderry.

They had three sons and four daughters. Esther, the second daughter

of Joseph and Esther Crow, was born in Chiganois in the year 1762.

She was married to John, son of James Fulton, Esq., and Margaret

Campbell, of Bass River. They had six sons and six daughters.

James, the eldest son of Joseph Crow, Senr., and Esther Barnhill,



200 Historical and

Avas bom in Cliiganois in the year 1764. He was married to Letitia,

daughter of Jasper McKinky and Letitia Green, in the year 1785.

They had four sons and six daughters. He settled on the same place

that was afterwards inherited by his four sons, and had his house near

the place which his son Jasper now resides. He built mills at the

same place that his son James now has mills. They reared their

family and died at this place. Mr. 'Crow died in the month of

October, 1823, aged 59 years, and his wife, Letitia, died in the month

of January, 1844, aged 78 years.

Esther, their eldest daughter was born in the year 1786. She was

married to David, the third son of Nicholas Crow, of Bass River.

They settled on tha Folly Mountain and had three sons and three

daughters.

Letitia, the second daughter of James and Letitia Crow, was born

May 29th, 1790. She was married to Thomas, youngest son of

Thomas Crow and Sarah BarnhiU, of Beaver Brook, Clifton, October

11th, 1814. They had five sons and two daughters. They appear

among the descendants of Thomas Crow, Senr.

Joseph, the eldest son of James and Letitia Crow, was born Janu-

ary 1st, 1792. He was married to Jane, daughter of John Staples

and Catherine Blair, December 28th, 1828. He inherited a part of

his father's farm, and the half of the Mills. He built the house that

is still standing on the north side of the Mill Pond, where they reared

their family and spent the remainder of their lives. He died January

3rd, 1868, aged 76 years, and his wife died April 29tli, 1853. They
had six sons and six daughters.

Sarah, the third daughter of James and Letitia Crow, was born in

1794. She was married to Ezra Stevens, of Onslow Mountain, March
8th, 1825. They had two sons and four daughters.

Jasper their second son was born December 25th, 1796. He was
married to Jane, the third daughter of John and Elizabeth Deyarmond,
February 15th, 1825. He inherited the homestead part of his father's

property. They had two sons and four daughters. Mr. Jasper Crow
lias filled the office of Elder in the Presbyterian Congregation of Ons-

low, and Superintendent of Sabbatli schools since about the year

1835.

Margaret, the fourth daughter of James and Letitia Crow, was
born April 5th, 1799. She was married to John Carter, of Lower
Onslow, March 12th, 1824. They had four sons and four daughters.

She died Ai)ril fifth, 1852. Her husband died in December, 1870.
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James, the third son of James and Letitia Crow, was born Febru-

ary, 1802. He was married to Mary, daughter of Thomas and Esther

Wilson of Shubenacadie, March 9th, 1839. They have two sons and

one daughter. He inherited a part of his father's property, and is

now owner of the Mills.

Eebecca, the fifth and youngest daughter of James and Letitia

Crow, was born August, 1803. She was married to James Crow,

Esq. They had one son and four daughters.

Samuel, the fourth and youngest son of James and Letitia Crow,

was born Juno 20th, 1805. He was married to Sarah, the eldest

daughter of Joseph and Mary Grow, I^ToYember 30th, 1829. They

had three sons and one daughter. He inherited a part of his father's

property, where he spent the remainder of his days. He died July

19th, 1871, aged 66 years.

Sarah, the third daughter of Joseph Crow, Senr., and Esther

Barnhill, was born in the year 1766. She was married to John Barn-

hiU, of Chiganois, about the year 1786. They had four sons and two

daughters. These appear among the Barnhill families. She died

June 30th, 1825, aged 59 years, and her husband died October 23rd,

1847, aged 85 years.

Eebecca, the fourth and youngest daughter of Joseph and Esther

Crow, was born in the year 1769. She was married to Alexander

Miller of Truro, December 6th, 1792. She died October 19th, 1793,

aged 24 years.

Joseph, the second son of Joseph Crow, Senr., and Esther Barn-

lull, was born in the year 1771. He was married to Mary, daughter

of David Vance and Jane HO, in the year 1794. He inherited his

father's property in Chiganois Village, where they reared their family.

He died December 28th, 1855, aged 84 years, and his wife died

January 3rd, 1832, aged 60 years.

David A^ance Crow, their eldest son, was born July 9th, 1795,

He was married* to Esther, second daughter of Alexander and Alice

Barnhill, ol Truro, January 1817. They settled at Debert

River, where he reclaimed his farm from the forest. He was appointed

Justice of the Peace when a young man, and he filled the office of

Custodes Eotulorum, for the County of Colchester for a number of

years before he died. They had four sons and three daughters. He
died June 14th, 1868, aged 73 years, and his Avidow died October

22nd, 1872, aged 74 years.

Joseph, the second son of Joseph and Mary Crow, was born in
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1799. He was married to Margaret, daughter of Charles Hill, of

Economy, Fehruary, 1831. They had two sons and one daughter.

He carried on business as a Merchant at the Folly for a number of

years, and his first wife died there October 15th 1841, aged 32 years.

He then removed to Truro, built the store that George Gunn noAV oc-

cupies, where he carried on business until the time of his death. His

second wife was Maria Dimock, widow of the late Arnold Shaw of

]S"ewport. He purchased the house in which his son Leander J. Crow

now resides, where he spent the remainder of his days. He died

October 17th, 1860, aged 61 years.

Charles, the third son of Joseph and Mary Crow, was born March

8th, 1801. He inherits a part of his father's farm, where he is living

a bachelor.

James Crow, Esq., their fourth son was born June, 1803. He
was married to Rebecca, the youngest daughter of James and Letitia

Crow, March, 1828. They had one son and four daughters.

Sarah, the eldest daughter of Joseph and Mary Crow, was born

August 15th, 1805. She was married to Samuel Crow, January 8th,

1828. They had three sons and one daughter.

Eebecca, their second daughter, was born in 1808. She was

married to George Cook, of Truro, February 17th, 1828. They had

one son and four daughters.

Jane, the third daughter of Joseph and Mary Crow, was born

August, 1810. She was married to George Yuill, of Clifton, July

9th, 1839. They had one son and one daughter.

Mary Ann, their fourth daughter, was born December 27th, 1812.

She was married to Francis Layton, Esq., of Truro, February 23rd,

1837. They had two sons and three daughters. Mr. Layton died

November 21st, 1871.

Thomas, the fifth and youngest son of Joseph and Mary Crow,

was born January 1st, 1817. He was married to Sarah, daughter of

Alexander and Elizabeth Barnhill, January 14th, 1844. They have

four sons and three daughters. He inherits a part of his father's

farm in Chiganois Village.

Thomas, the third and youngest son of Joseph Crow, Senr., and

Esther Barnhill, was born in Chiganois in the year 1773. He was

married to Esther, daughter of James Fulton, Esq., and Margaret

Campbell, of Bass Eiver, in the year 1796. He was the first who
settled at Debert River. His house stood on the west side of the

road, opposite James McCiiUoch's store. He reclaimed his farm from
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the forest, and continued to live there until several of his sons became

men, and he divided his farm between several of them, and removed

to Bass Pdver, where he settled for the remainder of his life. He died

there in the month of ISTovember, 1854, aged 81 years, and his wife

died October, 1867, aged 88 years. They had eight sons and six

daughters.

Eebecca, their eldest daughter, was born 1797. She was married

to John the eldest son of Captain Thomes Fletcher and Elizabeth

Barnhill, February 27th, 1820. They had three sons and four

daughters.

James, the eldest son of Thomas and Esther Crow, Avas born

March 31st, 1799. He was married to Jane, daughter of William

Fletcher and Agnes Davison, his wife, of Portauj^ique, February, 1823.

They had four sons and four daughters. Mrs. Crow died May 15th,

1849.

Joseph, their second son, was born January, 1801, He was

married to Eossann, daughter of the Picv. John Brown, ISTovember

2nd, 1823. They had three sons and three daughters. They inherit-

ed the homestead part of his father's farm at Debert Eiver. He died

March, 1870, and his w^ife died May 15th, 1856.

John, their third son, was born February 9th, 1802. He was

married to Eebecca, daughter of Thomas and Magdalen Baird, March,

1827. They had one son and two daughters. Mrs. Crow died

February 16th, 1845. He was married again to Susan, daughter of

David Blackemore and Janet Hoar, of I^orth Eiver, March 3rd,

1846. They had three sons and four daughters.

William, the fourth son of Thomas and Esther Crowe, was born

September, 1803. He was married to Isabell Fulton, of Bass Eiver,

1825. They had four sons and four daughters.

Margaret, the second daughter of Thomas and Esther Crow, was

born September, 1804. She was married to Thomas Fulton, of Bass

Eiver, in 1829. They had four sons and two daughters.

Dr. Eobert F. Crow, their fourth son, was born 1805. He was

married to Eebecca, fourth daughter of Mark P. and Margaret Martin,

1830. They had one daughter, (who is now the wife of Thomas

McCuUoch, of Halifax. ) He died October, 1844, and his wife died

July 6th, 1843, aged 33 years.

Sarah, their third daughter, was married to Archibald Davison.

They had five sons and four daughters. He was chopping in the

woods, and a tree fell on his leg, and smashed it so badly that it had
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to be taken off. This took place about the year 1840. He is still

living.

Esther, the fourth daughter of Thomas and Esther Crow, was

married to William Davison. They had five sons and four daughters.

George, their sixth son, was married to Jane Fulton. They had three

sons and tliree daughters. Thomas, their seventh son, was married to

Lucy Davison. They had one son. David, their eighth and youngest

son, was married to Sarah Ann McCuUy. They had three sons and

four daughters. Hannah Jane, their fifth daughter, was married to

George Creelman. She died and left no family. Rachel Ann, their

sixth and youngest daughter, was born July 12th, 1826. She was

married to John F. Crow, of Economy, January 15th, 1845. They

had three sons and four daughters. They removed to Halifax, and

she died there May 1st, 1863.

James, the second son of James Crow, Senr. , was born in Ireland

about the year 1740. He came, with his father and the rest of the

family, to IS'ova Scotia in the year 1761. He would be about 21 years

old at the time. He did not remain in ]S[ova Scotia long ; he went to

Philadelphia and settled there. He carried on business and became

wealthy. He married, and died there without children.

Aaron, the third son of James Crow, Senr., was born in Ireland'

in the year 1743, and came with his father and family to Nova Scotia

when he was 1 8 years old. He went with his father to "Windsor, and

was married there to Abigail Murray, from Sutherlandshire, Scotland,

April 15th, 1776. He removed to Onslow some time after the

Township was granted. He purchased the farm on Avhich his

grandson, Daniel Hyslip now resides, where he settled, spent the

remainder of his life, and died October 20th' 1818, aged 75 years,

and his wife died September, 1825, aged 66 years, 'Sarah, their

eldest daughter, was born April 26th, 1777. She was married to

William Murray. They had eight sons and one daughter. James, their

eldest son, was born March 6th, 1779. He was drowned at Chester

when he Avas about twenty-one years old. Daniel, their second son,

was born March 3rd, 1781. He inherited his father's farm, where he

lived, and died a bachelor, June 9th, 1871, aged 89 years. Margaret,

their second daughter, was born December 28th, 1782. She was

married to Eufus McNutt, of :N'orth River, July 26th, 1802. They

had ten sons and three daughters. She died in the month of April,

1869, aged 85 years.

Abigail, the third daughter of Aaron and Abigail Crow, was born

i



Genealogical Record. 205

February 20th, 1785. She was married to Samuel Gray, of Pictou

Co. They had two sons and four daughters. She died ISTov., 1868.

George, the third son of Aaron and Abigail Crow, was born July

26th, 1787. He was married to Sarah, the eldest daughter of John
and Jane Staples, of Chiganois, January 16th, 1816. Mr. Crow
followed the sea when he was a young man. He removed to

Tatamagouche IMountain, where he settled, cleared a farm, and spent

the remainder of his life. They had four sous and four daughters.

He died January 15th, 1857.

Elizabeth, their fourth daughter, was bom .'N'ovember 15th, 1797.

She was married to Eichard Hyslip (who had recently come out from

Scotland), iN'ovember, 1818. They had six sons and four daughters.

Aaron, their fourth son, was born April 16th, 1790. He was

married to Eachel, daughter of John and Jane Staples, February 3rd,

1819. They had eight sons and four daughters. They removed to

Tatamagouche Mountain, where they reared their family. He died

there December 23rd, 1852, and his wife died April 2nd, 1872.

John, their fifth son, was born June 4th, 1792. He died about

the year 1826, a bachelor. Eebecca, their fifth daughter, was born

February 21st, 1800. She died in the year 1866, aged 66 years.

David, their sixth and youngest son, was born January 16th, 1796.

Christie, their sixth and youngest daughter, was born October 7th,

1802. She was married to Ebenezer Cock, January 25th, 1825.

They had one son and four daughters. They appear among the Cock

families. She died August 8th, 1858, aged 56 years.

John, the fifth son of James Crow, Senr., was born in Ireland in

the year 1748, and came to Nova Scotia with the rest of the family

in the year 1761, when he was 13 years old. He went to Windsor

with his father, and remained there until after the Township of

Onslow was granted, when he and his brother Aaron removed to

Onslow, and he purchased the farm on which his two grandsons, John

and Charles Crow, now reside. He had his house near the place on

which John Crow's house now stands. Here they reared their family

and spent the remainder of their lives. He died October 6th, 1825,

aged 77 years, and his wife died May 11th, 1838, aged 86 years. He
was married to Elizabeth, the eldest daughter of David Marshall and

Sidney Holmes, his wife. (This Elizabeth Marshall was born in

England in the year 1752.) They were married April 4th, 1776.

George Feash, their eldest son, was born April 22nd, 1777. He
followed the sea when young, and went by the name of Capt. George
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Feash. He was married to Mary Johnson, of I^eW York, a few year3

before lie died. He and his brother John carried on business

together, and did something in shipbuilding on the Creek in front of

the house that John Crow now lives in. He died October 9th, 1820,

aged 43 years, and his widow died in New York, October, 1868, and

left no family. Sarah, the eldest daughter of John and Elizabeth

Crow, was born April 28th, 1778. She was married to Samuel

Davison, of Portaupique, January 22nd, 1801. They had one son

and eight daughters. She died July 5th, 1871, aged 92 years, and

her husband died February, 1869.

James, the second son of John and Elizabeth Crow was born

December 4th 1781. He was a sea captain, and followed the sea un-

til his health began to fail. He died a bachelor, December 5 th, 1819,

aged 38 years.

John Crow, their third son, was born August 7th, 1784. He was

married to Agnes, daughter of "William McXutt and Isabella Dickson,

April 7th, 1818. They had five sons and two daughters. He follow-

ed the sea some time when young. He represented the Township of

Onslow in the House of Assembly, from the year 1826, until the year

1851, being elected four different times. He and his wife are both

living at date, February 13th, 1872, he being in the 88th year of

his age.

Thomas Marshall Crow, their fourth son, was born jS'ovember 1st,

1790. He was married to Letitia, the eldest daughter of William

Smith and Esther Hunter, December 24th, 1816. They had eight

sons and one daughter. He filled the office of Collector of Excise for

the County of Colchester for a considerable number of years. Also of

County Treasurer until he became too old and hard of hearing ; and

his son John F. now fills the two offices.

Eachel, the second and youngest daughter of John and Elizabeth

Crow, was born June 22nd, 1787. She Avas married to Thomas Low-

den, of Pictou. They had five sons and one daughter. She died

May 30th, 1861, aged 74 years.

David Holmes, the fifth and youngest son of John and Elizabeth

Crow, was born September 24th, 1793. He was married to Mary,

second daughter of William Smith and Esther Hunter, January, 1819.

They had seven sons and two daughters. He inherited his father's

farm, and built the house that his son Charles now resides in, where

they reared their family, and spent the remainder of their days. He
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died August lOfch, 1843, aged 49 years, and his wife died May 24tli

1861, aged 64 years.

Thomas the fourth son of James Crow, Senr., was horn in Ireland

in the year 1746. He came with the rest of the family to Nova

Scotia, in the year 1761; when he was about 16 years old, and went

with his father to Windsor, and remained until about the year 1786,

when he removed to Beaver Brook, Clifton, and purchased what is now

the farms of his grandsons, Thomas S. Crow and Isaac Yuill. He
purchased this farm from James Rutherford, the progenitor of all the

Rutherfords of Stewiacke. His house stood in Mr. Yuill's field, on

the south side of the road that leads to the mouth of Shubenacadie

River, At this place he and his wife spent the remainder of their

lives. He died there February 25th, 1801, aged 55 years, and his

wife died March 16th, 1813, aged 67 years, and their bodies were

interred in the old cemetery of Truro. He was married to Sarah, the

fifth and youngest daughter of Robert BarnhiU of Chiganois, about

the year 1773.

James, their eldest son was born in the year 1774. He was mar-

ried to Sarah, daughter of Thomas and Mary Wilson of Masstown,

December 2nd, 1813. He inherited a part of his father's farm at

Beaver Brook, and built his house on it, being the same on which hia

son, Thomas S. Crowe, now resides. Here he and his wife spent the

remainder of their lives.

Mary, their eldest daughter, was born August 21st, 1814. She

was married to Thomas Yuill, of Clifton, July 11th, 1854.

Thomas Stinson, the only son of James Crow and Sarah Wilson,

was born January 24th, 1816. He was married to Sarah, daughter of

James Smith and Margaret Crow of the Folly Mountain, March 14th>

1843. They had seven sons and four daughters. He inherits his

father's farm at Beaver Brook. Sarah, the second daughter of James

and Sarah Crow, was born January 11th, 1818. She was married to

James Dickson Baird, of Onslow Mountain, November 18th, 1843.

They have three sons. Sarah, wife of the aforesaid James Crow, de-

parted this life July 30th, 1818. He was married again to Agnes,

daughter of Thomas and Jane Brown, of Clifton, February 25th, 1823.

Jane, their only daughter, was born November 17th, 1823. She died

March 1st 1824, and Mr. Crow's second wife died August 15th>

1824. He died July 11th, 1852, aged 77 years.

Joseph, the second son of Thomas Crow, Senr, and Sarah Barn-

hill, was born in September, 1776. He was married to AgncB
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Williams, i!^ovember 27th, 1806. He settled on tlie road between

Beaver Brook and Black Eock, where they reared their numerous

family. He died l!^oveniber 10th, 1852, aged 76 years, and his wife

died April, 1831, aged 45 years.

Eebecca, the eldest daughter of Joseph and Agnes Crow, was

born October 7th, 1807. She was married to John Park, October

13th, 1825. They had three sons and six daughters.

Sarah, their second daughter, was born October, 1809. She was

married to John Oderkirk, January 14th, 1836. They had four sons

and three daughters. Mrs. Oderkirk died September 13th, 1851.

Letitia, their third daughter, was born September 16th, 1811. She

removed to the United States, and was married there to Moses H.

Sawyer. They have one daughter. Samuel, the eldest son of

Joseph and Agnes Crow, was born October, 1813. He was married

to Eleanor Miller of Dartmouth, September, 1839. They had four

sons and three daughters. Mary, their fourth daughter, was born

August 10th, 1815. She was married to Thomas JSTewhall, Ifovem-

ber, 1850. They have one daughter. Thomas, the second son. of

Joseph and Agnes Crow, was born December 3rd, 1817. He was

married to Thankful Gray, of Pictou, (being a grand-daughter of

Aaron Crow, of Onslow,) April 20th, 1847. They had four sons

and three daughters. He inherits his father's farm. William, their

third son, was born March 2nd, 1820. He was married to Jane Dill,

of Londonderry, December 20th, 1842. They had three sons and

four daughters. James, the fourth son of Joseph and Agnes Crow,

was born April 16th, 1822. He was married to Patience Dill, of

Londonderry, September, 1853. He died at Londonderry, June 26th,

1854, aged 32 years. Susan, their fifth daughter, was bom October

20th, 1824. She removed to the United States, and was married

there to William Loving, 1856. Ann, their sixth daughter, was born

December 6th, 1826. She removed to the United States, and was

married there to Ebenezer Eolling, 1856. They have five sons.

Joseph, their youngest son, was born January 3rd, 1830. He remov-

ed to the United States, and is married there. They have two sons.

Eebecca, the eldest daughter of Thomas Crow Senr., and Sarah

Barnhill, was born in the year 1778. She lived with her brother

after the death of her parents, and died unmarried, December 9th

1853, aged 75 years. Sarah, their second daughter, was bom in the

year 1780. She was married to John, son of the Eev. David Smith,

of Londonderry, in the year 1801. They had seven sons and two
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daughters. She' died October, 1847, and her htishand died November
1st, 1831. Thomas, the third and youngest son of Thomas and

Sarah Crow, was born March 16th, 1785. He was married to

Letitia, second daughter of James and Letitia Crow, of Onslow,

October 11th, 1814. He settled about one mile further up Beaver

Brook than his father, where he cleared his farm, built his house, and

spent the remainder of his life. His widow and some of his family

now reside there. He died there January, 1855, aged 70 years.

James, the eldest son of Thomas and Letitia Crow, was born

August 27th, 1815. He was married to Harriet, the youngest

daughter of James and Hannah Archibald, February 12th, 1850.

They had five sons and two daughters. He settled near the Bay
shore, at Clifton, where he carries on a large business at shipbuilding,

and is a Justice of the Peace. Joseph, their second son, was born

February 26th, 1817. He was married to Margaret Hughes, of

Shiibenacadie, October 29th, 1844. They had two sons and three

daughters. Martha, their eldest daughter, was born December 22nd,

1813. Eobert Stinson, the third son of Thomas and Letitia Crow,

was born December 22nd, 1820. He was married to Kate, fourth

daughter of James and Hannah Archibald, January 27th, 1858. He
built the house in which the Eev. James Byers now resides. They

lived in it a short time, and carried on shipbuilding. He died

suddenly, May 7th, 1864, aged 44 years, and his wife died May 20th,

1864, aged 37 years. They left no family. Sarah Jane, their second

daughter, was born !N"ovember 15th, 1822. Jasper, their fourth son,

was born October 25th, 1824. He is deprived of his reason, and has

been in the Lunatic Asylum the most of the time these twelve years

past. John Smith, the fifth son of Thomas and Letitia Crow, was

bom July 8th, 1827. He was married to Harriet, daughter of John

Sanderson, February 15th, 1855. Mrs. Crow died March 5th, 1860,

aged 26 years, and left no family. He was married again to Jane

Cox, of Lower Salma, November 29th, 1863. They had two sons

and one daughter. He foUows shipbuilding. Eebecca, the third and

youngest daughter of Thomas Watson and Letitia Crow, was born

April 1st, 1829. She was married to William Murray, Oct. 4th, 1864.

Margaret, the third daughter of Thomas Crow, Senr., and Sarah

Barnhill, was born in Truro, May 18th, 1787. She was married to

James, son of David Smith and Rebecca Cook, his wife, of the Folly

Mountain, February 18th, 1818. (This David Smith was son of the

14
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Eev, David Smith.) They had five sons and one daughter. She died

March 4th, 1861, aged 74 years.

Esther, the fourth daughter of Thomas and Sarah Cro-w, was bom

June 19th, 1789. She died young. Letitia, one of their twin

daughters, was horn in April 1792. She was married to John

Barnhill, of Chiganois. They had one son, who appears among the

Barnhills. She died April 8th, 1837, aged 45 years. Her hushand

died October 23rd, 1847, aged 85 years. Mary, the other twin

daughter of Thomas Crow, was married to a Mr. Barry. They had

one son and one daughter. Mr. Barry died. She was married again

to Eobert McNeal, of Masstown, 1821. They had four sons and two

daughters. She died February 14th, 1867, and Mr. McNeal died

January 6th, 1872.

Nicholas, the sixth and youngest son of James Crow, Senr., was

born in Ireland about the year 1750. He came to Nova Scotia in the

year 1761, when he was 11 years old, and went, with his father and

three other brothers, Aaron, Thomas, and John, to Windsor. Shortly

after, he and his father settled at Portaupique, where he continued the

rest of his life. He was married to Miss Harrison. James Crow,

their eldest son, was married to Mary, third daughter of James

Fulton, Esq., in 1801. They had five sons and five daughters. They

settled in Economy. He died May 1st, 1850 ; his widow died

January, 1857. Thomas Crow, their second son, was married to

Eleanor Eeid in 1803. They had four sons and three daughters.

They settled in Portaupique, where he died in 1840. David Crow,

their third son, was married to Esther Crow, of Onslow. They had

three sons and three daughters. Jane Crow was married to David

Totton. They had six sons and three daughters, '^hey settled on the

Folly Mountain. In January, 1870, Mr. Totton was drowned in a

smaU brook while watering his cattle. Sarah, another daughter, was

married to William McCully, of Masstown, in 1808. They had one

son and eight daughters. Mr. McCully was supposed to be lost in

the Bay in March, 1826. His widow died in December, 1859.



Genealogkal Record. 211

CHAPTER XXV,

"William Corbett was another of the first settlers of Truro, and a

'Grantee of the Township. He was a Scotchman by birth, and a

gunsmith by trade, and was with General Wolfe at the taking of

<5uebec. He came to Truro with the company that came from JSTew

England in the Spring of the year 1760, and he remained in Truro

a.bout eight years. He then exchanged farms with Samuel Archibald,

second, and removed to Little Dyke, in Londonderry, where he settled

for the remainder of his life. In the month of October, 1784, Mr.

Corbett, with a number of his neighbors, was going up the Shuben-

acadie River in a boat, on their way to Halifax, and by some means

the boat was upset, and Mr. Corbett, Elizabeth Fletcher (daughter of

Wniiam Fletcher) and Jane McLeUan (daughter of Michael McLeUan)

were drowned. William Corbett was married to Elizabeth Robinson,

of Plymouth, Mass., in the year 1848. They had five sons and five

daughters. Elizabeth, their eldest daughter, was born April 14th,

1749. She was mamed to David Orr, and they had a family of

children. She died in the United States. Agnes, the second daughter

ofWniiam and Elizabeth Corbett, was born July 6th, 1750. She

was married to another Orr, brother of David Orr above mentioned.

They lived and died in the United States, and left a family there.

Margaret, their third daughter, was born January 28th, 1752. She

was married to Joshua Marsh. They had six sons and four daughters.

They settled in Economy, where they reared their family and spent

the remainder of their days. She died there in the year 1854, aged

102 years.

William Corbett, their eldest son, was born June 13th, 1754.

His name is among the Grantees of Truro Township, although he was

but 1 1 years old at the date of the Grant. He was married to Jane

Reid, of Londonderry, and settled in Five Islands, where they reared

their family and died. They had two sons and three daughters,

Robert, the second son of William and Elizabeth Corbett, was born

September 15th, 1856. He was married to Susannah Fletcher.

They had eight sons and four daughters. He inherited his father's

farm at Little Dyke, where they reared their numerous family.

He died April -Qth, L808, aged -54 years; his wife, Susannah
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Fletcher, was born February Gtb, 1763. She died June 23'rd, 1S22;,

aged 59 years. They were married about the year 1781.

Thomas Corbett, their eldest son, was born September 21st, 1782.-

He was married to Sarah, daughter of John and Mary Smith, of

Truro, January 23rd, 1807. He inherited his father's farm at Little

Dyke, where they reared their numerous family. He died August

3rd, 1867, aged 85 years, and his wife died April 11th, 1837, aged 49

years. Daniel, the eldest son of Thomas and Sarah Corbett, was born

December, 1807. He was married to Harriett, daughter of Capt.

John Stewart and Eebecca McNutt, his wife. They had two sons

and four daughters. Susannah, their eldest daughter, was born 1809,

She was married to John C. Morrison, a sea Captain, who had come

out from Scotland but a short time before. They had one son and

one daughter. She died January 9th, 1829, aged 20 years, and her

husband, Capt. John C. Morrison, died April 15th, 1837, Mary^

their second daughter, was born 1811. She was married to George

S. Eutherford, Esq., in the year 1841. Tliey had one son. She died

May 10th, 1842, aged 31 years, and her husband died October 17th,

1871, aged 66 years. John, the second son of Thomas and Sarah

Corbett, was born 1813. He was married to Margaret, daughter of

Alexander Urquhart and Kancy McLaughlan, December 24th, 1850.

They had five sons and three daughters. He inherited one-haK of his

father's house at Little Dyke. He died there May 3rd, 1867, aged

54 years, "William, their third son, was born October 17th, 1815.

He was married to Mary Spencer, August 14th, 1839. They had

five sons and two daughters. He settled on what was his father's

hind, where he and his wife are living at date, February 15th, 1872,

Their house stands beside the main road, about one mile below the

Folly.

Peter Suther Corbett, their fourth son, was born December 5th,

1817. He followed the sea for a number of years, and is now settled

in Liverpool, England. He was married, and has three sons and one

daughter. Mark Paten Corbett, their fifth son, was born January

31st, 1820. He was married to Jane C, daughter of Capt. William

Pamerton and Mary Vance, October, 1847. Mrs. Corbett died May,

1850, and he was married again to Sarah McLain, of FoUy Eiver,.

March, 1853. They had two sons and five daughters. He inherited

a part of his father's farm at Little Dyke, where he spent the

whole of his life. On March 23rd, 1868, he was drawing marsh mud
on a sled, and as he was returning home to dinner, the sled ran ovei^
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a pole and pitched him forward. He fell with his neck under the

runner of the sled, which hroke Ms windpipe. The team stopped

while his neck remained under the runner. His daughter, who had

seen him start from the field some time before, hecame anxious and

went to see if all was right. She found him as already descrihed

—

quite dead. He was 48 years of age, and left a widow and famOy of

children to mourn their loss. " Be ye also ready."

Jane C, the third daughter: of Thomas and -Sarah Corhett, was

born May 24th, 1822. She died unmarried, April 17th, 1840, aged

18 years.

Elizabeth, their fourth daughter, was born in the year 1827. She

was married to Duncan Urquhart, and had one daughter. She died

April 18th, 1853, ag-ed 26 years. Louisa, their fifth daughter, was

born January 13th, 1831, She was married to James Urquhart,

December 24th, 1850. They have six sons and four daughters.

Susannah, their sixth daughter, was bom March 14th, 1833. She

was married to Capt. George McBurney, of Five Islands, in the year

1861. They had three sons and one daughter, Capt, McBurney

sailed from Philadelphia on September 17th, 1871, in the ship

" Angedique," of 1600 tons, loaded with wheat, and bound for

Antwerp, K'either crew nor ship has been heard from since,

"William, the second son of Eobert Corbett and Susannah Fletcher,

was born N'ovember, 1783. He was married to IsabeU Davison,

about the year 1810. They had three sons and four daughters. Mrs.

Corbett died at Pictou, and he was married again to Elizabeth,

daughter of David Patterson, and "widow of Eobert Patterson, She

died shortly ^er they were married, and he was married again to

Lavinia, daughter of Thomas T. Brown, Esq,, and Eachel Pearson,

in the year 1837, They had nine children. They removed to Cape

Breton about the year 1850, where he died in the year 1866, aged 83

years, and his third wife died there about the year 1862.

Eobert, the third son of Eobert Corbett and Susannah Fletcher

was born at Little Dyke, E"ovember 10th 1784, He was married to

Catherine daughter of Jacob O'Brien and Mary Spencer, October 16th,

1806, They had five sons and five daughters, Mrs, Corbett died

May 6th 1869,

James, their foui-th son, was born 1786, H© died when he was

two years old,

Elizabeth, their eldest daughter, was born in 1787, She was mar-

ried to Eobert Vance January, 1807- The had three sons and three
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daughters. She died April, 1870, aged 83 years, and her husband!

died in Londonderry.

George Corbett, their fifth son, was born in 1789. He learned the

shoemaking trade with John McKay in Truro. He was married to

Eleanor Woodworth January, 1815. He kept an Inn at Gay's Eiver

for a number of years. They had four sons and one daughter. Mrs.

Corbett died about the year 18.32, and he was married again to Mar-

garet McHeffey. They had two sons and two daughters. He died

December 1846. His wife is dead.

Sarah Corbett, their second daughter was born 1791. She was

married to John J. Fulton in 1808. She died about the year 1838^

and left no family.

Eleanor Corbett, their third daiighter was born 1793. She was

married to Joseph Fulton, of Stewiacke about the year 1812. They

had four sons and five daughters. Mr. Fulton died December 6th,

1842, and she was married again to John Graham, of Hants County,,

in the year 1849-.

Susaimah Corbett, their fourth daughter, was born in 1794. She

died when about two years old.

David Corbett, their sixth son, was born 1796. He was. married

to Isabell Keys about the year 1820. They had six sons and four

daughters. He settled near Gay's Eiver, where he died in the year

1866.

James Corbett, their seventh son was born in 1798. He was

a shoemaker by trade. He was married to Sarali Ann Hughes

in 1827. They had six sons and six daughters. They removed

to Pictou in the year 1835; and settled near the Mines on

the East Eiver, where he spent the remainder of his life. In Novem-

ber, 1871, he was out in the woods on a moose hunt. As he was

returning home, in climbing over a windfall, he fell. The gun on

striking the ground was immediately discharged, and the contents

lodged in his knee. Having a long distance to go, he was very much

exhausted when he arrived at home. Medical aid was at hand, his

leg was amputated, but he lived only three days. He was 73 years of

age.

John Corbett, their eighth son was born in 1799. He was a

blacksmith, and worked for a time in the Lower Village of Truro. He
was married to Eebecca Hughes in 1826. They had five sons and six

daughters. He died December, 1848, aged 49 years.

Eleanor, the fourth daughter of WiUiam Corbett Senr., and EUza-
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beth Robinson, was born August 6th, 1759. Sbe was married to

John Marsh. They had six sons and seven daughters. They settled

in Economy, where they reared their family and died.

James Corbett, their third son was born in Truro, June 14th, 1763,

He was married to Elizabeth Marsh. They had five sons and six

daughters. They settled at Five Islands, where many of their offspring

are still living.

John, their fourth son was born in Truro, August 3rd, 1765. He
was married to Mary, daughter of James Flemming, Senr., and Isabel

Vance, about the year 1794. They had four sons and two daughters.

They settled in the Lower Tillage of Truro, and continued there until

about the year 1810. His house in the Lower Village stood near the

place that Alexander Kent second now resides. He removed to Mid-

dle Stewiacke, to the farm on which ]!ilr. Ebenezer Fulton now resides,

where he lived until about the time that his wife died, July 7th, 1822,

He died May, 1849, aged 84 years.

Joseph Corbett, tbeir fifth son, was born May 8th 1767. He was

married to Deborah Davenport. They had four sons and one daughter*

Mrs. Corbett died and he was married again. He settled in Economy

where he died in the year 1862, aged 95.

Martha Corbett, their fifth and youngest daughter, was born Feb-

ruary 19th, 1771. She was married to Joseph Marsh. They had seven

sons and three daughters. They settled in Economy where they rear-

ed their family and died. She died in the year 1864, aged 93 years.

CHAPTEE XXVI.

John Smith was among the early settlers of Truro. He was born

in Colvin, Scotland, in 1742. He was married to Mary McVicar in

1764. He was a whitesmith by trade. They emigrated to Prince

Edward Island, where they arrived about the first of July, 1774. He
commenced clearing a farm out of the woods, which is hard, discour-

aging work to the inexperienced. He said afterwards, " He haggled

the tree aU round about, and could not get it down." Still he toiled

away and did smithwork for the few settlers around him, encouraging

Mary his wife, though he was discouraged himself. Being destitute

of jyuhlic gospel ordinances, they started for Truro in the summer of
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1776, in order that they might hear tlie Gospel, and have their son

John baptized, who was now two years old. They came hy Pictou,

and traA-eUed on foot from Pictou to Truro, lodging one night in

the woods, and carrying their son in their arms. They arrived

in Truro and called upon the Piev. ]\Ir. Cock, who had lately come

from Scotland. Mr. Cock had a little girl ahout two years old, and it

would appear that little Johnny and she struck up a match which was

happily consummated more than twenty years after.

They returned to the Island again and that fall the mice destroyed

all their crops, (that year is still known among old men as the year of

the mice), and they resolved to move to Truro. Mr. Smith came over

to Pictou vith a part of their movables and hired Mr. Paterson's horse

to assist in bringing them to Truro. One article was an anvil of about

two cwt. This he brought on the horse's back. His grandson, Daniel

Smith, is still using this anvil at Wallace Eiver. He returned again

to the Island for his family, and came back to Truro by Tatamagouche,

the distance through the woods being much shorter this way than by

Pictou. On accoimt of Mr. Smith's being a blacksmith, the people in

the Village were anxious to have him settle near them, so they pro-

posed to give him their Right to Birch Island and the adjoining swamp

lands. Each Grantee of Truro Township held a lot of this Island and

swamp, containing two acres. !Mr. Smith having obtained a deed of

these lots, built a house which is still standing and owned by hi«

grandson Ptobert Smith. Here he carried on the blacksmith business

until about the year 1799, when he removed to Upper Stewiacke, and

built a house and shop near Mr. Abraham I^ewcomb, and carried on

the blacksmith business ten or twelve years. He then sold out and

returned to Truro again. He lived in a house which stood between

his old house and the house in which Robert Smith now resides.

He died June 2Gth, 1818, aged 76. His widow died April 11th,

1823, aged 76.

Mary, their eldest daughter, was born in Scotland, 1765. She

was married to William, son of Charles and Eleanor Cox, January

26th, 1786. They had six sons and three daughters, who appear

among the descendants of Charles Cox. They removed to Stewiacke

in 1792.

William, the eldest son of John and ]\Iary Smith, was born in

1767. He came mth his parents to Nova Scotia. He commenced
clearing a farm in Upper SteAviacke about 1790, and very soon raised

wheat in abundance. To get this wheat ground they had to carry it
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on their backs through the woods to Truro, or take it down the Stewi-

acke River to the Shubenacadie, thence down to the Bay, and up the

Biiy to Truro. Shortly after, Mr. Smith built a boat, loaded it with

wheat, and, in company with another man, started for Truro. They

met the flood tide off Salter's Head, when the boat was upset, the

wheat lost and the man drowned. Mr. Smith clung to the boat, and

was drifted up the Bay still crying out for help. William Cutten,

Esq., was coming up the Bay from l^oel at the time, and came within

hearing of his voice. He pulled for him and succeeded in getting him

into his boat very much exhausted having drifted from Salter's Head

to Savage's Island. He was married to Esther, daughter of Eobert

Hunter and Esther Moor, his wife, February 28th, 1793, and in grate-

ful remembrance of his deliverer, he called his first son William Cutten.

They settled in Upper Stewiacke on the farm which Jacob Layton

recently sold. A few years after, he exchanged farms with James

Kennedy and moved to Middle Stewiacke to the farm on which Wm.
E. Putnam now resides, when in the year 1806 he exchanged farms

with his brother-in-law, John Hunter, and returned to Truro. He
lived in the old Hvmter House, and maintained Mr. and Mrs. Hunter

while they lived. In 1814 he sold out in the Village and built the

house on the Island in which his grandson, Eichard Smith now

resides. Here he died iN'ovember 3rd, 1853, aged 86 years. His wife

died May 10th, 1835, aged 62 years.

Letitia, their eldest daughter, was born December 23rd, 1793. She

was married to Thomas M. Crowe, December 24th, 1816. They had

eight sons and one daughter. She died December 11th, 1872, aged

79 years.

Mary, the second daughter of William and Esther Smith, was

bom in Stewiacke, August 1796. She was married to David H.

Crow, of Onslow, January, 1819. They had six sons and two daugh-

ters. She died May 24th, 1861, aged 64 years, and her husband died

August 10th 1843, aged 49 years.

Esther, their third daughter, was born in Stewiacke, February

13th, 1799. She was married to Eobert, the youngest son of Colonel

Thomas and Martha Pearson, May 25th, 1820. They had three sons.

Mr. Pearson died suddenly December 17th 1825, aged 27 years. She

was married again to John L. Dogget, December 4th, 1828. They

had five sons and one daughter.

William Cutten Smith, their eldest son was born in Stewiacke,

July 15th 1801. He was married to Eenew, the eldest daughter of
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Charles and Mary jSTelson, January 7tli, 1831. He inherited the half

of his father's farm and built the house in -which his widow, and some

of their family now reside. They had four sons and six daughters.

He was an elder in the Presbyterian Church from the year 1845, until

he died. May 7th, 1870, aged 69 years.

Mary, the eldest daughter of William C. Smith and Eenew ISTelson,

was born January 9th, 1832. She was married to Anthony McKean,

of Pictou Town, November 18th, 1854. She died May 6th, 1856,

aged 24 years. John Smith, their eldest son was born April 15th,

1834. He inherits a part of his father's farm. Esther Hunter, their

second daughter was born February 4th, 1836. She died February

6th, 1838, aged two years. Esther Hunter, their third daughter was

born December 23rd, 1838. She was married to Charles A., son of

John Kent and Sarah Archibald, December 16th, 1869. They have

one daughter. "William McCulloch their second son was born January

17th, 1840. He died February 21st, 1853. Charles I^elson Smith,

their third son was born January 30th, 1842. He removed to the

United States, and was married there to Margaret Moran, October

10th, 1870. They had one son. Agnes Kellor Smith, their fourth

daughter, was born IS^ovember 1 0th, 1844. She was married to Gavin

Walker, youngest son of Isaac Smith and Mary Waddell, June 12th,

1865. They have one son and two daughters. Elizabeth Smith,

their fifth daughter was born April 16th 1846. She was married to

James Eichard Smith, from Pictou, June 10th, 1869. They had one

son. She died June 27th, 1871, aged 25 years. Henry Kellor

Smith, their fourth son was born July 27th, 1848. He is settled at

Maitland, carrying on the business of harness making. Caroline

Crow Smith, their sixth daughter, was born July 19th, 1850.

John, the second son of WiUiam and Esther Smith, was born in

Middle Stewiacke, August 21st, 1803. His wife being the only

daughter of Samuel and Mary Creelman. She was born September

17th 1810. They were married February 17th, 1829. They now

reside on the farm that James Campbell Creelman owned. Samuel

Creelman Smith, their eldest son, was born June 4th, 1830. He
was married to Eleanor, daughter of Abraham Bentley and Margaret

Fletcher, January 28th, 1850. They have two sons and three daugh-

ters. William, their second son was born August 21st, 1832. He
was married to Mary, daughter of George Steel and Rebecca Fulton,

February 15th, 1859. They have two sons and one daughter. Mary

Jane, their eldest daughter, was born November 30th, 1834. She died
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unmarried IToveinber 24tli, 1858. Esther, their second daughter, was

horn April 18th, 1837. She was married to Alexander Steel, in the

year 1856. They had one daughter. Mrs. Steel died March 17th,

1857, aged 20 years. Sidney, their third son, was horn January 9th,

1840. Eachel, their third daughter was horn February 11th, 1841.

John their fourth son was horn July 28th, 1843. David Holmes,

their fifth son was horn March 25th, 1846. Letitia, their fourth and

youngest daughter, was horn July 28th, 1851.

Eohert Hunter, the third son of William Smith and Esther

Hunter, was born in Stewiacke, December 23rd, 1805. He was

married to Catherine, the eldest daughter of Hugh Dunlap and Susan

Gourley, of Stewiacke, March 4th, 1828. They settled on the

Halifax road, about three miles from Truro. Susannah, their eldest

daughter, was born in Truro, August 4th, 1829. She was married

to Isaac Dunlap, of the Lower Village of Truro, February 10th, 1854.

They have two sons and four daughters.

"William, the eldest son of Eohert H. and Catherine Smith, was

born ISTovember 7th, 1831. In the Spring of 1834, Mr. Smith was

driving his team with a heavy load. His little boy was following

Mm and fell, when the cart wheel passed over his body. He was

considerably injured, but soon recovered again. Some years after-

wards he went to Canada, where he remained about six years. He
returned to Truro, and followed pump making. On the 14th of

October, 1859, in putting a pump in a well, he had occasion to go

down into the well. The stones fell in and buried him. About four

hours after he was taken out dead. He was in the 28th year of his

age. " Man's life is a vapor." Esther, the second daughter of Eohert

H. and Catherine Smith, was bom August 21st, 1833. She was

married to Amos Fowler, of the County t»f Cumberland, February

13th, 1862. She died April 27th, 1872, in the 39th year of her age.

Jesse Gourley Smith, their second son, was born October 19th, 1836.

He removed to California and was married there. Eohert Hunter

Smith, their third son, was born August 27th, 1838. He removed to

California a number of years ago, and continues to reside there.

Hugh Dunlap Smith, their fourth son, was born January 24th, 1842.

He removed to Cahfornia, and is engaged there in the dairy business.

Thomas Bush Smith, their fifth son, was born January 12th, 1847.

Kate Smith, their third and youngest daughter, was born JSTovember

24th, 1848. Eohert H. Smith, Senr., died April 1st, 1872, aged 66

years.
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Daniel Cock, the fourth, son of WilKam and Esther Smith, was

born in Truro, July 15th, 1808. He was married to Elizabeth, the

eldest daughter of Samuel Dunlap and Mary Miller, December 17th,

1834. He inherited the half of his father's farm, where they reared

their family. Mrs. Smith died December 18th, 1871, aged 56.

Letitia, their eldest daughter, was born l^ovember 2nd, 1835.

James, their eldest son, was born ]^ovember 17th, 1836. He was

married to Elizabeth Hawley, of Mabou, C. B., June 11th, 1867.

They have one son and one daughter. Eichard, their second son, was

born November 13th, 1838. He was married to Jane Letitia Wilson,

daughter of Joseph Wilson and Alice BarnhiU, July 28th, 1863.

They have one son and two daughters. Samuel, their third son, was

born [N'ovember 15th, 1840. David H., their fourth son, was born

November 25th, 1848. He was licensed to preach the Gospel, but

his voice failing him, he was obliged to give up the gooti work and is

now keeping a book store in Truro Village. Edwin, their fifth son,

was born March 12th, 1845. He is settled in Brookfield and Middle

Stewiacke as their Minister. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter

of Timothy Putnam, Oct. 22nd, 1872. William Vicker, their sixth son,

was born Feb. 21st, 1848. He is settled in Dartmouth, where he carries

on the business of harness making. Annie, their second daughter,

was born February 28th, 1851. She follows school teaching. Maria,

their third daughter, was born June 12th, 1853. Frank, their seventh

son, was born December 15th, 1855. He is a school teacher. Eenew,

their fourth and youngest daughter, was born February 21st, 1858.

John, the second son of John and ^Mary Smith, was born in

P. E. Island, July 16th, 1774, and was brought by his parents to

Truro in 1776. He was married to Jane, the youngest daughter of

the Eev. Daniel Cock, March 10th, 1796. He inherited his father's

property in Truro, where he and his wife spent the remainder of tlieir

lives. He died June 29th, 1848, aged 74, and his wife died July

16th, 1845, aged 71 years. Ebenezer, their eldest son, was born May
8th, 1797. He was married to Mary, daughter of Eliakim Tupper

and Lydia Putnam, his wife, of Stewiacke, December 10th, 1818.

She died July 25th, 1820.

He was married again to Xancy, the eldest daughter of Mark
Paten Martin and Margaret McElhenney, December 27th, 1824.

Margaret Jane, their eldest daughter, was born May 28th, 1828. She
died May 6th, 1843, aged 15 years. Mark Paten Martin, their eldest

son, was born November 26th, 1831. He was married to Clara,
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daughter of James Flemmiiig, Esq., and Hannah McElhenney, his

wife, December 4th, 1861. He inherits his grandfather Martin's pro-

perty at Debert. They have four sons and two daughters. Mary Ann,

the second daughter of Ebenezer and ISTancy Smith, was bom May
15th, 1833. She was married to Charles, the youngest son of Eobert

McElhenney and Elizabeth Stewart, his wife, December 30th, 1858.

They have three sons and five daughters. John, the second son of

Ebenezer and JS'ancy Smith, was born December 26th, 1835. He
died May '27th, 1862, aged 27 years. Lavinia, their third daughter

was born July 1st, 1839. Maria, their fourth daughter, was bom
1841. She died June 29th, 1842. ]S"ancy Martin, Mr. Smith's

second wife, died Jidy 14th, 1842, aged 39 years.

He was married again to Sarah, daughter of Hugh Dunlap and

Susannah Gourley, March 12th, 1845. Susannah, their eldest

daughter, was born May 1st, 1846. Nancy Jane, their second

daughter, was born February 16th, 1848. Catherine Margaret, their

third daughter, was born March 6th, 1850. Sarah Elizabeth, their

fourth daughter, was bom May 1st, 1852. Ebenezer Erskine Smith,

their only son, was born August 14th, 1854.

Mary, the eldest daughter of Jolin and Jane Smith, was born

February 20th, 1800. She was married to Oliver, the youngest son of

"William Blair and Mary Downing, December 20th, 1817. They had

four sons and three daughters. She died July 18th, 1869, aged 69

years, and her husband died ISTovember 23rd, 1871, aged 77 years.

Daniel Cock, the second son of John and Jane Smith, was born

July 13th, 1802. He was married to Susan Beebe, of "Wallace Eiver,

July 16th, 1826. He afterwards settled there. Charles, their eldest

son, was born in Truro, July 16th, 1827. He was * married to

Hannah, daughter of John Higgins and Hannah Stevens, widow of

the late Miner Embree, of Amherst, June 13th, 1853. They have

four sons and one daughter. Nancy, the eldest daughter of Daniel

and Susan Smith, was born December 25th, 1829. She was married

to David Davison, May, 1851. They had two sons and five daughters.

John, their second son, was born February, 1833, He removed to

the United States. Harriet, their second daughter, was born Febru-

ary, 1836.

Janet Colven, the second daughter of John and Jane Smith, was

born May 15th, 1805. She was married to Thomas MiUer, and had

six sons and five daughters, who appear among the Miller families.

She died January 23rd, 1873, aged 67 years.
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John, the third son of John and Jane Smith, was born May 17th,

1808. He was married to Mercy P., eldest daughter of Charlee

Tucker, Esq., and Mercy Parker PoUey, December 13th, 1831.

Eebecca Hughes, the only daughter of John and Mercy P. Smith,

was born January 14th, 1833, She was married to "William Smith,

the third son of David H. Crow and Mary Smith, of Onslow,

January, 1856. They had four daughters. Charles Tucker, the

eldest son of John and Mercy P. Smith, was bom August 19thj

1835. John William, their second son, was born December 25th5

1837. He was married to Sarah Smith, of Cape Breton, February

.26th, 1868. They have two daughters. Melville, their third son,

was born May 9th, 1842. He removed to the United States.

George, their fourth son, was born January 16th, 1845. He was

married to Margaret Mary, daughter of the Rev. William Summerville

and Sarah Dickey, December 8th, 1868. They have one daughter.

He died November 24th, 1872. Henry, their fifth son, was born

November 3rd, 1849. He removed to the United States, where he is

carrying on the harness making business. Eldridge, their sixth son,

was bom October 3rd, 1854. Mrs. Smith died October 23rd, 1868,

aged 54. He was married again to Margaret Mary, the youngest

daughter of William Archibald and Susan Putnam, widow of the late

Colin McLennon, of Pictou, August 11th, 1870.

William, the fourth son of John and Jane Smith, was bom April

3rd, 1810. He was married to Louisa, daughter of John Higgins and

Hannah Stevens, of Onslow, July 17th, 1835. Mary Jane, their

eldest daughter, was born September 19th, 1843. She was married

to George Embree, of Amherst, February 17th, 1862. They have

two sons and three daughters. Amos Burton, the only son of Wm. and

Louisa Smith, was born August 9th, 1846. On Dec. 10th, 1862, he

was engaged with his gun in his father's house at Wallace River. In

setting the gun down on the floor carelessly, it went off and the

contents lodged in his brain, causing instant death. Lavinia, their

eecond and youngest daughter, was born January 6th, 1850. She

was married to Roderick McLain, of Pictou, February 23rd, 1871.

They have one son.

Alison Jamison, the third daughter of John and Jane Smith, was

born March 4th, 1813. She was married to James Whidden, the

youngest son of John Corbett and Mary Flemming, April 3rd, 1833.

They removed to Pictou, near New Glasgow, where she died February

24th, 1834, aged 21 years. Her body was brought to Truro and
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interred in Truro Cemetery. H er husband went "vvhale fishing, and

afterwards settled, married, and died in Sydney, I^ew South Wales.

Eobert, the fifth son of John and Jane Smith, was was horn April

2nd, 1816. He was married to Margaret, the second daughter

of Charles Tucker, Esq., and Mercy P. Polley, January 27th,

1842. He went into a store as clerk when he was a boy. He has

been engaged in commercial business ever since, and is in possession

of a large amount of property. He owns and resides upon what was,,

his father's property. He is still engaged in business in Truro, and in

Cumberland County. Julia, their eldest daughter was born in Truro,

December 29th, 1842. She was married to Captain William A. Fra-

ser, of Pictou, I^ovember 2nd, 1863. They left in a few days after,

in the " Dayspring," for the South Sea Islands. He sailed the mission

ship as Captain about eight years. They returned home with one son

and three daughters, July 30th, 1872. Charles, the only son of Eob-

ert and Margaret Smith, was born November 15th, 1844. He went a

few trips to sea and died suddenly in St. Thomas, West Indies, Janu-

ary 21st, 1866, aged 21 years. His body was brought home for in-

terment. Mercy Jane, their second daughter, was born August 15th,

1846. In the summer of 1862, she and Miss Hyde went to Pictou

on a visit. While there, in company with several yo\ing ladies they

took passage in the coal train to the Loading Ground. The passenger

car was in front of the engine. Through some mismanagement two

trains met on full speed. The passenger car was, smashed. Miss

Smith was so badly injured that she died in a few hours, July 28th,

1862, aged 16 years. Her body was brought home and interred in the

Truro Cemetery. Miss Hyde was considerably injured, but she re-

covered. Margaret Emma, the third daughter of Eobert and Margaret

Smith, was bom Sept. 13th, 1848. Mary Alice, their fourth daughter,

was born April 24th, 1851. Eva, their fifth daughter was bom Feb-

ruary 18th, 1853. Fanny Hunt their sixth daughter, was born April

5th, 1855.

Peter Suther, the sixth and youngest son of John and Jane

Smith, was born September 18th, 1820. He was married to Elizabeth,

the youngest daughter of James Campbell Creelman and Alison Jami-

son Tupper, in the month of March, 1842. He inherited the home-

stead part of his father's property. He was engaged a few years in

business as a merchant. He was driving his horse one day, and stand-

ing in his sleigh, turning the corner by John B. Dickie's store, he was

thrown from his sleigh, and his head struck the ice, which fractured
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liis skull. He still kept about his business for a few days, until the

blood began to press on the brain, when he lost his reason and died

January 15th. 1859, about two weeks after he was hurt. He was in

the 39th year of his age. His widow died February 17th, 1861, aged

39 years. Maria, their eldest daughter was born in the month of

January, 1843. She died at the house of Ebenezer Smith, May 15th,

1866, aged 23 years. Isabell, their second daughter, was born iS'ov-

ember, 1844. She died July 10th, 1858, in the 14th year of her age.

Melissa, their third daughter was born December, 1847. She removed

to Lynn, Mass., and was married there to Melen Stokes. She died

October 16th, 1872, aged 25 years. Mercy Parker, their fourth

daughter was born September 8th, 1850. She removed to the United

States, and was married there to Charles A. Stickney, January 6th,

1872. Eobert their only son was born September 6th, 1853.

Daniel, the third son, of John and Mary Smith, was born in Tru-

ro, June 29th 1777. He died when about 16 years old.

Janet Colven Smith, their second daughter was bom August 17th,

1779. She was married to John Yance, April 16th, 1801. He set-

tled at Debert Eiver. They had four sons and two daughters. Mrs.

Vance died August 1st, 1816, aged 37 years. He was married again

to Charlotte Porter in 1828. She died about 1838. He was married

again to ]\Iary Durning, July, 1840. Mr. Vance died January, 1846.

INIary, the eldest daughter of John and Janet C. Vance, was born

in 1802. She was married to Captain William Palmerton in 1826.

They had one son and one daughter. She died July 1841, aged 39

years. David Vance, their eldest son, was born in 1804. He was

married to Catherine Stinson of I^tw Brunswick, December, 1827.

They had one son. Mr. Vance died April, 1830, aged 26 years. His

widow was married again to Eobert Smith of Londonderry, February

7th, 1833. She died November 30th, 1871. John Smith Vance,

their second son was born March 9th, 1806. He was married to

Hannah Yuill, July 13th, 1836. They had two sons and two

daughters. Their son David was carried overboard from the deck

of a vessel in St. John Harbour, and drowned Januaiy 7th, 1872.

Mrs. Vance died July 6th, 1846, aged 29 years. He was married

again to Jane McCuUy, July 30th, 1827. They had one son and

three daughters.

William Vance, their third son, was Born in 1809. He was mar-

ried to Sarah Stewart, February, 1830. He died and left no children,

December, 1834. His widow was married again to Alexander D.
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Morrison, Esq. Sarah Vance, their second daughter, was horn March

13th, 1813. She was married to John jSTohle McEIhenney, Sept. 5th,

1833. They had five sons and one daughter. '•They inherited what

was her father's farm. Matthew Vance, their youngest son, was born

July, 1816. He was married to Margaret McEIhenney, June, 1841.

They had one son. He died September 15th, 1842. His widoW was

married again to Henry Urquhart, May 9th, 1843. She died Decem-

ber 14th, 1871.

Hannah, the third daughter of John and Mary Smith, was born

January 30th, 1 782. She was married to John Yuill, February 3rd,

1803, They had two sons and four daughters. She died September

4th, 1817. Mr. YuiU died October 4th, 1849.

Sarah Smith, their youngest daughter, was born February 4th,

1788. She was married to Thomas Corbett, January 23rd 1807.

They had five sons and six daughters. She died April 11th, 1837,

aged 49 years. Mr. Corbett died August 3rd, 1867, aged 85 years.

Q>^>gj^

CHAPTEE XXVII.

Eliakim Tupper was one of the early settlers of Truro. He
removed from IS'ew England to the western part of the Province about

the year 1760, and about the year 1773 he removed to Truro, and

built a two story house, being the same in which Captain "William

Cock afterwards resided, and Mr. John Dunlap and his heirs after-

wards owned and occupied. Here he kept an Inn, which at that time

was the only Inn in Truro. On September 16th, 1780, he was ap-

pointed Justice of the Peace for what is now the whole of the Counties

of Colchester and Pictou. He carried on business as a merchant

while in Truro. He was contractor for finishing the inside of the first

church that was built in Truro. His business, while in Truro not be-

ing very profitable, and having a large family of sons, he was induced

to leave Truro, and remove to Stewiacke' about the year 1792, and

settle on the farm on which Mr. Matthew Johnson had settled about

nine years before. This farm is now owned by his grandson, Eliakim

Tupper, Esq., and his sons. He was married to Elizabeth Wewcomb

about the time they first come to I^ova Scotia. He died in Stewiacke

August 22nd, 1810, and his wife died Feby. 10th, 1824, aged 81 years.

15
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Mahe-w, their eldest son was "born in the year 1762. He was mar-

ried to Christian, daughter of Rev. Daniel Cock, April 22nd, 1784.

Alison Jamison, theif eldest daughter was horn July 15th, 1785.

She was married to James Campbell, second son of Francis Creelman

and Esther Campbell, February 4th, 1808. They had three sons and

six daughters. She died April 22nd, 1860, aged 75 years, and her

husband died in Halifax, (where he had been residing with his son

John) June 30th, 1869, aged 84 years.

Eliakim, the eldest son of Mahew and Christie Tupper, was born

May 4th, 1787. He was married to Euth Stevens. They had one

daughter. Mrs. Tupper died, and he was married again to Jane Ben-

vie of Musquodoboit. They had four sons and two daughters. His

second wife died February, 1830. He was married again to Margaret

Godfrey, widow of the late John Waddell Fisher. They had three

sons and two daughters. He died at New Glasgow, 1865. He was

a tinsmith by trade.

Patrick, their second son, was bom in the year 1789. He was

married to Rachel, daughter of Samuel Fisher and Mary Tupper.

They had a family of children. He was a shoemaker by trade. He
removed with his wife and family to Ohio, U. S., about the year 1821.

Daniel, their third son, was bom in the year 1791. He was mar-

ried to ISTancy, another daughter of Samuel and Mary Fisher, 1814.

They had three sons and three daughters. Mrs. Tupper died

August 10th, 1846. He was married again to Margaret, second

daughter of Samuel B. and Margaret Archibald, widow of William

Green, April, 1848. They had one daughter. Mrs. Tupper died

April 14th, 1850, aged 43 years. He was married again to Olive,

the youngest daughter of Moses "Wright and Lydia Hoar, 1853.

They had two daughters. He settled on the south side of Stewiacke

River, on the interval where he spent the remainder of his life. He
died there 1859.

Jane, the second daughter of Mahew and Christie Tupper, removed

with her mother to Ohio, U. S. , and was married there to Mr. Smith.

Christian, their youngest daughter, removed also to Ohio, U. S., and

was married there to Mr. Sudicks.

Samuel, the second son of Eliakim Tupper, Esq., and Elizabeth

Newcomb, was born November 26th,. 1764. He was married to

Elizabeth, the eldest daughter of Robert Archibald, Esq., and Hannah

Blair, in the year 1786. Hannah, their eldest daughter, was born

January 18th, 1787. She was married to William Creelman, January
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SOth, 1808. They had four sons and four daughters. She died

September 27th, 1865, aged 78 years. Her husband died September

^th, 1857. Elizabeth, their second daughter was born in the month

-of January, 1789. She was married to John Grourley, 1807. They

had two sons and four daughters. Mr. Tupper's first wife died the

same month that Elizabeth was born, January, 1789. He was married

again to Eachel, the third daughter of James Dunlap and Mary John-

son, of the Lower Village of Truro, in the year 1793. James, their

•eldest son was born April 28th, 1794. He was married to IsabeU,

the only daughter of the Rev. Hugh Graham, and Elizabeth Whidden
February 29th, 1820. They had two sons and five daughters. Mrs.

Tupper died December 18th, 1864, aged 65 years. Mary, the eldest

daughter of Samuel and Rachel Tupper, was born November 20th,

1795. She was married to John Kelley. They had one son. She

died March 17th, 1824. Eliakim Tupper, their second son, was born

January 25th, 1798. He was married to Elizabeth Newcomb, March

13th, 1821. He inherited a part of his father's farm, where he re-

mained unto, about the year 1860. He then sold out and purchased

the farm on which his grandfather settled at the South Branch of

Stewiacke River, where he and his wife and sons are still residing.

He filled the office of Justice of the Peace since the year 1842, and

his eldest son, A. Jf. Tupper, was appointed to the same office in the

year 1868. They had three sons and six daughters, Robert, the

third son of Samuel and Rachel Tupper, was born March 18th, 1800.

He was married to Mary, the only daughter of James Dunlap and

Jane Kennedy, 1820, They had two sons and two daughters. One

son and one daughter were deaf and dumb. He inherited the home-

stead part of his father's farm on the south side of Stewiacke

River, where he spent his Hfe. He died there December 1st, 1858, in

the 59th year of his age, and Ms wife died May 12th, 1854, aged 55

years. Jerusha, their second daughter, was born September 24th,

1802. She was married to John Kaulback of Musquodaboit. They

had two sons and four daughters. John, their fourth son, was born

September 15th, 1804. He was married to Janet, second daughter

of Adams Archibald, Esq., of Musquodoboit, March 2nd, 1830, They

had three sons and one daughter. He died July 26th, 1844, aged

40 years, and his wife died February 8th, 1843, aged 38 years. Sarah,

the third daughter of Samuel and Rachel Tupper, was bom July 1st,

1806. She was married to John Gammell, 1826. They had three

sona and seven daughters. She died October 11th, 1846, aged 40
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years, and her husband died in July, 1861, aged 61 years. Samuel^

the fifth son of Samuel and Eachel Tupper, was born April 19th,

1808. He was married to Martha Howard. They had six sons and

three daughters. (Three of their sons were deaf and dumb.) They

removed from Stewiacke about the year 18.55, and lived in Halifax

some time. They now live on McNab's Island. Rachel their fourth

daughter, was born April 2.5th, 1810. She was married to John

McCurdy in 1854. She died December 21st, 1868, aged 58 years.

Margaret, their fifth daughter, was born June 16th, 1812. She was

married to the Eev. James Smith, D.D., April, 1831. They had one

daughter. Mrs. Smith died August 20th, 1832, aged 20 years. Mr.

Smith was married again to Jessie, daughter of the Eevd. Eobert

Blackwood, ISTovember, 1839. They had three sons and four daugh-

ters. Dr. Smith was settled in the year 1830 over the congregation

of Upper and Middle Stewiacke, which is now two and a half con-

gregations. He labored faithfully in his congregation, and out

of it, for more than forty years. He died May 17th, 1871.

Lydia, the sixth daughter of Samuel and Eachel Tupper, was

born September 15 th, 1814. She was married to Angus McLeod,

October, 1831. They removed to the Unit-ed States. They had six

sons and six daughters. Eddy, their sixth son, was bom October

13th, 1816. He was married to Susannah West of Halifax. They

had three sons and two daughters. He carried on business with

Duffus & Co., in Halifax. He died April 3rd, 1857, aged 41 years.

Harriet, their seventh and youngest daughter, was born October 24th,

1819. She was married to Alexander Kent of Musquodoboit. They

had six sons and three daughters. Samuel Tupper, Esq., settled on

the farm on the south side of Stewiacke Eiver, on which his son

Eobert, and his grandson, James, lived and died. He was a leading

man in society. He was a Justice of the Peace, and was the only one

in Upper Stewiacke for a number of years. He died at Stewiacke,

August 29th, 1831, aged 67 years, and his wife died June 9th, 1852,

aged 76 years.

Mary, the eldest daughter of Eliakim Tupper, Esq., and Elizabeth

Newcomb, was born in the year 1766. She was married to Samuel

Fisher in 1786. They had three sons and six daughters. She died

April 23rd, 1812, and her husband died May 10th, 1812.

Jerusha, their second daughter was bom about the year 1768.

She was married to Dr. Benjamin Prince. They resided for a time

on the interval of Salmon Eiver, near the place that Mr. James K,
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Eaton now resides. They afterwards removed to Canada, and we
know nothing of them or any of their descendants.

Abigail, another daughter of Eliakim and Elizabeth Tupper, was

married to Captain Alexander Rohb. They removed to the United

States for a time, and then returned to Stewiacke about the year 1818.

He started one night to cross the interval of Upper Stewiacke, and

was lost ; his body was never found.

Alice, another daughter of Eliakim and Elizabeth Tupper, was

married to Samuel Fulton son of James and Ann Fulton, of the Low-

er Village of Truro. They removed to Ohio, U. S. This is said to

be the first marriage in Upper Stewiacke, and it was in the house of

Samuel Fisher.

Elizabeth, another daughter of Eliakim Tupper, Esq. , was married

to Mr. Smith, from England. They removed to London. They had

one son and one daughter. The son's name is Mahew Tuj)per Smith,

who was school inspector for the County of Pictou.

Eliakim the third son of Eliakim and Elizabeth Tupper, was born

in the year 1773. He was married to Lydia, daughter of William

and Dorothy Putnam, 1798. He inherited his father's farm at the

South Branch of Stewiacke, where they spent the remainder of their

lives. He died January 4th, 1852, aged 79 years ; and his wife died

JS'ovember 13th, 1851, aged 79 years. Mary, their eldest daughter,

was born in the year 1799. She was married to Ebenezer Smith of

Truro, December 10th, 1818. She died July 25th, 1820, aged 21

years. Elizabeth, the second daughter of Eliakim and Lydia Tupper,

was born March 22nd, 1802. She was married to William Tupper of

Annapolis. They had one daughter. Mr. Tupper died and she was

married again to Elias Tupper. They had three sons and two daugh-

ters. She died December 22nd, 1870. Lydia, their third daughter,

was born December 22nd, 1803. She was married to James Flem-

ming of Truro, July 1st, 1826. They had three sons and five daugh-

ters. She died April, 1862. Mr. Flemming died July, 1851. Sarah

their fourth daughter, was born September 1st, 1806. She was mar-

ried to Charles Dickie of CornwaUis, Jtme 21st, 1826. They had

three sons and three daughters. Abigail, their fifth daughter, was

born October 20th, 1809. She was married to WiUiam Creebnan,

January 27th, 1831. They had six sons and three daughters. Eachel,

their sixth daughter, was born July 26th 1812. She was married to

Job Harvey of Newport, October 1835. They had one son. She

died April, 1837. Martha, their seventh and youngest daughter, was
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born March 22iid, 1815. She was married to Hon. WiUiam Annand^,

December, 1834. They had three sons and five daughters. Eliakim,,

the only son of Eliakim and Lydia Tupper, was born May 11th,.

1817.. He was married to Janet McLeod, of Musquodoboit, March,.

1844.. They had three sons and four daughters. He inherited his-

father's farm until about the year 1854. He then removed to Halifax^

and from thence to the United States.

Elias, the fourth son of Eliakim and Elizabeth Tupper, was born

in the year 1777. He was married to Miss Elizabeth Bowls. They^

had one son,, born 1809. Elias Tupper died 1809.

Eddy, their fifth son, was born in Truro in the year 1779. He
was married to Ann, daughter of John Fulton and Mary Simpson, Oc-

tober 12th 1798. He inherited a part of his father's farm. He died

March 17'th, 1816, aged 37 years, and his widow was married again tO'

George Eulton. in 1822. Benjamin, the eldest son of Eddy and Ann
Tupper, was born May 14th, 1799, He was married to Mary, daugh-

ter of John and Martha Dunlap, February 19th, 1822. They had

three sons.. Mary S., their eldest daughter, was born June 17th,.

1801. She was married to Ephraim son of "William Dickey and

Hannah Howard, January 19th, 1822. They had five sons and three

daughters. Elizabeth their second daughter, was born January 30th,

1804. She was married to Hugh G. Cos, February 5th, 1824. They

had one daughter. Samuel, their second son was born May 8th,

1807. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter of William and Han-

nah Dickey, December, 1825. They had two sons and seven daugh-

ters. He died in Halifax, June, 1862. His wife died in 1860. Jer-

usha, their thu-d daughter, was born !N"ovember 5th, 1809. She was

married to William, son of George Fulton and Esther Creelmaa..

They had four sons and four daughters. She died J^oveniber, 1867,

and her husband died January, 1868. Alice, their fourth daughter,

was born February 8th, 1813. She was married to James Creelman,.

Esq., December 5th, 1833. They had eight sons and one daughter.

Mr. Creelman died May 22nd, 1857. She was married again to Barry

Hamilton, January 2nd, 1860: Sarah, their fifth daughter, was born

October 8th, 1815. She was married to Samuel, son of Samuel and

Margaret Creelman, November 8th, 1834. They had three sons and

four daughters. Mr. Creelman died January 3rd, 1868. She was.

married again to Jonathan R Campbell, April, 1868.

David, the sixth and youngest son of Eliakim and Elizabeth Tup-

per, was born in August, 1780. He was married to Joanna, daughter-
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of David Dickey and Martha Howard, of Lower Stewiacke. They

had four sons and seven daughters. Mrs. Tupper died September

11th, 1840, aged 53 years. He was married again to Charlotte Green,

widow of the late Walter Power, August, 1841. They had three

daughters. He died May 19th, 1863, in the 83rd year of his age.

(2^^>g^^

CHAPTER XXVIII.

Colonel Thomas Pearson was among the early settlers in Truro.

He was an English officer, and came out to Florida, U. S., and was

married there, and from thence to Tr^u'o, Nova Scotia, about the year

1784, at the time that the United States gained their independence.

He resided in the house in which Mr. Hiram Hyde now resides, from

the time he came to Truro until he moved into his own house in the

year 1809, being the same house in which Mr. McKenzie now keeps

an Inn. S. B. Eobie represented Truro Township in the House of

Assembly from the year 1799, until the year 1806. This year Mr.

Eobie obtained a seat for the County of Halifax, and Mr. Pearson

represented Truro untU the year 1811. This year James Kent, Esq.,

of the Lower Village, offered as a candidate for Truro. There was a

pretty warm contest, and Kent was returned with a majority of two

or three votes ; a scrutiny was demanded by Pearson, and when the

Assembly met on February 6th, 1812, a committee was drawn to try

the matter, when it was proved that one or two of the votes for Kent

were so bad that they were struck off. A very strong attempt was

made to destroy the vote of Dumb John Johnson, but the committee

decided in favor of his vote being good, and Kent retained his seat

with a majority of one vote. He died July 24th, 1818, and his wife

died February, 1826. He (Mr. Pearson) was married before he came

to Truro.

Sarah, the eldest daughter of Thomas and Martha Pearson, was

born before they came to Truro. She was married to John Crane.

They had six sons and four daughters. Mr. Crane died in Economy,

about 185.0.

Eebecca, their second daughter was born 1784. She was married

to Colonel WiUiam Dickson, of Onslow, January 29th, 1801. They

had six sons and six daughters. He removed to Truro and purchased
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the place on which Mr. Hyde now resides, where he carried on a very-

extensive husiness selling goods and farming. He held the offices of

Eegistrar of Deeds, Prothonotary of the Supreme Court, and Clerk of

the Peace, all at one time for a number of years. He was a very

active man for business of almost every kind. He died February 5th,

1834, aged 55 years. His wife died June, 1833.

Eachel, daughter of Thomas and Martha Pearson, was born 1785.

She was married to Thomas T. Brown, July 9th, 1801. They had

seven sons and two daughters. They lived and reared their family

on the farm which the Messrs. Putnam now own, at Fort Belcher.

He was a Justice of the Peace, and Judge of the Court of Common
Pleas. He died at Pictou. and his body was brought to Truro for

interment, October 15th, 1855, aged 77 years, and his wife died Dec.

11th, 1854, aged 69 years.

Wilham, the eldest son of Thomas and Martha Pearson, was born

about the year 1788. He was married to Nancy Dempsey, of Ayles-

ford, in the year 1811. They had one son and two daughters. He
kept an Inn where William Bowland now resides. In this house his

wife died in the year 1818. He was lost overboard from a schooner

in the Bay of Fundy, December 3rd, 1834, near Spencer's Island.

Thomas, his only son, was born May 10th, 1814. He was married to

Sarah, daughter of John and Hannah Yuill, June 23rd, 1836. They

had three sons and two daughters. He died on his way to California,

February 23rd, 1852, and his wife died AprH 9th, 1868, aged 55

years. Martha, the eldest daughter of William and ISTancy Pearson,

was born April 17th, 1812. She was married to Ferguson McXutt,

of Masstown, March 10th, 1835. They had four sons and six daugh-

ters. Susan, their second daughter, was born May 30th, 1816. She

was married to Thomas D., eldest son of Hugh Johnson and Elizabeth

Dickey, June 23rd, 1836.

Elizabeth, the fourth and youngest daughter of Thomas and Mar-

tha Pearson, was born in the year 1790. She was married to Captain

James Pearson. They had one daughter, whose name was Martha

;

she was married and removed to Cumberland. Captain Pearson died

February 12th, 1816, aged 33 years, and his wife died July 7th,

1817, aged 27 years.

Jolm, the second son of Thomas and Martha Pearson, was born in

the year 1792. He was married to Esther, the youngest daughter of

Eobert McElhenny of Londonderry, in the year 1813. Thomas, their

son, was married to Esther, the youngest daughter of M. P. Martin.
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He was a sea captain, and perislied at sea on a wrecked ship a few

years after they were married, and his wife died soon after, November

11th, 1842. Robert, another son of John and Esther Pearson, was

married to Elizabeth, daughter of James and Esther Barnhill. They

had one son and two daughters. He removed to California and died

there about the year 1852. "William Dickson, another son of John

Pearson left home to follow the sea more than 30 years ago, and has

not been heard from since. Hannah, their only daughter, removed to

the United States. She was married to James, the eldest son of

James and Margaret Fulton, of Stewiacke. She died in Boston,

1863. Frederick M., the fourth and youngest son of John and Es-

ther Pearson was born in Pictou, February 13th, 1827. He was mar-

ried to Eliza Crowe, daughter of James Crow and James Fletcher,

4th AprU, 1850. They have four sons and three daughters. For a

number of years he carried on a large business shipbuilding at Mass-

town, and importing and selling goods. He is noAv carrying on a

large business in Truro, importing and selling floui and other goods.

He is a Justice of the Peace, and in the year 1870, he was elected to

represent Colchester in the House of Commons of the Dominion of

Canada. On August 15th, 1872, he was re-elected.

John Pearson died at Truro in July, 1844. His widow died at

her son's, at Masstown, July 13th 1871, aged 76 years.

Thomas, the third son of Thomas and Martha Pearson, was born

in the year 1794. He died a bachelor August 25th, 1822, aged 28

years.

Charles, their fourth son was born in the year 1796. He died a

bachelor about 1842.

Robert, the fifth and youngest son of Thomas and Martha

Pearson, was born in the year 1798. He was married to Esther, the

youngest daughter of WUliam and Esther Smith, May 25th, 1820.

They had three sons. Charles ,R. , was their second son. The other

two died when they were young. Charles R. Pearson was married to

Mary, the only daughter of James and Mary Brining, April, 1850.

They had two sons and three daughters. They inherited her father's

property. Mrs. Pearson died May 12th, 1870, and Robert Pearson

died December 17th, 1825, aged 27 years. His widow was married

again to John L. Doggett, December 4th, 1828.
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CHAPTEE XXIX,

Dr. John Harris was among the early settlers of Truro, although

he did not come until a few years after the Township was granted.

He and his family were one of the six families that sailed from

Philadelphia in the month of May, 1767, sent by a company to settle

in Pictou. The peoj)le of Truro having heard of this vessel being in

Halifax, sent seventeen men through the woods to Pictou to welcome

their arrival. When they came in sight of the harbor, June 11th,

they saw the ship coming up the harbor at a distance, and they

kindled fires on the shore to attract the attention of those on board.

When they saw the fires, they concluded that they were set by the

savages ; they held a consultation what to do—whether they would

submit to them or resist. They resolved upon resistance. The next

morning, when the people from Truro were walking down the shore,

they on board the vessel saw with their glasses that they were white

folks, and it was not long until they came ashore, and were welcomed

by the men from Truro. These people commenced clearing away the

trees and putting up small houses. They sowed some seed in the

ground, but it was so late in the season they grew very little crop that

year ; but the fish were very plenty in the harbor and rivers, so they

made out to live with much difficulty. Two of the six families

became so much discouraged that they left for Truro. Those that

remained had a very hard winter, and the next spring they had to go

to Truro, a distance of forty miles, and carry their seed potatoes on

their backs through the woods, having no other guide than the blaze

upon the trees. The next spring they had to go again to Truro for

seed potatoes, but this time they took another plan. They cut the

eyes out of the potatoes and only carried the eyes.

The names of the families that remained in Pictou were Robert

Paterson, Dr. John " Harris, John Rogers and James McCabe. The

next year they were joined by two families from Truro. Mr. William

Kennedy's family was one of these.

Dr. John Harris removed to Truro about the year 1776, and

settled on the interval of Salmon River, and built his house on the

same place that Mr. Robert Bennett's house now stands. He was a

Justice of the Peace, and was in the habit of celebrating the marriage

contract. He was Town Clerk from a short time after he came to
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Truro tmtil the year 1790. April 9tli, 1802, he went from home on

horseback, and rode to the ViUage, and as he was turning into Mr.

Jonathan Blanchard's yard from the street, he fell from his horse and

was killed instantly. He was married to Elizabeth Scott before they

left New England. She died in the month of July, 1815. He repre-

sented Truro in Parliament from the year 1781 until the year 1784.

Thomas, their eldest son, was born June 10th, 1767, on board of

the ship in which they came to Pictou. He was married to Alice,

daughter of William Logan and Janet Moor, of Truro. They had

four sons and one daughter. They settled near the " Town Gut," so

caUed, near Pictou Town, where they reared there family, and they

both died there some time ago.

Mary, the eldest daughter of Dr. John and Elizabeth Harris, was

born in 1769, being the first female child that was born in Pictou

after it was settled by the English. She was married to Eobert, third

son of Eev. Daniel Cock in the year 1795. They had three sons and

three daughters. They appear among the Cock families. She died

!N"ovember, 1864, aged 96 years, and her husband died about the year

1843, aged 78 years. William, their second son, was born in the

year 1771. He studied for a doctor, removed to the United States,

and was 'married there to Susan Hunt. They had one daughter. He

died there when he was but a young man.

Margaret, their second daughter, was born in Pictou in the year

1773. She was married to Joseph Notting, June, 1793. John

Harris dotting, their only son, was born in Truro April 5th, 1794.

He was married to Martha, the eldest daughter of John Kent and

Janet McCurdy, September 29th, 1825. They had one son and two

daughters. They settled in the Lower Village, where they are still

living together. Joseph dotting was a tanner by trade, and settled

and built his house and tan-yard at the same place that James and

Ralph Watson now reside. He died there January 23rd, 1795. His

widow was married again to Eobert, son of Thomas Watson, Esq., of

Cumberland, February 9th, 1796. They had seven sons and one

daughter. They continued on this same 'place, where they reared

their family. He died there March 22nd, 1851, aged 82 years, and

his wife died June 6th, 1853, aged 80 years.

Elizabeth, the third daughter of Dr. John and Elizabeth Harris,

was born in the year 1775. She was married to John, son of Capt.

John McKeen and Eachel Johnson, December, 1798, being the first

that Mr. WaddeU married after he came to Truro. They had three
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sons anil seven daughters. They first settled on the farm that ]\Ir.

Hugh Clark now resides upon, about five miles from Truro. They

removed thence to St. Mary's. They removed again and settled in

the woods on Tatamagouche Mountain, where they spent the

remainder of their days. She died January 6th, 1820, aged 45 years,

and her husband died October 17th, 1854, aged 84 years.

John Washington Harris, their third son, was born in the year

1777. He was married to Mary Hadley. They had eight sons and

four daughters. He settled near Pictou Town, and was Sheriff of

Pictou for a long time. He died there October. 1860, aged 92 years.

Susanna Hunter Harris, was born in Truro, April 2nd, 1779. She was

married to John, son of Hugh Moore, Senr., and Janet Logan, his

wife. They had three sons and five daughters. They settled on the

"West Branch of Eiver John, where they reared their family and died,

Robert, the fourth and youngest son of Dr. John and Elizabeth

Harris, was born in Truro, IN'ovember 21st, 1783. He was married to

Hannah, daughter of Ebenezer Hoar and Catherine Downing, January

30th, 1805. He inherited his father's property in Truro, where he

spent the whole of his life. He died December 26th, 1812, aged 29

years. Ebenezer Hoar Harris, their eldest son, was born May 13th,

1806. He was married to Lavinia Lynds, June, 1829. They

had one son and two daughters. They settled on Onslow

Mountaiji. Mrs. Harris died there March 18th, 1869, aged 62

years. Eliza, daughter of Robert and Hannah Harris, was born

October 21st, 1811. She was married to James, the eldest son of

Samuel and Elizabeth Archibald, December 31st, 1833. They had

three sons and one daughter. They reside at Clifton now. Robert,

the second son of Robert and Hannah Harris, was born July 14th,

1813. He was married to Maria, the youngest daughter of Robert

Cock and Mary Harris, 1839. They had four sons and one daughter,

who appear among the Cock families.

Dr. John Harris, being one of the first settlers of Pictou, was

interested in what was called the Philadelphia Grant. This grant

being escheated after the death of Dr. Harris, there were grants given

of five hundred acres each to John W. and Robert Harris, and their

four sisters. This 3000 acres of land was laid out and granted about

the year 1813, on each side of the road leading from Truro to Tata-

magouche, and soon after, the sons of Robert Cock and John McKeen
commenced to clear and make themselves farms at the same place that
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some of their descendants now reside, on Tatamagouche Mountain,

These were the first settlers between Onslow and Tatamagouche.

About the years 1817 and 1818 there were others who had

arrived from Scotland and commenced making a settlement West of

the place that the heirs of Harris were settled. This has become a

considerable settlement, and is called Kew Annan. It was one

unbroken forest betM^een North Eiver and Eiver John until the year

1817, when Alexander Miller made the first survey in what is now
called Earltown. He continued to survey a large part of the Crown

Land of Colchester and Pictou, which was not included in the

Townships of Truro, Onslow and Londonderry. Afterwards he fixed

boundary lines for Townships and gave them their names ; that part

lying between the East line of Truro, and the County line between

Pictou and Colchester he called Greenfield ] that part lying between

Pictou County line and Onslow he called Kemptown, in honor of Sir

James Kempt, who arrived in Halifax June 1st, 1820. That part

which lies ISTorth of Kemptown, and ISTorth of the East end of Onslow,

he called Earltown, for the Earl of Dalhousie.

I

CHAPTER XXX.

In the spring of the year 1784, seven men, with their families,

removed from Truro to Upper Musquodoboit, and commenced a

settlement there. Their names were John, James and Samuel Fisher,

sons of WiUiam Fisher, Stewtly Horton, who was married to Hannah
Fisher, Thomas Eeynolds, John Holman and Eobert Geddes.

In the same spring (1784), eight men, with their families removed

from Truro to Upper Stewiacke, to make a settlement there ; their

names were Thomas Croker, Samuel Fisher, "William and Samuel

Fulton, of the Lower Village, Samuel Taylor, John Archibald, and

Charles Cox, Matthew Johnson having remoTed and settled there in

the fall of 1783. In 1785 Eichard Upham settled at Otter Brook,

and after this time there were others removed and settled in Upper

Stewiacke. Samuel Creelman was the next settler there. Archibald

and Eobert GammeU, Eobert and Hugh Logan, John and William

Johnson, David Fulton, WUliam Cox, and WiUiam Smith were among
the early settlers.
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The Eev. Daniel Cock was the first who preached to these people

in Stewiacke. He first preached in IVIr. Samuel Fisher's honse, about

the year 1787. After this, Mr. Cock, Mr. McGregor, Mr. Munro,

Mr. Ross and Mr. Waddell, continued ta visit them and preach to

them. Mr. Munro remained with them about two years, from about

the year 1793 to 1795. In the year 1799, they began to make

efforts to obtain a settled Minister to labor among them. A number

of others had removed from Truro and elsewhere, and had settled in

Middle and Upper Stewiacke, and in Middle and Upper Musquo-

doboit ; these all joined together to obtain the services of a minister,

and they resolved to give the Eev. Hugh Graham a call. (Mr.

Graham came from Scotland in the year 1786, and was settled in

CornwaUis until 1799. The call to Mr. Graham is dated August

26th, 1799, and is signed by the following persons, in presence of the

Rev. John "Waddell, Moderator, and John Simmons, 3rd, Witness.

Robert Archibald, Eliakim Tupper, Alexander Stewart, Matthew

Johnson, Samuel Tupper, William Kennedy, Robert Geddes, William

Putnam, Samuel Fisher, Adam Dunlap, Samuel Fisher Archibald,

Matthew T. Archibald, William Archibald, Elizabeth Dickey, Thomas

Croker, Simeon Whidden, John Pratt, Robert Morris, Eddy Tupper,

Mahew Tupper, WiUiam Smith, William Cox, James Dunlap, John

Fisher, Thomas Brenton, Eliakim Tupper, Jr., Robert Hamilton,

James Johnson, John Archibald, 3rd, Alexander Henry, Alexander

Stewart, 2nd, Margaret FerreU, Thomas Reynolds, John Holman,

John Dean, James Kennedy, John Kennedy, John Bonnell, David

Dickey, Robert Kennedy, David Archibald, 8th, Samuel B. Archi-

bald, Edward Brydon, Samuel Fisher, Samuel ISTelson, John Scott,

Peter Hynds, John Archibald, Adams Archibald, John JSTelson, James

Guild, Ceorge McLeod, John Moore, John Higgins, David Archibald,

5th, Hugh Archibald, Johnson Kaulback, Robert I^elson, John

Geddes, Richard Upham, John Smith, Alexander McK Fisher, James

Whidden, Wm. Skeed, Hugh Logan, Michael Geddes, and Robert

Geddes. There is a seal affixed to this call by each of the signers,

and it is certified on the call by William Dickson, Deputy Registrar

of Deeds for the Distrsct of Colchester, that it was duly Registered

on August 2nd, 1805, at 10 o'clock in the forenoon, persuant to the

Laws of this Province, on the oath of John Simmons, recorded in

Lib. 4, folio 444. This call was accepted by Mr. Graham, and ht.

was removed and settled over the Congregation of Stewiacke and

Musquodoboit.
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He continued to liave the charge of this large and scattered Con-

gregation for about ten or twelve years. Then Musquodohoit was set

off as a separate congTegation, and obtained the services of the Eev.

Mr. Laidlaw as their first Minister. Mr. Graham continued the

remainder of his life, labouring faithfully and zealously, in the Con-

gregation of Stewiacke. As soon as the people of Middle Stewiacke

got a settled Minister, they commenced buUding a Meeting House.

But about the time they got the inside finished, it caught fire and

was burnt down. They built another about the year 1804. In it

they worshipped until about the year 1848, when the present one was

buUt.

The Eev. Hugh Graham was born in Scotland in the year 1764,

and removed to l!^ova Scotia in the spring of the year 1785, when he

was 32 years old. He was soon settled in Cornwallis. (And on August

2nd, 1786, the first Presbytery of Nova Scotia was formed by the

Eev. Daniel Cock, of Truro, Eev. David Smith, of Londonderry, Eev.

Hugh Graham of CornwaUis, Eev. James McGregor, of Pictou, and

Eev. Mr. Gilmore, of Hants County, and John Johnson of Truro, and

John Barnhill, of Londonderry, Euling Elders.) He was married

to Elizabeth, daughter of John Whidden, Esq., of Cornwallis,

in 1792.

Hugh, their eldest son, was born March, 1793. He was married

to Janet, daughter of James Kennedy and Janet. Dickey, November,

1819. He settled on the farm that Mr. Wnu Logan now resides

upon. He removed and settled on the mountain, on the south side

of Stewiacke Eiver, where they reared their family and spent the

remainder of their lives. He died there January 18th 1857, aged 64

years, and his wife died July 26th, 1832, aged 37 years. Elizabeth,

the eldest daughter of Hugh and Janet Graham, was bom March

17th, 1818. She was married to George, the third son of Henry

Miller and Sarah Wright, December 2nd, 1839. They had three

sons and three daughters. She died March 23rd, 1859, aged 41

years. Hannah Prescott, their second daughter, was bom October

13th, 1820. She was married to David, the third son of David

Pulton and Martha Ellis, his wife, Pebmary 9th, 1843. They had

nine sons and three daughters. Eleanor, their third daughter, was

born April 9th, 1823. She was married to James, son of Murdock

Prame and Isabel "Wilson, March 12th, 1846. They had two sons

and two daughters. They reside on what was his father's farm at

Middle Stewiacke. Hugh, the only son of Hugh and Janet Graham,
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was born March 12tli, 1826. He removed to ISTew Brunswick, and

was married there to Susan Maynord in 1852. They had two sons

and four daughters. They returned and settled on the Mountain

South of Stewiacke Eiver.

John Whidden, the second son of Eev. Hugh Graham and

Elizabeth Whidden, was born February 22nd, 1795. Eebecca

Croker, his wife, was born February 15th, 1800. They were married

in the year 1821. Hugh, their eldest son, was born JSTovember 25th,

1822. He was married to Hannah Thomson, of Musquodoboit, in the

year 1848. They had three sons and three daughters. David, their

second son, was born in Stewiacke July 14th, 1824. He removed to

the United States and was married there. John W., their third son,

was born January 28th, 1826. He was married to Mary E. Albee, of

N"ew Brunswick. Thomas, their fourth son, was born May 25th,

1827. He was married to Jessie McKenzie, of Pictou. They had

three sons and four daughters. Peter, their fifth son, was born

February 21st, 1829. He was married to Margaret Samson, of ISTew

Brunswick. They had one son and two daughters. Robert Black-

wood, their sixth son, was born July 11th, 1831. He removed to

ISTew Brunswick, and died there a bachelor in the year 1855, aged 24

years. "William Wilberforce, their seventh son, was born November

25th, 1832. He removed to ISTew Brunswick, and was married there

to Sarah Caswell. They had three sons and four daughters. Eliza,

their only daughter, was born December 17th, 1835. She died when

she was quite young. James, their eighth son, was born February

3rd, 1837. He was married to Lois Allen, January 9th, 1868. They

have one son and one daughter. He and his brother Joseph A. are

now carrying on business as merchants at Brookfield. Joseph Alison,

their ninth son, was born January 20th, 1843. He was married to

Emily AUen, February 4th, 1871. The above named John W.
Graham died at Stewiacke, June 22nd, 1867, aged 72 years, and his

widow, Eebecca, died June 15th, 1869, aged 69 years.

Isabell, daughter of Eev. Hugh Graham and Elizabeth Whidden,

was born December 25th, 1799. She was married to James, the

eldest son of Samuel Tapper, Esq., and Eachel Dunlap, February

29th, 1820. They had two sons and five daughters. She died

December 18th, 1864. Elizabeth Graham was born in 1797. She

died about the year 1813, aged 16 years.

William, the third son of Eev. Hugh and Elizabeth Graham, was
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born August 1st, 1804. He died a bachelor, June 15th, 1849, aged

45 years.

James, the fourth and youngest son of Rev. Hugh and Elizabeth

Graham, was born April 30th, 1808. He was married to Rachel, the

third daughter of William Creelman and Hannah Tupper, March 4th,

1845. AUen, their eldest son, was born June 19th, 1846. Samuel,

their second son, was born May 1st, 1848. William, their third son,

was born May 28fch, 1850. Bessie, their eldest daiighter, was born

August 19th, 1852. David, their fourth son, was born June 14th,

1854. Frank, their fifth son, was born April 28th, 1856. Isabell,

their second and youngest daughter, was born May 4th, 1863. The

Rev. Hugh Graham died at Stewiacke, April 5th, 1829, aged 75

years. His wife died June 12th, 1816, aged 42 years.

The first settlers of Stewiacke had many difficulties to contend

against. On September 8th, 1792, there was the great freshet, which

carried away a large part of their wheat, which was standing in stook

in the field. Many of their houses stood on the interval, and were in

danger of being carried away. Many made rafts of boards from the

floors of their houses and pushed off for higher land, while those who
had canoes were busy saving the people first and afterwards the cattle

and sheep. After this they very prudently built more of their

houses on the upland.

The people in Brookfield also sustained great loss by this freshet,

both in wheat and other crops.

At the same time all the interval and marsh between Truro and

Onslow was flooded, so that they could go to Onslow from Truro and

back in boats. By looking at the date of this freshet, it will be seen

that it would be most disastrous to the farmers of those places.

Then, on the evening of the 12th of N^ovember, 1813, was the

great hurricane, known by the old men as the " big wind," which

devastated the woods, levelled the fences, and very many of the

buildings were either Wown down or unroofed. Many of the settlers

suffered severely.

But long before any of these disasters, the crops of the first settlers

of these places were destroyed by mice. This year was called by the

old settlers as the year of the mice, and a year or two either before or

after this, they had a summer so cold that none of their crops came to

perfection. Here are four epochs which the old men of the present

day often heard their fathers talk about, viz : The year of the mice,

16
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the cold summer, the tig wind, and the great freshet, and I believe

there has been nothing like any one of them since.

Then, on the 7th October, 1825, there was the great fire in

Miramichi, in which 160 persons perished, 595 buildings burned, and

875 horses and cattle lost. The total loss of property was estimated

at $994,092, and 8000 square miles of country laid waste. In Great

Britain, United States, and the British Colonies about $174,428 were

subscribed for the relief of the sufferers.

Q^^tS^-^

CHAPTEE XXXI.

The first settlers removed to Brookfield about the year 1786. The

first who settled there were William Hamilton and Daniel Moore, and

shortly after William Downing, WiUiam Carter, and James Boomer

settled there. William Downing soon left, and John Hamilton

settled on what was his farm, in 1793. The first sermon was preached

there by the Eev. John Waddell, in January, 1800, and he continued

to be their minister until 1832. The people of Brookfield, before

this date, attended public worship in Truro quite regularly. At this

date it was set off from Truro congregation, and the Rev. John I,

Baxter had it as a part of his charge. As mentioned before, the frame

of the first Church was raised at Brookfield on July 17th, 1833, and

this was the only Church in Brookfield until the year 1857, when the

Baptists built their small Church. In the year 1869 the Presby-

terians built their new Church and removed the old one. Prom the

settlement of the place up to the year 1832, they came to Truro to

bury their dead, but from this time they commenced to bury their

dead in a Cemetery west of the Brookfield station. The body of Mr.

William Carter was the first that was buried tliere, in January, 1832.

What was called the new level road, from Truro to Halifax, was made

through Brookfield in the year 1835, and in December, 1858, the

railroad was opened for carrying freight and passengers.

The Lieutenant Governor, Sir George Provost, arrived at Halifax

April 15th, 1809, and in July of this year he visited Tiiiro and

Pictou, where ho received addresses from the inhabitants. He was

accompanied by Michael Wallace and S. H. George, Esqs., and his

Aid-de-camp, Capt. Provost. The writer believes that this was the
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first four wheeled carriage that ever passed through. Truro. Ahout

"this time they were getting the roads made so that wheels could be

run on them from Halifax to Pictou, and in a few years after this

some of the people began to get carriages to ride in, but they were

few in number for many years after this. It may here be observed

that all the travelling that was done by men, women, or children was

done on foot or horseback for more than fifty years after the settle-

ment of Colchester ; and it was quite customary in those days for

people to ride on horseback ten or twelve miles to attend public

worship, or to walk five or six miles for the same purpose, and carry

"the bodies of their dead on biers, by four men at a time, a distance of

three miles to the place of buriaL Spirituous liquors were always used

at funerals in those days.

Qj^^Jlv^ '

CHAPTEE XXXII,

John Christie was among the early settlers of Truro, but he did

aot come until twelve years after the first settlers. He was born in

Roxburgshire, Scotland, in the year 1739. He removed to ISTova

'Scotia in the summer of the year 1772. He came out from Scotland

with the Rev. Daniel Cock and his family. He was married to

-Nancy, daughter of John Denny and Eebecca Mitchell, his wife, of

Londonderry, about the year 1780. He purchased a farm from

•Matthew Taylor, second, where they settled, reared their family, and

died. Mr. Christie died May 28th, 1830, aged 91 years, and his

widow died June 14th, 1844, aged 85 years. Janet, their eldest

"daughter, was born January 27th, 1782. She was married to

Alexander Kent, Esq., January 27th, 1803. They had one son and

seven daughters, who appear among the Kent families. She died

June 1st, 1872, aged 90 years.

John Denny, the eldest son of John Christie and Nancy Denny,

was born April 14th, 1784. He was married to Margaret, daughter

of Isaac O'Brien and Mary Denny, of Noel, November 1st, 1808,

He inherited a part of his father's farm, where they reared their family

and spent the remainder of their days. Isaac, their eldest son, was
born August 28th, 1809. He was married to Susannah, the third

daughter of James and Sarah Yuill, December 25th, 1834, They
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had one son and nine daughters. Mrs. Christie died Septemher 1 7\X\.,

1863, aged 49 years. Oliphant, their second son, was born June

12 th, 1811. He learned the blacksmith trade, and removed to Xew
York, U. S. He was married to Ann Godfrey. They had four sons

and three daughters. Eebecca, their only daughter, was born May
28th, 1813. She was married to I^ac Archibald, I^ovember 27th,,

1836. They had three sons and five daughters. George, their third

son, was born April 4th, 1815. He is a minister of the Gospel, and

settled over a congregation at Yarmouth. He was married to Eliza-

beth, daughter of John Paterson, of Pictou Town, August, 1840.

They had six sons. "William, their fourth son, was born ISTovember

11th, 1817. He was married to Jane McLain, of Pictou, November

16th, 1846. They have two sons and two daughters. He inherits a

part of his father's property. Richard, their fifth son, was born

November 5th, 1819. He was married to Eliza Jane, fifth daughter

of James and Sarah Yuill, December' 31st, 1842. They had six sons

and four daughters. Mrs. Christie died June 20th, 1872. John,,

their sixth and youngest son, was born K'ovember 14th, 1821. He
removed to California.

Mr. Christie's first wife died January 31st, 1822, aged 35 years.

He was married again to Margaret, daughter of James and Ann
Johnson, of Middle Stewiacke, February 8th, 18'27. Margaret, their

only daughter, was born January 3rd, 1829. Slie was married to

Hugh Dtinlap, Esq., April 4th, 1856. They had four sons and two

daughters. She died May 11th, 1869, aged 40 years. James, their

only son, was bom' July 31st, 1830. He died October 22nd, 1846,

aged 16 yeaTs. John D. Christie died May 11th, 1866^, aged 82

years, and his second wife died I^ovember 29th, 1856, aged 64 years.

Rebecca, the second daughter of John Christie and Ij^ancy Denny,

was born April 6th, 1786. She was married to Ebenezer, the fourth

son of Matthew and Janet Archibald, April 12th, 1804. They had'

six sons and two daughters, who appear among the Archibalds. She

died June 25th, 1854, aged 6'8 years, and her husband died August

8th, 1829, aged 50 years.

Henry, the second son of John and Nancy Christie, was born

October 29th, 1788. He was married to IsTancy, the eldest daughter

of David Archibald, fourth, and Esther Cox, March 12th, 1818.

Esther, their eldest daughter, was born in Truro, March 2nd, 1819,.

She was married to John Hattie, April 13th, 1852. They had one
son and four daughters. Robert, the eldest son of Henry and Nancy
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C!hristie, was born I^ovember 4th, 1820. He was married to Harriet,

the eldest daughter of Daniel and Mary Ann Cock, March 7th, 1850.

They had four sons and three daughters. Charles, their second son,

was born March 23Td, 1822. He was married to Jane, the third

daughter of the late James Laughead, Junr., and Elizabeth McLellan,

January 30th, 1849. Theyliad iiine sons and four daughters. He
inherits what was his father's farm, iN'ancy, the second daughter of

Henry and ^ancy Christie, was boxn December 20th, 1823. She

was married to James Gass, of Shubenacadie, Octdber, 1850. They

had four sons and one daughter. Elizabeth, their third daughter, was

born June 17th, 1829. Martha, their fourth daughter, was born

December 29th, 1835. Henry Christie inherited a part of what was

his father's land, where he cleaxed his farm and put up buildings, in

Avhich they reared their faiuily. He died I^ovember 27th, 1'85'6, aged

68 years.

Andrew, the fourth son of John and NaTicy Christie, was born

April, 1792. He was married to Rachel, daughter of Isaac O'Brien

and Mary Denny, of Noel, November 11th, 1823. He inherited the

homestead part of what was his father's farm. He died May 18th,

1872, aged 80 years. John, their eldest son, was born October 18th,

1829. He died September 5th, 1845, aged 16 years. Isaac, their

second son, was born December 5th, 1831. He was married to

Adela O'Brien, of Noel, January 18th, 1859. They had two sons.

He died May 13th, 1862, aged 30 years. Mary, the only daughter

of Andrew and Rachel Christie, was born June 18th, 1834.

Martha, the third daughter of John and Nancy Christie, was born

October, 1794. She wa-s married to Capt. Richard Christie, in August,

1^824. They had one son and one daughter. Mr. Christie was a sea

Captain, and a brother's son of John Christie. He died at sea,

March 28th, 1830, and his body was buried in the sea. She died

October 17th, 1872, aged 78 years.

Robert Oliphant, the fifth son of John and Nancy Christie, was

born April, 1798. He was 'married to Margaret, the second daughter

of James and Sarah Yuill, December 30th, 1831. They settled in

the Lower Village of Truro, where they reared their family, and he

died there March 22n.d, 1867, aged 69 years. IsabeU, their eldest

daughter, was born March 7th, 1834. She was married to Edward,

the fourth son of Ebenezer Archibald and Rebecca Christie, November

27th, 1844. They had two sons and four daughters. They appear

among the Archibalds. Henrj'", the eldest son of Robert 0. and
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Margaret Christie, was born December 4th, 1835. He was married

to Anne Pitblado (sister of the Eev. Charles), January 2nd, 1861.

They have four sons and one daughter. He inherits the first farm

that his father settled on at Old Barns. Sarah, their second daughter,

was born July 25th, 1837. She was married to Henry L. Atkins,,

druggist, of Truro, April 19th, 1864. "Walter, their second son, was

born May 23rd, 1839. He was married to Mary, the second

daughter of Daniel and Mary Ann Cock, May 15th, 1862. T\\qj

have one son and three daughters. OHphant, their third son, was

born April 2nd, 1841. He was a minister of the Gospel. He died

January 10th, 1868, aged 27 years, James, their fourth son, was

born December 4th, 1844. He is now a lawyer, practising in the

State of !N"ew Jersey. George, their fifth and youngest son, was born

June 4th, 1847. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter of Eobert

Johnson and Janet ISTotting, July 19th, 1866. They had two

daughters, and they inherited his father's property in the Lower

Village of Truro. On August 16th, 1870, he was engaged, with three

other men, fishing Salmon, and in attempting to sweep a hole in the

Eiver, under the Lower Salmon River Bridge, he got entangled with

a rope of the net, and was drowned. He left a young widow with

her two babes to mourn their sad bereavement.

Alexander, the sixth and youngest son of John and Nancy

Christie, was born May 9th, 1802. He was married to Margaret

Laidlaw, who came from Scotland but a short time before, June 1 3th,

1837. They settled on Onslow Mountain, where they are living

together at date (May 9th, 1872.)

Joseph Laidlaw, their eldest son, was born April 8th, 1838. He
was married to Sarah, daughter of Charles McKenzie, of the West

Eiver, of Pictou, and ISTancy Dickson, December 14th, 1865. They

have two sons and one daughter. He settled on a part of what was

his father's farm on Onslow Mountain.

Arthur, the second son of Alexander and Margaret Christie, was

born November 5th, 1840. Agnes, their eldest daughter, was born

November 22nd, 1842. She died March 13th, 1872, aged 29 years.

John Alexander, their thiixl son, was born Jidy 8th, 1845. Herbert,,

their fourth son, was born June 1st, 1849. Jano Kent, their second

and youngest daughter, was born January 22nd, 1853.

Nancy, the fourth and youngest daughter of John and Nancy

Christie, was born April 18th, 1805. She was married to John, the-

youngest son of David Archibald, 4th, and Esther Cox, April 16th„
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1832. They had three sons and three daughters. They appear

among the Archibald's. Mr. Archibald died August 23rd, 1869,

aged 70 years.

George Denny, the third son of John Christie and Nancy

Denny, was born ISTovember 13th, 1790. He died when he was

young.

CHAPTEE XXXIII,

David McCoUum, Senr., was among the early settlers of Onslow.

He was married to Margaret Moore, of Truro, in the year 1775.

They settled on the farm on which their grand son, David Lynds, now

resides, at Xorth Eiver, where they reared their family and spent the

remainder of their lives. He died about 1824. His wife died 1830.

Phebe Ann, their eldest daughter, was born October 14th, 1776.

She was married to Robert Hamilton. They settled on the interval

of Upper Stewiacke, on the same farm on which Mr. Charles Cox

recently lived. At this place Mr. Hamilton died, and she was married

again to Robert Gammell, June 20th, 1816. She died April 8th,

1859, aged 82 years. She left no children.

Thomas, their eldest son, was born April 20th, 1778. He was

married to Janet, the youngest daughter of WilHam Logan and Janet

Moore. They had two sons and five daughters. They removed and

settled in Middle Musquodoboit, where they reared their family. He
died there April 1859, aged 81 years, and his widow died December,

1864, aged 89 years.

David, their second son, was born July 16th, 1781. He was

married to Mary, the third daughter of John Archibald and Alice

Moore, of Musquodoboit, 1803. They had six sons and six

daughters. He settled on the farm that David Murray has owned for

forty years past. He removed into the woods in 1827, and cleared

another farm, being the same that his son Johnson now resides upon.

Here he and his wife spent the remainder of their days. He died

January, 1858. His widow died March, 1866.

Margaret, the second daughter of David and Margaret McCoUum,
was born July 26th, 1783. She was married to "William Lynds,

November, 1801. They had five sons and four daughters. They
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spent the latter part of their lives on the same farm on which their

son David now resides. She died JSTovemher 13th, 1847. Her

husband died December 13th, 1843.

Hugh, the third son of David and Margaret McCoIlum, was born

July 16th, 1785. He was a carpenter, and settled at Maitland, and

spent the remainder of his life there. He was married to Lucy,

daughter of Caleb Smith, Esq., January, 1818. They had two sons

and three daughters. He died January, 1870, aged 84 years. His

wife died July 4th, 1871.

Janet, their third daughter, was born IMarch 5th, 1787. She was

married to Simeon Howard, of St. Andrew's Eiver. They had three

sons and six daughters. She died at Wallace.

Edward, their fourth son, was born July 16th, 1790. He was

married to Deborah, the eldest daughter of John Wriglit and Sarah

Lynds, October 3rd, 1816. They had live sons and one daughter.

He died April 5th, 1855, aged 65 years.

James, the fifth son of David and Margaret McCollum, Avas born

December 18th, 1793. He was married to Mary, daughter of Daniel

and Eleanor Moore, of Brookfleld, widow of the late Eobert Lynton.

They removed to Pictou County. He died 1867.

Eobert, their sixth and youngest son, was born January 28th,

1795. He inherited his father's farm for a time, and then removed to

the South Branch of North Eiver, where he spent the remainder of

his life. He was married to Mary, daughter of Charles Moore, of

Hants County, 1827. They had two sons and four daughters. He
died 1814.

CHAPTEE XXXIV.

John Dickson, was an early settler of Onslow. He was born in

Scotland. He was married before he left Scotland to Margaret Burn,

February 1st, 1757. They came out from Scotland about the year

1773, and settled on the farm that his grand son, John Dickson, and
his great grand son, George Philips, now reside upon, at IS'orth Eivor,

where he and his wife spent the remainder of their earthly existence.

He died 1801, and his widow died 1822.

Jane, their eldest daughter, was born in Scotland, December 7th,

1757. She lived to be pretty old, and died unmarried, about 1832,
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aged 75 years. Margaret, their second daughter, was born January

8th, 1760. She was married to James Downing, I^ovember 22nd,

1787. They had two children, and they died when young. She

died February 15th, 1790, aged 30 years. Her husband died Febru-

ary 21st, 1788.

John, their eldest son, was born in Scotland January 10th, 1863.

He was brought by his parents to J^ova Scotia, and was married to

Mary, the third daughter of Thomas Baird and Margaret Barnhill,

!N'ovember 4th, 1790, They had four sons and two daughters, who

appear among the Bairds. Mrs. Dickson died suddenly, November

23rd, 1803. He was married again to Elizabeth, fouith daughter of

Hugh Moore and Janet Logan, IS'ovember 6th, 1804.

Mary, their eldest daughter, was born August 27th, 1805. She

was married to Simon McKenzie, March 1st, 1832. They had two

sons and three daughters. Eobert, their eldest son, was born July

9th, 1807. He removed to the United States when he was a young

man, and joined the Mormons, and removed to Salt Lake, and was

married there to Lydia Virginia Schnider, 1863. They had one son

and one daughter. Hugh, their second son, was born July 1st, 1809.

He was married to Rachel, the sixth daughter of James McCurdy and

Agnes Archibald, ISTovember 4th, 1834. They had six sons and four

daughters. He inherited his father's farm on Onslow Mountain, the

same that his son WiUiam now resides upon. Their son, Henry C,

was drowned at the board-landing bridge, June 20th, 1862, aged 26.

Nancy, the second daughter of John and Elizabath Dickson, was

born June 17th, 1811. She was married to Charles, son of Daniel

McKenzie and Sarah Moore, of the "West River of Pictou, March 1 7th,

1831. They had three sons and seven daughters. Mr. McKenzie

died October 25th, 1856, aged 54 years, leaving a widow and nine

children to bemoan their sad bereavement. She is stUl living a

widow. Alexander, the third son of John and Elizabeth Dickson,

was born November 12th, 1813. He learned the blacksmith trade,

and removed to Boston, Mass,, and settled there, where he carried on

his business extensively. He was married there to Susan May,

September, 1842. They have two sons and four daughters. Eliza-

beth, their third and youngest daughter, was born September 18th,

1816. She was married to David King, October, 1844. They

removed and settled at Wallace Harbor, where he carries on his

business as a tanner and shoemaker. They have one son and two
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daughters. John Dickson died May 25th, 1855, aged 92 years, and

his second wife died May 17th, 1842, aged 68 years.

Elizabeth, the third daughter of John Dickson, Senr., and

Margaret Burn, his wife, was born April 6th, 1765. She died

unmarried. Janet, their fourth daughter, was born March 21st, 1768.

She was married to John Baird in the year 1793; They had one son.

She died December 4th, 1794, aged 26 years. Myze Ann, their fifth

daughter, was born March 6th, 1771. She was married to Samuel

Mc¥utt, May 13th, 1790. They settled in the Lower Village of

Truro, and had one daughter. She died I^ovember 24th, 1790, aged

20 years. Mr. Mci*^utt was married again to Margaret Savage, of

Great Village, Londonderry, March 8th, 1792. They had six sons

and four daughters. Magdalen, their sixth daughter, was born

August 22nd, 1773. She was married to Thomas, the eldest son of

Thomas Baird and Margaret Barnhill, in the year 1793. They had

three sons and four daughters, who appear among the Bairds. She

died January 29th, 1849, aged 76 years, and her husband died

January 7th, 1837, aged 75 years. Isabell, their seventh daughter,

was born July 5th, 1776. She was married to William McNutt in

1798. They had three sons and three daughters. They lived, reared

their family, and died in a house that stood about thirty rods east of

the house in which their son James now lives. Mr. McNutt died

April 3rd, 1841, aged 73 years. His wife died October 9th, 1844,

aged 68 years. ISTancy, their eighth and youngest daughter, was born

April 4th, 1778. She died at the house of her brother John,

unmarried, in the year 1840, aged 62 years.

James, their second and youngest son, was born April 30th, 1780.

He was married to Sarah, daughter of Liike Upham and Grace Locker,

his Avife. They inherited his father's property, where they reared

their family and spent their lives. He died there February 6th,

1856, aged 75 years, and his wife died February 24th, 1859, aged 80

years. Margaret, their eldest daughter, was born February 16th,

1799. She was married to David Philips, who came from Scotland

but a short time before, February 25th, 1820. They had five sons

and three daughters. She died October 20th, 1851, aged 52 years,

and her husband died January 22nd, 1862, aged 65 years. John,

the only son of James and Sarah Dickson, was born December 10th,

1801. He was married to Hannah Jerusha Faulkner, of Economy,

November 1st, 1832. Theyliad three sons and three daughters. He
inlicrits a part of what was his father's farm, which belonged to his
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grandfather. Elmira, their second daughter, was bom Janiiary 2nd,

1803. She is living unmarried. Mary Baird, their third daughter,

was born August 24th, 1804. She was married to David Murray,

January 26th, 1824. They had four sons and five daughters. She

died December''^20th, 1854, aged 50 years. OHve, their fourth

daughter, was born April 28 th, 1808. She was married to S. S,

i^^elson, merchant, of Truro, February 9 th, 1837. They had three

sons and three daughters. She died November 10th, 1872.

aged 64 years, Grace, their fifth daughter, was born March

10th, 1810. She was married to John Philips, 1830. They had

three sons and seven daughters. They now reside at River Philip,

County of Cumberland. Elizabeth, their sixth daughter, was born

December 17th, 1812. She was married to Eichard Upham, of

Truro, February 11th, 1841. She died July 17th, 1862, aged 4S

years. Sarah, their- seventh and youngest daughter, was born July

18th, 1815. She was married to Edward Faulkner, January 25th,

1844. They had two sons and three daughters.

Q^'^Zo'^

CHAPTEE XXXV.

John Oughterson was amongst the early settlers, of Truro. He
was married to ISIargaret, daughter of James and Elizabeth Johnson,

of the Lower "Village of Truro, in the the year 1774. Ann Glover,

their eldest daughter, was born in Truro, September 3rd, 1775. She

was married to Eobert Mcl^utt, of Masstown, March 25th, 1799.

They had four sons and two daughters. She died December 18th,

1857, aged 82 years, and her husband died April 3rd, 1851, aged 86

years, George Washington, their eldest son, was born in Truro, May
25th, 1777. He removed to the United States, and was married

there to Eliza Coats. He returned to Nova Scotia, and settled beside

the old road leading from Truro to Halifax, at the Lake eleven miles

from Truro. They had three sons and three daughters. He died

May 30th, 1839, aged 62 years, and his wife died December 22nd,

1827. James, their second son, was born March 11th, 1779. He
was married to Elizabeth Lord, of Kings County, about the year 1806»

He settled for a short time in the woods, beside the old Halifax road,

three miles from Truro. This place was afterwards owned by Charles
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Morris, Surveyor General, and Avas sold by his son, John Spry

]\Iorris, to the late Robert H. Smith. James Oughterson removed to

Canada, with his wife and family, about the year 1812, and died there

some time ago. We know nothing of any of his descendants.

Elizabeth Johnson, their second daughter, was born January 4th,

1782. She was mrrried to William McXutt. of Masstown, 1804.

They had three sons and seven daughters. She died July 1st, 1862,

aged 80 years, and her husband died !N"ovember 25th, 1857, aged 75

years. Eobert Johnson, their third son, was born December 22nd,

1783. He carried on the business of brick making. He removed to

Canada about the year 1828, and was married there to Miss Stubs.

About 15 years after this they returned to Onslow, Avhere he died

July, 1862, aged 73 years. I^ancy Oughterson, their third and

youngest daughter, was born in Truro, May 2nd, 1787. She was

married to John Hall, of Onslow Mountain, ISTovember 7th, 1809.

They had five sons and four daughters. He settled and cleared

a farm on Onslow Mountain, which is now owned by his son

James. He died June 20th, 1861, aged 72 years, and his wife

iN'ancy, died April 23rd, 1853, aged 66 years. John Oughterson died

January Lst, 1831, aged 88 years, and his wife died. March 27th,

,

1791, aged 39 years.

CHAPTER XXXVI

The Township of Londonderry, or the largest part of it, was

granted to James Fulton, Esq., and nineteen others, five shares, or

rights each, and to Robert Barnhill and forty-eight others, certain

other rights or shares, in all sixty-nine persons. This Grant was for

53,000 acres, and is dated March 6th, 1775, and signed by Francis

Legge, who was then Governor of Nova Scotia. Colonel Alexander

McNutt obtained a grant of 1000 acres of marsh and upland in the

upper part of Londonderry, adjoining the Chiganoise River. Anthony

Caverly had a grant of 1000 acres at Debert. These grants were

dated before the grant of the Township. The ten rights at Debert

were divided into eleven, to make one for the Rev. David Smith,

being the first settled minister of Londonderry. These first grants

caused considerable trouble when they came to subdivide the Town-

ship, under the Aviit of partition, in 1794.
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James Fulton, Esq., filled the offices of Justice of the Peace and

Judge of the Court of Common Pleas for a long time. He and

Edward Mortimer, Esq., of Pictou, were the first from the country to

ofier themselves as candidates to represent the County of Halifax. A
poll was opened at Halifax, Monday, I^ovemher 18th, 1799, and was

closed there Saturday the 23rd. At the close in Halifax Morris had

756 votes, Stewart 621, WaUace 596, Hartshorne 578, Tonge 392,

Mortimer 109, and Fulton 86. The poll was adjourned, and opened

again at Onslow, the 1st and 2nd days of December. At the close

Morris had 782 votes, Stewart 626, Wallace 636, Hartshorne 597,

Tonge 889, Mortimer 621, and Fulton 603. It was again adjourned,

and held in Pictou from the 5th to the 13th of December. When
finally closed, Tonge had 1257 votes, Mortimer 1077, Fulton 1001,

Morris 1000, WaUace 888, Stewart 637, and Hartshorne 505. The

four first named were returned, but Wallace protested against Tonge's

return, and had it tried at the next sitting of the Assembly, when

Tonge was unseated. There was a writ issued for another election.

A poll was opened at Halifax on Saturday, March 22nd, 1800. The

candidates were Michael Wallace and James Kent. On Tuesday

following Kent withdrew, having received seven votes. Mr, Fulton

represented the County of Halifax from the year 1799 until 1806, and

Mr. Mortimer rej)resented it from the year 1798 untU the time of his

death, which took place October 10th, 1819.

Mr. Fulton was born in Belfast, Ireland, in the year 1740, and

came out to !N"ew England in the year 1760, when he was 20 years

old. He continued there ten years, being engaged the most of the

time at surveying land. He removed to IS'ova Scotia in the year

1770, and was married to Margaret Campbell, of the Folly, in 1771,

She was born in Londonderry, Ireland, in the year 1754, and

removed with her parents to ^ova Scotia about the year 1762. They

settled at Bass Eiver, where they reared their numerous family and

spent the remainder of their days, being the same place on which

their son David lived and died, and their grandson, Thomas Fulton,

now resides. They had seven sons and eight daughters. He
surveyed and subdivided the whole of the Township of Londonderry

under the writ of Partition, and made a plan of the same. Tliis plan

is still in use.

vii/k 'lo -Ai
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CHAPTER XXXVII,

Col. Jothani Blanchard was born in Kew Hampsliire in 1745. He
\^as married to Elizabeth Tredwell, about the year 1766, and in the

year 1785 he removed to Truro, and purchased a part of what was Capt,

John Morrison's house lot in the Upper Village of Truro, lying on the

north side of the Parade. He built a two story house on the corner

of the lot, where Mr. William McCully now resides. Here he spent

his days, and died March 18th, 1807, aged 62 years, and his wife^

Elizabeth, died January 5th, 1811, aged 72 years. His loyalty to

the British Crown was the cause of his leaving the United States when
they gained their independence.

John, the eldest son of Jotham and Elizabeth Elanchard, was bom
about the year 1767. He removed to the Southern States, and never

came to IS'ova Scotia. Sarah, their eldest daughter, was born about

the year 1769. She was married to Jacob LijDencutt. They had

seven sons and two daughters. Mr. Lipencutt was a tanner by trade.

He worked in the yard of Matthew Archibald, Esq., on Bible^

Hill for a number of years. Elizabeth, their second daughter, was

born in the year 1770, She was married to ISTathaniel Symonds.

They had two sons and one daughter. They settled at Antigonish,

where Colonel Blanchard had obtained a grant of a large tract of land

on account of his loyalty. Mrs. Symonds died there September 25th,

1808, aged 38 years, and it is said that she was the first grown person

who was interred in the cemetery of Antigonish Village. Eebecca,

the third daughter of Col. Jotham and Elizabeth Blanchard, was born

about the year 1772. She remained in New Hampshire and never

came to Nova Scotia. She was married there to Mr. Shipard, and

had a family of children. Hannah, their fourth daughter, was born

about the year 1774. She was married to David Archibald, 3rd, in

the year 1799. They had three sons and five daughters ; they appear

among the Archibalds.

Jonathan, the second son of Jotham and Elizabeth Blanchard, was

bom in New Hampshire, April 21st, 1776. He was left by his

parents in New Hampshire when they removed to Nova Scotia, and

he continued there and learned his trade, (which was a saddler and
harness maker). He was married to Sarah Goggins, of the township
of Bearing, County of Hillsborough, in the State of New Hampshire,
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December 2nd, 1798. Sarah Goggins was born March 12th, 1780.

Jotham, their eldest son, was born in this same place, March 15th,

1800.

Jotham Blanchard was brought by his parents to N'ova Scotia when

about one year old, and while at school in Truro and at play he fell

on the ice and hurt his knee ; he was quite lame the remainder of

his life. He remained in Truro until he was seventeen years old, and

after he was able to go about until he left Truro, his father

kept a poney for him to ride to school and wherever he went. He
went with his parents to Pictou in the year 1817, where he continued

to go to school, and afterwards he studied the law, and practiced in

the Courts of law pretty successfully. And in the election that was

held in the year 1830, for four persons to represent the County of

Halifax in Parliament, S. G. W. Archibald, William Lawson, George

Smith, and this Jotham Blanchard were the four successful candidates.

Lawrence Hartshorne, John A. Barry, Starr, and Blackadar were the

unsuccessful ones. This was the last election that was held for the

County of Halifax while it was so extensive. It then contained what

is now the Avhole of the Counties of Halifax, Colchester, and Pictou,

and this election took three weeks to get through with. There was a

great amount of excitement at this election, on account of the old

Council, which was then composed of twelve members, refusing to

pass the revenue act, that the House of Assembly had passed and

sent to them for their approval. In this act there was fourpence

added to the duty to be paid on every gallon of brandy imported into

the Province. And neither the Council nor Assembly would yield,

so there was not any revenue collected during that year. The

Assembly was dissolved, and the people were appealed to to decide

this important question. Either shortly before or after this election

Jotham Blanchard was travehng through Scotland, and he took ill,

and lodged at the house of Mrs. Margaret Spears, a widow, and she

was particularly attentive to him during the time of his sickness. In

a short time after he returned to Pictou ; his father went to Scotland

and accompanied her to Nova Scotia to be his wife, they were married

December, 1832, and shortly after this his health began to fail, and

the last time that he attended in the House of Assembly a covered

sleigh with a small stove in it was provided for his accommodation in

travelling from Pictou to Halifax. He died in Pictou Town, August

1839.

Elizabeth, the eldest daughter of Jonathan and Sarah Blanchard,
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was "bom in Truro, September lltli, 1802. She was married to Jolin

Gass, 1819. They settled near the West River of Pictou, where they

are still living. They had fourteen sons and three daughters. Mrs.

Gass died January, 1873.

Sophia, their second daughter, was horn in Truro, December 25th,

1803. She was married to the Rev. John McLean, of the West

Eiver of Pictou, July 3rd, 1826. They had four sons and two

daughters. He commenced his labors in Richibucto, 1826, and

demitted his charge in 1833. He died 20th January, 1837, aged

36 years.

John, the second son of Jonathan and Sarah Blanchard, was born

in Truro, December 1st, 1805. He learned the tinsmith trade at the

West River of Pictou. He removed to Antigonish and settled there,

where he spent the remainder of his life. He was married there to

Frances Symonds. They had one son and three daughters. He died

there November 26th, 1840, aged 35 years. William Earl Blanchard,

their third son, was born July 19th, 1807. He settled at Miramichi,

and was married to Eleanor Curry. They removed again to Australia.

Jas. Blanchard, their fourth son, was born in Truro, March 27th, 1809.

He followed the sea as a sea Captain. He died in the West Indies of

j^ellow fever, February 26th, 1830. Stephen Smith Blanchard, their

fifth son, was born in Truro, March 6th, 1811. He died February

18th, 1813. Edward Sherburne Blanchard, their sixth son, was born

in Truro, December 11th, 1812. He was married to Margaret Pride,

July 1st, 1834. They had three sons and eight daughters. They are

now residing in Truro Village, and he is in business connected with

the railroad and cars. Stephen Smith Blanchard, their seventh son,

was born in Truro, April 28th, 1815, Hiram Blanchard, their eighth

son was born in Pictou, April 18th, 1818. He died July 21st, 1819.

Hiram Blanchard, their ninth son, was born in Pictou, January 17th,

1820. He was married to Eliza Cantrell. JN'ancy Blanchard, their

third and youngest daughter, was born September 13th, 1822. She

was married to the Rev. Samuel McCuUy, of Truro, in 1845. They

had one son and six daughters. He is settled over a congregation in

Prince William, in New Brunswick.

Sarah Goggins, Jonathan Blanchard's first wife, died in Pictoti

Town, September 25th, 1836, aged 56 years. He was married again

to Martha, the third daughter of David Archibald, fourth, and Esther

Cox, of Truro, November 2nd, 1837. They had one son and one

daughter, who both died when they were young. Mr. Blanchard died
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May 31st, 1843, aged 67 years. He removed to Truro from ^ew
Hampshire about the year 1801. He inherited his father's house and

lot of land until about the year 1813, when he sold the house, with

about half the land, to John Pearson. He purchased the largest part

of the house in which Mr. John Eoss now resides, on the north side

of the Parade, from WiUiam Logan, who had built it and afterwards

removed to Musquodoboit. This house then stood on the same place

that the house now stands in which Daniel Eaton, Esq., and his two

sons reside. He lived in it until the spring of the year 1817, when
he purchased Mr. George McConnell's farm at the West Eiver of

Pictou, and built a house on it, which has ever been known by the

name of the Ten Mile House. About seven or eight years after this

he removed to Pictou Town, and built a large house there, where he

continued the most of the time for the remainder of his life.

Edward Sherburne Blanchard, the third son of Jotham and

Elizabeth Blanchard, was bom in N'ew Hampshire, February, 1778.

He was brought by his parents to IvTova Scotia in the year 1785, when,

he was seven years old. He was married to Jane, the fourth

daughter of Matthew Archibald, Esq., and Janet Fisher, February

18th, 1802. He resided for a time in a house that was owned by

John Smith, which stood between the house that Mr. Smith then

resided in and the place which Mr. Eobert Smith now resides. After

this he built the house, which is still standing, on the north side of

Salmon Eiver, at the mouth of the old road leading to Pictou, where

he spent the remainder of his days. At this place, he kept an inn

until the year 1832. He then gave it up, and subscribed his name

to the rules of a temperance society ; and, after this, he was an active

advocate for the cause of temperance. He filled the offices of Justice

of the Peace and Commissioner of Schools for a long time, and took a

deep interest in the education of the young. He died Dec. 24th,

1856, aged 78 years and 10 months. His widow died February 9th,

1873, aged 90 years.

Nancy Blanchard, their eldest daughter, was born in Truro, Feb'y

5th, 1803. She was married to Isaac McCurdy, Esq., of Onslow,

January 21st, 1828. They had five sons and two daughters. Jane

Blanchard, their second daughter, was born July 1st, 1807. She was

married to Dr. John Waddell, June 25th, 1844. They had one son

and two daughters. Charles Blanchard, their eldest son, was bom
December 22nd, 1809. He was married to Nancy, the second

daughter of John Blair, 3rd, and Elizabeth McNutt, January 30th,

17
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1845. They had two sons and three daughters. He has been Sheriff

of the County of Colchester since 1841. George Augustus Blanchard,

their second son, was born Sept. 6th, 1811. He was married to Jane

Eobson, daughter of the Eev. Mr. Eobson, of Halifax, October, 1840.

They had two sons and three daughters. He has filled the office of

Judge of the Court of Probate of King's County for a number of

years. Jonathan Blanchard, their third son, was born July 26th,

1813. He was married to Sarah Story, of Halifax, May 21st, 1849.

They had one son and two daughters. Mrs. Blanchard died in Halifax

June 21st, 1857. James Flemming Blanchard, their fourth son, was

born November 8th, 1815. He settled for a few years in Miramichi,

and was married there to Jessie Johnstone Sept. 3rd, 1838. They

had five sons and five daughters. He is now doing business as a

merchant in Truro. He has filled the offices of Justice of the Peace

and Prothonotary of the Supreme Court, for a number of years, in the

County of Colchester. Elizabeth Blanchard, their third daughter,

was born October 3rd, 1819. She was married to the Eev. James

Waddell, September 23rd, 1837. They had three sons and four

daughters. They appear among the Waddells. Mr. "Waddell died in

Halifax, March 14th, 1870, aged 65 years. John Blanchard, their

sixth son, was born March 24th, 1822. He was married to Gertrude

Woollenhoft, of Windsor, 1845. They had four sons and three

daughters. He is settled in Kentville. Edward Blanchard, their

fifth son, was boin October 10th, 1817. He was married to Margaret

Metzler, June 4th, 1864. They had two sons and one daughter. He
inherited a large part of his father's farm. Sarah Blanchard, their

fourth daughter, was born December 23rd, 1823. William Henry

Blanchard, their seventh and youngest son, was born June 16th, 1827.

He studied law, and settled in Windsor. He was married there to

Maria Timlen July, 1847. They had two sons and one daughter.

Mrs. Blanchard died, and he was married again to Hannah, daughter

of David McCurdy, of Onslow, and Mary Archibald, widow of the

late Angus Tupper, October, 1867. They have one son.

Nancy Blanchard, the fifth and youngest daughter of Jotham and

Elizabeth Blanchard, was born in New Hampshire, about the year

1780. She was brought, by her parents, to Nova Scotia when she

was about five years old. She was married to the Eev. John WaddeU
Sept. 2nd, 1802. They had three sons and four daughters, who
appear among the Waddells. She died August 18th, 1818, aged 38

years, and her husband died November 13th, 1842, aged 72 years.
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CHAPTER XXXVIII,

Beacon Samuel Fisher was born in the North of Ireland, in the

year 1722, and was of Scottish descent. His father was a weaver.

He came to America in 1740, in the 19th year of his age. The ship

in which he came was usually spoken of as '' The starved ship." The

vessel was so scantily supplied with provisions, that, long before the

voyage was completed, one pint of oatmeal for each individual on

feoard, and a proportionate allowance of water, was all that remained.

Mr. Fislier once went to the mate witli a tablespoon to obtain some

water, which was refused him, there being but two-thirds of a bottle-

full on board. Mr. Fisher's custom was to take a spooniull of meal

and having moistened it with salt water, to eat it raw. The passen-

gers and crew, having subsisted in this manner for fourteen days,

were at length reduced to the necessity of eating the bodies of those

who died. Even this resource failed them ; and, at length, Mr.

Fisher was selected to give up his Kfe to preserve the lives of the

rest. Providentially, however, a vessel hove in sight ; and their

signals of distress being observed, they obtained relief, and he was

saved. So deep an impression did the horrors off that passage make

upon the mind of Mr. Fisher, that, in after life, he could never see,

without pain, the least morsel of food wasted, or a pail of water

thrown on the ground carelessly. On his arrival in this country, he

was bound by the Captain to a man in Roxbury for the payment of

his passage. He came to Londonderry, IT. H., about one or two

years after, and became a member of the family of Mr. Matthew

Taylor, whose daughter, Sarah, he manied, when he was twenty-live

years of age. He was made ruling «ld«r in the tjhurch in this place

during the ministry of the Eev. David McGregor, and remained in

this office until he was no longer able to perform its duties on account

of his age. H<e was well instructed in the great principles of the

gospel. He had a most happy faculty of improving the occurrences

which took place about him for the religious instruction of his femily.

Mr- Fisher was married three times, and had twelve children, eleven

of whom arrived at adult age, and ten of whom survived him. Ten

of his children were married, and most of them lived to an advanced

age. The average age of four of them was ninety-one years. His

descendants, in the year 1850, were nine hundred and fifteen, and are
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scattered tlirougt nearly all the States of the Union, tBrotigh ISTova;

Scotia and Canada. Some of them are ministers and some elders in-

the church. It is es-timated that three-fourtha of those over twenty

years of age are professors of religion. Mr. Fisher died in London-

derr}% New Hampshire, April 10th, 1806, aged 8'4 yeais.

Janet, his daughter, was born in New Hampshire, in the year

1 750. She was married to Matthew, the eldest sou of Samuel and

Eleanor Archibald, in 1767. She came to Kova Scotia with her

husband, who had returned from Truro to New Hampshire, and they

were married there. They had seven sons and five daughters-.

Samuel, son of Deacon Samuel Fisher, was bom in Londonderry,.

Kew Hampshire, He removed t© Nova Scotia in 1767. He was

married to Mary, daughter of Eliakim Tupper, Esq., and Elizabeth

Newcomb. He settled on tlxe interval farm that is now owned by

Mr. Samuel Butler and Mr. Patterson., on the south side of the

Btewiacke Eiver, in 1784. He was a worthy man; Ae went by the-

name of Deacon Fisher also. He died in Stewiacke, May 12th 1812.

His wife died April 23rd, 1812. Elizabeth Fisher, their eldest

daughter, was born in 1787. She was married to Adam' Johnson

vSept., 1806. They had two sons and five daughters. She died

February 14tb, 1843. Mr. Johnson died August 8th, 1823. Sarah

Fisher, their second daughter, was bom in 1 789. She was married

to Eddy Whidden in 1807. Tliey had five sons and five daughters.

She died December, 1835. Mr. "VVhi<iden died in 1858. Eachel

Fisher,, their third daughter, was bom in 1791. She was married to

Patrick Tupper. They had a family. They removed to Ohio in 1821,

Ebenezer Fisher, their eldest son, was born in 179*3. He was married

to Olivia Carter, of Onslow. They had seven sons and one daughter.

He died at Wallace in June, 1867. Nancy Fisher, their fourth

daughter, was bom in 1795. She was married to DUniel Tupper in

1814/ They had three sons and three daughters. She died August

10th, 1846. John Waddell Fisher, their second son, was born in

1798. He was married to Margaret Godfrey. They had one daughter.

He died in 1827. Charlotte Fisher, their fifth daughter, was born

ia 1800". She was married to Daniel C. TJpham, of Otterbrook, Oct.,

1826, They had two sons and three daughters. James Fisher, their

third son, was bom in 1802. He learned the saddler trade with Mr.

Knight in Truro. He removed to Ohio, U. S., and he died there in

1870. Mary Fisher, their sixth daughter, was bom in 1804. She
was married to Eichard Best. They removed to New Bmnswick.-
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Margaret Fisher, tlieir seventh daughter, was born in 1806. She

was married to Samuel Fulton, They had four sons and one daughter.

Mr. Fulton died. She was married to James "Wilson, of N^ew Annan.

They had two sons. She died at Bass Eiver in 1868.

Q>^^^

CHAPTER XXXIX.

The Rev. Bavid Smith was born in Scotland in the year 1732.

He studied there for the ministry, and in August, 1769, he was

.appointed by the Synod of Edinburgh as a missionary for I^^'ova Scotia.

He came out from Scotland in the year 1770, and received a call from

the people of Londonderry to be their pastor, which he accepted. He
was settled there and labored among them about twenty-five years,

and shared the hardships of a newly settled country with his small

congregation. To him his people looked for consolation in the hour

of tribulation, and the fruit of his labors may be traced to the gener-

ation of the present day. Although he was settled in Londonderry,

his labors were not altogether confined to this place. He visited the

people of Cumberland and Pictou and preached to them, before the

arrival of the Rev. J'ames McGregor in Pictou, which was in the year

1786. He was married to Agnes Spear about the year 1756, about

fourteen years before he left Scotland,

James, their eldest son, was born about the year 1757, and was

brought by his father to JS'ova Scotia when about thirteen years old.

In the year 1785 he was returned to represent Londonderry in the

House of Assembly, and on December 5th of this year h« took his

seat in the Assembly, and continued to represent the Township of

Londonderry until April 6th, 1789, when his seat was declared vacant.

He obtained a grant of 500 acres of land in Middle Stewiacke. It

was laid out in rear of the front lots, being part of Smithfield, from

which the place took its name, James Smith was married to

Elizabeth, daughter of William and Dorothy Putnam. They had one

son ; his name was William Putnam Smith. He married Miss

Campbell, and they have a family and are settled at Antigonish. Mr,

Robert Hennesy's wife, of the Lower "Village of Truro, is a daughter

of theirs. James Smith removed to Stewiacke with his father-in-law,



202 Historical and

and died there. His widow was married again to Capt. James Miller

about the year 1797. They removed and settled in Antigonish.

David, the second son of the Eev. David Smith and Agnes Spear,,

was born in Scotland about the year 175 ft, and was- brought bj^hi*

father to Nova Scotia. He was married to Eebecca, the only

daughter of William Cock and Sidney Holmes, 17&6. They had four

sons. He was a cabinetmaker, and carried on his business at Halifax,

where he died in 1800. John, the third son of the Rev. David

Smith and Agnes Spear, was born in Scotland in the year 1761, and

shortly after this Mrs. Smith died, and Ms. Smith came to Nova Scotia

a Avidower, with his two eldest sons, and left his youngest son, John,

with his friends in Scotland, until the year 17 74. He then sent for

him, and he came to Nova Scotia when be was thirteen years old>

He was married to Sarah Crowe, the second daughter of Thomaa
Crowe and Sarah BarnhiU, of Beaver Brook, in the year 1801. They

had seven sons and two daughters. He inherited his father's property

at Debert, which was granted to him (his father) as the first minister

of Londonderry, where he and his wife spent the remainder of their

daya He died November 1st, 1831, aged 70' years, and his widow
died October, 1847, aged 67 years.

Rev. David S-mith wa& married the second time to Miss Margaret

Rogers, of Chiganoise, about the year 1778. But this was not to be

his abiding place. On March 25th, 1795, he changed hi& earthly

habitation for a mansion prepared for him by his Celestial Father.

This melancholy bereavement of so venerable a man at once- struck a

damp on the cheerLog prospects of liis. congregatior^

CHAPTER XL,

Rev. John BiDwn was born in TossaAvay, County of Kinross,,

Scotland, in 1766. While he wa/s attending to his duties at College,

at times he attended the meetings of Synod. At one of those meetings

an urgent appeal was read from Dr. McGregor, of Plctou, stating the

destitution of some parts of Nova Scotia for want of a preached

Gospel, and calling on the Synod for assistance by sending more
ministers to Nova Scotia. One of those appeals made a powerful

impression on his mind. Li connection with his fellow atudeni. the-
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late Eev. Duncan Eoss, they drew up and signed a paper, by which

they both devoted themselves to the mission work, should their

services be accepted. This paper fell into the hands of the Professor

of Divinity, having been left unintentionally inside of one of the

volumes of the Divinity Library. When their intentions were known
by the Presbytery, they were hurried on with their preparations for

an early departure. He was ordained in February, 1795. In the

same month he was married to Margaret Beveridge, of Paisley.

Before he left home he purchased the Bible in two volumes, and

wrote the name of Margaret Brown in each of them on March 6th,

1795. They were pocket Bibles, and have been used constantly since

that date. The writer had the satisfaction of seeing them on June

8th, 1872, and copying the dates of the births of their children from

them. They were in good condition, with scarcely a leaf started from

the binding. "When they were about to leave their native land, never

to see it again, and bid adieu to friends and relations ; the morning

they were to leave his father's house to proceed to America, in March,

1795, the 121st Psalm was selected for their song of praise ; no doubt

but it was sung in a solemn manner.

" I to the liills will lift mine eyes, from whence doth come mine aid,

My safety cometh from the Lord, who Heaven and Earth hath made.
Thy foot He'll not let slide, nor will He slumber that thee keeps

—

Behold He that keeps Israel, He slumbers not nor sleeps.

The Lord thee keeps, the Lord thy shade on thy right hand doth stay,

The moon by night thee shall not smite, nor yet the sun by day.
The Lord shall keep thy soul, He shall preserve thee from all ill,

Henceforth thy going out and in, God keep forever will."

After they left home they were detained at the seaport for the

sailing of the ship. During their delay Mr. Brown preached on

Sabbath. His mother having heard that he was to preach, went to

hear him, but she did not enter the Church, where she might be seen

by her son ; she remained outside where she could hear him. Having

bid him farewell once, she did not wish to have it to do the second

time. The ship sailed about the middle of March, with Mr. and Mrs.

Brown and the Eev. Duncan Eoss on board. They arrived at N"ew

York, May 27th, 1795. They stopped there and preached one

Sabbath, and then proceeded to Halifax. Mr. Eoss went by land, or

boat, to Londonderry, and preached there one Sabbath (Mr. Smith

having died March 25th, while they were on their passage). He
proceeded tlience to Truro, and on his way called at Chiganoise and

married Alexander Miller to Eebecca Baird, on June 29th, 1795.

Dr. McGregor met Mr. Eoss at the house of the Eev. Daniel Cock, in
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Truro, with a suitable horse for him to ride to Pictou. The next day

they proceeded on to Pictou. About the same time Mr. and Mrs.

Brown arrived there also, and received a hearty welcome from Dr.

McGregor, who had been nine years in the wilderness almost alone.

During the time they remained in Pictou, the Sacrament of the Lord's

Supper was dispensed on a small piece of interval beside the Avater of

the Middle Eiver, a short distance below the Bridge. They continued

their mission work until the summer of 1796. When the Presbytery

met this year there were two calls for each of them. One from Prince

Edward Island and another from Pictou for Mr. Eoss ; one from

Amherst and another from Londonderry for Mr. BroAvn. The first

sermon Mr. Brown preached in Londonderry produced the most happy

results. He preached from jS'umbers 23rd, and 1 0th verse, " Let me die

the death of the righteous, and let my last end be like His." Although

there were divisions in the congregation, they soon laid aside their

differences and gave him a unanimous call. He accepted their call,

and was inducted to the charge of the congregation about Sept., 1796.

The first whom he married there were Thomas Ellis and Elizabeth

Deyarmond, of Chiganoise, about the first of October, 1796. The
second pair that he married were Thomas Morrison, of Debert, and

Mary O'Brien, of I^oel, October 25th, 1796. The last that he married

were Matthew Peppard and Miss Sutherland, from Westchester

Mountain. He continued to labor faithfully and zealously for nearly

fifty-three years in his congregation. In July, 1845, on the same day

that he had preached his first sermon in Londonderry fifty years

before, a Jubilee was held, at which there was a large gathering of

ministers and people of his own congregation, and from neighboring

ones also. At the time that the Presbyterian Church of iSTova Scotia

was about to send a missionary to the Islands of the South Seas, the

Rev. John Geddie offered to go forth as her missionary. His offer

was accepted, and preparations were made for him and his fiimily to

leave Nova Scotia to carry the glad tidings and good news of the

Gospel to the heathens. Shortly before they left, there was a large

meeting of the ministers and people, held in the old meeting house at

Onslow, on November 8th, 1846, to bid them farewell and to

encourage them in their work by the prayers and advice of the Church.

At this meeting the Rev. Mr. Brown was the person who gave the

parting address. This address was given by him in a very solemn

manner. He was at the time about eighty years old, and had
experienced leaving his native land and removing into the wilds of
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America, and knew what it was to leave home with its endearments.

It is believed that he nevei regretted undertaking the work of the

ministry, or of settling in Londonderry. When he drew near the

close of his life he said that, "If he had his life to live over again he

would be a minister. Were I to choose a field of- labor, of aU the

world I would choose America, and of what I know of it, there is no

place in it that I would prefer to Londonderry." His attachment to

his congregation was strong ; his labor of love and earnest desire for

the welfare of souls made that impression on his people which will not

soon be forgotten. His desire was that, if it was agreeable to the

Divine WiU, he might not outlive his usefulness. He died Friday,

April 7th, 1848, aged 82 years. After his death his remains were

followed by a large concourse of sorrowing friends to the grave.

After the burial they repaired to the house of God where their pastor's

voice had been so long heard, but was now silent in death, and were

addressed by the Rev. Messrs. Baxter and McCidloch, and to call to

mind that text which constituted the theme of their departed pastor's

first sermon to them :
" Let me die the death of the righteous, and let

my last end be Hke his." Mrs. Brown died December 13th, 1848,

aged 77 years. They Hved together as man and wife more than fifty-

two years. When they were first settled in Londonderry they boarded

a few years with Robert McElhenney, who then resided on the farm

lying on the point between the Folly and Debert Rivers, being the

same on which his two grandsons now reside. A few years after, he

purchased land, had some of it improved and buildings put up on it,

being the same that is now inherited by his daughter, Janet, and her

husband, Isaac West.

Agnes Brown, their eldest daughter, was born at the house of Mr.

McElhenney, ]S"ov. 26th, 1795. She was married to Thomas Fletcher,

of Masstown, July 5th, 1816. They had four sons and five daughters.

She died January 3rd, 1866, aged 70 years. Her husband died Oct.

11th, 1872, aged 82 years. John, the eldest son of Rev. John and

Margaret Brown, was born August 8th, 1797. He was married to

» Susannah, daughter of William Davidson, and Sarah Ann Denny his

wife, Nov. 25th, 1823. He settled on a part of his father's land.

Janet Brown, their second daughter, was born February 27th, 1799.

She was married to Isaac West February 15th, 1827. They had

three sons and two daughters. They inherit what was her father's

property. Sarah Brown, their third daughter, was bom Feby. 5th, 1800.

She was married to David, the youngest son of James Fulton, Esq.,
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and Margaret Campbell, March 15tli, 1825. They had three

sons and four daughters. They inherited what was the homestead

part of his father's property at Bass Eiver. She died there Sept.

9th, 1858. Mr. Fulton died March 26th, 1862. Thomas and Eoss-

aun Brown, their twin son and daughter, were born May 1st, 1805.

Thomas Brown died a bachelor February 23rd, 1830, in the 25th

year ot his age. Rossann Brown, their fourth daughter, was married

to Joseph, the second son of Thomas and Esther CroAv, of Debert

Eiver, November 2nd, 1823. They had three sons and three

daughters. She died May 15th, 1856, aged 51 years. Mr. Crow

died in March, 1870, aged 69 years.

CHAPTEE XLI,

James Johnson was born in the I^orth of Ireland, in the month of

June, 1719. He was married to Elizabeth Patterson, about the year

1744. They had six sons and four daughters before they left Ireland.

They removed to Nova Scotia in the year 1761, and settled in the

Lower Village of Truro. He was one of the Grantees of the Township

of Truro. His house stood near the same place that his great-grandson,

Eobert Johnson, now resides. He was one of the seven elders of the

Presbyterian congregation of Truro, who were elected in the summer
of the year 1770. His wife, Elizabeth, died December 2rd, 1776,

and he was married again to Margaret McEoberts, February 27th,

1777. He died in the year 1798, aged 79 years, and his second wife,

Margaret, died March 27th, 1782.

Adam Johnson, their eldest son, was born in Ireland, in the year

1745. He was one of the Grantees of the Township of Truro. It is

said that he removed to the United States, and we know nothing of

him or his descendants.

Eobert Johnson, their second son, was born in the year 1747.

He was married to Susannah, daughter of James and Catherine

Gourley, of the Lower A^illage of Truro, December 2nd, 1778. He
inherited his father's farm in the Lower Village of Truro. He carried

on farming and shipbuilding. He was Major of the Militia of

Colchester. He was chosen an elder in the Presbyterian Church in the

year 1 799, being the next year after the settlement of the Eev. John
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Waddell in Truro. He died April 4th, 1815, aged 68 years; and

his wife, Susannah, died in July, 1844, aged 86 years.

Adam, the eldest son of Eohert and Susan Johnson, was born in

Truro October 3rd, 1779. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter of

Samuel Fisher and Mary Tapper his wife, of Stewiacke, September,

1806. He removed and settled at the South Branch of Stewiacke, in

the year 1809. He removed again, and settled on a part of the farm

that was owned by his father-in-law, being the same that is now

owned by Mr. Patterson. He died at this place August 8th, 1823,

aged 44 years, and his widow died at Brookfield, February 14th, 1843,

aged 66 years.

Catherine Johnson, their eldest daughter, was bom in Truro, Oct.

26th, 1807. She was married to James McMuUon, Oct. 4th, 1825.

They had seven sons and four daughters. Mr. McMullon died Aug.

8th, 1869, aged 66 years.

Elizabeth, the second daughter of Adam and Elizabeth Johnson,

was born in Stewiacke, February 16th, 1810. She was married to

Adam, the fifth son of Matthew Johnson and Ruth Fisher his wife,

October, 1830. They had four sons and six daughters. She died

l!^"ovember 14th, 1858, aged 48 years, and her husband died August,

1866, aged 70 years. Susan Johnson, their third daughter, was born

May 16th, 1812. She was married to William Jeffers December,

1842. They had five sons and one daughter. She died in 1859,

aged 47 years. Mary, the fourth daughter of Adam Johnson and

Elizabeth Fisher his wife, was born May 16th, 1814. She was

married to Daniel Fisher October, 1842. They had four sons and

two daughters. She died June 25th, 1865, aged 51 years, and her

husband died August 1st, 1864, aged 65 years. Robert, the eldest

son of Adam and Elizabeth Johnson, was born April 1st, 1818. He

was married to Mary, daughter of WiUiam Holstead and Jane Brown-

rig his wife, July 8th, 1846. They had two sons and three daughters.

He died March 7th, 1866. Adam their second son, was born May,

1820. He was married to Sarah Jane, daughter of Captain Samuel

Soley and ISTancy Hamilton his wife,. February 8th, 1842. They had

six sons and five daughters. Janet Johnson, their fifth daughter, was

born April, 1822. She was married to Charles Carter, of Debert

River, in the year 1851.

Thomas, the second son of Robert and Susan Johnson, was born

in Truro, February 26th, 1781. He was married to Rachel J.,

daughter of Captain John McKeen, and Rachel Johnson his wife.
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September 20th, 1804. He built a house near the place that Mr.

William McNutt now resides, in the Lower Village of Truro, where

he kept an inn for a few years. He died there, of consumption, in

the year 1809, and his widow was married again to Andrew Yuill

October 22nd, 1811. They had one son. She died April 18th, 1813.

Eobert, the eldest son of Thomas and Eachel Johnson, was born

December 25th, 1805. He was married to Margaret, daughter of

Daniel Carter and Jane Kennedy his wife, February 28th, 1851,

They had three sons and three daughters. John, the second son of

Thomas and Eachel Jolinson, was born January, 1808. He was

married to Eebecca, the third daughter of Colonel William Dickson

and Eebecca Pearson his wife. They had one son and one daughter.

He was Clerk of the Peace for Colchester a few years. He died April

8th, 1848, aged 40 years, and his widow died at her daughter's house

in iN'ew Jersey about the year 1867. Catherine, the only daughter

of Eobert and Susan Johnson, was born September 26th, 1784. She

was married to Eobert Anderson. They had two sons and two

daughters. They settled in Cape Breton, where she and her husband

died some time ago.

Hugh, the third son of Eobert and Susan Johnson, was born October

6th, 1786. He was married to Elizabeth, the only daughter of

Thomas Dickey and Elizabeth Scott his wife, November 22nd, 1811.

He inherited the homestead half of his father's property. He died

ISTovember 17th, 1841, aged 55 years, Thomas Dickey Johnson,

their eldest son, was born October 16th, 1812. He was married to

Susan, the second daughter of William Pearson and Nancy Dempsey

his wife, June 23rd, 1836, Thomas Dunlap Johnson, their eldest

son, was born November 6th, 1837. He was married to Margaret,

the second daughter of William Putnam Archibald and Mary Jane

Gourley his wife, October 16th, 1860. They have three sons and one

daughter. Sarah, the only living daughter of Thomas and Susan

Johnson, was married to Henry McLain, of Londonderry, February

15th, 1871, The remainder of their family died when they were

young, Eobert, the second son of Hugh and Elizabeth Johnson,

was born February 28th, 1814. He was married to Janet,

the eldest daughter of John H, Notting and Martha Kent,

his wife, February 25th, 1843, They had two sons and five

daughters. Elizabeth, the eldest daughter of Hugh and Elizabeth

Johnson, was , born November 10th, 1815. She was married

to Samuel Pollock, of Lower Stcwiacke, January, 1838. They
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had five sons and three daughters. Ann, their second daughter,

was born October 10th, 1817. She was married to William Sterns

McNiitt February 4th, 1835. They had two sons and two daughters.

She died Kovember 27th, 1857, aged 40 years. George Scott, the

third son of Hugh and Elizabeth Johnson, was born September 8th,

1819. He was married to Eunice, the eldest daughter of James D.

Johnson and Miziann McNutt his wife, December 28th, 1841. Their

only son, Alfred, left home and went to California, and was sliot there

by the Indians June 18th, 1870. Rachel, their third daughter, was

born January 9th, 1823. She died unmarried July, 1845, aged 22

years. John, their fourth son, was born May 8th, 1827. He left

l!^ova Scotia in the year 1852, and his friends hare not heard from

him since the year 1854. William, their fifth and youngest son, was

bom February 8th, 1829. He was married to Mary Jane, daughter

of James J), and Miziann Jolmson, May 14th, 1858. They had two

sons and two daughters. He now resides in the house that his father

purchased from John H. Kotting. Rebecca, the youngest daughter

of Hugh and Elizabeth Johnson, was born August 29th, 1832. She

died unmarried December 15th, 1857, aged 25 years.

Stephen, the fourth son of Robert and Susan Johnson, was bom
June 5th, 1788. He was married to Nancy, the only daughter of

Captain James MiUer and Eleanor Mahan, his wife, July 27th, 1811.

He inherited the half of his father's farm. He removed from there to

Stewiacke, where he died December 26th, 1856, aged 68 years ; and

his wife, Nancy, died November 25th, 1870, aged 86 years. Robert

Johnson, their eldest son, was born in Truro, September 19th, 1818.

He was married to Nancy Bryden, of Pictou, about 1842. They had

four sons and three daughters. Mrs Johnson died in the year 1856,

and he was married again to Mary Pratt, in 1858. James Charles,

their second son, was born June 5th, 1824. He was married to

Margaret, daughter of Daniel Archibald, Esq. , and Rebecca Newcomb,

his wife, July 4th, 1855. They have two sons and five daughters.

He inherits what was his father's farm, on the Mountain of Stewiacke.

Stephen, the youngest son of Stephen and Nancy Johnson, was bom

April 24th, 1826. He removed to the United States, and died there

October 22nd, 1849, aged 23 years. Susan, the second daughter of

Stephen and Nancy Johnson, was born August 21st, 1828. She was

married to Robert Montieth, of Hants County, DeceiAber 17th, 1862.

Eleanor, their eldest daughter, was born November 7th, 1821. She

was married to Robert Nelson, of Stewiacke, in the year, 1862.
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Nancy, their youngest daughter, was born September 15th, 1830.

She was married to Dr. Leander Barry. They had two sons. She

died March 28th, 1870.

James, the fifth son of Robert and Susan Johnson, was born

February 9th, 1790. He died a bachelor March, 1851, aged 61 years,

Eobert, the sixth and youngest son of Eobert and Susan Johnson,

was born October 21st, 1788. He was married to Eachel, the second

daughter of Dumb John Johnson, October 12th, 1820. Margaret,

their eldest daughter, was bom June 2nd, 1821. She was married

to WiUiam Boomer January, 1841. They had two sons. She died

August, 1845, and her husband died. Thomas Johnson, their eldest

son, was born February 1st, 1824. He was married to Mary Jane

McCully, of Masstown, June 30th, 1851. They have five sons. He
now resides on the same place that Lieutenant John Johnson and his

son, Dumb John Johnson, lived and died. Susan, their second

daughter, was born December 13th, 1825. She was married to Hugh
Clarke April 18th, 1841. They had four sons and four daughters.

She died Sept 9th, 1872, aged 47 years. John, their second son,

was born July 31st, 1828. He removed to Portland, Me., and was

married there to Elizabeth Archibald. They have four sons and three

daughters. Hugh, their third son, was born October 3rd, 1830. He
removed to the United States, and his people have not heard from

him during eight years past. Isabell, their third daughter, was born

December 18th, 1832. She died June 18th, 1858, aged 26 years.

Henry, their fourth son, was born September 3rd, 1837. He was

married to Mary Scott January 12th, 1864. They have four sons

and one daughter. He died October 31st, 1872, aged 35 years,

Catherine, their fourth daughter, was born July 1st, 1839. She was

married to William Piers, of Wallace River, January 5th, 1859.

They had one son and six daughters. Mary Jane, their fifth daughter,

was born May 9th, 1841. She was married to James McDonald, of

Pictou, December 7th, 1860. They had one son and two daughters.

She died November 1st, 1870. Harriet, their sixth daughter, was
born May 20th, 1843. She was married to Wentworth McDonald
September 14th, 1867. They have two sons. Elizabeth, their

seventh daughter, was born February 14th, 1845. She removed to

United States. Mary, the eldest daughter of James and Elizabeth

Johnson, was bdrn in the year 1749. She was married to Adam
Boyd. They had one daughter. She died May 15th, 1790, aged 41

years. Margaret, their second daughter, was bom in the year 1751.
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She was married to John Oughterson in the year 1774. They had

three sons and three daughters. She died March 27th, 1791, aged

39 years. Rachel, the third daughter of James and Elizabeth Johnson,

"was born in the year 1752. She was married to James Rogers, of

Shepody. Elizabeth, their fourth daughter, was born in the year

1754, She was married to James Rutherford Eebruary 15th, 1785.

They had four sons and two daughters. She died about the year

1802.

Matthew, the third son of James and Elizabeth Johnson, was born

in the year 1756, and was brought by his parents to I^ova Scotia

when he was five years old. He was married to Ruth, the fifth

daughter of WiUiam Fisher and Eleanor Archibald, his wife, about

the year 1782. They were the first persons who settled in Upper

Stewiacke. They removed there in the fall of the year 1 783, and

lived one winter there, not having any neighbours nearer than

Middle Stewiacke, a distance of seven miles. His farm was the same

that is now owned by Eliakim Tupper, Esq., and his sons. At one

time he had to go to Truro, a distance of nearly twenty miles, through

the woods, and could not return the same day. His wife remained

alone during his absence. At another time while he was absent, and

his wife was alone, a bear came and tried to get their sheep from a

small pen that was built up against the side of their log house. Mrs.

Johnson went out with her dog and drove him off, and disappointed

the bear of his prey. At another time Mr. Stewtly Horton, who was

married to Hannah Fisher, sister of Mrs. Johnson, and settled at

Musquodoboit, had been to Truro with his load of wheat on his back

to the miU, and was returning home, he arrived at the north side of

the Stewiacke River, in sight of the light from his brother-in-law's

window, on the south side of the River, where he expected to lodge

during the night. But before crossing the Bridge, which was only a

fallen tree, he leaned himself back against the large root of a fallen

tree to ease the load from his back and rest himself for a little before

he would cross the River. In this position he sank into a sound

sleep, and did not awake until the sun was shining clear the next

morning far above the horizon. About the jear 1792 he sold his

farm to EHakim Tupper, Esq. (this Mr. Tupper was grandfather of

Eliakim Tupper, Esq., that now lives on it), and removed and settled

at Musquodoboit. Some time after he exchanged farms with Mr.

Thomas Ellis, and removed to Pembroke, where he died January 20th,

1825, aged 68 years, and his wife died August 8th, 1825, aged 62 years.
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Margaret, the eldest daugliter of Matthew and Ruth Johnson, was

born August 14th, 1784. She was married to James Dean, of

Musquodoboit, May, 1805. They had two sons and two daughters.

She died September llth, 1811, aged 27 years. Elizabeth, their

second daughter, was boru in the year 1786. She was married to

James Guild, of Mi^squodoboit, ISTovember 10th, 1803. They had

five sons and seven daughters. Mr. Guild died January 12th, 1862.

Wniiam, the eldest son of Matthew and Euth Johnson, was born

January 16th, 1788. He died a bachelor, January 20th, 1819, aged

31 years.

James, their second son, was born March 13th, 1790. He was

married to Mary, daughter of John Johnson and Elizabeth Eulton, his

wife, in the year 1813. He inherited his father's property. They

had four sons and three daughters. Mrs. Johnson died, and he was

married again to Ann, daughter of John and Elizabeth Johnson,

widow of the late Alexander Johnson, in the year 1830. They had

one son and two daughters. - He died March 12th, 1837, aged 47

years, and his widow died in the year 1844. Adam, their third son,

was born January 8th, 1792. He died November 15th, 1794.

Alexander, their fourth son, was born December 8th, 1793. He
was married to Ann, daughter of John and Elizabeth Johnson, about

the year 1816. They had one daughter. He died September 13th,

1818, aged 25 years.

Adam, their fifth son, was born December 8th, 1795. He was

married to Elizabeth, daughter of Adam Johnson and Elizabeth

Fisher, his wife, October, 1830. They had four sons and six

daughters. He died August, 1866, aged 70 years, and his wife died

November 14th, 1858, aged 48 years.

John, their sixth son, was born July 8th, 1798. He was married

to Janet, daughter of Eobert and Elizabeth Logan, April, 1825.

They had five sons and four daughters. He died December 12th,

1869, aged 71 years, and his wife died August 21st, 1863, aged 61

years. David, their seventh son, was born March llth, 1800. He
was married to Eunice Godfrey in the year 1831. They had tliree

sons and five daughters. Matthew, their eighth son, was born April

28th, 1802. He died January 16th, 1820, aged 18 years. Eobert,

their ninth son, was born June llth, 1804. He died November
15th, 1834, aged 30 years. Archibald Gammell, their tenth son, was
bom July 8th, 1807. He died a young man.

James, the fourth son of James and Elizabeth Johnson, was born
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October 16th, 1758. He was married to Ann, daughter of James and

Ann Fulton, of the Lower Village of Truro, December 10th, 1786.

He followed the sea for a number of years, and during that time his

family resided at Maitland. About the year 1800 he quit the sea and

removed to the south side of the Eiver, in Middle Stewiacke, and

settled on the farm upon which his youngest son, Samuel, and others

now reside, where he died October 11th, 1842, aged 84 years. His

wife died January 15th, 1824, aged 59 years. Jane, their eldest

daughter, was born 1787. She was married to William O'Brien, Esq.,

of Noel, October 1st, 1807. They had one son. She died shortly

after. James, their eldest son, was born 1789. He died in 1801,

aged 12 years.

Adam, the second son of James and Ann Johnson, was born May
14th, 1791. He was married to Jane, the youngest daughter of

James Fulton, Esq. , and Margaret Campbell, of Bass Eiver, February

17th, 1818. He inherited a part of his father's farm at Middle

Stewiacke, where he continued the whole of his life. He died August,

1862, aged 71 years. Ann Dick Johnson, their eldest daughter, was

born December 18th, 1818. She was married to WiUiam D, O'Brien,

of l^oel, February .9th, 1847. They have two sons and five daughters.

James, the eldest son of Adam and Jane Johnson, was born January,

1821. He was married to Eossann Fulton, daughter of David ^'ulton

and Mary Brown, of Bass Eiver, March 5th, 1852. They have three

sons and one daughter. He is settled at Bass Eiver, where he carries

on his business as blacksmith. John Logan Johnson, their second

son was born Sept. 25th, 1822, He was married to Mary Jane,

second daughter of Franeis Creelman and Esther Fulton his wife,

March 18th, 1855, Margaret, the second daughter of Adam and

Jane Johnson was born Sept. 3rd, 1824. She was married to Moses

Clark Brenton, March 17th, 1853. They have three sons and two

daughters. George, their third son was born March 24th, 1827.

He was married to Jane, da^ighter of Charles Corbett and Esther

Eutherford his wife, Oct. 25th, 1856. They have four sons and one

daughter. Samuel Johnson, their fourth son was born Feby. 20th,

1829. He was married to Eleanor Grant June 29th, 1857. They

have three sons. He is a Minister of the Gospel and settled over

the Presbyterian Congregation of Harvey, N. B. Andrew Johnson,

their fifth son was born April 27th, 1832. He was married to Susan

0'Brienof!N"oel, Sept. 13th, 1860. They have two sons. He is settled

i\\ Truro Village where he carries on a large business at house buUding.

l5
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Agnes Johnson, their third daughter was born Deer. 13th, 1835. She

was married to Thomas O'Brien of Noel, ]N'ovr., 1862. She died July,

1867, aged 31 years.

Margaret, the second daughter of James and Ann Johnson, was

born March 14th, 1793. She was married to John D. Christie Feb.

8th, 1827. They had one son and one daughter. She died ]S"ov.

29th, 1856, aged 63 years. Mr. Christie died May 11th, 1866, aged

82 years.

Ann, the third daughter of James and * Ann Johnson, was born

March 14th, 1795. She was married to John Logan, of Upper

Stewiacke, Dec. 27th, 1813. They had seven sons and two daughters.

She died Dec. 18th, 1830, aged 35 years. Mr. Logan died March

23rd, 1863, aged 74 years. Elizabeth Johnson, their fourth daughter

was born Feby. 1st, 1797. She was married to Andrew O'Brien, of

Noel, Dec, 1819. They had six sons and five daughters. She died

Dec. 2nd, 1856, aged 59 years. Mary Johnson, their fifth daughter

was born Dec. 11th, 1799. She is living still.

Susan Johnson, their sixth daughter was born Nov. 22nd, 1801.

She was married to Andrew Creelman, Dec. 28th, 1824. They had

five sons and four daughters. She died Jany. lUh, 1863, aged 61

years. Mr. Creelman died July 15th, 1867, aged 65 years.

Saihuel, the third and youngest son of James and Ann Jolmson,

was bom Jany. 10th, 1807. He was married to Eebecca, daughter

of Samuel Fulton and Rebecca O'Brien, his wife, of Bass Eiver, March

10th, 1829. He inherits a part of what was his father's farm at

Middle Stewiacke. Samuel Fulton Johnson, their eldest son, was

born June 15th, 1830. He was married to Elizabeth O'Brien, of

Noel, August 8th, 1859. He studied for the Ministry, and on Aug.

17th, 1859, he was ordained at Upper Stewiacke. He was sent by

the Presbyterian Church of Nova Scotia to preach the Gospel to the

heathen on the Island of Tana, in the South Sea. He sailed from

Halifax with his partner in life November 8th, 1859, bidding adieu

to his native land never to see it, or any of Ms kindred again in this

world. He died on Tana, January 21st, 1861, in the 31st year of

his age. James "William Johnson, their second son was born Feby.

11th, 1833. He studied for the Ministry, and is settled over a

Congregation in Yorktown, in the State of New York. He was

married there to Augusta A. Lasher, September 18th, 1866. Andrew,

the third son of Samuel and Rebecca Johnson, was bom October 11th,

1835. He was married to Rachel, daughter of John Gammell and
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Sarah Tiipper, his wife, January 15th, 1863. They have three sons

;and three daughters. Mary, their eldest daughter, was born May
-22nd 1838. She died June 15th 1861. Isaac Johnson, their fourth

"son was born September 26th, 1849. He was engaged studying and

teaching school for a few years before he died. He died February

^th, 1867. Oliphant Johnson, their fifth son, was born October 9th

1845. He removed to the United States and died there February

16th, 1869. Margaret Johnson, their second daughter, was born

December 30th, 1842. Edward, their sixth son, was born January

15 th, 1850. Frederick Johnson, their seventh son, was born ]^ov.

©th, 1847. Jotham Johnson, their eighth son, was born July 30th

1852.

"William, the fifth son of James and Elizabeth Johnson, was bora

in the year 1759 and was brought by his parents to I^ova Scotia when

2 yfears old. He was married to Sarah MiUer November 15th, 1787,

*and shortly after this they removed to Upper Stewiacke and settled

on the farm that Mr. James Cox now resides upon, and remained

there about 10 years. He then sold his farm to Mr, Abrahaih

Newcomb, and removed farther up the Stewiacke River, and settled

on the farm that his grandsons Bavid McGr. and George Johnson

now occupy. He died there December 10th, 1830, aged 61 years.

His wife died March 3rd, 1821, aged 54 yeare.

Nancy, their eldest daughter, was born in the year 1788. She

^vas married to Robert Rutherford about 1812. They had four sons

and four daughters. She died June 2nd, 1849, aged 61 years. Her

husband died July 26th, 1856, aged 75 years.

Elizabeth, the second daughter of William and Sarah Johnson, was

bom April, 1795. She was married to George McNaught, March

.22nd, 1827. They had three sons and one daughter. She died June

5th, 1837, aged 42 years.

John Johnson, their eldest son, was bom March 11th, 1797. He
^as married to Ann McGiU, of the West River of Pictou, June 1 2th,

1822. They had two soAs and one daughter. He inherited the half

-of his father's firm.

Robert Johnson, theif second son, was bom September 24th, 1800.

He was married to Margaret Ann Bentley, December 20th, 1830.

"They had three sons and two daughters. He inherited the homestead

3ialf of his father's farm. He died September 2'Oth, 1859, aged 59

.years. Jane, their third daughtei', was born June 10th, 1804. She

was married to David Bentley, December Slst, 1823. They had
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four sons and three daughters. She died at Point Brule, June 6th,

1862. Sarah, their fourth daughter, was born March 5th, 1807.

She was married to James, son of Henry Miller and Sarah Wright,

his wife, December, 18—. They had two sons and three daughters.

They settled on the Mountain, now called the Miller Settlement, where

he reclaimed his farm from the forest. She died there October 1st,

1861, aged 54 years.

John, the sixth and youngest son of James Johnson, Senr., and

EKzabeth Patterson, was bom in the fall of the year 1760, and was

brought by his parents to ISTova Scotia in 1761. He was married to

Elizabeth, daughter of James and Ann Fulton, of the Lower Village

of Truro, about the year 1790. He went to Stewiacke and settled on

the farm that his two grandsons John and Samuel Johnson now

occupy. He died there, and his widow was married again to Eobert

Logan, July 1st, 1799. They had one son and one daughter. She

died February 20th, 1^827. Mr. Logan died Dec. 31st, 1833, aged 70

years. James Fulton Johnson, the only son of Jolin and Elizabeth

Johnson, was married to Ann, the fifth daughter of Samuel and

Mary Creelman, l^ovember 13th, 1813. They had two sons (John

and Samuel Johnson who now reside on the same farm that was

owned by their father and their grandfather) and one daughter. He

died September 14th, 1819, aged 28 years. His widow was married

again to James Eoddick, a Scotchman. They settled at the "West

Eiver of Pictou. Mary, daughter of John and Elizabeth Johnson,

was married to James, son of Matthew and Euth Johnson 1813.

They had four sons and three daughters. Ann, another daughter

of John and Elizabeth Johnson, was married to Alexander, son of

Mattliew and Euth Johnson, 1816. They had one daughter. This

Alexander Johnson died in the year 1818, aged 25 years, and his

widow was married again to James, son of Matthew and Euth Jolmson,

1830. They had one son and two daughters. She died in 1844.

Her husband died March 12th, 1837, aged 47 years.

Hannah, the fifth daughter of James and Elizabeth Johnson, was

born in Truro, June 23rd, 1762, She died unmarried about the year

1812, aged about 50 years. Jane, the eldest daughter of James

Johnson and Margaret McEoberts, his second wife, was born in Truro

April 4th, 1778. She was married to Samuel, son of John Hingley

and Janet Archibald, his wife, in the year 1797. Samuel, their son

was born August, 1799, three months after the death of his father.

Samuel Hingley was married and has a family. They are settled at
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Wallace Eiver. Samuel Hingley, Senr., died May, 1799. His

widow was married again to Joseph Crocket, of the Middle Eiver of

Pictou, in the year 1802. They had five sons and four daughters.

She died October 11th, 1856, aged 78 years. Her husband died July

26th, 1853, aged 81 years. Sarah, the second daughter of James and

Margaret Johnson, was born March 3rd, 1780. She was married to

Daniel Hingley, of Kemptown, 1800. They had six sons and

six daughters. Alison Johnson, their third daughter, was born in

Truro, February 7th, 1782. She was married to John "Warren, of

Newport.

John Johnson, (who went by the name of Lieutenant Johnson),

was born in Ireland, in the year 1711. He was married to Sarah

Hogg about the year 1737. He come to ISI'ova Scotia in the year

1761, with his wife and family, and his brother James, and his wife

and family. They both settled in the Lower Village of Truro. They

were Grantees of the Township. His house stood on the same place

that the house now stands in which his greatgrandson Thomas Johnson

3rd lives. He was an active and leading man in public business.

He was one of the seven who were elected as elders of the Presbyterian

Church, of Truro, in the summer of the year 1770. It is said that

for a considerable time after this date he, the Eevd. Daniel Cock, and

David Archibald, Esq., were the only three persons in Truro who
owned and wore boots. He died December 2nd, 1793, aged 82

years. His wife died August 8th, 1796, aged 84 years.

Mary, their eldest daughter, was born in Ireland in the year 1738,

and was brought by her parents to Nova Scotia when she was 23

years old. She was married to James Dunlap, December 6th, 1763.

This was the first marriage in Truro after the settlement of the place

by the British. They had six sons and three daughters, who appear

among the Dunlaps. She died May 22nd, 1823, aged 85 years.

Mr. Dimlap died December 5th, 1832, aged 92 years.

John, the eldest son of John and Sarah Johnson, was bom in

Ireland in the year 1741. He was deaf and dumb. He inherited his

father's property in the Lower Village of Truro. He was very stout

and robust. He was a Grantee of the Township, and outlived aU the

other Grantees and first settlers. He was married to Margaret

Davison, December 10th, 1795. They had three sons and four

daughters. He died November 11th, 1841, aged 100 years. His

wife died March 23rd, 1869, aged 94 years. Sarah Johnson, their

eldest daughter, was born March 31st, 1797. She was married to
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John, son of Thomas Gourley and Jane Yuill, his "wife, February

2nd, 1815. They had six sons and five daughters, Mr. Gourley-

died August 9th, 1836, aged 51 years. She was married again ta

William Soley, I^ovember, 1837. They had two sons. James.

Davison, the eldest son of John and Margaret Johnson, was born

July 11th, 1739. He was married to Myziann McNutt, March 23rd,

1819. She died December 9th, 18T2. Eunice, their eldest daughter,,

was born February 19th, 1821. She was married to George S., third

son of Hugh and Ehzabeth Johnson, December 28th, 1841. They

had one son. Mary Jane, their second daughter, was born December

12th, 1823. She was married to John Johnson, May 4th, 1858.

They have two sons and two daughters. Sophia, their third daughter,

was bom July 24th, 1826. She was married to Andrew Bland, of

Wallace, April 9th, 1858. They have two sons and one daughter.

Charles, the eldest son of James D. and Myziann Johnson, was born

December 13th, 1828. He removed to California about the year

1850. He was married there to Armintha Hall. They have two sons

and one daughter. William M., their second son, was born July

18th, 1831. He was married to Amelia, daughter of Joseph Wilson

and Alice Barnhill, his wife, June 8th, 1858. They have sons and

daughters. John Yuill Johnson, their third son, was born July 16th,,

1834. He removed to California in the fall of the year 1865.

Elizabeth, their fourth daughter, was born jSTovember 14th, 1837.

She died March 22nd, 1854, aged 16 years. Ann, their fifth

daughter, was born May 2nd, 1840. She died November 13th, 1854,

aged 14 years. Margaret, their sixth and youngest daughter, was
born August 24th, 1844. She was man-ied to George Bland, of

Wallace, December 31st, 1867. They have two sona Samuel

Sterns, their fourth and youngest son, was bom June 6th, 1846. He
"Vv^as married to Lavinia Purdy, of Wallace, September, 1868. He
inherits the homestead. Mary, the second daughter of John and

Margaret Johnson, was born August 22nd, 1801. She was married

to William McNutt, April 13th, 1820. They had seven sons and

five daughters. She died January 2nd, 1866, aged 64 years. Eachel,

their third daughter, was born Jidy 8th, 1804. She was married to

Eobert, the youngest son of Eobert and Susan Johnson, October 12th,

1820. They had four sons and seven daughters. John C. Johnson,

their second son, was born June 11th, 1806. He was drowned in the

Bay of Fundy, while engaged in codfishiug. Thomas Johnson, third

son of John and Margaret Johnson, was born June 22nd, 1809.
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Sophia Johnson, their youngest daughter, was horn August 1st, 1811.

She was married to John Barnhill, May 4th, 1835. They had two

sons and four daughters.

James, the second son of John and Sarah Johnson, was horn in

Ireland, June 4th, 1743, and was hrought by his parents to l«fova

Scotia when he was 18 years old. He was a Grantee of the Township of

Truro. He was married to Eleanor O'Brien, of Noel, in 1778.

They settled first in the Lower Village of Truro. His house was on

the west side of the road, opposite Eupert Dunlap's house. He sold

his Eight in Truro to William English, in the year 1798, and removed

to Otter Brook, Stewiacke, and settled on the farm on which James

Thomas Dunlap now resides. In 1806 he exchanged farms with

Francis Creelman and removed to Dehert, Londonderry, where he and

his wife spent the remainder of their lives. He died January, 1 7th, 1829,

in the 86th year of his age. His widow died July 13th, 1848, aged

89 years. Adam, their eldest son, was torn in the year 1779. He
was killed, when about two years old, by a log roUing over his body

from his father's woodpile. John, their second son, was born in

Truro in the year 1781. He followed the sea when he was a young

man. He died of consumption, in the State of Maine, about the year

1810, being about 29 years old.

Timothy O'Brien Johnson, their third son, was born in Truro,

December 17th, 1783. He was married to Eleanor, daughter of

Samuel and Elizabeth McLellan, of Londonderry, June 11th, 1807.

He purchased a farm on Salmon Eiver from Mr. WiUiam Archibald,

where he settled and spent the remainder of his life. On May 30th,

1825, he left home in the morning to float logs down the Salmon

Eiver to Archibald's Mill. He was engaged at this work during the

day, and was last seen aHve about sunset, under the lower Bridge,

toiling to get a log from the deep water. He did not return home

that night, and search being made for him the next morning, his body

was found about half a mile below the Bridge, lying in the water on

the falls of the Eiver, at the head of the tide. His corpse was found

by John J. Archibald and Alexander Miller, third, and was taken by

them out of the water and laid on the bank of the Eiver, untO. the

Coroner, Xathaniel Marsters, was sent for ; an inquest was held, and

the body was taken home by Mr. Thomas K'elson. His widow was

left Avith six young children (the youngest about seven weeks old) to

bemoan their sad bereavement. He was in the 42nd year of his age.

His widow died May 2ndj 1850, aged 69 years.
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La\dnia, their eldest daughter, was born January 1st, 1810. She

was married to George Johnson, Esq., December 30th, 1828. He was

the youngest son of Ealph and Hannah Johnson, who came from

England in June 1817. Ealph Johnson died December 4th, 1831.

His wife died December, 1843. Timothy, the eldest son of George

and Lavinia Johnson was born March 10th, 1831. Ealph, their second

son, was born February 12th, 1833. James William, their third

son, was horn May 3rd, 1835. Eleanor, their eldest daiighter, was

bom April 28th, 1837. George Wren, their fourth son, was born

August 29th, 1839. Hannah Jane, their second daughter, was born

August 3rd, 1841. Eobert J. K, their fifth son, was born September

24th, 1843. Eichard Wesley, their sixth and youngest son, was born

May 27th, 1848.

James, the eldest son of Timothy O'B. and Eleanor Johnson, was

born April 2 7th, 1 8 1 2. He was married to Eachel O'B. , eldest daughter

of John J. Archibald and Mary O'Brien, his wife, February 24th,

1845. They had two sons and four daughters. He inherits his

father's farm on Salmon Eiver, and took the management of it at the

time of his father's death, when he was but 1 3 years old. Samuel

George William, the second son of Timothy and Eleanor Johnson, was

born July 2nd, 1817. He was married to Sarah Wiswell, June,

1841. They have sons and daughters. They removed to New
Brunswick. Adam, their third son, was born March 18th, 1820.

John Johnson, their fourth son, was bom March 20th, 1822. He
was married to Mary McKenzie, of Greenfield, March, 1853. They

had five sons and one daughter. Timothy, the fifth and youngest

son of Timothy and Eleanor Johnson, was born April 6th, 1825.

He died July 12th, 1846, aged 21 years. Adam, the fourth son of

James and Eleanor Johnson, was bom in the year 1786. He was

married to Agnes Eyan in 1815. They removed to New Brunswick

about the year 1817, where they reared their family, five sons and
two daughters, and spent the remainder of their lives. Eachel, the

eldest daughter of James and Eleanor Johnson, was born in the year

1790. She was married to Joshua Teed, of Wallace, in the year

1809. They had one daughter. Mr. Teed died, and his widow was
married again to Samuel Campbell. They had five sons and five

daughters. She died at Greenfield November, 1862, aged 72 years.

Sarah, their second daughter, was born in 1792. She was married to

Henry Eamsay in the year 1814. They had one daughter. They
removed to St. John, N. B. She died there about the year 1840, and
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her husband died ahoiit the year 1818. Eleanor, their third daughter,

was horn in the year 1795. She was married to Samuel Lufkin in

the year 1815. They removed to the United States. Eohert, the

fifth son of James and Eleanor Johnson, was born in the year 1797.

lie was married to Jane Young, in the early part of the year 1818.

He followed the sea. He died in Halifax 1818. James, their sixth

and youngest son, was born in the year 1799. He was married to

Jane Young, widow of Eobert Johnson, July 16th, 1822. They had

eight sons and six daughters. Mrs. Johnson died April 16th, 1867.

Sarah, the second daughter of Lieut. John and Sarah Johnson,

was born in the year 1745. She was deaf and dumb. She was

married to John Mersor. Their house stood near the place on which

Mr. Eobert Hennesy now resides. They both died a considerable time

ago, and left no issue. Eachel, the third daughter of John and Sarah

Johnson, was born in the year 1846. She was married to Captain

John McKeen, December 30th, 1769. They had four sons and two

daughters. She died December 3rd, 1781, aged 45 years.

Adam, the third and youngest son of Lieut. John and Sarah

Johnson, was born in Ireland in the year 1748, and was brought by

his parents to N"ova Scotia when he was thirteen years old. He was

deaf and dumb. He was a stout, strong, robust man, and a good

swimmer. On June 27th, 1771, when he and others were engaged

fishing Salmon at the Board Landing, he got entangled in the net,

and was drowned, aged 23 years.

CHAPTEE XLII.

James Yuill, Esq , was born in Clydesdale, Scotland, in the year

1717, and Jane Bailey, his wife, was born in the year 1721. They

were married about the year 1742. He carried on business there as

a merchant ; and a part of his business was the manufacture and sale

of snuff. He found his business in Scotland was not very profitable,

so he removed to Boston, New England, in the year 1753, and there

carried on the same business that he had followed in Scotland. He

removed again to Old Barns, (now Clifton) in the year 1761. At

the time that he and Mr. Alexander Nelson came to Tnu'o, Nova

Scotia, together, there were two old barns standing in the field east of
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Mr. Ebenezer Archibald's house, and an old grist mill standing on the

brook near John Yuill, Esqr.'s, shop. These buildings had been left

by the French settlers, and this small vUlage had no other name but

Old Barns for more than eighty years. He still continued the sale of

goods at Old Barns, and, as he said himself, he kent nothing about

cents nor per cents, but his way of doing business was to sell his

goods for just double they cost him. He was a Grantee of Truro

Township. He, his son James, and Alexander I^elson, had their

land laid off where they settled. Their land was about one and a

quarter mile wide, along the Bay, and extended about four miles

back. His house stood near the place that his grand son, John

YuiU's stood. At this place he continued the remainder of his life.

He died March 4th, 1807, aged 90 years. Jane his wife died January

11th, 1804, aged 83 years. They had several children who died

young in Scotland. James, their son, was born in Scotland in the

year 1752, and was brought by his parents to Boston when one year

old, and from thence to Nova Scotia, when he was nine years old.

His name is among the Grantees of the Township, although he was

but thirteen years old at the date of the grant. He was married to

Eleanor Mahon, of Londonderry, October 8th, 1776. He settled, and

had his house on the same place where Mr. Charles Yuill now resides.

In the fall of the year 1810, he started to go to Scotland to look after

the business of the late Andrew Yuill, his father's brother, who had

died there, having no children, and leaving a considerable property.

He sailed from Pictou in a ship bound for Liverpool, England, and

not long after, he took ill of a fever, and continued ill during the

remainder of the passage. He arrived in Liverpool, and died about

seven days after, on January 21st, 1811, aged 59 years. His wife

died May 3rd, 1811, aged 52 years.

Jane Yuill, their eldest daughter, was born October 25th, 1777.

She was married to James Laughead, in the year 1793. Mr,

Laughead purchased his farm from Charles Nelson in the year 1809,

(at the time that Mr. Nelson removed to the Upper Village of Truro.)

His house stood on the same place that the house now stands in

which his grand son, Joseph Laughead now resides, at Clifton, where

he died February 12th, 1850, aged 80 years. His wife died May,

1856, aged 78 years. John Laughead, their eldest son, was born

July 2Gth, 1794. He was married to Margaret, daughter of Joseph

McLellan, of Londonderry, July 20th, 1820. They had five sons

and two daughters. Mrs. Laughead died September 8th, 1845, He
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was married again to Eliziabeth, daughter of John Faulkner and Janet

Moor his wife, September 14th, 1846. His second wife died Febru~

ary 29th, 1860. Eleanor, the eldest daughter of James and Jane

Laughead, was born January 5th, 1796. She was married to James

Totton, of the Folly Mountain, 1817. They had four sons and four

daughters. James Laughead, their second son was bom October 4th,

1797. He was married to Sarah, daughter of Samuel and Elizabeth

McLeUan, of Parrsboro, January 10th, 1822. They settled on the

farm on which Mr, James Archibald now resides.

It may here be observed that this James Laughead, Junr., and

his brother William, built a brigantine called the " Enterprise," in

the years 1842 and 1843. In May, 1844, this vessel was loaded with

Plaster at Pitchbrook, on the east side of the Shubenacadie River.

She had twenty persons on board; James Laughead, Junr., aged 46

years, his daughter Elizabeth, aged 21 years, WiUiam Laughead's

wife and child, Maria, daughter of James Laughead, Senr., aged 23

years, James ]S"oble, son of Robert and Eleanor Laughead, aged 14

years, Captain Allan, Mr. Atkins, first mate, Joseph Tidmon, second

mate, Thomas Green, son of the late James Green, aged about 45

years. He (Thomas Green) left a wife and family. Mattheiw and

William Green, sons of the late WiUiam Green, Matthew Green left

a wife and three daughters ; Joseph Forbes, Thomas Keef, David

Messenger, Mr. Blackwood, son of the Rev. Robert Blackwood, of

Tatamagouche, Charles Tucker, Junr., of Truro, aged 18 years,

William Hill Dill, second son of the late George Dill of Truro. He
was a young lawyer about 25 years old ; Mahew, son of EKakim

Tupper, of New Glasgow, aged 23 years, and Alexander, youngest son

of Alexander L. and Mary Archibald, aged 19 years. This vessel

sailed from Spencer's Point, on the north side of the Bay, on May
22nd, 1844, and has not been heard from since, thus leaving a large

circle of friends and relatives to mourn their loss.

Elizabeth, the eldest daughter of James Laughead, Junr., and

Sarah his wife, was born December 1st, 1822. She was one who was

lost in the '' Enterprise." Mary Laughead, their second daughter,

was born March 7th, 1825. She was married to Charles, fourth son

of James and Sarah Yuill, December 31st, 1845. They had six sons

and seven daughters. She died March 4th, 1870, aged forty-five

years. Samuel Laughead, their eldest son, was bom May 22nd, 1827.

He was married to Lucinda, second daughter of WiUiam and Susan

Creelman, December, 1852. He died July 9th, 1872, aged 45 years.
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Jane, the third daughter of James and Sarah Laiighead, was bom
September 10th, 1829. She was married to Charles Christie, January

30th, 1849. They had nine sons and four daughters. Charles

Laughead, their youngest son, was born March 25th, 1832. He
was married to Harriet, the youngest daughter of John and Jane

Yuill, JN'ovember 10th, 1856. They had two sons and one daughter.

On September 23rd, 1869, their son Oscar was on a high part of his

father's barn, when he fell on the barn floor, and was so much injured

that he died in about ten hours. He was about 12 years old.

Robert, the third son of James Laughead Senr., and Jane, was

born July 3rd, 1799. He was married to Ann, the youngest daughter

of William and Ann Flemming, December 29th, 1825. She died

September 25th, 1829, and left no issue. He was married again to

Eleanor, eldest daughter of James and Sarah Yuill, January 5th, 1830.

They had seven sons and five daughters.

Mary, the second daughter of James and Jane Laughead, was born

June 12th, 1801. She was married to Jessie Gourley, 1820. They

had one daughter. She died May 7th, 1821, aged 20 years. Mr,

Gourley died March 27th, 1871, aged 77 years. William Laughead,

their fourth son, was born April 23rd, 1803. He was married to

Fanny Aljo, August 27th, 1833. They had three sons and tliree

daughters. He inherited the homestead half of his father's farm.

Mrs. Laughead and her youngest child were lost in the " Enterprise,"

May, 1844. He was married again to Hannah, daughter of Daniel

S. and Dorothy Yuill, March 25th, 1851. They had three sons and

one daughter. He died November 28th, 1865, aged 63 years. His

second wife died June 17th, 1862, aged 33 years.

Susan Laughead, their third daughter, was born March 17th, 1805.

She was married to William Creelman, December 9th, 1824. They
had three sons and seven daughters. Joseph Laughead, their fifth

son, was born December 23rd, 1806. He was married to Rebecca,

daughter of James Archibald and Rosanna McKeen, his wife, January

10th, 1833. He inherits a part of his father's farm.

Elizabeth Laughead, their fourth daughter, was born September

17th, 1808. She died April 23rd, 1811.

Jane, their fifth daughter, was born January 17th, 1810. She

died October 19th, 1827, aged 17 years.

Martha Laughead, their sixth daughter, Avas born October 25th,

1811. She was married to Samuel Creelman, December 25th, 1832.

She died April 21st, 1835, aged 23 years.
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Elizabeth Laughead, their seventh daugliter, was born January

29fch, 1815. She was married to William Rogers, of Shepody. They

had one son and one daughter.

Catherine Laughead, their eighth daughter, was born December

4th, 1816. She was married to Alexander, son of William and

Susan Archibald, January 10th, 1837. They had five sons and four

daughters. She died in Musquodoboit, August 26th, 1869, aged 53

years.

Maria, their ninth daughter, was bom April 7th, 1821. She was

lost in the " Enterprize."

John, the eldest son of James and Eleanor YuiU, was born in

Truro, May 22nd, 1779. He was married to Hannah, daughter of

John and Mary Smith, February 3rd, 1803. He inherited what was

his grandfather's property, where he spent the remainder of his life.

He died October 4th, 1849, aged 70 years. His first wife died Sep-

tember 4th, 1817. Daniel Smith YuiH, their eldest son was born

]S"ovember 24th 1803. He was married to Dorothy, daughter of John

and Martha Dunlap, of Stewiacke, February 11th, 1830. They had

one son and four daughters. Mrs. YuiU died November 17th, 1857,

aged 53 years. He was married again to Eachel, eldest daughter of

Andrew and ISTancy YuiU, October 19th, 1858. James the second

son of John and Hannah YuUl, was bom December 6th, 1806. He
was married to Martha McCuUoch, of Debert Eiver, 1836. They

had three sons and five daughters. Mary, the eldest daughter of

John and Hannah YuUl, was bom November 20th, 1809. She was

married to David Chishohn of Londonderry, 1834. They had three

sons and four daughters. Jane YuiU, their second daughter, was born

November 21st, 1811. She was married to David Slack, September,

1838. They had one son and two daughters. Sarah YuiU, their

third daughter, was bom June 4th, 1813. She was married to

Thomas son of WiUiam and Nancy Pearson, June 23rd, 1836. They

had three sons and two daughters. She died AprU 9th, 1868, aged

fifty-five years. Mr. Pearson died February 23rd, 1852, aged 38

years. Hannah YuiU, their fourth daughter, was born August 12th,

1817. She was married to John Smith Vance, July 13th, 1836.

They had two sons and two daughters. She died July 4th, 1846,

aged 29 years. John YuiU was married the second time to Jane

McNutt of the Lower VUlage of Truro, August 10th, 1818. Myzian

their eldest daughter, was bom November 16th, 1819. She was

married to William, son of Charles and Mary Nelson, December 25th,
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1836. They had six sons and three daughters. Samuel Yuill, their

eldest son was born March 14th, 1821. He was married to Agnes,

Northup, March 14th, 1841. They had three sons and three daugh-

ters. He died March 25th, 1868, aged 47 years. William Grigor

Yuill, their second son, was born August 12th, 1824. He was mar-

ried to EHzabeth, the youngest daughter of Charles Tucker, Esq. , and

Mercy P. Polley his wife, February 1st, 1851. They had four sons

and four daughters. Margaret Eleanor, their second daughter, was

bom September, 1829. She was married to Captain James 0. Mor-

rison, February 1848. They had five sons and three daughters. She

died April, 1870, aged 40 years. Harriet, their third and youngest

daughter was born February 2nd, 1833. She was married to William,

son of James and Sarah YuUl, August 8th, 1850. Mr. Yuill removed

to the United States and died there October 24th, 1850. ^ She was

married again to Charles, son of James Laughead, Jr., November

10th, 1856. They had two sons and one daughter.

William, the second son of James and Eleanor Yuill, was born

April 25th, 1781. He was married to Jane Campbell of Londonderry.

They settled at the Great Village. He died there September 29 th,

1863, aged 82 years. His first wife died in 1818. He was married

again to Eleanor, daughter of Thomas and Jane Gourley, February

11th, 1819. William, their only son, is living a bachelor. Eleanor

Yuill, their only daughter, was married to Samuel O'Brien of Noel.

They had a numerous family. She died some time ago. Thomas,

the eldest son of William and Eleanor Yuill, was born March, 1821,

He was married to Jane McNutt. They had one son and three

daughters. He removed to the United States, and died there. James

Yuill, their second son was born in 1823. He died in 1844. John

Yuill, their third son, was born in 1825. He was married to Mar-

garet Thompson. They had sons and daughters. Robert Barry Yuill,

their fourth son was married to Mary Smith. They had three sons

and one daughter. He removed to the United States. He died at

Arizona, July, 1871. Joseph Yuill, their fifth son, was married to

Amelia Corbett. They had four sons and two daughters. Susan YuiU,

their only daughter, was married to Nelson Chisholm. They removed

to California.

James, the third son of Jaines and Eleanor Yuill, was born Janu-

ary 10th, 1783. He was married to Sarah, the youngest daughter of

Major John Archibald and Margaret Fisher, August 29th, 1809. He
inherited the homestead part of his father's property at Old Bams.
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He died there September 7th, 1863, aged 80 years. His wife died

August 2nd, 1866, aged 75 years.

George Yuill, their eldest son, was born August 12th, 1810. He
was married to Jane, second daughter of Joseph Crowe and Mary

Vance his wife, July 9th, 1839, They had one son and one

daughter. Eleanor, their eldest daughter was bom December 28th,

1811. She was married to Eobert Laughead, January 5th, 1830.

They had seven sons and five daughters. Margaret, their second

daughter, was born ]S"ovember 20th, 1813. She was married to

Robert 0. Christie, December 30th, 1831. They had five sons and

two daughters. Mr. Christie died March 22nd, 1867. Susannah,

their fourth daughter, was born June 27th, 1815. She was married

to Isaac Christie, December, 1834. They had one son and eight

daughters. She died September 17th, 1863, aged 48 years. Sarah

Ann, their fourth daughter, was born October 13th, 1817. She was

married to John Blackie, January 14th, 1836. They had four sons

and two daughters.

James Yuill, their second son, was born May 3rd 1819. He died

when he was young. John Yuill, their third son, was bom Decem-

ber 12th, 1820. He was married to Barbara Henderson, February

7th, 1843. They had one son and three daughters. He holds a

commission of the Peace, and is Captain of a company of the Militia.

Eliza Jane, their fifth daughter, was born December 1st, 1822. She

was married to Richard Christie, December 31st, 1842. They had

six sons and four daughters. She died June 20th, 1872. Charlds

Yuill, their fourth son was bom July 15th, 1824. He was married

to Mary, daughter of James Laughead, Junr., December 31st, 1845.

They had six sons and seven daughters. Mrs. YuiU died March 5th,

1870. He was married again to Sarah Yuill, December 15th, 1870.

He resides on the same place on which his father and grandfather

resided. William YuiU, their fifth son was bom October 20th, 1826.

He was married to Harriet YuiU, August 9th, 1850. He died

suddenly October 24th, 1850. Alexander YuUl, their sixth son, was

born September 25th, 1828. He was married to Mary Helpert, of

Halifax, October 17th, 1854. They had one son and four daughters-

He is settled at Debert River, Where he carries on the blacksmith

work. Ruth, their sixth daughter, was born March 11th, 1830.

She was married to Isaac, the fifth son of James M. and Margaret

McCurdy, of Musquodoboit, July 29th, 1851. They h&d six sons

and three daughters. Mr. McCurdy died March 31st, 1867, aged 41
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years. Maria, their seventh daughter, was born March 11th, 1833.

She was married to Joseph Howe Archibald, March 15th, 1864.

They had one son and one daughter. They have removed to

California. Mary L., their eighth daughter, was born August 5th,

1835. She was married to John M. Atkins, December 25th, 1855.

They have three daughters.

George, the fourth son of James and Eleanor Yuill, was born

February 8th, 1785. He was married to Susannah, daughter of

William and Mary Forbes, Ilovember 16th, 1826. He settled on

the farm that had been o'wned by James Rutherford, and afterwards

by Thomas Crowe, Senr. Mrs. Yuill died September, 1845.

Eleanor and Sarah, their twin daughters, were born December 1st,

1827. Eleanor was married to George, son of "WiUiam and Mary

Creelman, October 3rd, 1856. They have three sons and two

daughters. Sarah, the other twin daughter, was married to Charles

Yuill, December 15th, 1870. Isaac, the only son of George and

Susan Yuill, was born January 5th, 1836. He was married to

Eleanor, daughter of William and Sarah Cox, of Upper Stewiacke,

May 22nd, 1862. They have two sons and one daughter. He in-

herits his father's farm at Beaver Brook, Clifton.

Andrew, the fifth son of James and Eleanor Yuill, was born

May 16th, 1787. He was married to Rachel, daughter of Capt.

John and Rachel McKeen, October 22nd, 1811. He inherited a part

of his father's farm. Mrs. Yuill died April 18th, 1813. He was

married again to Jlancy, the third daughter of Isaac and Elizabeth

Miller, December 1st, 1814. She died April 15th, 1822, aged 35

years. Thomas, the only son of Andrew and Rachel Yuill, was born

August 18th, 1812. He was married to Mary, the eldest daughter of

James and Sarah Crowe, July 11th, 1854. He inherits a part of his

father's farm. Rachel, the eldest daughter of Andrew and Nancy

Yuill, was born January 9th, 1.816. She was married to Daniel

Smith Yuill, October 19th, 1858. Vashti, their second daughter,

was born August, 16th, 1817. Elizabeth, their third daughter, was

born August, 1819. She was married to John Miller, of New
Glasgow, June 27th, 1871.

Samuel, the sixth son of James and Eleanor Yuill, was born

October 21st, 1789. He was married to Margaret daughter of James

Corbett and Elizabeth Marsh, his wife, of Five Islands, July 21st,

1812. He inherited a part of his father's property, at Clifton, where

he spent the whole of his lifa He died May 13th, 1868, aged 78
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year. Elizabeth, their eldest daughter, was born July 26th, 1814.

John Corbett Yuill, their eldest son, was born April 17th, 1817. He
was married to Martha, daughter of Joshua Corbett and Eleanor

Yuill, his wife, of Five Islands, July, 1848, They have one son and

three daughters. He inherits a part of his father's farm. Joseph

Yuill, their second son, was bom June 30th, 1819. He learned the

blacksmith trade with William Hall, of Truro, and carries on his

business at Clifton. He was married to Martha, daughter of William

and Agnes Miller, of Fire Islands, October 11th, 1842. They had

live sons and three daughters. Sarah Yuill, their second daughter,

was born August 19th, 1821. She was married to Christopher

Dillman, of Musquodoboit, June 18th, 1858. James Yuill, their

third son, was born October 15th, 1823. He was married to Catherine

daughter of Jacob Dillman and Margaret McKenzie, his wife, of

Musquodoboit, September 26th, 1848. They had three sons and two

daughters." He settled up the Beaver Brook. Eleanor, their third

daughter, was born February 9th, 1826. She was married to William

Elliott, of Chiganoise, July 25th, 1848. They had three sons and

three daughters. Zeuriah Yuill, their fourth daughter, was born

March 7th, 1829. She waS married to David Eude, of Chiganoise.

Louisa, their fifth daughter, was born October, 1831. She was

married to George Burgess, December 27th, 1860. Hezekiah Yuill,

their fourth son, was born September 30th, 1833. He was married

to Eliza Margaret, daughter of Christopher Dillman and Catherine

Dunbrack, his wife, N"ovember 1st, 1860. They have one son and

two daughters. He inherits the homestead part of his father's farm.

Elizabeth, the second daughter of James and Eleanor Yuill, was

born May 23rd, 1792. She was married to John L. Fisher in the

year 1812. She died shortly after. Eleanor Yuill, their third

daughter, was born April 1st, 1795. She was married to Joshua

Corbett in the year 1812. They had five sons and five daughters.

Mr. Corbett died 1868.

Jacob, the seventh and youngest son of James and Eleanor

YuiU, was born October 13th, 1802. He was married to Susan,

daughter of Daniel XJrquhart, of Portaupique, August 15th, 1822.

He settled on the farm upon which the Messrs. McCurdys now reside,

near the shore at Clifton. Eleanor Jane, their eldest daughter, was

born March 17th, 1824. She was married to John Knight, of Portau-

pique, April, 1867. Mary Ann, their second daughter, was born

February 22nd, 1826. She was married to Capt. William McDuiFey,

19
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February, 1851. They had four sons and three daughters. James,

their eldest son, was horn December 21st, 1828. He was drowned

from a vessel that was lost on the rocks at Grand Manan, in the Bay

of Fundy, in March, 1849. Amelia Yuill, their third daughter, was

born December 12th, 183.3. She was married to William Smith

Cox, August 7th, 1855. They have two sons and two daughters.

Darnel, the second son of Jacob and Susan Yuill, was bom
December 19th, 1835. It may here be observed that Mr. Yuill and

his son Daniel were crossing the Shubenacadie Eiver in a boat, in the

spring of the year 1845, when he was removing from his farm at Old

Barns to the County of Hants. He had in the boat with him his

seed wheat, some of his farming utensils, and a pair of oxen fastened

to the boat to make them swim across the River. The oxen upset the

boat and threw all in the Eiver. His son, then in the tenth year of

his age, was drowned. Mr. YuiU held on by the oxen until they

swam ashore, and was in this way delivered from his perilous situation.

William Yuill, their third son, was born May 16th, 1837. He was

drowned in August, 1854, being thrown overboard by the boom of a

vessel in the Bay of Fundy. David Yuill, their fourth son, was bom
January 20th, 1839. He was married to Claressa, only daughter of

the late Joseph Russell and Sarah Conley, his wife, February, 1865.

They have one son and two daughters. Sarah YuiU, their fourth

daughter, was bom June 11th, 1840. She removed to the United

States and was married there to Samuel H. H. Humphrey, of

Peabody, Mass., September 27th, 1781. JSTancy Yuill, their fifth

daughter, was born July 16th, 1841. She was married to Captain

Caleb Atkins, September 1860. They have one son and one

daughter. George Yuill, their fifth son, was born in 1843. He left

Truro for California, April 2Tid, 1867, and arrived at Sacramento in

May. On the 25th of October, same year, while out on a duck

hunting excursion on a lake, in a boat alone, he was shot by the

accidental discharge of his own gun. Jane, the only daughter of

James YuiU, Esq., was bom in Boston in 1857. She was married to

Thomas Gourley. They had seven sons and six daughters.
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CHAPTER XLIIL

Robert Hunter was one of the first settlers of Truro, and was a

Grantee of the Township. His homse stood near the place that Mr.

•S. S. Nelson's store now stands. He was one of the first elders of -the

Presbyterian Church of Truro, who were chosen in the summer of the

year 1770. He died February 7th, 1810, aged 77 years. He out-

lived the -rest of the elders who were chosen at the same time he was.

His wife died October 14th, 1807, aged 74 years. He was born in

•Ireland in the year 1733. He came out to New England when he

was young, and was married there to Esther Moore, about the year

1756. They removed to Nova Scotia in the spring of the year 1760.

Letitia, their -eldest daughter, was born in New England in the

year 1755. She was married to Caleb Putnam, of Maitland, 1775.

"William, their eldest son, was bom February 1st, 1779. He was

married to Jane McKenzie, September 20th, 1817. They had six

sons and three daughters. He was drowned in the Shubenacadie

Eiver, November 1 0th, 1840, -in the 61st year of his age. Esther, the

second daughter of Caleb and Letitia Putnam, was born March 14th,

1781. She was married to Robert, eldest son of Gavin Johnson and

Elizabeth Hunter, his wife, 1803. They had one son and three

daughters. They removed to Ohio, TJ. S., in the year 1805.

Elizabeth Putnam, their eldest daughter, was born September 7th,

1776. She was married to Robert Brydon, 1799. They had two

sons and three daughters. She died September, 1832, aged 56 years.

Her husband died at Tatamagouche about 1856. Mary Putnam, their

third daughter, was born August 7th, 1783, She was married to

James Douglas, December, 1807. They had four sons and one

daughter. She died January, 1870, aged 86 years. Mr. Douglas

died April, 1842. Caleb Putnam, their youngest son, was born July

12th, 1785. He was brought up at his grandfather Hunter's, after the

death of his mother. He was married to Catherine McDougall,

October 1815. Tkey had four sons and three daughters. He died

August, 1850, aged 65 years. His widow died in 1850. Caleb

Putnam's first wife died in 1785. He was married to Jane Fidton in

1787. They had two sons and six daughters. He died Sept., 1838.

Elizabeth, the second daughter of Robert Hunter and Esther

Moore, was born in New England in the .year 1 759. She was married
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to Gavin Johnson^ a Scotchman, December 7tli, 1780. Mr. JoBiGSOl^

was a school teacher. He lived in a house that adjoined the house-

Mr. William Bowlan now resides in at west end. He was Town
Clerk from about the year 17&0 to- 179^: A few years after this date

he removed to Ohio, IT. S., and about the year 1805 he returned to-

Trura ort a visit, and it is said that he persuaded his brother-in-law,,

John Hunter, to go with him; to Ohio. They went in 1815, and after

the death of Mr. Hunter, Johnson and his family got his property,

which was cortsiderable. Mr. Johnson- and his family both died there

a number o-f years ago. Eobert Hunter, the eldest son of Gaviji and

Elizabeth Johnson, was born in. Truro, December 29th, 1781. He
was married to Esther, daughter af Caleb and Letitia Putnam, 1803.-

He removed to Ohio, IT. S., in 1815. They h-ad one son and

three daughters. WiUiara- Johnson, tb^ir second son, was bom in^

Truro, October 22nd, 1783; He was a house joiner. He was married

to Elizabeth, daughter of David and Eleanor Taylor, October 8th,

1807. He owned the half of what was- Mr. Taylor's farm, being the

same that Mr. John Hattie now owns. He built the house in whicb

Mr. Hattie now livea He sold out and went with his father and ther

Test of the family to Ohio in 1815. He and his wife both died there-

some time ago. John- Johnson, their third- son, was born December'

16th, 1785, Thomas Johnson^ their fourth son, was born October'

3rd, 1786; He died when young. Archibald Johnson, their fifth

son, was born July 27th, 1791. He was a minister of the G<)spel itt

the ITnited States. Gavin Eoat, their' sixth son,- was bom March.

22nd, 1796-. Grizzel Eoat Johnson, their daughter, was bo^n Marcb

10th, 1794.

John Hunter, the only son of Eobert and Esther,- was bom in

1761. He inherited his father's property in Traro until 1806. He
then exchanged farms -with William^ Smith and removed to Middle-

Stewiacke, to the farm that John Putnam lived and died upon* He~

sold out there to Timothy Putnam-, in- 1815, and removed to Ohio.

He died there a bachelor some time ago.

Janet, the third daughter of Eobert and Esther Huntei?, waa bom
in Truro, January 18th, 1763^ She wa^ married to Timothy

' Putnam about tbx3 year 1785. They settled at Middle Stewiacke, on

the farm- which Mr, David Fisher now occupies,, where they spent the

remainder of their lives. She died February 26th, 1841, aged 78

years. Mr. Putnam died October 9th, 1840, aged 84 years.

Letitia Putnam, their eldest daughter, was born in the year 1786,-
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^e -was married to James Rutherford, Senx., TSOS. They had one

-•son and six daughters. She died April 27th, 1824, aged 38 yeais.

Eohert, the eldest son of Timothy and Janet Pctnam, was bora

•July, 1788. He was married to Jane, daughter of William and Mary

Cox, of Upper Stewiacke, January, 1814. He resided on the farm oa

which his son WiUiam now lives.

Eleanor, the eldest daughter of Robert and Janet Putnam, wa«

born October 27th, 1814 -She was married to Eobison Eutherford-

•Jane Putnam, their second daughter, was born June 20th, 1817. She

was married to WilHam Fisher. They had sons and daughters.

Mrs. Putnam died July 7th, 1817. He was married again to Elizabeth,

ihird daughter of William and Ann Flemming, J^y, 1821. They

liad three sons and two daughters. H« started to go to New York for

tthe improvement of his health, and died on boa^d the vessel in !N'ew

York harbour, July 10th, 1839, aged 51 years.

Timothy, the second son of Timothy and Janet Putnam, was bora

October 26th, 1790. He was maxried to Ruth, the youngest daughter

of Adam and Eleanor Dtmiap, February 14th, 1828. They had six

sons and six daughters. He inherited his father's farm. He died

July 17th, 1852, aged 62 years. Mrs. Putnam died August 7th,

185i, aged 49 years.

John, the third son of Timothy and Janet PutnaM, was bora

May^ 1793. He was married to Jane, daughter of John Corbett and

Mary Flemming, January, 1620. He settled on tlie farm that

William Kennedy first settled on 'in 1 780, and was afterwards owned

"by William Smith and John Hunter. They had three sons and six

-daughters. He died November 14th, 1870, aged 77 years. His wife

'died October 24th, 1€57, aged '%2 yeaars. Esther, the second daughter

-of Timothy and Janet Putnam, was born December ZlsL, 1756. She

was married to James Barnhill, Maa^ch 17th, 1818. They had three

sons and five daughters. She died May 3rd, 1868, aged 72 years.

EKzabeth, the youngest daughter oi Timothy and Janet Putnam, was

T3om 1795. She was maafried to James Dunlap, F^ruary, 1820.

:She had one son. She died suddenly., April 14th, 1821, aged 22 years.

Alice, the fourth daughter of Robert and Esther Hunter, was born

in Truro, July 18th, 1766. -She was married to Alexander BarnhiH

in 1785. They had two sons and three daughters. <She died

December 22nd, 1831, aged -65 years. Her hiisband died September

:22nd, 1813, aged 47 years. Margaret Hunter, their fifth daughter,

was born in Truro, August 4th, 1762. She was married to Samson,
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son of Samson Moore and Martha Archibald, his wife, Deeemher Sl'st,.

1795. They had' one son and one daughter. She died in 181 6, aged'

4-7 years. Ber hushand died in 1818, aged 51 years. Esther, the

youngest daughter of Robert and Esther Hunter, was born June 10th,,

1772. She was married to WiUiam Smith, February 28th, 1793.

They had four sons and three daughters. She died May 10th, 1835>.

aged 63- years. Her husband died liovember-Srd, 1853, aged 86 years.

(S^^JI^^

CHAPTEE XLTT..

Andrew Grammell was another of the first settlers of Tr^uro. H&
was a Grantee of the Township. His front land was in the Lower-

Village, where he resided during the remainder of his life (being the

same place that Mr; Eobert 0. Christie o>vned). On March 8th,

1769, while he was chopping in the woods, he was unfortunately

kiUed by the falling of a tree. He wasmarried to Elizabeth Thomson

before they came to Noya Scotia. John Gammell, their eldest son,,

was born before they came to Nova Scotia. His name is among the

Grantees of Truro Township. It is said that he left home to follow

the sea, and was never heard from.

Archibald Ganimell, their second son, was born before they came-

to Nova Scotia. He was married to Sarah, daughter of William

Eisherand Eleanor Archibald, November 15th, 1782. He resided on

the north side of Salmon Eiverj and had his house on the upland

which Mr. John Hattie now owns. He continued there until about

the year- 17^0. He then removed to Upper Stewiacke, and settled on

the farm that is now owned by Mr. William. Cox, on the interval on

the north side of the Eiver. He died there in 1835, aged aboiit 75

years. His Avife died date unknown. Betty Thomson Gasimell, their

eldest daughter, was born November 19th, 1783. She was married to

Thomas Skeed. They had sons and daughters. They removed to

the United States and died there some time ago. Eleanor Gammell,,

their second daughter, was born in Truro, January 10th, 1785. She

was married to William, son of James Diclcey and Elizabeth Kennedy,

in 1808. They had two sons and two daughters. Mr. Dickey died

February 21st, 1872, aged 86 years.

Johii) the only son of Archibald and Sarah Gammell,, was bora in;
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Truro, March 26tli, 1787. He inherited his father's farm until nearly

the close of his life. He was Precentor in the Church of Upper

Stewiacke for more than fifty years. He was married to EHzaheth,

daughter of James and Janet Kennedy, in 1807. They had one son

and two daughters. He died Septemher 4th, 1863, aged 76 years.

His wife died April 19th, 1870, aged 79 years. Margaret, the third

daughter of Archibald and Sarah Gammell, was born in Truro, April

20th, 1789. She was married to David, son of David and Martha

Fisher, of Middle Stewiacke, in 1811. They had four sons and four

daughters. Ruth Gammell, their fourth daughter, was born in

Stewiacke in 1791. She was married to Gilbert Rutherford, in 1813.

They had one son. Sarah Gammell, their fifth daughter, was born in

1793. She was married to John W. Henry, of Musquodoboit.

They had two sons and five daughters. She died April, 1869, aged

76 years. Hannah Gammell, their sixth daughter, was born in 1795. •

She was married to Thomas Cousins, in the year 1815. They

removed to the United States.

Andrew, the third son of Andrew and Elizabeth Gammell, was

born November 28th, 1763. He died young.

Robert Gammell, their fourth son, was born April 24th, 1765.

He was married to Margaret, one of the twin daughters of William

and Janet Kennedy, February 16th, 1792. He settled on the farm

on which his grandson, Robert Gammell, now resides. This was the

first marriage tliat was in Middle Stewiacke. He was a very worthy

man, and was an elder in the Presbyterian Church of Stewiacke for a

long time. He assisted in erecting three Churches in Upper Stewi-

acke. Mrs. Gammell died October 21st, 1811, aged 43 years. He

was married again to Phoebe Ann, daughter of David McCollum, Senr.,

and Margaret Moore, June 20th, 1816. He died November 7th,

1853, aged 88 years. His widow died April 8th, 1859, aged 82 years.

Andrew, the eldest son of Robert and Margaret Gammell, was born

February 17th, 1794. He died March 11th, 1815, aged 21 years.

Elizabeth, their eldest daughter, was born August 7th, 1797. She

died January 13th, 1813, in the 16th year of her age.

William, the second son of Robert and ]\Iargaret GammeU, was

born May 30th, 1799. He was married to Janet, daughter of Hugh

Logan and Elizabeth E. Archibald, December 31st, 1822. They had

four sons and five daughters. She died February 12th, 1843, aged

42 years. He was married again to Susan, daughter of John Dunlap

and Martha Putnam, March 30th, 1844. They had one son and one
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daughter. He inherited his father's property. He was an elder in

the Church, and a Justice of the Peace for some time before he died.

He died of consumption, August 21st, 1848, aged 49 years.

John Gammell, their third son, was born July 19th, 1801.

He was married to Sarah, daughter of Samuel Tupper, Esq.,

and Eachel Dunlap, in 1826. They had three sons and seven

daughters. He settled on the farm on which the Hon. Samuel

Creelman now resides. He died there July, 1861, aged 60 years.

His widow died October 11th, 1846, aged 40 years. Margaret,

daughter of Robert and Margaret Gammell, was born July 25th,

1809. She died young. Jane, daughter of Robert and Margaret

Gammell, was born May 3rd, 1804. She was married to Ebenezer

Fulton, Esq., March 25th, 1824. They had three sons and one

daughter. She died November 30th, 1836, aged 32 years.

CHAPTER XLV,

William Kennedy was one of the first settlers of Truro, and a

Grantee of the Township. His house lot was on the west side of the

street running from Queen Street to the interval. Temperance Hall

now partly occupies the site. His front wood lot, so called, is the

one upon which Samuel Rettie, Esq., Dr. Samuel Muir, and. a num-

ber of others, now reside. In the year 1768, he sold his house lot to

Robert Hunter, his front wood lot to George Scott, and removed to

Pictou. He built the first frame house that was in Pictou town. In

1776, he sold out in Pictou, and returned to Truro. In 1780, he

removed and settled at Middle Stewiacke, on the farm which Mr.

John Putnam afterwards owned. He was there one year without any

neighbour. In the spring of the year 1781, Mr. Samuel Teas, who
had recently come from Ireland, settled on the south side of the river,

nearly opposite to his place. (The first settlers of IVIiddle Stewiacke

had their path or road through the woods from Truro, running along

Young Street, up over the high land, passing through what is now
Mr. Joseph Marshall's farm in Upper Brookfield and entering,

Stewiacke at Mr. Kennedy's). He continued to reside on tliis farm,

enduring the hardships of settling in the woods, until the infirmities

of old age came upon him. He then divided his farm between his
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three sons, James, Eobert and John, and went to the South Branch

to live, with his eldest daughter, Elizabeth, who was then the widow

Dickey. When she married the second time, he removed to his son

James', who then lived on the place which Mr. Jacob Layton recently

occupied at Upper Stewiacke Village, Avhere he died October, 1816.

His wife died in 1813, He was married before he came to Nova

Scotia, about the year 1758.

William, the eldest son of William and Janet Kennedy, was

born in 1759. In February, 1792, he started from his father's house

in Middle Stewiacke, and went up the river on the ice, with the

intention of crossing from the South Branch to Musquodoboit, to

see Miss Ann Archibald, daughter of Jolm and Alice Archibald, to

invite her and some others of the family to a wedding at his father's

house, the time Eobert Gammell was married to his sister Margaret.

When he got up about the mouth of the South Branch, the ice gave

way with him, and he was drowned. Elizabeth, the eldest daughter

of William and Janet Kennedy, was born in Truro, October 25th,

1761. It is said that she was the first who was born in Truro, after

the settlement of the place by the British. She was married to

James, son of Adam and James Dickey. They had three sons and

two daughters, On August 22nd, 1793, Mr. Dickey was drowned,

as described in another place. She married again to Adam Dunlap,

September 28th, 1805. Mr. Dunlap died May 25th, 1808. She

was married again to Mr. George McConnell, of the West Eiver of

Pictou. She died about the year 1815.

James Kennedy, their second son, was born in Truro, IS'ovember

17th, 1763. He was married to Janet, daughter of Adam and Janet

Dickey, in 1790. He inherited the homestead and middle part of

his father's farm. About the year 1800, he exchanged farms with

William Smith, and removed to Upper Stewiacke, where he spent the

remainder of his days. They had five sons and three daughters. He
died May 24th, 1845, in the 82nd year of his age. His wife died

July, 1825.

Eobert, the third son of William and Janet Kennedy, was born

in Truro, August 1st, 1766. He was married to Mary Woodworth,

December 28th, 1797. He inherited the east side of his father's farm,

being that part on which Mr. William F. Putnam now resides. He
sold this farm, and removed to Upper Stewiacke, and settled on the

farm that is now owned by David McG. Johnson, Esq. He sold out

and removed again to Mosquito Cove, where his grandson now resides.
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They had five sons and three daughters. He died in October, 1834,

aged 68 years, His widow died June 10th, 1853.

Margaret and Jane, twin daughters of WiUiam and Janet Kennedy,

were born in Pictou in 1768. Margaret was married to Robert

Gammell, February 16th, 1792. Their family appears among the

Gammells. She died October 21st, 1811, aged 43 years. Her

husband died ISTovember 7th, 1853, aged 88 years. Jane, the other

twin daughter, was married to James, eldest son of James and Mary

Dunlap, in 1794. They had two sons and one daughter. Her

husband died October, 1809, aged 42 years.

John, the youngest son of William and Janet Kennedy, was born

in Pictou, in 1770.- He was married to Ann, daughter of Jolin

Archibald and Alice Moore, of Musquodoboit, in 1795. He inherited

the west side of his father's farm, being the same that John Putnam,

Jr., now occupies. He died there May 2nd, 1817. His widow was

married again to David Dickey, of Musquodoboit, February, 1823.

Mr. Dickey died N'ovember, 1852. She died at her son William's

house, in Pleasant Valley, October, 1858, aged 86 years. William,

the eldest son of John and Ann Kennedy, was born October 4th,

1796. He was married to Mary, daughter of William Carter and

]S"ancy Cox, of Brookfield, February 7th, 1823. They had eight sons

and one daughter. They are living at date (November, 1872) on the

farm that he reclaimed from the forest in Pleasant Valley. Alice

Kennedy, their eldest daughter, was born 1798. She was married to

William Moore, of Brookfield, March, 1820. They had one son and

two daughters. Mr. Moore died September, 1856, aged 60 years.

She was married again to James Murphy, of Musquodoboit. Mr.

]\Iurphy died, and she is now living a widow, Jane Kennedy, their

second daughter, was born 1800. She was married to Daniel Carter,

January, 1823. They had eight sons and one daughter. John, the

second son of John and Ann Kennedy, was born April 6th, 1802.

He was married to Eleanor McBride, January 1st, 1835. They had

two sons and two daughters. Mrs. Kennedy died December 11th,

1861. David Kennedy, their third son, was born 1804. He was

married to Hannah Aikens, March 1832. They had throe sons and

three daughters. He died July, 1845. His Avife died May, 1845.

James Kennedy, their fourth son, was born 1806. He was married

to Elizabeth ('otton, of Lower Stewiacke, ]\Iarch 1842. They had

four sons and four daughters. He reclaimed his farm from the forest

in Pleasant Valley. He died there January 9th, 1870. Hugh
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Kennedy, their fifth son, was born 1808. He was six feet five

inches in height, and very slender;. He died a hachelor-, May 1830,,

aged 22 years.

(^'^^'-Q

CHAPTEE XLVI.

Charles Cox was another of the first settlers of Truro, and a

Grantee of the Township. His interval lot extended from Salmon

Kiver south, to the upland east of John Caldwell's lot at Caldwell's

Bridge, so called, on the road leading up Salmon Eiver. On this lot

he built his first house, and, after the great freshet in 1792, he found

it not very safe to reside on the interval. He huilt his next house on

the front end of his wood lot on the upland, Ueing the same on which

Eohert Archibald now resides. He owned about forty acres more of

interval on the north side of the Eiver, called the Island, that is now

owned by Mr. Edward Archibald and others. He was married to

Eleanor Stewart, about the year 1807. (A stone that is supposed to

be at his grave has spawled off so that neither letter nor figure is

now legible.) After the death of Mr. Cox, his widow removed to

Stewiacke, where she spent the remainder of her life. She died at the

house of her son WiUiam, December, 1822. Her remains were

brought to Truro and interred in the Truro Cemetery.

William, the eldest son of Charles Cox and Eleanor Stewart, his

-wife, was born in 1757, and was brought by his parents to ]S"ova

Scotia when he was five years old. He was married to Mary, the

eldest daughter of John and Mary Smith (who had come from

Scotland a few years before), January 26th, 1786. They removed to

Upper Stewiacke in the spring of the year 1792, and settled on the

farm that his grandson, Francis Cox, now resides tipon, where they

spent the remainder of their days. He died there, January 24th,

1844, aged 86 years. His widow died February 2nd, 1850, aged 86

years. Daniel Smith Cox, their eldest son, was born in Truro,

October 30th, 1786. He was married to Amelia Smith, March 10th,

1810. They settled on the south part of the interval that was his

father's. Mrs. Cox died there September 2nd, 1857, aged 68 years.

Mr. Cox died January 28th, 1873, aged 86 years.

John Smith Cox, the eldest son of Daniel S. and Amelia Cox^ was
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born in Stewiacke, January i9th, 1811. He remoTed to I^ew

Brunswick, and was married there to Lydia ConneU, June 6th, 1842,

They had one son and four daughters. Mrs. Cox died Decemher

17th, 1855. He was mamed again to Frances Smith, of New
Brunswick, July 5th, 1857. She died February 2nd, 1861. He

returned to Stewiaeke, and has been nearly three years laid aside on

account of illness. Daniel Smith Cox, their second son, was born

April 23rd, 1818. He was married to Mary Ellis, of Shubenacadie,

1842. They had two sons and three daughters. He died in Truro,

May 3rd, 1869, aged 51 years.

Mary, the eldest daughter of Daniel S. and Ameha Cox, was born

January 20th, 1813. She was married to Alexander M. Lydiard, of

Halifax, October, 1834. They had five sons and one daughter.

William Cox, their third son, was born December 23rd, 1820,

He was married to Elizabeth Green, September, 1852. They had one

son and two daughters. Sarah Cox, their second daughter, was bom
October 17th, 1823. She remaios at home with her aged father and

afflicted brother. Charles Cox, their fourth son, was born May 3rd,

1827. He was married to Mary, daughter of James Dunlap and

Christiann Aikens, 1853. They had one son and one daughter. Mrs.

Cox died July 22nd, 1869. Jotham Blanchard Cox, their fifth son,

was born August 21st, 1830. He was married to Susan, daughter of

James and Christiann Dunlap, April 22nd, 1858, They had one son

and three daughters. George Russell Cox, their sixth son, was born

June 5th, 1833. He was married to Eleanor, daughter of James and

Christie Dunlap, December 25th, 1861. They had three sons and

one daughter.

Eleanor, the eldest daughter, of William and Mary Cox, was born

in Truro, December 1st, 1788. She was married to William Ruther-

ford, Esq., February 5th, 1807. They had one son and three

daughters. She died January 15th, 1813, aged 24 j^ears. Mr.

Rutherford died October 19th, 1856. Mary, the second daughter of

William and Mary Cox, was born in Truro, May 20th, 1791. She

was married to Samuel Creelman, January, 1809. They had one

daughter. She died December 28th, 1813, aged 24 years. Jane

Cox, their third daughter, was born in Stewiaeke, 1793. She was

married to Robert Putnam, January, 1814. They had two daughters.

She died July 7th, 1817, aged 24 years. Mr. Putnam died July

10th, 1839.

John, the second son of William and ^fary Cox, was born June
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Sfth, 1796. He was married to Margaret, the youngest daughter of

Francis and Esther Creelman, December 25th, 1821. He inherited

the homestead and a large part of his father's farm, where he spent

his life. He died April 24th, 186-7, aged 71 yeairs. Mary Cox, their

eldest daughter, was married to James, the only son of James Dunlap

and Elizabeth Putnam, Eeb'y, 4th, 1846. They have two daughters.

Esther Cox, their second daughter, was born September^ 1829. She

was married to Dayid McC Johnson, Esq., December 24th, 1850,

They have five sons and four daughters. John, the eldest son of John

and Margaret Cox, was born March 2nd, 1827. He was married to

Elizabeth, daughter of James and Christiann Dunlap, December, 1851.

They had one son. Mr. Cox, on January 26th, 1853, was engaged

with a number of others threshing graia with a machine. They put

a young horse into the team. The whole team took fright, and com-

menced to go round furiously. In attempting to stop them, he put a

handspike into the wheel of the machine, which broke the wheel in

an instant, and a piece of the wheel struck him on the head, which

caused immediate death. He left a young widow and one son to

lament their sad bereavement. Francis Cox, their second son, was

born January Srd, 1832. He was mamed to Catherine, daughter of

John and Susan Creelman, December 27th, 1860. They have six

sons. He inherits the farm that was his father's, and his grandfather's

before him, Hugh Graham Cox, their third son, was bom March

3rd, 1835. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter of James Creel-

man and Martha Cox, March 8th, 1861. They have one son and four

daughters. He settled north of the meadow near Otter Brook.

William Cox, their fourth son, was bom June 23rd, 1837. He was

married to Jane Kennedy, December 31st, 1861. They had two sons

and one daughter. Mrs. Cox died August 24th, 1869, Samuel Cox,

their fifth son, was born May 23rd, 1842,

Charles, the third son of "William and Mary Cox, was born August

22nd, 1798. He was married to Janet Newcomb, March, 1820-

Mrs. Cox died January 6th, 1867, aged 67 years. He was married

again to Sarah Young, widow of the late John Walker, January 23rd,

1871. Ann, the eldest daughter of Charles and Janet Cox, was born

in 1820. She died unmarried, April 26th, 1833, aged 32 years.

Mary Jane Cox, their second daughter, was born April 14th, 1822.

She was married to the Eev, Obed Chute, March 30th, 1850, They

had five sons, Elizabeth Cox, their third daughter, was born July

15th, 1823. She was married to James Bentley, January, 1851.
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They had three sons. On April 26th, 1858, Mr. Bentley Vas going to

Halifax in the cars. When they arrived at Eichmond station, in

stepping from the cars to the platform, while the cars wera in motion,

he fell, and was crushed between the car and the platform, which

caused immediate death. William, the eldest son of Charles and

Janet Cox, was born March 17th, 1827. He was married to Rebecca

Delaney, of Londonderry, December 28th, 185-2. They have two

sons and one daughter. Eosanna, the foilrth daughter of Charles and

Janet Cox, was born August 4th, 1829. She was married to L. J.

Walker, Mta-chant of Truro, December 30th, 1852. Abraham, the

second son of Charles and Janet Cox, was born April 14th, 1832.

He was married to Olivia, daughter of Adam and Hannah Eutherford,

March, 1857. They had one daughter. Mrs. Cox died March 18th,

1860. He was married again to Susan, daughter of Abraham and

Margaret Bentley, May 29th, 1862. They have four sons and one

daughter. Charles and Margaret, twin son and daughter of Charles

and Janet Cox, were born October 14th, 1824. Margaret is yet

unmarried. Charles was married to Sarah Scott, of Guysborough,

May 7th, 1860. They had one son and two daughters. Mrs. Cox

died January 7th, 1867. He was married again to Margaret, daughter

of Hugh Logan and Elizabeth Archibald, of Cumberland, April 1st,

1868. They had one daughter. He died June 21st, 1871, aged 36

years. Elmina Cox, their sixth daughter, was born September 23rd,

1837. She was married to Samuel Eettie, Esq., of Truro, May 14th,

1860. They had sons and daughters. James Cox, their fourth and

youngest son, was born February 25th, 1841. He was married to

Amanda Banks, of Lower Stewiacke, June, 1865.

Hugh Graham, the fourth son of William and Mary Cox, was

born February 24th, 1801. He was married to Eliza, daughter of

Eddy Tupper and Ann Fulton, February 5th, 1824. Eleanor, their

only daughter, was married to Samuel Ashmore Creelman. They had

two sons and five daughters. Mr. Creelman died May 11th, 1870,

aged 50 years.

William, the fifth son of William and Mary Cox, was bom
February 5th, 1804. He was married to Sarah, daughter of John

Dunlap and Martha Putnam, February 15th, 1827. Martha Dunlap

Cox, their eldest daughter, was born January 7th, 1828. She was

married to Andrew Logan, October 20th, 1853. They had four sons

and three daughters. William Smith Cox, their eldest son, was bom
May 31st, 1831. He was married to Amelia Yuill, August 7th, 1855»
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They had two sons and two daughters. He carries on tanning and

currying on Elm Street, Truro. Margarat Jane Cox, their second

daughter, was born July 13th, 1833. She was married to Joseph

Peppard, of Londonderry, November 7th, 1854. They have sons

and daughters, John Dunlap Cox, their second son, was born March

22nd, 1837. He removed to California. Susan Dunlap Cox, their

third daughter, was born January 8th, 1835. She was married to

John Eobert Longhead, of Clifton, October 18th, 1853. They have

sons and daughters. Eleanor Cox, their fourth daughter, was born

June 19th, 1839. She was married to Isaac YuiU, May 22nd, 1862.

They have sons and daughters. Amos Cox, their third son, was born

September 13th, 1841. Francis C. Cox, the fourth son of "VViUiam

and Sarah Cox, was bom May 9th, 1844. He was married to EHzabeth

Brown, May 10i;h, 1869. William Cox's wife, Sarah, died May 10th,

1855, aged 49 years. He was married again to Mrs. EHzabeth Hunt,

May 13th, 1860. Frederick W. B. Cox, their only son, was born

December 1st, 1862.

George, the sixth and youngest son of AVilliam and Mary Cox,'

was born September 10th, 1810. He was married to Ann, daughter

of Charles Blackie and Letitia Deyarmond, February 23rd, 1832,

Mr. Cox died March 1st, 1860, aged 50 years. "William Cox, their

eldest son, was bom May 5th, 1833. He was married to Janet

Brown, of Musquodoboit, December 10th, 1862. They have two sons

and three daughters. Charles Cox, their second son, was born

August 18th, 1835. He was married to Agnes Fisher, August 9th,

1859. They had two sons and four daughters. John Smith Cox,

their third son, was born April 21st, 1838. He was married to

Esther, daughter of Eobert Cox and Margaret Putnam, of Hants

County, March, 1866. They have two sons and one daughter.

Mary Cox, their eldest daughter, was born October 17th, 1840. She

was married to George Prescott Henry, of Musquodoboit, July 14th,

1864. They have two daughters. Duncan Cox, their fourth son,

was born December 25th, 1841; He was married to Esther Kennedy,

November 29th, 1870. They have one daughter. Letitia Cox, their

second daughter, was bom December 1st, 1845, She was married to

William, son of Anthony Bonnell and Mary Vance, April 25th, 1865.

They have three daughters. EUen Jane Cox, their third daughter,

was born February 25th, 1848. She was married to Thomas, son of

George S. Rutherford and Margaret Howard, January 20th, 1870.
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Elizabeth Cox, their fourth daiighter, was born August 5th, 1850.

Margaret Cox, their fifth daughter, was born January 20th, 1852.

Eleanor, the eldest daughter of Charles and Eleanor Cox, was

born in the year 1760, She was married to Daniel Moore in 1780.

They had five sons and two daughters. They were the first who

settled in Brookfield, about the year 1785. She died at Brookfield

in 1851, aged 91 years. She was deprived of sight for a number of

years before her death. Mr. Moore died at Brookfield in February,

1826, aged 72 years.

Charles, the second son of Charles and Eleanor Cox, was born in

the year 1762. He was married to Agnes Thomson, about the year

1783. He was one of the eight who first settled in Upper Stewiacke,

in th^; spring of the year 1784. His farm laid east of his brother

William's. His house was on the south side of the interval. A part

of his place is now owned by William Creelman. He continued on

this place for a number of years. He then removed to the upper part

of the settlement, where his three sons, William, Andrew and Eobin-

son, continued the remainder of their lives. He died there July 1 7th,

1818, aged 56 years. His widow died of Small pox, February 2nd,

1828, aged 66 years.

Charles, the eldest son of Charles and Agnes Cox, Avas born

November 24th, 1784. He was married to Mary Marsh, of Economy,

I^ovember 24th, 1810; and he was killed by falling from a horse,

November 24th, 1860. John Cox, their eldest son, was born August

22nd, 1816. He was married to Mary Jane, daughter of Jacob

DiUman and Margaret McKenzie, of Musquodoboit, 1851. Archibald

Thomson Cox, their second son, was born June 20th, 1818. He
removed to the United States, and was married there to Martha

Lightbody, of Masstown, Londonderry, December 17th, 1850. They
have two sons and two daughters. He worked at shipwork about the

Bay, and in the United States for a number of years. He is now
settled at Clifton, on the farm that was owned by Captain Eichard

Christie. Charles Cox their third son, was born March 30th, 1820.

He removed to the United States some time ago, where he is marritd

and has a family, William Cox, their fourth son, was born in 1822.

He removed to New York, where he died a bachelor in 1869, aged

47 years. Eleanor Cox, their eldest daughter, was born in June,

1824. She was married to James Tuttle, of Wallace Eiver, June,

1853, They had three sons and three daughters, James Cox, their

fifth son, was born in the year 1827, He removed to California
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about the year 1850. Some time after, wliile working in a saw mill,

he got his hand hurt. In consequence of bad treatment, he had to

get it cut off. He became quite wealthy, and died there a bachelor

March 20th, 1871, aged 44 years. Andrew Cox, their sixth son, was

married to I*^"ancy, daughter of James McCulloch and Eleanor Andrews,

his wife. They have three sons and one daughter. iN'ancy Cox, their

second daughter, was married to Jacob Dillman, of Musquodoboit,

September 24th, 1848. They had seven sons and five daughters.

Eachel Cox, their third daughter, was married to George iN^otall, of

Gay's Eiver. They had two daughters. Isaac Cox, their seventh

son, was born January 25th, 1833. He removed to Massachusetts,

U. S., and was married there to Catherine Holton, April 10th, 1856.

They have , two sons and two daughters. He is now settled at

Maitland.

Archibald, the second son of Charles Cox, Senr., and Eleanor

Stewart, was born December 17th, 1786. He was married to Mary

Alexander, of Hants County, April 2nd, 1812. He removed from

Stewiacke to Selma, Hants' County, in 1816, where he and his sons

have carried on a large business at building and sailing ships. His

wife died there, December 22nd, 1868, aged 72 years. Charles Cox,

their eldest son, was born April 17th, '1815. He was married to

Hannah, daughter of John Douglass, of Maitland, November 29th,

1840. Mrs. Cox died October 3rd, 1841. He was married again to

Margaret, daughter of John Graham, February 15th, 1843. They

had five sons and three daughters. Mrs. Cox died April 22nd, 1863.

He was married again to Susan Matthew, of England, January 9th,

1870. He inherits the homestead part of his father's farm, where he

carries on a large business of farming, merchandise, building, and

sailing vessels. Eobert, the second son of Archibald and Mary Cox,

was born May 22nd, 1817. He was married to Margaret, daughter of

Caleb Putnam and Catherine McDougall, his wife, I:^"ovember, 1842.

They had four sons ajid three daughters. He died January 31st, 1868,

aged 50 years. Archibald Cox, their third son, was born February

14th, 1823. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter of David Smith

and Mary Graham, his wife, September, 1848. They have two sons

and three daughters. He removed with his family, a few years ago,

to Liverpool, England. He removed agaia to Antwerp in 1872.

William Cox, their fourth son, was born August 4th, 1828. He was

married to Eebecca Ann, daughter of David and Mary Smith, July,

1856. They had two sons and six daughters. Mrs. Cox died

20
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December 31st, 1871, aged 37 years. He was married again to Eliza-

beth Goodwin, June 15tli, 1872. John Cox, their fifth son, was born

August 12th, 1837. He died at sea, of yellow fever, February 25th,

1856. Mary the, eldest daughter of Archibald and Mary Cox, was

born August 10th, 1819. She was married to Captain Isaac Dart,

May 17th, 1843. They had four sons and three daughters. Mr.

Dart died in Liverpool, England, June 14th, 1867. Sarah Cox,

their second daughter, was born December 27th, 1821. She was

married to James Dunn, December 8th, 1847. They had four

sons and three daughters. Martha, their third daughter, was born

June 1st, 1826. She was married to Captain John Graham, October

9th, 1848. They had seven sons and three daughters. ISTancy Cox,

their fourth daughter, was bom May 20th, ^1831. She was married

to "William, son of James Creelman and Martha Cox, his wife, of

Upper Stewiacke, May 26th, 1859. They have two sons. Elizabeth

Cox, their fifth daughter, was born September 17th, 1833. Jane

Cox, their sixth daughter, was born May 9th, 1835. She was married

to John, son of Thomas and Letitia Crow of Clifton, November 29th,

1863. They have three sons and one daughter.

Mary, the eldest daughter of Charles and Agnes Cox, was married

to Eobert Fisher, of Middle Stewiacke.

WiUiam, the third son of Charles and Agnes Cox, was bom June,

1796. He was married to Sarah, the fourth daughter of William

and Esther Fisher of Truro, January 20th, 1822. Mrs. Cox died

June 19th, 1823. He was married again to Olivia Thomson, Febru-

ary 24th, 1824. They had two sons and one daughter. Mr. Cox

died of small pox, January 20th, 1828. His widow was married

again t© Eleazar B. Dickey, December 31st, 1833. They had two

sons and four daughters.

Andrew, the fourth son of Charles and Agnes Cox, was married

to Nancy Thomson, October 3rd, 1829. They had four sons and six

daughters. He died January 4th, 1863. Maitha Cox, their second

daughter, was married to James Creelman, February, 1822. They

had five sons and three daughters. She died January 17th, 1856.

Eobison Cox, their fifth son, was married to Mary Campbell, eldest

daughter of James Creelman and Margaret Graham, his wife, in 1830.

They had five s«ns and five daughters. He died November, 1871.

Esther, the second daughter of Charles and Eleanor Cox, was

born in Tr\iro, April 17th, 1764. She was married to David

Archibald, 4th, February 14th, 1788. They had four sons and five
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daughters. She died November 13th, 1837, aged 73 years. Mr.

Archibald died July 11th, 1830, aged 68 years. Margaret, their

third daughter, was bom June 24th, 1766. She was married to a

Mr. Tulle. They removed to the United States long ago. We know
nothing of her descendants.

John, the third son of Charles and Eleanor Cox, was bom in

Truro, October 12th, 1768, He was married to Rebecca McArthur,

of Shubenacadie, September 4th, 1807. He inherited his father's

farm in Truro for a time, and after that he built a house on the same

place that his son David now resides, where he spent the remainder

of his days. He died November, 1855, aged 87 years. His wife

died April, 1839, John Barnhill Cox, their eldest son, was bom in

Truro, January 17th, 1809. He removed to New Brunswick when
he was a young man, and married there. Mary Cox, their eldest

daughter, was born May 14th 1811, She removed to New Bruns-

wick about the year 1845. She was married there. Esther Archi-

bald Cox, their second daughter, was born October 22nd, 1813. She

was married to Alexander Chisholm, of New Glasgow. They had

three sons and three daughters. Duncan McArthur Cox, their second

son, was born October 22nd, 1815. He was lost at sea, David

Archibald Cox, their third son, was bom April 21st, 1818, He was

married to Eunice Budd, of Cumberland, February, 1843. They had

three sons and seven daughters. He inherits his father's place.

Charles Cox, their fourth son, was born June 2nd, 1820. He foUow-

'ed the sea for a number of years. He was married in Boston. They

had two sons and one daughter. He was lost in Boston Harbour

about 1860. Eleanor Cox, their third daughter,* was born January

28th, 1823. She was married to "William Kennedy, Junr., of Plea-

sant Valley, 1850. They have two sons and two daughters. Sarah

Cox, their fourth daughter, removed to New Brunswick. Jane Cox,

their fifth daughter, removed to Boston and married there.

Mary Cox, the fourth daughter of Charles and Eleanor Cox, was

bom in Truro, November 19th, 1770. She died May 7th, 1791,

aged 20 years, Elizabeth Cox, their fifth daughter, was bom Febru-

ary 5th, 1773. She was married to John Hamley. They had three

sons and one daughter. He settled on the old road between Brook-

field and Stewiacke. They removed to Canada about the year 1830,

Agnes, the sixth and youngest daughter of Charles and Eleanor

Oox, was born in Truro, March 11th, 1775, She was married to

William Carter, of Onslow, March 22nd, 1797. They settled in
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Brookfield, "where lie reclaimed from the forest the farm upon which

his son George now resides. The Eailway station, and a number of

other buildings now occupy a part of this same farm. Mr. Carter

died January, 1832. He was the first who was buried in the Brook-

field Cemetery. His widow died September, 1861, aged 86 years,

Daniel Carter, their eldest son, was born August 12th, 1797. He

was married to Jane Kennedy, January, 1823. They had eight sons

and one daughter. Mary Carter, their eldest daughter, was born

November 17th, 1798. She was married to William Kennedy,

February 7th, 1823. They had eight sons and one daughter. John

Carter, their second son, was bom June 9th, 1800. He was married

to Agnes Hamilton, November 19th, 1827. They had five sons and

four daughters. Mrs. Carter died, and he was married again to

Margaret; Philips, January, 1867. They had one son and one

daughter. Charles Carter, their third son, was born August lOth^

1802. He was married to Agnes Oughterson, December 2nd, 1829.

They had two sons. Mr. Carter died. William Carter, their fourth

son, was born May 10th, 1804. He died a bachelor, suddenly,

January, 1826. George Carter, their fifth son, was born February

5th, 1806. He was married to Elizabeth Conley. They had two

sons and eight daughters. He inherits a part of his father's farm at

Brookfield. Eobert Carter, their sixth son, was born May 30th,

1808. He was married to Eleanor Conley, They had four sons and

three daughters. Edward Carter, their seventh son, was bom Febru-

ary 11th, 1810. He was married to Margaret Oughterson, December

21st, 1832. They had four sons and three daughters. They removed

to the United States about the year 1840. He died there about the

year 1862. Agnes Carter, their second daughter, was born March

2nd, 1812. She was married to Thomas Hamilton, April 8th, 1830.

They had three sons and four daughters. Mr. Hamilton died July

14th, 1868, aged 71 years. Eleanor Carter, their third daughter, was

born June 2nd, 1814. She was married to John Newton. They

had three sons and three daughters. She died in Halifax about 1852,

Lucilla Carter, their fourth daughter, was born August 18th, 1816,

She was married to David Fisher. Tliey had five sons and one

daughter. She died 1864. Margaret Carter, their fifth daughter,

was born February 14th, 1818. She died unmarried November,

1866.

George, the fourth and youngest son of Charles and Eleanor Cox,

was born June 2nd, 1777. He died a bachelor.
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CHAPTER XLVII.

. Adam Dickey was among the first settlers of Truro, and was a

Grantee of the Township. He built his first house on the north side

of the interval road, between Charles Cox's lot and John Caldwell's,

at Caldwell's Bridge, so called. He owned the farm that Mr. David

Fulton now resides upon, where he resided for a number of years, in

a house that stood nearly opposite Mr. Samuel J. Blair's house. He
was married to Janet Scovil, of New England, 1751. Mr. Scovil,

Janet's father, lived until he was 116 years old, and walked 30 miles

in one day, a week before he died,

David Dickey, their eldest son, was born in Massachusetts, U. S.,

in 1752. He was married to Martha, daughter of Ephraim Howard

and Sarah Blair, his wife. They had four sons and four daughters.

He settled at Lower Stewiacke, south of the river and interval, and

on the west side of the old Halifax road. On this place he spent the

remainder of his days. He was drowned from a boat on the Shuben-

acadie Eiver, October, 1818. His first wife died in 1807. He was

married again to !Mrs. Rebecca Rowland. They had one son and two

daughters. Janet the eldest son of David and Martha Dickey, was

on a load of hay when she was small, and fell and the wheel went

over her body. She was not missed by her father until he went to

his barn. He returned to look for his child and found her dead.

Mr. Dickey's second wife died April 7th, 1866, aged 84 years.

James, another son of Adam and Janet Dickey, was married to

Elizabeth, the eldest daughter of William and Janet Kennedy, about

the year 1781. They had three sons and two daughters. He settled

at the South Branch of Stewiacke. He and William Putnam built

the first mill that was built there. On August 22nd, 1793, Mr. John

Johnson came with his graia to the mill ; Mr. Dickey left his house,

which stood on the west side of the Branch, to go to the mill, which

was on the east side. His son James, who was about eight or ten

years old, went with him ; as they were crossing the stream on a raft

made of poles, it was supposed that the boy fell into the stream, and

the father went in to try and save his son. In a short time after

they were found both drowned. Mr. Dickey was a good swimmer.

He left a widow and four young children to bemoan their sudden and

sad bereavement. William Dickey, their son, was bom^in 1784. He
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was married to Eleanor, second daughter of Archibald and Sarah

Gammell. They had two sons and two daughters. He died Febru-

ary 21st, 1872, aged 87 years. Adam Dickey, their other son, was.

born 1786. He was married to Elizabeth McNutt, of Lower

Stewiacke, in 1812. They had one son and one daughter. They

removed to St. Andrews, K R, about the year 1814. He died there

some time ago.

WiUiam, the third son of Adam and Janet Dickey, was born

1761. He was married to Hannah, daughter of Ephraim Howard

and Sarah Blair, about 1788. They had two sons and five daughters.

They settled on the south side of the River at Lower Stewiacke. He

died there January 1846, aged 84 years. His widow died May, 1854,

aged 95 years. Mary, the eldest daughter of Adam and Janet

Dickey, was married to Thomas Croker.. They had tliree sons and

five daughters. He was one of the eight who settled first in Upper

Stewiacke, in the spring of 1784. Mr. Croker died there January

14th, 1829, aged 78 years. Eleanor, the second daughter of Adam
and Janet Dickey, was born in 1754. She was married to David

Whidden, September 29th, 1774. They had three sons and one

daughter. She died at Maitland, August 1st, 1828, aged 74 years.

Mr. Whidden died October 1st, 1824, aged 76 years.

Janet, third daughter of Janet and Adam Dickey, was married to

James Kennedy in 1790. They had five sons and three daughters.

She died July, 1825. Mr. Kennedy died in Upper Stewiacke, May
28th, 1&45, aged 82 years. Isabell, their fourth daughter, removed

to the United States, and was married there to a Mr. Anderson.

Elizabeth Dickey, their fifth daughter, was born in Truro, January

23rd, 1763. She was manued to Isaac Miller, December 12th, 1782.

They had three sons and six daughters. She died December 20th

1803, aged 40 years. Mr. Miller died November 4th, 1825, aged 75

years. Mr. Dickey's first wife, Janet, died. He was married again

to Margaret, daughter of John Fulton and Sarah Wright, NoA^ember

19th, 1782. Sarah Wright Dickey, their only daughter, was born

October 1st, 1783. She was married to Alexander, second son of

David and Martha Fulton, of Stewiacke, November 28th, 1815.

They had three sons and one daughter. She died August 18th, 1863,

aged 80 years. Mr. Fulton died July 22nd, 1825. Adam Dickey

died April 6th, 1800. His second wife, Margaret, died December

5th, 1825, aged 76 years.

David Dickey (brother of Adam) was another of tlie first settlers.
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of Truro, and a Grantee of the Township. He was married before he

came to Nova Scotia. David and Samuel, twin sons of David and

Mary Dickey, were born in Truro, April 29th, 1763. Samuel died

when he was young. David was married to Euth Wetherby. They

had six sons and three daughters. He settled in Musquodoboit, on

the farm now occupied by Mr. Dickey, son of Thomas Dickey, of

Middle Stewiacke. He was generally known by the name of Yankee

Davie. Euth, his first wife, died in 1816. He was married again to

Ann, daughter of John and Alice Archibald, widow of the late John

Kennedy, of Middle Stewiacke, February, 1823. He died IN'ovember,

1852, aged 89 years. His widow died at Pleasant VaUey, October,

1868, aged 86 years.

Eobert Dickey (brother of Adam and David), was another of the

first settlers of Truro, and Grantee of the Township. His house was

on the north side of the road, and east of Charles Cox's lot. It is

now owned by Messrs. "Watsons. Martha Dickey, their only

daughter, was born in the year 1756. She was married to David

Fisher about the year 1776. They had eight sons and three daughters.

She died December 22nd, 1848, aged 87 years. Her husband died

in Middle Stewiacke, March 18th, 1834, aged 82 years.

e^^tS^^

CHAPTEE XLVIII.

Charles McKay was another Grantee of Truro Township. He

was married to Agnes Dickey before they came to ]S"ova Scotia.

John, their son, was born in Truro, January 31st, 1763. David

McKay, J[;heir son, was born in Truro, April 25th, 1765. Mr. McKay

and family returned to N"ew England. He left his back lands in

Truro undisposed of, and others have taken possession of them, and

settled on some of them.
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CHAPTEE XLIX,

• Jolm Fulton was another of the early settlers of Truro, and a

Grantee of the Township. His house lot was the one on which the

Presbyterian Church now stands, extending north to the interval.

His front wood lot was on the east side, adjoining Young Street. He
Avas horn in Ireland, in the year 1728. He was married to Sarah

Wright in JSTew England, in the year 1748. John Fulton, their

eldest son, was born in N'ew England, in the year 1753. He inherited

his father's farm in Truro Village. He purchased Adam Dickey's

farm, and lived on it for a number of years, in the house that stood

nearly ojiposite Mr. Samuel J. Blair's, on the interval of Salmon

Eiver. He built a new house in the village, which is still standing,

west of Mr. James A. Hamilton's. He removed into this house about

the year 1812, where he died a bachelor November 20th, 1833, aged

80 years. He owned considerable of property at the time of his death.

John Fulton, Senr,, died September 6th, 1810, aged 82 years. His

wife died December 15th, 1799, aged 74 years.

Margaret, the eldest daughter of John and Sarah Fulton, was born

in 1749. She was married to Adam Dickey, ISTovember lOtli, 1782.

They had one daughter. She died December 5th, 1825, aged 76

years. Her husband died April 6th, 1800. Sarah, the second

daughter of John and Sarah Fulton, was born in 1756. She was

married to James McLellan. Jane, their third daughter, was born in

1759. She was married to Jolin Boggs, about the year 1783. They

had one son and one daughter. She died April 20th, 1792, aged 32

years. Mary Fulton, their fourth daughter, was born in Truro,

January 1st, 1762. She was married to Daniel Drew, about the

year 1783. They had sons and daughters. ^Ir. Drew lived in a

house that stood near the place on which Mr. John A. Tucker now
resides. Mrs. Drew died February 11th, 1800, aged 38 years.

David Fulton, their second son, was born in Truro, Jime 25th,

1 765. Ho removed with seven others, and settled in Upper Stewiacke,

in the spring of the year 1784. He settled on the f!\rm on which

Alexander Steel now resides. He was married to Martha, daughter

of John Ellis, November 8th, 1787. Sarah Fulton, their eldest

daughter, was born October 8th, 1788. She died unmarried, August

31st, 1818, aged 30 years. Elizabeth, the second daughter of David
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and Martha Fiilton, was born in Stewiacke, DecemlDer 15th, 1789.

She was married to John Dean, of Musquodohoit. They had five

sons and three daughters. She died in August, 1858, aged 68 years.

Mr. Dean died in June, 1843. John Fulton, their eldest son, was

born September 10th, 1791. He inherited a part of his father's farm.

He died a bachelor November 3rd, 1855, aged 64 years.

Alexander Fidton, their second son, was born October 26th, 1793.

He was married to Sarah Wright, only daughter of Adam and Margaret

Dickey, of Truro, November 28th, 1815. He removed to Truro, and

took his uncle, John Fulton's, farm, where he continued the remainder

of his life. He died in Truro, July 22nd, 1825, aged 31 years. His

widow died at her son's, Adam Fulton, of Stewiacke, August 18th,

1863. Her remains were brought to Truro and interred beside the

remains of her husband.

Margaret, the eldest daughter of Alexander and Sarah Fulton, was

born January 22nd, 1817. She was married to David, son of ^Jacob

Wright and Mary Fxdton, January 16th, 1854. David, the eldest

son of Alexander and Sarah Fulton, was born December 8th, 1818.

He was married to Eliza Johnson, of Stewiacke, January r4th, 1841.

They have tliree sons and two daughters. He inherits a part of what

was his grandfather's farm. John, the second son of Alexander and

Sarah Fulton, was born March 23rd, 1821. He died August 26th,

1822. Adam, their third son, was born February 28th, 1824. He
was married to Janet Power, March 5th, 1850. They had two sons

and five daughters. He inherits what was his father's farm in Upper

Stewiacke. Jane, the third daughter of David and Martha Fulton,

was born June 1st, 1796. She was married to Charles Dean,

of Musquodohoit, April, 1840. They had two daughters. She died

July, 1860, aged 64 years. Mary Fulton, their fourth daughter, was

born November 20th, 1798. She was married to Jacob Wright,

December 7th, 1825. They had three sons and three daughters.

She died August 12th, 1854, aged 55 years, Martha Fulton, their

fifth daughter, was born October 16th, 1801. She died August 15th,

1818, aged 17 years. David Fulton, their third son, was born June

8th, 1804. He was married to Hannah Prescott, daughter of Hugh
Graham and Janet Kennedy, March, 1844. They had nine sons and

three daughters. They reside on the south side of the interval?

opposite Upper StcAviacke VUlage, Eebecca, the sixth and youngest

daughter of David and Martha Fulton, was born October 30th, 1810.

She was married to George Steel (an Englishman), March 3rd, 1830.
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They had two sons and two daughters. They now inherit what was

her father's farm, in Upper Stewiacke. Samuel, the third and

youngest son of John and Sarah Fulton, was born in 1767. He
removed to Ohio, U. S., when he was a young man, and has not been

heard from since.

qj^ilj^

CHAPTER L,

The Township of Londonderry, Kew Hampshire, was settled

previous to the year 1718 by sixteen families. On the 26th of March,

1718, a petition was signed by three hundred and nineteen persons,

of Londonderry, Ireland, to Samuel Suitte, Governor of I^ew England,

asking him to protect them and their families. These persons arrived

in ITew Hampshire the same year ; and a large number of them were

the forefathers of those who first settled Colchester and other parts

of IS'ova Scotia. Among them, we find the names of Cook, Dunlap,

Blair, Paterson, Wilson, Campbell, "Wright, King, Christie, McKeen,

Smith, Henderson, Boyd. Johnson, Flemniing, Murdoch, Alexander,

Craig, Kennedy, Hunter, Watson, Millar, Caldwell, Moor, and

Thompson.

On Aprd 12th, 1719, the first sermon was preached to these

settlers of Londonderry, 1^. H., by the Eev. James McGregor, under

the wide-spreading branches of a venerable oak, which, for more than

a century after, marked the spot. Then, for the first time, did this

wilderness and solitary place, over which savage tribes had roamed for

centuries, resound with the voice of prayer and praise, and echo

the sound of the glorious Gospel. The text was chosen from Isaiah

32nd chapter and 2nd verse—" And a man shaU be as a hiding-place

from the wind, and a covert from the tempest ; as rivers of water

in a dry place ; as the shadow of a great rock in a weary land."

James McKeen, ancestor of aU the McKeens that came to I^ew

England and Nova Scotia, lived in the North of Ireland. He was a

staunch Protestant, and took an active part in the defence of London-

derry in the years 1688 and 1689. He and his brother John were

partners in business. They resided in Ballymony, and became

comparatively wealthy.

James McKeen, his eldest son with his second wife, Annis
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Cai^ill, and family, came to America ia the year 1718, and settled in

Londonderry, New Hampshire. Here he was an active, leading man

for many years. He was the first Justice of the Peace in London-

derry; his Commission is dated April 29th, 1720, and was in a state

of good preseryation in 1850, in the possession of his grandson, Eev.

Silas McKeen of Bradford, Vermont. He was born in Ireland in the

year 1666, and died in Londonderry, N. H., l^ovember 9th, 1756, in

the nintieth year of his age. His widow, Annis Cargill, died August

8th, 1782, aged 93 years.

John, the eldest son of James and Annis McKeen, was born in

Ballymony, Ireland, April 13th, 1714. He was an elder in the

Presbyterian Church in Londonderry, !N". H. He was a representa-

tive in the Legislature, and held several other civil offices in the

town. He married Mary McKeen, daughter of his uncle John, and

had a large family.

James McKeen, their eldest son, was married to '!Miss Cunning-

ham. Soon after their marriage they removed to Peterborough,

where he died in 1790, His son Levi McKeen removed to the State

of E"ew York, 1 790, where he went by the name of Judge INIcKeen for

many years. He filled a number of responsible offices in the State.

Eev. Joseph McKeen, D. D., was the third son of John McKeen,

and grandson of James McKeen, Esq., who emigrated to iJsTew

Hampshire, 1718. He was born in Londonderry, N. H., October

15th, 1757. When quite young he manifested a strong desire to

obtain a liberal education. "With this end in view, he con-

tinued to prosecute his studies until the year 1775, when he

joined the army as a private soldier to fight for independence.

After the war was over, he again resumed his studies ; and,

in a short time, was licensed by the Presbytery of Londonderry

to preach the everlasting Gospel. After preaching some time in

Boston, he was called to take charge of a congregation in Beverly,

Mass. He accepted the caU, and was ordained in May, 1785. Here

he continued to labour as a minister of Christ for seventeen years,

when he was called to the office of President of Bowden College. His

inauguration took place on the second day of September, 1802. There

being no church in the village, the people used to assemble in a grove

^

not idolatrously, Ave presume ; and then he woidd conduct the worship

of God, under the blue canopy of heaven, shaded from the scorching

sun by the beautiful trees, grander than any modern church.

Dr. McKeen was, in person, above the ordinary stature, and of
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noble appearance. He was dignified, yet simple, gentle and affixble ia

his manners. His walk and conversation, in the chnrch and in the

world, were becoming and consistent. As a pnbHc speaker, his voice

was clear and strong. He managed the affairs of the college in such

a way as to give general satisfaction, until Sej)tember, 1805, when he

was laid aside by illness. He bore his sickness with Christian

submission and fortitude. Towards the close of his life, the fifty-first

Psalm was Ms favourite subject of meditation and conversation.

Deeply sensible of past sins, he rehed on the free and sovereign grace

of God in Christ Jesus. He fell asleep in Jesus, July 15th, 1807,

aged 52 years.

John, the brother of James MeKeen, Esq., intended to emigrate

with him. He died, however, a short time before the vessel sailed.

His widow, Janet, with her four children, came to America with

James.

Her son, John McKeen, Esq., was another of the early settlers of

Truro. He was a Grantee of the Township. Two of his sons, William

and John, were Grantees also. Their tlu-ee house lots were adjoining

each other, and are now o-vvned by Jas. F. Blanchard, Esq., J. L.

Crow, Esq., Dr. Charles Bent, Mr. George Gunn, James Berrell, Esq.,

Mr. Charles B. Archibald, and a number of others, extending the

same breadth north to the interval. They all resided on these lots

for a short time. John McKeen, Esq., was born in Ireland in the

year 1700. His wife, Martha Cargill, was born in 1707. They

were married in 1741, and had three sons and two daughters, who
came to Nova Scotia with them in the year 1760. Mr. and Mrs.

McKeen both died in one day, December 30th, 1767.

WiUiam, the eldest son of John and Martha McKeen, was born

in 1745. He was married to Ann, the second daughter of David
Archibald, Esq., and Elizabeth Elliott, October 3rd, 1771. He sold

out his property in the Village about the year 1780, and purchased

the Mill site and Mills which were owned by Alexander Miller and

Capt. John Morrison. Here he resided and carried on Milling until

the spring of the year 1815. He then sold out in Truro to Mr. John
McDougall, and removed to Musquodoboit, where he continued a

number of years. He died there in 1826. His wife was deprived of

her sight for a number of years before they left Truro. She died at

Mabou, Cape Breton, in the house of her son Samuel in 1836, aged

84 years. ]\Iartha, the eldest daughter of William and Ann McKeen,
was born in Truro, September 26th, 1772. She died February 5th,
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1773. He followed the sea when he was a young man. He served

some time on hoard a ship of war as carpenter. He returned home

ahout the year 1811. He was married to Isabell Thomson in 1812.

They settled beside the old Halifax road, about three miles south of

Gay's Eiver, where they kept an um, and spent the remainder of their

lives. He died there June, 1857, aged 83 years. His wife died in

Halifax, July 16th, 1834, Eliza Ann McKeen, their eldest daughter,

was born May 28th, 1813. She was married to James Etter of

Halifax, August 7th, 1834. They had five sons and three daughters.

They settled at Shubenacadie, where he died July, 1869. Margaret

McKeen, their second daughter, was born March 25th, 1815. She

was married to Samuel Kerr, April, 1846. They had two sons and

three daughters. "William McKeen, their eldest son, was born

February, 1817. He was married to Jane Keys. They 'had three

sons and six daughters. James Alexander, the second son of John

and Isabell McKeen, was born in 1819. He died a bachelor in 1848.

Isabell Thomson McKeen, their third daughter, was born March 10th,

1821. She was married to William, the eldest son of David and

Martha Whipple, of Onslow, ISTovember 7th, 1839. • They had three

sons and eight daughters, John McKeen, their third son, was born

May 20th, 1824. He learned the trade of saddler and harness

maker with John McKeen, of Mabou, C. B. He removed to the

United States, was married there, and had two sons and one daughter.

On May 12th, 1859, some man forced into his shop, dragged him to

the door, and stabbed him with a knife, causing instant death. His

wife died about the year 1861. David McKeen, their fourth son,

was bom October, 1826. He was married to Elizabeth Irvin, of

Musquodoboit. They had four sons and two daughters. Mrs. Mc-

Keen died, and he was married again to Isabell Irvin. They had

three sons and one daughter. Caroline McKeen, their fourth daughter,

was married to Adam Benvey, of Mabou, C. B., August, 1860.

Hiivinia L. McKeen, their fifth daughter, removed to the United

States, and was married there to Frank Taylor. They had three

daughters. !Mr. Taylor died, and she was married again to William

Mullon. Martha, the eldest daughter of John McKeen, Esq., was

born in 1742. She was married in the States, and remained there.

David, the second son of WiUiam and Ann McKeen, was bom in

Truro, July 31st, 1775. He was married to Diana Huchinson, 1801.

They settled at Musquodoboit. He carried on milling at the same

place that James and Matthew Archibald's mills now stand. His
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first Avife died there in February, 1811. He was married again to

Susan, daughter of John and Ann Logan, of Truro, 1811. She died,

of consumption, in 1813. He was married the third time to Lucy,

daughter of Ebenezer Hoar and Catherine Downing, of Onslow, widow

of the late Thomas Taylor, March, 1818. He died in July, 1824.

After his death, his widow and children returned to Truro, and resided

on her first husband's farm, until about the year 1843. She then

removed to Pictou town with her sons, Thomas and Ebenezer McKeen,

where she died October 4th, 1847. John, the eldest son of David

and Diana McKeen, was born May 7th, 1802. He served with Mr.

Alexander Knight, of Truro, and learned the trade of saddle and

harness making. He removed to 'Mabou. C. B. He was married

there to Grace Smith, !N'ovember 9th, 1826. They had four sons and

four daughters. Mrs. McKeen died February 13th, 1870. William

McKeen, their second son, was born May 27th, 1804. He removed

to Mabou also. He was married there to Eebecca Smith, about the

year 1830. They had two sons and seven daughters. He died there

March 26th, 1867. David McKeen, their third son, was born August

6th, 1806. He was married to Susan Higgins, of Musquodoboit,

January 5th. 1831. They had seven daughters. Mr. McKeen,

Joseph Parker, James Higgins and John Eead, went together to a

lake south of Musquodoboit to fish. By some means they were

thrown from their boat or raft into the lake, and were aU found

drowned, June 13th, 1851. Ann, the only daughter of David and

Diana McKeen, was born June 4th, 1808. She died at Mabou,

C. B., February, 1827, aged 19 years.

Susan, the only daughter of David and Lucy McKeen, was born

June, 1819. She was married to Thomas Nelson, of Musquodoboit,

in 1840. They had one son and two daughters. She died about the

year 1848. Thomas, the eldest son of David and Lucy McKeen, was

born in 1821. He learned the trade of tanning and shoe] making

with Major A. L. Archibald, of Truro. He removed to Pictou town,'

and carried on his business there for a number of years. He then

removed to Cape Breton, where he still resides. He was married in

Pictou to Mary Roach, May, 1849. They had four sons and seven

daughters. Ebenezer McKeen, their second and youngest son, was

born in 1823. He removed to Pictou with his mother and brother

Thomas. He died there June, 1847, aged 24 years.

Margaret, the second daughter of William and Ann McKeen, was

born in Truro, September 18th, 1777. She died when young.
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James, their third son, was bom April 10th, 1779. He removed

to Cape Breton, and was married to Eliza Scott, of Musquodoboit,

August, 1824. They had four sons and two daughters. He died at

Mabou, C. B., in 1847, aged 68 years. His widow and family

removed to the United States. Mrs. McKeen died there in 1853.

Elizabeth, the third daughter of William and Ann McKeen, removed

to Musquodoboit with her parents and family. She died there

unmarried, July 1851. Margaret McKeen, their fourth daughter, was

born in Truro, 1786. She was married to Eobert Higgias, of

Musquodoboit. They had two sons and two daughters. She died

July, 1860.

"William McKeen, their fourth son, was bom in Truro, August

18th, 1789, He left home when a young man and went to Pictou

for a while, when the timber trade was brisk there. He returned

and went to Musquodoboit, where he was married to Elizabeth

McDougall, July, 1811; and, soon after, they removed to

Mabou, C. B., where he carried on a large business as a merchant

and farmer. They had five sons and six daughters. His first wife

died December 18th, 1834. He was married again to Christiann

Smith in April, 1835. They had five sons and seven daughters. He
was a member of the Legislative Council of Nova Scotia for a number

of years before his death. He died May 17th, 1865, aged 76 years.

Martha McKeen, their fifth daughter, was born in 1792. She was

married to Samuel Benvey, of Musquodoboit, about 1820. They had

five sons and five daughters. Mr. Benvey died in March, 1841, aged

50 years. A few years after the death of her husband, she removed

with her family to Cape Breton.

Samuel, the fifth and youngest son of William and Ann McKeen,

was bom in Truro, August 25th, 1794. He removed with his parents

and the rest of the family to Musquodoboit, in 1815. He was married

there to Jane Higgins, in 1818. They had four sons and two

daughters. He removed to Cape Breton. His wife died there April

10th, 1865. He was married again to Mrs. Mary Eoss, of Margaree,

March, 1871.

John, the second son of John and Martha McKeen, was bom
before they came to Nova Scotia, in 1747. In the after part of his

life, he went by the name of Captain McKeen. He was married to

Eachel, daughter of Lieut. John and Sarah Johnson, December 30th,

1769. He resided a large portion of his life in a house which stood

near the place where Mr, Tremain now resides. Mr. William Logan,
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his neighbour, was passing the house of Mr. McKeen, who was husily

engaged chopping wood. Mr. Logan said to him, you are hard at

work this morning, Mr. McKeen. Mr. McKeen rephed :
" yes ; it

has become a second nature'for me to work." Mr. Logan repUed : I'm

glad of it, for it was never your first. His first wife, Eachel, died

December 3rd, 178L He was married again to Eachel Duncan,

widow of the late Samuel Archibald, 2nd, February 12th, 1783. In

his old days, he removed to St. Mary's, to live with his youngest son,

William, and his wife remained in Truro. Once he said that he

travelled all the way from St. Mary's to Truro to see his wife, and

when he came he could not see her. He'had lost his sight a few years

l^efore. He died at St. Mary's. His second wife died in Truro,

January 20th, 1814. aged 71 years.

John, the eldest son of Captain John and Rachel McKeen, was

born in Truro, December 30th, 1770. He was married to Ehzabeth,

the third daughter of Dr. John Harris and Elizabeth Scott, December,

1798. (They were the first whom Mr. Waddell married after he came

to Truro.) He settled and cleared a small part of the farm that Mr.

Hugh Clarke now resides upon. He sold this farm to Samuel Clark

in 1805. He removed to St. Mary's, and continued there until 1817.

He then removed to Tatamagouche Mountain, where he and his sons

reclaimed their farms from the forest. He died there October 17th,

1854, aged 84 years. His wife died there January Gth, 1820, aged

45 years. Rachel McKeen, their eldest daughter, was born January

13th, 1800. She was married to Hiram Downing, December 31st,

1829. They had two sons and two daughters. She died March,

1835, aged 35 years. John McKeen, their eldest son, was born May
31st, 1802. He inherited a part of his father's property on Tatama-

gouche Mountain, where he died a bachelor October 20th, 1857, aged

55 years. Sarah McKeen, their second daughter, was born January

14th, 1804. She was married to Peter Teed, Esq., of Wallace,

December, 1827, She died March, 1856, aged 52 years. On
November 12th, 1848, Mr. Teed was burned to death in his barn,

trying to save a Avaggon. Martha McKeen, their third daughter, was

lx)rn November 22nd, 1806. She was married to Richard Wooden (a

school teacher), November 13th, 1824. They had three sons and

three daughters. She died April, 1865, aged 58 years. Her husband

died October, 1858. William McKeen, their second son, was born

October 16th, 1808. He was married to Amelia, the third daughter

of James Drysdale and Nancy Brown, March, 1833. Mrs. McKeen
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died July 3rd, 1833, aged 16 years. He was married again to Jane,

daughter of George and Sarah Crow, February, 1837. He died

October 16th, 1846, aged 38 years. His widow died in 1848. Eliza

McKeen, their fourth daughter, was born May 25th, 1810. She was

married to John, the eldest son of Joseph Mahon and Margaret Crow,

December 24th, 1833. They had three sons and two daughters.

Mr. Mahon died October 10th, 1858. Margaret McKeen, their Mth
daughter, was born April 25th, 1812. She was married to John, the

eldest son of James and l^ancy Drysdale, March 20th, 1845. They
had three sons and one daughter. They reside on Tatamagouche

Mountain. Maria McKeen, their sixth daughter, was born February

28th, 1815. She was married to Adam Armstrong, of Chiganoise,

March 20th, 1851. They had one son. ^Mr. Armstrong died Febru-

ary 28th, 1864. Susan, their seventh daughter, was born April 6th,

1817. James McKeen, their third and youngest son, was bom May
17th, 1819. He was married to Abigail, daughter of George and

Sarah Crow, March 20th, 1845. They had sons and daughters. He
resides on Tatamagouche Mountain.

Martha Cargill, the eldest daughter of Captain John and Eachel

McKeen, was born in Truro, October 26th, 1772.

James, the second son of Captain John and Rachel McKeen, was

born in Truro, N"ovember 28th, 1774. He died AprQ 19th, 1791,

aged 16 years. Samuel McKeen, their third son, was born April 17th,

1777. He was married to Sarah, daughter of John and Ann Logan,

June 16th, 1803. They had three sons and one daughter. About

the year 1845, as he was riding home on horseback, he fell from his

horse, and was taken up dead. His widow died in 1866, in St.

Mary's, where they had resided from about the time they were

married.

Adam McKeen, their fourth son, was born in Truro, September

17th, 1779. He was married to Janet, the eldest daughter of David

and Eleanor Taylor, August 15th, 1805. They had four sons and

four daughters. They removed to St. Mary's, where they settled, and

spent the remainder of their days. He died there, and Mrs. McKeen

died. Rachel, the youngest daughter of John and Rachel McKeen,

was born December 3rd 1781. She was married to Thomas Johnson,

of the Lower Village of Truro, September 20th, 1804. They had

two sons. Mr. Johnson died in 1809. She was married again to

Andrew Yuill, October 22nd, 1811. They had one son. She died

April 18th, 1813, aged 31 years. William, the only son of John

21
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McKeen and Eachel Archibald, his second wife, was horn in Truro,

June 4th, 1786. He settled at St. Mary's. He was married there

to Miss Kirk, in 1812. They had sons and daughters. He died

ahout 1862.

David the third son of John McKeen, Esq. , and Martha Cargill,

was born in 1749. He was married to Janet, daughter of Captain

Matthew Taylor and Elizabeth Archibald, Octobei 22nd, 1773. After

the death of James Fulton, and the removal of his sons to Stewiacke

and elsewhere, he purchased their place in the Lower Village of Truro,

being the place that Charles Crow now resides upon, also the lot that

Samuel Soley now resides upon. Here he settled, and built a mill

up the brook. Shortly after, a heavy freshet came and carried it

away, which discouraged him so much that he removed to St. Mary's,

and settled on the farm on which Mr. Samuel Archibald now resides,

two miles up the West Eiver, above the Forks. He settled there in

1802. In August, 1818, he came to Truro to have a cancer cut out

of his lip. The operation was successfully performed, and he returned

home, apparently quite well ; but, about eleven years after, it broke

out again, and he died in 1830. His wife died in 1820. John

CargUl McKeen, their eldest son, was born in Truro, April 15th,

1775. He was married to Sabrina, daughter of Colonel Atwater, of

Guysborough, November 1st, 1808. They had seven sons and one

daughter. He settled at Stdlwater, St. Mary's, where he spent the

remainder of his life. He died there in 1852, aged 77 years. His

wife died there about 1860. Matthew, the second son of David and

Janet McKeen, was born in Truro, March 11th, 1777. He died

November 17th, 1790, aged 13 years. William McKeen, their third

son, was born February 10th, 1779. He died in the Lower Village

in 1798. Elizabeth, the eldest daughter of David and Janet McKeen,

was born in Truro, February 2nd, 1781. She was married to James

McLain, about 1804. They settled for a time on the south-west side

of the St. Mary's Eiver, at the Forks. Eosannah McKeen, their

second daughter, was bom in Truro, November 30th, 1783. She was

married to James, third son of James Archibald, Esq., and Eebecca

Barnhill, October, 1808. They had one son and two daughters. She

died October 30th, 1814, aged 31 years. Samuel McKeen, their

fourth son, was born in Truro, February 11th, 1786. He was married

to Elizabeth, daughter of John and Nancy Taylor, of St. Mary's, June,

1809. They had two sons. Mrs. McKeen died in 1814. He was

married again to Miss Glencross, in 1815. He settled up the West
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Hiver of St. Mary's. He died there about the year 1826, aged 40

years. His wife died there too. David McKeen, their fifth son, was

born in Truro, May 22nd, 1788. He was married to Miss McKenzie

in 1811. They had sons and daughters. He removed to Ohio, U. S.,

with his family, about the year 1820. Eobert, the sixth son of David

and Janet McKeen, was born in the Lower Village of Truro, in 1790.

He became somewhat insane. Shortly after James Archibald was

married to his sister, Eosannah, and had removed to Stewiacke, his

attachment to his sister was so strong that he started from St. Mary's

and found his way through the woods to Stewiacke. His friends

followed him ; and. when takitig him home again, he got away from

them into the woods, and was never heard of after. He was 19 years

old at the time. James McKeen, their seventh son, was born in

1792. He removed to Ohio, U. S., when he was a young man.

Matthew McKeen, their eighth son, was bom in 1794. He removed

to Ohio, U. S., when he was a young man. Margaret, daughter of

John and Martha McKeen, was born in 1751, before they came to

ifova Scotia. She was married to James Fisher, February 12th,

1772. They had two sons and three daughters, bom in Truro. They

removed to St. Mary's. She died there in 1817. Her husband died

in the year 1812,

CHAPTER LI.

"William Fisher was among the early settlers of Truto. He was

born in Londonderry, Ireland, in 1716. He was married to Eleanor

Archibald about the year 1743. They removed to Londonderry. Ifev^

Hampshire, about this time. They removed again to Truro with the

Archibalds and others, in December, 1762. He was a Grantee of the

Township. He was the first Town Clerk of Truro after it was settled

by the British. He was one of the seven elders of the Church who

were elected in the summer of the year 1 770. He took his seat in the

House of Assembly June 6th, 1770, and represented Truro five years.

He resided on the interval of Salmon River. His house stood near

the place that Thomas Blair's house now stands. He died there

June 6th, 1777, aged 61 years.

John Fisher, their eldest son, was bom in New Hampshire, March
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4th, 1744, He came with his parents to Nova Scotia. He was a

Grantee of Truro. He was. married to Elizabeth Cowley in 1763,

He was one of the seven who removed to Upper Musquodoboit in the

spring of the year 1784. Shortly after they settled in Musqnodoboit

there was a moose crossing the field of this Mr. Fisher ; his wife took

the gun and shot and wounded him so badly that the men followed

after and got him. He died at Musquodoboit, March 2nd, 1818,

aged 74 years. His widow died November 6th, 1826, aged 83 years.

Josiah Fisher, their eldest son, was bom in Truro, September, 1764.

Eleanor Fisher was bom February 14th, 1767. Janet Fisher, their

second daughter, was born July 5th, 1769. Margaret Fisher, their

third daughter, was bom August 22nd, 1771. Elizabeth Taylor

Fisher, their fourth daughter, was born June 2nd, 1773. William

Handcock Fisher, their second son, was bom June 29th, 1775.

Sarah Milliken Fisher, their fifth daughter, was bom June 25th,

1777. Hannah Fisher, their sixth daughter, was born August 27th,

1779. Euth Fisher, their seventh daughter, was born July 29th, 1781.

They had two other daughters. George Fisher, their third son, was

born, lived and died in Musquodoboit. Eobert Fisher, their fourth

and youngest son, was bom April 28th, 1790. He was married to

Susan K. Dean, April 1st, 1829. They had sons and daughters.

They now (January, 1873) reside near the Shubenacadie Eiver, on

the east side.

James, the second son of William and Eleanor Fisher, was born

in 1746. He was married to Margaret, daughter of John Mc-

Keen, Esq., and Martha CargiU, Febraary 12th, 1772, He was a

Grantee of Truro, although he was but nineteen years old at the date

of the grant. He was one of the seven who removed to Upper

Musquodoboit in the spring of the year 1784. He removed again to

St. Mary's, where he spent the remainder of his days. He died there

about the year 1812, aged 66 years. His wife died about the year

1817. William Fisher, their eldest son, was bom in Truro,

December 30th, 1772. Martha Fisher, the eldest daughter, was born

January 11th, 1775. Eleanor Fisher, their second daughter, was born

in Truro, Febmary 10th, 1777. John McKeen Fisher was born in

Truro, May 15th, 1779. Jane Fisher, their third daughter, was born

in Truro, May 5th, 1781.

Samuel, the third son of William and Eleanor Fisher, was bom in

New Hampshire in 1750. He came with his parents to Nova Scotia,

He was a Grantee of Truro Township. He was married to ^tary
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Langell, December 24tli, 1778. He removed to Musqxiodoboit with

his two brothers in the spring of the year 1784. Sarah Fisher, their

eldest daughter, was born in Truro, J line 23rd, 1779- Mary Fisher,

their second daughter, was born in Truro, May 8th, 1781. They had

three sons and three daughters after they left Truro.

David, the fourth son of William and Eleanor Fisher, was born in

New Hampshire in 1752. He was brought by his parents to Nova

Scotia when he was ten years old. His name is among the Grantees

of Truro Township, although he was but thirteen y^ars old at the

date of the grant. He was married to Martha, the only daughter of

Eobert Dickey, about the year 1776. They had eight sons and three

daughters. They removed to Middle Stewiacke in the fall of the year

1782 (when their second son, Eobert, was about one and a half years

old). They settled on the same farm that their son Alexander now

resides upon, on the south side of the Eiver. He died there, March

18th, 1831, aged 82 years. His widow died December 22nd, 1843,

aged 87 years.

WHliam, the fifth son of WUliam and Eleanor Fisher, was born in

New Hampshire in 1756. He was brought by his parents to Nova

Scotia when he was six years old. He was married to Esther,

daughter of John and Mary Logan, February 14th, 1786. He
inherited his father's farm, on the iaterval of Salmon Eiver. He died

there ia 1811, aged 55 years. His widow was married again to

James Archibald, Esq., in 1820.

John Logan Fisher, their eldest son, was born February 19th,

1787. He inherited a part of his father's farm for a few years. He

built his first house on the same place that Mr. Daniel Cock's house

now stands. He was married to Elizabeth, the second daughter of

James and Eleanor Yuill, of Old Barns, in 1812. She died a short

time after. He was married again to Esther, the eldest daughter of

"WUliam and Ann Flemming, of Truro, August 29th, 1816. They

had four sons. He died Deer. 28th, 1863, in the 77th year of his age.

William, the second son of William and Esther Fisher, was bom
ia Truro, April 23rd, 1789. He learned the blacksmith trade. He

removed to Musquodoboit, and was married there to Kezia Holdman,

in 1810. She died in Truro, June 14th, 1818, aged 28 years. He
removed to Pictou Town, where he carried on his business for a

number of years. He died there. Eleanor, the eldest daughter of

Wniiam and Esther Fisher, was born in Truro, June 12th, 1791.

She was married to George McNaught, of Upper Stewiacke, December
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13tli, 183&. She died August 27th, 1872, aged 81 years. Mary
Fisher, their second daughter, was born June 17th, 1793. She was

married to Alexander Ellis, of Stewiacke, December, 1815. They had

four sons and four daughters. She died January, 1869, aged 75 years.

Edward Logan Fisher, their third son, was born August 26th,

1795. He inherited his father's farm for a few years. He then

removed to Upper Stewiacke. He was married there to Mary
Winton, in 1826. They had seven sons and four daughters. He
died August 27th, 1872, aged 77 years. His wife died January 14th,

1849. JSTancy Eisher, their third daughter, was born I^ovember 26th,.

1799. She was married to John McDonald. They settled in

Georgetown, P. R I. They had two sons and two daughters. They
removed to the United States, where he died. She returned to the

Island again, where she died in the year 1866, aged 67 years. Sarah

Eisher, their fourth daughter, was born March 26th, 1801. She was

married to William, son of Charles Cox and ]M"ancy Thomson, January

20th, 1822. She died June 21st, 1823, aged 22 years. Mr. Cox was
married again to Olivia Thomson, February 24th, 1824. They had

two sons and one daughter. Mr. Cox died of small pox January

20th, 1828. His mdow was married again to Eleazar B. Dickey,

December 31st, 1833. They had two sons and four daughters.

Janet Eisher, their fifth daughter, was born May 24th, 1803. She

died May 10th, 1807. James Eisher, their fourth son, was born July

26th, 1806. He was married to Esther Millan. They had one son

and two daughters. He now resides in Musquodoboit, where he

carries on blacksmith work.

Margaret, the eldest daughter of WiUiam and Eleanor Fisher, was
born in 1747. She was married to John Archibald, second, March
4th, 1772. They had five sons and five daughters. She died May
12th, 1809, aged 62 years. Mr. Archibald died October 15th, 1813,

aged 66 years.

Elizabeth, the second daughter of William and Eleanor Fisher,

was born in 1754. She was married to James Hughes. They had

one son and one daughter. This daughter was married to James D.

iJ^'ash, August 15th, 1805, They had seven sons and seven daughters..

John D. Nash, Esq., of Halifax, was their eldest son. Mr. Nash died

in Truro, October 16th, 1837. His widow was married again to

Robert Fisher, of Middle Stewiacke. Hannah Eisher, their third

daughter, was born in 1758. She was married to Stewtly Horton.

They removed to Musquodoboit with her three brothers, in the spring
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of the year 1784, wliere they settled and spent the remainder of their

lives. Sarah Fisher, their fourth daughter, was horn, in 1760. She

was married to Arcliibald Gamniell, November 15th, 1782. They

had one son and six daughters. They removed to Upper Stewiacke,

about the year 1790, where they spent the remainder of their days.

Ruth Fisher, their fifth daughter, was born in Truro, February 7th,

1763, about two months after they arrived in Truro. She was married

to Matthew Johnson, of the Lower Village of Truro, in 1782. They

had seven sons and two daughters. They removed to Stewiacke in

the fall of the year 1783. She died at Pembroke, August 8th, 1825,

aged 62 years. Mr. Johnson died there January 20th, 1825, aged 68

years. Alexander McNutt Fisher, their sixth son, was born in Truro,

July 2nd, 1765. He had a part of his father's farm on the interval.

He sold it, and removed to Musquodoboit, where he spent the

remainder of his life. He was married to Janet, daughter of Robert

and Hannah Archibald, widow of the late WiUiam Logan, in 1798.

They had two sons and one daughter. Eleanor Fisher, their sixth

daughter, was born in Truro, August 23rd, 1767. She was married

to Robert Logan, in 1788. They had one son and one daughter.

She died in Stewiacke in 1792. He was married again to widow

Johnson in 1801. They had one son and one daughter. Mr. Logan

died December 31st, 1833, aged 70 years.

CHAPTER LII

John Jeffrey was another of the first settlers of Truro, and one of

the Grantees of the Township. He resided on his front land in the

Lower Village. His house stood in William McNutt's field, north of

the meeting house. He was married to Mary Trevois, Feb'y, 1779.

Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey died when their children were young. Mary

Jeffrey was born in Truro, December 9th, 1779. She was married to

William Brownrig, in 1797. They had three sons and two daughters.

Mr. Brownrig was lost at sea, from a vessel bound for the West

Indies with a cargo of lumber and horses, in 1810. She was married

again to William English. They had one daughter, who is now

the wife of William McLain, of Truro. Mr. English died, and she

removed to Pictou town, and died there January 19th, 1857, aged 77
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years. Jane Jeffrey, their second daiigliter, was "born in Truro,

September 8th, 1781, She was married to John Herron, of the

Lower end of Onslow. They had two sons and four daughters. She

died in 1870. Mr. Herron died, too. Elizaheth Jeffrey, their third

daughter, was born May 5th, 1783. She was manied to Mr. Mc-

Learn, of Hants County. Mr. McLearn died. She was married

again to Hugh Forbes, of the same place. She died there in April,

1871, aged 88 years. John Jeffrey, their eldest son, was bom April

5th, 1784. He was married to Janet, daughter of James Dickey and

Elizabeth Kennedy. They had five sons and three daughters. He
settled at South Branch of Stewiacke. He died at Brookfield April,

1864, aged 85 years. His wife died there, too. Sarah Jeffrey, their

fourth daughter, was born May 28th, 1786. She went with William

Long and family to Ohio, U. S. Margaret Jeffrey, their fifth

daughter, was born January 1st, 1788. She was married to John
Boomer, of Brookfield. They had six sons and two daughters. She
died August, 1831, aged 43 years. Mr. Boomer died June 15th,

1856. Margaret Jeffrey was brought up, and married at the house of

Mr. WiUiam Smith, of Truro, Joseph Jeffrey, their youngest son,

was born June 27th, 1790. He stopped a considerable time at Mr.

Smith's also. He enlisted and went off with the soldiers in 1811.

He never returned.

CHAPTEE LIIL

James Gourley was another of the first settlers of Truro, and a

Grantee of the Township. He resided on his front lands in the

Lower YiUage, where he spent the remainder of his life. He died

there about the year 1790, His wife, Catherine Stevenson, died July

5th, 1804, aged 90 years. He was married and had several children

before they came to J^ova Scotia, John Gourley, their eldest son,

was born in 1751. He was brought by his parents to Truro. He
was a Grantee of the Township, although he was but fourteen years

old at tbc date of the grant. He was lost at sea when he was a young
man.

Thomas, the second son of James and Catherine Gourley, was
born in New England, in 1752. He came with the family to Truro
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in 1761. His name is among the Grantees for the Township, being

but twelve years old at the date of the grant. He was married to

Jane, the only daughter of James Yuill, Esq., and Jane Bailey, in

1779. He inherited a large part of his father's property in the Lower

Village, where he spent the remainder of his life. On April 14th,

1821, he was engaged bidlding a breakwater to secure the bank of the

marsh above the Board-landing, when he fell and was taken up dead,

being 68 years old at the time. His widow died February 15th,

1828, aged 71 years. Thomas Gourley, their eldest son, was born in

Truro, in 1 780. He was married to Mehitable, daughter of William

and Dorothy Putnam, of Stewiacke, July 19th, 1809. They resided

for a short time in a house which stood at the Board-landing. They

removed and lived a short time in a house that stood where James N.

Crow, Esq., now resides. They removed again, in the year 1814, to

the South Branch of Stewiacke, where they spent the remainder of

their lives. They had three sons and five daughters. He died

November 8th, 1843, aged 63 years. His widow died in September,

1869. James, the second son of Thomas and Jane Gourley, was

born in 1782. He was married to Elizabeth Totton, of Chiganoise,

in 1810. They removed to Pictou town, and kept a house of enter-

tainment. They had one son and two daughters. He died in 1832,

aged 50 years. His widow was married again. She died in 1860.

Susan, the eldest daughter of Thomas and Jane Gourley, was born

January 2nd, 1784. She was married to Hugh Dnnlap, January

24th, 1805. They had two sons and six daughters. She died at

Stewiacke, N"ovember 22nd, 1857, in the 74th year of her age. Her

husband died September 6th, 1852, aged 79 years.

John, the third son of Thomas and Jane Gourley, was born

December 30th, 1784, He was married to Sarah, the eldest daughter

of Dumb Jolin Johnson and Margaret Davison, February 2nd, 1815.

He inherited the half of his father's farm. He died August 9th,

1836, aged 51 years. Eobert, the eldest son of John and Sarah

Gourley, was born November 12th, 1815. He removed to the State

of Illinois. He was married there, and had one son and one daughter.

He died there December 18th, 1849, aged 34 years. John Gourley,

their second son, was born March 5th, 1817. He removed to Shepody,

where he died December 10th, 1841, aged 24 years. Mary Gourley,

their eldest daughter, was born February 17th, 1819. She was

married to Joseph Peppard, of Londonderry. They had five sons and

four daughters. Mr. Peppard died April, 1866. Thomas Gourley,
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their third son, was born July 10th. 1821. He learned the blacksmith

trade with Mr. William McLeod. He was married to Margaret

Hamilton, of Onslow. Mrs. Gourley died October, 1868. He was

married again to Mary Hutchison, recently from England, July 20th,

1870. James Gourley, their fourth son, was born February 2nd,

1823. He learned the carpenter trade with Samuel J. Blair, of Truro.

He was married to Mary Ann Bentley, of Stewiacke, June, 1856.

They had two sons and two daughters. He and his brother Thomas

settled at Great Village, Londonderry, where they carry on a

considerable business as merchants and shipowners. George Gourley,

their fifth son, was born April 10th, 1825. He learned the tanning

business, and carried it on for a while at Great Village. He died

there January 12th, 1856, aged 30 years. William Gourley, their

sixth son, was born March 17th, 1827. He died September, 1828.

Eachel Gourley, their second daughter, was born April 20th, 1829.

She removed to the United States, and was married there to Augustus

F. Garland, October, 1856. They had one son. He died in 1859.

Margaret Gourley, their third daughter, was born July 20th, 1831.

She was married to Isaiah Peppard, May 4th, 1854. She died May,

1855. Hannah Gourley, their fourth daughter, was born September

1st, 1833. She was married to James Bland, of Wallace, in the

United States in 1853. They have four sons. Sarah Gourley, their

fifth daughter, was born August 29th, 1835. Sarah Johnson, widow
of John Gourley, was married to William Soley, November, 1837.

William Lawson Soley, their eldest son, was born March 12th, 1838.

He was married to Sarah, daughter of George S. and Esther Dickey,

April, 1865. They have one son. They have removed to the United

States. John Soley, their second son, was born April 29th, 1841.

He was married to Margaret Cormick, of Chatham, ISTew Brunswick,

May, 1869. They have one son and one daughter.

Stephen, the fourth son of Thomas and Jane Gourley, was born

in 1786. He died January, 1808, aged 21 years. Margaret Gourley,

their second daughter, was born in 1789. She died of consumption

iu the fall of the year 1815. Jane Gourley, their third daughter, was
born in 1791. She and her brother Stephen died of Typhus fever,

January, 1808, and were both interred at one time. Jesse Gourley,

their fifth son, was born November 15th, 1793. He was married to

INIary, the secoml daughter of James and Jane Laughead, November
8th, 1819. Mary Jane, their only daughter, was born May 8th,

1821. She was married to William P. Archibald, January 30th,
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1838. They had five sons and four daughters. Mrs. Archibald died

February 27th, 1857, aged 36 years. Mrs. Gourley died May 8th,

1821, the same day that her only daughter was born. He was married

again to Eunice McISTutt, June, 1825. Margaret Gourley, their only

daughter, was born September 9th, 1827. She was married to James

K CroAV, Esq., April 8th, 1845. They have four sons and one

daughter. They inherit what was her father's property. Mr. Gourley,

on the 27th day of March, 1871, was engaged chopping wood at his

door. He fell, and when taken up a few minutes after, life had

departed. He was in the 78th year of his age. Eunice, his second

wife, died Iklay 8th, 1862, aged 56 years. Catherine, the fourth

daughter of Thomas and Jane Gomiey, was born 1795. She was

married to Mr. Casey, October, 1828. They had one daughter. Mr.

Casey died, and she was married again to Mr. "Wedgewood, April,

1838. She died I^Tovember 3rd, 1867, aged 72 years. WiUiam

Gourley, their sixth son, was born in 1796. He died when he was

about six years old. Eobert Gourley, their seventh son, was born

1797., In 1815 he was at Pictou attending the Academy, and he

walked home to attend his brother's wedding. He returned to

Pictou, and very shortly after took ill. He died there March 5th,

1815, aged 18 years. His body was brought home for interment.

Eleanor Gourley, their fifth daughter, was born March 17th, 1799.

She was married to William YuiU, of Great Village, Londonderry,

February 11th, 1819. She had five sons and two daughters. Mr.

Yuill died September 29th, 1863. aged 82 years. Hannah Gourley,

their sixth daughter, was born March 11th, 1801. She was married

to James Dunlap, March 16th, 1826. They had one son and one

daughter, Mr. Dunlap died March 5th, 1856, aged 55 years.

"William Gourley, the fourth son of James and Catherine Gourley,

was born in New England in 1756, and brought by his parents to

Truro when he was six years old. He was married to Lydia

Hamilton in 1777. He resided in the Lower Village; his house

stood beside the road south of the school house. He followed the

sea, and was drowned in 1799. Catherine Gourley, their eldest

daughter, was born in Truro, October 29th, 1779. She was

married to Vinton Taylor. They had two sons and two

daughters. They removed to Ohio, U. S. John, the second son of

William and Lydia Gourley, was born August 22nd, 1781. He was

married to Elizabeth, the second daughter of Samuel Tupper, Esq.,

and Hannah Archibald, in 1807. They had two sons and four
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daughters. He settled "at the South Branch of SteAviacke. He died

there. Hannah Gourley, their second daughter, was born in Truro,

August 11th, 1783. She was married to Mr. McCabe, of Eiver John.

They had three sons and three daughters. She died in 1863.

Elizabeth Gourley, their third daughter, was born October 30th, 1785.

James, the eldest son of "William and Lydia Gourley, was born

November 7th, 1778. He was married to Susanna Carter, of Onslow,

March 7th, 1799. They had five sons and one daughter. He was a

sea Captain. He died at Brookfield, January, 1852. His widow died

ISTovember, 1858. Samuel Gourley, their third son, was born in

1788. He was a carpenter by trade. He removed to Cumberland,

and was married there to IsabeU Copps, in 1815. They had two sons

and three daughters. He died in 1856.

Peter, the fourth and youngest son of "William and Lydia

Gourley, was born in Truro in 1797. He was a mason by trade. He
settled at the South Branch of Stewiacke, He was married there to

Catherine McCulloch, about 1840. They had three sons and two

daughters. He died December 18th, 1870, aged 73 years.

Susannah, the oidy daughter of James and Catherine Gourley, was

born in New England in 1758. She was married to Eobert Johnson,

December 2nd, 1778. They had six sons and one daughter; these

appear among the Johnsons. She died July, 1844, aged 86 years.

Mr. Johnson died April 4th, 1815, aged 68 years,

Jesse Gourley, the third son of James and Catherine Gourley, was

born in New England in 1754. He removed to Lower Stewiacke

with his brother Stephen, where he spent the remainder of his life.

He died there a bachelor. May 20th, 1830, aged 76 years.

Stephen, the fifth and youngest son of James and Catherine

Gourley, was born in 1760, and was brought by his parents to Truro

in 1761. He built a house for an Inn at the Board-landing, where

there was considerable shipbuilding carried on at the time. He
was married to Hannah Swinburn, widow of the late Alexander

Kent, in 1797. They removed then to Lower Stewiacke, and settled

on the farm that his grandson, Robert J. Pollock, Esq., now resides

upon, where he kept an Inn. His house stood on the west side of

the road leading from Truro to Halifax, where Mr. Pollock's barn now
stands. He lost one of his hands by some means when he was a

young man. He died February 15th; 1829, aged 68 years. His

widow died January 31st, 1831, aged 75 years. Susannah, the only

daughter of Stephen and Hannah Gourley, was born at Lower Stewi-
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acke, November 27tli, 1798. She was married to William PoUock,

January, 1820. They had three sons and one daughter. Mr.

PoUock died May 15th, 1827. She was married again to Eobert

HiU, July 3rd, 1828. They had three sons and five daughters. Mr,

Hill died August 23rd, 1851, aged 56 years.

The above named Alexander Kent was brother of Jas. Kent, Esq.,

of the Lower Village of Truro. He was an officer in the British army,

and had been some time in Fredericton, K". B., with his wife and

family. He was about to leave the army, and went to the "West

Indies to secivre his pension. He died there, leaving a widow and

three sons in Fredericton. Mr. Kent, of the Lower Village, went and

brought her and her family to the Lower Village. She lived in the

house that James Kent, second, afterwards lived in, until she was

married. Their son James settled in Musquodoboit. He was Colonel

of the first battalion of Colchester Militia many years. He was

married to Christiann Guild. They had four sons and five daughters.

He died ]S"ovember, 1864. His wife died June, 1863. Their son,

Alexander Kent, settled in Musquodoboit also. He was married to

Elizabeth Horton. They had five sons and six daughters. He died

November, 1871. Their son, Samuel Kent, settled in Lower Stewi-

acke. He was married to Mary PoUock in 1815. They had two sons

and three daughters. Mrs. Kent died about 1864.

Q^^iC^^

CHAPTEE LIV.

Samson Moore was among the early settlers of Truro, and was a

Grantee of the township He was born in Ireland in 1730. He

emigrated to New England, and from thence to Nova Scotia, in 1762.

He was married to Martha Archibald in 1754. He settled in the

Lower ViUage. His house stood near the place where Mr. Eupert

Dunlap now resides. He was drowned in the Bay near Salter's

Head, out of a boat, in 1782, aged 52 years.

James Moore, their eldest son, was bom in 1755. He was

brought by his parents to Truro when he was seven years old. His

name is among the Grantees of the Township, although he was but

10 years old at the date of the grant. His front land adjoined his

father's, being the same that James D. Johnson and sons now reside
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upon. He was married to Margaret Pollock, in 1783. He settled

near the Shutenacadie Eiver, at the carrying place, so called. (This

place took its name from the fact that when the people were passing

up and down the Eiver in their boats or canoes, they would take

them out of the water and carry them over a narrow piece of land

ahout three rods in breadth, to the Eiver again, to save them going

one mile round by the Eiver.) Here he spent the remainder of his

life.

Jane, the eldest daughter of James and Margaret Moore, was born

in 1784. She was married to James Parker of Cornwallis. They

had four sons and three daughters. Mr. and Mrs. Parker both died

a number of years ago. Mrs. Moore died, and he was married again

to Susan, daughter of Samuel and Janet Teas, of Stewiacke, in 1787.

Martha, the eldest daughter of James and Janet Moore, was born in

1788. She was married to Samuel Moore, of Gays Eiver. They had

one daughter. Mr. Samuel Moore died about 18§7.

Daniel Moore, their eldest son, was born about 1790. He was

maiTied to Jane, daughter of William M. and Jane JSTelson, January,

1829. They had three sons and four daughters. He died April,

1863, aged 73 years.

Margaret, the second, daughter of James and Susan Moore, was

born in 1792. She was married to James Philips, October 15th,

1811. They had four sons and five daughters. She died July 26th,

1867, aged 75 years. Mr. Philips died December 23rd, 1830, aged

43 years. Mary Moore, their third daughter, was born in 1793.

She was married to John Philips, February 17th, 1817. They had

four sons and three daughters. She died February, 1864, aged 71

years. Mr. Philips died December, 1866, aged 76 years. Elizabeth

Moore, their fourth daughter, was born 1795. She was married to

Henrj'- Hughes. They had three sons and three daughters. Isabell

Moore, their fifth daughter, was born in 1797. She was married to

Samuel Creclman, of Prince Port, December 9th, 1821. They had

one son. She died in 1824. Mr. Creelman died January 8th, 1867,

aged 72 years.

James Moore, their second son, was born in 1798. He died about

1818. Samuel Moore, their third son, was born in 1800. He was

married to Margaret Gunn. They had two sons and two daughters.

He died June 1844. Susan Moore, their sixth daiighter, was born

in 1802. She was married to WiUiam Philips, February 28th, 1822.
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They had four sons and six daughters. She died March, 1866. Mr,

Philips died June, 1851.

David, their fourth son, was horn 1803. He was married to

Margaret McKay. They had three sons and four daughters. George

Moore, their fifth son, was horn in 1805. He was married to Eliza-

beth, daughter of Samuel Frame and Jane McDonald. They had

two sons and three daughters. Dorothy Moore, their seventh

daughter, was horn in 1807. She died unmarried. Alice Moore,

their eighth daughter, was horn in 1809. She was married to James

Nelson, October, 1828. They had two sons and one daughter. She

died March 21st, 1834. William Moore, their sixth son, was born

1811. He was married to Janet McKay, They had one son and two

daughters.

John, the second son of Samson and Martha Moore, was bom in

New England in 1757. He was brought by his parents to Nova

Scotia. He was drowned, by the upsetting of a boat, in 1782, when

he was 25 years old. Eleanor, the eldest daughter of Samson and

Martha Moore, was born in 1761. She was married to John McCabe

in 1779. (He was the eldest son of James McCabe, who came from

Philadelphia in the ship " Hope," and settled in Pictou in June,

' 1767,) They settled in Loch Broom, Pictou. They had six sons

and seven daughters. She died in 1848, aged 87 years. Mr,

McCabe died about 1838,

David, the third son of Samson and Martha Moore, was born in

Truro, April 1st, 1763, about four months after they arrived in Nova

Scotia. He removed to Cumberland County, He was married there

to Catherine Taylor, February l7th, 1801. He returned again to

Truro, He died at Old Barns, April 20th, 1849, aged 86 years. His

widow died November 4th, 1851, aged 68 years. Martha Moore,

their eldest daughter, was born March 22nd, 1802. She was married

to Edward Fhnn. They had one son and one daughter. She died

in Cape Breton, in 1850. Eleazer Moore, their eldest son, was born

in Cumberland, September 24th, 1803. He removed to the State of

Maine, and was married there. They had one daughter. Mrs.

Moore died there, and he was married again to widow EUenwood, in

1856. Janet Moore, their second daughter, was born in Parrsborough,

December 24th, 1804. She was married to Israel Barker, of Cumber-

land, in 1832. They had seven sons and seven daughters. Mr,

Barker died in 1861, His widow removed to the United States.

Samson Moore, their second son, was born in Truro, June 6th, 1806.
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He was married to Miss Jeffers, of Cumberland, in 1830. They had

four sons and two daughters. Alice Moore, their daughter, was born

August 29th, 1808. She was married to Charles Jarvis, of Cumber-

land, June 1835. They had four sons and live- daughters. Susan,

their fourth daughter, was born September 24th, 1810. She was

married to Charles Skinner, of Debert Eiver, January 10th, 1832.

They had five sons and six daughters. Eleanor, Moore, their fifth

daughter, was born March 7th, 1812. She was married to Joseph

Atkison, of Cumberland, in 1836. They had two sons and six

daughters. John P. Moore, their third son, was born June 25th,

1813. He was married to Margaret Stevens, widow of the late

Thomas McEllienney, of Onslow, March 26th, 1838. Mrs. Moore

died October 2nd, 1861, aged 67 years. He was married again to

Lydia Ann, Jenks, March 31st, 1866. They have one son. He is

settled in Truro Village, where he carries on business as a fuel

merchant and grocer. Esther Moore, their sixth daughter, was born

May 30th, 1815. Margaret Moore, their seventh daughter, was born

March 23rd, 1817. She was married to Dr. Eobert Key. They had

one son and two daughters. She died at Prince Edward Island,

January, 1858. Mr. Key died the same day. Catherine Moore,

their eighth daughter, was born October 23rd, 1818. She was

married to James Good, of Princeport, January 16th, 1840. Mary

Ann Moore, their ninth daughter, was born July 17th, 1820. She

was married to Henry Good, in 1836. They had two sons. IJr.

Good was drowned ISTovember 12, 1842, She was married again to

John "Waddell, of Hants County, June, 1844. They had six sons and

two daughters. She died |May 10th, 1864. Sarah Moore, their

tenth daughter, was born March 29th, 1822. She was married to

John Johnson. They had one son. Mr. Johnson died. James

Moore, their fourth son, was born July 31st, 1824. He was married

to Elizabeth Colter, March, 1858. Mrs. Moore died in October,

1867. He was married again to Catherine Mclnnis, May 14th, 1871.

Alice, the second daughter of Samson and Martha Moore, was

born March 16th, 1766. She was married to William Philips,

December 16th, 1786. They settled beside the Shiibenacadie Eiver,

where some of their grandsons now reside. She died there January

1st, 1815. Mr. Philips was married again to Elizabeth Munro,

October 15th, 1815. He died December 28th, 1830. James, the

eldest son of William and Alice Philips, was born August 30th, 1787.

He was married to Margaret, second daughter of James and Susan
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Moore, October 15th, 1811, He inherited a part of his father's farm.

He died December 23rd, 1830. His widow died July 26th, 1867.

aged 75 years. Jane Philips, their eldest daughter, was born Septem-

ber, 1812. Susan, their second daughter, was born December, 1815,

William, their eldest son, was born October 13th, 1818. He inherited

his father's farm. Isabell, their third daughter, was born April 5th,

1821. Martha, their fourth daughter, was born December 30th, 1823.

They had tliree sons and one daughter besides these. Their son,

John, came to his death by falling from a load of hay on a pitchfork.

Isabell, the only daughter of William and Alice Philips, was born

March 8th 1789. She was married to Robison !N"elson, December

31st, 1807. They had one son and ten daughters. John Philips,

their second son, was born October 4th, 1790. He was married to

!Mary, the third daughter of James and Susan Moore, February 17th,

1817. They had four sons and three daughters. He died December,

1866. His wife died February, 1864, aged 71 years. William, the

third son of William and Alice Philips, was born in 1792. He was

married to Susan, the sixth daughter of James and Susan !Moore,

February 28th, 1822. They had four sons and six daughters. He
inherited a part of his father's property. He died June, 1851. His

widow died March, 1866.

Samson, the fourth son of Samson and Martha Moore, was bom
December 9th, 1767. He was married to Margaret, fifth daughter of

Eobert and Esther Hunter, December 31st, 1795. Ho inherited his

father's ftirm in the Lower Village of Truro. Eobert Moore, their

eldest son, was born in 1796. He died of consumption in 1816.

Mrs. Moore died in the same year, of .the same complaint. Margaret

Moore, their daughter, was born in 1798. She died at the house of

her uncle, William Smith, in 1817, of the same complaint. Mr.

Moore died in 1818.

Daniel, the fifth son of Samson and Martha Moore, was born May

1st, 1770. He was married to Jane, third daughter of Alexander and

Margaret JS'elson. They had one son and two daughters. Mr. ]\Ioore

was lost at sea.

Joseph Moore, brother of Samson Moore, was among the early

settlers of Truro, and was a Grantee of the Township. His house lot

was the whole of the Upland east of Walker Street. The hill on

which George Reading, Esq., now resides, was long known as *' Joe

Moore's Hill." He had but one son; he was a watchmaker, and

22
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removed to the United States; He had a num'ber of daughters;

some of them were married and went to I^ew Brunswick, and some to

the United States. "We know nothing about them at present.

CHAPTEE LY.

James Downing was another of the first settlers of Truro, and a

Grantee of the Township. He resided on his front land in the Lower

Village, where he and his wife spent the remainder of their days.

He died October 28th, 1776. His widow died December 31st, 1801,

He was married to Janet Montgomery, in Kew England, in 1749.

Mary, their eldest daughter, was born in New England in 1750, and

was brought by her parents to Kova Scotia when she was ten years

old. She was married to William, the eldest son of Capt. William

Blair and Jane Barns, about the year 1770. Her descendants appear

among the Blairs. She died November, 1817, aged 67 years. Mr.

Blair died March, 1848, aged 91 years. Janet Downing, their second

daughter, was born in 1753. She was married to Joshua Higgins.

They had three sons and three daughters. They resided at Lower

Onslow, where they both died some time ago. James Downing, their

only son, was born in New England in 1758. He was married to

Margaret, the second daughter of John Dickson, Senr., and Margaret

Burn, November 22nd, 1787. They had two children. He died

July 21st, 1789. His wife died February 15th, 1790. Catherine

Downing, their third daughter, was born on board the vessel that

they came in to Nova Scotia, a short time before they anchored at

Savages Island, in the spring of the year 1760. She was married to

Ebenezer Hoar, January 5th, 1775. They had two sons and ten

daughters. They resided on the same place that their youngest son,

James Hoar, now resides, in Onslow. She died of fever, August 30th,

1819, aged 59 years. Mr. Hoar died of the same fever, August 2nd.

1819, aged 61 years. Nancy Downing, their fourth daughter, wa,s

born in Truro, January 23rd, 1762. She was married to John,

second son of Capt. William Blair and Jane Barns, in 1781. Tliey

had five sons and three daughters, who appear among the Blairs.

She died January 9th, 1829, aged 67 years, and Mr. Blair died

October 5th, 1847, aged 88 years.
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"William !Downmg (brother of James) was another of the first

settlers of Truro, and a Graritee of the Township. He was married to

Mary Logan, sister of John and William Logan, in 1768. He was
the third person Avho settled in Brookfiell, about the year 1787, on
"the farm which was afterwards owned by John Hamilton, and is now
^wned by Eobert Hamilton, Esq., his brother John, and their sons.

He continued in Brookfield but a few years. He returned to Truro

YiUage, and resided near the Messrs. Logan for a few years. His wife

died there in 17^93. He was married again to Euth HoaT, widow of

the late WilHam P. Whipple, December 26th, 1793. He resided on

the Whipple place, near Robert Turner Blair's, in Onslow. He
died there June, 1816. His widow died December 8th, 1848, aged

"92 years.

John, the eldest son of William and Mary Downing, was born in

Truro, April 5th, 1769. He was married to Esther Lynton, June

30th, 1795. He settled east of the Chiganoise Eiver, where he spent

the remainder of his life. He died there February, 182^, aged 57

years. His wife died September 11th, 1829. James Downing, their

eldest son, was born June 21st, 1797. He was married to Sarah

Thomas, October 21st, 1825. They had three sons and three daugh-

ters. He died May, 1855, aged 58 years. Robert Downing, their

second son. Was born August 9th, 1801. He was married to. Eliza

Ray, of Shepody, September 2nd, 1829. They had five sons and

three daughters. He inherited a part of what was his father's farm.

He died March 24th, 1868, aged 67 years. John Downing, their

third son, was born September 17th, 1803. He was marrie-d to

Letitia, the eldest daughter of Richard Blackie and Margaret BarnhUl,

April 10th, 1831. They had one son and one daughter Mrs.

Downing died February, 1844. He was married again to Nancy

Hughes, widow of the late Matthew Green, July 22nd, 1848. They

had one son and two daughters. George Downing, their fourth son,

Was born March 16th, 1805. He was married to Margaret Johnson,

of Pleasant Valley, November 4th, 1829. They had two sons and

six daughters. Elizabeth Downing, their only daughter, was bom

August 1st, 1799. She was married to John Hollice, December,

1831. They had three sons and four daughters. They removed and

settled at Goose River, in Cumberland County. She died there

April, 1869.

Janet Downing, the eldest daughter of William and Mary, was

%(x& in Truro, August 30th, 1770. She was married to William
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Davison, November 16th, 1789, by Dr. John Harris, who was then

authoiized to perform the ceremony of marriage. It was so dark on

this wedding day that candles were lighted at two o'clock in the after-

noon, to give them light to attend to the work in the honse, and thi&

day is spoken of yet by the old people of Brookfield as the dark day.

On March 2nd, 1790, Mrs. Davison died, in the twentieth year of her

age. The first marriage and first death which took place in Brookfield

was in the house of Mr. WiUiam Downing, Mary, the second

daughter of William and Mary Downing, was bom in Truro, May
2nd, 1772. She was married to Thomas Wetherby, of Londonderry,.

November 12th, 1794. They had three sons and two daughters,

Catherine Downing, their third daughter, was bom in Truro, May
9th, 1774. She was married to Barnabas O'Brien, of Chiganoise,

November 23rd, 1793. They had three sons and five daughters.

She died April, 1869, aged 94 years, and Mr. O'Brien died about

1834. Sarah Downing, their fourth daughter, was born July 22nd,

1 778. She was married to William Wetherby. They had three sons

and one daughter. William Logan Downing, their second son, was

bom in Truro, November 21st, 1780, He was a shoemaker by trade.

He removed to Hants County, and was married there to Miss Porter,

of Windsor. James Downing, the eldest son of WiUiam and Euth,^

was born in Onslow, September 22nd, 1794. He was a blacksmith

by trade. He was married to Dorothy, third daughter of Simeon and

Dorothy Whidden, of Middle Stewiacke, July 20th, 1818. They had

two sons and four daughters. They inherited a part of her father's

farm at Stewiacke. He died there June 1st, 1840, aged 45 years.

His widow died September 4th, 1850, aged 56 years. Hiram,

the second son of WiUiam and Euth Downing, was bom in Onslow,

January 22nd, 1800. He removed and settled on Tatamagouche

Mountain. He was married there to Eachel, the eldest daughter of

John and Elizabeth McKeen, December 31st, 1829. They had two

sons and two daughters. Mrs. Downing died in 1836. He was

married again to Nancy Vincen. They had four sons and one

daughter. He died there December, 1869, aged 72 years. His widow

died January, 187L
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CHAPTEE LVI,

Joshua Lamb was among the early settlers of Colchester. He was

a Grantee of Onslow Township. He resided on the place on which

Augustus McCurdy now resides. He was Representative of Onslow,

and Eegistrar of Deeds a few years. He sold his property in Onslow

in 1777 to Eohert Catherwood, and returned to New England.

James Blair was married to Eohert Catherwood's daughter Isabell

July 2Gth, 1792. They inherited her father's property a large part

of the remainder of their lives. Mr. Lamb was married to Mary

Brooks, September 11th, 1766. They had two sons and two

daughters, born in Onslow,

CHAPTEE LVIL

James Whidden was among the first settlers of Truro. He was a

Orantee of the Township. His house lot was that on which Mr.

Thomas M. Crowe and son. now reside. He owaed the interval on

the west side of the marsh road that Dr. C. Bent now owns. He was

married and had four sons before he came to Nova Scotia. His wife

died and he was married a;gain to Mary Guild, widow of the late

Jacob Lynds, of Onslow. He died December 13th, 1790. His

widow returned to her son Thomas Lynds' house, at North Eiver.

John, the eldest son of James Whidden and his first wife, settled in

Cornwallis; he was a leading man there. He was Justice of the

Peace and Judge of the Court of Common Pleas for Kings County.

He died there September 14th, 1794. Sarah, his second daughter,

was drowned at the Board-landing, near Truro, August 12th, 1770,

aged 17 years. Elizabeth Whidden, another daughter, was married

to the Eev. Hugh Graham, 1792. Mr. Graham was married in

Scotland to Elizabeth Brown, a short time before they left. The first

time that the Eev. Hugh Graham preached in Middle Stewiacke was

on the first day of the week, the first day of the month, the first day

of the year, and the first day of the present century.

David, the second son of James A^^dden, Senr., was born in New
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England, in 1749. He came with the rest of the family to Trirrok.

He was a grantee of the Township, although he was but 16 years old

at the date of the grant. He was-, married to Eleanor, second daughter

of Adam and Janet Dickey, September 29th, 1774. He inherited his.

father's, property in Truro. In 1795 he sold his property in Truro„

and removed to Maitland,. where he spent the remainder of his life.

He died October 1st, 1825, aged 7G years. H!is widow died August

10th, 1828, aged T4 years. James Whidden, their eldest son, was

bom in Truro^ July 8th, 177"5. He was married to Abigail Brown in

1804. They had five sons and five daughters. He carried on. a large

business at Maitland as merchant and ship builder. He died June

3rd, 1830, aged 55 years, His widow died June 26th, 1867, aged 88-

years. John Hancock, the second son of David and Eleanor Whidden,,

was bom in Truro, February 13th 1T77. He died a bachelor, at

Maitland. David Whidden, their third son, was bom in Truro, April

2nd, 1779. He followed the sea, and was. lost when he was a young

man.. Abigail Whidden, their daughter, was born in Truro, liovember-

10th, 1780. She was married to William Frieze in 1801. They had

one son and three daughters. She dried at Maitland,. January 4th,,

1808, aged 27 years. Mr. Frieze died January 14th, 1843^, aged 68.

years..

Samuel,, the third son of James Whidden and his wife, was bom
in Kew England in 1752. He came with his parents and family to.

ISTova Scotia in 1760.. He was niarried to Abigail Kewcomb, July

15th, 1774. He settled on the iaterval of Salmon River, on the same

f.irm on which Timothy Johnson udw resides. He died Jidy 10th,,,

1821, aged 69 years. His wife died March 11th, 1815, aged 57 years.

Elizabeth Whidden, their eldest daugjiter, was born March 29th,,,

1775. She was married to Richard Pyke, in 1798. She died, and

Mr. Pyke was drowned by being, upset from a boat while crossing th&

Shiibenacadie River, about the year 1804. Samuel Pyke, their eldest

son, was born 1799. He was married to Martha, daughter of James

and Janet Kennedy, January, 1834. They had two sons and two

daughters. They settled for a time in Smithfieldy, Stewiacke. He
died September, 1867. Richard, the second son of Richard and

Elizabeth Pyke, was born May 4th, 1801. He was married ta

Eleanor, second daughter of James and Kancy McCabe, of Greenfield,.

January, 1834. They had three sons and two daughters. He settled

in Smithfield, Stewiacke. Rebecca, the only daughter of Richard and

Elizabeth Pyke, was born 1803.. She was married, to David, the-
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youngest son of Simeon Whidden and Dorothy Blair, January, 1821.

They had three sons and three daughters. They are settled in

Smithiield, Stewiacke.

Abigail, the second daughter of Samuel and Abigail Whidden, was

born in Truro, December 7th, 1776. She removed to Maitland, to

keep house for her uncle, David Whidden. She was married there

to Eobert O'Brien of Noel, November 23rd, 1802. They had two

sons and five daughters. She died in 1857, aged 80 years. Mr.

O'Brien died about the year 1849.

Eddy Whidden, their eldest son, was born February 16th, 1778.,

He was married to Sarah, daughter of Samuel Fisher and Mary Tupper

of Stewiacke, in 1807. They had five sons and five daughters. He
settled in the woods at Greenfield, on the same farm on which Mr.

Ralph McCabe now resides, being five miles from any neighbours.

Upon one occasion while they were living in this lonely situation in

tlie woods and the snow was very deep, Mrs. Whidden not being very

well one morning he started and took his cattle with him to try and

make a track in the snow, so that some person might get to his house

to be with her ; but he failed in getting a track made through the

deep snow. He returned home at night much fatigued, when his

wife presented him with two sons that had been born during the day.

He removed to New Annan, where he died in 1858, aged 80 years.

His wife died December, 1835. Sarah, the third daughter of Samuel

and Abigail Whidden, was born December, 29th, 1779. She died

unmarried in 1797. Eleanor Whidden, their fourth daughter, was

born April 5th, 1783. She was married to Dan Bentley of Stewiacke

February 10th, 1810. They had one son and two daughters. She

died at Stewiacke June 2nd, 1836, aged 53 years. Mr. Bentley died

September 4th, 1865. Mary Whidden, their fifth daughter, was born

June 29th, 1785. She was married to John Bartlett in 1812. They

had five sons and two daughters. They settled on Onslow Mountain,

where she died February 12th, 1839. Mr. Bartlett died August 18th,

1837.

Nancy Whidden, their sixth daughter, was born December 24th,

1787, She was married to James McCabe of Pictou, September, 1807.

They settled in Greenfield, on the same place that their son James now

resides. She died there April 24th, 1858, aged 70 years. Mr. Mc-

Cabe died December 28th, 1861, aged 80 years.

John McCabe, their eldest son, Avas born September 10th, 1808.

He was married to Rebecca McLeUan, of Economy, January, 1835.
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They had five sons and five daughters. They removed to Economy,

where Mrs. McCabe died March 8th, 1865. He was married again

to Ann Wtrd, September, 1867. Samuel McCabe, their second son,

was born April 15th, 1810. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter of

John and Mary Bartlett, of Onslow Mountain, March 21st, 1839.

They had five sons and five daughters. Mary McCabe, their eldest

daughter, was born August 25th, 1812. She was married to William

Staples, of Lower Onslow, March 23rd, 1848. They have one

daughter.

Eleanor, the second daughter of James and jSTancy McCabe, was

born June 3rd, 1815. She was married to Richard Pyke, of Smith-

field, January, 1833. They have three sons and one daughter. James

McCabe, their third son, was born July 6th 1817. He was married

to Abigail, daughter of James Downing and Dorothy Whidden,

January 20th, 1842. They had four sons and four daughters. He
inherits his father's fiirm in Greenfield. Dan McCabe, their fourth

son, was born June 9th, 1819. He was married to Susan McCarnia,

in 1852. They had two sons and one daughter. Mrs. McCabe died

in 1857. He was married again to Mary McCarnia. They have two

daughters. Edward McCabe, their fifth son, was born April 3rd,

1821. He was married to Sarah Higgins, of Musqudoboit, December

20th, 1843. They had seven sous and two daughters. He carries on

the blacksmith business at Musquodoboit. Abigail McCabe, their

third daughter, was born March 23rd, 1823. She was married to

George Higgins of Musquodoboit, December 4th, 1845. They had

three sons and three daughters. Asa McCabe, their sixth son, was

born March 7th, 1825. He was married to Dorothy, daughter of

James and Dorothy Downing, of Stewiacke, February 29th, 1848,

They had two sons and four daughters. He reclaimed his farm from

the forest where he resides. Ralph McCabe, their seventh son, was

born July 27th, 1827. He was married to Jane, daughter of James

and Dorothy Downing, of Stewiacke, June 3rd, 1852. They had five

sons and five daughters. He now owns and resides on the farm that

Eddy Whidden settled on.

Samuel, the second son of Samuel and Abigail Whidden, was
born August 13th, 1790. He was married to Sarah, the only

daughter of Thomas Stevens and Nancy Elliot, February, 1811. He
settled first in Greenfield. He settled again in Harmony, where his

wife died, Aprd 21st, 1842. He was married again to Elizabeth Mc-
MuUon, of Stewiacke, January 31st, 1844. He sold out in Harmony,
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and built tlie house that Eobert Dinsmore recently lived in. He
died there February 16th, 1862, aged 71 years. Elizabeth Whidden,
their eldest daughter, was born December 6th, 1811. She was
married to Joshua Higgins, of JSTew Annan. They had six sons and

four daughters. Abigail Whidden, their second daughter, was born

January 26th, 1814. She died unmarried, ISrovember, 1846, aged 32

years. 2S'"ancy Whidden, their third daughter, was born May 26th,

1816. She was married to Elisha Logan in May, 1842. They had

five sons and two daughters. She died December 27th, 1865, aged

49 years. Mr. Logan died September 27th, 1870, aged 54 years.

Sarah Whidden, their fourth daughter, was born August 10th, 1818.

She was married to William Smith. They had one son. Mr. Smith

died, and she was married again to Robert Hill, of Londonderry.

They had one son and two daughters. She died in April, 1864, aged

46 years. Eleanor Whidden, their fifth daughter, was born June

20th, 1821. She was married to Abiather Blair, December 27th, 1842,

They had eight sons and two daughters. James, the eldest son of

Samuel and Sarah Whidden, was born July 27th, 1823. He died a

bachelor, April 7th, 1865, aged 41 years. John Whidden, their

second son, was born January 26th, 1826. He removed to the United

States. He was married there to ISIary McCarthany. They had

tliree sons and one daughter. He died in 1863, aged 37 years.

Mary Jane Whidden, their sixth daughter, was born September 22nd,

1828. She was married to John Stewart, of Londonderry, September

12th, 1855. They had one son and four daughters.

James, the third son of Samuel and Abigail Whidden, was born

in 1796. He was married to Hannah, daughter of Ealph and

Hannah Johnson, December, 1820. (Mrs. Whidden was born in

England, July 16th, 1801). They settled first at Greenfield. He

died at Onslow, Sept. 5th, 1870, aged 75 years. Ralph Whidden,

their eldest son, was born March 20th, 1822. He was married to

Bridget Stone, of Tatamagouche, February, 1850. They had four

sons and five daughters. Samuel Whidden, their second son, was

born March, 1824. He removed to New Brunswick. He was

married there to Ruth Ann Crooks. They had four sons and five

daughters. They now reside in the State of Maine. Abigail Whid-

den, their eldest daughter, was born in Greenfield, May 8th, 1827.

She was married to James Archibald, January 8th 1847. They had

two sons and four daughters. Mr. Archibald died at North River,

June 4th, 1871, aged 47 years. Margaret AVhidden, their second
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daughter, was born December, 1831. Hannah Whidd§n, their third

daughter, was born March 16th, 1835. She was married to William

Wade, of !N"ew Brunswick. They had one son and one daughter.

She died in the State of Maine, April 8th, 1867, aged 32 years.

Mary Whidden, their fourth daughter, was born March 16th, 1838.

She was married to George Smith, of Onslow, December 27th, 1869.

They have one daughter. James Whidden, their third son, was born

in September, 1841. He was married to Margaret Adams, of Eiver

John, January, 1869. They have two daughters. William Wliidden,

their fourth son, was born April 17th, 1844. He removed to Cali-

fornia. Wren Whidden, their fifth son, was born July 15th, 1846.

Phebe, the youngest daughter of Samuel and Abigail Whidden,

was born February 18th, 1799. She was married to lialph Johnson,

of Greenfield. They had three sons and two daughters. She died

July 28th, 1842, aged 43 years.

Simeon, the fourth son of James Whidden, Sen., was born in ISTew

England, in 1754, and was brought by his parents to Xova Scotia

when he was about six years old. He was married to Dorothy, the

fourth daughter of Captain WiUiam Elair and Jane Barns, about the

year 1775, They settled in Middle Stewiacke about the year 1782.

His farm laid on the west side of James Archibald's, which is now

owned by the Messrs. Eutherford. In January, 1800, he was loading

logs in the Avoods, when a log rolled on him and broke his leg. He
lived but three days after. His widow died ^November, 1827, aged

74 years.

James, the eldest son of Simeon and Dorothy Whidden, Avas born

in 1778. He was married to Jane, third daughter of James Fisher

and Margaret McKeen, of Musquodoboit. They had five sons and

five daughters. They removed to Canada some time ago. He died

there. His wife and two daughters died there in 1852. Mary, the

eldest daughter of Simeon and Dorothy Whidden, was born in 1780.

She was married to WiUiam, the eldest son of James and Margaret

Fisher, of Musquodoboit. They had sons and daughters. They

removed to St. Mary's. Sarah Whidden, their second daughter, was

born in 1782. She Avas married to John Higgins, of Musquodoboit,

in 1807. They had four sons and four daughters. She died February

nth, 1871, aged 89 years. Mr. Higgins died in March, 1869.

William, the second son of Simeon and Dorothy Whidden, was

born in 1784. lie was married to Mary McLain, of Pictou. They
had five sons and fiA'e daughters. He removed and settled at St.
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Mary's. He died in February, 1857, aged 73 years. His wife died

in 1842.

Simeon, the third son of Simeon and Dorothy Whidden, was
born May 17th, 1786, He was married to Susan Harris, of Sydney,

C. B., in 1812. They resided in Cape Breton, Stemacke, Dartmouth
and Truro. He died in Truro, October 25th, 1859, aged 73 years.

His wife died in Truro, April 10th, 1859, aged 73 years. George, the

eldest son of Simeon and Susan Whidden, was married to Abigail

Jane, daughter of Eobert and Esther Whidden, December 22nd,

1840. They had two sons and three daughters. James, the second son of

Simeon and Su^an Whidden, removed to the United States. He is

married there. Mary Whidden, their eldest daughter, was married to

Kennedy Archibald, December 22nd, 1840. They had six sons and

four daughters. Abigail Whidden, their second daughter, was

married to Johnson Archibald, October 9th, 1845. They had three

sons and four daughters. John Whidden, their tliird son, was married

to Sophia Graham, in 1846. They reside in Dartmouth. They had

sons and daughters. Simeon, the fourth son of Simeon and Susan

Whidden, was married to Harriet Beeves in 1845. They had four

sons and three daughters. They reside in Halifax. Sarah, the third

daughter of Simeon and Susan Whidden, was married to Charles

Hall, September 23rd, 1846. They had three sons and two daughters.

Susan, the fourth daughter of Simeon and Susan Whidden, was born

December 24th, 1834, She was married to Eoderick McKinnon,

December 8th, 1859. They had two sons and two daughters.

Robert, the fourth son of Simeon and Dorothy Whidden, was born

April 2nd, 1788. He was married to Esther, second daughter of

Francis Creelman and Esther Campbell, November 9th, 1813. He
inherited a part of his father's farm. He died April 1st, 1834, aged

46 years. Hannah Whidden, their eldest daughter, was born July

26th, 1815. She was married to Samuel Frame, December 22nd,

1838. They had three sons and five daughters. They removed to

the United States, where he and his wife both died some time ago.

Abigail Jane Whidden, their second daughter, was born February 7th,

1818. She was married to George Whidden, December 22nd, 1840.

They had two sons and three daughters. I^Iatthew Whidden, their

eldest son, was born in December, 1820. He was married to Janet,

daughter of William and Martha Ellis, IS^'ovember, 1844. They had

two sons and one daughter. They removed to the United States^

Mary Whidden, their third daughter, was born in 1822. She removed
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to the United States. She was married there to Rufiis Young.

They had two sons and one daughter. Simeon Whidden, their

second son, was born in 1824. He was married to Eliza Frame.

They had two sons. They removed to the United States. Mrs,

Whidden died there in 1853. He was married again to Hannah,

daughter of Robert Higgins, of Onslow. She lived but a short time

after they were married. Esther Whidden, their fourth daughter,

was born in 1826. She was married to William, son of Chas. Carter

and Agnes Oughterson, in 1855. They had four sens and three

daughters. They reside in Brookfield. Eobert Kirk Whidden, their

third son, was born in 1828. He was married to Margaret Boomer.

They removed to California. They had one son and two daughters.

James Smith Whidden, their fourth son, was born in March, 1830.

He removed to the United States. He was twice married there.

He died there some time ago. Margaret Whidden, their fifth daughter,

was born April 6th, 1832. She removed to the United States. She

was married there to Harris Merril. They had three daughters.

David Whidden, their fifth son, was boi:n March 5th, 1834. He
removed to the United States. He was married there to Elizabeth

Babcock. They have one daughter.

John, the fifth son of Simeon and Dorothy Whidden, was born in

1792, and was married to Miss Symonds, of Antigonish. They had

a family. He was a Baptist minister, settled in Antigonish, and died

there.

Dorothy, the third daughter of Simeon and Dorothy Whidden,

was born May 29th, 1794. She was married to James Downing,

July 20th, 1818. They had two sons and four daughters. She died

September 5th, 1850. Mr. Downing died June 1st, 1840, aged 45

years. David Whidden, their sixth son, was born in 1796. He was

married to Eebecca Pyke, January, 1821. He was one of the first

that settled in Smithfield in 1825. Eichard Whidden, their eldest

son, was born December 13th, 1821. He was married to Abigail

Bartlet, of Onslow Mountain, December 31st, 1845. They had

one son. Samuel Whidden, their second son, was born November,

1825. He was married to Eebecca Smith, of St. Mary's, December,

1856. They had two sons and three daughters. Elizabeth Whidden,

their eldest daughter, was born in 1827. She died in 1858. Eleanor

Whidden, their second daughter, was born in 1829. She was married

to Hugh Whidden, of St. Mary's, November 4th, 1854. They had

sons and daughters. He died February, 1872. Jane Whidden, their
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third daughter, was born in 1831. Dorothy Whidden, their fourth

daughter, was born in 1833. She was married to Henry Smith, of

St. Clary's, in 1858. They had three sons and four daughters,

David Whidden, their youngest son, was bom in 1836. He was

married to Mary McCabe, of Greenfield, February 12th, 18G5. They

had three daughters.

Jane, the fourth daughter of Simeon and Dorothy Whidden, was

born January 22nd, 1798. She was married to James Eeed, May
12th, 1817. They had eight sons and five daughters. Mr. Keed

came from Scotland in 1815. He settled in Musquodoboit. He died

October 21st, 1870, aged 73 years, Abigail, the fifth daughter of

Simeon and Dorothy Whidden, was born in 1799. She died unmarried.

CHAPTEE LVIII.

James Kent was bom in Alloa, Scotland, in 1 749. He came out

to Halifax when he was a young man. He was married to Margaret

Williams in 1774. He settled at Lower Stewiacke, on the farm that

Eobert Pollock, Esq., now resides upon ; he continued there until

1782. He then removed to Truro, and settled on the farm that

Alexander IT. Cutton now resides upon. He was a Justice of the

Peace, and always forward in public business. He died October 31st,

1825, His widow died January 26th, 1829, aged 76 years.

James Kent, their eldest son, was bom in LoAver Stewiacke, May
1st, 1777. He was married to Eleanor, second daughter of William

and Hannah Dickey, December 26th, 1811. He resided in a house

which stood on the hiU west of WiUiam McNutt, Esq's. He died

there December 29th, 1834. WiUiam, the eldest son of James and

Eleanor Kent, was bom June 5th, 1813. He was manied to

Patience Joyce, July 17th, 1837. They had two sons and three

daughters. He inherits a part of his father's fann. James Flemming

Kent, their second son, was bom December 4th, 1815. He
removed to the United States in 1843. He was married there

to CaroUne Potter. They had one daughter. Mrs. Kent died

in 1857. His friends have not heard from him since 1868. Robert

Kent, their third son, was bom March 24th, 1818. He left home in

1838. He has followed the whale fishing since. He was married in

j^antucket in 1856. They had two daughters, Alexander Kent,
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their fourtli son, was born N"ovember 6th, 1821. He was nia;rried to

Kancy Archibald, August 10th, 1854. They had two sons and five

daughters. Mrs. Kent died MaTch 4th, 1866. He was married again

to ^Mary Jane Wright, widow of the late Rand Kennon. They had

one son and two daughters. Sarah Kent, their eldest daughter, wa.s

born July 2nd, 1824. She removed to the United States in 1856.

She was married there to Furmon Mack, in 1857. They had one son

and three daughters. She died thelfe September, 1868, and het

husband died August, 1872. Susannah Kent, their second daughter,

was born January 14th, 1826. She Was married to John McClure,

January 25th, 1853. They had five sons and two daughters. Martha

Kent, their third daughter. Was born March 6th, 1833. She died

April 5th, 1854.

Alexander, the second son of James and Margaret Kent, was born

in Lower Stewiacke, May 1st, 1779. He was married to Jane, the

eldest daughter of John and Nancy Christie, January 27th, 1803.

He settled on the farm that William Cock now resides upon in the

Lower Village. He was a wheehvright, cabinet maker, house joiner,

and shipbuilder. In 1818 he built a brig, called the Oliphant, for

Capt. Richard Christie. Capt. Christie went to England in her, and

in the spring of 1820 he brought out a considerable number of

passengers from the North of Ireland ; among these were Mr. Samuel

Craig and family. On May 6th, 1820, Mrs, Craig was delivered of a

son on board of the brig on her passage from Ireland ; they named him

for the Captain, Richard Christie Craig. Mr. R. C Craig is now a

merchant in Truro Village, and a strong advocate for the cause of

temperance. He has attended nearly four hundred temperance

meetings. Mr. Kent was a worthy man ; he Avas forward in public

business, both religious and secular ; he held a Commission of the

Peace for more than forty years, and the example he set was worthy

of imitation. He and his wife lived together nearly seventy years.

He died July 24th, 1872, aged 93 years. His wife died June 1st,

1872, aged 90 years.

Margaret, the eldest daughter of Alexander and Jane Kent, was

born in Truro, August 13th, 1804. She was married to John

Dickson, Esq., December 21st, 1826. They had two sons and three

daughters, Nancy Kent, their second daughter, was born October

28th, 1806. She was married to Jotham B. Waddell, April 6th,

1830. They had five sons and three daughters. She died August

14th, 1852, aged 46 years. Mary Kent, their third daughter, was
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Ijorn March 25tli, 1809. She was married to William Flemming,
March 11th, 1828. They had five sons and four daughters. Mr,
Flemming died January 24th, 1873, aged 70 years. James Kent,

their only son was born October 12th, 1811. He was married to

Sarah, daughter of Alexander and Mary Archibald, January 10th,

1833. They had one son and fivc daughters. Mrs. Kent died June
8th, 1847, aged 33 years. He was married again to Mary, daughter

of Samuel and Mary Dunlap, June, 1858. They have one son and
two daughters. Martha Kent, their fourth daughter, was bom March
4th, 1814. She was married to Timothy Archibald, January 1st,

1835. They had four sons and three daughters. Rebecca Kent,

their fifth daughter, was born November 10th, 1816. Susan Jane

Kent, their sixth daughter, was born September 18th, 1818. She

was married to Ezekiel Sibley, October 15th, 1839. They had five

sons and one daughter. She died March 7th, 1864. Anna Kent, their

seventh daughter, was born June 6th, 1821. She was married to

James McDonald, of Pictou, November 12th, 1857. Mr. McDonald
was accidentlly shot at Lunenburg, November 22nd, 1861.

John, the third son of James and Margaret Kent, was born at

Lower Stewiacke, in 1781. He was married to Janet, eldest daughter

of James McCurdy and Agnes Archibald, November 6th, 1806. He
settled on the farm on which John Corbett had resided. He died

January 5th, 1829, and his widow died September 1st, 1870, aged

84 years. Martha Kent, their eldest daughter, was born January

19th, 1808. She was married to John H. Notting, September 29th.

1825. The had one son and two daughters. Sarah Kent, their

second daughter, was born November 20th, 1809. She was married

to John G. Nelson, March 12th, 1831. They had five sons and two

daughters. She died in 1845. James Kent, their eldest son, was

born September 9th, 1811. He died May 1st, 1833. Susannah

Kent, their third daughter, was born October 26th, 1813. She was

married to William Brydon. They had one daughter. Mr. Brydon

died at Tatamagouche, October, 1842. She Avas married again to

Charles Ryley. John Kent, their second son, was born July 1 4th,

1815. He was married to Sarah L. Archibald, April 7th, 1835.

They had four sons and three daughters. He inherited his father's

farm. Mary Jane Kent, their fourth daughter, was born July 20th,

1817. She died June 24th, 1837. Alexander Kent, their third son,

was born August 21st, 1819. He was married to Olivia Archibald.

They had four sons and two daughters. He inherits a part of his
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father's farm. Eobert William Kent, their fourth son, was born

l^ovember 5th, 1821. He was married to Sarah, daughter of Alex,

and Mary Conkey, December 29th, 1844. Mrs. Kent died September

12th, 1871. He was married again to Barbara Wilson, widow of the

late Alexander Blair, September 26th, 1872. Edward Kent, their

fifth son, was born December 25th, 1823. He removed to Tatama-

gouche, where he carried on a considerable business at shipbuilding

and merchandise. He was married to Jessie Williamson. They had

five sons and four daughters. He died in May, 1870. Daniel Kent,

their sixth son, was born February 14th, 1826. He was married to

Ruth Stevens, September, 1850. They had five sons and five

daughters. He now resides at Great Village, Londonderry.

Martha, the eldest daughter of James and Margaret Kent, was

born in Truro, August 1st, 1783. She- was married to James

Flemming, Esq., of Londonderry, in 1804. He inlierited his father's

property at the Folly. He died December 31st, 1839, aged 61 years.

His wife died Aiigust 20th, 1837. They left no children. Margaret,

the second daughter of James and Margaret Kent, was born August

1st, 1787. She was married to James Fulton, of Stewiacke, in 1810.

They had five sons and three daughters. She died at Londonderry,

February 1st, 1870. Mr. Fulton died March 18th, 1829.

Robert, the fourth son of James and Margaret Kent, was born

June 4th, 1791. He was married to Anner, third daughter of Capt.

William and Anner Cock, December 31st, 1818. He inherited his

father's farm for a few years. He died January 3rd, 1867. James

Kent, their eldest son, was boru January 17th, 1820. He removed

to the United States. He was married there to Rebecca Hall. They

had four children, who all died young. Mrs. Kent died in 1865.

William Kent, their second son, was born April 27th, 1822. He
removed to the United States. He was married there to Elizabeth

Perkins. They had one son and one daughter. John Kent, their

third son, was born August 2nd, 1824. He was married to Charlotte

Norris, of Princeport, January 15 th, 1851. They had five sons and

four daughters. Elizabeth Kent, their eldest daughter, was born

February 10th, 1827. She was married to James Cutton, of Onslow,

June, 1850. They had five sons and two daughters. Mr. Cutton

died in King's County, September, 1869. Margaret Kent, their

second daughter, was bom June 25th, 1829. Adelaide Kent, their

third daughter, was born December 12th, 1832. She was married to

Avret Ally, March, 1861. They have one son. They reside in the
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United States. Anna Kent, their fourth daughter, was born May
20th, 1834. She removed to the United States. She was married

there to Dominick Fumigally, in 1858. They had two sons and

three daughters. Martha Kent, their fifth daughter, was born April

4th, 1838. She removed to the United States. Susan Blair Kent,

their sixth daughter, was born !N"ovember 10th, 1840. She removed

to California. She was married there to Henry Helling. They had

one son and one daughter. David 'Lynds Kent, their fourth son, was

born August 18th, 1843. He removed to California. He was

married to Mary Ashley. They had two sons and one daughter.

Henry Peter Kent, their fifth son, was born April 23rd, 1845. He

was married to Mary l!^elson, April 6th, 1869. They removed to the

United States.

Susan, the third daughter of James and Margaret Kent, was born

August 28th, 1796. She was married to William Blair, 3rd, IS'ovem-

ber 19th, 1819. They had three sons. She died February 7th, 1864.

Mr. Blair died August 9th, 1834, aged 39 years.

CHAPTEE LIX,

Eobert Hamilton was born in Armagh, Ireland, November 8th,

1734, and Agnes Ferguson, his wife, was born March 5th, 1739.

They were married about the year 1757. They removed to ISTova

Scotia in the summer of the year 1771, and settled in Truro, on the

farm on which Mr. David Cameron now resides. He died there

December, 1814, aged 80 years, and his widow died at Upper Stewi-

acke, 1835, aged 96 years.

WiUiam Hamilton, their eldest son, was born in Ireland, December

28th, 1758, and was brought by his parents to Nova Scotia when he

was in the 13th year of his age. He was married to Louisa Thomson,

daughter of Aaron Thomson, of Onslow, January 29th, 1789. He had

been living in Brookfield and clearing his farm four or five years before

he was married, and they resided there the remainder of their lives.

He died there January 20th, 1838, aged 79 years, and his widoAV died

December 19th, 1846, aged 79 years.

Sarah Hamilton, their eldest daughter, was born April 14th,

1791. She was married to Adam Bliller, third son of Isaac Miller

23
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and Elizabeth Dickey, March 12th, 1829. They have three

daughters. Agues Hamilton, their second daughter, was born July

7th, 1793. She was married to Captain Samuel Soley, of the

Lower Village of Truro, July 29th, 1813. They had seven sons and

two daughters.

Aaron Hamilton, their eldest son, was born Jany. 30th, 1796. He

was married to N"ancy Boomer, daughter of Joseph and Jane Boomer,

September 25th, 1820. He settled on the farm that his son William

now resides upon, west of the Brookfield station, where he and his

wife spent the remainder of their lives. He died there March 10th,

1844, aged 48 years, and his wife died April 28th, 1844, aged 55

years. William Hamilton, their eldest son, was born June 9th, 1821,

He was married to Margaret Jeffers, April, 1848. They had three

sons and one daughter. Mrs. Hamilton died March 17th, 1864, and

he was married again to Martha Jane Withrow, March 3rd, 1868. He
inherits what was his father's farm. They had one son. James

Joseph, the second son of Aaron and Nancy Hamilton, was born

October 8th, 1822. He was married to Margaret WiUiams, May
13th, 1852. They had two sons and four daughters. He removed

and settled at Point Brule, May, 1867. He has held a Commission

of the Peace several years. Mary, the eldest daughter of Aaron and

Nancy Hamilton, was born July 7th, 1827. She removed to the

State of Maine, and was married to James Wright, an Englishman.

They had one son and one daughter. Louisa, the second daughter of

Aaron and Nancy Hamilton, was born July 7tli, 1829. She removed

to South Boston, and died there October 1st, 1850, aged 21 years.

Elizabeth, the third daughter of William and Louisa Hamilton, was

born May 24th, 1798. She was married to John Conley, February

13th, 1824. They had two sons and two daughters. She died June

18th, 1834, aged 36 years.

Eobert, the second son of WiUiam and Louisa Hamilton, was born

April 30th, 1800. He was married to Sophia, the eldest daughter of

Peter and Mehetabel Stevens, March 10th, 1825. He inherited a

part of his father's farm in Brookfield, and built the two story house

in which Mr. Robert Dinsmore now resides. He died at North

River, January, 1857, aged 56 years Peter Stevens Hamilton, their

eldest son, was born in Brookfield, January 3rd, 1826. He studied

the law, and now resides in Halifax. He was married to Anne,

daughter of Thomas I. Brown, Esq., and Rachel Pearson, December

8th, 1849. They had three sons and two daughters. Louisa, the
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•eldest datighter of Robert and Sophia Hamilton, was born March 3rd,

1828. She died October, 1835, aged seven years. Mehetabel, their

•second daughter, was born June 30th, 1830. She removed to Boston,

and was married there to Alexander Fraser. They had two sons and

one daughter. Edmond W. Hamilton, their second son, was born

January 18th, 1835. He was married to Nancy Harriet, daughter of

Simeon H. Blair and Janet McCurdy, September 21st, 1858. They

had one son and three daughters, besides several others that died

young. George R. Hamilton, their third son, was born May 16th,

1839. He removed to British Columbia. Helen Mercy, their third

daughter, was born February 27th, 1837. She was married to John

McCullion, of Pugwash. They had two daughters. She died June

11th, 1870, and her husband died July, 1872. Laura Hamilton,

their fourth daughter, was born June 16th, 1846. She removed to

the United States.

"William, the third son of "William and Louisa Hamilton, was born

November 17th, 1803. He was married to Martha Prestley, June

1st, 1834. Emeline, their daughter, was born May 29th, 1835. He

was married again to Mary Irwin, widow of the late Duncan Mc-

Shanick, April, 1864. fl^^y have two sons and two daughters. He

inherits a part of what was his father's farm in Brookfield, and goes

by the name of Queer Bill. Louisa, the fourth daughter of William

and Louisa Hamilton, was born July 20th, 1806. She was married

to James Stevens, Esq., January 22nd, 1829. They had six sons and

live daughters

Archibald Hamilton, their fourth son, was born February 17th,

1810. He was married to Ruth, daughter of Peter and Mehetabel

Stevens, November 29th, 1830. He inlierits the homestead and a

part of what was his father's farm at Brookfield. Maria Hamilton, the

eldest daughter of Archibald and Ruth Hamilton, was born May 30th,

1832. She was married to James Dinsmore. They had two sons and

four daughters. Esther, their second daughter, was born August 5th,

1833. She removed to the United States, and was manied tliere to

George Edwards. They have one son. Alfred, their eldest son, was

bom June 16th, 1835. He was married to Rachel Wrath, October

27th, 1857. They have two sons and three daughters. Rhoda, their

third daughter, was born June 24th, 1839. She was married to Mr.

Hawes, of the United States, and had one daughter. Mr. Hawee

•died, and she was married again to Mr. Oliver, of the United States.

They have one son. They now reside in Granville, K S. David,
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their second son, was bom August 1st, 1841. He removed t^'

Kansas, U. S,, and was married there to Dorah McLain, about the

year 1865. Minerva, their fourth daughter, was born January, 184:5>

Harriett, their fifth daughter, was born March 31st, 1847. She

removed to the United States, and was married there to Joseph

"Wilkens. They had one son and one daughter. William Augustus,

their third son, was born July 1st, 1849. Thressa, their sixth

daughter, was bori^ August 30th, 1851, Sophia^ their seventh

daughter, was born May 6th, 1854.

Mary, the eldest daughter of Eobert Hamilton, Sen., and Agnes

Ferguson, was born in Ireland, January 21st, 1761. She was

brought by her parents to iN'ova Scotia when ten years o-ld. She was

married to John, the eldest son of Thomas Archibald and Janet Orr,^

in the year 1784. They bad four sons and four daughters, who

appear among the Archibald families. She died at Brookfield, August

20th, 1847, aged 86 years; and hei husband died at Upper Stewiacke,

September 1st, 1832. Margaret, their second daughter, was bom
October 4th, l763i She died unmarried.

Eobert Hamilton, second son of Robert and Agnes Hamilton, was

born in Ireland, February 16th, 1765. He was brought by his

parents to JS'ova Scotia when six years old. He was married to Phebe

Ann, the eldest daughter of David McCollum, Sen., and Margaret

Moore, in iN'ovember, 1794. They had one daughter. Her name

was J^ancy. She died when about ten years old. He settled on the

farm that Charles Cox recently owned, on the interval south of the

Eiver in Upper Stewiacke, and he died there in December, 1815.

His widow was married again to Eobert Gammell, June 20-th, 1816.

She died April 8th, 1859, aged 82 years.

John Hamilton,, the third son of Eobert Hamilton, Sen., and Agnes

Ferguson, was born in Ireland, July 31st, 1768. He was brought by

his parents to Nova Scotia when three years old. He was married to

Elizabeth, daughter of Thomas Archibald and Janet Orr, October

27th, 1796. He settled in Brookfield; and, in January, 1800, he

was paralyzed. (And, on this occasion, the Eev, John Waddell-

visited him, and j)reached the first sermon that was ever preached in-

Brookfield. His text was Isaiah 35th chapter and 1st verse—"The

wilderness and the solitary place shall be glad for them ; and the

desert shall rejoice, and blossom as the rose.") Shortly after this, he

removed to Upper Stewiacke, and resided there for about eight or nine

years, and then returned to Brookfield, where he spent the remainder
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jgf Ms clays. He died July 1st, 1835, aged 67 years, having been for

.thirty-five years deprived of the use of his limbs. His wife died

February 18th, 1831, aged 60 years. They were buried in the Truro

Cemetery.

Thomas Hamilton, their eldest sou, was born in Brookfield,

October 29th, 1.797. He was married to Agnes, daughter of "VViniam

Carter and Agnes Cox, his wife, AprU 8th, 1830. They settled in

Brookfield, where they reared their family. He died there July 14th,

1868, aged 71 years. His widow perished on the railroad, above

WiUiam Murray's, in February, 1873. Elizabeth, the eldest daughter

of Thomas and Agues Hamilton, was born January 17th, 1831. She

was married to George Eisa in ISTovember, 1858. Eleanor, their

second daughter, was born June 6th, 1832. She died when young.

Charles Hamilton, their eldest son, was born JN'ovember 2nd, 1834.

He was married to Catherine McCulloeh, of Pictou, November, 1857.

They had four sons and one daughter. They reside in Truro. John

Hamilton, their second son, was barn August 20th, 1836. He was

married to Sarah Jones, Jrdy 12th, 1862. They have three sons.

IS^ancy, their third daughter, was born April 10th, 1837. She was

married to Alexander Davies, October, 1864. They have three sons.

Oeorge and Eleanor, twins, were born October 2€th, 1841. Eleanor

was married to George Bagleman, JS'ovember 15th, 1859. They have

five sons and one daughter.

Robert, the second son of John and Elizabeth Hamilton, was born

September 23rd, 1799. He was married to Jane, the only daughter

of WiUiam and Mary Soley, of the Lower Village of Truro, October

27th, 1825, He inherits a part of what was his itither's farm in

Brookfield. He has been a Justice of the Peace for about thirty

years. John Hamilton, their eldest son, was born March 1st, 1827.

He was married to Eleanor, daughter of William Moore and Alice

Kennedy, January 30th, 1851. They now reside in the house with

his parents. William Soley Hamilton, their second son, was born

Jiily 5th, 1831. He was married to Martha Eyan, May 1st, 1856.

They have four sons and five daughters. He now carries on the

blacksmith business in Brookfield. Mary, the eldes-t daughter of

Eobert and Jane Hamilton, was born September 16th, 1828. She

died February 23rd, 1831. Mary Jane, their second daughter, was

born March 8th, 1834. She was married to James Kennedy, Febru-

ary 14th, 1865. They have three sons. They now reside about two

-miles north of Brookfield. Samuel George Hamilton, their third son,
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was iDorn April 5th, 1836. He died March 11th, 1842. James

Hamilton, their fourth son, was born July &th, 18-38. Baxter

Hamilton, their fifth son, was born JSTovember llth, 1841. He was

married to Lavinia Clark, August, 18-64. They have three sons and

two daughters.

Elizabeth and John Hamilton, twin daughter and son of John

and Elizabeth Hamilton, were born in Stewiacke, September 23rd,,

1803. Elizabeth was married to Edward Brinton, and had four sons

and six daughters. John Hamilton ^vas married to Martha, daughter

of Moses Clarke and Elizabeth Fisher, his wife, December 20th, 1832..

Martha Clarke was born December 31st, 1814. They now reside on

the homestead that was his father's. Moses Clarke Hamilton, their-

eldest son, was born February 18th, 1834. He was married to Maria

Jane Dinsmore, of Economy, January 28th, 1868. Timothy Hamilton,,

their second son, was born Kovember 19th, 1839. He was married

to Ellen Boomer, April 28th, 1866. They have one son and two

daughters. Anne, the only daughter of John and Martha Hamilton,

was born April 2nd, 184L She was married to Dr. Charles H.

Munro, of Pictou County, September, 1861. They liave one son and

three daughters.

William, the fourth son of John and Elizabeth Hamilton, was born

in Stewiacke, January 24th, 1807'. He died a bachelor, September

9th, 1868, aged 61 years. Hants Hamiltott, their fifth son, was

born in Stewiacke, May 10th, 1809. He was married to Phebe Ann,,

daughter of John Archibald and Mary Hamilton, December 27th,

1830. They had one son and two daughters. Mrs. Hamilton died

August, 1837, and he was married again to Mary, daughter of Hants

Hamilton and Jane, his wif8> of Upper Stewiacke, November 27th,

1839. They had five sons and three daughters. He resided for some

time in what was his father's old house, at Brookfield, and then

removed to Pembroke, in Upper Stewiacke, where they now reside.,

Agnes, the second daughter of Jolon and Elizabeth Hamilton, was-

born in Brookfield, August 21st, 1811. She was married to John

Carter, November 29th, 1827. Tliey had five sons and fourdaughtei-s.

She died Juiiie 13th, 1854, aged 43' years. Eachel Hamilton, their

third daughter, was bom April 16th, 1814. She was married to John
Clarke, in 1833. They had three sons and two daughters. They
now reside in Masstown, Londonderry..

Archibald, the fourth son of Robert Hamilton, Sen., and Agnes-,



Genealogical Record. 359

Ferguson, was born March 19 th, 1771, on the passage out. He died

a bachelor.

George Hamilton, their fifth son, was born in Truro, January 5th,

1774. He was married to Eleanor Wilson Archibald, third daughter

of Matthew and Janet Archibald, N"ovember 23rd, 1802, He built

the house that Mr. George McLeod now resides in, on the north side

of Salmon Eiver, in which he resided. He carried on the shoe-making

business in a shop that stood on the banlc, where Mr. William Mc-

Leod now resides. He then sold out in Truro, and removed to

Upper Stewiacke, to the farm that Mr. Hugh Dunlap now resides

upon, where he spent the remainder of his days. He died there

September 13th, 1842, aged 68 years, and his mfe died August 15th,

1857, aged 76 years.

Robert and JNIatthew Hamilton, their twin sons, Avere born in

Truro, October 11th, 1803. Eobert was married to Ann, the eldest

daughter of David Hingley and Sarah Fidton, of Merigomish, July

27th, 1837. They had three sons and three daughters. They reside

on the south side of Stewiacke Eiver, Upper Settlement. Matthew,

their oliher twin son, was married to Catherine Holdman in 1833.

They had six sons and three daughters. Mrs. Hamilton died, and he

was married again to Susan Dean, of Musquodoboit. They had three

sons. He settled, and stiU resides in Musquodoboit. JSTancy, the

eldest daughter of George and Eleanor W. Hamilton, was born in

Truro, September 19th, 1805. She was married to John Holdman,

of Musquodoboit, They had seven sons and four daughters. She

died some time ago. Janet Hamilton, their second daughter, was

born March 17th, 1810. She was married to John G. D. Archibald,

February 8th, 1838. They had three sons and tliree daughthrs.

Barry Hamilton, their third son, was born April 24th, 1812. He

was married to Agnes Jane, second daughter of James M. McCurdy

and Margaret Miller, March 17th, 1840. They had two sons and one

daughter. Mrs. Hamilton died April 19th, 1846. He was married

again to Susan Dunlap, widow of the late William Gammell, Esq.,

January 15th, 1850. They had two daughters. Mrs. Hamilton died

December 29th, 1860, and he was married again to Alice Tupper,

widow of the late James Creelman, Esq., January 2nd, 1862. Phebe

Ann, the third daughter of George and Eleanor W. Hamilton, was ,

born February, 1814. She was married to Alexander McDougall, of

Musquodoboit, August, 1841. They had one son and one daughter.

Mr. McDougall died January, 1848, and she was married again to
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John Ogilvie, of Musquodoboit. They had two sons and two

daughters. George, the fourth son of George and Eleanor "W-

Hamilton, Avas born in 1816. He was married to Margaret, daughter

of William Eraser and Eleanor Archibald, of the ]\Iiddle Eiver of

Pictou. They had two sons and tliree daughters. He settled in

Pictou, where he spent the remainder of his life. He died there in

September, 1860, aged 44 years. Elizabeth Hamilton their fourth

daughter, was born in 1818. She was married to George Archibald,

March 30th, 1839. They had five sons and one daughter. Sarah

Hamilton, their fifth daughter, was born in 1820. She was married

to Thomas Ellis Archibald, Eebruary, 1850. They liad three sons

and four daughters. These last two families have removed to the

United States. Eleanor Hamilton, their sixth daughter, was born in

1822. She was married to David Eisher in 1849. They had two

daughters. She died in 1860.

Agnes, the third daughter of Robert Hamilton, Sen., was born in

Truro, April 26th, 1776. She died when young.

Hants, the sixth and youngest son of Eobert Hamilton, Sen., and

Agnes Eerguson, was born in Truro, January 1st, 1780. He was

married to Jane, daughter of James Cottom, of Debert River, and

Mary Wilson, November 14th, 1811. They settled in Upper Stewi-

acke, on the north side of the Eiver, where they reared their family.

He died there in 1856, aged 76 years, and his widow died in May,

1859, aged 66 years. She was born Eebruary 22nd, 1793. Agnes

Hamilton, their eldest daughter, was born April 24th, 1813. She

died January 6th, 1817, aged nearly four years. Mary, their second

daughter, was born Eebruary 28th, 1815. She was married to Hants,

son of John Hamilton, N"ovember 27th, 1839. They had five sons

and three daughters. Eobert, the eldest son of Hants and Jane

Hamilton, was born January 27th, 1817. He died unmarried, Febru-

ary 16th, 1839, aged 22 years. Agnes, their third daughter, was born

November 30th, 1818. She died November 12th, 1823, aged five

years. James Hamilton, their second son, was born April 11th, 1821.

He was married to Hannah H. Murray, of Musquodoboit, December

31st, 1841. They had one son and five daughters. He died April

6th, 1861, aged 40 years, and his widow was married again to William

Deyarmond. Hants, the third son of Hants and Jane Hamilton, Avas

born January 5th, 1823. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter of

William Dunlap and Eachel Logan, They had three sons and five

daughters. Mrs. Hamilton died June SOtli, 1865, aged 37 yearf.
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John Hamilton, their fourth son, was born February 22nd, 1825.

He removed to the United States, and was married there to Hannah

Lylia, and they have a family of children. Jane, their third daughter,

was born August 27th, 1827. She was married to James Eutherford.

They had two sons and one daughter. She died in February, 1862,

aged 35 years. Susan, the fourth daughter of Hants and Jane

Hamilton, was born March 1st, 1830. She was married to Daniel

Eently in 1849. They had one son and four daughters. Margaret,

their fifth daughter, was born January 16th, 1832. She was married

to Thomas Croker in 1858. Mr. Croker died April 22nd, 1871.

They had two sons and two daughters. William Alexander Hamilton,

their fifth son, was born February 9th, 1834. He was married to

Martha, daughter of William Gammell, Esq., and Susan Dunlap,

October 8th, 1863. They have one son and one daughter. He
inherits what was his father's farm. Eebecca Hamilton, their sixth

daughter, was born February 22nd, 1837. She Avas married to James

Thompson, December 27th, 1866. Eobert Samuel Hamilton, their

sixth and youngest son, was born March 15th, 1840. He was married

to Janet Proven, December 31st, 1870.

CHAPTEE LX.

James Fulton was among the early settlers of Truro, but not a

Grantee. He was born in Ireland in the year 1726, and his wife,

Ann Collwell, was born in the year 1728. They were married about

the year 1753, and removed to Halifax, Nova Scotia, in the year 1761.

They settled at LaHave for about two years, and then removed to

Cumberland in the spring of 1764, and remained there about twelve

years. As there was considerable difficulty in Cumberland at the

time of the American war, they removed to Pictou, and continued

there about four or five years \ then they removed again to the Lower

Village of Truro. In removing from Pictou to Truro they underwent

great hardships. They had then to travel through the woods without

any road, and carry their stuff and their children on their backs.

This journey occupied the whole of the week, although they had the

assistance of several men—(the late James Kennedy was one wlio

assisted them.) While on their way there came on a snow storm,

which caused them much sufi'ering, as they had to stop in the woods
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five nights, and one niglit in particular, their fire works being damp,

they could get no fire for some time, and were in great danger of

perishing. When they arrived in Truro, they settled on the same

place Mr. Charles Crow now resides, in the Lower Tillage, where Mr.

Fulton spent the remainder of his days. He died about the year

1792, and his wife died March, 1812, aged 84 years.

John, their eldest son, was born in Ireland about the year 1754,

and was brought by his parents to I^ova Scotia when about seven,

years old. He was married to Mary Simpson in the year 1775.

John Simpson Fulton, their eldest son, was born in 1776. He
removed with his father to Ohio, U. S., about the year 1811. He
died there in 1814. Ann, the eldest daughter of John Fulton and

]\Iary Simpson, was born in the year 1778. She was married to

Eddy Tupper, October 12th, 1798. They had three sons and five

daughters, who appear among the Tupper families. Janet T., the

second daughter of John and Mary Fulton, was born in 1780. She

was married to Daniel Ross, of Pictou, 1799. They had two sons and

five daughters. They removed to Ohio, U. S., in 1811, and died

there. Mary, another daughter of John and Mary Fulton, was

married to William Pollock. They removed to Ohio, U. S., and died

there. Elizabeth, their fourth daughter, was married to John

Crockett, of Pictou. They had nine sons and nine daughters. She

died in Pictou in the year 1867. Sarah Fulton, their fifth daughter,

was married to David Hingley in 1812. They had four sons and five

daughters. They settled in Merigomish. Mr. Hingley is dead.

William, the youngest son of John and Mary Fulton, was born in

the year 1792. He was married to Janet, daughter of John Blackie,

of Pictou, in 1826. They had one son and four daughters. He died

in Stewiacke in 1840, aged 48 years. His wife died in the year 1857.

John Fulton's first wife died, and he was married again to Christie

second daughter of the Rev. Daniel Cock and widow of Mahew
Tupper. They removed to Ohio, XJ. S., and died there.

William, the second son of James Fulton and Ann CoUwell, was

born in Ireland in the year 1757, and was brought by his parents to

IS^ova Scotia when about four years old. He was married to Sarah,

the eldest daughter of James Dunlap and Mary Johnson, in the year

1783. He Avas one of the eight who removed to Upper Stewiacke in

the spring of the year 1784. He settled on the same place that his

grandson, William Fulton, Esq., now resides, where he and his wife

spent many happy days. He died there December 11th, 1812, aged
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55 years, and his wife died September 20th, 1814, aged 49 years.

John J. Fulton, their eldest son, was born in the year 1784. He was

married to Sarah, the second daughter of Eolsert Corbett and Susannah

Fletcher, of Londonderry, in the year 1808. He settled first at the

South Branch of Stewiacke, and about the year 1818, he exchanged

farms with Stephen Johnson, and removed to the Lower Village of

Truro, to the same place that his grandfather lived and died. He
built the house in wliich Mr. Charles Crowe now resides. He
continued to reside in this house until some time after his first Avife

died. She died about the year 1838. He was married again ta

Janet, the eldest daughter of James and Agnes McCurdy, of Onslow,

widow of the late John Kent. He died June, 1856, aged 72 years,,

and left no family. His widow died September 1st, 1870, aged 84

years. James Fulton, their second son, was born in Stewiacke in the

year 1786. He was married to Margaret, the second daughter of

James Kent, Esq., and Marg-aret Williams in the year 1810. He
settled on the farm adjoining the east side of WilHam Cox's farm,,

after the death of Mahew Tupper, who had occupied it until his death.

He resided in the house that George Fulton, Esq., now occupies,

where he kept an Inn until the time of his death. He died there

suddenly, March 18th, 1829, aged 43 years, and left a widow, five

sons and three daughters to mourn their loss. His widow died at

Londonderry, February 1st, 1870, in the 83rd year of her age.

Joseph Fulton, the third son of William and Sarah Fulton, was

born in Stewiacke in the year 1788, and it is said that he was the

first child who was baptized in Upper Stewiacke. He was married to

Eleanor, the third daughter of Eobert Corbett and Susan Fletcher, of

Londonderrj^, about the year 1812. They had four sons and five

daughters. He inherited his father's property in Upper Stewiacke,

Avhere he resided and kept an Inn, where his son William recently

resided. He was a Justice of the Peace for a number of years before

his death. He died December 6th, 1842, aged 54 years, and his.

widow was married again to John Graham, of Hants Co. Mary, the

eldest daughter of William and Sarah Fulton, was born in the year

1790. She was married to Major Alexander L. Archibald, December

13th, 1810. They had four sons and two daughters, who appear

among the Archibalds. She died September 8th, 1828, aged 38 years,,

and her husband died February 12th, 1859, aged 71 years.

Samuel, the fourth son of William and Sarah Fulton, was bom in

the year 1792. He learned the tanning and shoemaking trade with



364 Historical and

his brother-in-law, Major A. L, ArcliiLalcl, and then purchased a place

and built the house in which ]\Ir. Charles li. Blair now resides.

Here he built a tannery and made preparations for carrying on an

extensive business ; but being disappointed in securing the affections

of a certain young lady, on whom he fancied his happiness depended,

he suddenly deeded his property away, left his business unsettled, and

emigrated to the United States in 1816, and never returned.

Adam, the fifth son of William and Sarah Fulton, was born in

the year 1795. He was a very short man, and not very healthy.

He lived a while with his brother John, in the Lower Village of

Truro, Avhere he died a bachelor, January 17th, 1820, aged 25 years.

Jane, their second daughter, was born March, 1797. She was married

to Jonathan Marsters, a Barrister, February 8th, 1821. Mr. Marsters

purchased the house which was owned by the late Matthew Archibald,

which is standing yet, near the bank of the River, on Bible Hill, and

is owned by Rev. Dr. McCuUoch. Here Mr. Marsters spent the

remainder of his days.

Ebenezer, the sixth and youngest son of "VViUiam and Sarah

Fulton, was born December 27th, 1799. He was married to Jane,

the youngest daughter of Robert Gammell and Margaret Kennedy

March 25th, 1824, They had three sons and one daughter. Mrs.

Fulton died K'ovember 30th, 1836, aged 32 years. He was married

again to Sophia, widow of the late John Corbett, May 7th, 1840.

They had four sons and two daughters. Mr. Fulton's second wife

died March 27th, 1863, aged 51 years. He purchased the farm in

Middle Stewiacke that John Corbett, senr., had owned for nearly

twenty years. He stOl occupies it.

Rachel, the third daughter of "VViUiam and Sarah Fulton, was

born 1802. She was married to Ebenezer Munro, Esq., December

10th, 1832. (He is now. Judge of Probate for the County of Col-

chester).

Ann, their fourth and youngest daughter, was born 1804. She

was married to John Goudge, February 26th, 1825. They now

reside in Halifax.

Samuel Fulton was another son of James Fulton, Senr., and Ann
Collwell. He was married to ]\fary, the second daughter of James and

Mary Dunlap. She died in Stewiacke not long after they were

married. He was married again to Alice, the fourth daughter of

Eliakim Tupper, Esq. , and Elizabeth Xewcomb. This is said to be the

first marriage in Upper Stewiacke. It took place in the house of
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Bamuel Fislier, wlio was married to her eldest sister. They removed

to Ohio, U. S. Their son, EKakim, returned a few years ago and

spent the winter in Stewiacke among his relatives.

Joshua was another son of James and Ann Fulton. He was

married to iNfancy Simson, the youngest sister of John Fulton's wife.

He symj)athized very much with the Americans during the time of

their rebellion, and not long after they gained their independence he

removed to N'ew York, and we know nothing of him or any of his

descendants. Ann, daughter of James and Ann Fulton, was horn in

Cumberland, in the year 1765. She was married to James, son of

James and Elizabeth Johnson, December 10th, 1786. They had

three sons and six daughters. She died at Stewiacke January 15 th,

1824, aged 59 years, and her husband died October 11th, 1842,

aged 84 years. Elizabeth, another daughter of James and Ann

Fulton, was married to John Johnson. They had one son and

two daughters. Mr. Johnson died at Stewiacke July 1st, 1799.

She was married again to Robert Logan. They had one son and one

daughter. She died February 20th, 1827, and her second husband

died December 31st, 1833, aged 70 years, Jane, the youngest

daughter of James and Ann Fulton, was married to Caleb Putnam, of

Maitland, in the year 1787. They had two sons and six daughters.

She Avas Mr. Putnam's second wife. She and her husband both died

some time ago. Mr. Putnam died September, 1838.

CHAPTEE LXI.

Samuel Creelman was born in Ireland, about the year 1728. He

was married to Isabell Flemming, about the year 1 748. He was a

cooper by trade. He removed Avith his wife and family to I^ova

Scotia, and arrived in Halifax in the fall of the year 1761. They

went to Lunenburg that fall, where they spent a hard winter, subsist-

ing mostly on the eels they caught. In the spring of the year 1762,

they returned to Halifax, and he worked that summer at his trade

;

and, in the faU, he removed to Cumberland. When he was leaving

Halifax, he raised his hands and voice exclaiming against the town,

as the most wicked place that he ever beheld. He remained in

Cumberland until the fall of the year 1771, or the spring of 1772,
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when he remot^ed and settled at the Black Rock, on the west end of

the Township of Truro. When he was removing with his family

from Cumberland, he took passage in a vessel with Captain Lockard.

When they arrived, they were landed on the point, on the east side of

Shubenacadie River. This point is known by the name of Lockard's

point ever since. He purchased a lot of land that Was laid off for David

Archibald, Esq., as five hundred acres, extending from the point

before mentioned four miles up the Subenacadie, and fronting on the

River. Also another lot, the same size, adjoining the first lot, and on

the east side of it. On these lots he continued to reside the remainder

of his days. He died at his son Matthew's house, which place is now

called Princeport, aboiit the year 1810. His wife died several years

before. They were buried near the house of Mr. James Davis, about

one mile from the Black Rock. It may here be observed that his

forefathers names were Ashmore, and that some of them had a large

contract for carrying provisions to a number of convicts, which they

did in Creels carried across the horse's back, and by this the name was

changed from Ashmore to (7reeZman. The name of Ashmore is still

kept as a second name by some of the Creelmans.

Samuel, the eldest son of Samuel Creelman, Sen., and Isabell

Flemming, was born in Ireland, in the year 1751, and was brought

by his parents to Nova Scotia when he was ten year* old. He was

married to Mary Campbell, of Londonderry, about the year 1775.

He removed to Upper Stewiacke in the year 1786, and settled on the

farm that was afterwards owned by his three sons, William, John and

Andrew. He built the first mill that was built on the brook on the

south side of the River, on which the spinning machine now stands.

He had his first house on the interval, near the River, and he built his

next house on the same place where Mr. Daniel Webster now resides.

Here he spent the remainder of his days. He died in October, 1835,

aged 84 years, and his wife died August 20th, 1831.

IsabeU, the eldest daughter of Samuel Creelman and Mary

Campbell, was born in the year 1777. She was married to the Rev.

Duncan Ross, of the West River of Pictou, in the year 1796. They

had nine sons and six daughters. She died in May, 1845, aged 68

years, and her husband died October 25th, 1834, aged 65 years.

Esther Creelman, their second daughter, was born in the year 1779.

She was married to George, son of James Fulton, Esq., and Margaret

Campbell, of Bass River, about the year 1797. They had six sons

and three daughters. They settled on the fartn that their son, John,
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now resides upon, on the south side of Stewiacke Eiver. Here they

spent the remainder of their lives. She died June 4th, 1821, aged

42 years. Mr. Fulton was married again to Ann, daughter of John
and Mary Fulton, widow of the late Eddy Tupper, in the year 1822.

Mr. Fulton died in Fehruary, 1858.

James, the eldest son of Samuel and Mary Creelman, was born

November 2nd, 1781. He was married to Margaret Graham, of

Pictou, in the year 1803. He settled on the farm that his son.

Charles, now resides upon, near Springside Church, where he spent

the remainder of his days. He died September 12th, 1863, aged 82

years. David, the eldest son of James and Margaret Creelman, waa

born September 16th, 1804. He was married to Agnes Graham,

daughter of WiUiam and niece of Eev. Hugh Graham. They had

five sons and three daughters. They now reside in Halifax. Mary

Campbell Creelman, their eldest daughter, was born June 6th, 1806.

She was married to Robison, son of Charles Cox and Agnes Thomson,

in the year 1830. They had five sons and five daughters. Mr. Cox

died in Kovember 1871. Elspa Creelman, their second daughter,

was born February 24th, 1808. She was married to William Brown,

They had eight sons and two daughters. Samuel Creelman, their

second son, was born July 12th, 1810. He was married to Janet

Crocket, October, 1850. Mr. Creelman's first wife, Margaret, died

January 25th, 1812, and he was married again to Margaret McGiU,

of the West River of Pictou, in June 1814. Elizabeth, their eldest

daughter, was born March 8th, 1815. She died December 9th, 1823,

in the 9th year of her age. John, their eldest son, was born Septem-

ber 23rd, 1816. He removed to California about the year 1845.

Esther, their second daughter, was born March 3rd, 1819. She

died March 22nd, 1819. Mr. Creelman's second wife died November

22nd, 1820, and he was married again to Martha, daughter of Charles

Cox and Agnes Thomson, February, 1822. Charles Creelman, their

eldest son, was born October 18th, 182.3. He was married to Agnes

Johnson, April 24th, 1849. They had four sons and six daughters.

He inherits what was his father's property, at Springside, Stewiacke.

James Campbell Creelman, their second son, was born December

15th, 1825. He was married to Margaret, daughter of John Gammell

and Sarah Tupper, in the ye;ir 1849. They had one son and one

daughter. He removed to Australia, and from thence to the Fejee

Islands. The natives of the Feejee Islands became troublesome to

the white settlers. The war-ship " Challenge," of H. M. Australian
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fleet, under Commodore Lamtert, was sent to chastise tliem. In an

engagement between ninety men, who were sent on shore, and the

natives, Mr. Creebnan, acting as pilot at the request of the Commo-

dore, received two gun shot wounds, from the effects of which he died

in four days, August 3rd, 1868. His wife died December 3rd, 1852.

Agnes, their eldest daughter, was born May 22nd, 1828. She was

married to John Ellis in the year 1847. Mr. Ellis died, and she

removed to the United States and was married there to Duncan

Davis, and has four daughters. "William Creelman, their third son,

was born January 10th, 1831. He was married to Agnes, daughter

of Archibald Cox and Mary Alexander, of Hants County, May 26th,

1859. They have two sons. Andrew Creelman, their fourth

son, was born April 20th, 1833. He was married to Hetty Sterling,

of Hants County, in the year 1863. They have three sons. They

removed to the United States. Elizabeth, their second daughter, was

born July 7th, 1835. She was married to Hugh G. Cox, third son of

John and Margaret Cox, March 8th, 1861. They have one son and

four daughters. Francis, their fifth son, was born February 15th,

1839. He died September 21st, 1852, aged 13 years. Hannah, their

third and youngest daughter, was born August 12th, 1851. She died

January 21st, 1860, in the ninth year of her age. Mr. Creelman's

third wife died January 17th, 1856.

William, the second son of Samuel and Mary Creelman, was born

Aj)ril 17th, 1784, two years before they removed to Stewiacke. He
was married to Hannah, the eldest daughter of Samuel Tupper, Esq.,

and Elizabeth Archibald, January 20th, 1808. He inherited a part

of what was his father's farm, where he spent the remainder of his

days. He died September 9th, 1857, aged 73 years, and his widow

died September 27th, 1865, aged 78 years. Samuel, the eldest son

of William and Hannah Creelman, was born IS'ovember 19th, 1808.

He was married to Elizabeth Elliott EUis, February 11th, 1834. He
represented the Coimty of Colchester in the House of Assembly of

this Province from the year 1847 until 1851, and from this time to

the year 1 855 he represented the South District of Colchester. In the

year 1860 he was appointed a member of the Legislative Council of

ISTova Scotia, and still retains his seat. Eliakim, the second son of

WiUiam and Hannah Creelman, was born September 25th, 1811.

He was married to Grizell EUis, December 19th, 1836. They had

two sons and five daughters. Elizabeth, their eldest daughter, wa3

born November 18th, 1813. She was married to David A,, second
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son of William and Eleanor Fraser, of the INIiddle River of Pictou,

February 11th, 1834. They now reside in Truro Village. Robert

Creelman, their third son, was born January 12th, 181G. He was

married to Susan, the fourth daughter of William and Susan Archibald,

January 29th, IS-ll. They have four sons and three daughters,

besides a number that died young. He carries on tanning. Mary
Ann, their second aaughter, was born June 5th, 1820. She was

married to John Kelly, April, 1847. They now reside in Halifax.

Rachel, their third daughter, was born October 7th, 1822. She was

married to James D. Graham, youngest son of the Rev. Hugh
Graham, March 4th, 1845. They, had live sons and two daughters.

Jane Creelman, their fourth daughter, was born April 13th, 1827.

She was mar-ied to Adam McLeod, May 3rd, 1860. They have two

daughters. William Creelman, their fourth and youngest son, was

born July 13th, 1828. He was married to Sarah, daughter of

Andrew Cox and ISTancy Thomson, February, 1851. They had four

sons and tliree daughters. He was one of the men who first started

the Spinning Machine in Upper Stewiacke, in the year 1862.

Hannah, the third daughter of Samuel and jMary Creelman, was

born in the year 1786. She was married to John McDonald, of

Pictou, in the year 1803. They had six sons and three daughters.

She died, and her husband died.

Samuel, the third son of Samuel and ^Mary Creelman, was born in

the year 1788. He was married to Margaret, daughter of James

Fulton, Esq.', and Margaret Campbell, of Bass River, October, 1810.

They settled on the farm that Barry Hamilton now lives upon. Mr.

Creelman died October 11th, 1817, aged 29 years, and his widoAv was

married again to John Rutherford, of Middle; Stewiacke. She died

February 10th, 1824, aged 31 years. James, the eldest son of Samuel

and Margaret Creelman, was born July 17th, 1812. He was married

to Alice, the fourth daughter of Eddy Tupper and Ann Fulton.

December 5th, 1833. They had eight sons and one daughter. He

inherited his father's homestead and a part of his farm. He was a

Justice of the Peace for some time before he died. He died May

22nd, 1857, aged 44 years, and his widow was married again to Barry

Hamilton, January 2nd, 1862. Samuel, the second son of Samuel

and Margaret Creelman, was born in the year 1814. He was married

to Sarah Tupper (sister of James' wife), November, 1834. They had

three sons and four daughters. He inherited a part of his father's farm

for a time, and afterwards removed three times to different places in

24
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Stewiacke. He died January 3rd, 1866, aged 53 years, and his

widow was married to Jonathan Campbell, April, 1868. George, the

third son of Samuel and Margaret Creelman, was born in the year

1816. He was married to Hannah Jane, the fifth daughter of Thomas

Crowe and Esther Fulton. They had three sons and two daughters.

He died at Bass Eiver, in the year 1859, aged 43 years, and his wife

died. WiUiam, their fourth son, was born April, 1817. He died

June, 1833, aged 16 years.

John, the fourth son of Samuel and Mary Creelman, was born

August 30th, 1790. He was married to Margaret, daughter of James

Rutherford and Elizabeth Johnson, December 8tli, 1812. He
inherited a part of his father's property, where he reared his numerous

family. He died July 5th, 1855, aged 65 years. Duncan Ross

Creelman, their eldest son, was born March 30th, 1814. He was

married to Elizabeth, daughter of John Fletclier and JNIargaret

Graham, of Masstown, October, 1836. They had two sons and four

daughters. Elizabeth, the eldest daughter of John and Margaret

Creelman, was born September 9 th, 1815. She was married to

James, son of James Kennedy and Janet Dickey, January, 1832.

They had four sons and five daughters. Mr. Kennedy died September

7th, 1847, and she was married again to Robert Logan Johnson,

March 20th, 1849. They had two sons and three daughters. Mary,

the second daughter of John and Margaret Creelman, was born

December 8th, 1817. She was married to Robert Frame in the year

1840. They had eight sons and four daughters. They reside at the

South Branch of Stewiacke. James Creelman, their second son, was

born April 16th, 1819. He was married to Isabell Patterson in the

year 1843. They had six sons and six daughters. They removed to

Canada some time ago. Samuel Aslimore Creelman, their third son,

was born November 18th, 1820. He was married to Eleanor, the

only daughter of Hugh G. Cox and Elizabeth Tupper, in the year

1845. They had one son and five daughters. He died at South

Branch, May 4th, 1870, aged 50 years. Esther, their third daughter,

was born July 23rd, 1822. She was married to John Kennedy.

They had three sons and one daughter. Mr. Kennedy died October,

1867. Alexander Creelman, their fourth son, was born July 25th,

1824. He removed to the United States, and was married there to

Martha Robertson. They had one son and four daughters. He died

in the year 1868, aged 44 years. John Creelman, their fifth son, was

born January 1st, 1826. He was married to Sarah Kaulback, of
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Musquodoboit, December 23rd, 1852. They had one son and four

tiaughters. It was he and William Creelman who first started the

Spinning Machine in Stewiacke. He died April 14th, 1863, aged 35

years. Hannah Creelman, their fourth daughter, was born May 3rd,

1828. She was married to Samuel Tupper Dunlap, November, 1854.

They had five daughters. She died November 12th, 1871, aged

43 years. Ann Creelman, their fifth daughter, was born September

-21st, 1829. She was married to David Eraser, October, 1847. She

died March 21st, 1862, aged 32 years. Margaret Rutherford, John

Creelman's first wife, died June 3rd, 1830, and he was married again

to Susan Johnson, of the Lower Village of Truro, April 12th, 1831.

Margaret Rutherford Creelman, their eldest daughter, was born June

14th, 1832. She was married to Robert, third son of James Dunlap

and Christiann Aikens, March 21st, 1861. They have two sons and

four daughters. Catherine Creelman, their second daughter, was born

October 23rd, 1833. She was married to Francis Cox, December

26th, 1859. They have six sons. Susan Creelman, their third

daughter, was bom Aprd 26th, 1835. She died January 31st, 1836.

Isabell Creelman, their fourth daughter, was born November 28th,

1836. She was married to John Christie Archibald, of Salmon

River, May 9th, 1867. Jane Creelman, their fifth daughter, was bom
September 26th, 1838. She was married to George, third son of

John Johnson and Janet Logan, January 1st, 1862. They have

removed to the United States. Susan, their sixth daughter, was bom
June 11th, 1840. She was married to George Forbes, December 8th,

1859. They had one son and three daughters. Charlotte Creelman,

their seventh daughter, was born November 29 th, 1841. She was

married to Rufus Wilson. They had one daughter. Mr. Wilson

died March 17th, 1870, and she was married again to James W.
Fmiton, of Bass River, December 21st, 1870. Ebenezer Creolman,

their only son, was bora August 5th, 1843. He was married to

Gertrude, daughter of David and Janet McNutt, of North River,

January 31st, 1872. He inherits the homestead and a part of what

was his father's farm. Martha Creelman, their eighth daughter, was

bom October 22nd, 1844. She died March 14th, 1855, aged 10 years.

Janet Creelman, the fourth daughter of Samuel Creelman, 2iid,

and Mary Campbell, was bom in the year 1792. She was married

to Francis Fulton, of Bass River, October, 1810. They had three

sons and four daughters. Mr. Fulton died in January, 1867.

Ann Creelman, their fifth daughter, was born in the year 1794.
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She was married to James Fulton Johnson, Novemher 18th, 1813.

they had two sons and one daughter. Mr. Johnson died Septemher

14th, 1818, and she was married again to James Eoddick, lately from

Scotland. They settled at the West Eiver of Pictou, where they

hoth died some time ago.

Mary Creelman, their sixth daughter, was bom in the year 1796,

She was married to John Dichman, of Musquodohoit, in the year

1815. They had six sons and six daughters. She died April 9th,

1865, aged 69 years, and her husband died May 1st, 1865.

Francis, the fifth son of Samuel Creelman, 2nd, and Mary

Campbell, was born in the year 1798. He was married to Esther,

daughter of John Fulton and Esther Crowe, of Bass River, ISToyember

25th, 1820. They settled at Bass Eiver. Eebecca, the eldest

daughter of Francis and Esther Creelman, was born July 10th, 1823.

She was married to James William, son of Samuel Fulton and

Eebecca O'Brien, February 25th, 1848. She died April 17th, 1870.

He was married again to Charlotte Creelman, widow of the late Eufus

WUson, December 21st, 1870. Mary Jane Creelman, their second

daughter, was bom February 27th, 1825. She was married to John

Logan Johnson, of Stewiacke, March 18th, 1855. Samuel Creelman,

their eldest son, was bom E'ovember 28th, 1827. He was married to

Arabella O'Brien, November 18th, 1857. They had two sons and

four daughters. John Creelman, their second son, was born on the

23rd December, 1829. He was married to Susan Davison, December,

1852. They had two sons and one daughter. Ann Creelman, their

third daughter, was born December 29th, 1835. She was married to

WiUiam Campbell, May, 1862. They had two sons and three

daughters. Francis and Esther Creelman had three sons and one

daughter that died young.

Andrew, the sixth and youngest son of Samuel and Mary Creel-

man, was bom January 23rd, 1802. He was married to Susan,

daughter of James and Ann Johnson, of Middle Stewiacke, December

28th, 1824. They settled on what was a part of his father's farm for

a time, and then exchanged farms with Matthew Creelman, and

ramoved to Otterbrook. Some time after this they removed to

the Newton Mills, where they spent the remainder of their lives. He
died July 15th, 1867, aged 65 years, and his "wife died January 11th,

1863, aged 61 years. She was deprived of her sight a number of

years before she died. James, their eldest son, was born October 31st,

1825. He was married to Elizabeth, daughter of Eobert and Margaret
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Archibald, of Truro, November 22nd, 1853. Tliey had five sons and

three daughters. They are settled at Newton Mills. Xancy Creel-

man, their eldest daughter, was born September 10th, 1827. She was

married to James Thomas Dunlap, of Otterbrook, June 20th, 1848.

They have five sons and five daughters. Samuel Flemming Creelman,

their second son, was born ]S"ovember 10th, 1829. He was married

to Jane, daughter of John Gammell and Sarah Tupper, July, 1860.

They have two sons and four daughters. He is settled near Otter-

brook. Mrs. Creelman died January 16th, 1873. Mary Creelman,

their second daughter, was born December 10th, 1831. She was

married to John Miller, of Pictou, December 27th, 1866. They had

one son and one daughter. Ann Creelman, their third daughter,

was born October 23rd, 1834. She died unmarried, March 7th, 1865,

aged 30 years. Sarah Creelman, their fourth daughter, was born

December 24th, 1836. She was married to Charles Chaplin, of

Middle Stewiacke, December, 1861. They have tliree sons and three

daughters. Duncan Eoss Creelman, third son of Andrew and Susan

Creelman, was born August 12th, 1839. He was married to Mary

Kennedy, January 11th, 1864. They have one son and two daugh-

ters. Adam Creelman, their fourth son, was born February loth,

1842. He died May, 1862, aged 20 years. John Creelman, their

fifth son, was born September 11th, 1844. He was married to Pachel

Erinton, IS'ovember 9th, 1871.

Francis, the second son of Samuel and Isabell Creelman, was born

in Ireland in the year 1759, and was brought by his parents to Nova

Scotia in the year 1761. He was married to Esther Campbell, of

Londonderry, about the year 1782. He continued to reside on the

farm at the Black Eock until about the year 1792. He then exchanged

farms with Eobert Forbes, and removed across the Bay to Debert, and

continued there until the year 1806, when he exchanged farms again,

Avith James Johnson, Junr., and removed to Otterbrook, Stewiacke,

and settled on the farm that James Thomas Dunlap now resides upon,

where he spent the remainder of his days. He died July 23rd, 1836,

aged 77 years, and Esther, liis wife, died February 24th, 1833, aged

72 years.

Samuel, their eldest son, was born in Truro Township, October

31st, 1783. He was married to Mary, the second daughter of

William Cox and Mary Smith, January, 1809. He inherited a part

of what was his father's land, upon Avhich he made improvements and

built a house and barns, being the same on which his two grandsons,
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Samuel and William Smith, now reside. He died there suddenly,

October 11th, 1841, aged 58 years, and his first wife died December

28th, 1816, aged 26 years. He was married again to Eachel, daughter

of Samuel B. Archibald. She died January 16th, 1865, aged 61

years. Esther, the only daughter of Samuel and Mary Creelman, was

born September 17th, 1810. She was married to John Smith, Feby.

17th, 1829. They had five sons and four daughters, who appear

among the Smiths.

James Campbell Creelman, the second son of Francis and Esther

Creelman, was born in Truro, June 1st, 1786. He was married to

Alison Jamison, the eldest daughter of Mahew Tupper and Christiana

Cock, February 4th, 1808. They settled on the farm that John

Smith, Esq,, now resides upon, wliere they reared their family, and

lived together more than fifty years. Mrs. Creelman died there April

22nd, 1860, aged 75 years, and he removed to Halifax with his

youngest son, John. He died there June 30th, 1869, aged 84 years,

and his body was taken to Stewiacke and buried beside his wife.

Isabell Creelman, their eldest daughter, was born October 10th, 1808.

She was manied to John Benvey, of Musquodoboit, October 8th,

1827. They had one son and six daughters. They removed to Sheet

Harbour. She died there November, 1870, aged 62 years. Mr.

Benvey died July, 1872. Christiann Creelman, their second daughter,

was born October 19th, 1810. She was married to Jonathan Camp-

bell, December 24th, 1831. They had seven sons and three daughters.

She died May 25th, 1867, aged 57 years, and Mr. Campbell was

married again to Sarah Tupper, widow of the late Samuel Creelman,

sixth, April, 1868. Esther Creelman, their third daughter, was born

February 18th, 1813. She was married to William Newcomb,

March 27th, 1838. They had five sons and two daughters.

They have resided in Halifax since the year 1848. Jane Creelman,

their fourth daughter, was born July 5th, 1815. She was married to

Henry Campbell, March 11th, 1835. She died April 19th, 1835,

aged 20 years. Mary Creelman, their fifth daughter, was born

September 22nd, 1817. She was married to James EUis, March, 1839.

They had three sons and four daughters. Samuel Creelman, their

eldest son, was born October 22nd, 1819. He was married to Grizell

Ellis, March, 1843. They had two sons and one daughter. They

removed and now reside at Cape John, in the County of Pictou.

Elizabeth Creelman, their sixth daughter, was born April 27th, 1822.

She was married to Peter Suther Smith, March, 1842. They had
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one son and four daughters. She died February 17th, 1861, aged 39

years, and her husband died January 15th, 1859, aged 39 years.

Mahew Tupper Creelman, their second son, was born April 30th,

1824. He was married to Sophia Hall, of Sheet Harbor. They have

one daughter. Jolm, the third and youngest son of James C. and

and Alison J. Creelman, was born November 4th, 1826. He was

married to Louina Bentley, July 15th, 1851. They have six sons

and three daughters. He inherited the homestead and a part of his

father's farm for a few years, and then removed to Halifax, where he

still resides.

Matthew Creelman, the tliird son of Francis and Esther Creelman,

was born at the Black Rock, October 6th, 1788. He was married to

Sarah Webster, of King's County, October 15th, 1822, He inherited

a part of what was his father's farm, for a time, and then he exchanged

farms with Andrew Creelman, and removed up to the place wh^^re

Daniel Webster now resides. He died July 20th, 1856, aged 67

years, and his wife died July 12th, 1851, aged 61 years. Mary, the

eldest daughter of Francis and Esther Creelman, was born in Truro

Township, August 16th, 1790. She was married to David McLellan,

of Londonderry, in July, 1831. They had two daughters. Mr.

McLellan died in 1859. Esther Creelman, their second daughter,

was born September 23rd, 1796. She was married to Robert, son of

Simeon Whidden and Dorothy Blair, of Middle Stewiacke, November

9th, 1813. They had five sons and five daughters. Mr. Whidden

died April 1st, 1834, aged 46 years. Margaret Creelman, their third

daughter, was born March 7th, 1798. She was married to John,

second son of AViUiam and Mary Cox, December 25th, 1821. They

had five sons and two daugliters. Mr. Cox died April 24th, 1867,

aged 71 years. William, the fourth and youngest son of Francis and

Esther Creelman, was born November 30th, 1800. He was married

to Abigail, fifth daughter of Eliakim and Lydia Tupper, January 27th,

1831. He inherited the homestead part of his father's farm at Otter-

brook, until about tlie year 1856. He removed, and is now living

on the south side of the River and interval, near the same place where

Charles Cox settled when he first removed to Stewiacke. Mary Jane,

their eldest daughter, was born August 12th, 1832. She was married

to James Smith, second son of Eliakim Tupper, Esq., and Elizabeth

Newcomb, July 27th, 1859. Eliakim Tupper Creelman, their eldest

son, was born May 5th, 1834. He removed to the United States,

and was married there to Mary Johnson, in June, 1864. They have
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one son. Frank, tlieir second son, was born July 16th, 1836.

Matthew Creelman, their third son, was boni Novemher 28th, 1838.

He learned the harness-making trade in Truro, and removed to the

United States. He was married there to Elizabeth, daughter of the

late John Gammell and Sarah Tupper. William Putnam Creelman,

their fourth son, was born March 28th, 1841. He settled on a new

farm in the woods, and lived there alone, improving his farm. On
the 2nd of April, 1870, he was found dead under a tree, which he had

been cutting down. From several circumstances, it is believed that

he had been in that situation from the 26th of March. During all

this time, his cattle had been confined in the barn without food or

water. Lydia Creelman, their third daughter, was born November

13th, 1843. She was married to George Chaplin, January 23rd, 1863.

They have five sons. They removed to the United States. Charles

Dickie Creelman, their fifth son, was born January 31st, 1848. He
remains at home with his parents. Henry, their sixth son, was born

April 28th, 1850. He has removed to the United States. Esther

Margaret, their third and youngest daughter, was born on the 6th

June, 1852.

Matthew, the third son of Samuel Creelman, Sen., and Isabell

Flemming, was born in Cumberland, in December, 1762. B[e was

married to Nancy Knox, of Londonderry, in the year 1791. They

settled on a part of what was his father's land, about three miles up

the Shubenacadie Eiver, now called Prince Port. On this place they

reared their family and spent the remainder of their days. He died

there August 12th, 1835, aged 72 years, and his wife died March

18th, 1844.

Samuel, their eldest son, was born October 4th, 1794. He was

married to Isabell, the fifth daughter of James Moore and Susan Teas,

December 9th, 1821. They settled on a part of what was his father's

farm, where they spent the remainder of their lives. James Creelman,

their only son, was born December 18th, 1822. He is known by the

name of Farmer Jimmey. He is a Justice of the Peace. He was

married to Susan Messenger, November 13th, 1844. They have three

sons and one daughter. Samuel Creelman's first wife died 1824, and

he was married again to Martha Laughead, December 25th, 1832.

She died April 21st, 1835. He was married again to Rebecca Smith,

widow of the late Robert Alexander, December 20th, 1836. William

Isaiah, their only son, was born August 3rd, 1840. He was married

to Mary, the only daughter of John Sanderson and Mary Forbes,
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June 12th, 1866. Isabell, the only daughter of Samuel and Rebecca

Creelman, was born December 31st, 1837. She was married to

Samuel C. Sanderson, October 13th, 1856. They had three sons and

two daughters. Samuel Creelman died January 8th, 1867, aged 72

years, and Eebecca, his third Avife died January 29th, 1867. Jane,

the eldest daugliter of Matthew and Nancy Creelman, was born

October 10th, 1796. She was married to William Sanderson, Janu-

ary 22nd, 1823. They had six sons and one daughter. Mr.

Sanderson died June 11th, 1868.

John, the second son of Mattliew and Xancy Creelman, was born

September 3rd, 1799. He was married to Eleanor McCollum, of

Hants County, October, 1821. (She came from Scotland a short

time before they were married.) He settled on the high land about

one mile east of his father's place, where his three sons now reside
;

on this place he spent the remainder of his life. He died there very

suddenly on July 7th, 1863, aged 64 years, and his widow died

February 7th, 1865. Abigail, their eldest daughter, was born April

23rd, 1822. She was married to James Hughes, July, 1846. They

had five sons. Jai;ues X. Creelman, eldest son of John and Eleanor,

was born March 24th, 1828. He was married to Sarah, daughter of

John Park and Eebecca Crowe. March 23rd, 1854. They have five

sons and one daughter. Esther Creelman, their second daughter, was

bom June 27th, 1830. She was married to David Dart in 1850.

They have three sons. Samuel Creelman, their second son, was bom
January 28th, 1834. He was married to Letitia Park, January, 1855.

They have three sons and two daughters. William Creelman, their

third son, was born October 27th, 1838. He was married to Catherine

Wilson, November 10th, 1864. They have four sons. Jane, the

third daughter of John and Eleanor Creelman, was born Sept. 11th,

1842. She was married to Martin Curtis, September 21st, 1865.

They have two sons and one daughter.

William, the third son of Matthew and Nancy Creelman, was born

March 17th, 1802. He was married to Susan, third daughter of

James and Jane Laughead, of Clifton, December 9th, 1824. He

inherited the homestead and a large part of what was his father's

farm. He died February 13th, 1873, aged 71 years. Jane, their

eldest daughter, was born July 30th, 1825. She Avas married to

WiUiam, the only living son of James Philips and Margaret !Moore.

They had two sons ajid two daughters. Lucinda, their second

daughter, was born July 6th, 1827. She was married to Harry



378 Historical and

Hughes, October, 1843, Mr. Hughes was drowned out of a boat at

Pitchbrook, Avhile engaged carrying off an anchor from a vessel that

he was then Captain of, April 5th, 1845. She was married again to

Samuel Laughead, December, 1852. Mr. Laughead died July 9tli,

1872, aged 45 years, and left no family. George, the eldest son of

William and Susan Creelman, was born April 20th, 1829. He was

married to Eleanor, daughter of George and Susan Yuill, of Clifton,

October Srd, 1856. They have three sons and two daughters.

N"ancy, their third daughter, was born May 24th, 1831. She was

married to Matthew Sanderson, Esq., August 12th, 1854. They have

four sons and four daughters. Martha, their fourth daughter, was

born August 2nd, 1834. She was married to Matthew Frame,

December 16th, 1858. They had one son. Mr. Frame died March

16th, 1869. Matthew, the second son of William and Susan Creel-

man, was born jS'ovember 21st, 1836. He was married to Jane

Cameron, of Hants County, August, 1858. They have two daughters.

Mary, their fifth daughter, was born February 18th, 1839. She was

married to Daniel Philips, December 15th, 1857. They have three

sons and one daughter. Eliza, their sixth daughter, was born

February 10th, 1841. She was married to Michael Ambrose, Sep-

tember, 1856. They had two sons. Mr. Ambrose died October 9th,

1869, aged 35 years. James Creelman, the third son of William and

Susan Creelman, was born December 1st, 1843. He died May 8th,

1861, aged 17 years. Mehetabel, their seventh daughter, was born

July 23rd, 1845. She was married to John Cook, October, 1861.

They liad one son and two daughters. She died July 21st, 1870,

aged 25 years.

Isabell, the second daughter of Matthew and ISTancy Creelman,

was born December 9th, 1804. She was married to Captain James

JS'orris, February 14th, 1828. They had three sons and three

daughters. Mr. JNTorris died December 10th, 1866.

Margaret, the eldest daughter of Samuel Creelman, Senr., and

Isabel], was born in Ireland in the year 1749, and was brought by
her parents to ISTova Scotia when she was twelve years old. She was
married to Samuel Smith in 1791. Mr. Smith came from England a

short time before they were married. They settled on the farm that

George Taylor, Esq., now resides upon at Middle Stewiacke. She
died at the liouse of Mr. James Norris, of Princeport, December,

1836, aged 87 years. She left no children. Mr. Smith died about

the year 1840.
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Nancy, the second daughter of Samuel Crcelman, Senr., and

Isabell riemming, was born in Ireland, January, 1761, and was
brought by her parents to Nova Scotia when but a few months old.

She was married to William Pollock in the year 1781. They settled

ou the form that Mr. John Teas now resides upon at Lower Stewiacke,

where ^Irs. Pollock died suddenly, August, 1786, when her only

daughter was but tliree months old ; this daughter is now the widow
of the late William Green, and is living at date (November 7th, 1872).

She is in the 87th year of her age. Samuel, the only son of Williani

and Nancy Pollock, was born in the year 1784. He was married and

has a family of children. He settled and built a house on a part of

what was his father's farm. In the spring of the year 1816 he and

his father both sold their farms to Isaac Miller and his sons, and a

few years after, he left Nova Scotia. William PoUock died January

18th, 1846.

Ann, the third daughter of Samuel and Isabell Creelman, was

born in Cumberland in the year 1765. She was married to Eobert

Wilson, a Scotchman. They had one daughter ; her name was

Isabell. She was married to Murdock Frame, of Middle Stewiacke,

in 1808. They had six sons and two daughters. She died May 5th,

1866, aged 77 years. !Mr. Frame died August, 1838, aged 58 years.

Robert Wilson died, and his widow was married again to Joseph

Marshal. They had four sons and one daughter. She died March,

1808, aged 43 years. ISIr. Marshall died October, 1844. Mr.

Marshall lived and reared his famdy on the lower farm in Middle

Stewiacke, being the same that Mr. James Taylor now resides upon.

Q>^JL>^

CHAPTEE LXII.

Jacob Lynds was an early settler in Cobequid. He was bom in

Ireland, about the year 1720. He was married there to Mary Guild,

being then the widow McNutt, in 1746. They removed to New

England in 1756. They removed again to Nova Scotia in 1761.

He settled for a time at Advocate, where he obtained a grant of one

thousand five hundred acres of land, and remained there but a short

time. He removed further up the Bay of Fundy. He settled on the

fiirm that is now owned by the Messrs. Putnam at Fort Belcher,
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where he spent the short remainder of his life. He died there

IN'ovember 22nd, 1768. His body was taken up the Bay in a boat,

and buried in the Onslow Cemetery. This was the second body that

Avas biiried on this Island. The first was Miss Mary INIcNutt,

daughter of William and Elizabeth McNutt, who died August 15th,

1765. After the death of Mr. Lynds, the farm at the Fort was sold

to Mr. Eichard Upham, and the family removed and settled on the

farm that his eldest son, Thomas Lynds, and his son Thomas, lived

and died upon, at jS^orth River. His widow was married again to

James Whidden, of Truro. Mr. Whidden died December 13th,

1790. She was again left a widow. She returned again to the

house of her eldest son, Thomas, at the Fort, where she spent the

remainder of her life. She died there in 1810.

Thomas, the eldest son of Jacob and ^lary Lynds, was born in

Ireland, in 1747. He was brought by his parents to America when
he was about nine years old, and to Onslow when he was twenty-five

years old. He was married to Eebecca, fifth daughter of Captain

William Blair and Jane Barns, January 27th, 1774. They reared

their family and lived together for sixty-three years. He died January

6th, 1839, aged 92 years. His wife died January 9th, 1838, aged 80

years. Benjamin and Simeon Lynds, their twin sons, were born

November 15th, 1774. Benjamin was married to Mary McISTutt,

September 12th, 1793. They had six sons and four daughters. He
settled first on the top of the East Mountain of Onslow. After a

while he found it inconvenient to live on the top of the Mountain.

He built another house near the foot of it. where he spent the

remainder of his life, being the same house that his youngest son,

Benjamin, now resides in. He died there in October, 1858, aged 83

years. His wife died September 18th, 1853. Simeon Lynds, the

other twin son, was a wheel-wright. He died a bachelor, August

15th, 1857, aged 82 years. Susan Lynds, their eldest daughter, was

born September 2nd, 1776. She was married to Eobert McCurdy,

in 1794. They had one son. Mr. McCurdy settled about two miles

up the old Tatamagouche Eoad, from the Onslow Church. He died

September 16th, 1863, aged 78 years. His wife died January 18th,

1862, aged 85 years. Lydia Lynds, their second daughter, was born

March 11th, 1778. She was married to Nathaniel Marstcrs, Esq.,

November 5th, 1798. She was Mr. Marsters' second wife. They
had two sons and one daughter. She died April 25th, 1830, aged 52

years. Mr. Marsters died July 19th, 1843, aged 85 years. Mr.
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Marsters' first wife was Sarali Upham. Slie died November 29th,

1789. They had two sons. Jacob Lynds, their third son, was bom
in 1780. He died when young. David Barns Lynds, their fourth

son, was born September 10th, 1781. He was married to Sarah, the

second daughter of John and Nancy Blair, October, 1810. They had
one daughter. He settled in Truro, on the jjlace that was owned by
William Logan, Sen. He practised as a Doctor until the infirmities

of old age came upon him. He died June 9th, 1871. Elizabeth

Lynds, their third daughter, was born September 22nd, 1783. She

was married to Nathaniel Wiswell, in 1802. They had four sons and

five daughters. She died in 1850, aged 67 years. Mr. Wiswell was

killed by falling from a staging of a new house that he was working

at in St. John, N. B., in the summer of 1841. Eebecca Lynds, their

fourth daughter, was born September 24th, 178.5. She was married

to Philip Freeman, in 1805. They had two sons. They removed to

the United States. She died there, and Mr. Freeman died there.

James Lynds, their fifth son, was born October 23rd, 1787. He was

married to Margaret Hall, November 9th, 1809. He settled on a

part of his father's farm. He died there January 5th, 1852, aged 64

years. He left no children. Dorothy Lynds, their fifth daughter,

was born in April, 1790. She died unmarried, October l2th, 1866,

aged 76 years. Thomas Lynds, their sixth son, was born in March,

1792. He inherited the homestead and a large part of his father's

property. He died a bachelor, March 28th, 1865, aged 73 years.

Sarah Lynds, their sixth daughter, was bom July 20th, 1795. She

was married to Wren Johnson, May 15th, 1828. They had one

daughter. Mr. Johnson died September 28th, 1862, aged 68 years.

Mary and Jacob, twins of Jacob Lynds, Sen., and Mary Guild,

were born in 1752. Mary Lynds was married to Solomon Hoar,

April 1st, 1773. They had two sons and six daughters. She died

in 1815, aged 63 years. Mr. Hoar died in 1828.

Jacob Lynds was married to Martha Morrison, November 13th,

1786. He settled on the top of Onslow Mountain. He Avas known

by the name of Whispering Jacob. He died December 23rd, 1833,

aged 81 years. His wife died in March, 1829, aged 67 years. Mary

Lynds, their eldest daughter, was born January 6th, 1788. She was

married to Jacob Workman, February 4th, 1810. They had five sons

and seven daughters. Mr. Workman died in Truro, iMay, 1867.

Jane Lynds, their second daughter, was born April 26th, 1790. She

was married to Gideon McNutt, November 23rd, 1806. They had
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six sons and six daughters. She died January 1st, 1873, aged

83 years. Martha Lynds, their third daugliter, was born December

23rd, 1791, She was married to William ]\Iiller, of Newport, in

December, 1809. They had six sons and three daughters. She died

March 5th, 1873. Mr. Miller died in May, 1858. Jacob Lynds,

their eldest son, was born March 10th, 1793. He drove the mail

from Truro to Pictou from about the year 1815 to 1828. He is

known by the name of Post Jacob. He settled on the old Pictou

Road. He was married to Hannah Lockhart, of Newport, Oct. 14th,

1820. They had one daughter. Mrs. Lynds died May 8th, 1827.

He was married again to Eleanor, the youngest daughter of David and

Esther Archibald, March 12th, 1830. They had one sou and four

daughters. Ruth Lynds, their fourth daughter, was born February

4th, 1795. She was married to Hugh Tucker, April Gth, 1815.

They had six sons and four daughters. He settled on Tatamagouche

Mountain. He died at North River, July 1871, aged 78 years.

Elizabeth Lynds, their fifth daughter, was born January 17th, 1800.

She was married to Robert Nichol, December 5th, 1823. They had

four sons and four daughters. She died December 26th, 1870, aged

71 years.
^
Mr. Mchol died January 9th, 1871, aged 72 years.

Robert Lynds, their second son, was born January 17th, 1798. He
was married to Catherine Embree, of Wallace, in 1831. They had

three sons and four daughters. He is living in Wallace. Jolin

Lynds, their third son, was born March 29th, 1804. He was married

to Charlotte Embree, of Wallace, in 1831. They had one son and

one daughter. He inherited his father's farm on Onslow Mountain.

He died in January, 1835, aged 31 years. Sarah Lynds, their sixth

daughter, Avas born February 4th, 1802. She was married to Samuel

McXutt, in 1821. They had three sons and six daughters. They
removed to the United States. She died there January 1st, 1867.

Lavinia Lynds, their seventh daughter, was born June 26th, 1807.

She was married to Ebenezer Harris, June, 1829. They had one son

and three daughters. She died March 18th, 1869, aged 62 years.

Lydia, the second daughter of Jacob Lynds, Sen., and Mary Guild,

was born in 1 750. She was married to John Arnold, in 1780. They
had one son and three daughters. She died at North River, February

17th, 1788. Ruth Lynds, their third daughter, was born in 1754.

She was married to David Hoar, January 30th, 1779. Thoy had
four sons and five daughters. They removed, and settled at Shepody,

where they both died some time ago.
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John, the third son of Jacob and ^Mary Lynds, was born at

Bunker's Hill, U. S., in 1760. He was brought by his parents to

Nova Scotia when he was one year old. He was married to Eunice

McjSTutt, in 1781. He settled on the farm that his grandson, John
Lynds, now resides on, up the North River. He died there in August,

1838, aged 78 years. His wife died in March, 1835.

William Lynds, their eldest son, was born in 1782. He was

married to Margaret McCoUum, November, 1801. Thoy had five

sons and four daughters. He purchased what was Mr. McCollum's

farm. David Lynds now resides upon it, He died there December

13th, 1848, aged m years. His wife died November 13th, 1847,

aged 64 years. Jacob Lynds, their second 9on, was born May 24th,

1784. He was married to Eleanor, second daughter of Thomas

Fletcher and Elizabeth Barnhill, November 1st, 1810. They had five

sons and five daughters. He died May 27th, 1858, aged 74 years.

His widow died January 17th, 1867, aged 78 years. Lucy Lynds,

their eldest daughter, was born in 1786. She was married to William

Polley, of Cumberland- They had four sons and five daughters. She

died in Cumberland, in 1862, aged 76 years. Mr. Polley died some

time ago. Thomas Lynds, their third son, was born November 11th,

1788. He was married to Elizabeth Clark, in 1813. They had three

sons and four daughters. He settled on the south side of Salmon

River, where Charles D. Upham now resides. He died there in

November, 1848, aged 60 years. Hannah Lynds, their second

daughter, was born in 1790. She was married to Peter Blackmore,

November, 1809. They had five sons and five daughters. Mr.

Blackmore died in October, 1864, aged 81 years. Barnabas Lynds,

their fourth son, was born July 9th, 1792. He was married to Ruth

Archibald, October 20th, 1818. They had three sons and five

daughters. Mrs. Lynds died November 18th, 1853, aged 52 years.

John Harris Lynds, their fifth son, was born February 28th, 1794.

He was married to Abigail Workman, March, 1823. They had three

sons and three daughters. Mary Lynds, their third daughter, was

born February 16th, 1803. She was married to William Cutton,

December 6th, 1822. They had two sons and one daughter. She

died in August, 1838, aged 35 years. Sarah, the youngest daughter

of Jacob Lynds, Sen., and Mary Guild, was born April 18th, 1768.

She was married to John Wright, November 25th, 1788. They had

four sons and eight daughters.
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CHAPTEE LXIII.

Charles Dickson removed from JS'ew England to I*^ova Scotia among

the first settlers when he was young. He resided in Kings County

until ahout the year 1771 ; he then removed up the Bay to Onslow,

and purchased a large tract of land from William McNutt, at Onslow

Parade, where he commenced and carried on a large business at

farming, meichandize, building and sailing ships. He was an active

man for business ; he was Eegistrar of Deeds for Colchester, and

representative of Onslow in the House of Assembly, as before men-

tioned. On September 16th, 1780, he was appointed Justice of the

Peace for what are now the counties of Colchester and Pictou. In

1796 he went to ^he West Indies in one of his vessels ; on his return

he called at Halifax and took ill of yellow fever, and died there on

September 3rd, 1796. His widow was married again to Joseph

McLain. After his death his four sons carried on the business for a

few years, under the firm of John Dickson & Co. He was married

to Amelia Bishop in 1772. She died November, 1846.

John Dickson, their eldest son, was born in Onslow, June 7th,

1773. He was married to Lydia Hamilton, October 20th, 1796.

They had four sons and five daughters. He followed the sea as

Captain a considerable length of time. He was the Senior Justice of

the Peace for the County several years. He died at Onslow,

December, 1858, aged 85 years. His widow died March, 1866.

Charles Dickson, their second son, was born April 6th, 1775. He
was married to Eachel Todd Archibald, December 31st, 1799.

They had five sons and six daughters. He was a carpenter by trade.

He died March, 1821. Mrs. Dickson died in 1819. Eobert Dickson,

their third son, was born July 8th, 1777. He was married to Lavinia

De Wolfe in 1798. They had seven sons and three daughters. He
was a Justice of the Peace, Commissioner of Sewers, representative of

Onslow, and Colonel of the Militia. He was an extensive farmer.

He died ISTovembcr, 1836. His widow died July, 1854, aged 78

years. William Dickson, their fourth son, was born in 1779. He
was married to Eebecca, second daughter of Colonel Thomas and

Martha Pearson, of Truro, January 29th, 1801. They had six sons

and six daughters. He represented Truro in the House of Assembly

eight years. He died February 15th, 1834. Mrs. Dickson died June,
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1833, aged 49 years. Abigail Dickson, their eldest daughter, was
born in 1781. She was married to Andrew Wallace, of Halifax,

February 27th, 1798. They had three sons and one daughter. Mr.

Wallace died, and she was married again to Robert Lowden, of

Merigomish. They had four sons and two daughters. She died in

1868. Sarah Dickson, their second daughter, was born in 1783.

She died when young. Mary and Olivia Dickson, their twin daugh-

ters, were born in 1785. Mary was married to Dr. John Murray

Upham, son of Judge Upham, of New Brunswick, in 1803. They

had one son and two daughters. She died at Tatamagouche, Decem-

ber 6th, 1872. Olivia Dickson, was married to Colonel David

Archibald, February 5th, 1801. She had five sons and five daughters.

She died February 7th, 1872. Elizabeth Dickson, their fifth daughter,

was born in 1 786. She was married to S. G. W. Archibald, March 1 6th,

1802. They had eleven sons and four daughters. She died May
13th, 1830. Thomas Dickson, their fifth son, was born in 1788.

He was married to Sarah Ann Patterson, of Pictou. They had one

son and eight daughters. He studied law with S- O. W. Archibald.

He died in Pictou town, about 1857. His wife died about 1850.

Their children are all dead. Lavinia Dickson, their sixth daughter,

was married to Rev. John Burnyatt, April 27th, 1823. They had

two sons and one daughter. She died October, 1860. Mr. Burnyatt

died April 7th, 1843, aged 59 years.
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CONCLUSION.

A FEW HISTORICAL EVENTS WHICH TOOK PLACE IN TRURO AND ITS NEIGHBORHOOD

FROM ITS EARLY SETTLEMENT UP TO THE PRESENT TIME.

William Fisher was the first Town Clerk who was in Truro. He
acted from the year 1761 to 1771. Samuel Archihald, second, was

Clerk from this time until 1779, the time of his death. His hrother,

Rohert Archihald, was Clerk for the years 1780 and 1781. James

Archihald, Esq., was Clerk for the year 1782. Dr. John Harris was

Clerk until the end of 1790. Gavin Johnson was then Clerk until

the end of 1798. Then David Archibald, seventh, acted four years;

when he removed to Onslow. Alexander Miller was Clerk from the

beginning of the year 1803, until the time of his death, in 1834.

The first Court of Sessions was held in Onslow about the year 1769,

in the house of Samuel Nichols, Senr., which stood then about forty

rods west of the new Church. At one time the Grand Jury voted

£15 to pay Mr. Nichols for the use of his house to hold Courts in, on

condition that he would not sell any rum during the sitting of the

Courts. The people of Pictou came to Onslow to attend Court up to

the year 1790. Courts continued to be held in Onslow until 1800.

A Court house was built on the top of the hill on the north side of

Salmon River, front of the Metzler House, in 1799. The Courts

were held there but a short time. In the year 1803 this house was

taken down by the late Ebenezer Archibald, and hauled through the

interval and River, and set up again on the parade in front of the

present Court-house. It was used as a Court-house until the year

1844 ; it was removed after the present one was built. At the first

settlement of the County, Cobequid had no Jail for a considerable

number of years, excepting the ceUarof David Archibald, Esq., which

was occasionally used for that purpose. After some time, when
Courts were held in Onslow, they had some kind of log JaQ there.

The first Jail that was in Truro was built in 1803 ; it stood on what

is now the street in front of the Registrar of Deeds' office. There had

been but little use for a Jail in Truro hitherto, but about this time

and for a number of years after, imprisonment for debt was very
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common, much more so than at the present day. In May, 1817, this

first Jail was burnt down. Beggs and Munro, two Scotch tailors,

Were suspected of setting it on fire. These two men were confined in

Jail at the time, charged with burglary and stealing. In 1818

another Jail was buQt, and was used until 1865, when it was taken

down, after the present JaU was erected. The first mail was carried

from Halifax to Pictou in December, 1801, by the late Alexander

Stewart (who kept an Inn on Mount Tom, at the same place that his

daughter Nancy continued to keep while she lived). He travelled on

foot, carrying the mail in his pocket or on his back, once a fortnight

until about 1812.

Mr. Mies, of Cumberland, carried a mail from Halifax to Amherst

during the year 1813, once a week, which it took him the six days of

the week to perform. He did it himself, with the exception of one

week, altogether on horseback. About this time Ezra Witter removed

from the western part of the Province and settled on Bible Hill,

where he carried on chaise building. He took the mail to carry from

Halifax to Cumberland, which he did with a chaise drawn by one

horse for a number of years. Eichard Upham Marsters carried the

mail from Truro to Pictou during the year 1813, on horseback,

i^iakim Tupper carried it in 1814. Jacob Lynds drove the mail

from Truro to Pictou from 1815 untU 1828. Mr. Witter drove it

from Halifax to Cumberland about the same time, with the assistance

of Michael Summers and others. In 1828 there was a company

formed to run a coach from HaKfax to Pictou to carry the mail and

passengers. In 1842 Hiram Hyde purchased these horses and coaches

and drove until the cars commenced to run, in December, 1858. The

first engine passed up Salmon River on the railroad on August 21 at,

1866 ; it was engaged in ballasting the road. The same fall the rail-

road was opened for the conveyance of mail and passengers to Pictou,

Charles B. Archibald carried the mail and passengers from Tniro to

Cumberland for more than twenty years, up to November, 1872, when

the Intercolonial railroad was opened for traffic. William and Eol>ert

Watson drove from Truro to Cumberland for a number of years before

Mr. Archibald commenced.

In the early part of the settlement of Nova Scotia, there were

large amounts of labour lost in road-making, for want of having them

properly laid oiit. If we had been placed in the same situation that

our forefathers were, at the first settlement of the place, the probability

is that we would have done do better. Their main object was to
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keep out of the swamps and wet land with their paths, or' roads,. •

through the woods. To attain this object, the highest land was-

passed over, and deep valleys crossed in their narrowest places. As

it was, the travelling for man and beast was very laborious. This

state of things continued until Sir James Kempt became Governor of

Kova Scotia. We may give him the credit of being the originator of

level roads in ISTova Scotia. He was not long in Nova Scotia untU he

set to work to get rid of the travelling over the heavy hills. He
obtained the assistance of Mr. George Whitman, and other scientific

men, in carrying out this desirable object. The first part of

the road between Halifax and Truro, on what is called the level

system, was made about the year 18'28, along the edge of the Grand

Lake. In the year 1834, it was made from Truro to Brookfield.

This work was carried on until the level road was completed from

Halifax to Pictou, alxiut the year 1840. When Mr, Whitman took

surveys from Halifax to Truro, and reported to the Government that

a line of road could be got that would have no greater rise in it than

one foot in thirty, he was laughed at by many of the people.

At the first settlement of this country, and for a long time after,.

the wheat crop yielded an abundant harvest ; and there was no such

thing then as the manufacture or use of oatmeal. In the year 1818,

John Young, Esq., (father of Sir William Young, who is now Chief

Justice of Nova Scotia), wrote a number of letters in, the Acadian

Recorder^ over the name of Agricola, upon agriculture, which stirred

the people up to a new system of farming. . One thing he recom-

mended was the. erection of mills to manufacture oatmeaL Upon this

recommendation, Thomas Dickson, Esq., (who was his co-representa-

tive for the County of Sydney a few years after) fitted up a mill for

that purpose, at the same place that the niills now stand in Truro*

The first oatmeal that was manufactured in Colchester, (and, I think,

in the Province), was done at this mill in 1820. Before this time,

oatmeal was unknown by the natives of Nova Scotia. Not many
years after the use of oatmeal commenced, the wheat crop began to

fail. In this year, September 6th, the first cattle show was held in

Halifax. Sir James Kempt took a lively interest in this. He was in

attendance, and distributed the prizes. John Young, Esq., took a

very active part in this business) as well as many others. The next

fall, the first cattle show was held in Truro. About this time,

ploughing matches commenced, and more interest was taken in

agriculture and the improvement of stock.
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On Fe'bruary l«th, 1826, a public meeting was held in Halifax,

<on the subject of the Shubenacadie Canal. The estimated cost of this

Canal was £60,000. Messrs Jeffery and Cnnard' subscribed £1000
«ach. There were £13,000 subscribed at this meeting, a company
was formed, and the House of Assembly granted £15,000. Charles

Rufus Fairbanks took a very a-ctive part in the work. On Monday,
July 24th, the ground was broken for the commencement of this

great work by His Excellency the Earl of Dalhousie, in presence of

Sir James Kempt, the Members of Council, and a large number of

respectable citizens. The work went on for a number of years, a

larger amotint of money was expended than the estimate. This great

work turned out to be ail but a useless undertaking.

As before mentioned, Cobeq^iid was directed to be included in the

County of Halifax, in 1761. In 1765 Charles Morris, jr., was

returned to represent the township of Tiairo in the House of Assembly,

and James Brenton, Esq., for the township of Onslow. Mr. Morris

Tseing returned to represent Kings County at the same time ; he

accepted for Kings County, and Truro was unrepresented until 176'6,

•when David Archibald, Esq. took his seat on June 5th. In 1770

William Tisher was returned to represent Truro, Joshua Lamb for

Onslow, and Captain John Morrison, having removed from Truro to

Londonderry in 1769, took his seat in 1770 to represent London-

derry, without opposition. Mr. Fisher being in a bad state of health,

Samuel Archibald, (eldest son of David Archibald, E^j.), took his

seat in the Assembly, June 27th, 1775. In 1777 Samuel Archibald

was returned to represent Truro, which he continued to do amtil the

time of his death, in 1779. Dr. John Harris represented Truro after

the death of Mr. Archibald until 1785 without opposition. Charles

Dickson represented Onslow from 1777, it being iinrepresented for a

few years before, on account of there being no pay for members at this

"time. John Morrison continued to represent Londonderry until 1778.

Eichard Cunningham was the representative for Londonderry until

the end of the Long Parliament, which continued from 1770 to 1785.

There were seventeen sessions during that time. In 1785, Matthew

Archibald was returned to represent Truro, Charles Dickson for

Onslow, and James Smith, (eldest son of Eev. David Smith), for

Londonderry. Mr. Smith's seat was declared vacant, April 6th, 1789,

Robert McElhenney was elected to represent Londonderry on Feby,

2oth, 1790. In February, 1793, there was a general election in the

Province, .this being tfee first election for the County of Halifax in
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which a Poll was opened in. Onslow. It closed there February 2Sth.

Matthew Archibald was returned to represent Truro, Charles Dickson

for Onslow, and Eobert McElhenney for Londonderry. In 179&

Simon B. Eobie, of Halifax, was returned to represent Truro, Daniel

McCurdy for Onslow, and Samuel Chandler for Londonderry. Up
to this date the County of Halifax was represented altogether by men
residing within the Town of Halifax ; at this election, as before-

mentioned, James Fulton, Esq., of Bass Eiver, and Edward Mortimer,,

of Pictou, were the first who offered to represent the County, who did

not reside in Halifax. A Poll was opened in Halifax, Onslow, and

Pictou; it was closed in Pictou December 13th, being the first election

held in Pictou, when Fulton, Mortimer, Tonge, and Morris were

returned. ]!^ovember 18th, 1806, the new Assembly met, (9th gen-

eral assembly, first session). Members returned for the County of

Halifax, Edward Mortimer of Pictou, S. G. W. Archibald of Truro,.

Simon B. Eobie and William Lawson of Halifax ; Thomas Pearson

for Truro, Nathaniel Marsters for Onslow, and Samuel Chandler for

Londonderry. The tenth General Assembly of this Province was

elected in 1811, (the first election within the recollection of the

writer.) Mortimer, Archibald, Eobie, and Lawson were again return-

ed to represent the County of Halifax. James Kent for Truro,

Nathaniel Marsters for Onslow, and James Flemming for Londonderry.

In 1818 Mortimer, Archibald, Eobie and Lawson were again returned

for the County of Halifax. William Dickson for Truro, Eobert

Dickson for Onslow, and James Flemming for Londondeny. Mr.

Mortimer died October 10th, 1819. George Smith of Pictou was

returned without opposition to fill his place. In 1820 there was.

another general election in this Province, on account of the death of

King George the III. At tliis election, Archibald, Smith, Eobie and

Lawson, were again returned to represent the County of Halifax ;

William Dickson for Truro ; Eobert Dickson, for Onslow ; and James
Flemming for Londonderry. In 1826, S. G. W. Archibald, George-

Smith, William Lawson, and Lawrence Hantshome, were returned to-

represent the County of Halifax. There was a pretty sharp contest

at this time between William Flemming and Charles Dickson

Archibald (the eldest son of S. G. W. Archibald). At the close of

the poll, Archibald had one of a majority ; and at the last minute

before closing the poU, Archibald had his own vote recorded for

himself. Flemming attempted to do the same, but was too late, as-

the time had arrived for closing the polL A scrutiny vas demanded
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by Flemming. Oa March 8tli, 1827, the committee which investi-

gated this contest, reported in favour of Archibald's retaining his seat

as representative of Truro. John Crowe was returned for Onslow,

and John Wier for Londonderry. At the meeting of the Assembly

on February 1st, 1827, S. G. W. Archibald was unanimously chosen

Speaker of the House. In 1830, the memorable election on the

brandy question (as before mentioned) was held. S. G. W. Archibald,

George Smith, William Lawson, and Jotham Blanchard, were returned

to represent the County of Haliflix ; Alexander Lackie Archibald for

Truro ; Eobert Dickson for Onslow, and John Wier for Londonderry.

Archibald continued Speaker. In 1836, the law went into operation

for dividing the County of Halifax into three Counties, viz. : Halifax,

Colchester and Pictou. At the election held in November, 1836,

S. G. W. Archibald was returned to represent Colchester County

;

Alexander L. Aichibald, for Truro ; Alexander McC. Upham, for

Onslow, and G. W. McLellan for Londonderry. Archibald continued

Speaker. In 1841, S. G. W. Archibald was appointed to the office

of Master of EoUs, and Thomas Dickson was elected to represent

Colchester. In 1843, John Eoss was returned to represent Colchester

;

WiUiam Flemming, for Truro ; John Crowe, for Onslow, and G. W.
McLellan for Londonderry. In 1847, Samuel Creelman, of Stewiacke,

was returned to represent the County of Colchester ; Alexander L.

Archibald, for Truro ; John Crowe, for Onslow, and G. W. McLellan,

for Londonderry. In 1851, Adams G. Archibald and G. W. McLellan

were returned to represent the County of Colchester ; James Campbell,

of Tatamagouche, for the north District, and Samuel Creelman for

the south. In 1855, Adams G. Archibald and G. W. McLellan

were returned again to represent Colchester ; Thomas F. Morrison for

the north District, and Hiram Hyde for the south. During the

sitting of the Assembly in the early part of 1858, G. W. McLellan

died in Halifax. His son, A. W. McLellan, was returned without

opposition, to fiU the vacant seat for one year. In the year 1859,

Adams G. Archibald and Alexander Campbell were returned to

represent the south District of Colchester, and Thomas F. Morrison

and A. W. McLellan for the north District. In the year 1863, A.

W. McLeUan and William Blackwood, of Tatamagouche, were

returned to represent the north District of Colchester; Adams G.

Archibald and Francis Parker for the south District. In the year

1867, A. W. McLellan was elected to represent the County of

Colchester in the House of Commons of Canada, Thomas F. Morrison
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and Eobert Cham'bers to represent Colchester in the Local Parliament

of Nova Scotia. In the year 1869, Adams G. Archibald was elected

to represent Colchester in the House of Commons of Canada, in the

place of A. W. McLellan, who had accepted office. In 1870,

Frederick M. Pearson was returned to represent Colchester in the

House of Commons, in place of Adams G. Archibald, who had

accepted office. In 1871, Thomas P. Morrison and Samuel Eettie

were returned, without opposition, to represent Colchester in the

House of Assembly of Nova Scotia. On August 15th, 1872, Prederick

M. Pearson was elected, by a large majority of votes, to represent

Colchester in the House of Commons of Canada.

It may here be mentioned, the critical situation the people of

Cobequid were in at one time, when their friends and relations in

the thirteen Provinces, or States, of New England rebelled against

British rule or authority. They were strongly induced to join the

States. In 1777, two Justices of the Peace were sent from Halifax

to Truro, Onslow and Londonderry, to tender the oath of allegiance

to the inhabitants, when there were but five found willing to take the

oath. When their representatives went to the House of Assembly the

next session, they were not allowed to take their seats, on account of

the people being suspected of disloyalty. At one time, the people of

Truro assembled at Eliakim Tupper's Inn, in the village, to consult

about this matter,. James "Wright (who had been in His Majesty's

service at Fort Cumberland, when he was discharged, was allowed to

retain his musket and uniform), when he got notice of this meeting,

he put on his uniform, shouldered his musket, with fixed bayonet,

and marched down and entered a crowded room in Mr. Tupper's

house in great rage. He flourished his gun, and cried ou.t, " Show

me the man that will say anything against the rule of King George."

He soon cleared the room, some escaping by the door, others by the

windows, without any one being killed or wounded. No doubt but

he was one of the five who took the oath of allegiance. They, soon

after, made up their minds to remain loyal to the British Crown.

During this rebellion, the British soldiers were dependent, to a certain

extent, on the inhabitants, residing on the sides of the Bay of Pundy
for provisions. On one occasion, a number of the soldiers came up

the Bay in their boat or small vessel. They landed at Bass River,

and went to the house of James Pulton, Esq., entered the house, and

helped themselves to what they needed to eat, then laid themselves

down for a night's rest. In the morning, they went to the bureau



Genealogical Record. 393

and took out what clean shirts they coukl get, and dressed themselves.

They then went to the pasture and took a heifer three years old,

butchered her, and took her away with them. The inhabitants dare

not make the least resistance.

On the night of October 4th, 1869, the tide rose about four feet

higher that it was ever known to rise before in the Bay of Fundy.

It destroyed the dykes in Colchester, which laid open about one

thousand acres of marsh. It cost about five thousand dollars to repair

the dykes and fences. In the County of Cumberland, the damage

was very great, carrying away barns, stacks of hay, dykes and fences.

In 1770, a Eegistrar of Deeds was appointed for Colchester. The

office was kept by Joshua Lamb, in Onslow, from the year 1770 to

1777. Charles Dickson, Esq., of Onslow, filled the office from that

date until the time of his death, September 3rd, 1796. His third

son, Eobert Dickson, filled the office, which was kept in Onslow, until

1803. At that date, William Dickson was appointed, who had

removed to Truro the year before. He continued to fill the office

until 1825. Israel Allison was then appointed Eegistrar, and

continued until 1831. George Dill was then appointed, and con-

tinued until the time of his death, January 4th, 1854. On February

21st, 1854, James K. Blair was appointed, and continues to fiU the

office at the present time. May 1873.

Matthew Harris died at Pictou December 9th, 1819, aged 88 years.

He was among the early settlers of Pictou. He was brother of Dr.

John Harris, and father of Thomas Harris, Land Surveyor. Thomas

Harris surveyed and divided the back land of the Township of Truro,

under the Avrit of partition, and made a plan of the same, which is

stiU in use, and is dated August 12th, 1788.

The first settlers of Upper Stewiacke assembled regularly for

Public Worship m the house of Samuel Fisher, from the year 1787

until 1793. They then erected a log Church on the north side of the

river, on the opposite side of the road from where the church now

stands, in the Village. In October, 1810, the fi-ame of a new church

was raised quite near the site of the present church. It was fifty

feet long, by forty feet wide, and two storeys high. In 1853, owing

to the rapid increase of the congregation, it became necessary to

provide more church accommodation. In October, same year, a new

frame was raised, forty-six feet, by seventy-five, and partly covered in,

but was blown down in December. In July of the following year
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the frame of the present church was raised, and the work progressed

steadily until it was completed.

About the year 1780 the first church in Onslow was raised, but

the inside was not finished until 1812. WilKam McNutt, grand-

father of the Mc^utts in Lower Village, and at I^orth Eiver, was the

principal architect. In 1871 it was taken down, and a new one

erected on the same site.

In 1872, the Baptists of Onslow erected a church near the same

place. It has been asked, how the old Onslow church came to be

owned and occupied by both Presbyterians and Baptists ? At the

time the church was built the inhabitants of Cobequid were all

Presbj'terians ; but, in course of time, some of them changed, and

joined the Baptists, and the house was occupied jointly by the two

denominations as long as it stood. In June, 1856, a church was

erected between Salmon Eiver and Onslow Mountain, called the

Union Church.
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Brookfield, first settled

Blanchard, Colonel Jotham
John and Jonathan
Jotham, 2nd
John
Edward S.

His Family
Brown, Rev. John
Burnyatt, Rev. John

Church, first in Truro raised

Churches, other in Truro
Call to Rev. D. Cock
Call to Rev. Hugh Graham .

Ceck, Rev. D., settlement

Centenary of

Daniel, of Capt. Wm.
Robert and William
Ebenezer
Daniel
Jane

Crow, James
Joseph
Samuel
David Vance
Dr. Robert F.

Aaron
John
Thomas
Sarah
James, Esq.
Nicholas

Corbett, William
Thomas
Peter Suther
Robert
George and James

Christie, John
John D.
Henry
Andrew and Robert
Alexander

Cox, Charles
William and John
Charles
George
Charles
Archibald
William and Andrew
John and Agnes

Creelman, Samuel
Samuel 2nd, his son

.

James, son Saml 2nd
William and family.

Samuel, son of Saml
John and family

Francis and Andrew
James Campbell
Matthew
Matthew and Saml
John and William

242
.254

254
•255
256
.257
258
.262

385

147
.148

148
.238
150

.149
152

•154

155
•157
158

.199

199
,201

201

.203

204
.205

207
.208

209
210
211
.213

212

213
214
.243

243
244
245
,246

299
300
301

303
304
305
306
307
365
366
367
368
369
370
372

374
375
376
377

Canal, Shubenacadie
Churches, Upper Stewiacke
Church, first in Onslow
Church, Union

Dill, Rachel
Dunlap, James

James, his son
Mary
Jno & Adam Johnson
Hugh and Rachel
Samuel

Dickie, Isaac
Deyarmond, Alexander

Robert
Dickson, John
Downing, John
Dickson, John

John and Mary
Elisabeth and James

Dickey, Adam
David and James
William and David

Downing, James
John and Janet

Dickson, Charles
John, his son

389
393
394
394

107
III

112

113
114
116

117
185

187
187

194
194
248
249
250
309
309
310
338
339
384
384

Emmigrants, 3,000 .... 9
Elliot, Anthony ' • • 9

William ... g
Elders, First in Truro . . 159

Their Successors .... 159
Election, Halifax, Colchester and

Pictou 253
Election on the Brandy question , . 255
Enterprise, Loss of Brig .... 283
Elections in Truro, Londonderry
and Onslow, from 1765 to 1872 389

French driven out . . 5-9
Fletcher, Thomas 197
Fire in Truro . . 150
Fire in Miramichi . . . .241
Fulton, James, Esq. . . 252
Fisher, Deacon Samuel .... 259

Samuel, his son . . 260
Fulton, John 312

David .. 312
Fisher, William 323

David and Jolin L. . . 325
Edward Logan . . . .326

Fulton, James 361
John and William . . . .362
Joseph and Samuel . . 363
Adam and Ebenezer . . . .364
Samuel, first marriage in

Upper Stewiacke . . . .364
Joshua and Sisters . . 365

Grant, Onslow Township .... 167
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Presby. of Newtoulimavady .. 147
Pearson, Col. Thomas ....231

William and John . . 232
Fred. M. and Robert 233

Provost Sir George, visit to Truro 242
Putnam, Caleb . . 291

Timothy ....292
Robert and John . . 293

Pyke, Richard 344
Property destroyed by tide, 1869. 393

Rutherford, James, sr. . . 133
Ross, Rev. Duncan . . • .366
Registrars of Deeds from I770 to

1873 ^ •• 393

Staples, Matthew . . 11

John 12

William . . 13

Savage, John .... 49
Scott, George . . 131
Smith, John ....215

William .. 216
John 218
Robt. and Wm. his son . .219
Daniel C. 220
Robt. and Peter Suther . . 223
Janet Colvin .... 224

Smith, Rev. James, D.D. . . 228
.Stewiacke, Upper, settled . . 237

First sermon preached
in 238

Freshet, big wind, &c. 241
Starved Ship . . 259
Smith, Rev. David 261

James . . 261
David ....262

Steel, George • • 3^3
Soldiers help themselves ....392
Sessions Courts in Onslow . . 386
Show, Cattle, first in Truro . . . .388
Scene, exciting, in Tupper's Inn. 392

Truro first settled

Taylor, Margaret
Matthew
John and James
David
Samuel
Archd. and William

Tupper, Eliakim
Samuel
Eliakim and Elias

Eddy and David
Town Clerks, Truro

Upham, Daniel
Richard
Dr. John M.

Vance, Alexander

Waggon, first in Truro
Wright, James and John
Waddell, Rev. John

Rev. James
Jotham B.

Dr. John
Rev. John, illness

death
Whidden, James and David

Eddy, dilemma
Samuel, of Samuel
James, his brother

Simeon and Willm
Simeon and Robt.

Wallace, Andrew

Yuill, James, Esq.

John
William and James
George and James
Andrew and Samuel
Jacob
Daniel

... 14

. . 106
. . . 108
. . 108
. ..109
.. no
. ..112
• • 225
. ..226
. . 229
. . . 230
.. 386

• • 153
...191

.. 385

. . 190

...118
• • 143
. ,.160
. . 160
...161
. . 162
id

...162

.. 341
•••343
•• 344
• • .345
.. 346
••347
.. 38s

.. 281

...285

.. 286

...287

.. 288

...289

.. 290














